










SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD 
 
Department of Business, Economic Development & Tourism (DBEDT)                  Tel 808 586-2594 
No. 1 Capitol District Bldg., 250 South Hotel St. 5th Fl., Honolulu, Hawaii 96813                  
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2359, Honolulu, Hawaii  96804 
Email: dbedt.sbrrb@hawaii.gov 
Website: dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb                

 
 

 
        David Y. Ige 
           Governor 

 
      Luis P. Salaveria 
       DBEDT Director 
 

        Members 

      Anthony Borge 
     Chairperson 

             Oahu 
   
     Harris Nakamoto  
    Vice Chairperson 
           Oahu 
 
   Kyoko Y. Kimura 

  2nd Vice Chairperson 
            Maui 
 
     Robert Cundiff  
            Oahu 
 
Nancy Atmospera-Walch 
            Oahu 
 
   Garth Yamanaka 
          Hawaii 
 
   Director, DBEDT 
   Voting Ex Officio 
          

 
    
          
 

 
  
 

AGENDA  
Wednesday, April 19, 2017  1:00 p.m. 

No. 1 Capitol District Building 
250 South Hotel Street - Conference Room 436  

 
I. Call to Order 

 
II. Approval of March 15, 2017 Meeting Minutes 

 
III. Old Business    

 
A. Discussion and Action on the Small Business Statement After Public Hearing 
 and Proposed Amendments to Title 8, Subtitle 1, Liquor Commission,  
 promulgated by the Department of Liquor Control, County of Maui, as  
 follows - attached and incorporated as Exhibit 1 
 

1. Chapter 101, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of  
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui; and  

2. Chapter 102, Rules Governing Administrative Practices and  
Procedures of the Liquor Commission and Liquor Control  
Adjudication Board of the County of Maui  

 
B. Discussion and Action on the Small Business Statement After Public  
 Hearing and Proposed Amendments to Title 4, Chapter 143, Standards  
 for Coffee, promulgated by Department of Agriculture – attached and 
 incorporated as Exhibit 2 
 
C. Discussion and Action on the Small Business Statement After Public Hearing 
 and Proposed Amendments to Title 11, Chapter 50, Food Safety Code, 
 promulgated by Department of Health – attached and incorporated as  
 Exhibit 3 

 
IV. Legislative Matters  

 
A. Update on Governor’s Message 535, Submitting for Consideration and 
 Confirmation to the Small Business Regulatory Review Board, Gubernatorial 
 Nominee, Robert Cundiff, for a Term to expire 6-30-2020.   
 
B. Update on House Bill 1382 HD1, SD1, Relating to Procurement – Assists 
 small business in the state procurement process by establishing a temporary 
 small business assistance initiative, small business advisory council, small 
 business office, and small business procurement coordinator position within  
 the state procurement office, and appropriates funds. 
 
C. Update on House Bill 587 HD1, SD1, Relating to Small Business - 
 Appropriates funds to the Department of Business, Economic Development,  
 and Tourism to provide additional resources to the Small Business  
 Regulatory Review Board. 

mailto:dbedt.sbrrb@hawaii.gov


Small Business Regulatory Review Board 
April 19, 2017 
Page 2 

D. Update on Senate Bill 908, SD1, HD2, Relating to the Small Business 
 Regulatory Flexibility Act – Adopts a more explicit definition of “small 
 business,” clarifies the powers of the Small Business Regulatory Review  
 Board, increases the number of board members from nine to eleven, and 
 clarifies when reporting by the agencies is required for submission to the  
 board and for submission by the board to the Legislature.  
 
E. Update on Senate Bill 1059, SD1, HD1, Relating to Small Business –  
 Assists small business in the state procurement process by establishing a 
 small business assistance initiative; establishes a small business assistance 
 coordinator position, small business office, and small business advisory
 group as part of the initiative; and appropriates funds.  
 

V. Administrative Matters 
 
A. Update on the Board’s Upcoming Advocacy Activities and Programs in 
 accordance with the Board’s Powers under Section 201M-5, Hawaii Revised 
 Statutes 
 

VI. Next Meeting: Scheduled for Wednesday, May 17, 2017, at 10:00 a.m., Capitol 
District Building, Conference Room 436, Honolulu, Hawaii 
 

VII. Adjournment 
 
If you require special assistance or auxiliary aid and/or services to 
participate in the public hearing process (i.e., sign language, interpreter, 
wheelchair accessibility, or parking designated for the disabled), please 
call (808) 586-2594 at least three (3) business days prior to the meeting so 
arrangements can be made. 

  



Exhibit 1 




Amendment to Title 08, Chapter 101 , 

Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale 

of Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui 


1. Section 08-1 01-5, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of 
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amen ded by amending the definition 
of "condominium hotel" to read as follows : 

'"'Condominium hotel" means an establishment consisting of one or more 
buildings that includes: 

(a) Guest rooms that are units, as defined in section 514B-3, HRS, 
which are used to provide transient lodging for periods of less than thirty days 
under a written contract with the owner of a unit in the condominium hotel 
operation; and 

(b) Guest rooms that are units, owned or managed by the condominium 
hotel operator providing tr ansient lodging for periods of less than thirty days, 
which are offered for adequate pay to transient guests[; andL 

[{c) A suitable and adequate kitchen and dining room, where meals are 
regularly prepared and served to guests and other customers.] 

A condominium hotel does not include a hotel that may be part of a 
condominium property regime established under chapter 514B, HRS, that does 
not have guest rooms that are separate units, as defined in section 514B-3, HRS. 
[Eff 7 / 1/00; am and comp 7 / 15/02; am and comp 4/22/ 12; am and comp 
6/18/15; am and comp 11/29/15; am and comp] (Auth: HRS§§ 91-2, 281
1 7) (Imp: HRS §281-17)" 

2 . Section 08-101-5, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of 
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended by amending the definition 
of "hotel" to read as follows: 

""Hotel" means a premises consisting of one or more buildings which 
contain at least forty separate rooms, units, or apartments, providing sleeping 
accommodations for adequate pay to transient or permanent guests[, and a 
suitable and adequate kitchen and dining room, where meals are regularly 
prepared and served to hotel guests and other customers). [Eff 7 / 1 / 00; am and 
comp 7 / 15/02; am and comp 4/22/ 12; am and comp 6/ 18/ 15; am and comp 
11/29/ 15; am and comp] (Auth : HRS§§ 91-2, 281-17) (Imp: HRS §281-17)" 

3 . Section 08-101-5, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of 
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended by amending the definition 
of "open for business" to read as follows : 

101-1 




""Open for business" means whenever any type of service or consumption 
is performed within the licensed premises; or when the licensee solicits and 
receives an order for; have or keep or offer or expose for sale; deliver for value or 
in any other way, including purely gratuitously; peddle; keep with intent to sell; 
or traffic in any liquor or merchandise[; or when any person other than an on
duty employee of the licensee is within the premises}. [Eff 7 / 1 / 00; am and comp 
7 / 15/02; am and comp 4/22/ 12; am and comp 6/ 18/ 15; am and comp 
11/29/15; am and comp] (Auth: HRS§§ 91-2, 281- 17) (Imp: HRS §281-17)" 

4 . Section 08-101-5, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of 
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended by amending the definition 
of "premises" or "licensed premises" to read as follows: 

'"'Premises" or "licensed premises" means the building and property that 
houses the establishment for which a license has been or is proposed to be 
issued; provided that in the case of a class 12 hotel license, "premises" includes 
the hotel premises; provided further that in the case of a class 15 condominium 
hotel license, "premises" includes [units,} apartments, as defined in section 
514B-3, HRS, that are used to provide transient lodging for periods of less than 
thirty days under a written contract with the owner or owners of each unit in, 
and common elements for access purposes as established by the declaration of 
condominium property regime of the condominium hotel; and provided further 
that if an establishment is in a retail shopping complex the businesses of which 
have formed a merchants association, "premises" means the establishment. As 
used in this definition, "establishment" means a single physical location where 
the selling of liquor takes place. [Eff 7 / 1/00; am and comp 7 / 15/02; am and 
comp 4 /22/ 12; am and comp 6/ 18/ 15; am and comp 11 /29 / 15; am and comp] 
(Auth: HRS§§ 91-2, 281-17) (Imp: HRS §281-17)" 

5. Section 08-101-10, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of 
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended by amending subsection 
{a) to read as follows: 

"(a) The commission is established in accordance with the provisions of 
chapter 281, HRS, and chapter 13 of the (Charter of the County.] revised charter 
of the County of Maui (19831, as amended. The commission shall have the sole 
jurisdiction, power, authority, and discretion, subject to the rules of the 
commission and chapter 281, HRS: 

(1) 	 To grant, refuse, suspend, and revoke any licenses for the 
manufacture, importation, and sale of liquors; 

(2) 	 To take appropriate action against a person who, directly or 
indirectly, manufactures, sells, or [sells] purchases any liquor 
without being authorized pursuant to the rules of the commission; 
provided the liquor control adjudication board shall have the 
jurisdiction , power, authority, and discretion to hear and determine 
administrative complaints of the director regarding violations of the 

101-2 




(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

liquor laws of the State or of the rules of the liquor commission, and 
impose penalties for violations thereof as may be provided by law; 
To control, supervise, and regulate the manufacture, importation, 
and sale of liquors by investigation, enforcement, and education, 
provided that any educational program shall be limited to the 
commission staff, commissioners, liquor control adjudication board 
members, licensees, and their employees and shall be financed 
through the money collected from the assessment of fines against 
licensees; provided that fine moneys, not to exceed ten percent a 
year of fines accumulated, may be used to fund public liquor related 
educational or enforcement programs; 
From time to time to make, amend, and repeal such rules, not 
inconsistent with chapter 281, HRS, as in the judgment of the 
commission seem appropriate for carrying out the provisions of 
chapter 281, HRS, and for the efficient administration thereof, and 
the proper conduct of the business of all licensees, including every 
matter required to be done or which may be done with the approval 
or consent or by order or under the direction or supervision of or as 
prescribed by the commission, which rules, when adopted as 
provided in chapter 91, HRS, shall have the force and effect of law; 
Subject to chapters 76 and 77, HRS, to appoint and remove a 
director, wh o may also be appointed an investigator, and who shall 
be responsible for the operations and activities of the staff. The 
director may h ire and remove hearings officers, investigators, and 
clerical, or other assistants as its business may from time to time 
require, to prescribe their duties, and fix their compensation; to 
engage the services of experts and persons engaged in the practice 
of a profession, if deemed expedient. Every investigator within the 
scope of the investigator's duties shall have the powers of a police 
officer[. A commission employee may support, advocate, or aid in 
the election or defeat of any candidate for public office, or run for 
public office; provided the employee: 

(a) Notifies the commission in writing of the employee's 
intent to support, advocate, or aid in the election or defeat of a 
candidate for public office; and 

(b) If a candidate for public office, takes a leave of absence 
in accordance with section 78-23, HRS, for a period beginning prior 
to the initiation of political activities related t o the candidacy and 
ending the day following the general election for the office; 

Notwithstanding chapter 11, HRS, or any other law to the 
contrary, no commission employee shall solicit or receive 
contributions, or receive or transfer money or anything of value from 
a licensee for the purpose of supporting, advocating, or aiding in the 
election or defeat of a candidate for public office. Violation of this 
subsection shall be: 

(a) Punishable by summary dismissal of the employee; and 

101-3 




(b} Subject to fines in accordance with section 11-410, 
HRS]; 

(6) 	 To limit the number of licenses of any class or kind within the 
County or the number of licenses of any class or kind to do business 
in any given locality, when in the judgment of the commission such 
limitations are in the public interest; 

(7) 	 To prescribe the nature of the proof to be furnished, the notices to 
be given, and the conditions to be met or observed in case of the 
issuance of a duplicate license in place of one alleged to have been 
lost or destroyed, including a requirement of any indemnity deemed 
appropriate to the case; 

(8) 	 To fix the hours between which licensed premises of any class or 
classes may regularly be open for the transaction of business, which 
shall be uniform throughout the County as to each class 
respectively; 

(9) 	 To prescribe all forms to be used for the purposes of the rules of the 
commission not otherwise provided for in the rules of the 
commission, and the character and manner of keeping of books, 
records, and accounts to be kept by licensees in any matter 
pertaining to their business; 

(10) 	 To investigate violations of the rules of the commission, State liquor 
laws, State liquor tax laws, and, violations of the applicable 
department of health's allowable noise levels, through its 
investigators or otherwise, and to report such violations to the 
prosecuting officer for prosecution and, where appropriate, the 
[director] department of taxation to hear and determine complaints 
against any licensee; 

(11) 	 To prescribe by rule, the terms, conditions, and circumstances 
under which persons or any class of persons may be employed by 
holders of liquor licenses; 

(12) 	 To prescribe by rule, the term of any license or solicitor's and 
representative's permit authorized by the rules of the commission, 
the annual or prorated amount and the manner of payment of fees 
for such licenses and permits, and the amount of filing fees; and 

(13) 	 To prescribe by rule, the circumstances and penalty for the 
unauthorized manufacturing or selling of any liquor. [Eff 7 / 1 / 00; 
am and comp 4/22/ 12; am and comp} (Auth: HRS§§ 91-2, 281
17) (Imp: HRS §281 - 17)" 

101-4 




6 . Sect ion 08-101- 19, Ru les Governing t he Manufacture and Sale of 
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended to read as follows: 

"§08-101 - 19 [(Reserved)] Political activities of commission employees. (a) 
A commission employee may support, advocate, or aid in the election or defeat 
of any candidate for public office, or run for public office; provided the employee: 

ill 	 Notifies the commission in writing of the employee's intent to 
support, advocate, or aid in the election or defeat of a candidate for 
public office; and 

@ 	 If a candidate for public office, takes a leave of absence in 
accordance with section 78-23, HRS, for a period beginning prior to 
the initiation of political activities related to the candidacy and 
en ding the day following the general election for the office . 

.lli) Notwithstanding chapter 11, HRS, or any other law to the contrary, 
no commission employee shall solicit or receive contributions, or receive or 
transfer money or anything of value from a licensee for the purpose of 
supporting, advocating, or aiding in the election or defeat of a candidate for 
public office. Violation of this subsection shall be: 

ill Punishable by summary dismissal of the employee; and 
@ Subject to fines in accordance with section 11-410, HRS. [Eff] 

(Auth: HRS §§ 91-2, 281-17) (Imp: HRS §281-17)" 

7 . Section 08-101-21 , Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of 
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended to read as follows : 

"§08-101-21 Licensee purchases from class 1 manufacturers,._ ( and) class 3 
wholesalers. class 14 brewpub licensee. class 16 winery licensee. and class 18 
small craft producer pub licensee only. 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any licensee, except a class 1, 3..1. or 10 
licensee, to purchase, acquire, possess, serve.I. or sell any liquor from any person 
other than a class 1 [,] manufacturers' licensee, or a class 3(,] wholesale dealers' 
licensee, class 14 brewpub licensee, class 16 winery licensee, and class 18 small 
craft producer pub licensee, or a person authorized by the commission as a 
solicitor or representative of a manufacturer or wholesale dealer, pursuant to 
this rule, except as otherwise provided in this chapter. 

(b) It shall be unlawful for any licensee to obtain any liquor from a class 
1 [,) manufacturers' licensee, or a class 3(,) wholesale dealers' licensee, class 14 
brewpub licensee, class 16 winery licensee, and class 18 small craft producer 
pub licensee, or a person authorized by the commission as a solicitor or 
representative of a manufacturer or wholesale dealer except for use under the 
terms of their license. [Eff 7 / 1/00; am and comp 4/22/ 12; am and compJ (Auth: 
HRS§§ 91-2, 281 -17) (Imp: HRS §281-17)" 

8 . Section 08-101-22, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of 
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended to read as follows: 

101-5 




"§08-101-22 Licenses, classes. (a) Licenses may be granted by the 
commission as provided in this rule. 

(b) 	 Class 1. Manufacturer license. 
(1) 	 A license for the manufacture of liquor shall authorize the licensee 

t o manufacture the liquor therein specified and to sell it at wholesale 
in original packages to any person who holds a license to resell it 
and to sell draught beer or wine manufactured from grapes or other 
fruits grown in the [state] State in any quantity to any person for 
private use and consumption. 

(2) 	 Under this license, no liquor shall be consumed on the premises 
except as authorized by the commission. 

(3) 	 Of this class, there shall be the following kinds: 
(A) 	 Beer; 
(B) 	 Wine; 
(C) 	 Alcohol; and 
(D) 	 Other specified liquor. 

(4) It shall be unlawful for any holder of a manufacturer license to have 
any interest whatsoever in the license or licensed premises of any 
other licensee, except as may be provided within section 08-101-106 
of the rules of the commission. This subsection shall not prevent 
the holder of a manufacturer license under this chapter or under 
the law of another jurisdiction from maintaining any interest in the 
license or licensed premises of a wholesale dealer licensee under this 
chapter. 

(c) 	 Class 2 . Restaurant license. 
(1) 	 A license under this class shall authorize the licensee to sell liquor 

specified in this section for consumption on the premises; provided 
that a restaurant licensee, with commission approval, may provide 
off-premises catering of food and liquor by applying and obtaining 
approval for a catering permit while performing food catering 
functions; provided further that the catering activity shall be directly 
related to the licensee's operation as a restaurant. A license under 
this class shall also authorize the licensee to sell beer malt 
beverages. or cider for off-premises consumption, provided that the 
licensee has the appropriate kind of license pursuant to paragraph 
(4); and provided further that the beer, malt beverage, or cider is 
sold in a securely sealed or covered glass, ceramic, or metal 
container that is sold to or provided by the patron, and each sealed 
or covered glass, ceramic, or metal container does not exceed a 
maximum capacity of one-half gallon. 

(2) 	 A licensee under this class shall be issued a license according to the 
category of establishment the licensee owns or operates . The 
categories shall be: 
(A) 	 A standard bar; or 

101-6 




(B) 	 Premises in which live entertainment or recorded music is 
provided. Facilities for dancing by the patrons may be 
permitted as provided by the rules of the commission. The 
subcategories of this category shall be: 
(i) 	 Premises in which recorded background music is 

provided; and 
(ii) 	 Premises in which live entertainment or recorded music 

is provided; provided th a t facilities for dancing by the 
patrons may be permitted as provided by the rules of 
the commission. 

(3) 	 If a licensee under class 2 desires to change the category of 
establishment the licensee owns or operates, the licensee shall apply 
for a new license applicable to the category of th e licensee's 
establishment. 

(4) 	 Of this class, there shall be the following kinds: 
(A) 	 General (includes all liquor except alcohol); 
(B) 	 Beer and wine; and 
(C) 	 Beer. 

(5) 	 Notwithstanding section 281 -57, HRS, the commission may approve 
at one public hearing an d without notice the change to a class 2 
restaurant license of a licensee holding and operating a class 5 
dispenser license who meets the requirements of a class 2 license. 

(6) 	 Restaurant license may be granted to a place, which regularly, and 
in a bona fide manner, is used and kept open for the serving of meals 
to patrons for compensation, and which has suitable State 
department of health and County of Maui department of fire control 
approved kitchen facilities within, containing the necessary 
equipment and supplies for cooking an assortment of foods, which 
may be required for ordinary meals. Additionally, the premises must 
have been continuously operated for one year prior to any 
application, and the applicant must provide a financial report of 
gross revenue of that year of which at least thirty percent of the 
establishment's gross revenue must be derived from the sale of 
foods. 

(d) 	 Class 3 . Wholesale dealer license. 
(1) A license for the sale of liquor at wholesale shall authorize the 

licensee to import and sell only to licensees or to others who are by 
law authorized to resell the liquor specified by the license but are 
not by law required to hold a license provided that a class 3 licensee 
may sell samples of liquor back to the manufacturer. 

(2) 	 Under a class 3 license no liquor shall be consumed on the premises 
except as authorized by the commission. 

(3) 	 Of this class, there shall be the following kinds: 
(A) 	 General (includes all liquor except alcohol); 
(B) 	 Beer and wine; and 
(C) 	 Alcohol. 

101-7 




(4) 	 If any wholesale dealer solicits or takes any orders in any county 
other than that where the dealer's place of business is located, the 
orders may be filled only by shipment direct from the county in 
which the wholesale dealer holds the dealer license . Nothing in this 
subsection shall prevent a wholesaler from selling liquor to post 
exchanges, ships' service stores, army or navy officers' clubs, or like 
organizations located on army or navy reservations, or to any vessel 
other than vessels performing a regular water transportation service 
between any two or more ports in the [state,] State, or to aviation 
companies who operate an aerial transportation enterprise subject 
to chapter 269, HRS, and engaged in flight passenger services 
between any two or more airports in the [state] State for use on 
aircraft, or aviation companies engaged in transpacific flight 
operations for use on aircraft outside the jurisdiction of the [state.] 
State. 

(e) 	 Class 4 . Retail dealer license. 
(1) 	 A license to sell liquor at retail or to class 10 licensees, shall 

authorize the licensee to sell the liquor therein specified in their 
original packages. 

(2) 	 Under a class 4 license, no liquor shall be consumed on the premises 
except as authorized by the commission. 

(3) 	 Of this class, there shall be the following kinds: 
(A) 	 General (includes all liquor except alcohol); 
(B) 	 Beer and wine; a nd 
(C) 	 Alcohol. 

(f) 	 Class 5. Dispenser license . 
(1) A license under this class shall authorize the licensee to sell liquor 

specified in this subsection for consumption on the premises. 
(2) 	 A licen see under this class shall be issued a license according to the 

category of establishment the licensee owns or operates. The 
categories shall be: 
(A) 	 A standard bar; 
(B) 	 Premises in which a person performs or entertains unclothed 

or in attire restricted to use by entertainers pursuant to the 
rules of the commission; 

(C) 	 Premises in which live entertainment or recorded music 1s 

provided. The subcategories of this category shall be: 
(i) 	 Premises in which recorded background music 1s 

provided; 
(ii) 	 Premises in which live entertainment or recorded music 

is provided; provided that facilities for dancing by the 
patrons may be permitted as provided by the rules of 
the commission; or 

101-8 




(D) 	 Premises in which employees or entertainers are compensated 
to sit with patrons, whether or not the employees or 
entertainers are consuming nonalcoholic beverages while in 
the company of the patrons, pursuant to the rules of the 
commission(. The restrictions of this category shall be: 
(i) 	 Employees, entertainers, or any other persons therein 

shall be twenty-one years of age or older. 
(ii) 	 There shall be no more than twelve category D, class 5, 

dispenser licenses in the County.]; provided that all 
employees, entertainers, or other persons or patrons 
therein shall be twenty-one year of age or older. 

(3) 	 If a licensee under class 5 desires to change the category of 
establishment the licensee owns or operates, the licensee shall apply 
for a new license applicable to the category of the licensee's 
establishment. 

(4) 	 Of this class, there shall be the following kinds: 
(A) 	 General (includes all liquor except alcohol); 
(B) 	 Beer and wine; and 
(C) 	 Beer. 

(5) 	 Any licensee holding a different class of license and who would 
otherwise come within this class with the same or downgrade of kind 
or category of license, or both, shall not be required to apply for a 
new license. 

(g) 	 Class 6 . Club license. 
(1) 	 A club license shall be general only but shall exclude alcohol and 

shall authorize the licensee to sell liquor to members of the club, 
and to guests of the club enjoying the privileges of membership for 
consumption only on the premises kept and operated by the club; 
provided that the license shall a lso authorize any club member to 
keep in the member's private locker on the premises a reasonable 
quantity of liquor owned by the member, for the member's own 
personal use and not to be sold that may be consumed only on the 
premises . A club licensee shall be authorized to host charitable 
functions that are open to the general public in accordance with 
commission rules. 

(2) 	 Club licensees shall keep a complete list of its members, which list 
shall at all times be conspicuously posted and exposed to view, 
convenient for inspection on the licensed premises. The categories 
of this class shall be as follows : 
(A) 	 A standard bar; or 
(B) Premises in which live entertainment or recorded music is 
provided. Facilities for dancing by the patrons may be permitted as 
provided by the rules of the commission. The subcategories of this 
category shall be: 

(i) 	 Premises in which recorded music is provided; or 

101-9 




(ii) Premises in which live entertain men t or recorded music 
is provided. 

{3) Any person enj oying the guest privileges of a clu b and to whom 
liquor may be sold must be a bona fide guest of a member of the 
club, and the member must be present at all times within the 
premises with his or her guest(s). 

(4) Clubs shall keep records as to registration of guests for at least one 
year, which records shall be produced whenever required by the 
director. 

(5) Licensee shall have readily available at all times a guest book on the 
licensed pr emises and shall be responsible for its member signing 
in his or her guest(s) at the time his or her guest(s) enter the licensed 
premises. 

(h) Class 8. Transient vessel license. 
(1) A general license may be granted to the owner of any vessel for the 

sale of liquor (other than alcohol) on board the vessel while en route 
within the jurisdictional limits of the [state] State and within any 
port of the [state.] State. 

(2) Sales shall be made only for consumption by passengers and their 
guests on board the vessel. 

(3) The license shall be issuable in each county where the sales are to 
be made. 

(4) The application for the license may be made by any agent 
representing the owner. 

(i) Class 9 . Tour or cruise vessel license. 
(1) A general license may be granted to the owner of any tour or cruise 

vessel for the sale of liquor other than alcohol on board the vessel 
while in the waters of the [state;] State; provided that sales be made 
only for consumption by passengers on board while the vessel is in 
operation outside the port or dock of any island of the [state,] State, 
unless otherwise approved by the commission. 

(2) The license shall be issuable in the county where the home port of 
the vessel is situated. 

(3) If on any vessel for which no license has been obtained under the 
rules of the commission, any liquor is sold or served within three 
miles off the shore of any island of the County, the same shall 
constitute a violation of the rules of the commission. 

(4) A license under this class shall be issued a license according to the 
category of establishment the licensee owns or operates. The 
categories shall be: 
(A) A standard bar; or 
(B) Premises in which live entertainment or recorded music is 
provided. Facilities for dancing by the patrons may be permitted as 
provided by the rules of the commission. 

0) Class 10. Special license. 

1'01-10 




(1) 	 A special license may be granted by the director for the sale ofliquor 
for a period not to exceed three consecutive days at the same 
location for fundraising events by nonprofit organizations, political 
candidates, and political parties; provided that any registered 
educational or charitable nonprofit organization may sell liquor in 
its original package for off-premises consumption. 

(2) 	 Special licenses shall be issued only to charitable or educational 
nonprofit organizations, to political parties and to candidates 
seeking public office from which organization no person is entitled 
to or takes, directly or indirectly, any share of the profits thereof. 
Nonprofit charitable or educational organizations shall be required 
to attach their U.S . Internal Revenue's section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), 
501(c)(10), or 50 l(c)( 19) exemption letter and political candidates 
shall be required to attach a copy of their organizational report filed 
with the [state] State campaign spending commission, to their 
application. 

(3) 	 Of this class, there shall be the following kinds: 
(A) 	 General (includes all liquor except alcohol); 
(B) 	 Beer and wine; and 
(C) 	 Beer. 

(4) 	 Liquor sold under a class 10 license shall be consumed on the 
premises. 

(k) 	 Class 11. Cabaret licenses. 
(1) 	 A cabaret license shall be general only but shall exclude alcohol and 

shall authorize the sale of liquor for consumption on the premises. 
(2) 	 This license shall be issued only for premises where: 

(A) 	 Food is served; 
(B) Facilities for dancing by the patrons are provided, including a 
dance floor of not more than one hundred square feet; and 
(C) Live entertainment other than by a person who performs or 
entertains unclothed, is visible and audible to all patrons. 

(3) Professional entertainment by persons who perform or entertain 
unclothed shall only be authorized by: 
(A) A cabaret license for premises where professional 

entertainment by persons who perform or entertain unclothed 
was presented on a regular and consistent basis immediately 
prior to June 15, 1990; or 

(B) 	 A cabaret license that, pursuant to rules adopted by the 
commission, permits professional entertainment by persons 
who perform or entertain unclothed. 

(4) 	 A cabaret license under subparagraphs (3)(A) or (3)(B) of this 
subsection authorizing professional entertainment by persons who 
perform or entertain unclothed shall be transferable through June 
30, 2000. 

(5) 	 A cabaret license under subparagraphs (3)(A) or (3)(B) authorizing 
professional entertainment by persons who perform or entertain 

101-11 




unclothed shall not be transferable after June 30, 2000, except upon 
approval by the commission, and pursuant to rules adopted by the 
comm1ss10n. 

(6) 	 [Notwithstanding any rule of the commission to the contrary, 
cabarets in] A cabaret license in a resort areas may be open for the 
transaction of business until 4 :00 a .m . throughout the entire week. 

(7 ) 	 Any cabaret premises not located within a county zoned resort 
district shall operate only during the hours prescribed for dispenser 
premises. 

(8) 	 All bars in cabaret premises, in order to operate during hours 
prescribed for cabarets must confine liquor service to patrons within 
an area where live entertainment is visible and audible to all 
patrons. Bars in cabaret premises which do not comply with the 
foregoing requirements shall operate only during the hours 
prescribed for dispenser premises. 

(1) 	 Class 12. Hotel license. 
(1} A license to sell liquor in a hotel shall authorize the licensee to 

provide entertainment and dancing on the hotel premises and to sell 
all liquor, except alcohol for consumption on the premises; provided 
that a hotel licensee, with commission approval, may provide off
premises catering of food and liquor if the catering activity is directly 
related to the licensee's food service. 
(A) 	 A hotel licensee may be granted a catering permit while 

performing food catering functions . 
(B) 	 No catering service for the sale of liquor will be performed off 

the licensee's premises unless prior written application for the 
service has been delivered to the department and approved by 
the director. The director shall not approve any catered 
function unless it includes a written statement signed by the 
owner or representative of the property that the function will 
be subject to the liquor laws and to inspection by 
investigators. Application shall be submitted at least seven 
days prior to the catered function. 

(C) 	 The director will not approve catering functions on premises 
not zoned to allow commercial activities thereon unless the 
catered function is requested and hosted by the owner or the 
lessee or its like of the property or anyone with written 
authorization for the use of the property. 

(2) 	 Procedures such as room service, self-service [no host,] no-host 
minibars, or similar service in guest rooms, and service at parties in 
areas that are the property of, and contiguous to the hotel are 
permitted subject to liquor laws, rules of the commission, and the 
following conditions: 
(A) 	 Except as provided in paragraph (3) of this subsection, hotel 

licensees are prohibited from selling liquor as authorized by 
retail dealers' licenses. 

101 -12 




(B) 	 Room service: 

(i) 	 Liquor may be sold by the individual drink, or in its 
original manufacturer sealed container for 
consumption within a registered guest's room; 

(ii) 	 Current prices of alcoholic beverages shall be 
conspicuously posted and exposed to view or within the 
guest's room service menu at all times within the 
interior of each guest room; and 

(iii) 	 The sale and service of liquor shall be made by an 
employee approved by the director. 

(3) 	 A license to sell liquor within a hotel shall, upon written approval of 
the commission, authorize the sale of liquor of any kind or brand to 
hotel guests for consumption within their respective hotel rooms, 
subject to the following conditions: · 
(A) 	 Minibars or honor bar s : 

(i) 	 Storage of any liquor authorized for sale under this rule 
shall be completely enclosed in a secured cabinet or 
other suitable container and shall be accessible by 
means of a key or other similar device provided to the 
hotel guests; 

(ii) 	 A written schedule of selling pnces shall be 
conspicuously posted in a manner convenient for 
inspection within the hotel rooms or selling prices shall 
be affixed to each bottle of liquor; 

(iii) 	 Retail sales shall be limited to not more than the 
following container sizes: distilled spirits, 50 milliliters; 
beer, 12 ounces; and wine, 375 milliliters; and 

(iv) 	 At no time nor under any circumstances shall any 
licensee or its employee issue the key or similar device 
to the enclosed liquor cabinet or other suitable liquor 
container to anyone under twenty-one years of age. 

(B) 	 At no time nor under any circumstances shall a licensee 
permit liquor to be furnished: 
(i) 	 To any person under twenty-one years of age; 
(ii) 	 To any person, who at the time, is under the influence 

of liquor; or 
(iii) 	 To any person when there is reasonable grounds to 

believe that such person is permitting any person under 
twenty-one years of age to consume said liquor. 

(C) 	 The licensee shall fully comply with any additional condition 
or restriction which the commission, in its discretion, may 
impose to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the public. 

(4) 	 Licensees shall be restricted from selling liquor in its original 
packages except via room service and in minibars installed in hotel 
guest rooms. Said service shall be initiated at the request of the 

101-13 



adu lt guest . Minibar and room service sales sh all be restricted to 
registered guests of the hotel of legal drinking age and consum ption 
of liquor shall be restricted to the hotel guest room. 

(5) 	 Unless authorized by law, hotel licensees shall not sell liquor in the 
manner authorized by the retail dealer's licenses. 

Notwithstanding section 281-57, HRS, the commission may approve at one 
public hearing and without notice the change to a class 2 restaurant license(s) 
of a licensee holding and operating a class 12 hotel license, who meets the 
requirements of a class 2 license. 

(m) 	 Class 13. Caterer license. 
(1) 	 A general license may be granted to any class 2[,] restaurant 

licensee, or any applicant, who is authorized to sell liquor for on
premises consumption who has on file with the department an 
approved one year financial report showing thirty percent of the 
establishment's gross revenue is derived from the sale of food that 
is prepared and cooked within its department of health and 
department of fire control approved kitchen facilities and served for 
consumption by patrons within its premises, and who serves food 
as part of their operation for the sale of liquor (other than alcohol) 
while performing food catering functions. At least thirty percent of 
the gross revenues of the catered event shall be food sales. 

(2) 	 No catering service for the sale of liquor shall be performed off the 
licensee's premises unless prior written application for the service 
has been delivered to the department and approved by the director. 
Off premises catering will only be authorized upon issuance by the 
department and the licensee receiving a class 13[,] caterer's license. 
The commission shall not approve any catered function unless it 
includes a written statement signed by the owner or representative 
of the property that the function will be subject to the liquor laws 
and to inspection by investigators. 

(3) 	 The commission shall not issue a caterer's license to any licensee 
whose original license does not authorize the licensee to sell and 
serve alcoholic beverages for consumption on the premises. 

(4) 	 The commission shall not approve catering functions on premises 
not zoned to allow commercial activities thereon unless the catered 
function is requested and hosted by the owner of the property or 
anyone authorized the use of the property. Catered functions for 
which the owner or the lessee or its like of the property is being 
compensated for the use of the property shall be limited to properly 
zoned property. 

(5) 	 The application for a caterer license shall be submitted to the 
department at least seven working days prior to the catered function 
and shall include, but not be limited to, a floor plan showing the 
boundaries of the proposed catered licensed premises; the date, 
times, and location of the event; a lease, rental agreement or 
authorization which allow the applicant the use and exclusive 

101 - 14 




control of the property for the sale, service.i. and consumption of 
liquor, and obtaining a statement from the licensee that all required 
governmental clearances were obtained for the catered function. 

(6) 	 A caterer license may be granted by the director for the sale of liquor 
for a period not to exceed one day for any occasion or location, 
provided a class 12(,) hotel licensee, may be granted a caterer license 
by the d irector for sale of liquor for a period not to exceed three 
consecutive days for any occasion or location, whose catering 
function is directly related to its operation and the catered group 
consists of permanent or transient hotel guests that registered for 
and provided sleeping accommodations at the licensed premises. 

(7) 	 Catered functions for which patrons are being assessed a fee is 
prohibited. The privilege of catering is to permit legitimate catered 
functions and is not intended to be utilized to circumvent the liquor 
laws by allowing a licensee to operate its liquor license outside of its 
licensed premises. Any use of property for catered events by a 
licensee which appears to be an extension of the licensee's premises, 
place the health, safety and welfare of the public at risk, or appears 
to be excessive where a liquor license for class 2, class 5.i. or a similar 
class which allows consumption at its premises should be obtained, 
applications for use of said premises may be denied by the director. 

(8) 	 A licensee who is authorized to provide catering shall report the 
gross sales of liquor and pay the applicable fees pursuant to section 
08-101-50 of the rules of the commission. 

(n) 	 Class 14. Brewpub license . 
(1) 	 A brewpub licensee: 

(A) 	 May sell malt beverages manufactured on the licensee's 
premises for consumption on the premises; 

(B) 	 May sell malt beverages manufactured by the licensee in 
brewery-sealed packages to class 3[,] wholesale dealer 
licensees pursuant to conditions imposed by the [county) 
County by ordinance or rule; 

(C) 	 May sell intoxicating liquor purchased from a class 3 
wholesale dealer licensee to consumers for consumption on 
the licensee's premises; 

(D) 	 May, subject to federal labeling and bottling requirements, sell 
malt beverages manufactured on the licensee's premises to 
consumers in brewery-sealed kegs and growlers for off
premise consumption; provided that for purposes of this 
paragraph, "growler" means a glass or metal container, not to 
exceed one half-gallon, which shall be securely sealed; 

(E) 	 May, subject to federal labeling and bottling requirements, sell 
malt beverages manufactured on the licensee's premises in 
recyclable containers provided by the licensee or by the 
consumer which do not exceed one gallon per container and 

101-15 




(2) 

(o) 
(1) 

are securely sealed on the licensee's premises to consumers 
for off-premises consumption; 

(F) 	 Shall comply with all regulations pertaining to class 4 retail 
dealer licensees when engaging in the retail sale of malt 
beverages; 

(G) 	 May, su bject to federal labeling and bottling requirements, sell 
malt beverages manufactured on the licensee's premises in 
brewery-sealed containers directly to class 2 restaurant 
licensees, class 3 wholesale dealer licensees, class 4 retail 
dealer licensees, class 5 dispenser licensees, class 6 club 
licensees, class 8 transient vessel licensees, class 9 tour or 
cruise vessel licensees, class 10 special licensees, class 11 
cabaret licensees, class 12 hotel licensees, class 13 caterer 
licensees, class 14 brewpub licensees, class 15 condominium 
hotel licensees, class 18 small craft producer pub licensees, 
and consumers pursuant to conditions imposed by the county 
departments of planning, public works.,_ and environmental 
management and regulations governing class 1 manufacturer 
licensees and class 3 wholesale dealer licensees; and 

(H) 	 May conduct the activities under paragraphs (A) through (G) 
at one location other than the licensee's premises; provided 
that: 
(i) 	 The manufacturing takes place in Hawaii; and 
(ii) 	 The other location is properly licensed under the same 

ownership. 
The categories of establishments shall be as follows: 
(A) 	 A standard bar; or 
(B) 	 Premises in which live entertainment or recorded music is 

provided. Facilities for dancing by the patrons may be 
permitted as provided by the rules of the commission. The 
subcategories of this category shall be: 
(i) 	 Premises in which recorded music is provided; or 
(ii) 	 Premises in which live entertainment or recorded music 

is provided; provided that facilities for dancing by the 
patrons may be permitted as provided by the rules of 
the commission. 

Class 15. Condominium hotel license. 
A license to sell liquor in a condominium hotel shall authorize the 
licensee to provide entertainment and dancing on the condominium 
hotel premises and to sell all liquor except alcohol for consumption 
on the premises; provided that a condominium hotel licensee, with 
commission approval, may provide off-premises catering of food and 
liquor if the catering activity is directly related to the licensee's food 
service by applying and obtaining approval for a catering permit 
while performing food catering functions. 

101-16 




(A) 	 A condominium hotel licensee may be granted a catering 
permit while performing food catering functions. 

{B) 	 No catering service for the sale of liquor will be performed off 
the licensee's premises unless prior written application for the 
service has been delivered to the department and approved by 
the director. The director shall not approve any catered 
function unless it includes a written statement signed by the 
owner or representative of the property that the function will 
be subject to the liquor laws and to inspection by 
investigators. Application shall be submitted at least seven 
days prior to the catered function. 

(C) 	 The director will not approve catering functions on premises 
not zoned to allow commercial activities thereon unless the 
catered function is requested and hosted by the owner or the 
lessee or its like of the property or anyone with written 
authorization for the use of the property. 

(2) 	 Room service, self-service no host minibars, or similar service in 
apartments, and service at parties in areas that are the property of 
and contiguous to the condominium hotel are permitted with 
commission approval and subject to the following conditions: 
(A) 	 Room [Service:] service: 

(i) 	 Liquor may be sold by the individual drink, or in its 
original manufacturer-sealed container for 
consumption within a registered guest's apartment. 

(ii) 	 Current prices of alcoholic beverages shall be 
conspicuously posted and exposed to view or within the 
apartment's room service menu at all times within the 
interior of each guest apartment. 

(iii) 	 The sale and service of liquor shall be made by an 
employee approved by the director. 

(B) 	 Minibars or honor bars: 
(i) 	 Storage of any liquor authorized for sale under th is rule 

shall be completely enclosed in a secured cabinet or 
other suitable container and shall be accessible by 
means of a key or other similar device provided to the 
hotel guests[;l. 

(ii) 	 A written schedule of selling prices shall be 
conspicuously posted in a manner convenient for 
inspection within the hotel rooms or selling prices shall 
be affixed to each bottle of liquor. 

(iii) 	 Retail sales shall be limited to not more than the 
following container sizes: distilled spirits, 50 milliliters; 
beer, 12 ounces; and wine, 375 milliliters[;].:. 

(iv) 	 At no time or under any circumstances shall any 
licensee or its employee issue the key or similar device 

101-17 




(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

(7) 

(p) 

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

to the enclosed liquor cabinet or other suitable liquor 
container to anyone under twenty-one years of age. 

At no time or under any circumstances shall a licensee permit liquor 
to be furnished : 
{A) To any person under twenty-one year s of age; 
(B) 	 To any person, who at the time, is under the influence of 

liquor; or 
(C) 	 To any person when there is reasonable grounds to believe 

that such person is permitting any person under twenty-one 
years of age to consume said liquor. 

The licensee shall fully comply with any additional condition or 
restriction which the commission, in its discretion, may impose to 
protect the health, safety, and welfare of the public. 
Licensees shall be restricted from selling liquor in its original 
packages except via room service and in minibars installed in 
condominium hotel guest rooms. Said service shall be initiated at 
the request of the adult guest. Minibar and room service sales shall 
be restricted to registered guests of the condominium hotel of legal 
drinking age and consumption of liquor shall be restricted to the 
condominium hotel guest room. 
Unless authorized by law, a condominium hotel licensee shall not 
sell liquor in the manner authorized by a class 4 retail dealer license. 
Any licensee who would otherwise meet the criteria for the 
condominium hotel license class but holds a different class of license 
may be required to apply for a condominium hotel license. 
Class 16. Winery license. 
A winery licensee: 
Shall manufacture not more than twenty thousand barrels of wine 
on the licensee's premises during the license year; 
May sell wine manufactured on the licensee's premises for 
consumption on the premises; 
May sell wine manufactured by the licensee in winery-sealed · 
packages to class 3 wholesale dealer licensees pursuant to 
conditions imposed by the county by ordinance or rule; 
May, subject to federal labeling and bottling requirements, sell wine 
manufactured on the licensee's premises to consumers in winery
sealed kegs and magnums to consumers for off-premises 
consumption; provided that for purposes of this paragraph, 
"magnum" means a glass container not to exceed one half-gallon, 
which may be securely sealed; 
May, subject to federal labeling and bottling requirements, sell wine 
manufactured on the licensee's premises in recyclable containers 
provided by the licensee or by the consumer which do not exceed 
one gallon per container and are securely sealed on the licensee's 
premises to consumers for off-premises consumption; 

101-18 




(6) 	 Shall comply with all rules pertaining to class 4 retail dealer 
licensees when engaging in the retail sale of wine; and 

(7) 	 May sell wine manufactured on the licensee's premises in winery
sealed containers directly to class 2 restaurant licensees, class 3 
wholesale dealer licensees, class 4 retail dealer licensees, class 5 
dispenser licensees, class 6 club licensees, class 8 transient vessel 
licensees, class 9 tour or cruise vessel licensees, class 10 special 
licensees, class 11 cabaret licensees, class 12 hotel licensees, class 
13 caterer licensees, class 14 brewpub licensees, class 15 
condominium hotel licensees, and class 18 small craft producer pub 
licensees, pursuant to conditions imposed by the county 
departments of planning, public works, and environmental 
management and rules governing class 3 wholesale dealer licensees. 

(q) Class 18. Small craft producer pub license. A small craft producer 
pub licensee: 

(1) 	 Shall manufacture not more than: 
(A) 	 Sixty thousand barrels of malt beverages; 
(B) 	 Twenty thousand barrels of wine; or 
(C) 	 Seven thousand five hundred barrels of alcohol on the 

licensee's premises during the license year; provided that for 
purposes of this paragraph, "barrel" means a container not 
exceeding thirty one gallons or wine gallons of liquor; 

(2) 	 May sell malt beverages, wine, or alcohol manufactured on the 
licensee's premises for consumption on the premises; 

(3) 	 May sell malt beverages, wine, or alcohol manufactured by the 
licensee in producer-sealed packages to class 3 wholesale dealer 
licensees pursuant to conditions imposed by the [county) County by 
ordinance or rule; 

(4) 	 May sell intoxicating liquor purchased from a class 3 wholesale 
dealer licensee to consumers for consumption on the licensee's 
premises. The categories of establishments shall be as follows: 
(A) 	 A standard bar; or 
(B) 	 Premises in which live entertainment or recorded music is 

provided. Facilities for dancing by the patrons may be 
permitted as provided by commission rules; 

(5) 	 May, subject to federal labeling and bottling requirements, sell malt 
beverages manufactured on the licensee's premises to consumers in 
producer-sealed kegs and growlers for off-premises consumption; 
provided that for purposes of this paragraph, "growler" means a 
glass or metal container, not to exceed one half-gallon, which shall 
be securely sealed; 

(6) 	 May, subject to federal labeling and bottling requirements, sell malt 
beverages, wine, or alcohol manufactured on the licensee's premises 
in recyclable containers provided by the licensee or by the consumer 
which do not exceed: 
(A) One gallon per container for malt beverages and wine; and 

101 -19 




(B) 	 One liter for alcohol; and are securely sealed on the licensee's 
premises to consumers for off-premises consumption; 

(7) 	 Shall comply with all regulations pertaining to class 4 retail dealer 
licensees when engaging in the retail sale of malt beverages, wine, 
and alcohol; 

(8) 	 May, subject to federal labeling and bottling requirements, sell malt 
beverages, wine, and alcohol manufactured on the licensee 's 
premises in producer-sealed containers directly to class 2 
restaurant licensees, class 3 wholesale dealer licensees, class 4 
retail dealer licensees, class 5 dispenser licensees, class 6 club 
licensees, class 8 transient vessel licensees, class 9 tour or cruise 
vessel licensees, class 10 special licensees, class 11 cabaret 
licensees, class 12 hotel licensees, class 13 caterer licensees, class 
14 brewpub licensees, class 15 condominium hotel licensees, class 
18 small craft producer pub licensees, and consumers pursuant to 
conditions imposed by county regulations governing class 1 
manufacturer licensees and class 3 wholesale dealer licensees; and 

(9) 	 May conduct the activities under paragraphs (1) through (8) at one 
location other than the licensee's premises; provided that: 
(A) 	 The manufacturing takes place in Hawaii; and 
(B) 	 The other location is properly licensed under the same 

ownership. 
(r) Restaurants, retail dealers, dispensers, clubs, cabarets, hotels , 

caterers, brewpubs, condominium hotels, and small craft producer pubs 
licensed under class 2, class 4 , class 5, class 6, class 11, class 12, class 13, class 
14, class 15, and class 18 shall maintain at all times liquor liability insurance 
coverage in an amount not less than $1,000,000; provided that convenience 
minimarts holding a class 4 license shall not be required to maintain liquor 
liability insurance coverage in that amount. Proof of coverage shall be kept on 
the premises and shall be made available for inspection by the commission at 
any time during the licensee's regular business hours. In the event of a licensee's 
failure to obtain or maintain the required coverage, the commission shall refuse 
to issue or renew a license, or shall suspend or terminate the license as 
appropriate. No license shall be granted, reinstated, or renewed until after the 
required insurance coverage is obtained. 

(s) It shall be unlawful for any licensee to utilize any liquor, acquired or 
purchased from a class l [,] manufacturers' licensee, or a class 3[,) wholesale 
dealer s' licensee, or a person authorized by the commission as a solicitor or 
representative of a manufacturer or for personal or private use or consumption, 
except as authorized by the commission. All liquor shall be sold as authorized 
by the license issued. 

ill A patron may remove from a class 2 restaurant licensee, class 5 
dispenser licensee, class 6 club licensee, class 12 hotel licensee, class 14 
brewpub licensee, class 15 condominium hotel licensee, and class 18 small craft 
producer pub licensee, licensed premises, who has on file with the department 
a current yearly approved financial report that shows at least thirty percent of 

101-20 




establishment's gross revenue is derived from the sale of food that is prepared 
and cooked at the time ofordering within its State of Hawaii department of health 
and County of Maui, department of fire and public safety approved kitchen 
facilities, any portion of wine, liquor, or beer that was purchased on or brought 
onto the premises of the licensee, for consumption with a meal; provided that it 
is recorked or resealed in its original container as provided in section 281-31(u), 
HRS. A licensee wishing to exercise this privilege shall inform the patron of the 
State of Hawaii "open container" law as stated in sections 291-3 .1, 29 1-3.2, 291
3 .3 and 291-3.4 of the Hawaii Revised Statutes. [Eff 7 / 1/00; am and comp 
7 / 15/02; am and comp 4/22/ 12; am and comp 6/ 18/ 15; am and comp] (Auth: 
HRS §§91-2, 281 -17) (Imp: HRS §281-17)" 

9. Section 08- 101-25, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of 
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended by amending subsection 
(a) to 	read as follows : 

"(a) Hours during which licensed premises may be open for the 
transaction of business shall be as follows : 

(1) 	 Dispensers, restaurants, clubs, transient vessels, tour or cruise 
vessels, and specials: any hour of the day from [8 :00] 6 :00 a .rn. to 
2:00 a .m ., the following day. 

(2) 	 Cabarets : any hour of the day from [8 :00] 6:00 a.m. to 4 :00 a.m., 
the following day. 

(3) 	 Hotels and condominium hotels: any hour of the day [from 6:00 
a .m . to 4:00 a.m., the following day]. 

(4) 	 Retailers: any hour of the day [from 6 :00 a .m . to 11:00 p.m]. 
(5) 	 Manufacturers and wholesalers: any hour of the day [from 6 :00 a .m . 

to 9 :00 p .m]. 
(6) 	 [Brewpub:] Brewpubs: any hour of the day from (8:00] 6:00 a.m. to 

2 :00 a.m., the following day for on-premises consumption liquor 
sales and 6 :00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. for off-premises retail liquor sales. 

(7) 	 Small craft producer [pub:] pubs: any hour of the day from [8:00] 
6:00 a.m. to 2 :00 a.m., the following day for [of-premise] on
premises consumption liquor sales, any hour of the day for 
manufacture and wholesale, and 6:00 a .m. to 11 :00 p.m. for [off
premise] off-premises retail liquor sales . 

.(fil 	 Caterers: any hour of the day from 6:00 a.m. to 2:00 a.m., the 
following day. 

f2l 	 Wineries: any hour of the day for manufacture and wholesale, and 
from 6 :00 a .m. to 11 :00 p .m. for off-premises retail sales and on 
premises wine tasting activities. [Eff 7 / 1/00; am and comp 
6/ 18/ 15; am and comp] (Auth: HRS§§ 91-2, 281-17) (Imp: HRS 
§281-17)" 

10. Section 08-101-28, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of 
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended to read as follows: 

101-21 




"§08-101-28 Special conditions for class 4[,] retail dealer's licenses. (a) 
Every retail licensee shall display and expose for view, within the liquor sales 
area of the licensed premises, a price for each size of each brand of liquor sold. 

(b) If a retail dealer's licensed premises a re open to the public during 
hours when the sale of liquor is not permitted, the licensee shall post 
conspicuous signs in the area or areas where liquor sales are usually made, 
giving notice to customers that the sale of liquor is prohibited during that time. 

(c) Customers making purchases at retail premises must enter the 
licensed premises to purchase liquor. The drive-in method whereby the 
customer orders from a motor vehicle or the licensee delivers liquor to the 
vehicle, or both, is prohibited. 

(d) This section shall not be construed to prohibit assistance to any 
person who is physically unable to walk, lift, or carry purchases of liquor due to 
a disability, or allowing the delivery of liquor product to a physically challenged 
person's vehicle or primary residence. Liquor orders may be made on the 
licensee's website or by telephone call to the licensed premises. Deliveries of 
liquor products to private residences or businesses with a bona fide order from 
the purchaser by a class 4[,] retail dealers' licensee is permitted, provided: 

(l} 	 An employee of the licensee, who is approved by the director 
pursuant to section 08-101-70 of the rules of the commission, 
makes the delivery of the liquor product directly to the purchaser; 

(2) 	 That the employee ensures that the person receiving the delivery is 
twenty-one years of age or older , licensee produces a receipt of 
delivery signed by a person verified to be of legal age and the person 
receiving the product is not under the influence of liquor or drug(s) 
at the point of delivery; and 

(3) 	 The licensee or employee is not in violation of any rules or State 
laws. 

(e) It shall be unlawful for any holder of a retail dealers' license, or any 
person acting as an agent or representative for any holder of a retail dealers' 
license, directly or indirectly, or through any subsidiary or affiliate to solicit or 
obtain any financial assistance, or anything of value from any industry member. 

ill Retail licensee shall be permitted to offer discounts on liquor in 
connection with the sale of the same or other liquor provided the discount price 
shall be posted and liquor shall not be sold below cost of liquor. Cost of liquor 
shall mean the licensee's wholesale purchase price including any tax, shipping, 
and handling cost. [Eff 7/1/00; am and comp] (Auth: HRS§§ 91-2, 281-17) 
(Imp: HRS §281-1 7)" 

11. Section 08-101 -30, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of 
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended by amending subsection 
(a) to read as follows: 

"(a) Applications for liquor licenses, renewals, transfers, management 
agreement, solicitor's permit, or change of partner(s) in a partnership, limited 

101 -22 




liability partnership, member, manager, organizer or any person of a limited 
liability company, or officer(s), director(s), and stockholder(s) owning or 
controlling twenty-five percent or more of the outstanding stock or ownership of 
a corporation, thereof, and all notices of public hearing sent, and affidavits filed 
by applicants in connection with and part of such applications, shall be in the 
r espective original forms and accompanied by the following necessary 
documentation and any other original forms or documents which may be 
prescribed from time to time by the commission, which shall be considered as 
part of the application. 

(1) Department of health clearance; 
(2) State and federal tax clearances or that the applicant h as entered 

into and is complying with an installment plan agreement with the 
department of taxation for the payment of delinquent taxes in 
installments; 

(3) Floor plans .(not construction plans) drawn to scale; 
(4) Tax map (drawn to scale) and list of all tax map key numbers, names 

and addresses of property owners, and lessees and owners of record 
of shares in a cooperative apartment situated within a radius of five 
hundred feet of the proposed premises; 

(5) Personal history statement; 
(6) Verification of any corporation, partnership, association, limited 

liability company, limited liability partnership, or any other entity; 
(7) Affidavit of mailing of notices of public hearing and certificate of 

mailing as verified by the United States Postal Service; 
(8) Transferor's gross sales report; 
(9) Transferor's endorsement of transfer; 
(10) Executed copy of agreement of sale, lease, rental agreement, which 

states that the premises and its operation must be under the 
licensee's exclusive control at all times; 

(11) Additional fee assessment agreement; 
(12) Coast guard documentation; 
( 13) Zoning clearance; 
( 14) Building permit; 
(15) Criminal history record check; 
( 16) Stockholder's list; 
{17) Certificate of occupancy, miscellaneous inspection report, and 

clearance from the department of fire control (miscellaneous 
inspection report and clearance from the department of fire control 
shall indicate that all governmental regulations and administrative 
rules have been complied with); 

( 18) Guaranty or bond; and 
(19) Copy of a federal or [state] State governmental picture identification 

and social security card for each person . [Eff 7 / l /00; am and comp 
7 / 15/02; am and comp 4/22/ 12; am and comp] (Auth: HRS §§91
2, 281 -17) (Imp: HRS §281-17)" 

101-23 




12. Section 08-101-30, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of 
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended by amending subsections 
(e) and (f) to read a s follows : 

"(e) The director may reject, refuse to accept, or return any application 
or request that is incomplete, illegible, or does not meet any requirement(s) of or 
not in compliance with any rule of the commission or section of chapter 281, 
HRS, or revoke any action taken after discovering that any information contained 
within the application, any document submitted or affidavit is false . 

(f) Licensee shall apply for and secure the commission's approval, in 
writing, prior to a change in ownership of any number of shares of the stock 
which results in a person thereof becoming the owner of twenty-five percent or 
more of the outstanding voting capital stock. In addition, the partnership, 
limited liability partnership, limited liability company, corporate licensee, or any 
other person, or any person in a subdivision, or management agreement thereof, 
shall, on the proper application forms and the filing of all required documents, 
within thirty days from the date of admission, election, or withdrawal of any 
partner in a partnership or limited liability partnership, officer, or director of a 
corporation, or member, manager, organizer, or person of a limited liability 
company, or any other person, or any person within a subdivision, or 
management agreement thereof, notify the commission in writing of the change. 
If the commission finds any partner in the partnership, limited liability 
partnership, member, manager, organizer, or any other person of a limited 
liability company, or officer, director, or any person owning or controlling twenty
five percent or more of the outstanding stock of the corporation, or any 
subdivision, or management agreement thereof, an unfit or improper person to 
hold a license in their own right pursuant to section 281-45, HRS, or the rules 
of the commission, it may revoke the license or suspend the license until a new 
transfer of such capital stock or ownership is effected to a fit or proper person 
pursuant to section 281-45, HRS, or the rules of the commission, or until the 
unfit or improper partner, officer, member, manager, organizer, director, or any 
person, or any person in a subdivision, or management agreement thereof, is 
removed or replaced by a fit and proper person pursuant to section 281-45, HRS, 
or the rules of the commission. 

Application for the admission, election, or withdrawal of any officer, 
director, or a person owning or controlling twenty-five percent or more of the 
corporate stock, member of a limited liability company, or partner in a 
partnership or limited liability partnership, or any person, or any person of a 
subdivision, or management agreement thereof, shall include, but not limited to, 
the application form, corporate minutes, secretary's certification of the minutes, 
or its like submitted by the licensee which shall include the listing of all the 
officers, directors, and any person owning or controlling twenty-five percent or 
more of the corporate stock, members in a limited liability company, or partners 
of a partnership or limited liability partnership, or any person, or any subdivision 
or any person of a subdivision, or management agreement thereof, and all other 

101-24 




requirements. (Eff 7 / 1/00; am and comp 7 / 15/02; am and comp 4/22/ 12; am 
and comp] (Auth: HRS §§91-2, 281-17) (Imp: HRS §281-17)" 

13. Section 08- 10 1-31, Rules Governing th e Manufacture and Sale of 
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended to read as follows : 

"§08-101 -31 No license issued, when. No license shall be issued: 
(1) To any minor or to any person who has been convicted of a felony 

and not pardoned, or to any other person not deemed by the 
commission to be a fit and proper person to have a license; provided 
that the commission may grant a license under the rules of the 
commission to a partnership, trust, association, limited liability 
partnership, limited liability company, corporation, or any other 
person, that has been convicted of a felony where the commission 
finds that the partner, member, manager, organizer, or any person 
of a limited liability partnership, limited liability company or 
organization's officers, directors, and any person owning or 
controlling twenty-five percent or more of the outstanding stock are 
fit and proper persons to have a license; 

(2) 	 To any partner in a partnership, or a corporation, trust or 
association, the officers, directors, or any other person of which, or 
any of them, would be disqualified under subsection (1) from 
obtaining the license individually, or any person of which, owning or 
controlling twenty-five percent or more of the outstanding capital 
stock, or any other person, would be disqualified under such 
subsection (1) from obtaining the license individually; 

(3) 	 To any applicant for a license, or a renewal of a license, or in the 
case of a transfer of a license, where both the transferor and th e 
transferee, failed to present to the issuing agency a [signed] tax 
clearance certificate from the [director] department of taxation, and 
from the Internal Revenue Service showing that the applicant or the 
transferor and transferee do not owe the State or federal 
governments any delinquent taxes, penalties, or interest; or that the 
applicant, or in the case of a transfer of a license, the transferor or 
transferee, has entered into an installment plan agreement with the 
department of taxation and the Internal Revenue. Service for the 
payment of delinquent taxes in installments and that the applicant 
is or the transferor or transferee is, in the case of a transfer of a 
license, complying with the installment plan agreement; 

(4) 	 To any applicant who has a partner in the partnership, limited 
liability partnership, member, manager, agent, organizer, or any 
person owning or controlling twenty-five percent or more of a limited 
liability company, or any officer, director or any person owning or 
controlling twenty-five percent or more of the outstanding stock of 
any corporation, trust, or association, or any other person, who has 
had any liquor license revoked less than two years previous to the 

101-25 




date of the application for any like or other license under the rules 
of the commission; 

(5) 	 To any person owning or controlling twenty-five percent or more of 
the outstanding stock of the corporation, trust, or association of a 
licensee, who is currently delinquent in filing the gross liquor sales 
report of any license that was issued, or currently owing any fees or 
monies due to the department, or both. "Any fees or monies" shall 
include but not be limited to license fees, publication fees, and any 
assessment of a penalty imposed by the department, commission, 
or board. Any licensee, who has any person, or person owning or 
controlling twenty-five percent or more of the outstanding stock of a 
corporation, trust, or association of a licensee, who is delinquent in 
filing the gross liquor sales report of any other license that was 
issued, or currently owing any fees or monies to the department, 
shall not exercise its license until the gross sales report is filed and 
percentage fee paid; 

(6) 	 To a limited liability company, the members, managers, organizers, 
or any person, of which or any of them, would be disqualified under 
subsection (1) from obtaining the license individually, would be 
disqualified under that paragraph from obtaining the license 
individually; 

(7) 	 To a limited liability company, partnership, limited liability 
partnership, or corporation, that may consist of a limited liability 
company, partnership, limited liability partnership, corporation, or 
any other person or any combination thereof, the members, 
managers, organizers, partners, officers, directors, or any person 
thereof, ofwhich any of them would be disqualified under subsection 
(1) from obtaining the license individually, or a person owning or 
controlling twenty-five percent or more of the outstanding stock of 
such corporation would be disqualified under that paragraph from 
obtaining the license individually; or 

(8) 	 To an applicant for a class 2, class 4 except for convenience 
minimarts, class 5, class 6, class 11, class 12, class 13, class 14, 
class 15, or class 18 license, unless the applicant for issuance of a 
license or renewal of a license, both the transferor and the 
transferee, present to the issuing agency proof of liquor liability 
insurance coverage in an amount of $1,000,000. [Eff 7 / 1/00; am 
and comp 7 / 15/02; am and comp 4/22/ 12; am and comp 6/ 18/ 15; 
am and comp] (Auth: HRS §§91 -2, 281-17) (Imp: HRS§281 -17)" 

14. Section 08-101-32, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of 
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended by amending subsection 
(b) to read as follows : 

"(b) No license shall be transferred unless the transferor's licensed 
premises was operated and open for business throughout the year prior and up 

101 -26 




to the filing of the application for transfer, except for good cause shown to the 
commission. [Eff 7/1/00; am and comp] (Auth: HRS§§ 91-2, 281-17) (Imp: 
HRS §281-17)" 

15. Section 08-101-33, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of 
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended by amending subsection 
(a) to 	read as follows: 

"(a) Other than for good cause, the renewal of an existing license shall 
be granted upon the filing of a completed application, payment of the basic fee, 
submission of State and [Federal] federal tax clearances, and other required 
documents. State and federal tax clearances shall be dated within sixty days of 
the acceptance of the application by the department. [Eff 7 / 1/00; am and comp 
7 / 15/02; am and comp 4/22/ 12; am and comp 6/ 18/ 15; am and comp] (Auth: 
HRS§§ 91-2, 281-17) (Imp: HRS §281-17)" 

16. Section 08-101-41, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of 
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended to read as follows: 

"§08-101-41 Criminal history record check. (a) The commission shall 
request a background check on an applicant for a liquor license . For the 
purposes of this section, "criminal history record check" means an examination 
or search for evidence of an individual's criminal history by means of: 

(1) 	 A search for the individual's fingerprints in the national criminal 
history record files and, if found, an analysis and any other 
information available pertaining thereto; and 

(2) 	 A criminal history record check conducted by the Hawaii criminal 
justice data center, Maui police department, or any governmental 
agency; provided that the Hawaii criminal justice data center, Maui 
police department, or any other governmental agency may charge a 
reasonable fee for criminal history record checks performed. 
The background check, at a minimum, shall require the applicant 
to disclose whether: 
(A) 	 The applicant has been convicted in any jurisdiction of a crime 

that would tend to indicate the applicant may be unsuited for 
obtaining a liquor license; and 

(B) 	 The judgment of conviction has not been vacated. 
For the purpose of this section, the criminal history disclosure made by 

the applicant may be verified by the commission by means of information 
obtained through the Hawaii criminal justice data center, Maui police 
department, or any other governmental agency. The applicant shall provide the 
Hawaii criminal justice data center, Maui police department, or any other 
governmental agency with personal identifying information which shall include, 
but not limited to, at a minimum, the applicant's name, social security number, 
date of birth, sex, and the applicant's fingerprints. This information shall be 

101-27 




secured only for the purpose of conducting the criminal history record check 
authorized by this section. 

(b) 	 The applicant shall submit to the commission: 
(1} 	 A statement signed under penalty of perjury whether the applicant 

has ever been convicted of a crime other than a minor traffic 
violation; 

(2) 	 Written consent to the commission to request and obtain criminal 
history record information for verification; 

(3) 	 Permission to be fingerprinted and completed fingerprint card; and 
(4) 	 Any reasonable fee assessed for criminal history record checks 

performed by the Hawaii criminal justice data center, Maui police 
department, or any governmental agency, which shall be submitted 
at the time of the submittal of application and made payable to the 
governmental agency performing the criminal history record check. 

(c) The commission shall obtain criminal history record information 
through the Hawaii criminal justice data center, Maui police department, or any 
other governmental agency on the applicant. The information obtained shall be 
used exclusively for the stated purpose for which it was obtained and shall be 
subject to applicable State or [Feder al] federal laws or rules currently or hereafter 
in effect. 

(d) Any applicant, including but not limited to, all persons, partners in 
the partnership or limited liability partnership, officers, directors, or persons 
owning or controlling twenty-five percent or more of the applicant's outstanding 
corporate stock, members, managers, organizers, or any persons of a limited 
liability company, or any person, or entity or any person within an entity or its 
subdivision, that is in good standing and can legally do business in the State is 
required to submit all completed criminal history request(s) and fingerprint 
card(s) at the time of filing of the application to the department and to have local, 
[state,] State, and national criminal law enforcement agencies provide such 
person's criminal history abstract directly to the department, if said abstracts 
cannot otherwise be obtained by the department. The commission may waive 
this requirement upon the applicant showing of good cause. Good cause shall 
include, but not limited to, applicant 's inability to obtain the necessary clearance 
a fter due diligence, or have on file with the department a criminal record check 
that is less than [one year] two years old, had the criminal record check process 
through the Federal Bureau of Investigation "Rap Back" program, or the 
applicant's fingerprints are not adequate for accurate classification and/ or 
identification due to applicant's age, medical reason, disfigurement, or other 
abnormalities . 

(e) Finger print cards. All fingerprint cards submitted by the applicant 
shall contain the required fingerprints and be completely filled out. Those 
fingerprinted by any personnel other than from the department or the Maui 
police department, must be accompanied by a letter from the fingerprint 
technician which contains the following: 

(1) 	 Fingerprint technician's name, signature, address, telephone 
number, and fingerprint technician's certification issued by a law 

101-28 




enforcement agency; and identity, social security number, and date 
the person was fingerprinted; [or] 

(2) 	 The identity of the law enforcement agency that the fingerprint 
technician represents, the law enforcement agency's address, and 
telephone number; or 

(3) 	 Fingerprint technician's name, signature, address, telephone 
number, identity of the entity the fingerprint technician represents, 
and a letter of certification issued by a law enforcement agency that 
the entity the fingerprint technician is employed at is in good 
standing and have provided fingerprinting service to, and the 
fingerprints have been accepted by the law enforcement agencies 
within the [state.] State. 

(f) The department may utilize criminal history record clearance 
obtained from an approved governmental agency. 

(g) Licensee or any applicant shall submit, within thirty [calender] 
calendar days, a completed fingerprint card of any person whose fingerprints 
appearing on the fingerprint card that was not adequate for accurate 
classification and/or identification by the Federal Bureau of Investigation and 
the required processing fee, upon receipt of notification. Any licensee who fails 
to comply shall not exercise the license until said completed fingerprint card is 
duly processed by the department. 

(h) The license applicant or licensee shall be responsible to ensure that 
every person named in an application discloses to the commission any felony 
conviction. The obligation to disclose such information shall be continuing even 
after the license is issued. [Eff 7 / 1/00; am and comp 4/22/ 12; am and comp] 
(Auth: HRS§§91-2,281-17) (Imp: HRS§281-17)'7 

17. Section 08- 101-50, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of 
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended by amending subsections 
(c) and (d) to read as follows: 

"(c) Temporary, solicitors', representatives', duplicate license, certificate 
for registration of employee approved by the director, minor, employee of class 
5, category D, or any duplicate thereof, alcohol, and other fees. 

(1) 	 Temporary license . The fee for a temporary license of any class and 
kind shall be $200 for an initial period of one hundred twenty (120) 
days, or any part of such initial period, and an additional $200 for 
one additional one hundred twenty (120) day renewal or any part of 
such renewal period of such license. 

(2) 	 The fees for solicitors' and representatives' permits shall be for each 
license year commencing July 1 and ending on the succeeding June 
30 or fraction thereof and shall be in the following amounts: 
(A) General $1,800 
(B) Beer and Wine $1 ,200 
(C) Alcohol $ 200 

101 -29 




(3) 

(d) 
(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

Every individual solicitor and or representative is required to obtain 
an individual permit in his or her name. 
The annual fee for a permit to purchase alcohol for non-beverage 
purposes shall be $50 for each fiscal year, commencing July 1 and 
ending the succeeding June 30, or a fraction thereof. The director 
may waive the fee for a permit to purchase alcohol for non-beverage 
purposes for any County or State governmental agencies. 
Percentage fee . 
Licensees in classes 2(A), (B) and (C), 4(A) and (B), 5(A), (B) and (C), 
6, 9, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 18, and temporary license, as defined in 
subsection (b) of this section, shall be subject to the basic fee plus 
a percentage fee. Licensees in class 1 (other than a class 1 
manufacturer, whose wine is manufactured from fruits grown in the 
State), and class 3, as defined in subsection (b) of this section, shall 
be subject to basic fee plus the percentage fee of retail liquor sales 
to any person for private use and consumption. Licensees in class 
9, as defined in subsection (b) of this section, shall be subject to 
basic fee plus percentage fee of four times the total amount of liquor 
purchased from class 1[,) manufacturers' licensee, class 3[,] 
wholesale dealers' licensee, class 14(,] brewpub licensee, class 16(,] 
winery licensee, and class 18(,] small craft producer pub licensee. 
Licensee shall report the retail value of any complimentary drinks 
or donated liquor, or both, in their annual gross sales report. 
The percentage fee for each current fiscal year shall be based upon 
the following formula, which shall establish the percentage to be 
applied to the gross sales or four times the total amount of liquor 
purchased of each licensee: 

EE - BF - C 
EGS = Percentage 

EE = Estimated Expenditures (current fiscal year) 

BF = Basic Fees (current fiscal year) 

C = Carryover (prior fiscal year) 


(Carryover in excess of twenty per cent as provided in section 
281 -17.5, HRS) 

EGS= Estimated Gross Sales (prior fiscal year) 
Licensees in the above-mentioned classes shall file with the director 
on a form prescribed by the commission a report showing true and 
accurate gross sales of liquor and any other pertinent record or 
records requested therein. The form shall be furnished by the 
director and shall be completed, filed at, and accepted by the 
department not later than 4 :30 p.m. on July 31 after the date of 
expiration of such licenses, and at such other times or intervals as 
the director may require. If the 31st of July falls on Saturday. 
Sunday, or legal County of Maui holiday, the last day for the filing 

101-30 




of the gross liquor sales report shall be 4:30 p.m. on the first County 
of Maui.working day following. The gross sales of liquor report shall 
be on the original form(s) and contain the original signature; 
duplicates or copies shall not be accepted. 
The director may reject, refuse to accept, or return any gross liquor 
sales report that is inaccurate, incomplete, illegible, or does not meet 
any requirement(s) of or not in compliance with any rule of the 
commission or chapter 281, HRS. 

(4) 	 After a tally of all total gross liquor sales filed by the due date by the 
licensees, the percentage fee due and payable shall be assessed each 
licensee and shall be paid within thirty-one calendar days of receipt 
of said assessment. 

(5) 	 In case of transfer of such licenses, the report shall be filed and paid 
by the transferor immediately after approval by the commission and 
before the actual transfer of the license and the business of the 
licensee-transferor. The percentage fee based on the current 
applicable percentage fee shall be paid prior to the issuance of the 
license . 

(6) 	 Any licensee who fails to file the report or fails to pay the percentage 
fee due on or before the due date shall not exercise his license after 
the due date and until said report has been filed or percentage fee 
paid, or both. 

(7) 	 Where licenses are revoked, expired, or canceled, or the licensee 
closes out the business for which the license is held, the report shall 
be filed and the percentage fee due paid within five calendar days of 
the revocation, expiration, cancellation or closing out the business. 
The percentage fee due shall be based on the current applicable 
percentage. 

(8) 	 Any licensee who fails to pay the percentage fee by the due date shall 
be assessed a late charge of five percent per month on the balance 
due until such fees are paid in full. The five percent late charge shall 
be a flat fee (not be prorated) that will be charged for any portion of 
the month payment is due. 

(9) 	 Any licensee who fails to pay the percentage fee within ninety days 
of the due date, shall be notified and scheduled for hearing. Upon 
satisfactory proof of such prohibited activity, the license shall be 
revoked. 

(10) 	 No licensee shall fail to accurately report revenues from gross liquor 
sales or to properly complete the gross liquor sales report. It shall 
be the licensee's responsibility to maintain complete and accurate 
records in order to properly complete and submit the gross liquor 
sales report pursuant to the rules of the commission. Records shall 
be maintained for a period of four years. 

(11) 	 All licensees shall have available for inspection within the County, 
books or records, or both, showing all income, purchases, and 
expenses of their liquor license business. These books and records, 

101 -31 




including but not limited to daily sales records, price lists, employee 
t ime sheets, and invoices, shall be made available for inspection or 
auditing, or both, by the department, through its auditor(s) or 
otherwise, at any time upon demand and shall be preserved for a 
period of four years, except that the commission may, in its 
discretion, consent to destruction of such books and records within 
such period or may require that they be kept longer. Licensee or its 
employees shall record the sale of liquor at the time of the 
transaction on its daily sales records. 

(12) 	 Any licensee who fails to pay any fee due on or before the due date 
or when any check, money order, or the like that is utilized by the 
licensee for payment of such fee is returned by any financial 
institution for non-payment due to insufficient funds or for any 
other reason, shall not exercise the license until said fee and any 
related service charges are paid in cash, certified check, or money 
order, and such payment is duly processed by the department. 

(13) 	 Any licensee who failed to file the gross sales of liquor report by the 
due date, shall be assessed the percentage fee equal to the highest 
percentage fee due and payable by the licensee of the same class or 
the highest percentage fee due and payable by any licensee if there 
is no licensee in the same class. [Eff 7 / 1/00; am and comp 
7 / 15/02; am and comp 6/ 18/ 15; am and comp 9 /3/ 16; am and 
comp] (Auth: HRS §§91 -2, 281-17) (Imp: HRS §281-17)" 

18 . Section 08-101-63, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of 
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended by amending subsections 
(a) and (b) to read as follows: 

"(a) No licensee shall have any illegal liquor or liquor not purchased from 
a class 3[,] wholesale dealers' licensee, or a class 1[,] manufacturers' licensee, 
class 14 brewpub licensee, class 16 winery licensee, and class 18 small craft 
producer pub licensee, or a person authorized by the commission as a solicitor 
or representative of a manufacturer or wholesale dealer, on any portion of the 
licensed premises; provided that a class 2 restaurant licensee, class 5 dispenser 
licensee, class 12 hotel licensee and class 15 condominium hotel licensee may 
allow patrons to bring wine onto the licensed premises for consumption with a 
meal. 

(b) The finding of any illegal liquor or liquor not purchased through the 
liquor license issued from a class 3 (,] wholesale dealers' licensee, [or a] class 1 [,] 
manufacturers' licensee, class 14 brewpub licensee, class 16 winery licensee, or 
class 18 small craft producer pub licensee , on a licensed premises under 
circumstances warranting the belief that it is being kept, served, or distributed 
by the licensee shall be sufficient evidence for summary suspension or revocation 
of the license covering such premises. [Eff 7 / 1/00; am and comp 4/22/ 12; am 
and comp] (Auth: HRS §§91-2, 281-17) (Imp: HRS §281-1 7)" 

101-32 




19 . Chapter 101, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of 
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended by adding a new section 
to be appropriately designated and to read as follows: 

"§08-101-65.1 Obstructing departmental operations. No licensee shall 
allow the obstruction, hampering, or interfering with investigation and 
inspections or any of the department's operation in any way, including but not 
limited to, the sounding of alarms, flashing of lights, or use of a public address 
system or other advance warning announcing the arrival or presence of the 
department's liquor control officers. [Effj (Auth: HRS§§ 91 -2, 281 -1 7) (Imp: 
HRS §281-17)" 

20. Section 08-101-69, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of 
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended by amending subsection 
(a) to 	read as follows: 

"(a) No licensee of any premises licensed to sell liquor for consumption 
on the premises shall: 

(1) 	 Sell, advertise, or offer to sell "all the liquor you can drink", or more 
than two drinks of alcoholic beverage for a fixed price; or encourage, 
sponsor, permit or have any promotion, game or contest that 
involves the consumption of liquor or the awarding of liquor as a 
prize; 

(2) 	 Serve an unlimited amount of liquor during a set period of time for 
a fixed price, provided this provision does not apply to class 2, class 
9, and class 12 licensees: 
(A) 	 When such function is not open to the general public and for 

which a hosted bar is utilized such as weddings, private 
parties, and fundraising functions; [or] . 

(B) 	 Where champagne may be inclusive with brunch; [or] 
(C) 	 Wh ere liquor may be inclusive with luaus; or 
(D) 	 Where liquor may be inclusive with tour or cruise vessel 

operations; 
(3) 	 Employ any person for the purpose of selling, furnishing or serving 

liquor under any scheme, plan, or arrangement involving the 
payment for such services on the basis of any commission, 
percentage, or such similar method of payment without the prior 
approval of the commission. [Eff 7 / 1/00; am and comp 4/2/07; am 
and comp] (Auth: HRS §§91-2, 281-17) (Imp: HRS §281-17)" 

21. Section 08-101-82, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of 
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended to read as follows : 

"§08-101-82 Rules available at all times. Every licensee shall have a copy 
of the current rules of the commission and chapter 281, HRS, available at all 

101-33 




times on the licensed premises for examination by employees and customers. 
[Eff 7 / 1 / 00; am and comp) (Auth: HRS §§91-2, 281-17) (Imp: HRS §281-17)" 

22 . Section 08-101-84, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of 
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended to read as follows: 

"§08-101-84 Preparation of drinks; clearing of tables. (a) On the premises 
licensed for the sale and consumption of liquor thereon, liquor service to a 
customer shall be made by the licensee or an employee of the licensee, except by 
special permit. 

(b) No more than two drinks of any liquor at one time to an individual 
shall be permitted; provided however, distilled spirits may be served in 
container(s) up to one quart in capacity for any special occasion upon obtaining 
a special permit therefor from the director. Beer or wine may be served in a 
container, not to exceed the U.S. liquid measurement of one quart (.946 liter) to 
two or more persons. 

(c) Any drink consisting of one kind of liquor and a mixer or water 
without other ingredients, which is prepared, served, sold, or offered for sale by 
any licensee upon whose premises liquor is permitted to be sold or consumed, 
shall contain not less than one fluid ounce of liquor, when said liquor is poured 
into the service glass by the licensee or any employee the drink shall be 
presumed to have been prepared for service or sale, notwithstanding the fact 
that the mixer or water has not been added. A measuring device which measures 
not less than one fluid ounce shall be utilized at all times in the preparation of 
any drink consisting of any liquor. The foregoing requirement shall not apply to 
a drink served in a jigger as a straight drink with or without a chaser. Any 
straight drink shall be served in a jigger of not less than one fluid ounce capacity. 

(1) Any drink consisting of one kind of liquor and a mixer or water 
without other ingredients, which is prepared, served, sold, or offered 
for sale by any licensee upon whose premises liquor is permitted to 
be sold or consumed, may contain not less than one-half fluid ounce 
of liquor, when the following apply: 
(A) 	 The patron requests a drink that contains less than one fluid 

ounce of liquor and is informed at the time of service that the 
drink does contain less than one fluid ounce of liquor and the 
fraction of ounce of liquor that the drink contains; or 

(B) 	 When all of the following apply: 
{i) 	 The licensee lists all alcoholic beverages that contains 

less than one fluid ounce of liquor, which shall at all 
times be conspicuously posted and exposed to view of 
patrons within the interior of the licensed premises 
authorized to sell liquor for consumption on the 
premises. The listing shall clearly state the fraction of 
ounce of liquor each drink contains. For the purpose of 
this rule, either legible posters, signs, menus, or table 
tents are acceptable; 

101 -34 




(ii) The patron requests a drink that contains less than one 
fluid ounce of liquor.; and 

(iii) 	 The licensee or employee must inform the patron at the 
time of ordering and time of service that the drink 
contains less than one fluid ounce of liquor and the 
fraction of ounce of liquor that the drink contains. 

(d) If the portion of the licensed premises open to customers is equipped 
with a bar, the preparation of all drinks shall be on the top surface of the bar in 
such manner as to permit any interested customer or customers to have a clear 
and unobstructed view of the bartender's operations. 

(e} All empty glasses and containers shall be removed by the persons 
serving the customers at the time of or before serving another drink. Any and 
all containers of liquor including, but not limited to, glasses, cups, or open 
bottles, shall be removed from all areas of the licensed premises which are open 
to the public no later than the legal closing time for liquor sales. 

(f) All mixed alcoholic drinks shall be freshly made for immediate 
consumption. Pre-mixed drinks may be utilized by obtaining a permit, pursuant 
to subsection (b), or an approval letter from the Department of the Treasury, 
Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms, or both, and filing such document(s) 
with this department . 

[(g) A patron may remove from any class of licensed premises any 
portion of wine, liquor, or beer that was purchased on or brought onto the 
premises of the licensee engaged in meal service for consumption with a meal; 
provided that it is recorked or resealed in its original container. 

(h) The licensee may store a bottle of distilled spirits or wine purchased 
from the licensee at the guest's request, properly labeled identifying the bottle to 
be for the·guest only, for future use by the guest provided that licensee obtains 
a Bottle Service permit from the director. Pouring of the bottle of liquor (along 
with any mixers) or wine may be made at the guest's table provided that an on
duty employee of the licensee provides this service and that guests shall not 
serve their own drinks.] [Eff 7/1/00; am and comp 7/15/02; am and comp 
4/22/ 12; am and comp] (Auth: HRS §§91-2, 281-17) (Imp: HRS §281- 17)" 

23. Sections 08-101-88 and 08-101-89, Rules Governing the 
Manufacture and Sale of Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, are amended 
to read as follows: 

"[§§08-101 -88 to 89 (Reserved}] §08-101 -88 Posting of license. The original 
license issued and in effect under this chapter shall at all times be conspicuously 
posted and exposed to view, convenient for inspection, and on the licensed 
premises. For failure thereof the license may be suspended or revoked by the 
liquor commission or liquor control adjudication board pursuant to section 281
71, HRS. [Eff] (Auth: HRS§§91-2,281-17) (Imp: HRS§281- 17) 

§08-101-89 Posting of HRS sanctions. All licensed premises shall post a 
sign in or about the premises containing and notifying all customers and other 

101 -35 




persons of the possible sanctions that may be imposed for operating a vehicle 
under the influence of an intoxicant under sections 29 lE-4 l and 29 1E-61, HRS. 
The sign shall be conspicuously positioned in order to be seen by an ordinarily 
observant person. [Eff] (Auth: HRS §§91-2, 281- 17) (Imp: HRS §281-17)" 

24 . Section 08-101-94, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of 
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended by amending subsection 
(a) to read as follows: 

"(a) All licensed p remises, authorized to sell and serve liquor for 
consumption on premises, shall contain separate and adequate toilet facilities 
for males and females which have been approved by the State department of 
health, provided the commission may approve the use of toilet facilities located 
outside the licensed premises if located within a reasonable distance from the 
licensed premises. The entire walkway to the approved outside bathroom 
facilities shall be properly well lighted. Approval of use of toilet facilities located 
outside of the licensed premises shall be subject to the applicant or licensee 
obtaining the necessary [clearance] clearances from the [state,] State department 
of health, and other governmental agencies. [Eff 7 / 1/00, am and comp 7 / 15/02; 
am and comp1 (Auth: HRS §§ 91-2, 281- 17) (Imp: HRS §281-17)" 

25. Section 08-101 -99, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of 
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended by amending subsection 
(b} to read as follows : 

"(b) Additional non-consumption areas for class 12 hotel licensees: 
(1) Parking areas; 
(2) Roadways; 
(3) Main lobby areas up to ten feet from check-in counter; 
(4) Retail outlets; 
(5) [Swimming pools, spas] Swimming pool slides and saunas, except 

by commission approval[, and excluding all grassed, paved, tiled and 
other surfaced areas abutting a swimming pool]; and 

(6) Tennis courts. lEff 4/22/ 12; am and comp] (Auth: HRS §§91-2, 
281 -17, 281 -78) (Imp: HRS §281-17)" 

26. Section 08-101-100, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of 
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended to read as follows: 

"§08- 101-100 Deliveries by manufacturers, wholesalers, retailers; peddling 
prohibited; exception. 

(a) Except as specifically allowed herein, peddling in any sense is 
strictly prohibited. Before removing any liquor from a licensed premises for 
delivery to a customer under the manufacturer's or wholesaler's and/or retail 
dealer's license, the licensee must have in hand in his office, store, or warehouse, 
a bona fide order therefor. Provided, however, duly licensed wholesale dealers 

101-36 




may, without a bona fide and specific order therefor, remove beer from licensed 
premises to delivery vehicles for the purpose of selling said beer directly to 
persons who may lawfully sell liquors at retail in their original packages or 
dispense liquor for consumption on the premises. 

(b) A manufacturer or wholesaler licensee shall deliver any liquor 
ordered or purchased by a retailer into the retailer's premises . Delivery of any 
liquor to any other location except the retailer's licensed premises is strictly 
prohibited. Provided, however, any retailer or its duly authorized employee may 
pick u p any order of liquor directly from the wholesaler's or manufacturer's 
licensed premises, and such liquor must come to rest within the retailer's 
premises prior to any sale. 

(c) Deliveries to a licensee's catered or other location by permit. [Eff 
7 / 1 / 00; am and comp] (Auth: HRS §§91-2, 281-17) (Imp: HRS §281-17)" 

27 . Section 08- 101-106, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of 
Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended to read as follows: 

"§08-101-106 Manufacturer, brewpub, and wholesale dealer licensees; 
special restrictions. The control of alcoholic beverages in the County has been 
established by the commission, as a "three-tier system." The three tiers of this 
system are designated as man ufacturer , wholesaler, and retailer. Each of these 
three tiers shall operate separately and apart from each other for the purpose of 
control. In order for this control to be effectively administered, it is necessary to 
prevent any type of direct interlocking interest by and between the three separate 
levels. 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person holding a manufacturers' license, 
or a wholesale dealers' license, within or without the County or State, or any 
person acting as an agent or representative for any manufacturer or wholesale 
dealer licensee, within or without the County or State, directly or indirectly, or 
through any subsidiary or affiliate, to: 

(1) 	 Acquire or hold any interest in any license of a retailer; 
(2) 	 Acquire any interest in the real or personal property owned, 

occupied, or used by a retailer in the conduct of its business, unless 
the holding of such interest is permitted under the rules of the 
commission[.t 

(3) 	 Furnish, give, rent , lend, or sell to any licensee any equipment, 
fixtures, signs, supplies, money, services or anything of value, 
subject to the exceptions contained in this section. Any service or 
anything of value as provided by the exceptions contained in this 
section, shall be offered to all retailers on the same terms without 
business reasons present to justify the difference in treatment[.]; or 

(4) 	 Deliver, traffic in, ship or cause to be shipped, any liquor to any 
person who is not a liquor licensee within the County for display, 
sampling, or tasting on a not-for-sale basis, who: 

101-37 




(A) 	 Is not permitted or authorized to receive such shipments of 
liquor, pursuant to chapter 281 , HRS, or the rules of the 
commission; and 

(B) 	 Who has not applied for and received approval from the 
commission or its director to receive such shipment of liqu or. 

Liquor shipped into the County under this subsection shall be in 
750 milliliter-sized containers, be appropriately marked "Sample 
Not For Resale," and shall come to rest at the warehouse of a holder 
of a class 3[,] wholesale dealers ' licensee, within the County, and be 
held in the licensed premises for at least forty-eight hours before 
delivery to or picked up by the person who was issued a permit to 
receive such liquor. 

(b) It shall be unlawful for any person holding a brewpub license from 
within or without the County or State, to: 

(1) 	 Acquire or hold any interest in any license of a class 3[,] wholesale 
dealers' license, or a class 2 or class 4 through 13 license; or 

(2) 	 Acquire any interest in the real or personal property owned, 
occupied, or used by a class 3(,] wholesale dealers' license, or a class 
2 or class 4 through 13 license in the conduct of its business, unless 
the holding of such interest is permitted under the rules of the 
commission or statement thereof has been filed with and approved 
by the commission. 

(c) Non-beer manufacturer licensee. Section 08- 101-22(b)(4) of the 
rules of the commission shall not apply to the holder of a non-beer manufacturer 
license under the rules of the commission, chapter 281, HRS, under the law of 
another jurisdiction, or from within or without the County, from maintaining an 
indirect interest in the license or licensed premises of a wholesale dealer licensee. 
The holder of any non-beer manufacturer license, from within and without the 
State, is prohibited from having a direct ownership of a wholesale dealers' 
license, or direct ownership of a partnership share, one or more shares of stock, 
or similar proprietary stake in the wholesale dealers' license; or having any 
interlocking officers or directors in the corporation, managers or members in any 
limited liability company, partner in a partnership, or its like, in the 
establishment, maintenance, or operations in the business of any wholesaler; 
except as may be provided in the rules of the commission, or in section 281-97, 
HRS(; orL 

(d) Beer manufacturer licensee. Section 08-101-22(b)(4) of the rules of 
the commission shall not apply to the holder of a beer manufacturer license 
under the rules of the commission, chapter 281, HRS, under the law of another 
jurisdiction, or from within or without the County or State, from maintaining an 
indirect interest in the license or licensed premises of a beer and wine wholesale 
dealers' licensee. Any beer manufacturer from within and without the State, is 
restricted to maintaining an indirect interest in the license or licensed premises 
of a beer and wine wholesale dealer, who shall be limited to wholesale 
distribution of beer. The holder of any beer manufacturer license, from within 
and without the State, is prohibited from having a direct ownership of a 

101 -38 




wholesale dealers' license, or direct ownership of a partnership share, one or 
more shares of stock, or similar proprietary stake in the wholesale dealers' 
license; or having any interlocking officers or directors in the corporation, 
managers or members in any limited liability company, partner in a partnership, 
or its like, in the establishment, maintenance, or operations in the business of 
any wholesaler; except as may be provided in the rules of the commission, or in 
section 281-97, HRS[; orl_ 

(e) No manufacturer or wholesaler, within or without the County or 
State, shall have any financial interest, directly or indirectly, by stock ownership, 
or through interlocking partners, officers, directors, or any person owning 
outstanding stock in the corporation, any member or manager of a limited 
liability company, partner in a partnership or its subdivision thereof, or 
otherwise in the establishment, maintenance, or operation in the business of any 
retail licensee, except as may be provided in section 281 -97, HRS, or this section. 
No manufacturer or wholesaler, within or without the County or State, shall 
acquire, by ownership, leasehold, mortgage, or otherwise, directly or indirectly, 
any interest in the premises of a retailer. 

(f) No employee of an industry member from within or without the 
State, shall be employed by a retailer in any managerial capacity or in a position 
where such employee, directly or indirectly, place orders for, orders, or purchase 
any liquor from any industry member, or representative or solicitor of an 
industry member. 

(g) 	 No industry member, within or without the County or State, shall: 
(1) Directly or indirectly pay or credit any retailer for using or 

distributing point of sale advertising materials or consumer 
advertising specialties. 

(2) 	 Require a retailer to take and dispose of any quota of distilled spirits, 
wine, or malt beverages. 

(3) 	 Sell, offer to sell, or contract to sell to any retailer or for any such 
retailer to purchase, offer to purchase, or contract to purchase any 
liquor product that have any back end discounts on liquor products 
sold. All discounts shall be given or credited directly to the licensee's 
account at the time of the initial purchase. Back end discount shall 
mean any discount given after the time of the initial purchase of the 
liquor product by the retailer or any discount offered or given 
contingent on the amount of liquor sold. 

(4) 	 Sell, offer to sell, or contract to sell to any retailer, or for any such 
retailer to purchase, offer to purchase, or contract to purchase any 
liquor products on consignment; or under conditional sale; or with 
the privilege of return; or on any basis other than a bona fide sale, 
except as provided in this section. 

(5) 	 Rearrange or reset of all or part of a retail dealers' licensee's store or 
department. 

(6) 	 Block access in a retailer's premises to other manufacturer's or 
wholesaler's product. 

101-39 




(7) 	 Subsection (g) applies only to transactions between industry 
members and retailers. It does not apply to transaction between 
industry members, for example, manufacturer and a wholesaler. 

(8) 	 Furnish, give, rent, lend, or sell, directly or indirectly, equipment, 
fixtures, signs, supplies, money, services, or other things of value by 
an industry member to a third party, where the benefits resulting 
from such things of value flow to individual retailers, and such act(s) 
is considered furnishing of things of value within the meaning of the 
rules of the commission. Furnishing of a thing of value includes, 
but is not limited to, making payments or furnishing any thing of 
value for advertising to a retailer association, any media company, 
a display company, or any person where the resulting benefits flow 
to individual retailers, or the industry member's payment or 
furnishing any thing of value to a third party, where the thing of 
value benefits an individual retailer. 

(9) 	 Directly or indirectly, furnish or pay for any advertising for, or with 
respect to, any one or more retailer by means of radio, television, 
magazine, or any type of media advertising, or pay for any media 
announcements of any on-site product sales promotion. 

(10) 	 Deliver or ship to any licensee any liquor product that was not 
ordered by the licensee. Upon receiving notification by the licensee 
of receiving liquor product not ordered, the industry member shall, 
within five calendar days, retrieve the liquor products, return 
monies to, credit, or adjust the billing of the licensee for products 
delivered that were not ordered. Industry member shall not assess 
any cost for shipping, handling, restocking or its like to any licensee 
for any products delivered that were not ordered. Industry member 
shall be responsible for any cost, including, but not limited to, 
shipping, handling, transportation, labor or its like which the 
retailer may incur to return any product delivered that was not 
ordered. Any product that was delivered and not ordered by the 
licensee which has not been retrieved by the wholesale dealers' 
licensee or the manufacturers' licensee within five [calender] 
calendar days from the date of notification by the retailer, shall 
become the property of the retailer without cost. 

(h) 	 Manufacturers' or wholesale dealers' licensee, may: 
(1) 	 Furnish or give a sample of distilled spirits, wine or malt beverages 

to a retailer who has not purchased the brand from that industry 
member within the last twelve months. Industry member may give 
a sample of not more than three gallons of malt beverage, not more 
than three liters of any brand of wine, and not more than three liters 
of distilled spirits, which shall be invoiced and clearly marked 
"sample" on each container. 

(2) 	 Conduct tasting and sampling activities at a licensed premises 
authorized for on-premises consumption. Industry member must 
purchase the products used from the licensee, but may not 

101-40 




purchase them from the licensee for more than the ordinary retail 
price. Industry members may, conduct tasting and sampling 
activities upon its licensed premises for the introduction of new 
products, upon obtaining a permit from the director. 

(3) 	 Give or sponsor educational seminars for employees of retailers 
either at the wholesaler's or manufacturer's premises or at the 
retailer's premises. Examples would be seminars dealing with the 
use of a retailer's equipment, training seminars for employees of 
retailers, or tours of wholesaler's or manufacturer's premises. This 
section does not authorize the wholesaler or manufacturer to pay a 
retailer's or its employee's expense in ,conjunction with an 
educational seminar such as travel and lodging, nor does it allow 
the consumption of liquor by any on-duty employee. This does not 
preclude providing nominal hospitality during the event. 

(4) 	 Give or sell point of sale advertising specialties to a retailer if these 
items bear advertising matter and are primarily valuable to the 
retailer as point of sale advertisement. These items include such 
things as posters, placard, designs, inside signs (electric, 
mechanical or otherwise), window decorations, trays, coasters, 
mats, menu cards, meal checks, paper napkins, foam scrapers, 
backbar mats, thermometers, clocks, t-shirts, hats, and calendars. 
An industry member may add the name or name and address of the 
retailer to the advertising specialty. 
(A) 	 The total value of all advertising specialties furnished by an 

industry member to a retailer may not exceed $300 per brand 
in any one calendar year per licensed premises. The value of 
the advertising specialty is the actual cost of that item to the 
industry member who initially purchased it. Transportation 
and installation costs are excluded; 

(B) 	 Industry members may not pool or combine their dollar 
limitation in order to provide a retailer with retail advertising 
specialties valued in excess of $300 per brand; 

(C) 	 All point of sale advertising materials and consumer 
advertising specialties must bear conspicuous and 
substantial advertising matter about the product or the 
industry member which is permanently inscribed or securely 
affixed; or 

(D) 	 Industry members and retailers are required to keep and 
maintain records on the licensed premises for a three-year 
period of all items furnished to retailers. 

(5) 	 Accept the return of any liquor product from a retailer for "ordinary 
and usual commercial reasons" after the product has been 
purchased, so long as the product meets the following conditions 
and limitations for such returns: 

101-41 




(A) 	 Defective products which are unmarketable due to product 
deterioration, leaking containers, damaged labels, or 
mutilated and missing strip stamps; 

(B) 	 Error in products delivered where there is a discrepancy 
between products ordered and delivered may be corrected 
within a reasonable period of time of not more than five 
calendar days; 

(C) 	 Products which may no longer be lawfully sold due to a change 
in law or regulation, a particular size or brand is no longer 
permitted to be sold; or there is a change in the formula, proof, 
label or container of the product, or where the industry 
member has discontinued the production or importation of a 
product; or 

(D) 	 Termination of business where the licensee may return 
products on hand at the time the licensee terminates the 
operation of the business. 

An industry member is under no obligation nor required to accept 
the return of products for the reasons listed. 

(6) 	 Give or sell product displays to a retailer, subject to the following 
limitations: 
(A) 	 The total value of all product displays furnished by an 

industry member under this section may not exceed $300 per 
brand in use at any one time in any one retail establishment. 
The value of a product display is the actual cost to the 
industry member who initially purchased it with 
transportation and installation costs excluded; 

(B) 	 Product display means any wine racks, bins, barrels, casks, 
shelving and the like from which distilled spirits, wine, or malt 
beverages are displayed on and sold; 

(C) 	 Industry member may not pool or combine their dollar 
limitations in order to provide a retailer a product display in 
excess of $300 per brand; 

(D) 	 Product display shall bear conspicuous and substantial 
advertising matter; and 

(E) 	 Industry member may assist a retailer in setting a product 
display in a retail premises. 

(7) 	 Give or sell outside signs to a retailer, providing: 
(A) 	 The sign must bear conspicuous and substantial advertising 

matter about the product or the industry member which is 
permanently inscribed or securely affixed; 

(B) 	 The retailer is not compensated, directly or indirectly, such as 
through a sign company, for displaying the signs; and 

(C) 	 The cost of the signs may not exceed $400. 
(8) 	 Provide a recommended shelf plan or shelf schematic for distilled 

spirits, wine or malt beverages. 

10 1-42 




(i) Manufacturers' or wholesale dealers' licensee, shall, at all liquor 
establishments, stock, rotate, and affix the prices to distilled spirits, wine, or 
malt beverages which they sell, and check for outdated or spoiled liquor 
products, at least once a month and at the time of delivery of any liquor product, 
unless the retailer requests in writing that this service not be provided or be 
discontinued. [Eff 7 / 1/00; am and comp 7 / 15/02; am and comp] (Auth: HRS 
§§91 -2, 281-17} (Imp: HRS §281 -17)" 

28. Material, except source notes, to be repealed 1s bracketed. New 
material is underscored. 

29. Additions to update source notes to reflect these amendments are 
not underscored. 

30. These amendments to Chapter 101, Rules Governing the 
Manufacture and Sale of Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, shall take 
effect ten days after filing with the Office of the County Clerk. 

101-43 




Adopted this ___ day of - - ----~> 2017, at Wailuku, Maui, 
Hawaii. 

By__________~ 

ROBERT TANAKA 
Chairperson 
LIQUOR COMMISSION 

Approved this _ _ day of 
_______, 2017. 

ALAN M. ARAKAWA 
Mayor, County of Maui 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 
AND LEGALITY: 

GARY Y. MURAI 
Deputy Corporation Counsel 
County of Maui 

Received this ___ day of 

_ _ _____, 2017. 

Clerk, County of Maui 

101-44 




CERTIFICATION 


I, ROBERT TANAKA, Chairperson of the Liqu or Commission of the 
Department of Liquor Control, County of Maui, do hereby certify: 

1 . That the foregoing is a copy of the amendments to the Rules 
Governing the Manufacture and Sale of Intoxicating Liquor of the County of 
Maui, drafted in Ramseyer format, pursuant to the requirements of Section 91
4.1, Hawaii Revised Statutes, which were adopted on the __ day of 
_____, 20_, by affirmative vote of the proper majority following a public 
hearing on February 8, 2017, and filed with the Office of the County Clerk. 

2. That the notice of public hearing on the foregoing amendments to 
the rules was published in The Maui News and The Honolulu Star-Advertiser on 
the-~ day of ____, 20_. 

COUNTY OF MAUI 

ROBERT TANAKA 
Chairperson 
LIQUOR COMMISSION 

2016-1770 

2017-01-06 Admin Rules Chapter 101 


101-45 






Amendment to Title 08, Chapter 102, 

Rules Governing Administrative Practices and Procedures 


of the Liquor Commission and Liquor Control Adjudication Board 
of the County of Maui 

1. Section 08-1 02-27, Rules Governing Administrative Practices and 
Procedures of the Liquor Commission and Liquor Control Adjudication Board of 
the County of Maui, is amended by amending subsection (c) to read as follows: 

"(c) The commission shall maintain a list of names and addresses of 
persons who request notification of meetings and shall mail, electronic mail 
(email). or send by facsimile a copy of the notice to such person at their last 
recorded address, email address, or facsimile number no later than the time the 
agenda is filed at the office of the county clerk. The list of names and addresses.1 
email addresses, or facsimile numbers of persons who request notification of 
meetings shall be valid only for the calendar year of the request received. 
Notification for renewal shall be mailed, emailed, or facsimiled in November to 
all persons on the existing list. [Eff 2/7 /00; am and comp] (Auth: HRS §§91-2, 
281-1 7) (Imp: HRS §281-1 7)" 

2. Section 08-102-31, Rules Governing Administrative Practices and 
Procedures of the Liquor Commission and Liquor Control Adjudication Board of 
the County of Maui, is amended by amending subsection (c) to read as follows: 

"(c) Unless a commission member states that the member is disqualified 
or excused from voting pursuant to sect ion 08- 102-33 of the rules of the 
commission, the member's silence or refusal to vote shall be recorded as an 
[affirmative vote.] abstention, an abstention is not a vote and is not counted as 
a vote. [Eff 2/7 /00; am and comp 4/26/02; am and comp] (Auth: HRS§§ 91
2, 281- 17) (Imp: HRS §281-17)" 

3. Section 08-102-71, Rules Governing Administrative Practices and 
Procedures of the Liquor Commission and Liquor Control Adjudication Board of 
the County of Maui, is amended to read as follows: 

"§08-102-71 Charges against commission or board members. Any 
charges herein called complaints or inquiries of the conduct against [the] 
commission or [the] board members shall be documented and forwarded to the: 

(1) Mayor; 

[(2) Board of ethics; 

(3]@ Corporation counsel; 


102-1 




[(4].@l Prosecuting attorney, [if applicable,] for investigation [and] and/or 
disposition. [Eff2/7 /00; am and comp] (Auth: HRS§§ 9 1-2, 281-17) (Imp: HRS 
§281- 17)" 

4 . Material, except source notes, to be repealed is bracketed. New 
material is underscored. 

5. Additions to update source notes to reflect these amendments are 
not underscored. 

6. These amendments to Chapter 102, Rules Governing Administrative 
Practices and Procedures of the Liquor Commission and Liquor Control 
Adjudication Board of the County of Maui, shall take effect ten days after filing 
with the Office of the County Clerk. 

102-2 




Adopted this ___ day of _______, 2017, at Wailuku, Maui, 
Hawaii. 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 
AND LEGALITY: 

GARY Y. MURAI 
Deputy Corporation Counsel 
County of Maui 

Received this ___ day of 

_______, 2017. 

Clerk, County of Maui 

By__________ 

ROBERT TANAKA 
Chairperson 
LIQUOR COMMISSION 

Approved this __ day of 
________, 2017. 

ALAN M. ARAKAWA 
Mayor, County of Maui 

102-3 




CERTIFICATION 


I, ROBERT TANAKA, Chairperson of the Liquor Commission of the 
Department of Liquor Control, County of Mau i, do hereby certify: 

1. That the foregoing is a copy of the amendments to the Rules 
Governin g Administrative Practices and Procedures of the Liquor Commission 
and Liquor Control Adjudication Boa rd of the County of Maui, drafted in 
Ramseyer format, pursuant to the requirements of Section 9 1-4. 1, Hawaii 
Revised Statutes, which were adopted on the _ _ day of ___ _ ~ , 20_, by 
affirmative vote of the proper majority following a public hearing on February 8, 
20 17, and filed with the Office of the County Clerk. 

2. That the notice of public hearing on the foregoing amendments to 
t he rules was published in The Maui News and The Honolulu Star-Advertiser on 
the _ _ day of _ _ __, 20_. 

COUNTY OF MAUI 

ROBERT TANAKA 
Chairperson 
LIQUOR COMMISSION 

20 16-1770 
201 7-01 -06 Admm Rules Chapter 102 

102-4 




Exhibit 2 




~\

L-~-----' 

:,;, ~ 


Amendment and Compilation of Chapter 4 -143 

Hawaii Administrative Rules 


Month xx, XXXX 


1 . Chapter 143 of Title 4, Hawaii 
Administrat ive Rules , entitled "Standards f or Coffee" , 
is amended and compiled to read as follows : 

"HAWAII ADMINISTRATIVE RULES 

TITLE 4 

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 

SUBTITLE 7 

QUALITY ASSURANCE DIVISION 

CHAPTER 143 

STANDARDS FOR COFFEE 

§4-143-1 Labeling and documentation requirements 
§4-143-2 Inspection and fees 
§4-143-3 Definitions 
§4-143-4 Repealed 
§4-143-5 Repealed 
§4-143-6 Standards for grades of green coffee 
§4-143-7 Repealed 
§4-143-8 Provisions for enforcement, penalties and 

prosecution 
§4-143-9 Abbreviations 
§4-143-10 Repealed 
§4-14 3-11 Standards for grades of natural coffee 
§4 -143-12 Standards for grades of mixed natural coffee 
§4-143- 13 Record keeping 

Historical Note: Chapter 4 -143 is based substantially 
upon Chapter 4 -43, Hawaii Administrative Rules, 



"Standards for Coffee," of the Marketing Divis ion , 
Department of Agriculture . [Eff 5/29/81; R 10/08/01] 

§4-143-1 Labeling and documentation 
requirements . (a) No person shall sell or offer, 
e x pose for sale, or transport Hawai'i -grown green 
coffee, natural coffee, or mixed natural coffee 
outside the geographic region of production as defined 
in section 4-143-3 , unless each container is 
conspicuously labeled in the English language with the 
exact grade or lower grade for the green coffee, 
natural coffee, or mixed natural coffee or the term 
offgrade, as applicable . No person shall transport, 
or cause the transport of, Hawai'i-grown cherry coffee, 
parchment coffee, green coffee , natural coffee , or 
mixed natural coffee outside the geographic region of 
production as defined in section 4-14 3-3, unless each 
container is conspicuously labeled or accompanied by 
documentation written in the English language with the 
exact geographic region . This grade or geographic 
region statement shall appear on the tag described in 
subsection (i), or on the container on the same panel 
as the . declaration of identity required by section 
4-93-2[, Hawaii Administrative Rules,]i. provided that 
the geographic region statement may also be documented 
on a form provided by the department accompanying each 
container . 

{b) Any tag or container label representing a 
geographic region or grade term which is determined to 
be incorrect shall be corrected by the complete 
obliteration of the incorrect information and 
substituted with the correct statement of fact . Any 
accompanying documentation form determined to be 
incorrect shall be corrected by the complete 
obliteration of the incorrect information and 
substituted with the correct statement of fact . 

(c) The le t ters and figures used to meet the 
requirements of this section shall be of bold type an d 
legible . 

(d) The grade terms to be used shall be exactly 
as shown in sections 4-143-6 , 4 - 143-11, and 143-12 , 

2 



except that grade terms may be abbreviated as shown 
in section 4-143-9, or may be expressed in all capital 
l etters, or both . The geographic region terms to be 
used shall be exactly as shown in section 4-143 -3 . 
The use of a geographic region term on offgrade coffee 
is prohibited . 

(e) The requir ements of this section shall apply 
to both intra-state and export sales and distribution 
of Hawai ' i-grown coffee . 

(f) Any green coffee, natural coffee, or mixed 
natural coffee labeled with a grade term defined in 
[sections] section 4 -143-6 , 4 - 143 - 11, or 143-12, shall 
meet the standards of the labeled grade. 

(g) The use of a grade term defined in 
[sections] section 4-143-6 , 4-143-11, or 4-143-12, or 
any abbreviation or variation of the grade term that 
is intended to represent or imply that the green 
coffee , natural coffee, or mixed natural coffee so 
labeled is grown in Hawai'i , on coffee that is not 
grown in Hawai'i is prohibited . The use of any 
geographic region defined in section 4-143-3, on 
cherry coffee, parchment coffee, green coffee, natural 
coffee, or mixed natural coffee that is not grown in 
the geographic region defined in section 4-143-3, is 
prohibited . 

(h} The use of any other grade term or fanciful 
term which is not defined in [sections] section 4-143
6, 4-143-11, or 4 -143-12 to represent or imply that 
the cherry coffee, parchment coffee, green coffee, 
natural coffee, or mixed natural coffee has a grade 
adopted under this chapter is prohibited . 

(i} Tags marked with a grade or geographic 
region statement pursuant to subsection (a) or (j) or 
as required for inspection for certification pursuant 
to section 4-l43-2{b} shall consist of a tamper-proof 
tag attached to each container of coffe~ beans in a 
manner that opening the container will alter the tag . 
The tags shall be light in color, made of a material 
that resists tearing and measuring a minimum of t wo 
inches by four inches, with a blank area at least two 
inches by two inches . 

3 



(j) Hawai' i-grown green coffee, natural coffee , 
or mixed natural coffe e not meeting the quality 
standards of Ha waii No . 3 green coffee , Hawa i i Natu ral 
Prime coffee, or Hawaii Mixed Natur al Prime Coffee 
shall be labeled with the term "offgrade" or the term 
"coffee" without reference to any geographic region. 
The term "offgrade" shall appear on the tag described 
in subsection (i) , or on the container on the same 
panel as the declaration of identity required by 
section 4-93 - 2 [Hawaii Administrative Rules] . [Eff 
10/8/01 ; am and comp 5/24/14; am and comp 
] (Auth : HRS §§147-4, 147-22) {Imp : HRS §§147 - 4 , 
147-22 , 147-23) 

§4-143 - 2 I nspec t ion and fees. (a) Inspection 
for certification of green coffee, natural coffee, o r 
mixed natural coffee by the department shall be 
voluntary on the part of the applicant and will be 
made only upon the request of the applicant . 

(b) Inspection for certification of green 
coffee , natural coffee, or mixed natural coffee for 
grade and condition by the department shall be 
conducted upon the processing of parchment coffee into 
green coffee or natural coffee, provided that the 
green coffee, natural coffee , or mixed natural coffee 
shall be g raded, placed into sealed containers, and 
tagged as described in section 4-143-l{i) before the 
green coffee, natural coffee, or mixed natural coffee 
is offered for inspection . 

(c) The application for certification shall 
include a signed statement attesting to the geographic 
region of production as defined in section 4-143 - 3, of 
the green coffee, natural coffee, or mixed natural 
coffee and the quantity in pounds . 

(d) It shall be the responsibility of the owner 
of the coffee to apply to the department for 
certification . 

{e) The department shall provide green coffee , 
natural coffee, or mixed natural coffee inspection at 

4 



centralized pulping, hulling , grading , milling, 
processing, shipping£ or storage plants . 

(f) Each application for inspection shall be 
completed by the applicant on an approved department 
form, signed and filed with the office of inspection 
or any inspector at or near the place where the 
inspect ion is desired . The application, due to 
noncompliance with this chapter, may be rejected by 
the supervisor . The supervisor shall notify the 
applicant in writing of the reason for the rejection 
as soon as poss ible . 

(g) The applicant shall make every container of 
each l ot of the product to be inspected readily 
accessible for sampling and inspection. Coffee bags 
or containers sampled for certification shall not be 
moved from the facility where it was sampled until 
approval is given by the department. Movement of 
coffees without approval shall be considered a 
violation under section 4-143-B(d) . 

(h) Inspection and certification for quality or 
condition shall be based on [sections] section 
4-143-6, 4-143-11 , or 4-143-12. A request for 
certification may include a request restricted to a 
portion of, or in addition to the requirements in 
section 4-143 - 6, 4-143-11, or 4-143-12, upon approval 
of the supervisor, prov ided that a letter of 
certification may be issued in lieu of a certificate 
at the discretion of the supervisor. 

(i) An application for certification may be 
withdrawn by the appl i cant at any time before the 
inspection is performed, provided that the applicant 
shal l be billed for any expenses incurred after the 
application was made . 

(j) Proof of the authority of any person 
applying for inspection on behalf of another person 
may be required at the discretion of the inspector. 

(k) The original certificate, when issued, shall 
immediately be mailed or made available to the 
applicant or a person designated by the applicant . 
One additional copy of the certificate shall be issued 
without charge if requeste d by the applicant before 
the certificate is issued . Applicants may make a 

5 



Co 


reques t i n writing to the insp e c tion o ff ice f o r 
a dditional copies or f a cs i mile copi es of a c ert i f i c a t e 
a t a fee of [$4B. OO ] $4 8 for each page . 

(1) An inspection f ee rate of [$4B . OO] $48 per 
hour for regular time a n d [$ 72 . 00] $7 2 per hour for 
overtime shal l be charged by the d epartment , and shal l 
be paid by the applicant . Additional char ges may be 
assessed for t r ansportation, trav el time , stand-by 
t i me , per diem , mi l eage, and other actual expenses 
incurr ed by the department . 

(m) When payment for insp ection is not receiv ed 
within thirty days of the date of the bill , the 
department may withhold inspecti on for certification 
until payment is made. An interest charge of one-half 
of one per cent of the unpaid balance shall be 
assessed for each month, or portion of a month, that 
payment is not received after the initial thirty day s 
after t he date of the bill . 

(n) An application for an appeal inspection may 
be made by any financially inte rested person 
dissatisfied with the original determination , prov ided 
that : 

(1) 	 The identity of the product has not b een 
l ost ; 

(2) 	 The original lot has not been disturbed and 
is accessible; 

(3) 	 The appeal request and the reason for the 
appeal are submitted in writing, and the 
reason for the appeal request is not 
unsubstant i a l ; 

(4) 	 The product has not undergone material 
change i n condition since the ori ginal 
inspect i on; and 

(5) 	 Not more than fourteen days has transpired 
from the date of the original cer tificate . 

The fee to be charged fo r an appeal inspection shall 
be based on the fees and other charges spec i f i ed in 
subsection (1) or [$350 . 00] $350 , whichever is 
greater, prov ided that should the result of the appeal 
inspection disclose that a material error was made in 
the o r iginal inspection, no fees or charges shall be 
assessed for the appeal inspect i on . [Eff 10/8 / 01 ; am 

6 



and comp 5/24 /14 ; am and c omp (Auth : 
HRS §§147-7 , 147-8) (I mp : HRS §§ 14 7 -7 , 14 7 -8) 

§4-143-3 Definitions . As used in this chapter : 
"Applicant" means a p erson that applies fo r or 

requests inspection for certification who has a 
financial interest in the product and who shall be 
responsib le for payment of certification fees . 

"Bean" means the seed of the fruit of the coffee 
plant, which has been dried and from which the pulp 
and the spermoderm have been removed and is also known 
as green coffee bean . 

"Black bean" means green coffee or natural 
coffee, when the bean is darkly discolored . 

"Broken bean" or "cut bean" means a bean or part 
of a bean that is damaged by a cracked , chipped, or 
nicked condition . 

"Certificate" means any form of certification, 
either written[, ] or printed, issued by an inspector 
under this chapter to certify the type, grade, 
quality, quantity, or condition of green coffee, 
natural coffee, or mixed natural coffee . 

"Cherry coffee" means an agricultural commodity 
comprised of the unprocessed fruit of the coffee 
plant. 

"Clean" means green coffee, natural coffee, or 
mixed natural coffee that is free from damage by d i rt, 
dust, or other foreign matter . 

"Damage" means any defect which materially 
detracts from the quality and condition of the green 
coffee or natural coffee bean . 

"Department" means the department of agriculture. 
"Dry mill" means a location where parchment 

coffee is processed into green or natural coffee . 
"Dry miller" means a person who processes 

parchment coffee into green or natural coffee . 
"Excessivel y dirty" means caked with dirt. 
"Fermented" means the cherry has a definite sour 

odor . 
"Geographic region" means the geographic areas 

designated as follows : Hamakua is the district of 

7 



C/0 


Hamakua on the island of Hawai'i, as designated by the 
State of Hawaii Tax Map; Hawaii is the State of 
Hawaii; Hawaii Island is the island of Hawai'i; Kau is 
the district of Ka'u on the island of Hawai'i, as 
designated by the State of Hawaii Tax Map; Kauai is 
the island of Kaua' i; Kana is the No"rth Kona and South 
Kona districts on the island of Hawai'i, as designated 
by the State of Hawaii Tax Map; Maui is the island of 
Maui ; Molokai is the island of Moloka'i; and Oahu is 
the island of Oahu . 

"Good aroma and flavor when brewed" means the 
coffee beverage, prepared according to accepted 
procedures , possesses a desirable flavor and aroma and 
is free from all foreign, undesirable , or offensive 
flavors or aromas . 

"Good roasting quality" means the green coffee, 
when properly roasted, possesses uniform color and 
brightness . 

"Green coffee" means coffee beans which have been 
processed from cherry coffee by removing the pulp, the 
adhering mucilage, and the hull . 

"Hamakua coffee" means green coffee processed 
from cherry coffee which is grown in the geographic 
region of Hamakua and which at least meets the minimum 
requirements of Hawaii Island Prime green coffee. 

"Hamakua mixed natural coffee" means a 
combination of green coffee and natural coffee 
processed from cherry coffee which is grown in the 
geographic region of Hamakua and which at least meets 
the minimum requirements of Hawaii Island Mixed 
Natural Prime coffee . 

"Hamakua natural coffee" means natural coffee 
processed from cherry coffee which is grown in the 
geographic region of Hamakua and which at least meets 
the minimum requirements of Hawaii Island Natural 
Prime coffee . 

"Hawaii coffee" means green coffee processed from 
cherry coffee which is grown in the State of Hawaii 
and which at least meets the minimum requirements of 
Hawaii No. 3 green coffee . 

8 



"Hawaii Island coffee" means green coffee 
processed from cherry coffee wh i ch is grown in the 
geographic region of the Hawai ' i Island , other than 
coffee grown in the geographi c region of Kana , and 
which at least meets the minimum requirements of 
Hawaii Island Prime coffee . 

"Hawaii Island mix ed natural coffee" means a 
combination of green and natural coffee processed from 
cherry coffee which is grown i n the geographic region 
of the Hawai'i Island , other than coffee grown in the 
geographic r egion of Kona, and which at least meets 
the minimum requirements of Hawaii Island Mixed 
Natural Prime coffee . 

"Hawaii Island natural coffee" means natural 
coffee processed from cherry coffee which is grown in 
geographic region of the Hawai ' i [island] Island, other 
than coffee grown in the geographic region of Kana, 
and which at least meets the minimum requirements of 
Hawaii Island Natural Prime coffee . 

"Hawaii mixed natural coffee" means a combination 
of green coffee and natural coffee processed from 
cherry coffee which is grown in the State of Hawaii 
and which at least meets the minimum requirements of 
Hawaii Mixed Natural Prime coffee . 

"Hawaii natural coffee" means natural coffee 
processed from cherry coffee which is grown in the 
State of Hawaii and which at least meets the minimum 
requirements of Hawaii Natural Prime coffee . 

"Hull" means the dried spermoderm which is the 
light tan or buff-colored membrane encasing the bean. 

"Husk" means the outer part of the dried cherry 
consisting of dried pulp . . 

"Inspector" means an employee of the department 
or a person designated by the supervisor , who is 
authorized to investigate , sample, inspect, and 
certify for any applicant the quality and condition of 
green coffee, natural coffee , and mixed natural coffee 
and to enforce the requirements of this chapter. 

"Interested party" means any person who has a 
financial interest in the product for which inspection 
is requested. 

9 

ll/ 




"Kau coffee" means green coffee processed from 
cherry coffee which is grown in the geographic region 
of Ka'u and which at least meets the minimum 
requiremen ts of Hawaii Island Prime green coffee . 

"Kau mix ed natural coffee means a combi nation of 
green coffee and natural coffee processed from cherry 
coffee which is grown in the geographic region of Ka' u 
and which at least meets the minimum requirements of 
Hawaii Island Mixed Natural Prime coffee . 

"Kau natural coffee" means natural coffee 
processed from cherry coffee whi ch is grown in the 
geographic region of Ka' u and which at least meets the 
minimum requirements of Hawaii Island Natural Prime 
coffee. 

"Kauai coffee" means green coffee processed from 
cherry coffee which is grown in the geographic region 
of Kaua'i and which at least meets the minimum 
requirements of Kauai Prime green coffee . 

"Kauai mixed natural coffee" means a combination 
of green coffee and natural coffee processed from 
cherry coffee which i s grown in the geographic region 
of Kau a ' i and whi ch at l e ast meets the minimum 
requirements of Kauai Mixed Natural Prime coffee . 

"Kauai natural coffee" means natural coffee 
processed from cherry coffee which is grown in the 
geographic region of Ka ua' i and which at least meets 
the minimum requirements of Kauai Natural Prime 
coffee . 

"Kona coffee" means green coffee processed from 
cherry coffee which is grown in the geographic region 
of Kona and which at least meets the minimum 
requirements of Kena Prime green coffee . 

"Kena mixed natural coffee" means a combination 
of green coffee and natural coffee processed from 
cherry coffee which is grown in the geographic region 
of Kena and which at least meets the minimum 
requirements of Kona Mixed Natural Prime coffee . 

"Kana natural coffee" means natural coffee 
processed from cherr y coffee which is grown in the 

1 0 




geographic region of Kona and which at least meets the 
minimum requirements of Kona Natural Prime coffee . 

"Maui cof fee" means green coffee proce ss~d from 
cherry coffee which is grown i n the geographic region 
of Maui and which at least meets the minimu m 
requirements of Maui Prime green coffee . 

"Maui mix ed natural coffee11 means a combination 
of g r een coffee and natural coffee processed from 
cherry coffee which is grown in the geographic region 
of Maui and which at least meets the minimum 
requirements of Maui Mixed Natural Prime coffee . 

"Maui natural coffee11 means natural coffee 
processed from cherry coffee which is grown in the 
geographic region of Maui and which at least meets the 
minimum requirements of Maui Natural Prime coffee . 

"Mill11 means a location where cherry coffee is 
processed into parchment coffee or parchment coffee is 
processed into green coffee, or both . 

"Miller" m~ans a person that processes cherry 
coffee into parchment coffee or processes parchment 
coffee into green coffee, or both . 

"Moldy bean" means a bean with mold or evidence 
of mold growth . 

"Molokai coffee" means green coffee processed 
from cherry coffee which is grown in the geographic 
region of Moloka' i and which at least meets the minimum 
requirements of Molokai Prime green coffee . 

"Molokai mixed natural coffee means a combination 
of green coffee and natural coffee processed from 
cherr y coffee which is grown in the geographic region 
of Moloka'i and which at least meets the minimum 
requirements of Molokai Mixed Natural Prime coffee. 

"Molokai natural coffee" means natural coffee 
processed from cherry coffee which is grown in the 
geographic region of Molokai and which at least meets 
the minimum requirements of Molokai Natural Prime 
coffee . 

"Mother bean" means a bean that is not solid and 
has a loosely wrapped cotyledon . 

"Natural coffee" means coffee which has been 
processed from cherry coffee that has been dried with 

11 



the husk on, or coffee which has been processed from 
parchment coffee with adhering mucilage . 

"Oahu coffee" means green coffee processed from 
cherry coffee which is grown in the geographic region 
of Oahu and ·which at least meets the minimum 
require~ents of Oahu Prime green coffee. 

"Oahu mixed natural coffee" means a combination 
of green coffee and natural coffee processed from 
cherry coffee which is grown in the geographic region 
of Oahu and which at least meets the minimum 
requirements of Oahu Mixed Natural Prime coffee . 

"Oahu natural coffee" means natural coffee 
processed from cherry coffee which is grown in the 
geographic region of Oahu and which at leas t meets the 
minimum requirements of Oahu Natural Prime coffee . 

"Offgrade" is a descriptive term applicable to 
coffee which has a market value, and designates a 
quality lower than Hawaii No. 3 grade for green 
coffee, or the grade terms defined in section 4 - 143-11 
for natural coffee, or the grade terms defined in 
section 4- 143-12 for mixed natural coffee. 

"Office of inspection" means the office of an 
authorized inspector of coffee . 

"Parchment" means the portion of the fruit of the 
coffee plant consisting of the hull, from which the 
pulp has been removed, and the enclosed seed . 

"Parchment coffee" means an agricultural 
commodity comprised of parchment . 

"Partly black bean" means a bean that is darkly 
discolored only partially. 

"Partly moldy bean" means a bean that is moldy 
only partially or shows evidence of mold growth only 
partially . 

"Partly sour bean" means a bean that has a faint 
fermented flavor or odor and is partially buff or 
yellowish-brown i n color. 

"Partly stinker bean" means a bean that, on being 
freshly cut, gives off an unpleasant odor. A partly 
stinker bean may be partly light-brown or brownish or 
occasionally have a waxy appearance . 

"Person" means any individual, partnership, 
corporation, or separate legal entity. 

12 




"Pod" means an intact dried cherry. 
"Quaker" means a bean that is poorly developed, , 

exceptionally light in weight~ and is light in color 
when roasted. 

"Qual i ty" means the inherent properties or 
attributes of a product which determines its relative 
degree of excellence . 

"Shell" means part of a bean that is thin , light 
in weight, and shell-like in appearance . 

"Silver- skin" means the dried seed coat of the 
bean , whic-h is tightly adhering, thin , tissue - like 
membrane covering the bean . 

"Sour bean" means a bean that has a fermented 
odor or flavor . A sour bean is usually buff or 
yellowish-brown in color . 

"Stick" means a slender piece of wood from a tree 
or shrub . 

"Stinker bean" means a bean, upon being freshly 
cut, that gives off a very unpleasant odor . A stinker 
bean may be light - brown or brownish or occasionally 
have a waxy appearance . 

"Stone" means a rock, a piece of a rock, or 
concreted earthy or mineral matter. 

"Supervisor" means the coffee program special ist 
in the commodi ties branch of the department or a 
person designated by the manager of the commodities 
branch . 

"Type I bean" means a bean which is produced two 
to a cherry and which is perceptively flat on one side 
and convex on the other . 

"Type II bean" means a bean whi ch is produced one 
to a cherry and is generally oval in shape and round 
in diameter . [A±-se} A type II bean is also referred 
to as peaberry . 

"Uniformly good green color" means all of the 
beans are of nearly the same green color, 
characteristic for the variety of properl y grown and 
processed beans which have not undergone any material 
deterioration. 

"Wet mill" means a location where cherry coffee 
is processed into parchment coffee . 

13 




l I(r; 


" Wet miller" means a person that p rocesses cherry 
coffee into parchment coffee . [Eff ·10/8/0l; am and 
comp 5 / 24 /14; am and comp ] (Auth : HRS 
§§147-4 , 147-22) (Imp: §§147-4 , 147-22) 

§4 -143- 4 REPEALED . [R 5/24/14] 

§4-143-5 REPEALED . [R 5/24/14] 

§4-143 - 6 Standards for grades of green coffee . 
(a) Hawaii Extra Fancy green coffee consists of 
Hawaii beans of one type , which are clean and possess 
a uniformly good green color, good roasting quality , 
and good aroma and flavor when brewed; which do not 
exceed t welv e per cent or which do not contain less 
than nine per cent moisture by weight ; which do not 
exceed eight full imperfections per three hundred 
grams as described in subsection ( i) ; ·which do not 
exceed three per cent by weight other type beans; and 
which in the case of type I beans meet the minimum 
size requirement of size 19 and in the case of type II 
beans meet the minimum size requirement of size 13 as 
stated in subsection (j); provided that : 

(1) 	 Kona coffee which meets the requirements of 
this subsection may be classified as Kana 
Extra Fancy green coffee . This 
classification shall apply to Kona coffee 
only[.-] i.. 

(2) 	 Kauai coffee which meets the requirements of 
this subsection may be classified as Kauai 
Extra Fancy green coffee . This 
classification shall apply to Kauai coffee 
only[--,-] i.. 

(3) 	 Maui coffee which meets the requirements of 
this subsection may be classified as Maui 
Extra Fancy green coffee . This 

14 




classification shall apply to Maui coffee 
only[7]L 

(4) 	 Molokai coffee which meets the requirements 
of this subsection may be classified as 
Molokai Extra Fancy green coffee. This 
classification shall apply to Molokai coffee 
only[7]L 

(5) 	 Oahu coffee which meets the requirements of 
this subsection may be classified as Oahu 
Extra Fancy green coffee . This 
classification shall apply to Oahu coffee 
only[7 ]; and 

(6) 	 Hawaii Island coffee which meets the 
requirements of this subsection may be 
classified as Hawaii Island Extra Fancy 
green coffee. This classification shall 
apply to Hawaii Island coffee only . 

(b) Hawaii Fancy green coffee consists of Hawaii 
beans of one type, which are clean and possess a 
uniformly good green color, good roasting quality , and 
good aroma and flavor when brewed; which do not exceed 
twelve per cent or which do not contain less than nine 
per cent moisture by weight; which do not exceed 
twel v e full imperfections per three hundred grams as 
described in subsection (i); which do not exceed three 
per cent by weight other type beans; and which in the 
case of type I beans meet the minimum size requirement 
of size 18, provided a larger size may be specified, 
and in the case of type II beans meet the minimum size 
requirement of size 12 as stated in subsection (j) ; 
provided that: 

(1) 	 Kana coffee which meets the requirements of 
this subsection may be classified as Kana 
Fancy green coffee. This classification 
shall apply to Kana coffee only[7]L 

(2) 	 Kauai coffee which meets the requirements of 
this subsection may be classified as Kauai 
Fancy green coffee. This classification 
shall apply to Kauai coffee only(7]~ 

(3) 	 Maui coffee which meets the requirements of 
this subsection may be classified as Maui 

15 




Fancy green coffee . This classification 
shall apply to Maui coffee only[.JL 

(4) 	 Molokai coffee which meets the requirements 
of this subsection may be classified as 
Molokai Fancy green coffee . This 
classification shall apply to Molokai coffee 
only[.]L 

(5) 	 Oahu coffee which meets the requirements of 
this subsection may be classified as Oahu 
Fancy green coffee . This classification 
shall apply to Oahu coffee only[.]; and 

(6) 	 Hawaii Island coffee which meets the 
requirements of this subsection may be 
classified as Hawaii Island Fancy green 
coffee. This classification shall apply to 
Hawaii Island coffee only . 

(c) Hawaii No. 1 green coffee consists of Hawaii 
beans of one type , which are clean and possess a 
uniformly good green color, good roasting quality, and 
good aroma and flavor when brewed; which do not exceed 
twelve per cent or which do not contain less than nine 
per cent moisture by weight; which do not exceed 
eighteen full imperfections per three hundred grams as 
described in subsection (i); which do not exceed three 
per cent by weight other type beans; and which meet 
the minimum size requirement of size 16 for type I 
beans , provided a larger size may be specified, and 
size 10 for type II beans as stated in subsection (j); 
provided that: 

(1) 	 Kona coffee which meets the requirements of 
this subsection may be classified as Kona 
No. 1 green coffee. This classification 
shall apply to Kona coffee only[7JL 

(2) 	 Kauai coffee which meets the requirements of 
this subsection may be classified as Kauai 
No . 1 green coffee. This classification 
shall apply to Kauai coffee only[.]L 

(3) 	 Maui coffee which meets the requirements of 
this subsection may be classified as Maui 
No . 1 green coffee . This classification 
shall apply to Maui coffee only[.]L 

16 


http:only[.JL


(4) 	 Molokai coffee which meets the requirements 
of this subsection may be classified as 
Molokai No. 1 green coffee . Thi s 
classification shall apply to Molokai coffee 
only h-J i. 

(5) 	 Oahu coffee which meets the requirements of 
this subsection may be c lass ified as Oahu 
No . 1 green coffee . This classification 
shall apply to Oahu coffee only[7 ]; and 

(6) 	 Hawaii Island coffee which meets the . 
requirements of this subsection may be 
classified as Hawaii Island No . 1 green 
coffee. This classification shall apply to 
Hawaii Island coffee only . 

(d} Hawaii Select green coffee consists of 
Hawaii beans, which are clean and which do not impart 
sour , fermented , moldy , medicinal, or other 
undesirable aromas and flavors when brewed; which do 
not exceed t we1ve per cent or which do not contain 
less than nine per cent moisture by weight; and which 
do not exceed five per cent defective beans, by 
weight, incl uded therein not more than two per cent , 
by weight, sour, stinker, black, or moldy beans that 
equal full imperfections only , as described in 
subsections (i) (1) and (i) (2 ) ; which may be assigned a 
size classification as stated in subsection (j)fil ; 
provided that : 

(1) 	 Kona coffee which meets the requirements of 
this subsection may be classified as Kana 
Select green coffee . This c lassification 
shall apply to Kana coffee only[7J1. 

(2) 	 Kaua i coffee which meets the requirements of 
this subsection may be classified as Kauai 
Select green coffee . This classification 
shall apply to Kauai coffee only[7J1. 

(3) 	 Maui coffee which meets the requirements of 
this subsection may be classified as Maui 
Select green coffee. This classification 
shall apply to Maui coffee only[7 ]1. 

(4) 	 Molokai coffee which meets the requirements 
of this subsection may be classified as 

17 




Molokai Select green coffee . This 
classification shall apply to Molokai coffee 
only[-;-]; 

(5) 	 Oahu coffee which meets the requirements of 
this subsection may be classified as Oahu 
Select green coffee . This classification 
shall apply to Oahu coffee only(-;-]; and 

(6) 	 Hawaii Island coffee which meets the 
requirements of this subsection may be 
classif i ed as Hawaii Island Select green 
coffee . This classification shall apply to 
Hawaii Island coffee only . 

(e) Hawaii Prime green coffee consists of Hawaii 
beans which are clean; which do not impart sour, 
fermented, moldy, medicinal, or other undesirable 
aromas and flavors when brewed; which do not exceed 
twelve per cent or which does not contain less than 
nine per cent moisture by weight; and which do not 
exceed twenty per cent defective beans, by weight, 
inc luded therein not more than five per cent, by 
weight, sour, stinker, blackL or moldy beans that 
equal full imperfections only, as described in 
subsections (i} (1) and (i} (2) ; which may be assigned a 
size classification as stated in subsection (j)fil; 
provided that: 

(1) 	 Kona coffee which meets the requirements of 
this subsection may be classif ied as Kona 
Prime green coffee . This classification 
shall apply to Kona coffee only[~JL 

(2) 	 Kauai coffee which meets the requirements of 
this subsection may be classified as Kauai 
Prime green coffee . This classification 
shall apply to Kauai coffee only[-;-]L 

(3) 	 Maui coffee which meets tne requirements of 
this subsection may be classified as Maui 
Prime green coffee . Thi s classification 
shal l apply to Maui coffee only[-;-)L 

(4) 	 Mol okai coffee which meets the requirements 
of this subsection may be classified as 
Mol okai Prime green coffee . This 
classification shall apply to Molokai coffee 
only [-;-]L 

18 




(5) 	 Oahu coffee which meets the requirements of 
this subsection may be classified as Oahu 
Prime green coffee . This classification 
shall apply to Oahu coffee only[~]; and 

(6) 	 Hawaii Island coffee which meets the 
requirements of this subsection may be 
classified as Hawaii Island Prime green 
coffee . This classification shall apply to 
Hawaii Island coffee only[~] L 

(7) 	 The defect tolerance of twenty per cent 
defective beans by weight shall be in effect 
until June 30 , [2017 . ] 2020 . Beginning 
July 1, [2017,] 2020, the defect tolerance 
shall be fifteen per cent defective beans by 
weight . 

(f) Hawaii No. 3 green coffee consists of Hawaii 
beans which are clean; which do not impart sour, 
fermented, moldy, medicinal, or other undesirable 
aromas and flavors when brewed; which do not exceed 
twelve per cent or do not contain less than nine per 
cent moisture, by weight; and ·which do not exceed 
thirty-five per cent defective beans, by weight, 
included therein not more than five per cent, by 
weight, black, moldy, sour, or stinker beans that 
equal full imperfections only, as described in 
subsections (i) (1) and (i) (2). Use of the terms 
"Kana", "Kauai", "Maui", "Molokai" , "Oahu" 2... or "Hawaii 
Island" in conjunction with the term "No. 3" is 
prohibited. 

(g) Offgrade is not a grade within the meaning 
of these standards but is a descriptive term 
applicable to green coffee which has a market value 
and designates a quality lower than Hawaii No. 3 green 
coffee . Use of the terms "Hamakua", "Hawaii", "Kau", 
"Kana", "Kauai", "Maui", "Molokai", "Oahuu2... or "Hawaii 
Island" in conjunction with the term offgrade is 
prohibited . 

(h) Al l owances and limitations stated in this 

section shall be applied to the entire lot, and a 

compos ite sample from the lot shall be used to 

determine the grade. 


19 




(i) Specific defects and the e x tent to which 
these defects affect grade in terms of imperfection 
equivalents shall be as follows : 

(1) 	 One bean that has more than fifty per cent 
of an equivalent full bean surface that is 
black or moldy shall equal one full 
imperfection; 

(2) 	 One bean that is more than faintly affected 
by a sour or stinker odor shall equal one 
full imperfection ; 

(3) 	 One pod or piece of a pod that is more than 
fifty per cent equivalent of a full pod 
shall equal one full imperfection; 

(4) 	 One full husk or piece of a husk that is 
more than fifty per cent equivalent of a 
full husk shall equal one full imperfection; 

(5) 	 One full hull or piece of a hull that is 
more than fifty per cent equivalent of a 
full hull shall equal one f ull imperfection ; 

(6) 	 One stone more than four millimeters in any 
dimension shall equal one full imperfection; 

(7) 	 One stick more than four millimeters and up 
to ten millimeters in length shall equal one 
full imperfection ; 

(8) 	 One stick more than ten millimeters in 
length shall equal two full imperfections. 

Where only a piece of a black bean, moldy bean, 
sour bean, stinker bean, pod, huskL or hull are 
present, and they do not equal one full imperfection 
as described in paragraphs (1), (2) , {3), (4), and 
(5), 	 each shall be scored as one-fifth of a full 
imperfection. For example, one bean with less than 
fifty per cent of its surface black shall be scored as 
one-fifth of a full imperfection . 

A partly b lack, partly moldy, or partly sour 
bean, or a stick or a stone that does not equal one 
full 	imperfection as described in paragraphs (1), (2), 
(6), and {7) shall be scored as one-fifth of a full 
imperfection . 

A quaker, shell , mother bean, or bean or a piece 
of a bean affected by damage by an insect or damage by 

20 




a broken or cut bean shall be scored as one-fifth of a 
full imperfection . 

A bean that is affected by not more than two 
pinholes caused by insect damage regardless of 
discoloration associated with the insect damage shall 
be scored as one-tenth of a full imperfection . The 
defect tolerance of one-tenth of a full imperfection 
of not more than two pinholes caused by insect damage 
regardless of discoloration associated with the insect 
damage shall be in effect until June 30, [~] 2020 . 
Beginning July 1, [~] 2020, the defect tolerance 
shall be one-fifth of a full imperfection . 

A bean that is affected by greater than two 
pinholes caused by insect damage regardless of 
discoloration associated with the insect damage shall 
be scored as one-fifth of a ful l imperfection. 

Any other defect not listed in this subsection 
shall be scored as one-fifth of a full imperfection to 
the extent that these defects affect the quality or 
condition of the beans in the lot . 

(j) Size classifications for green coffee shall 
be as follows : 

(1) 	 For type I green coffee : 
(A) 	 Size 11 shall consist of beans which 

will not pass through an 11/64 inch 
round hole ; 

(B) 	 Size 14 shall consist of beans which 
wi ll not pass through a 14/64 inch 
round hole; 

(C) 	 Size 16 shall consist of beans which 
will not pass through a 16/64 inch 
round hole; 

(D) 	 Size 17 shall consist o f beans which 
will not pass through a 17/64 inch 
round hole; 

(E) 	 Size 18 shall consist of beans which 
wi ll not pass through a 18/64 inch 
round hole; and 

(F) 	 Size 19 shall consist of beans which 
will not pass through a 19/64 inch 
round hole; and 

(2) 	 For type II green coffee: 

21 




(A) 	 Size 10 shall consist of beans which 
will not pass through a 10/64 inch 
slotted hole; 

(B) 	 Size 12 shall consist of beans which 
will not pass through a 12/64 inch 
slotted hole; and 

(C) 	 Size 13 shall consist of beans which 
will not pass through a 13/64 inch 
slotted hole . 

In order to allow for variations incident to 
proper sizing for type I and type II green coffee , not 
more than a total of ten per cent, by weight, of the 
beans in any lot may be smaller than the size 
specified . 

(k) When size or type is specified for Hawaii 
Select green coffee or Hawaii Prime green coffee, not 
more than a total of three per cent by weight other 
type beans shall be permitted in any lot. [Eff 
10/8/01; am and comp 5/24/14; am and comp 
] (Auth : HRS §§147-4, 147-22) (Imp: HRS §§147-4, 
147-22) 

§4-143-7 REPEALED. [R 5/24/14 ) 

§4-143 - 8 Provisions for enforcement, penalties 
and prosecution. (a) A.Dy authorized inspector of the 
department may enter any public or private premises, 
including any vehicle of transport, during bus iness 
hours t o : 

(1) 	 Inspect for the quality, condition, and 
origin of coffee; and 

(2) 	 Enforce the labeling, record keeping, and 
certification requirements of this chapter . 

(b) The inspector may take representative 

samp l es of the coffee for inspection . 


(c) Any authorized inspector, upon determining 

that this chapter or chapter 147 , Hawaii Revised 

Statutes, is being violated, may place a stop sale 


22 




notice upon or near the coffee that is in violation . 
When a stop sale notice is issued : 

(1) 	 The coffee shall not be sold , offered for 
sale, transferred , moved off the premises, 
or otherwise disposed of until the stop sale 
notice has been removed by an authorized 
inspector or wr itten permission is received 
from the department[7]L 

(2) 	 No person shall remove, deface, or otherwi se 
tamper with any stop sale notice except upon 
approval of an authorized inspector[~); and 

(3) 	 The stop sale notice shall be accompanied by 
a non- compliance notice issued by the 
department indicating the violation and 
corrective action required . 

(d} Any person who violates any provision of 
this chapter may be subject to the actions, 
procedures, and penalties provided in sections 147 - 2 
and 147-25, Hawaii Revised Statutes . [Eff 10/8/01; am 
and comp 5/24/14; am and comp ] 
(Auth : HRS §§147-2, 147-22, 147-25) (Imp : HRS 
§§147-4 , 147-24) 

§4-143 - 9 Abbreviat i ons . Grade designations on 
labels for coffee shall be as stated in this chapter 
except that Hawaii may be abbreviated as "HI . " or 
"Haw . " and Extra may be abbreviated as "Ex.", provided 
that a period need not be used . [Eff 10/8/01; am and 
comp 5/24/14; comp ] (Auth : HRS 
§§147-4, 147-22} (Imp : HRS §§147-4, 147 - 22) 

§4-143-10 REPEALED [R 5/24/14] 

§4 - 143 - 1 1 Standards for grade s of natural 
co f fee . (a) Hawai i Natural Prime coffee consists of 
Hawaii coffee beans which have been processed from 
cherry coffee that has been dried with the husk on, or 
which has been processed from parchment coffee with 
adhering mucilage, of one type, which are clean and do 

2 3 



not exceed thirteen per cent or which do not cont ain 
l ess than eight per cent moisture by weight, which do 
not exceed t wenty per cent defective beans, by weight, 
as defined in section 4 - 143 -6 , included therein not 
more than five per cent by we ight, black or moldy 
beans that equal full imperfections only, as described 
in section 4-143 -6(i) (1) . Sour or stinker beans, or 
partly sour or partly stinker beans are not considered 
de fective beans . 

(1) 	 Kona natural coffee which meets the 
requirements of this subsection may be 
classified as Kona Natural Prime coffee . 
This classification shall apply to Kana 
natural coffee only[.]L 

(2) 	 Kauai natural coffee which meets the 
requirements of t his subsection may be 
classified as Kauai Natural Prime coffee . 
This classification shall apply to Kauai 
natural coffee only[.]L 

(3) 	 Maui natural coffee which meets the 
requirements of this subsection may be 
classified as Maui Natural Prime coffee. 
This classification shall apply to Maui 
natural coffee only[.]L 

(4) 	 Molokai natural coffee which meets the 
requirements of this subsection may be 
classified as Molokai Natural Prime coffee . 
This classification shall appl y to Molokai 
natural coffee only[.]L 

(5) 	 Oahu natural coffee which meets the 
requirements of this subsection may be 
classified as Oahu Natural Prime coffee . 
This classification shall apply to Oahu 
natural coffee only[.]; and 

(6) 	 Hawaii Island natural coffee which meets the 
requirements of this subsection may be 
classified as Hawaii Island Natural Prime 
coffee . This classification shall apply to 
Hawaii Islan d natural coffee only. 

(7) 	 The defect tolerance of t wenty per cent 
defective beans by weight shall be in effect 
until June 30, [2017 . ] 2020 . Beginning 

24 




--

July 	1 , [2017 , ] 202 0, the defec t tolerance 
shall be fifteen per cent defective beans by 
weight. 

(b) Size classifications for natural coffee 
shall be as follows : 

( 1) 	 For type I natural coffee: 
(A) 	 Size 11 shall consist of beans which 

will not pass through a 11/64 inch 
round hol e; 

(B) 	 Size 14 shal l consist of beans which 
will not pass through a 14/64 inch 
round hole; 

(C) 	 S i ze l6 shall consist of beans which 
will not pass through a 16/64 inch 
round hole; 

(D) 	 Size 17 shall consist of beans which 
will not pass through a 17/64 inch 
r ound hole; 

(E) Size 18 shal l consist of beans which 
will not pass through a 18/64 inch 
round hole; and 

(F) 	 Size 19 shall consist of beans which 
will not pass through a 19/64 inch 
round hole; and 

( 2) 	 For type I I natural coffee: 
(A) 	 Size l O shall consist of beans which 

will not pass through a 10/64 inch 
slotted hol e; 

(B) 	 Size 12 shall consist of beans whi ch 
will not pass through a 12/64 inch 
slotted hole; and 

( C) Size 13 shall consis t of beans which 
wil l not pass thr ough a 13/64 i nch 
slotted hol e. 

In order to allow for variations incident to 
proper sizing for type I and type II natural coffee, 
not more than a total of ten per cent, by weight, of 
the beans in any lot may be smaller than the size 
specified . 

(c) 	 When size is specified, not more than a 

25 




total of three per cent by weight other type beans 
shall be permitted in any lot . 

(d) Offgrade is not a grade within the meaning 
of these standards but is a descriptive term 
applicable to natural coffee which has a market value 
and designates a quality lower than Hawaii Natural 
Prime coffee. Use of the terms. "Hamakua", "Hawaii", 
"Kau", "Kona", "Kauai" , "Maui", "Molokai" , "Oahu"_,_or 
"Hawaii Island" in conjunction with the term offgrade 
is prohibited. [Eff and comp 5/24 /14 ; am 
and comp ] (Auth : HRS §§147-4, 147-22 ) 
(Imp : HRS §§147-4, 147-22) 

§4 - 143 - 12 Standards for grades of mixed natural 
coffee . (a) Hawaii Mixed Natural Prime coffee 
consists of a combination of Hawaii green coffee beans 
and Hawaii natural coffee beans which have been 
processed from c herry coffee that has been dried with 
the husk on, or which has been processed from 
parchment coffee with adhering mucilage, which are 
clean and do not exceed thirteen per cent moisture, by 
we ight or which do not contain less than eight per 
cent moisture, by weight, which do not exceed twenty 
per cent defective beans , by we ight, as defined in 
section 4-143-6, included therein not more than five 
per cent by weight, black or moldy beans that equal 
full imperfections only, as described in section 4
143-6(i) (1). Sour or stinker beans, or partly sour or 
partly stinker beans are not considered defective 
beans . 

( 1) Kana mixed natural coffee which meets the 
requirements of this subsection may be 
classified as Kana Mixed Natural Prime 
coffee . This classification shall apply to 
Kana mixed natural coffee only[~JL 

( 2) Kauai mixed natural coffee which meets the 
requirements of this subsection may be 
classified as Kauai Mixed Natural Prime 
coffee. This classification shall apply to 
Kauai mixed natural coffee only[~JL 

26 




(3) 	 Maui mixed natural coffee which meets the 
requirements of this subsection may be 
classified as Maui Mixed Natural Prime 
coffee . This classification shall apply to 
Maui mixed natural coffee only[7]L 

(4) 	 Molokai mixed natural coffee which meets the 
[requirement] requirements of this 
subsection may be classified as Molokai 
Mixed Natural Prime coffee . This 
classification shall apply to Molokai mixed 
natural coffee only[7] L 

(5) 	 Oahu mixed natural coffee which meets the 
requirements of this subsection may be 
c l assified as Oahu Mixed Natural prime 
coffee . This classification shall apply to 
Oahu mixed natural coffee only[7]; and 

(6) 	 Hawaii Island mi xed natural coffee which 
meets the requirements of this subsection 
may be classified as Hawaii Island Mixed 
Natural Prime coffee. This classification 
shall appl y to Hawaii Island mixed natural 
coffee only . 

(7) 	 The defect tolerance of twenty per cent 
defective beans by weight shall be in effect 
unti l June 30, [2 017 . ] 202 O. Begi nning 
Jul y 1, [2017,] 2020, the defect tolerance 
shal l be fifteen per cent defective beans by 
weight. 

(b) Size classification for mixed natural coffee 
shall be as follows: 

(1) 	 For type I mixed nat ural coffee: 
(A) Size 11 shall cons i st of beans which 

will not pass thr ough a 11/64 inch 
round hole; 

(B) 	 Size 14 shall consist of beans which 
will not pass through a 14/64 inch 
round hole; 

(C) 	 Size 16 shall consist of beans which 
will not pass through a 16/64 inch 
round hole; 

27 



--

(D) 	 Size 17 shall consist of beans which 
will not pass through a 17/64 inch 
round hole ; 

(E) 	 Size 18 shall consist of beans which 
will not pass through a 18/64 inch 
round hole ; and 

(F) 	 Size 19 shall consist of beans which 
will not pass through a 19/64 inch 
round hole; and 

(2) For type II mix ed natural coffee : 
(A) 	 Size 10 shall consist of beans which 

will not pass through a 10/64 inch 
slotted hole ; 

(B) 	 Size 12 shall consist of beans which 
will not pass through a 12/64 inch 
slotted hole; and 

( C) Size 13 shall consist of beans which 
will not pass through a 13/64 inch 
slotted hole . 

In order to allow for variations incident to 
proper sizing for type I and type II green or natural 
coffee, not more than a total of ten per cent, by 
weight, of the beans in any lot may be smaller than 
the size specified. 

(c) When size is specified, not more than a 
total of three per cent by weight other type beans 
shall be permitted in any lot . 

(d) Offgrade is not a grade within the meaning 
of these standards but is a descriptive term 
applicable to mixed natural coffee which has a market 
value and designates a quality lower than Hawaii Mixed 
Natural Prime coffee. Use of the terms "Hamakua", 
"Hawaii", "Kau", "Kana ", "Kauai", "Maui", "Molokai", 
"Oahu".!... or "Hawaii [island] Island" in conjunction 
with the term offgrade is prohibited . [Eff and comp 
5/24/2014; am and comp ] (Auth : 
HRS §§147-4, 147-22) (Imp: HRS §§147 - 4, 147-22 ) 

§4-143 - 13 Record keeping. (a) Every person who 
produces, processes, transports, or distributes 

28 




Hawai'i-grown cherry, parchment, green, or natural 
coffee shall maintain records of each purchase, 
transport, or sale. 

(b) 	 Records shall include : 
(1) 	 The name , address, and telephone number of 

the seller; 
( 2) The name, address, and tele12hone number of 

the buyer; 
(3) 	 The name , address, and telephone number of 

the transporter; 
( 4) The quantity of Hawai'i-grown coffee 

purchased, transported, or sold; 
( 5) The grade of Hawai'i-grown coffee purchased, 

transported, or sold, if applicable ; 
( 6) 	 The date of the sale or purchase; and 
(7) 	 A lot number, tax map key~ or other 

identifying mark for each transaction . 
(c) Records of each sale, purchase , or transport 

of Hawai'i - grown coffee shal l be retained for a minimum 
of six years." [Eff and comp 5/24/14; am and 
comp 	 ] (Auth : §147-4) (Imp : §147 - 4) 

29 



2. Material , e xcept source notes, to be 
repealed is bracketed and sticken . New material is 
underscored . 

3 . Addit i ons to update source notes to reflect 
these amendments and compilation are not underscored . 

4 . These amendments to and compilation of 
chapter 4-l43, Hawaii Administrative Rules shall take 
effect ten days after filing with the Office of the 
Lieutenant Governor . 

I certify that the foregoing are copies of the 
rules , drafted in the Ramseyer format pursuant to the 
requirements of section 91-4 . 1, Hawaii Revised 
statutes, which were adopted on Month xx , XXXX, and 
filed with the Office of the Lieutenant Governor. 

~cott E. Enright 
Chairperson 
Board of Agriculture 

APPROVED AS TO FORM : 



Exhibit 3 




Rules Amending Title 11 

Hawaii Admini strative Rules 


February 24 , 2014 


1 . Chapter 50 of Title 11 , Hawaii Administrative Rules, 
entitled "Food Safety Code" is amended and compiled to read 
as follows : 

"HAWAII ADMINISTRATIVE RULES 


TITLE 11 


DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 


CHAPTER 50 


FOOD SAFETY CODE 


Subchapter 1 General Provisions 

§11 -50-1 Purpose 
§11 - 50-2 Definitions 
§11-50-3 Permits, special events, homemade food 

products and hand-pounded poi, and 
exemptions 

§11-50-4 Permit application and supporting 
documentation 

§11- 50-5 Repealed 
§11-50-6 Repealed 
§11-50-7 Fees 
§11- 50-8 I nspection and correction of violations 
§11-50-9 Placarding 
§11-50-10 Embargo and detent ion 
§11- 50-11 Prevention of foodborne disease 

transmission by employees 
§11-50-12 Permi t suspension 
§11-50-13 Variances 
§11-50-14 Penalties and remedies 
§11-50-15 Severability 
§§11- 50-16 to 11-50-19 (Reserved) 

Subchapter 2 Personnel 



§11-50-20 Supervision 
§11-50-21 Employee health 
§11-50-22 Personal cleanliness 
§11-50-23 Hygienic practices 
§§11-50-24 to 11-50-29 (Reserved) 

Subchapter 3 Food 

§11-50-30 Characteristics 
§11-50-31 Source, specifications for receiving, 

original containers and records 
§11-50-32 Protection from contamination after 

receiving 
§11-50-33 Destruction of organisms of public health 

concern 
§11-50-34 Limitation of growth of organisms of public 

health concern 
§11-50-35 Food identity , presentation, and 

on-premises labeling 
§11-50-36 Contaminated food 
§11-50-37 Special requirements for highly suscept ible 

populations 
§§11-50-38 to 11-50-44 (Reserved) 

Subchapter 4 Equipment, Utensils , and Linens 

§11-50-45 Materials for construction and repair 
§11-50-4 6 Design and construction 
§11-50-47 Numbers and capacities 
§11-50-48 Location and installation 
§11-50-4 9 Maintenance and operation 
§11-50- 50 Cleaning of equipment and utensils 
§11-50-51 Sanitization of equipment and utensils 
§11-50-52 Laundering 
§11-50- 53 Protection of clean items 
§§11-50-54 to 11-50-59 (Reserved) 

Subchapter 5 Water, Plumbing, and Waste 

§11-50-60 Water 
§11- 50-61 Plumbing system 
§11-50-62 Repealed 
§11-50'-63 Sewage, other liquid waste, and rainwater 



§11-50-64 Refuse, recyclables , and returnables 
§§11-50-65 to 11-50-69 (Reserved) 

Subchapter 6 Physical Facilities 

§11- 50- 70 Materials for construction and repair 
§11-50-71 Design, construction, and installation 
§11-50-72 Numbers and capacities 
§11-50-73 Location and placement 
§11-50-74 Maintenance and operation 
§§11-50-75 to 11-50-79 (Reserved) 

Subchapter 7 Poisonous or Toxic Materials 

§11-50-80 Labeling and identification 
§11-50-81 Operational supplies and applications 
§11-50-82 Stock and retail sal e 
§§11-50 - 83 to 11-50-84 (Reserved) 

Subchapter 8 Mobile Food Establishments - Repealed 

§§11-50-85 to 11- 50-94 Repea l ed 

Subchapter 9 Temporary Food Establishments 
Repealed 

§§11-50-95 to . 11-50-104 Repealed 

Historical Note : Chapter 11-50, Hawaii Administrative 
Rules is based substantially on Chapter 11-12 , Food 
Establishment Sanitation, Department of ' Health, State of 
Hawaii . [Eff 11/22/96 ; comp 3/15/99 ; comp 6/15/2007 ; 
R 2/24/14 ] 



SUBCHAPTER 1 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

§11-50-1 Purpose . The purpose of this chapter is to 
provide minimum requirements for the protection of the 
life, health, safety, and welfare of the general public . 

(1) 	 This chapter applies to all food establishments, 
or portions thereof, used, designed, or intended 
to be used as a food establishment or food 
operation within the State; 

(2) 	 The minimum requirements established herein shall 
not be construed as lowering the standards 
established by local ordinances or rules; 

(3) 	 Whenever local requirements contain more 
stringent provisions than a ny of the minimum 
requirements of this chapter, the more stringent 
requirements shall govern; and 

(4) 	 No ordinance, rules , ruling , or decision of any 
municipal body or officer of authority of any 
county shall r epeal, amend, modify, or dispense 
with any of the minimum requirements provided in 
this chapter . [Eff 2/24/2014; comp 
(Auth: HRS §321- 11) (Imp : HRS §321-11 ) 

§11-50- 2 Definitions. As used in this chapter : 
"Adulterated" has the meaning stated in section 402 of 

the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act . 
"Approved" means acceptable to the department based on 

a determination of conformity with principles, practices, 
and generally recognized standards that protect public 
health . 

"Asymptomatic" means without obvious symptoms; not 
showing or producing indications of a disease or other 
medical condition, such as an individual infected with a 
pathogen but not exhibiting or producing any signs or 
symptoms of vomiting, diarrhea, or jaundice . Asymptomatic 
includes not showing symptoms because symptoms have 
resolved or subsided, or because symptoms never manifested . 

"Aw" means water activity which is a measure of the 
free moisture in a food, is the quotient of the water vapor 
pressure of the substance divided by the vapor pressure of 
pure water at the same temperature, and is indicated by the 
symbol Aw . 



"Balut11 means an embryo inside a fertile egg that has 
been inc ubated for a period sufficient for the embryo t o 
reach a specific stage of development after which it is 
removed from incubation before hatching. 

"Beverage 11 me ans a l iquid for drinking, including 
water. 

"Bottled drinking water 11 means water that is sealed in 
bottles, packages , or other containers and offered for sale 
for human consumption , including bottled mineral water. 

"Casing11 means a tubular container for sausage 
products made of either natural or artificial (synthetic ) 
material. 

"Ce rtification number 11 means a unique combination of 
letters and numbers assigned by a shellfish control 
authority to a molluscan shellfish deal er according to the 
provisions of the National Shellfish Sanitation Program. 

"CFR11 means the [2009] 2013 Code of Federal 
Re gulations. Citations in this chapter to the CFR refer 
sequentially to the Title, Part, and Section numbers, such 
as, 40 CFR 180.194 refers to Title 40, Part 1 80 , Section 
194. 

"CIP11 means cleaned in place by the circulation or 
flowing by mechanical means through a piping system of a 
detergent solution, water rinse, and sanitizing solution 
onto or over equipment surfaces that require cleaning, such 
as the method used, in part, to clean and saniti ze a frozen 
dessert machine. The term does not include the cleaning of 
equipment s uch as band saws , slicers , or mixers that are 
subjected to in-place manua l cleaning without the use of a 
CIP system . 

"Color additive 11 has the meaning stated in the Federal 
Food, Drug , and Cosmetic Act , section 201(t) and 21 CFR 
70. 3 (f). 

"Commingle 11 means: 
(1) 	 To combine shellstock harvested on different days 

or from different growing areas as identified on 
the tag or label; or 

(2) 	 To combine shucked shellfish from containers with 
different container codes or different shucking 
dates . 

"Comminuted11 means reduced in size by methods 
including chopping, flaking, grinding, or mincing. 
Comminuted includes fish or meat products that are reduced 
in size and restructured or reformulated such as gefilte 
fish, gyros , ground beef, and sausage; a nd a mixture of two 



or more types of meat that have been reduced in size and 
combined, such as sausages made from two or more meats . 

"Conditional employee" means a potenti~l food employee 
to whom a job offer is made, conditional on responses to 
subsequent medical questions or examinations designed to 
identify potential food employees who may be suffering from 
a disease that can be transmitted through food and done in 
compliance with Title 1 of the Americans with Disabilities 
Act of 1990 . 

"Confirmed disease outbreak" means a foodborne 
disease outbreak in which laboratory analysis of 
appropriate specimens identifies a causative agent and 
epidemiological analysis implicates the food as the source 
of the illness . 

"Consumer" means a person who is a member of the 
public, takes possession of food, is not functioning in the 
capacity of an operator of a food establishment or food 
processing plant, and does not offer the food for resale . 

"Corrosion-resistant material" means a material that 
maintains acceptable surface cleanability characteristics 
under prolonged influence of the food to be contacted, the 
normal use of cleaning compounds and sanitizing solutions , 
and other condi tions of the use environment . 

"Counter-mounted equipment" means equipment t hat is 
not portable and is designed to be mounted off the floor on 
a table, counter, or shelf . 

"Critical control point11 means a point or procedure in 
a specific food system where loss of control may result in 
an unacceptable heal th risk . 

"Critical limit" means the maximum or minimum value to 
which a physical, biological, or chemical parameter must be 
controlled at a critical control point to minimize the risk 
that the identified food safety hazard may occur . 

"Cut leafy greens 11 means fresh leafy greens whose 
leaves have been cut, shredded, sliced, chopped, or torn . 
The term "leafy greens" includes iceberg lettuce, romaine 
lettuce, leaf lettuce, butter lettuce, baby leaf lettuce 
(i . e . , immature lettuce or l eafy greens), escarole, endive, 
spring mix, spinach, cabbage, kale, arugula, and chard . 
The term "leafy greens 11 does not include herbs such as 
cilantro or parsley . 

"Dealer" means a person who is aut horized by a 
shellfish control authority for the activities of 
shellstock shipper, shucker-packer , repacker, reshipper, or 
depuration processor of molluscan shellfish according to 



the provisions of the National Shellfish Sanitation 
Program. 

"Department" means the department of health, State of 
Hawaii . 

"Director" means the director of health of the 
department of health, State of Hawaii , or an authorized 
representative. 

"Disclosure" mea ns a written statement that clearly 
identifies the animal-derived foods which are , or can be 
ordered, raw, undercooked, or without otherwise being 
processed to eliminate pathogens, or items that contain an 
ingredient that is raw, undercooked, or without otherwise 
being processed to eliminate pathogens . 

"Drinking water" means water that meets criteria as 
specified in 40 CFR 141, entitl ed "National primary 
drinking water regulations" , and is traditionally known as 
"potable water" . Drinking water includes the term " water 11 

except where the term used connotes t hat the wat er i s not 
potable, such as "boiler water" , "mop water", "rainwater", 
"wastewater", and "nondrinking" water . 

"Dry storage area" means a room or area designated for 
the storage of packaged or containerized bul k food that is 
not potentially hazardous (time/temperature control for 
safety food) and dry goods such as single-service items . 

"Easily cleanable" means a characterist ic of a surface 
that: 

(1) 	 Allows effective removal of soil by norma l 
cleaning methods; 

(2) 	 Is dependent on the materiai, design, 
construction , and installation of the surface; 
and 

(3) 	 Varies with the likelihood of the surface ' s role 
in introducing pathogenic or toxigenic agents or 
other contaminants into food based on the 
surface's approved placement, purpose, and use . 

(4) 	 Easily cleanable includes a tiered application of 
the criteria that qualify the surface as easily 
cleanable as specified in paragraph (1) to 
diffe rent situati ons in which varying degrees of 
cleanability are required such as : 
(A) 	 The appropriateness of stainless steel for 

a food preparation surface as opposed to 
the lack of need for stainless steel to be 
u sed for floors or for tables used for 
consumer dining; or 



(B) 	 The need for a different degree of 
cleanability for a utilitarian attachment 
or accessory in the kitchen as opposed to a 
decorative attachment or accessory in the 
consumer dining area . 

["Easily movableu means : 
(1) 	 Portable; mounted on ca sters , gliders, or 

rollers; or provided with a mechanical means to 
safely tilt a unit of equipment for cleaning ; and 

(2) 	 Having no utility connection, a utility 
connection that disconnects quickly, or a 
flexible utility connection line of sufficient 
length to allow the equipment to be moved for 
cleaning of the equipment and adjacent area .] 

"Eggu means the shell egg of avian species such as 
chicken , duck, goose , guinea , quail, ratites , or turkey. 
[(l)J Egg does not include : 

[(A) ] 	 ill A balut; 
[( B)J 	 ill The egg of reptile species such as 

a lligator; or 
((C)] 	ill An egg product. 

"Egg productu means all , or a portion of, the contents 
found inside eggs separated from the shell and pasteurized 
in a food processing plant, with or without added 
ingredients , intended for human consumption, such as dried, 
frozen, or liquid eggs. The term does not include food 
which contains eggs only in a relatively s mall proportion 
s uch as cake mixes . 

"Employeeu means the (permit holder ,] owner or 
operator , person i n charge , food employee, person having 
supervisory or management duties, person on the payroll , 
family member , volunteer, person performing work under 
contractual agreement , or other person working in a food 
establishment . 

("Enterohemorrhagic Escherichia Colin (EHEC) means E. 
Coli which cause hemorrhagic colitis, meaning bleeding 
enterically or bleeding from the intestine . The term is 
typically used in association with E . Coli that has the 
capacity to produce Shiga toxins and to cause attaching and 
effacing lesions in the intestine . EHEC is a subset of 
STEC, whose members produce additional virulence factors. 
Infections with EHEC may be asymptomatic but are 
classically associated with bloody diarrhea (hemorrhagic 
colitis) and hemolytic uremic syndrome (HUS) or thrombotic 
thrombocytopenic purpura (TTP) . Examples of serotypes of 
EHEC include: E. Coli 0157 : H7; E. Coli 0157 : NM; E. Coli 



026:Hll; E . Coli 0145 : NM; E. Coli 0103:H2; or E . Coli 
0111 : NM . See also Shiga toxin-producing E . Coli . ] 

"EPA" means the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. 
"Equipment" means an article that is used in the 

operation of a food establishment such as a freezer, 
grinder, hood , ice maker, meat block, mixer, oven , reach-in 
refrigerator , scale , sink, slicer, stove, table , 
temperature measuring device for ambient air , vending 
machine, or warewashing machine. ["Equipment"] This does 
not include apparatuses used for handling or storing large 
quantities of packaged foods that are received from a 
supplier in a cased or overwrapped lot, such as hand 
trucks , forklifts , dollies, pallets, racks, and skids. 

"Exclude" means to prevent a person from working as an 
employee in a food es t ablishment or entering a food 
establishment as an employee. 

"FDA" means the U.S. Food and Drug Administration. 
"Fish" means fresh or saltwater finfish, crustaceans 

and other forms of aquatic life (including all igator , frog, 
aquatic turtle, jellyfish , sea cucumber, and sea urchin and 
the roe of such animals) other than birds or mammals , and 
all mollusks, if such animal life is intended for human 
consumption. Fish includes an edible human food product 
derived in whole or in part from fish , including fish that 
have been p rocessed in any manner . 

"Food" means a raw, cooked, or processed edible 
substance , ice , beverage, or ingredient used or intended 
for use or for sale in whole or in part for human 
consumption, or chewing gum. 

"Food additive" has the meaning stated in the Federal 
Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, section 20l(s) a nd 21 CFR 
1 70.3(e)(l) . 

"Food-contact surface" means : 
(1) 	 A surface of equipment or a utensil with which 

food normally comes into contact ; or 
(2) 	 A surface of equipment or a utensil from which 

food may drain, drip , or spl ash: 
(A) 	 I n to a food; or 
(B) 	 Onto a surface normally in contact with 

food . 
"Food employee" means an individual working with 

unpackaged food, food equipment or utensils, or food
contact surfaces . 

"Food establishment" means : 
(1) 	 Any place or portion thereof, maintained , used, 

or operated f or the purpose of storing , 



preparing, serving, manufacturing , packaging, 
transporting, or otherwise handling food [at the] 
for distribution at retail or wholesale [level;] 
to the public; and 

(2) 	 Any place or portion thereof , used [for cleaning 
food equipment or utensils] in support of 
[another] and in conjunction with any other food 
establishment [; and 

(3) 	 Any operation that is conducted in or in 
conjunction with a mobile, stati onary , temporary , 
or permanent facility or location where food is 
served or prov"ided to the public, with or without 
charge , regardless of whether the food is 
consumed on or off the premises]. 

"Food processing plant" means a commercial operation 
that manufactures , packages, labels, or stores food for 
human consumption, and provides food for sale or 
distribution to other business entities s uc h as f ood 
processing plants or food establ ishments . 

"Game animal" means an animal, the products of which 
a r e food, t h at is not classified as livestock, s heep , 
swine, goat , horse, mule, or other equine in 9 CFR 301 . 2, 
entitled "Definitions", or as poultry, or fish . 

(1) 	 Game animals includes mammals such as reindeer , 
e lk, deer, antelope, water buffalo, bison, 
rabbit, squirrel, opossum, raccoon , nutria , or 
muskrat, and nonaquatic reptiles such as land 
snakes . 

(2) 	 Game animals does not include ratites . 
"General use pesticide" means a pesticide that is not 

classified by EPA for restricted u se as specified in 40 CFR 
152.175, entitled "Pesticides classified for restricted 
use" . 

"Grade A standards" means the requirements of the 
United States Public Health Service/FDA "Grade A 
Pasteurized Milk Ordinance" with which certain fluid and 
dry milk and milk products comply. 

"HACCP" means Hazard Analysis and Critical Control 
Point. 

"HACCP plan" means a written document that delineates 
the formal procedures for following the hazard analysis and 
critical control point principles developed by The National 
Advisory Committee on Microbiological Criteria for Foods. 

"Hand-pounded poi" means a product made from the 
process of manually pulverizing cooked taro with a stone 



implement on a wooden board designed for the purpose of 
pounding poi . 

"Handwashing sinku means a lavatory, a basin or vessel 
for washing, a wash basin, or a plumbing f i x ture especially 
placed for use in personal hygiene and designed for the 
washing of the hands. A handwashing sink includes an 
a u tomatic hand wash i n g facility. 

"Hazardu means a biol ogical , chemical , or physical 
property t hat may cause an unacceptable consumer health 
risk. 

"Health practitioneru means a physician licensed to 
practice medicine , or if allowed by law, a nurse 
practitioner , physician assistant, or similar medical 
professional . 

"Hermetically sealed containeru means a container t hat 
i s designed and intended to be secure against the entry of 
microorganisms and , in the case of low acid canned foods , 
to maintain the commercial sterility of its conte nt s after 
processing. 

"Highly susceptible populationu means persons who are 
more likely than other people in t he general population to 
experience foodborne disease because they are : 

(1) 	 Inununocompromi sed ; preschool age children, or 
o l der adults ; a nd 

(2) 	 Obtaining food at a facility that provides 
servi ces such as custodial care , health care, or 
assisted living, such as a child or adult day 
c are center, kidney dialysis center, hospital or 
nursing home , or nutritional or sociali zation 
ser vices such as a senior center . 

["HRS u means Hawa i i Revised Sta t utes .] 
"Home kitchen" means a kitchen designed for , and 

intended to be used by , the residents of a private home. 
["Homeless" means : 
(1 ) An individual or f amily who lacks a fixed, 

regular , and adequate night-time residence; or 
(2) 	 An indi vidual or family who has a p rimary 

night-time r e s idence t hat is: 
(A) 	 A supervised publicl y or privately operated 

shelter designed to provide temporary 
living accommodations ; 

(B) 	 An institution that provides temporary 
residence f or i ndivi d uals intended to be 
i nstitutionalized; or 



(C) 	 A public or private place not designed for 
or ordinarily used as sleeping 
accommodations for human beings . 

This 	term does not include any individual imprisoned or 
otherwise detained under an Act of Congress or a state 
law . ] 

"Homemade food products" means not potentially 
hazardous food produced or packaged in a home kitchen but 
does not include fermented foods, acidified foods, canned 
or bottled foods (other t han jams and jellies), dri ed meats 
or seafood , low acid canned foods and garlic in oil . 

"HRS" means the Hawaii Revised Statutes . 
"Imminent health hazard" means a significant threat or 

danger to health that is considered to exist when there ·is 
evidence sufficient to show that a product, practice, 
circumstance , or event creates a situation that requi r es 
immediate correction or cessation of. operation to prevent 
injury based on : 

(1) 	 The number of potential injuries; and 
(2) 	 The nature , severity , and duration of the 

anticipated injury . 
"Injected" means manipulating meat to which a solut ion 

has been introduced into its interior by processes that are 
referred to as "injecting", "pump marinat ing", or "stitch 
pumping" . 

"Juice" means the aqueous liquid expresse d or 
extracted from one or more fruits or veget ables, purees of 
the edible portions of one or more fruits or vegetables, or 
any concentrates of such l iquid or puree. The term does 
not include , for purposes of HACCP, liquids, purees, or 
concentrates that are not used as beverages or i ngredients 
of beverages . 

" Kitchenware" means food preparation and storage 
utensils . 

"Law" means applicable local, state, and federal 
statutes , regulations, rules, and ordinances . 

" Linens" means fabric items such as cloth hampers, 
c l oth napkins, table cloths, wiping cloths, and work 
garments including cloth gloves . 

"Major food allergen" : 
(1) 	 Means : 

(A) 	 Milk, egg, fish (such as bass, flounder, 
cod, and including crustacean shell f ish 
such as crab, lobster, or shrimp), tree 
nuts (such as almonds, pecans, or walnuts), 
wheat, peanuts , and soybeans ; or 



(B) 	 A food ingredient that cont ain s protein 
derived from a food as specifi ed in 
subparagraph (A); 

(2) 	 Major food allergen does not inc l ude : 
(A) 	 Any highly refined oil derived from a food 

specified in paragraph (1) (A) and any 
ingredient derived from such highly refined 
oil; or 

(B) 	 Any ingredient that is exempt under the 
petition or notification process specified 
in the Food Allergen Labeling and Consumer 
Protection Act of 2004 (Public Law 
108-282) . 

"Meat" means the flesh of animals used as food 
including the dressed flesh of cattle, s wine, sheep, or 
goats and other edible a n i mals, except f ish, poultry, and 
wild game animals as specified in section 
11-50-31 (g) (1) (C) . 

"Mechanically tenderized" means manipulating mea t with 
deep penetration by processes which may b e r eferred to as 
"blade tenderizing" , "jaccarding", " pinning", "needling", 
or using blades, pins, needles or any mechanical device . 
The term does not i n c lude processes by which solutions are 
injected into me at . 

"Menu change" means a modification of a food 
establi s hme nt's menu that would require a change in the 
food establishment's food preparation methods, e quipment, 
or storage capacity previously approved by the 
[department . ] director. These changes may include but are 
not limited to , the addition of potentially hazardous foods 
to a menu, installation of new food preparation or storage 
equipment, or increasing storage capacity . 

"mg/L" means milligrams per liter, which is t he metric 
equivalent of parts per million (ppm). 

["Mobile food establishment" means a vehicle-mounted 
food establishment capable of being readily moved that 
operates in conjunction with an approved food 
establishment . This includes but is not limited to, 
licensed trailer-type vehicles, push carts, lunchwagons, 
tour cruise boats and peddlers.] 

"Molluscan shellfish" means any edible species of 
fresh or frozen oysters , clams, mussels, and scallops or 
edible portions thereof, except when the scallop product 
consists only of the s hucked adductor muscle . 



"Natural disasteru means any disaster such as a 
tsunami , hurricane, volcanic eruption, typhoon , e a rthqua ke , 
or flood . 

"Non-continuous cookingu means the cooking of food in 
a food establishment using a process in which the initial 
heating of the food is intentionally halted so that it may 
be cooled and held f o r complete cooking at a l ater time 
prior to sale or service . The t erm does not include 
cooking proce dur es that only involve temporarily 
interrupting or slowing an otherwise continuous cooking 
process . 

" Owne ru means a p e rson who has vested rights i n equity 
or at law in the real proper ty or proprietary interests of 
the food establishment o r any part of it . 

" Operato ru means the person responsible for the 
overall management of the food establishment . 

"Packagedu means bottled , canned, cartoned , [securely] 
bagged, or [ s e curely ] wrapped, whethe r pa ckaged i n a food 
establ ishme nt or a food p rocessing plant . The term does 
not include [a wra pper , carry-out box , or other nondurable 
container used to conta i neri ze food with the purpose of 
facilitating food protection during service and receipt of 
the food by the consumer . ) food wrapped or placed in a 
carry-out container to protect it d u r i ng service or 
delivery to t he consumer by a food employee . 

"Permit u means the document is s ued by the [department ] 
direc tor t ha t authorizes a person to operate a food 
establi s hme nt . 

"Permit holderu means the entity that : 
(1) 	 I s legally res ponsible fo r the op eration of the 

food establishment such as the owner , the owner ' s 
agent, o r other person ; and 

(2 ) 	 Possesses a valid permit to operate a food 
es tab l ishment . 

" Personu means an association , a corporation, 
i ndividua l, pa r tnership, other legal entity, government, or 
governmental subdivision o r agency . 

"Personal care itemsu means items or substances that 
may be poisonous , toxic , or a source of contamination and 
are used to ma intain or e nhance a person' s health, hygiene , 
or appearance . Personal care items include medicines; 
first aid supplies ; and other items such as cosmetics, a nd 
toiletries such as toothpaste and mouthwash . 

"Pe r son in chargeu mean s the individual present at a 
foo d establishment who is respons i ble for the operation at 
the time of inspection . 



"pH" means the symbol for the negative logarithm of 
the hydrogen ion concentration, which is a measure of the 
degree of acidity or alkalinity of a solution . Values 
between zero and seven indicate acidity and values between 
seven and fourteen indicate alkalinity . The value for pure 
distilled water is seven, which is considered neutral. 

"PHF" means potentially hazardous food . 
"Physical facilities" means the structure and interior 

surfaces of a food establishment including accessories such 
as soap and towel dispensers a nd attachments such as light 
fixtures and heating or air conditioning system vents . 

"Plumbing fixture" means a receptacle or device that : 
(1) 	 Is permanently or temporarily connected to the 

water distribution system of the premises and 
demands a s upply of water from the system; or 

(2) 	 Discharges used water, waste materi als, or sewage 
directly or indirectly to the drainage system of 
the premises. 

" Plumbing system" means the water supply and 
distribution pipes; plumbing fixtures and traps; soil, 
waste , and vent pipes ; sanitary and stor m sewers and 
building drains, including their respective connections, 
devices, and appurtenances within the premises; and water
treating equipment . 

"Poisonous or toxic materials" means substance s that 
are not intended for ingestion and are included in four 
categories : 

(1) 	 Cleaners and sanitizers , which incl ude cleaning 
and sanitizing agents and agent s such as 
caustics, acids, drying agents, polishes, and 
other chemicals; 

(2) 	 Pesticides, except sanitizers , which incl ude 
substances s uch as insecticides and rodenticides; 

(3) 	 Substances necessary for the operat ion and 
maintenance of the establishment such as nonfood 
grade lubricants and personal care items that may 
be deleterious to health ; and 

(4) 	 Substances that are not necessary for the 
operation and maintenance of the establishment 
and are on the premises for retail sale, such as 
petroleum products and paints . 

" Potentially hazardous food (time/tempe rature cont r ol 
for safety food)" means a food that requires 
time/temperature c ontrol for safety (TCS) to limit 
pathogenic microorganism growth or toxin formation . 

(1) 	 Potentially hazardous food includes: 



(A) 	 An animal food that is raw or heat treated; 
a plant food that is heat treated or 
consists of raw seed sprouts , cut melons , 
cut leafy greens, cut tomatoes or mixtures 
of cut tomatoes that are not modified i n a 
way so that they are unable to support 
pathogenic microorganism growth or toxin 
formation , or garlic-in-oil mixtures that 
are not modified in a way so that they are 
unable to support pathogenic microorganism 
growth or toxin formation; and 

(Bl 	 Except as specified in paragraph (2) (D), a 
food that because of the interaction of its 
Aw and pH values is designated as Product 
Assessment Required (PA) in Table 2-1 or 
Table 2-2 : 

Table 2-1 Interaction of pH and Aw for control of spores in 
food heat-treated to destroy vegetative cells and 
subsequently packaged 

A,., values 
pH values 

4 . 6 or less > 4 . 6 to 5 . 6 > 5.6 

~0.92 
non- PHF/nou-

TCS food 
non- PHF/non-

TCS food 
non-PHF/non-

TCS food 

>0.92 to 0.95 
non- PHF/non-

TCS food 
non-PHF/non-

TCS food 
PA 

>0 . 95 
non-PHF/non-

TCS food 
PA PA 

Table 2-2 Interaction of pH and Aw for control of 
vegetative cells and spores in food not heat-treated or 
heat- treated but not packaged 

A,., values 
pH values 

< 4.2 4.2 to 4 . 6 > 4 . 6 to 5.0 > 5.0 

<0 . 88 
non-PHF/non-

TCS food 
non-PHF/non-

TCS food 
non-PHF/non-

TCS food 
non-PHF/non-

TCS food 

0.88 to 
0.90 

non-PHF/non-
TCS food 

non-PHF/non-
TCS food 

non- PHF/non-
TCS food 

PA 

>0.90 to 
0 . 92 

non-PHF/non-
TCS food 

non-PHF/non-
TCS food 

PA PA 

>0.92 
non-PHF/non-

TCS food 
PA PA PA 



(2) 	 Potentially hazardous food does not include : 
(A) 	 An air-cooled hard-boiled egg with shell 

intact, or an egg with shell intact that is 
not hard-boiled, but has been pasteurized 
to destroy all viable salmonellae; 

(B) 	 A food in an unopened hermetically sealed 
container that is commercially processed to 
achieve and maintain commercial sterility 
under conditions of non-refrigerated 
storage and distribution; 

(C) 	 A food that because of its pH or Aw value, 
or interaction of Aw and pH values , is 
designated as a non-PHF/non-TCS food in 
Table 2-1 or Table 2-2 of this definition; 

(D) 	 A food that is designated as Product 
Assessment Required (PA) in Table 2-1 or 
Table 2-2 of this definition and has 
undergone a Product Assessment showing that 
the growth or toxin formation of pathogenic 
microorganisms that are reasonably likely 
to occur i n that food is precluded due to : 
(i) 	 Intrinsic factors including added or 

natural c haracteristics of t he food 
such as preservatives, 
antimicrobials, hurnectants, 
acidulants, or nutrients ; 

(ii) 	 Extrinsic factors including 
envir onmental or operational factors 
that affect the food such as 
packaging, modified atmosphere such 
as reduced oxygen packaging, shelf 
life and use, or temperature range of 
storage and use; or 

(iii) A combination of intrinsic and 
extrinsi c factors; or 

(E) 	 A food that does not support the growth or 
toxin formation of pathogenic 
microorganisms in accordance with one of 
the paragraph (2) (A}, (2) (B), (2) (C), or 
(2) (D) of this definition even though the 
food may contain a pathogenic microorganism 
or chemical or physical contaminant at a 
level sufficient to cause illness or 
injury . 

"Poultry" means : 



(1) 	 Any domesticated bird (chickens, turkeys, ducks, 
geese , guineas, ratites, or squabs) , whether l ive 
or dead, as defined in 9 CFR 381 . 1; and 

(2) 	 Any migratory waterfowl or game bird, pheasant, 
partridge, quail , grouse , or p igeon, whether live 
or dead, as defined in 9 CFR 362 . 1 . 

"Premises" means: 
(1) 	 The physical facility, its contents, and the 

contiguous land or property under the control of 
the [permit holder;] owner or operator; or 

(2) 	 The physical facility, its contents, and the land 
or property not described in paragraph (1) if its 
facilities and contents are under the control of 
the [permit holder] owner or operator and may 
impact food establishment personnel, facilities, 
or operations, a nd a food est abl ishment is only 
one component of a larger operation such as a 
health care facility, hotel, motel, school, 
recreational camp, or prison. 

"Primal cut" means a basic major cut into which 
carcasses and sides of meat are separated, such as a beef 
round, pork loin, lamb flank, or veal breast . 

"Public water system" has ~he meaning stated in 40 CFR 
1 41, entitled "National primary drinking water 
regulations" . 

" Ratite " means a flightless bird such as an emu, 
ostrich, or rhea. 

"Reduced oxygen packaging": 
(1) 	 Means: 

(A) 	 The reduction of the amount of oxygen in a 
package by removing oxygen; displacing 
oxygen and replacing it with another gas or 
combination of gases; or otherwise 
controlling the oxygen content to a level 
below that normally found in the atmosphere 
(approximately twenty-one per cent at sea 
level); and 

(B) 	 A process as specified i n subparagraph (A) 
that involves a food for which the hazards 
Clostridium botulinum or Listeria 
monocytogenes require control in the final 
packaged form; 

(2) 	 Reduced oxygen packaging includes : 
(A) 	 Vacuum packaging, in which air is removed 

from a package of food and the package is 



hermetically sealed so that a vacuum 
remains inside the package; 

(B) 	 Modified atmosphere packaging, in which the 
atmosphere of a package of food is modified 
so t hat its composition is different from 
air but the atmosphere may change over time 
due to the permeability of the packaging 
material or the respiration of the food. 
Modified atmosphere packaging includes 
reduction in the proportion of oxygen, 
tota l replacement of oxygen, or an increase 
in the proportion of other gases such as 
carbon dioxide or nitrogen ; 

(C) 	 Controlled atmosphere packaging, in which 
the atmosphere of a package of food is 
modified so that until the package is 
opened , its composition is different from 
air , and continuous control of that 
atmosphere is maintained, such as by using 
oxygen scavengers or a combination of total 
replacement of oxygen, nonrespiring food, 
and impermeable packaging material ; 

(D) 	 Cook chill packaging, i n which cooked food 
is hot filled into impermeable bags which 
have the air expelled and are then sealed 
or crimped c l osed . The bagged food is 
rapidly chil l ed and refrigerated at 
temperatur es that inhibit the growth of 
psychrotrophic pathogens; or 

(E) 	 Sous vide packaging , in which raw or 
partially cooke d food is placed in a 
hermetically sealed , impermeable bag, 
cooked in the bag , rapidly chilled, and 
refrigerated at temperatures that inhibit 
the growth of psychrotrophic pathogens . 

"Refuse" means solid waste not car ried by water 
through the sewage system . 

"Regulatory authority" means the l ocal, state , or 
federal e nforcement body or authorized representative 
having jurisdiction over the food establishment. 

"Reminder" means a written statement concerning the 
health risk of consuming animal foods raw , undercooked, or 
without otherwise being processed to elimi nate pathogens. 

"Re-service" means the transfer of food that is unused 
and returned by a consumer after being served or sold and 
in t he possession of the consumer, to another person . 



"Restrictu means to limit the activities of a food 
employee so that there is no risk of transmitting a disease 
that 	is transmissible through food and the food employee 
does 	not work with exposed food, clean equipment, utensils, 
linens, or unwrapped single-service or single-use articles . 

"Restricted eggu means any check, dirty egg, incubator 
reject, inedible, leaker, or loss as defined in 9 CFR 590. 

"Restricted use pesticideu means a pesticide product 
that contains the active ingredients specified in 40 CFR 
152 . 175 , entitled "Pesticides classified for restri cted 
useu and that is limited to use by or under the direct 
supervision of a certified applicator . 

"Risk" means the likelihood that an adverse health 
effect will occur within a population as a result of a 
hazard in a food . 

" Safe material" means : 
(1) 	 An article manufactured from or composed of 

materials that may not reasonably be expected to 
result, directly or indirectl y, in the i r becoming 
a component or otherwise affecting the 
characte ristics of any food; 

(2) 	 An additive that is used as specified in section 
109 of the FedAral Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act; 
or 

(3) 	 Other materials that are not additives and that 
are used in conformity with applicable 
regulations of the Food and Drug Admi nistrat ion . 

"Sanitizationu means the application of cumulative 
heat or chemicals on cleaned food-contact surfaces that, 
when evaluated for efficacy, is suf ficient to yield a 
reduction of five logs, which is equal to a 99 . 999 p e r cent 
reduction, of representative disease microorganisms of 
public health importance . 

"Sealed" means free of cracks or othe r ope nings that 
allow the entry or passage of moisture . 

"Se rvice animalu means an animal that meets the 
criteria as specified in 28 CFR 36, entitled 
"Nondiscrimination on the basis of disability in public 
places and commercial facilitiesu . 

"Servicing areau means an operating base locat ion to 
which a mobile food establishment or transport at i on vehicle 
returns regularly for such things as vehicle and e quipme nt 
cleaning, discharging liquid or solid wastes, refilling 
water tanks and ice bins, and boarding food . 



"Sewagen means liquid waste containing animal or 
vegetable matter in suspension or solution and may include 
liqui ds containing chemicals in solution . 

"Shellf ish control authorityn means a state, federa l, 
foreign, tribal, or other government entity legally 
responsible for administering a program that includes 
c ertification of molluscan shellfish harvesters and dealers 
for interstate commerce. 

"Shellstockn means raw, in-shell molluscan shellfish . 
"Shiga toxin-producing Escherichia Colin (STEC) means 

any E. Coli capable of producing Shiga toxins [(also called 
verocytotoxins o r "Shiga-liken toxins) . ] (also called 
verocytotoxins). STEC infections can be asymptomatic or may 
result in a spectrum of illness ranging from mi l d non
bloody diarrhea, to hemorrhagic colitis (i . e . , blood 
diarrhea), to hemolytic uremic syndrome (HUS - a type of 
kidney failure). Examples of serotypes of STEC include 
[both 0157 and non-0157 E . Coli . Also see 
Enterohemorrhagic Escherichia Coli.] E . coli 0157 : H7; 
E . coli 0157 : NM; E . coli 026 : Hll; E . coli 0145:NM; E . coli 
0103 : H2; and E . coli 0111 : NM . STEC are sometimes referred 
to as VTEC (verocytotoxigenic E . coli) or as EHEC 
(Enterohemorrhagic E . coli) . EHEC are a subset of STEC of 
which can cause hemorrhagic colitis or HUS . 

"Shucked shel lfishn means molluscan she llfish that 
have one or both shell s removed. 

"Single-servi ce articlesn means tableware , carry-out 
utens ils, and other ite ms s uch as bags, conta iners , 
placemats, stirrers , straws , toothpicks, and wrappers t hat 
are designed and constructed fo r one time, one person use 
after which they are intended for discard. 

"Si ngle -use articlesn means utensil s and bulk food 
containers designed and constructed to be used once and 
discarded. Single-use articles include items such as wax 
paper, butcher paper, plastic wrap, formed aluminum food 
containers, jars, plastic tubs or buckets, bread wrappers , 
pickle barrels, ketchup bottles, and number 10 cans which 
do not meet the materials, durability, strength, and 
c leanability specifications in sections 11-50-45(a) and 
11- 50-46(a) and (c) for multiuse utensils . 

" Slackingn means the process of moderating the 
temperature of a food such as allowing a food to gradually 
increase from a temperature of minus ten degrees Fahrenheit 
to twenty-five degrees Fahrenheit in preparation fo r deep
fat frying or to facilitate even heat penetration during 
the cooking of previously block-frozen food such as shrimp . 



"Smooth" means : 
(1) 	 A food-contact surface having a surface free of 

pits and inclusions with a cleanability equal to 
or exceeding that of (100 grit) number 3 
stainless steel; 

(2) 	 A nonfood-contact surface of equipment having a 
s urface equal to that of conunercial grade hot
rolled steel free of visible scale; and 

(3) 	 A floor, wall , or ceiling having an even or level 
surface with no roughness or projections that 
renders it difficult to clean. 

"Special event" means a planned activity where food is 
distributed to the public with or without charge at a 
single specified location held indoors or outdoors , in 
public or privately owned or leased premises, and may 
include a sporting event , carnival , fairs, farmer's 
markets, public exhibition, festival, religious 
organization function, parade or other similar gathering . 

" State" means the State of Hawaii . 
"Support kitchen" means a food est ablishment that 

provides facilities or services in support of another food 
establishment for cleaning , storage , food preparation, 
cooking, cooling, reheating, servicing water supply, or 
wastewater disposal. A private home kitchen shall not be 
used as an approved support kitchen . 

"Tableware" means eating, drinking, and serving 
utensils for table use such as flatware includi ng forks , 
knives , and spoons ; hollowware including bowls, cups, 
serving dishes, and tumblers ; and plates . 

"TCS food" means time/temperature control for safety 
food . 

"Te mperature measuring device" means a thermometer, 
thermocouple, thermistor, or other device that indi cates 
t he temperature of food , air , or water. 

["Temporary food establishment" means any food 
establishment which operates at a fixed l ocation fo r a 
limited period of time and does not exceed twenty days i n 
any one hundred twenty day period and does not sell 
products to other food establishments . ) 

"USDA" means the U. S. Department o f Agriculture . 
"Utensil" means a food-contact implement or container 

used in the storage , preparation, transportation, 
dispensing, sale , or service of food, such as kitchenware 
or tableware that is multiuse, single-service, or single
use; gloves used in contact with food; temperature sensing 
probes of food temperature measuring devices; and probe



t ype price or identification tags used in contact with 
food . 

"Variance" means a written document i ssued by the 
[department] director that authorizes a modification or 
waiver of one or more requirements of this chapter if, in 
the opinion of the [department,] director , a health hazard 
or nui sance will not result from the modification or 
waiver . 

" Vending machine" means a self-service device t hat, 
upon insertion of a coin, paper currency, token, card, or 
key, or by optional manual operation , dispenses unit 
servings of food in bulk or in packages without the 
necessity of replenishing the device between each vending 
operation . 

" Vending machine location" means t he room, enclosure, 
space , or area where one or more vending machines are 
installed and operated and includes the storage areas and 
areas on the premises that are used to service and maintain 
the vending machines . 

"Water activity" means the measure of the free 
moisture in a food, is the quotient of the water vapor 
pressure of the substance divided by the vapor pressure of 
pure water at Lhe same temperature , and is indicated by the 
symbol Aw , 

"Whole- muscle , intact beef" means whole muscle beef 
that is not injected, mechanically tenderized, 
reconstructed, or scored and marinated , from which beef 
steaks may be cut . 

"Warewashing" means t he cleaning and saniti zing of 
utensils and food-contact surfaces of equipment . [Eff 
2/24/2014; am and comp ] (Auth : HRS §321
11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 

§11-50-3 Permits[.] , special events, homemade food 
products and hand-pounded poi, and exemptions . (a) [A] 
Permits . No person may [not] operate a food establishment 
without a valid permit [to operate] issued by the 
[department . ] director, which shall remain valid for one 
year from the date of issuance unless suspended by the 
director, after which it shall become void unless renewed 
in accordance with section 11-50-4,except as otherwise 
provided in this section . [A permit shall be valid for one 
year after the date of issuance as i ndicated by the 
expiration date printed on the permit, aft er which t he 
permit becomes void. 



(b) To qualify for a permit, an appl icant shall: 
( 1) Be an owner of the food establishment or an 

officer of the legal ownership ; 
(2) Acknowledge that application for an issuance of a 

permit is in agreement to be familiar with and 
operate in compliance with the requirements of 
the c hapter ; 

(3) As specified in section 11-50-B(c), agree to 
al l ow access to the food es t ablishment and to 
provide any requested information reasonably 
necessary to d etermine compliance with this 
chapter ; and 

( 4) Pay the applicable permit f e es at the time the 
application is submit ted . ] 

(b) Special events . Any person who intends to 
operate a 
event may 

ill 

ill 

ill 

ill 

food establishment in conjunction with a special 
apply for a special e v ent permit: 

A special event permit shall not be issued until 
the applicant has submitted documents and 
information i n accordance with, and otherwise 
conforms to, the requirements of section 11-50-4 . 
The director may issue a special event permit t o 
operate a food establishment in conjunct.ion with 
a special event only i f the documents and other 
information provided pursuant to section 11-50-4, 
or otherwise r equested by the dire c t or, are 
consistent with the protection of public health 
and the environmen t . 
The director may attach special conditions to any 
special event permit that , in t h e director's 
discretion, is reasonably necessary to mitigate 
any potential impact on public heal t h or the 
environment associ ated with the special event . 
Any violation of a special condition shall be 
enforceable as a violation of this chapter . 
A speci al event permit shal l be valid only for 
the particular dates of operat ion, or period(s) 
of operation, ind icated on the special event 
permit and in no event shall the particular dates 
or period(s)of approved operation cumulatively 
exceed thirty days . 
Any person who operates a food establishment in 
conjunction with a special event shall comply 
with all the requirements of this chapter except 
sections 11- 50-70 , 11 - 50- 71 , 11- 50- 72(d)-(k), 11
50-73 and 11-50-74. 



J.£.L Homemade food products and hand-pounded poi . Any . 
person who operates a food establ ishment that produces or 
packages only homemade food products in a home kitchen or 
only produces hand-pounded poi shall be exempt from the 
provisions of this chapter, except that they shall remain 
subject to inspection in accordance with section 11-50-8, 
the provisions of sections 11-50-10 , 11-50-11 , 11-50-14, 
and shall adhere to the fo l lowing special conditions, 
violations of which shall constitut e violations of this 
chapter:

ill 	 Obtain food safety certification in accordance 
with section ll-50-20(c); 

Ql 	 Ensure that a handwashing sink with appropriate 
cleaning compound is avai l able at all times 
during food preparation activities a nd is used to 
maint ain c l eanliness pursuant to secti ons 11-50
22 (b) and (c) ;

ill Label all food in accordance with the 
requirements of section ll-50-35(c); and 

ill Distribute food products only directly to the 
consumer . 

[(c) A permit is not required for:] (d) Exemptions . 
The following food establishments shal l be exempt from the 
provis i ons of this chapter e xcept that they shal l remain 
subject to inspection i n accordance with section 11-50-8 , 
the provisions of sections 11-50 - 1 0, 11-50-11, and 11-50
14 , and shall adhere to the following special conditions, 
violations of which shall constitute violations o·f this 
chapter: 

( 1 ) 	 [An establishment that offers only prepackaged 
foods that are not potentially hazardous food 
(time/temperature control for safety food) 
manufactured and packaged in an approved food 
establishment;) A food establishment that is 
inspected by another federal , state or county 
regulatory agency, provided that the agency has 
enter ed i nto a me morandum of understanding or a 
memorandum of agreement with the director and the 
agency ma intains regulatory responsib i lity for 
the establishment; 

(2) 	 [A food establishment offers for sale only whole , 
uncut fresh fruits a n d vegetables; ) A food 
establishment that sells or otherwise distributes 
only prepackaged foods that are not potentially 
hazardous food (time/temperature control for 
safety food) ma nufactured and packaged in a food 



establishment permitted by the director or 
otherwise approved by an equivalent agency in 
another jurisdiction; 

(3) 	 [A kitchen in a private home , operating as a 
small family child-care provider, or a bed-and
breakfast operation that prepares and offers only 
not potentially hazardous food (time/temperature 
control for safety food) to guests if the home is 
owner occupied , the number of guests does not 
exceed six , and the consumer is informed by 
statements contained in publ i shed advertisements , 
mailed brochures, and placards posted at the 
registration area that the food is prepared in a 
kitchen that is not regulated and inspected by 
the department ; 

(4) 	 A food establishment that is inspected by 
another federal or Hawaii state or county 
regulatory agency, provided that a memorandum of 
understanding or a memorandum of agreement has 
been filed with the department and the agency 
assumes regul atory responsibility for the 
establishment; 

(5) A producer of hand- pounded poi, where the 
producer : 

(A) 	 Sells hand-pounded poi directly to the 
consumer ; 

(B) 	 Has available a permanent or temporary 
hand-wash sink and adequate soap and 
disp osable hand towels supplied , within ten 
feet of the operating area; 

(C) 	 Labe l s each container of poi with the name 
and contact information of t he producer ; 

(D) 	 Labels each container of poi with a 
prominen t and clear label stating that 
"This hand-pounded poi was not prepared in 
a Department of Health approved facility , 
and consuming this product may incr ease 
your risk of contracting a foodborne 
illnessn ; 

(E) 	 Attends a department of health approved 
food safety workshop and pass the food 
safety certifi cation exam; 

(F) 	 Complies with any and a l l other measures 
aut horized by the director of health t o 
protect public health and safety with 
respect to hand-pounded poi; 



(6)) A food establishment that [offers] sells or 
otherwise distributes only pre-packaged frozen 
confections produced in [an approved]~ food 
establishment permitted by the department or 
otherwise approved by an equivalent agency in 
another jurisdiction; [or food processing plant;] 

[(7)] ill A food establishment that [offers] sells or 
otherwise distributes only not potentially hazardous 
hot beverages (such as coffee or hot tea) served 
directly into sanitary single-service articles; and 
[(8) A establishment that offers only dry, not 

potentially hazardous, not ready-to-eat foods 
(such as dry beans, dry grains, coffee beans, tea 
leaves, or herbs for tea); or 

(9) 	 Vending machines dispensing on ly pre-packaged 
food manufactured a nd packaged in an approved 
f ood establishment .]

ill 	 A home kitchen operated by a child-care provider 
where food is served to no more than twelve 
children, or a home kitchen operated by an adult 
care provider or bed- and-breakfast where food is 
served to no more than six guests, so long as the 
person in charge obtain~ food protection 
certification pursuant to section 11-50-20(c), 
food operations are limited to those risk 
categories enumerated in section 11-50-7(e) (1) 
(4), and a placard remains posted at the 
registration area notifying any consumer that the 
food served is "Made in a home kitchen not 
routinely inspected by the Department of Healthn. 
[Eff 2/24/2014; am and comp 
{Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 

§11-50-4 Permit application, renewal and supporting 
documentation. {a) A permit to operate a food 
establishment, and any renewal of a permit to operate a 
food establishment, may [shall not] be issued [unless and 
until] after the department receives a complete appl i cation 
on the forms provided by the department, as well as all 
necessary plans, menus, operating procedures, the required 
fee , other informa tion deemed necessary to access the 
operations of the proposed food establishment , and the 
preoperational inspection(s) speci fied in subsection (j) 
has been completed[ . ], if required by the department . 



(b) For any new permit, or [converted existing food 
establishments,] the renewal of an existing permit, the 
a pplicant shall submit to the department : 

(1) 	 A completed application for food establishment 
permit[;] or appli cation for renewal; 

(2) 	 The plans and specifications of the food 
establishment with an application for plan 
review, if requested by the department; 

(3) 	 A list of food items to be offered by the food 
establishment[;] ,if requested by the department; 

(4) 	 A HACCP planL if requested by the department; 
[and] 

(5) 	 Other information that may be required by the 
department to assure proper handling of food . Any 
documents detailing significant operational or 
menu changes anticipated or which have a l ready 
occurred; 

ill 	 Any documents detailing the operational agreement 
between a food establishment and a support 
kitchen, if applicable; and 

J_JJ__ 	 Any other information that may be r e quested by 
the department to ensure proper food handling. 

[(c) For existing food establishments, the 
department may renew a permit after : 

(1) 	 A statement for renewal is submitted; 
(2) 	 The required fee is submitted ; and 
(3) 	 If a significant operational or menu change has 

occurred, an inspection shows that the 
establishment is in compliance wi th this chapter . 

(d)J E For changes of ownership of food 
establishments , the [department] director may issue a 
permit to a new owner of an existing establishment after : 

(1) 	 A completed application for food establishment is 
submitted; 

(2) 	 The required fee is submitted; and 
(3) 	 An inspection shows that the establishment is in 

compliance with this chapter . 
[(e)J ~ The department [shall not] may decl i ne to 

act upon [nor consider] any incomplete application [for a 
food establi shmen t permit . ]~ An application shall be 
deemed complete only when al l required and requested 
information, inc luding the appl i cation form, plans, 
specifications, and other information have b e en [timely] 
submitted . 

[(f)] M Every application shall b e signed .e.y a 
person with authority to represent the food establishment ' s 



owner or operator and shall constitute an a ckn owledgment 
and agreement, that the applicant, and those the applicant 
represents, will comply with all t he t erms and conditions 
of this chapter . 

[(g)] ill The d e partment may require the submiss i on 
of additional information afte r the applica tion has been 
[submitted,] submitted and may [ensure that , if an 
application is incomplete or otherwise deficient, ] suspend 
t he p rocessing of the application [shall not b e completed ] 
until such time as t he applicant has supplied all required 
i nfor mation or otherwise corre cted the deficiency . 

[(h)J .i9l The failure of the department to act on a 
completed application within t hirty days of the receipt of 
t he application shall be d eemed an approval of the 
application; provide d tha t the applicant [acts 
consistently] has acted i n good faith with the application 
process and has submitted all requested information. 

[( i)J ~ The department may request t hat an 
application for a food establishment permit be accompanied 
by plans a nd specifications includi ng but n ot limited t o : 

(1) 	 Intended menu ; 
(2) 	 Anticipated volume of food to be stored, 

prepared, and sold or served; 
(3) 	 Proposed l ayout, mech a nica l schematics, 

constructions materi als , and finish schedules ; 
(4) 	 Proposed equipment types, manufactures, mode l 

numbers , locations, d ime nsions, performance 
capacity , and installation specifications ; 

(5) Evidence that standard procedures that ensure 
compliance wi t h the requi rements of this chapter 
are developed or are deemed developed ; 

(6) 	 A wastewater generation statement if the food 
establishment will be connected to a n i ndividual 
wastewater s ystem; 

(7) 	 Wi ndow a nd door schedul es for naturally 
ventilate d food establishments ; and 

(8) 	 Other information t hat may be required by t he 
[director] departme nt for the proper review of 
the proposed construct i on, conversion, or 
modification, and procedures for operating a food 
establishment . 

[(j)] ill Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point 
(HACCP) plan . 

(1) 	 A HACCP plan shall accompany an application for a 
food establishme n t permit when : 



(A) 	 A variance is required as specified in 
section 11-50-33(a) (4) (D) , 11-50-34(j), or 
11-50-4 6 (w) ( 2) ; 

(B) 	 A variance is requested[;] by the 
applicant; 

(C) 	 The [department] director determines that a 
[food preparation or processing me thod 
requires a variance] HACCP plan is needed 
based on information submitted pursuant to 
an application for permit; or 

(D) 	 Circumstances discovered during an 
inspection indi cate t he need for a HACCP 
plan. 

(2) 	 For a food establishment that is required to have 
a HACCP plan , the plans and specifications shall 
indicate : 
(A) 	 A categorization of the types of 

potentially hazardous foods 
(time/temperature control for safety foods) 
that are specified in the menu such as 
soups and sauces , salads , and bulk , solid 
foods such as meat roasts, or of other 
foods that are specified by the 
[department;] director; 

(B) 	 A flow diagram by specific food or risk 
category type identifying critical control 
points and providing information on the 
following : 
(i) 	 Ingredients , materials , and equipment 

used in the preparation of that food ; 
and 

(ii) 	 Formulations or recipes that de l ineate 
methods and procedural control 
measures that address the food safety 
concerns involved ; 

(C) 	 Food employee and supervisory training plan 
that addresses the food safety issues of 
concern; 

(D) 	 A statement of standard operating 
procedures for the plan under consideration 
including clearly identifying : 
(i) Each critical control point; 

(ii) 	 The critical limits for each critical 
control point; 

(iii) 	 The method and frequency for 
monitoring and controlling each 



critical control point by the food 
employee designated by the person in 
charge ; 

(iv) 	 The method and frequency for the 
person in charge to routinely verify 
that the food employee is following 
standard operating procedures and 
monitoring critical control points; 

(v) 	 Action t o be taken by the person in 
charge if the critical limits f or each 
critical control point are not met; 
and 

(vi) 	 Records to be maintained by the person 
in charge to demonstrate that the 
HACCP plan is properly operated and 
managed ; and 

(E) 	 Additional scientific data or other 
information , as required by the 
[department,] director , supporting the 
determination that food safety is not 
compromised by the proposal. 

[(k)] ill The department [shall] may conduct one or 
more prcoperational inspP.r.tions to verify that the food 
establishment is constructed and equipped in accordance 
with the approved plans and approved modifications of those 
plans , has established standard operating procedures as 
specified in [section 11-50-4 (i) (5),] subsection (h) (5) , 
and is in compliance with this c hapter and other laws. 
[Eff 2/24/2014; a m and comp (Auth: HRS 
§321-11) (Imp : HRS . §321-11) 

[§11-50-5 Special provisions regarding temporary food 
establishment . (a) Any person may operate a temporary 
food establishment if : 

(1) 	 A completed appl ication for a temporary food 
establishment permit is submitted to the 
department and processed; 

(2) 	 That person has a temporary food establishment 
permit or a copy of an application recognized as 
a temporary food establishment permit that has 
been approved and signed by the director; 

(3) 	 The t emporary food establishment permit or the 
copy of the signed application is kept a t the 
site of the temporary operation and shall be made 



available to any member of the public upon 
request; and 

(4) 	 The temporary operation does not exceed twenty 
days in any one hundred twenty day period; 

(b) The completed application for a temporary food 
establishment permit shall be submitted at least ten 
business days prior to the opening date of the event . If 
this requirement is not met , the application for permit may 
not be reviewed and processed; 

(c) When a temporary food establishment extends 
operation beyond twenty days in any one hundred twenty day 
period, the requirements for a fixed food establishment 
shall be met and any continued operation without first 
obtaining for a fixed shall constitute the operation of a 
food establishment without a permit and a violation of this 
chapter . 

(d) All persons who intend to operate a temporary 
food establishment shall apply to the department of health 
to allow a hazard evaluation of the product and proposed 
operation (or at least to make an informed decision as to 
whether the food is potentially hazardous food or non
potentially hazardous food) . If the food is non
potentially hdzardous and there are no specific hazards 
which must be addressed, no permit will be required . ] 
[Eff 2/24/2014; R ] (Auth : HRS §321- 11) 
(Imp: HRS §321-11) 

(§11-50-6 Responsibilities of the permit holder . 
Upon acceptance of the permit issued by the department , the 
permit holder in order t o retain the permit shall: 

(1) 	 Post the permit in a location in t he food 
establishment that is conspicuous to consumers; 

(2) 	 Comply with the provisions of this chapter 
including the conditions of a granted variance as 
specified in section ll-50-13(i), and approved 
plans as specified in section 11-50-4(i) ; 

(3) 	 If a food establishment is required in sect ion 
11-50-4(j) (1) and (2) to operate under a HACCP 
p l an , comply with the plan as specified in 
section 11-50-13(i); 

(4) 	 Immediately discontinue operations and notify the 
department if an imminent health hazard may exist 
as specified in section 11-50-S(i); 

(5) 	 Allow representatives of the department access to 
the food establishment as speci fied in section 
11-50-S(c); 



(6) 	 Replace existing facilities and equipment with 
facilities and equipme nt that comply with this 
chapter if: 
(A) 	 The department directs the replacement 

because the facilities and equipment 
constitute a public health hazard or 
nuisance or no longer comply with the 
criteria upon which the facilities and 
equipment were accepted; 

(B) 	 The department directs the replacement of 
the faci lities and equipment because of a 
change of ownership; or 

(C) 	 The faci lities and equipment are replaced 
in the normal course of operation ; 

(7) 	 Comply with directives of the department 
including t ime frames for corrective actions 
specified in inspection reports , notices, orders, 
warnings , and other directives issued by the 
department in regard to the permit holder's food 
establishment or in response to community 
emergencies; 

(8) 	 Accept notices issued and served by the 
department according to law; and 

(9) 	 Be subject to the administrative , civil , and 
injunctive remedies authorized in law for failure 
to comply with this c h apt er or a directive of the 
department , including time frames for corrective 
actions specified in inspection reports, notices , 
orders , warnings, and other directives . ] [Eff 
2/24/2014 ; R ] (Auth: HRS §321-11) 
(Imp : HRS §321-11) 

§11-50-7 Fees . (a) Each application for issuance 
or renewal of a food establishment permit shall be 
accompanied by the payment of a fee. 

(b) No food establishment permit shall be issued or 
renewed unless all fees required by this chapter are paid. 

(c) If an establishment fails to qualify for issuance 
or renewal of a food establishment permit, no part of the 
fee will be refunded to the applicant . 

(d) A renewal fee for each food establishment shall 
be paid to the department before the permit expiration 
date. 

(e) The fees s hall be based on t he following permit 
categories s hown in Table 7-1. The permit categories are 



based on the total number of food operations within the 
establishment . These food operations include the 
following : 

( 1 ) Receiving; 
(2) Cold storage , holding, preparation, and thawing; 
(3) Hot storage, holding, and preparation ; 
( 4) Thermal processing ; 
(5) Transportation; 
(6) Cooling; 
(7) Reheating; and 
(8) Display . 
(f) The following permit risk categories are as 

follows : 
( 1) Category 1 Any six to eight of the food 

operations noted in subsection 
( e) ; 

(2) 	 Category 2 Any t hree to five of the food 
operations noted in subsection 
(e) ; and 

(3) Category 3 Any zero to two of t he food 
operations noted in subsection 
(e); 

(g) Annual and renewal permit fees are as specified 
in Table 7-1 . 

Table 7-1 [ANNUAL AND RENEWAL] PERMIT FEES SCHEDULE 

FOOD ESTABLISHMENT TYPE 

s . f. 1 

(size) 
RISK 

CATEGORY 
[ANNUAL 

I 
RENEWAL 

] 
PERMIT 

FEE 
1. Catering - 1 $400 
2 . Catering - 2 $300 
3 . Catering - 3 $200 
[ 4 . Convenience store 5:1,000 1 $300 
5 . Convenience store 5:1 , 000 2 $200 
6 . Convenience store 5:1,000 3 $100 ) 
[ 7 . ] 4 . Food Manufacturer - small 5:1,000 1 $300 
[8 .] 5 . Food Manu facturer - small 5:1 , 000 2 $200 
[ 9 . ] 6 . Food Manufacturer - small 5:1,000 3 $100 
[10 . )7 . Food Manufacturer - large >1,000 1 $400 
[11.)8 . Food Manufacturer - large >1,000 2 $300 



[12.]9. Food Manufacturer - large >1,000 3 $200 
[13 . ]10 . Food Warehouse - small s:1 , 000 - $ 1 00 
[ 14 . ]ll . Food Warehouse - large >1,000 - $300 
[15 . ]12 . Hotel Main Kitchen/ 

Banquet/Convention 
- 1 $600 

[16 . ] 1 3 . Hotel Main Kitchen/ 
Banquet/Convention 

- 2 $500 

[17 . ]!.!.:_ High Risk Institutional 
Kitchens 
(pre-schools , elementary 
schools, hospitals, other 
high-risk populations) 

- 1 $400 

(18 .] 15 . Institutional Kitchens 
(schools, adult/child day 
care facilities , prisons, 
etc . ) 

- 1 $400 

[19.]16 . Institutional Kitchens 
(schools, adult/child day 
care facilities, prisons, 
etc . ) 

- 2 $300 

[20 . ] 17 . Institutional Kitchens 
(schools , adult/child day 
care facilities, prisons, 
etc . ) 

- 3 $100 

(21.]18 . Market - small s:1,000 1 $300 
[22 . ]19 . Market - small s:1,000 2 $200 
[23 . ]20 . Market - small s:1,000 3 $100 
[24 . ]21. Ma rket - large >1,000 1 $400 
[25 . ]22 . Market - large >1,000 2 $300 
(26 . ] 23 . Market - large >1,000 3 $200 
(27.]24 . Mobile [Lunchwagons , 

Trailers, Boats] 
Establishments 

- 1 $300 

(28 . ]25. Mobile [Lunchwagons, 
Trailers, Boats] 
Establishments 

- 2 $200 

(29 . ]26 . Mobile [Lunchwagons, 
Traile rs, Boats] 
Establishments 

- 3 $100 

(30 . Mobile Push Cart - 1 $150 
31. Mobile Push Cart - 2 $100 
32 . Mobile Push Cart - 3 $50] 
[33 . ]27. [Mobile Unit] Support 

Kitchen 
- 1 $300 

[34 .]28 . [Mobile Unit] Support - 2 $200 



Kitchen 
[35.]29 . [Mobile Uni t ] Support 

Kitche n 
- 3 $100 

[36.]30 . 
[37.]31. 

Re staurant - small 
Restaurant - smal l 

~1 ,000 
~1 ,000 

1 
2 

$300 
$200 

[38 . ]32 . Restaurant - small ~1 ,00 0 3 $100 
[39.]33 . 
[40 . ]34. 
[41.]35. 
[4 2 . ]36 . 

[43 .] 37 . 
[44.]38 . 

Restaurant - large 
Restaurant - large 
Restaurant - large 
Service Area - limited food 
prep 
Service Area - no food p rep 
[Any Food Es tablishment used 
only to p r epare or serve 
food to the homeless without 

>1 ,000 
>1 ,000 
>1 ,000 

-

-

1 
2 
3 

-

-

$400 
$300 
$200 

$100 

$50 

compensation , consideration, 
or donation by the person or 
persons b e i ng 
served]Homeless 
Feeding/Charitable o r 
Benevole n t o rgani zati on 

- [-] 1:. $0 

39 .- Home les s Feeding/Charitable 
or Benevolent Org a n izati on 

-- 2- $0 

40 .- Homeless Feeding/Charitable 
or Benevolent Organization 

-- 3- $0 

[45.]41. [Temporary] Special Event 
Food Establishment : -- -- $50 
1-5 d ays 

[46 . ]42 . [Tempo r ary]Special Event 
Food Establishme nt : -- -- $75 
6-10 days 

[47 . ]43 . [Temporary]Special Event 
Food Establishment : -- -- $100 
11- 20 days 

44 .- Special Event Food $100 
Establishme nt: 2 1-30 days +$5 fO I 

- - each 
- - day 

over 2( 

days 
[48 . ]45 . [Temporary] Special Event 

Food Establishment : 
Value added farm eroducts 

-- -- $25 

[49 . ]46 . [Temporar y ] Special Event - - $0 



Food Establishment 
(applicants such as :}'.'.OUth 
groups, schools , hoseitals, 
religious groues , community_ 
service organizations, 
athletic groues, and other 
charitable or benevolent 
orqanizations) 



1s.f . means square feet 

(h) All permit fees are non-transferable and non
refundabl e and must be fully paid prior to the issuance of 
any new or renewed permit. 

(i) Food establishment renewal fees that are received 
by t h e department after the expiration date will be subject 
to an additional late fee equal to twenty per cent of the 
annual permit fee . 

(j) Food establishment permits shall not be issued or 
renewed i f any outstanding fines imposed by the department 
have not been paid in full . 

[(j)] ill Plan review fees are as specified in Table 

7-2. 


Table 7-2 PLAN REVIEW FEE TABLE 
PLAN REVIEW TYPE SUB- TYPE FEE 

Food Establishment , 
Liquor Establishment, 
Mobile Unit 

1,000 s . f . or l ess 
$200 

Food Establishment , 
Liquor Establishment, 
Mobile Unit 

>1,000 s . f . 
$300 

Prepackaged Only Mobile or fixed No Fee 
1s.f. 	means square feet 

[Eff 2/24/2014; am and comp (Auth: HRS 
§321-11 ) (Imp : HRS §321- 11) 

§11-50-8 I nspection and correction of violations . 
(a) 	 Establishing inspection interval. 

(1) 	 The department may inspect? food establishment 
at a frequency based upon the risk of foodborne 
illness transmission as determined by t h e 
department . Inspec tions shall also be conducted 
in response to a complaint or an epidemiological 
investigation of an alleged foodborne illness 
outbreak ; 

(2) 	 The [director] department shall be permitted to 
e xamine the records of the establishment to get 
pertinent information regarding food, suppl i es, 
a nd services purchased, rece ived, or used and 
persons employed . 



(b) The department may [prioritize ,] prioritize and 
conduct more frequent inspections based upon its assessment 
of a food establishment ' s history of compliance with this 
chapter and the establishment ' s potential as a vector of 
foodborne illness by evaluating: 

(1) 	 Past performance, for nonconformance with this 
chapter or HACCP plan requirements that are 
critica l items; 

(2) 	 Past performance, for numerous or repeat 
violations of this c hapter or HACCP plan 
requirements that are no ncritical items; 

(3) 	 Past performance , for complaints investigated a nd 
found to be valid; 

(4) 	 The hazards associated with the particular foods 
that are prepared, stor ed, or served; 

(5) 	 The type of operation including the methods and 
extent of food storage, preparation, and service ; 

(6) 	 The number of people served; and 
(7) 	 Whether t he population served is a h ighly 

susceptible popul ation . 
(c) After the [director] department presents official 

credentials and [provides notice of the purpose of , and] 
indicates ar1 i ntent to conduct an jnspection, the person in 
charge shall allow the [direct or] department to determine 
if the food establishment is in compliance with this 
chapter by allowing access to the establishment, a llowing 
inspection , and providing information and records specified 
in this chapter and to which the department is entitled 
according to law, during the food establishment ' s hours of 
operation and other reasonable times. 

(d) An inspection report or other [electronic] record 
shall be used to document [observed violative] the 
conditions ob served [or other deviations from] and any 
noncompliance with this chapter that [ require correction by 
the permit holder that] requires correction, which may 
include a ny of [may include] the following: 

(1) 	 Nonconformance with requirements of this chapter; 
(2) 	 Failure of the appropriate food employees to 

demonstrate their knowledge of , and ability to 
perform in accordance with , the procedural, 
monitoring, v e rification, and correcti ve action 
practices required by the department as specified 
in section ll-50-13(i) ; 

(3) 	 Failure of the person in charge to provide 
records required by the department for 
determining con forma n ce with a HACCP plan as 



specified in section [11-50-4 (j) (2) (D) (vi);] 11 
50-4 (i) (2) (D) (iv); and 

(4) 	 Nonconformance with critical limits of a HACCP 
plan. 

(e) The [director] department shall specify on the 
inspection report [form] the time frame for correction of 
the violations [as specified in subsections (i) , (k) , and 
(m) . ] in accordance with this chapter. 

(f) 	 At the concl usion of the inspection , the 
[director] department shall request a signature by the 
person i n charge acknowledging receipt of the 
[inspectional] department's findings . 

(g) Refusal to sign acknowl edgment of [ inspectional] 
the departme nt's findings [will] shall not affect the 
[permit holder ' s] owner or operator's obligation to correct 
the violations noted in the inspection report within the 
time frames specified . 

(h) The [director] department shall treat the 
inspection report as a public document and s hall make the 
report available for disclosure to a person who requests 
the report as provided [in] .e.y law. 

(i) Ceasing operation and [report - I mminent] self 
reporting - imminent health hazard. 

(1) 	 [Except as specified in paragraph (2) , a permit 
holder ] The owner or operator shall i mmediately 
discontinue food operations and notify the 
department [if) that an imminent health hazard 
may exist because of an emergency s uch as a fire , 
flood, extended interruption of electrical or 
water service , sewage backup, natural disaster, 
misuse of poisonous or toxic materia l s , onset of 
an apparent foodborne illness outbreak, gross 
insani t ary occurrence or conditi on , or other 
circumstance that may endanger public [health ;] 
health. 

(2) 	 [A permit holder] An owner or oper ator may [not 
be required] be allowed to [discontinue) continue 
operations in a n area of an establi shment that is 
unaffected by the imminent health hazard . 

(j) Resumption of operat i ons. If operations are 
[discontinued as specified in subsection (i) or otherwise 
according to law,] voluntarily suspended or suspended as 
may otherwise be provided by this chapter, the [permit 
h o lder] owner or operator shall obtain approval from the 
department before resuming operations . 



(k) Timely correction [- violation of critical item . ] 
of violations . 

( 1) Except as [specified in paragraph (2),) otherwise 
directed by the department, [a permit holder] an 
owner or operator shall [at the time of 
inspection] immediately correct a critical 
violation of this c hapter and implement 
corrective actions for a HACCP plan provision 
that is not in compliance with its critical 
[limit;] limit . 

(2) Considering the nature of the potential hazard 
involved and the complexity of the corrective 
action needed, the [director may agree to or] 
department may specify a longer time frame [after 
the inspection,] for the [permit holder] owner or 
operator to correct critical violations or HACCP 

ill 
plan deviations . 
The owner or operator shall correct all critical 
and non-criti cal violations by a date and time 
specified by the department in any inspection 
report or other directive from the department . 

(1) Verification and documentation of correction . 
(1) After observing at the time of inspe ction a 

correction of a critical violation or a HACCP 
plan deviation, the [director ] department shall 
enter the violation and information about the 
corrective action on the inspection [report;) 
report. 

(2) [As specified in subsection (k) (2), after] After 
receiving notification that t he [permi t holder] 
owner or operator has corrected a critical 
violation or HACCP plan deviation, or at the end 
of the specified period of time, the [director ] 
department shall verify correction of the 
violation, document the information on an 
inspection report, and enter the report in the 
department's records . 

(m) [Time frame for correction - ot her vio l ations . 
The permit holder shall correct all other violations by a 
date and time agreed to or specified by the direc tor . 

(n)] Upon request, the [director] department shall 
provide a copy of the completed inspection report to t he 
[permit holde r] owner or operator or person in charge . 

[ (o) Time frame for correction - temporary food 
establishment . The permit holder shall correct all 
violations immediately . Failure to comply with this notice 



may result in immediate termination of the temporary 
authorization to operate .] [Eff 2/24/2014; am and comp 

] (Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 

§11-50-9 Placarding . (a) Upon completion of [a 
regular inspection or follow-up inspection , ] an inspection, 
the [director shall] department may post at [every] the 
food establishment a color coded placard indicating the 
compliance status of that establishment . The placard shall 
be posted in a location clearly visible to the general 
public·and patrons entering the food establishment . 

(1) 	 Clearly visible to the general public and patrons 
means: 
(A) 	 Posted in the window of the food 

establishment within five feet of the main 
entrance to the establishment; 

(B) 	 Posted in a display case (such as a menu 
box) mounte d on the outside wall of the 
food establishment withi n five feet of the 
main entrance to the establishment ; or 

(C) 	 [Posted in a l ocation approved by the 
director to e nsure proper notice to the 
general public and patrons . ] In the event 
that a food establishment is operated i n 
the same bui lding as a separately p e rmitted 
or licensed business, or in t h e event that 
a facility shares common patron entrance 
with a sepa r a tely permitted facility or 
licensed business, or in the event of both, 
posted in the initial patron contact area; 
or 

lQl 	 Posted in any other location approved by 
the director to ensure proper notice to the 
general p u b l ic and patrons . 

(b) [ In the event that a food establishment is 
operated i n the same building as a separately permitted or 
lice nsed business, or in the event that a facility shares 
common patron entrance with a separately permitted facility 
or licensed business , or in the event of both, the director 
shall post the placard in the initial patron contact area, 
or in a location approved by the director . 

(c)J The p l acard shall not be defaced , marred, 
camouflaged, hidden, or removed . It shall be unlawful to 
operate a food establishment unless the placard is posted 
in accordance with this [chapter . ] chapter and tampering of 



any kind with the placard may result in the immediate 
suspension of the food establishment permit . 

[(d) Removal of the placard is a violation of this 
chapter and may result in the suspension of the food 
establishment permit, and may be subject to daily fines as 
specified in section 321-20, HRS. 

(e)] J...£1_ A placard shall remain valid from the t i me 
of issuance until [a new placard is issued at the 
completion of a regular inspection, follow-up inspection, 
or change of ownership . ] it is removed or replaced by the 
department . 

[ ( f) l 	 ill Placard color coding: 
( 1) 	 A green placard s hall [be posted when : ] indicate : 

(A) 	 Zero or one critical violation was observed 
during [the regular] an inspect i on, and the 
critical violation was corrected or 
mitigated during the inspection; or 

(B) 	 A follow-up inspection [ve r ifies] has 
verified correction of all criti cal 
violations; 

(2) 	 A yellow placard shall [be posted when] indicate 
one violation as described in paragraph (1) (A) 
remuins uncorrecterl or [whenl two or more 
critical violations were observed during [a 
r egular inspection or foodborne illness] an 
inspection[ :] and additional corrective action is 
necessary. 
(A) 	 [Follow-up inspections will] A follow-up 

inspection may be cond ucted within two 
business days to ensure all critical 
violations are corrected or mitigated and 
remain corrected ; 

(B) 	 The yellow placard shall remain posted 
until all critical violations are corrected 
or mitigated [and verified;] to the 
satisfaction of the director; 

(3) 	 A red placard shall [be posted when] indicate 
there is[ : ] an immedi a t e danger to public health 
and closure of the food establishment is 
necessary to protect public health : 
(A) 	 [Closure of the facility due to immediate 

danger to public health, such as ] A red 
placard may be posted upon a finding by the 
department that there exists an imminent 
health hazard which includes, but is not 
limited to: 



(i) 	 The department being denied entry into 
the food establishment or being unable 
to perform an inspection due to 
circumstances within the control of 
the [permit holder] owner or operator 
or person in charge; 
The food establishment having no valid 
permit to operate issued by the 
department; 

(iii) 	 Epidemiological evidence of foodborne 
illness or disease transmission 
connected to the food establishment ; 

[ (ii) l (iv) An employee of the food 
establishment who is a carrier of a 
communicable di sease working in a 
capacity whereby the disease may be 
transmitted through food; 

[ (iii) l (v) Hot or cold water not available 
as required; 

[ (iv)] (vi ) No power available to operate 
refrigeration or cooking equipment ; 

[ (v)] (vii) Rodent or vermin infestation; 
[(vi)] (viii) Sewage overflow or floodinq 

within the establishment ; 
[(vii) ] (ix) Any o t her condition that poses 

an immediate danger to public 
health[ ; ] or the environment, as 
determined by the director; 

(B) 	 Upon the posting of a red placard, closure 
of the food establishment shall be 
effectuated by an i mmediate suspension 
[Suspension] of the food establishment 
permit [; l...:.. 
ill The r ed placard shall indicate t hat 

the applicable food establishment 
permit h as been suspended and shall 
constitu te written notice to the owner 
or operator pursuant to section 11-50
12 (c). 

(ii) 	 The procedures of section 11- 50-12(c) 
s h a ll be applicable a nd s hall 

govern the disposition of both the red 
placard a nd the permit suspension . 

[(g)] .Du_ Critical violations may include , but are 
not limi ted to : 



(1) 	 Employees with communicable diseases , wounds , and 
rashes ; 

(2) 	 An employee has discharge from the eyes , nose, or 
mouth; 

(3) 	 Hands not clean and not prope rly washed , gloves 
not used properly; 

(4) 	 Handwashing facilities not provided, not 

supplied, not properly operating , or 

inaccessibl e; 


(5) 	 Improper temperature control of potentially 
hazardous foods ; 

(6) 	 PHF (time/temperature control f or safety food) 
not properly l abeled when using time as a public 
health control; 

(7) 	 PHF (time/temperature control for safety food) 
improper l y cooled; 

(8) 	 Imp r oper coo~ing time and temperatures not 
adhered to ; 

(9) 	 Improper reheating procedures for hot holding not 
adhered to ; 

(10) 	 Re-service of returned food ; 
(11) 	 Food contaminated or adulterated; 
(12) 	 Food- contact surfaces not cleaned and sanitized 

as required; 
(1 3) 	 Improper warewas h ing p rocedure ; 
(14) 	 Non-compliance with proper shellfish handling a nd 

service ; 
(15) 	 Non-compliance with HACCP p l ans , special ized 

process , and variances; 
(16) 	 Prohibited food offered to highly s usceptible 

populat i on; 
(17) 	 Hot or cold water not available as required ; 
(18) 	 Sewage and wastewat er not properly disposed of; 
(19) 	 Rodents, insects , birds, or prohibited animals 

within establishment ; 
(20) 	 Food not protected from cross contamination; 
(2 1) Restrictions on eat ing a nd the use of tobacco; 

and 
(22) 	 Improper storage or use of poisonous or toxic 

materials . 
[ Eff 2/24/2014; am and comp (Auth: HRS §321- 1 1) 

(Imp : HRS §321-11) 

§11-50-10 Embargo and detention . (a) Based upon 
[ i nspection] the department ' s findings or other evidence , 



the director may embargo or detain any food determined to 
be a potential health hazard . 

(1) 	 The [director] department may attach a tag or 
other appropriate marking to food determined to 
be a potential health hazard . The marking shall 
be removed only by the [director following 
verification that the condition has been 
corrected;) department; 

(2) 	 Food embargoed or detained pursuant to this 
subsection shall not be moved or used unless the 
embargo or detainment has been rescinded ; 

(3) 	 Within [seventy-two hours) seven days of t he 
embargo or detainment, the director shall : 
(A) 	 [Inform the establishment of the potential 

health hazard and supporting evidence 
justifying the action ; 

(B) 	J Extend the holding period for [a specified) 
the period of time needed to [complete 
testing or research) further investigate 
[to determine] the safety of the food being 
held; or 

[ (C)J ill Rescind the action . 
(b) [ If the director determines the food to be a 

potential health hazard, the director] The tag or other 
marking indicating that food has been embargoed or detained 
shall: 

(1) 	 [State in writing,] Provide the [specific reasons 
for which the food has been) department's 
findings and conclusions with r espect to the food 
determined to be a potential heal t h hazard; and 

(2) 	 [Offer an opportunity for a hearing to a ) Notify 
the person whose food has been [deter mined to b e 
a potential health hazard, provided a written 
r e quest for a hearing is filed with the director 
by the permit holder within twenty days a fter 
receipt of the notice as specified in subsection 
(a) (3) (A) ; J embargoed or detaine d of their right 
to request a hearing. 
[(A) If a written request is filed within twent y 

days, an opportunity for a h earing with the 
director or t he director 's designated 
representative s hall be provided; J (c) If 
the owner of food which has been e mbargoed 
or d e tained submits a written request to 
the department for a hearing to contest the 
embargo or detainment within seven days 



from the date the tag or other marking was 
affixed to the food, the director shall 
provide a hearing as soon as practicable. 
At such hearing the director shall : 

ill Determine whether the embargoed or detained 
food is a potential health hazard; 

ill Determine whether the food must be 
destroyed and under what circumstances; and 

ill 	 Issue a final order for the continued 
e mbargo or detainment and ultimate 
disposition of the embargoed or detained 
food , or rescind the action. 

[(B)] (d) If no written request is [filed] 
submitted to the department within [the 
twenty day period,] seven days from the 
date the tag or other marking of embargo or 
detainment was affixed to the food, the 
department ' s findings and conclusions shall 
become final and the [permit holder] owner 
or operator of the food establishment shall 
[properly] dispose of the e mbargoed or 
detained food[.] in the manner prescribed 
by the director. [Eff 2/24/2014; am and 
comp (Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : 
HRS §321-11) 

§11-50-11 Prevention of foodborne disease 
transmission by employees . (a) The department shall act 
when it has reasonable cause to believe that a food 
employee or conditional employee has possibly transmitted 
disease ; may be infected with a disease in a communicable 
form that is transmissible through food ; may be a carrier 
of infectious agents that cause a disease that is 
transmissible through food; or is affected with a boil , an 
infected wound , or acute respiratory infection, by : 

(1) 	 Securing a confidential medical history of the 
food employee or conditional employee suspected 
of transmitting disease or making other 
investigations as deemed appropriate; and 

(2) 	 Requiring appropriate medical examinations , 
including collection of specimens for laboratory 
analysis , of a suspected food employee or 
conditional employee . 

(b) Based o n the findings of an investigation related 
to a food employee or conditional employee who is suspected 



of being infected or diseased, the department may issue an 
order to the suspected food employee , conditional employee , 
or [permit holder] owner or operator instituting one or 
more of the following control measures : 

(1) 	 Restricting the food employee or conditional 
employee ; 

(2) 	 Excluding the food e mployee or conditional 
employee ; or 

(3) 	 Closing the food establishment by summarily 
suspending a permit to operate pursuant to 
section ll-50-12(c). 

(c) Based on the findings of the investigation as 
specified in subsection (a) and to control disease 
transmission , the department may issue an order of 
restriction or exclusion to a suspected food employee or 
the [permit holder] owner or operator without prior 
warning, notice of a hearing , or a hearing if the order : 

(1) 	 States the reasons for the restriction or 
exclusion that is ordered ; 

(2) 	 States the evidence that t he food employee or 
[permit holder] owner or operator shall provide 
in order to demonstrate that the reasons for the 
restriction or exclusion are eliminated; 

(3) 	 States that the suspected food employee or the 
[permit holder] owner or operator may request an 
appeal hearing by submitting a timely request as 
provided in law; and 

(4) 	 Provides the name and address of the department 
representative to whom a request for an appeal 
hearing may be made. 

(d) The department shall release a food employee or 
conditional employee from restriction or exclusion 
according to law and the conditions specified in section 
ll-50-21(c) . [Eff 2/24/2014 ; comp (Auth : 
HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS §321-11) 

§11-50-12 Permit suspension . (a) The [department] 
director may suspend a permit whenever : 

(1) 	 An inspection of the establishment reveals that 
the establishment has not corrected the 
violations in the required time; or 

(2) 	 The department is una ble to conduct inspections 
in accordance with this chapter due to 
circumstances within the control of the permit 
holder or person in charge . 



(b) 	 Permit suspension procedures . 
(1) 	 The department shall notify the [permit h older ,) 

owner or operator, or the person in charge in 
writing , when a permit is to be s uspended; 

(2) 	 The department shall state in writing, specific 
reasons for which the permit is to be suspended; 

(3) 	 The department shall offer an opportunity for a 
hearing to a person whose permit is t o be 
suspended, provided a written request for a 
hearing is filed with the department by the 
[permit holder,) owner or operator, not l ater 
than twenty calendar days after receipt of the 
notice; 

(4) 	 If a written request fo r a hearing is filed 
within twenty calendar days after the notice of 
suspension, an opportunity for a hearing with the 
department or the department's designated 
representative shall be offered ; 

(5) 	 If no written request for a hearing i s fil ed 
within twenty calendar days after the notice of 
suspension , the permit shall be s uspended upon 
[serving) service of the suspension notice; 

(6) 	 The establishment shaJl he closed and shall 
remain closed until the permit has been 
reinstated ; 

(7) 	 A person whose permit has been suspended may 
request an inspection, and the permit shall be 
reinstated if the inspection shows the correction 
of the violation that led to the suspension . 

(c) Notwithstanding subsections (a), where the 
[department) director finds there exists [in an 
establishment) an imminent health hazard [to the public 
health,) associated with the food establishment, unless the 
[hazard) threat to public health is immediately corrected , 
the department may [temporarily) immediately close the food 
establishment and suspend the permit [of the 
establishrnent)L without prior notice and hearing [and order 
the establi shment immediately closed)L by issuing an order 
in writing [.) or by posting a red placard pursuant to 
section 11-50-9 . 

(1) 	 An imminent health hazard e xists under conditions 
described in the definition of "Imminent health 
hazardu [and section) in section 11-50-2, 
sections 11-50-9 (f) (3) (A) [ (i) to (vii);) and 11
50-9 (g) , and as may otherwise be determined by 
the director. 



(2) 	 The food establishmen t shall remain closed and 
the permi t s u spension s h a l l [be ] remain in effect 
until the [opportunity for a hearing is given 
within twenty-four hours after the service of the 
s u spension order . After] permit is reinstated by 
the department.

ill 	 Th e department shall provide the owner or 
operator an opportunity to contest the closure 
a nd permit suspension and , unless waived by the 
owner or operator , such a hearing shall be held 
no later than for ty-eight (48) hours after the 
service of the notice of suspension or posting of 
a red placard, except that in the case of state 
and federal holidays and non-business days, the 
hearing s hall be prov ided no la t er than the next 
business day thereafter . 

ill 	 At the hearin g , t he [dep artment ] director or t he 
[department ' s] direct or ' s designated 
rep resentative may affirm, modify, or rescind the 
order as appropriate . 

(d) In the event of a natural disaster , t he 
depart ment has the authority to order an establi shment 
immerli.ately c l osed i f, i n the opinion of the department, 
the establishment cannot operate in a safe and sanitary 
manner . The [department ] director shal l decide under what 
conditions the establishment will be allowed to reopen . 

(e) All hearings shall comply with chapter 91 , HRS, 
and the Hawaii Administrative Ru l es, chapter 11-1 , entitled 
"Rules of Practice and Procedureu. [Eff 2/24/2014; am and 
comp (Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321
11) 

11-50-13 Variances . (a) The department may grant a 
variance by modifying or waiving the requirements of this 
chapter if in the opinion of the [department] director a 
health hazard or nuisance will not result from the 
variance . If a variance is gran ted, the departmen t shall 
retain the information specified in subsection (b) in its 
records for the food establishment . 

(b) Before a variance from a requirement of this 
chapter is approved, the information that shall be provided 
by the person requesting the variance and retained in the 
department ' s file on the food establ ishment including : 



(1) 	 A statement of the propose d variance of the 
chapter requirement c iting relevant chapter 
section numbers; 

(2) 	 An analysis of the rat ionale for how the 
potential public health hazards and nuisances 
addressed by the relevant chapter sections will 
be alternatively addressed by the proposa l; and 

(3 ) 	 A HACCP plan if required as specified in section 
[11-50-4(j) (1 ) ] 11-50-4(i) (1) that includes the 
information specified in section [11-50-4(j) (2)) 
11-50-4(i) (2) as it is re l evant to t he variance 
requested. 

(c) Every application for a variance shall be made on 
forms furnished by the department. 

( 1) The department shall not act upon or consider any 
incomplete application for variance . An 
application shall b e deemed complete only whe n 
all required and requested information, including 
the application form, plans, speci f i cations , 
applicable fees, and other informati on have been 
timel y s ubmitted; 

(2 ) Every application s hall b e signed by the 
applicant a nd s ha ll constitnt P. An acknowledgment 
and agreement that the applicant will comply with 
all t he terms and conditions of the variance and 
this chapter; 

(3) The departme nt may require the s ubmiss i on of 
addit i o n a l i n forma t ion, including challe nge 
studies if applicable , a fter the application has 
been submitte d, and may ensure t hat , if a n 
application is incomplete o r o therwise deficient, 
processing of the application s h a ll not be 
completed until such time as the a pplicant has 
supplied all requ i red inf ormation or otherwise 
corrected the def i c i e ncy. If t he var i ance 
applicati on requires a chal l enge study for 
pathogen inactivation or growth inhibition to 
determine if a food requires time/ t emperature 
control for safety , t h e study shall follow the 
guideline e ntitl ed "Parameters for Determining 
Inoculated Pack/Cha llenge Study Protocolsn by t he 
National Advisory Committee on Microbiological 
Crite ria for Foods , adopted 20 March 2009 , 
Washington D. C.; 

(4) 	 The failure o f the department to act on a 
completed a pplicat i on within thirty days o f the 



receipt of such application s hall be deemed an 
approval of such application provided that the 
applicant acts consistently with the application 
process and has submitted all required or 
requested information. 

(d) Any approved variance shall be granted for time 
periods and under conditions consistent with this chapter 
and within the following limitations: 

(1) 	 The department ·may issue a variance for a period 
not exceeding two years ; 

(2) 	 The department may revoke the variance at any 
time if the var i ance becomes a threat to public 
health and safety. 

(e) Variance renewal. Any variance granted pursuant 
to this section may be renewed for periods not exceeding 
two years provided that: 

(1) 	 Al l of the conditions specified in the 
immediately preceding variance are complied with; 

(2) 	 Curre nt food safety concerns and concerns 
addressed in t he immediately preceding variance 
are addressed ; 

(3) 	 A renewal appl i cation is submitt ed at least one 
hundred eighty days ~rior to expiration of the 
preceding variance; and 

(4) 	 A variance renewal fee of $200 is paid to the 
department. 

(f) The department shall afford a hearing in 
accordance with chapter 91, HRS, in relation to a n 
application for the denial of a variance. 

(g) No variance shall be construed to prevent or 
limit the applicat i o n of any emergency provisions and 
procedures provided by law. 

(h) A non-refundabl e application processing fee of 
$200 shall be made payable to the department for a ll ne w 
and renewal variance applications . 

(i) If the department grants a variance as specified 
in subsection (a), or a HACCP p l an is otherwise required as 
specified in section [11-5 0 - 4 (j) (1)] 11-50-4 (i) (1) and (2) 
the permit holder s hall : 

(1) 	 Comply with the HACCP plans and procedures that 
are submitted as specified in secti on [11 -50
4 (j) (2)] 11-50-4 (i) (2) and approved as a basis 
for the modification or waiver; 

(2) 	 Maintain and provide to the department, upon 
request, records specified in section 
[11-50 - 4(j) (2) (D)] 11 - 50 - 4(i) (2) (D) and (E) that 



demonstrate that the following are routinely 
employed: 
(A) 	 Procedures for monitoring the critical 

control points; 
(B) 	 Monitoring of the critical control points; 
(C) 	 Verification of the effectiveness of the 

operation or process; and 
(D) 	 Necessary corrective actions if there is 

failure at a critical control point; and 
(3) 	 Provide any additional information and analyses 

deemed necessary by the department to e liminate 
or control public health hazards or nuisance. 
[Eff 2/24/2014; am and comp J 
(Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS §321-11) 

§11-50-14 Penalties and remedies. Any person who 
violates any provision of this chapter or an order of the 
[department] director thereunder, s hall be subject to a fine 
as provided in section 321- 20, HRS. Each and every violation 
is a separate offense . [Eff 2/24/201 4 ; am and comp 

] (Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS §32 1-11) 

§11-50-15 Severability. If any provision of this 
chapter, or the applicat i on of any provision of this 
chapter to any person or circumstance , is h e ld invalid, the 
application of the provision to other persons or 
circums t ances , and the r emainder of this chapter, shal l not 
be affected the r eby . [Eff 2/24/2014; comp 
(Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS §321 - 11) 

§§11-50-16 to 11-50- 19 (Reserved) . 

SUBCHAPTER 2 

PERSONNEL 

§11 - 50-20 Supervision. (a) Except as specified in 
subsection (b), the [permit h o lder] owner or operator shall 
b e the person in charge or shall designate a person in 
charge and shall ensure that a person in charge is present 
at the food establishment during all hours of operation. 



(b) In a food establishment with two or more 
separatel y permitted departments that are the legal 
responsibility of the same [permit holder] owner or 
operator and that are located on the same premises, the 
permit holder may , during specific time periods when food 
is not being prepared, packaged, or served, designate a 
single person in charge who is present on the premises 
during all hours of operation, and who is responsible for 
each separately permitted food establishment on the 
premises . 

ill Food protection certification. 

ill The person in charge shall demonstrate knowledge 
of basic food safety by successfully completing a 
food safety course that is part of a department 
food safety program or o ther program 

ill 
approved by the department. 
The requirements of this section may be waived by 
the department for any food establishment deemed 

by t he director to pose minimal risk of 
causing, or contributing to , foodborne i llness 
based on the nature of t h e operation and extent 
of food preparation . 
ill Successful completjon of a food safety course may 

be demonstrated by any valid document intended by 
an approved program to serve that purpose . 

[(c)]J.El The person in charge shall ensure that : 
(1) 	 Food establishment operations are not conducted 

in a private home or in a room used as living or 
sleeping quarters as specified in section 
[11 - 5 0 -71 (s);] 11-50- 71 (r); 

(2) 	 Persons unnecessary t o the food establishment 
operation are not allowed i n the food 
preparation , food storage, or warewashing areas , 
except that bri ef visits and tours may be 
authorized by the person in charge if steps are 
taken to ensure that exposed food; clean 
equipment, utensils, and linens; and unwrapped 
singl e-service and single-use articles are 
protected from contamination; 

(3) 	 Employees and other persons such as delivery and 
maint enance persons and pesticide applicators 
entering the food preparation, food storage , and 
warewashing areas comply with this chapter; 

(4) 	 Employees are effectively cleaning their hands, 
by routinely monitoring the employees' 
handwashing ; 



(5) 	 Employees are visibly observing foods as they are 
received to determine that they are from approved 
sources, delivered at the required temperatures, 
protected from contamination, unadulterated, and 
accurately presented, by routinely monitoring the 
employees ' observations and periodically 
evaluating foods upon their receipt; 

(6) 	 Employees are properly cooking potentially 
hazardous food (time/temperature control for 
safety f ood), being particularly careful in 
cooking those foods known to cause severe 
foodborne illness a nd death, such as eggs and 
comminuted meats, through daily oversight of the 
employees' routine monitoring of the cooking 
temperatures using appropriate temperature 
measuring devices properly scaled and calibrated 
as specified in sections 11-50-46(k) and 
11-50-49 (p) (2); 

(7) 	 Employees are using proper methods to rapidly 

cool potentially hazardous foods 

(time/temperature control for safety foods) tha t 
are not held hot or are not for consumption 
within four hours, through daily oversight of t he 
employees ' routine monitoring of food 
temperatures during cooling ; 

(8) 	 Consumers who order raw; or partially cooked 
ready- to- eat foods of animal origin are informed 
as specified in section [ll-50-35(e)] ll-50-35(d) 
that the food is not cooked sufficiently to 
ensure its safety ; 

(9) 	 Employees are properly sanitizing cleaned 

multiuse equipment and utensils before they are 

reused, through routine monitoring of solution 

temperature and exposure time for hot water 

sanitizing, and chemical concentration, pH, 

temperature, and exposure time for chemical 

sani tizing ; 


(10) 	 Consumers are notified that c l e an tableware is to 
be used when they return to self-service areas 
such as salad bars and buffets as specified in 
section 11- 50-32(0) ; 

(11) 	 Except when approval is obtained from the 
department as specified in section 
[11-50-32 (a) (4),] 11-50-32 (a) (5) employees are 
preventing cross-contamination of ready-to-eat 
food with bare hands by prope rly using suitable 



utensils such as deli tissue, spatulas , tongs , 
single - use gloves , or dispensing equi pment; 

(12) 	 Employees are properly trained in food safety , 
including food allergy awareness, as it relates 
to their assigned duties; and 

(13) Food employees and conditional employees are 
informed of their responsibility to report in 
accordance with law, to the person in charge, 
information about their health and activities as 
they relate to diseases that are transmissible 
through food , as specified in section 
11-50-21 (a) (1). [Eff 2/24/2014 ; am and comp 

] (Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321
11) 

§11-50-21 Employee health . (a) Responsibility of 
[permit holder,] owner or operator, person in charge, and 
conditional employees. 

(1) 	 The [permit holder] owner or operator shall 
require food employees and conditional empl oyees 
to report to the person in c harge information 
about th~ir health and activities as they relate 
to diseases that are transmissible through food . 
A food employee or conditional employee shall 
report the information in a manner that allows 
the person in charge to reduce the risk of 
foodborne disease transmission , including 
providing necessary additional information, such 
as the date of onset of sympt oms and an illness, 
or of a diagnos is without symptoms , if the food 
employee or conditional employee: 
(A) Has any of the following symptoms : 

(i) 	 Vomiting; 
(ii) Diarrhea; 

(i ii) Jaundice ; 
(iv) Sore throat with fever; or 

(v) 	 A lesion containing pus such as a boil 
or infected wound that is open or 
draining and is on the hands or 
wrists , unless an impermeable cover 
s u ch as a finger cot or stall protects 
the lesion and a single-use glove is 
worn over the impermeable cover or on 
exposed portions of the arms , unless 
the lesion is protected by an 



impermeable cover, or on the other 
parts 	of the body , unless the lesion 
is covered by a dry, durable , tight
fitting 	bandage; 

(B) 	 Has an illness diagnosed by a health 
practitioner due to: 
(i ) 	 Norovirus ; 

(ii) 	 Hepatitis A v i rus; 
(iii) 	 Shigella spp . ; 

(iv) 	 [Enterohemorrhagic or] Shiga toxin 
producing Escherichia Coli; [or] 

(v) 	 Salmonella Typhi; or 
(vi) 	 nontyphoida l Salmonella ; 

(C) 	 Had a previous illness , diagnosed by a 
health practitioner , within the past three 
months due to Salmonella Typhi, without 
having received antibiotic therapy, as 
determined by a health practitioner ; 

(D) 	 Has been exposed to , or is the suspected 
source of, a confirmed disease outbreak, 
because the food employee or conditional 
employee consumed or prepared food 
implicated in the outbreak, or consumed 
food at an event prepared by a person who 
is infected or ill with : 
(i) 	 Norovirus within the past forty- eight 

hours of the l ast exposure; 
(ii} [Enterohemorrhagic or] Shiga toxin

producing Escherichia Coli[,] or 
Shi gella spp. within the past three 
days of the last exposure ; 

(iii} 	 Salmonella Typhi within t h e past 
fourteen days of the last exposure; or 

(iv} Hepatitis A virus within the past 
thirty days of the last exposure; or 

(E) 	 Has been exposed by attending or working in 
a setting where there is a confirmed 
disease outbreak, o r living in the same 
household as, and has knowl edge about , an 
individual who works or attends a setting 
where t h ere is a confi rmed qisease 
outbreak, or living in the same household 
as , and has knowledge about , an individual 
diagnosed with an illness caused by : 
(i} Norovirus within the past forty-eight 

hours of the last exposure; 



(ii) 	 [Enterohemorrhagic or] Shiga toxin
producing Escherichia Coli[,] or 
Shigella spp . within the past three 
days of the last exposure ; 

(iii) 	 Salmonella Typhi within the past 
fourteen days of the last exposure ; or 

(iv) 	 Hepatitis A viru s within the past 
thirty days of the last exposure ; 

(2) 	 The person in charge shall ensure that a 
conditional empl oyee : 
(A) 	 Who exhibits or reports a symptom, or who 

reports a diagnosed illness as specified in 
subsection (a) (1) (A) to (C ), is p rohibited 
from becoming a food employee until the 
conditional employee meets the criteria for 
the specific symptoms or diagnosed illness 
as specified in subsection (c); or 

(8) 	 Who will work as a food employee in a food 
establishment that serves as a highly 
susceptible population and reports a 
history of exposure as specified in 
subsection (a) (1) (D)and(E) , is prohibited 
from becoming a food employee until the 
conditional employee meets the criteria as 
specified in s ubsection (c) (9) ; 

(3) 	 The person in charge s hall ensure that a food 
e mployee wh o exhibits or reports a symptom, or 
who reports a diagnosed illness or a history of 
exposure as specified in subsection (a) (1 ) (A) to 
(E) is : 
(A) 	 Excluded as specified in subsection (b) (1 ) 

to (3) , (4) (A), (5) (A), (6) (A) , [or] 
(7) [ (A)] , or (8) (A) a n d in compliance with 
the provis i ons specified in subsection 
(c) (1) 	 to [ (7) ; ] ~ 

(8) Restricted as specified in subsection 
(b)(4)(8), (5)(8), (6)(8), [(7)(8) , 

or] (B)J....§1 or (9) or (10) and in compliance 
with the provisions specified in subsection 
( C) ( 4 ) 	 to [ ( 9) ; ] (10) ; 

(4) 	 A food emp loyee or conditional employee shall 
report to t h e person in charge the information as 
specified in paragraph (l); 

(5) A 	 food employee shal l : 
(A) 	 Comply with an exclusion as specified in 

subsection (b) (1 ) to (3), and (4) (A) , 



(5) (A), (6) (A) , J..2l or [(7)] fil(A) and 
with the provisions specified in subsection 
(C) ( 1) to [ ( 7) ; ] (8) ; 

(B) Comply with a restriction as specified in 
subsection (b) (4) (B) , (5) (B), (6) (B), 
(7) [ (B), or (8) or (9)], (8) (B), or (8), 
(9) , or (10) and comply with the provisions 
specified in subsection (c) (4) to [ ( 9) ; ] 
(10); 

(b) The person in charge shall exclude or restrict a 
food employee from a food establishment in accor dance with 
the following : 

(1) 	 Except when the symptom is from a noninfectious 
condition, exclude a food employee if the food 
employee is : 
(A) 	 Symptomatic with vomiting or diarrhea; or 
(B) 	 Symptomatic with vomiting or diarrhea and 

diagnosed with an infection from Norovi r us, 
Shi gella spp . , nontyphoidal Salmonella, or 
[Enterohemorrhagic or] Shiga toxin
producing E . Coli; 

(2) 	 Exclude a food employee who is: 
(A) 	 J aunrliced and the onset of jaundice 

occurred within the last seven calenda r 
days, unless the food employee provides to 
the person in charge writ ten medical 
documentation from a health pract itioner 
specifying that the jaundice is not caused 
by hepa t i tis A virus or other fecal-orally 
transmitted infection; 

(B) 	 Diagnosed with an infection from hepatitis 
A virus within fourteen calendar days from 
the onset of any illness symptoms, or 
within seven calendar days of the onset of 
jaundice; or 

(C) 	 Diagnose d with an infection from hepatitis 
A virus without developing symptoms; 

(3) 	 Exc lude a food employee who is diagnosed with an 
infection from Salmonella Typhi, or reports a 
previous infection with Salmonella Typhi within 
the past three months as specified in subsect ion 
(a) (1) (C) ; 

(4) 	 If a food employee is diagnosed with an i n f e c tion 
from Norovirus and is asymptomatic : 



(A) 	 Exclude the food empl oyee who works in a 
food establishment serving a highly 
susceptible population; or 

(B) 	 Restrict the food employee who works in a 
food es t ablishment not serving a highly 
susceptible population; 

(5) 	 If a food employee is diagnosed with an infection 
from Shigella spp . and is asymptomatic : 
(A) 	 Exclude t he food employee who works in a 

food establishment serving a highly 
susceptible population; or 

(B) 	 Restrict the food employee who works in a 
food establishment not serving a highly 
susceptible population; 

(6) 	 If a food employee is diagnosed with an infection 
from [Enterohemorrhagic or] Shiga toxin-producing 
E. Coli , and is asymptomatic: 
(A) 	 Exclude the food employee who works in a 

food establi s hment serving a highly 
susceptible population ; or 

(B) 	 Restrict the food employee who works in a 
food establishment not serving a highly 
susceptible population; 

J..1l 	 If a food employee is diagnosed with an infection 
from nontyphoidal Salmonella and is asymptomatic, 
restrict the food employee who works in a food 
establishment serving a highly susceptible 
population or in a food establishment not serving 
a highly susceptible population; 

[(7)]fil 	 If a food employee is ill with symptoms of 
acute onset of sore throat with fever : 
(A) 	 Exclude the food employee who works in a 

food establishment serving a highly 
susceptible population; or 

(B) 	 Restrict the f ood employee who works in a 
food establishment not serving a highly 
susceptible population ; 

[(B)]fil If a food empl oyee is infected with a skin 
lesion containing pus such as a boil or infected 
wound that i s open or draining and not properly 
covered as specified in subsection (a) (1) (A) (v), 
restrict the f ood employee ; 

[ (9) ] (10) If a food employee is exposed to a 
foodborne pathogen as specified in subsection 
(a) (1) (D) and (E) , restrict the food employee who 



works in a food establishment serving a highly 
susceptible population. 

(c) The person in charge shal l adhere to the 
following conditions when removing, adjusting, or retainin g 
the exclusion or restriction of a food employee : 

(1) Except when a food employee is diagnosed with an 
infection from hepatitis A virus or Salmonella 
Typhi: 
(A) 	 Reinsta t e a food employee who was excluded 

as specified in subsection (bl (1) (A) if the 
food employee : 
(i) 	 Is asymptomatic for a t least twenty

four hours; or 
(ii) 	 Provi des to t he person in c harge 

written medical documentation from a 
health practitioner that states the 
symptom is from a noninfectious 
condition ; 

(B) 	 If a food e mployee was diagnosed wi th an 
infection from Norovirus and excl uded as 
specified in subsection (bl (1) (B l: 
(i) 	 Restrict the food employee , who is 

asymptoma~ic for at l east twenty-four 
hours a nd works in a food 
establishment not serving a highly 
susceptible population, until the 
conditio n s f or reinstatement as 
specified in subsection (bl (4 ) (A) or 
(B) are met; or 

(ii) 	 Retain the exclusion for the food 
employee, who is asymptomatic for at 
least twenty-four hours and wo rks in a 
food establishment that serves a 
h igh ly susceptible popul ation , until 
the conditions for reinstatement as 
specified in subsection (b) (4) (A) or 
(B) are met ; 

(C) 	 If a food employee was diagnosed with an 
infection from Shigella spp . and e xcluded 
as speci fied in subsection (b) (1 ) (B) : 
(i) 	 Restrict the food employee , who is 

asymptomatic for at least t wenty-four 
hours and works in a food 
establishment not serving a highly 
suscepti ble population, until the 
conditions for reinstatement as 



specified in pa ragraph (5) (A) or (B) 
are met; or 

(ii) 	 Retain the exclusion f or the food 
employee, who is asymptomatic for at 
least twenty-four hours and works in a 
food establishment that serves a 
highly susceptible population, until 
the conditions for reinstatement as 
specified in subsection (b) (5) (A) or 
(B) , or (5) (A) and (c) (1) (C) (i) are 
met; 

(D) 	 If a food employee was diagnosed with an 
infection from [Enterohemorrhagic or] Shiga 
toxin-producing E. Coli and excluded as 
specified in subsection (b) (1) (B) : 
(i) 	 Restrict the food employee , who is 

asymptomatic for at leas t twenty-four 
hours and works in a food 
establishment not serving a highly 
susceptible population, until the 
conditions for reinstatement as 
specified in subsection (b) (6) (A) or 
(B) are met; or 

(ii) 	 Retain the exclusion for the food 
employee , who is asymptomatic for at 
least twenty-four hours and works in a 
food establishment that serves a 
highly susceptible population, until 
the conditions f or reinstatement a s 
specified in subsection (b) (6) (A) or 
(B) are met; 

ill 	 If a food employee was diagnosed with an 
infection from nontyphoidal Salmonella and 
excluded as specified in subsection 
(b) (1) 	(B) : 

ill 	Restrict the food employee , who is 
asymptomatic for at least thirty days 
until conditions for reinstatement as 
specified in subsection (c ) (7) (A) and 
(B) are met; or 

(ii) 	 Retain the exclusion for the food 
employee who is symptomatic , until 
conditions for reinstatement as 
specified in subsection (c) (7) (A) and 
(B) are met; 



(2) 

(3) 

( 4) 

(5) 

Reinstate a food employee who was excluded as 
specified in subsection (b) (2) if the person in 
charge obtains approval from the department and 
one of t h e following conditions is met : 
(A) 	 The food employee has been jaundiced for 


more than seven calendar days; 

(B) 	 The anicteric food employee has been 


symptomatic with symptoms other than 

jaundice for more than fourteen calendar 

days; or 


(C) 	 The food employee provides to the p erson in 
charge written medical documentation from a 
health practitioner stating that the food 
employee is free of a hepatitis A virus 
infection; 

Reinstate a food employee who was excluded as 
specified in subsection (b) (3) if : 
(A) 	 The person in charge obtains approval from 


the department ; and 

(B) 	 The food employee provides to the person in 

charge written medical documentation from a 
health practitioner that states the food 
employee i s free from S . Typhi infection; 

Reinstate a food e mployee who was excluded as 
specified in s ubsect i o n (b) (1) (B) or (4) (A) who 
was restricted in subsection (b) (4) (B) if the 
person in charge obtains approval from the 
department and one of the following conditions is 
met: 
(A) 	 The excluded or restricted food employee 

provides to t h e person in charge written 
medical documentation from a health 
practitioner stating that the food employee 
is free of a Norovirus infection; 

(B) 	 The food employee was excluded or 
restric t ed after symptoms of vomiting or 
diarrhea resolved, and more than forty 
eight hours have passed since the food 
empl oyee became asymptomatic ; or 

(C) 	 The food employee was excluded or 
restricted and did not develop symptoms and 
more than forty- eight hours have passed 
since the food employee was diagnosed ; 

Reinstate a food employee who was excluded as 
specified in subsection (b) (1) (B) or (5) (A) or 
who was restricted in subsection (b) (5) (B) if the 



person in charge obtains approval from the 
department and one of the following condit i o n s is 
met : 
(A) 	 The excluded or restricted food employee 

provides to the person in c harge written 
medi cal documentation from a health 
practitioner stating that the food e mployee 
is free of a Shigel la spp . i nfection based 
on test results showing two consecutive 
negative stool specimen cultures that are 
taken : 
(i) 	 Not earlier t h a n forty-eight hours 

after discontinuance of antibiotics ; 
and 

(ii) At least twenty-four hours apart ; 
(B) 	 The food employee was excluded or 

· restricted after symptoms of vomiting or 
diarrhea resolved, and more than seven 
calendar days have passed s ince the food 
employee became asymptomatic; or 

(C) 	 The food employee was excluded o r 
restricted and did not develop symptoms and 
more than seven calendar days have passed 
since the food empl oyee was diagnosed; 

(6) 	 Reinstate a food employee who was excluded or 
restricted as specified in s ubsect ion (b) (1) (B) 
or (b) (6) (A) or who was restricted in subsection 
(b) ( 6) (B) if the person in charge obtains 
approval from the department and one of the 
following conditions is met : 
(A) 	 The excluded or restricted food employee 

provides to the person in c ha r g e written 
medical d ocume ntation from a health 
practitioner stating that the food employee 
is free of a n infection from 
[Enterohemorrhagic or ] Shiga toxin
producing Escherichia Coli based on test 
results that show t wo consecutive negative 
s t ool specimen c ul tures t hat are taken: 
(i ) Not earl i er than fo r ty-eight hours 

after discontinuance of a ntib i otics ; 
(ii) At least twenty-four hours apart; 

(B) 	 The food empl oyee was excluded or 
restricted after symptoms of vomiting or 
d i arrhea resolved a nd more than seven 



calendar days have passed since the food 
employee became asymptomatic ; or 

(C) 	 Th e food employee was excluded or 
restricted and did not develop symptoms and 
more than seven days have passed since the 
food employee was diagnosed; 

Reinstate a food empl oyee who was excluded asill 
specified in s ubsecti on (b) (1) (B) or who was 
restricted as specified in subsection (b) (7) if 
the person in charge obtains approval from the 
department and one of the following conditions is 
met: 
(A) 	 The excluded or restricted food employee 

provides to the person in charge written 
medical documentation from a health 
practitioner stating that the food employee 
is free of nontyphoidal Salmonella 
infection based on test results showing two 
consecutive negative stool specimen 
cultures that are taken; 
ill Not earlier than forty-eight hours 

after discontinuance of antibiot ics, 
and 

(ii) 	 At least twenty-four hours apart; 
ill 	 The food employee was restricted after 

symptoms of vomiting or diarrhea resolved, 
and more than thirty days have passed since 
the food employee became asymptomatic ; or 

ill 	 The food employee was excluded or 
restricted and did not develop symptoms and 
more than thirty days have passed since the 
food e mployee was diagnosed . 

[( 7)]..@l Reinstate a food employee who was excluded 
or restricted as specified in subsection 
[ (b) (7) (A)] (b) (8) (A) or (B) if the food employee 
provides to the person in charge written medical 
documentation from a health practitioner stating 
that the food empl oyee meets one of the following 
conditions : 
(A) 	 Has received antibiotic therapy for 

Streptococcus pyogenes infection for more 
than twenty-four hours; 

(B) 	 Has at least one negative throat specimen 
culture for Streptococcus pyogenes 
infection; or 



(C) 	 Is otherwise determined by a health 
practitioner to be free of a Streptococcus 
pyogenes i nfection; 

[(8)]fil 	 Reinstate a food employee who was 
restricted as specified in subsection [(b) (8) ) 
(b) (9) if the skin , infected wound, cut , or 
pustular boil is properly covered with one of the 
f ollowing : 
(A) 	 An impermeable cover such as a finger cot 

or stall and a single-use glove over the 
impermeable cover if the infected wound or 
pustular boi l is on the hand, finger, or 
wrist; 

(B) 	 An impermeable cover on the arm if the 
infected wound or pustular boil is on the 
arm; or 

(C) 	 A dry, durable, tight-fitting bandage if 
the infected wound or pustular boil is on 
another part of the body; 

[(9)JQQl 	 Reinstate a food employee who was 
restricted as specified in s ubsection [(b) (9)) 
(b) (10) and was exposed to one of the following 
pathogens as specified in subsection (a) (1) (D) or 
(E): 

(A) Norovirus and one of the following 
conditions is met : 
(i) 	 More than forty -eight hours have 

passed since the last day the food 
empl oyee was potentially e xposed; or 

(ii) 	 More than forty-e ight hours have 
passed since the food employee ' s 
household contact became asymptomatic; 

(B) 	 Shigella spp. or [Enterohemorrhagic or] 
Shiga toxin producing Escherichia Coli and 
one of the following conditions is met : 
(i) 	 More than three calendar days have 

passed since the last day the f ood 
employee was potentially exposed ; or 

(ii) 	 More than three calendar days have 
passed since the food employee ' s 
household cont act became asymptomatic ; 

(C) 	 S . Typhi and one of the following 

conditions is met : 

(i) 	 More than fourteen calendar days have 

passed since the last day the food 
employee was potentially exposed ; or 



(ii) 	 More than fourteen calendar days have 
passed since the food employee 's 
household contact became asymptomatic. 

(D) 	 Hepatitis A virus and one of the following 
conditions is met: 
(i) 	 The food e mployee is immune to 

hepatitis A virus infection because of 
a prior illness from hepatitis A; 

(ii) 	 The food e mployee is immune to 
hepatitis A virus infection because of 
vaccination against hepatitis A; 

(iii) 	 The food employee is i mmune to 
hepatitis A virus infection because of 
IgG admini stration; 

(iv) 	 More than thirty calendar days have 
passed since the last day the food 
employee was potentially exposed; 

(v) 	 More than thirty calendar days have 
passed since the food employee's 
household contact became jaundiced; or 

(vi) 	 The food employee does not use an 
alternative procedure that allows bare 
hand contact with ready-to-eat food 
until at least thirty calendar days 
after the potential exposure, as 
specified in subsection [(c) (9) (D) (iv) 
and (v) ,] (c) (10) (D) (iv) and (v) , and 
the food employee receives additional 
training about hepatitis A symptoms 
and preventing the transmission of 
infection, proper handwashing 
procedures, and protecting ready-to
eat food from contamination introduced 
by bare hand contact . [Eff 2/24/2014 ; 
am a nd comp ] (Auth : 
HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS §321 - 11) 

§11-50-22 Personal cleanliness . (a) Food employees 
shall keep their hands and exposed portions of their arms 
clean . 

(b) 	 Cleaning procedure. 
( 1) Except as specified in paragraph (4), food 

employees shall clean their hands and exposed 
portions of their arms, including surrogate 
prosthetic devices for hands or arms for at least 



twenty seconds , using a cleaning compound in a 
h a ndwashing sink that is equipped as specified i n 
sections 11-50- 61(c) and 11-50-72(a) to (f) ; 

(2) 	 Food employees shall use the following cleaning 
procedure in the order stated to clean their 
hands and exposed portions of their arms , 
including surrogate prosthetic devices for hands 
and arms : 
(A) 	 Rinse under clean, running water ; 
(B) 	 Apply an amount of cleaning compound 

recommended by t he cleaning compound 
manufacturer ; 

(C) 	 Rub together vigorously for at least ten to 
fifteen seconds while : 
(i) 	 Pay i ng particular attention to 

removing soil from underneath the 
fingernails during the cleaning 
procedure; 

(ii) 	 Creating friction on the surfaces of 
the hands and arms or surrogate 
prosthetic devices for hands and arms, 
finger tips, and areas between the 
fingers; 

(D) 	 Thoroughly rinse under clean, running 
water ; and 

(E) 	 Immediately follow the cleaning procedure 
with thorough drying using a method as 
speci fied in sect ion l l - 50-72(c) ; 

(3) 	 To avoid recontaminating t heir hands or surrogate 
prosthetic devices, food employees may use 
disposable paper towels or similar clean barriers 
when touching surfaces such as manually operated 
faucet handles on a handwashing sink or the 
h andle of a restroom door; 

(4) 	 If approved and capable of removing the types of 
soils encountered in the food operations 
involved, an automatic handwashing facility may 
be used by food employees to clean their hands or 
surrogate prosthetic devices . 

(c) Food employees shall clean their hands and 
exposed portions of their arms as specified in [section 
ll-50-22(b)J subsection (b) immediately before engaging in 
food preparation including working with exposed food, clean 
equipment and utensils , and unwrapped single-service and 
single-use articles and : 



(1) After touching bare human body parts other than 
clean hands and c l ean , exposed portions of arms; 

(2) 	 After using the toilet room; 
(3) 	 After caring for or handling service animals or 

aquatic animals as specified in section 
11-50-23(d) (2) ; 

(4) 	 Except as specified in section 11-50-23(a) (2), 
after coughing, sneezing , using a handkerchief or 
disposable tissue, using tobacco , eating, or 
drinking; 

(5) 	 After handling soiled equipment or utensils ; 
(6) 	 During food preparation, as often as necessary to 

remove soil and contamination and to preven t 
cross contamination when changing tasks ; 

(7) 	 When switching between working with raw food and 
working with ready-to-eat food; 

(8) 	 Before donning gloves [ for ] to initiate a task 
that involves working with food; and 

(9) 	 After engaging in other activities that 
contaminate the hands. 

(d) Food e mployees shall clean their hands in a 
handwashing sink or approved automatic handwashing facility 
and may not cleau t heir hands in a sink used for food 
preparation or warewashing, or in a service sink or a 
curbed cleaning facility used for the disposal of mop water 
and similar liquid waste . 

(e) 	 Hand antiseptics. 
(1) 	 A hand antiseptic used as a topi cal application, 

a hand antiseptic solution used as a hand dip, or 
a hand antiseptic soap shall : 
(A) Comply with one of the following : 

(i) 	 Be an approved drug that is listed in 
the FDA publication "Approved Drug 
Products with Therapeutic Equivalence 
Evaluationsu as an approved drug based 
on safety and effectiveness; or 

(ii) 	 Have active antimicrobial ingredients 
that are listed in the FDA monograph 
for OTC Hea l th-Care Antiseptic Drug 
Products as an antiseptic handwash; 

(B) 	 [Comply with o ne of the following :] Consist 
only of components which the intended use 
of each compl ies with one of the following : 
(i) 	 [Have components that are exempted 

from the requirement of being listed 
in federal food additive regulations] 



A threshold of regulation exemption as 
specified in 21 CFR 170 . 39, entitled 
"Threshold of regulation for 
substances used in food-contact 
articles" ; 

(ii) 	 Comply with and be listed in 21 CFR 
178, entitled "Indirect food 
additives: adjuvants, production 
aids , and sanitizers" as regulated for 
use as a food additive with conditions 
of safe use; or 

(iii) 	 [Comply with and be listed in]~ 
determination of generally recognized 
as safe (GRAS). Partial listings of 
substances with food uses that are 
GRAS may be found in 21 CFR 182, 
entitled "Substances generally 
recognized as safe", 21 CFR 184 , 
entitled "Direct food substances 
affirmed as generally recognized as 
safe", or 21 CFR 186, entitled 
"Indirect food substances affirmed as 
generally recognized as safe", for use 
in contact with food[; and] , and in 
FDA's Inventory of GRAS Notices, or 
A prior sanction listed in 21 CFR 181, 
entitled "Prior Sanctioned Food 
Ingredients," and 

(C) 	 Be applied only to hands that are cleaned 
as specified in subsection (b); 

(2) 	 If a hand antiseptic or a hand antiseptic 
solution used as a hand dip does not meet the 
criteria specified in paragraph (1) (B), use shall 
be : 
(A) 	 Followed by thorough hand rinsing in clean 

water before hand contact with food or by 
the use of gloves ; or 

(B) 	 Limited to situations that involve no 
direct contact with food by the bare hands; 

(3) 	 A hand antiseptic solution used as a hand dip 
shall be maintained clean and at a strength 
equivalent to at least one hundred milligrams per 
liter of chlorine . 

(f) 	 Fingernails maintenance. 



(1) 	 Food employees shall keep their fingernails 
trimmed , filed , and maintained so the edges 
and surfaces are cleanable and not rough; 

(2) 	 Unless wearing intact gloves in good 
repair , a food empl oyee may not wear 
fingernail polish or artificial fingernails 
when working with exposed food . 

(g) Except for a plain ring such as a wedding band, 
while preparing food, food employees may not wear jewelry 
including medical information jewelry on t heir arms and 
hands. 

(h) Food employees shall wear clean outer clothing to 
prevent contamination of food, equipment, utensils, linens, 
and single-service and single-use articles . [Eff 
2/24/2014; a m and comp (Auth : HRS §321-11) 
(Imp: 	 HRS §321-11) 

§11-50-23 Hygienic practices . (a) Ea ting, drinking, 
or using tobacco. 

(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (2), an employee 
shall eat, drink, or use a ny form of tobacco only 
in designated areas where the contaminat ion of 
exposed food ; clean equipment, u t ensils , and 
linens; unwrapped single-service and single-use 
art icles; or other items needing protection 
cannot result ; 

(2) 	 A food employee may drink from a closed beverage 
container if the container i s handled to prevent 
contamination of : 
(A) 	 The employee ' s hands; 
(B) 	 The container ; and 
(C) 	 Exposed food, clean equipment, utensils , 

linen s , unwrapped single-service, and 
single-use articles . 

(b) Food employees experiencing persis t ent sneezing, 
coughing, or a runny nose that causes discharges from the 
eyes , nose, or mouth may not work with exposed food; c lean 
equipment , utensils , and linens; or unwr apped single
service or single-use articles . 

(c) 	 Hair restraints effectiveness . 
(1) 	 Except as provided in paragraph (2), food 

employees may be required to we ar hair restraints 
such as hats , hair coverings or nets, beard 
restraints, and clothing that covers body hair, 
that are designed and worn to effecti vely keep 



their hair from contacting exposed food; clean 
equipment , utensils , and linens; and unwrapped 
single-service and single-use articles; 

(2) 	 This section does not apply to food employees 
such as counter staff who only serve beverages 
and wrapped or packaged foods, hostesses , and 
wait staff if they present a minimal risk of 
contaminating exposed food; clean equipment, 
utensils , and linens; and unwrapped single
service and single-use articles . 

(d) 	 Animals handling prohibition. 
(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (2), food 

employees may not care for or handle animals that 
may be present such as patrol dogs, service 
animals, or pets that are allowed as specified in 
section 11-50- 74 (o) (2) (B) to (E); 

(2) 	 Food employees with service animals may handle or 
care for their service animals and food employees 
may handle or care for fish in aquariums or 
molluscan s hellfish or crustacea in display tanks 
if they wash their hands as specified in section 
11-50-22 (b) and (c) (3) . [Eff 2/24/2014; 
comp ] (Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : 
HRS §321-11) 

§§11-50-24 to 11-50- 29 (Reserved). 

SUBCHAPTER 3 

FOOD 

§11-50-30 Characteristics. Food shall be safe , 
unadulterated, and, as specified in section ll-50-35(b) , 
honestly presented. [Eff 2/24/2014; comp 
(Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 

§11-50-31 Source , specifications for receiving , 
original containers and records . (a) Compliance with food 
law . 

(1) 	 Food shall be obtained from sources that comply 
with law; 

(2) 	 Food prepared in a private home may not be used 
or offered for human consumption in a food 
establishment ; 



[(3) 	 Packaged food s hall be labeled as specified in 
law, including 21 CFR 101 , entitled "Food 
labelingu; 9 CFR 317 , entitled "Labeling , marking 
devices, and containersu , and 9 CFR 381 Subpart N 
entitled "Labeling and containersu, and as 
specified in subsections (n) and (o); 

(4)]fil Fish, o ther than those specified in section 
11-50-33(e) (2), that are intended for consumption 
in raw or undercooked form and allowed as 
specified in section ll-50-33(a) (4) , may be 
offered for s ale or service if they are obtained 
from a supplier that freezes the fish as 
specified in section 11-50-33(e); or if they are 
frozen o n t he premises as specified in section 
11-50-33(e) and records are retained as specified 
in section 11-5 0-33(f) ; 

[(S) Jill Whole-muscle , intact beef steaks that are 
intended for consumption in an undercooked form 
without a consumer advisory as specified i n 
section 11-50-33 (a) (3) shall be : 
(A) 	 Obtained from a food processing plant that , 

upon request by the purchaser, packages t h e 
steak~ and labels them, to indicate that 
the s teaks meet the definition of whole
muscle , intact beef ; or 

(B) 	 Deemed acceptable by the director based o n 
other evidence, such as written buyer 
specifications or invoices , that indicates 
that the steaks meet the definition of 
whole-muscle , intact beef ; and 

(C) 	 If individually cut in a food 

establishment: 

(i) 	 Cut from whole-muscle intact beef that 

is labeled by a food processi n g plant 
as specifi ed in subparagraph (A) or 
identified as specified in 
subparagraph (B); 

(ii) Prepared so they remain intact ; and 
(iii) 	 If packaged for undercooking in a food 

establishment, labeled as s p eci fied in 
subparagraph (A) or identified as 
specified in subparagraph (B) . 

[ (6)Jill Meat and poultry that is not a ready- t o-eat 
food and is in a packaged form when it is offered 
for sale or o therwise offered for consumption, 
shall be labeled to include safe handling 



instructions as specified in l aw, including 9 CFR 
317 . 2 (1) a nd 9 CFR 381 . 125(b) ; 

[(7)]J....§l 	 Eggs that have not been specifically 
treated to destroy all viable Salmonellae shall 
be labeled t o include safe handling instructions 
as speci fied in law, including 21 CFR 101 .1 7 (h) . 

(b) Food in a hermetically sealed contai ner sha ll be 
obtained from a food processing p l a nt that is regulated by 
the food r egulatory agency that has jurisdiction over the 
plant. 

(c) Fluid milk and milk products s h a ll be obtained 
from sources that compl y with Grade A Standards as 
specified in law . 

(d) 	 Fish. 
(1) 	 Fish that are received for sale or service shall 

be : 
(A) 	 Commerci ally a nd lega l ly caught or 

harvested; or 
(B ) 	 Approved for sale or service ; 

(2) 	 Mo l luscan s hellfish that are recreationally 
caugh t may not be received for sale or service . 

(e ) 	 Molluscan shellfish . 
(1 ) Mo l luscan shellfish shall be obtained from 

sources according to law or the 
r equirements s p ecified in the U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services, 
Public Health Service , Food a nd Drug 
Administration, National Shellfish 
Sanitation Program Guide for the Control of 
Molluscan Shellfish; 

(2) 	 Molluscan shel l fish received in i n terstate 
commerce shall be from sources that are 
listed in the Interstate Certified 
Shellfish Shippers List. 

(f) 	 Wild mushrooms . 
(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (2) , mushroom 

species picked in t he wi l d shall [be obtained 
from sources where each mushroom is indivi d ually 
inspected and found t o be safe by an approved 
mushroom identifi cation expert;] not be offered 
for sale or service by a food establ ishment 
unless the food es t ablishme nt has been approved 
to d o so by the department; 

(2) 	 This section does not apply to : 
(A ) Cultivated wild mushroom s p ecies that are 

grown, harves t ed , and processed i n an 



operation that is regulated by the food 
regulatory agency that has jurisdi ction 
over 	the operation ; or 

(B) 	 Wild mushroom species if they are in 
pac kaged fo rm and are the product of a food 
processin g plant that is regulated by the 
food regulatory agency that has 
j u r i sdiction over the plant . 

(g) Game animals . I f game animals are received for 
sale or service they shall be : 

(1) 	 Commercially rai sed for food and: 
(A) 	 Raised, slaughtered, and processed under a 

voluntary inspection program that is 
conducted by the agency that has animal 
health jurisdiction; or 

(B) 	 Under a routine inspection program 
conducted by a regulatory agency other t han 
the agency that has animal health 
jurisdiction ; and 

(C) 	 Raised , slaughtered, and processed 
according to: 
(i) 	 Laws governing meat and poultry as 

determined by t h e agency that has 
animal health j u risdiction and the 
agency that conducts the inspection 
program; and 

(ii) 	 Requirements which are developed by 
t h e agency that has animal health 
jurisdiction and the agency that 
conducts the inspection program with 
consideration of factors such as the 
need for antemortem and postmortem 
examination by an approved 
veterinarian or veterinarian's 
designee; 

(2) 	 Under a voluntary inspection program administered 
by the USDA for game animals such as exotic 
animals (reindeer , e l k , deer , antelope , water 
buffalo , or bison) that are "inspect ed and 
approvedu in accordance with 9 CFR 352 , entitled 
"Exotic animals and horses ; voluntary inspectionu 
or rabbits that are "inspected and certifiedu in 
accordance with 9 CFR 354, entitled "Vol untary 
inspection of rabbits and edibl e products 
thereofu ; 



(3) 	 As allowed by law, for wild game an i mals that are 
live caught : 
(A) 	 Under a routine inspection program 

conducted by a regulatory agency such as 
the agency that has animal health 
jurisdiction ; and 

(B) 	 Slaughtered and processed according to : 
(i) 	 Laws governing meat and poultry as 

determined by the agency that has 
animal health jurisdiction and the 
agency that conducts the inspection 
program; and 

(ii) 	 Requirements which are developed by 
the agency that has animal health 
jurisdiction and the agency that 
conducts the inspection program with 
consideration of factors such as the 
need for antemortem and postmortem 
examination by an approved 
veterinarian or veterinarian's 
designee ; or 

(4) 	 As allowed by law , for field-dressed wild game 
animals under a routine inspection program that 
ensures the animals : 
(A) 	 Receive a postmortem examination by an 

approved veterinarian or veterinarian ' s 
designee; or 

(B) 	 Are field-dressed and transported according 
to requirements specified by the agency 
that has animal health j u r i sdiction a nd the 
agency that conducts the inspection 
program; and 

(C) 	 Are processed according to laws governing 
meat and poultry as determined by the 
agency that has animal health jurisdiction 
and the agency that conducts the inspection 
program. 

(h) 	 Temperature when received . 
(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (2), 

refrigerated, potentially hazardous food 
(time/temperature control for safety food) s ha l l 
be a t a temperature of forty-one degrees 
Fahrenheit or below when received; 

(2) 	 If a temperature other than forty-one degrees 
Fahrenheit for a potentially hazardous food 
(time/temperature control for safety food) is 



specified in law governing its distribution, such 
as laws governing milk and molluscan s he llfish, 
the food may be received a t the specified 
temperature; 

(3) 	 Raw eggs shall be received in refrigerated 
equipment that maintains a n ambient air 
temperature of forty-five degrees Fahrenheit or 
less; 

(4) 	 Potentially haza rdous food (time/temperature 
control for safety food) that is cooked to a 
temperature and for a time specified in sect ion 
11-50-33(a) to (c) and r e ceived hot shall be at a 
temperature of one hundred thirty-five degrees 
Fahrenheit or above ; 

(5) 	 A food that is labeled frozen and shipped frozen 
by a food processing plant shall be received 
frozen; 

(6) 	 Upon receipt , potentially hazardous food 
(time/temperature control for safety food) shall 
be free of evidence of previous temperature 
abuse . 

(i) Food may not contain unapproved food additives or 
additives that : 

(1) 	 Exceed amounts specified in 21 CFR 170-180 
relating to food additives; 

(2) 	 Generally recognized as safe or prior sanctioned 
substances that exceed amounts specified in 21 
CFR 181-186; 

(3) 	 Substances that exceed amounts specified in 9 CFR 
Subpart C Section 424 . 21(b) , entitled "Food 
ingredients and sources of radiationu; or 

(4) 	 Pesticide residues that exceed provisions 
specified in 40 CFR 180, entitled " Tolerances and 
exceptions for pesticide c hemical residues in 
foodu . 

(j) Eggs shall be received clean and sound and may 
not exceed the restricted egg tolerances for U. S . Consumer 
Grade Bas specified in United States Standards, Grades, 
and Weight Classes for Shell Eggs , AMS 56 . 200 et seq . , 
administered by the Agricultural Marketing Service of USDA . 

(k) 	 Eggs and milk products, pasteurized. 
(1) 	 Egg products shall be obtained pasteurized; 
(2) 	 Fluid and dry milk and milk products shall: 

(A) 	 Be obtained pasteurized; and 
(B) 	 Comply with Grade A Standards as specified 

in law ; 



(3) 	 Frozen milk products , such as ice cream, shall be 
obtained pasteurized as specified in 21 CFR 135, 
entitled "Frozen desserts" . 

(4) 	 Cheese shall be obtained pasteurized unless 
alternative procedures to pasteurization are 
specified in the CFR, such as 21 CFR 133, 
entitled "Cheeses and related cheese products", 
for curing certain cheese vari eties . 

(1) Food packages shall be in good condition and 
protect the integrity of the contents so that the food is 
not exposed to adulteration or potential contaminan t s . 

(m) Ice for use as a food or a cool ing medi um shall 
be made from drinking water . 

(n) 	 Shucked shellfish, packaging and i dentification . 
(1) 	 Raw shucked shellfish shall be obtained in 

nonreturnable packages which bear a legible label 
that identifies the : 
(A) 	 Name , address, and certification number of 

the shucker , packer, or repacker of t he 
mol l uscan shellfish ; and 

(B) 	 The "sell by" or "best if u sed by" date for 
packages with a capacity of less than one
half gallon or the date shucked for 
packages with a capacity of one-half gallon 
or more; 

(2) 	 A package of raw shucked shellfish that does not 
bear a label or which bears a label which does 
not contain all the information as specified in 
paragraph (1) shall be subject to a hold order, 
as allowed by law, or seizure and destruction . 

(o) 	 Shellstock identification . 
(1) 	 Shel lstock shall be obtained in containers 

bearing legible source identification tags or 
labels that are affixed by the harvester or 
dea ler that depurates, ships, or reships the 
shellstock, as specified in state rules or the 
National Shellfish Sanitation Program Guide for 
the Control of Molluscan Shel lfish, and : 
(A) 	 Except a s specified in paragraph (3), the 

harvester ' s tag or label shall list the 
following information in the following 
order : 
(i) 	 The harvester ' s identification number 

that is assigned by the shellfish 
control authority; 

(ii) The date of harvesting; 



(iii) 	 The most precise ident i fication of the 
harvest l oca tion or aquaculture s i te 
that is practicable based on the 
system of harvest area designations 
that is in use by the she ll fish 
control authority and including the 
abbreviation of t he name of the state 
or country in which the shellfish are 
harvested; 

(iv) The type and quantity of s he ll fish ; 
and 

(v) 	 The following s t atement in bold, 
capitalized type : "This tag is 
r equired to be a t tached until 
cont ainer is empty or retagged and 
thereafter kept on file for 90 daysu ; 
and 

(B) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (4), each 
dealer ' s tag or label shall list the 
following information in the following 
order : 
(i) 	 The dealer's name and address , and the 

certificati on number assigned by the 
shellfish control a uthority ; 

(ii) 	 The original shipper ' s certification 
number including t he abbreviation of 
the name of the state or country in 
which the s he llfish are harvested ; 

(iii) 	 The same informat ion as specified for 
a harvester's tag in subparagraph 
(A) (ii) to (iv); and 

(iv) 	 The following statement in bo ld, 
cap italized type : "This tag i s 
required to be attached until 
container is empty a nd thereafter kept 
on file for 90 daysu ; 

(2) 	 A container of shellstock that does not bear a 
tag or label or that bears a tag or label that 
d oes not contain all t he information as specified 
in paragraph (1) shall be subject to a hold 
o rder , as a llowed by law, or sei zure and 
d est r uction in accordance with 21 CFR Subpart D, 
entit l ed "Specific administrative decisions 
regarding interstate shipmentsu , Section 
1 24 0. 60(d); 



(3) 	 I f a space i s provided on the harveste r ' s tag or 
l a bel for a dealer ' s name, address, and 
certification number, the d ealer ' s information 
shall be listed first ; 

(4) 	 I f the harvester ' s tag or lab e l i s designed to 
a ccommodate each dealer ' s i den t ification as 
specified in paragraph (1 ) (B) (i) and (ii), 
indiv idual d ealer tags o r labels need not be 
provided . 

(p) Whe n received by a food establishment, shells t ock 
shall be reasonably free of mud, dead shellfish, and 
shellfish with broken shells. Dead shellfish or shellstock 
with badly b r oken shells shall be discarded . 

(q) 	 Juice tre ated . Pre-packaged j uice shall : 
(1) 	 Be obtain ed from a processor with a HACCP system 

a s specified in 21 CFR Part 120 , entitled "Hazard 
analysis and critical cont r ol (HACCP) systems" ; 
and 

(2) 	 Be obtained pasteurized or otherwise treated to 
attain a fiv e-log reduction of the most resistant 
microorganism of public health significance as 
specified in 21 CFR Part 120 .24, entitled 
"Process Controls" . 

(r) 	 Molluscan s hellfish , original cont ainer . 
(1) 	 Except as specifi e d in paragraphs (2) to (4), 

molluscan s hellfish may not be removed from t he 
container in which they are received other than 
immediately befor e sale or preparation for 
service ; 

(2) 	 For display p u rposes , shellstock may be removed 
from the container in which they are received, 
di splayed on drained ice, or h eld in a display 
contain e r, and a quantity specified b y a consumer 
may be removed from the display or display 
container a nd provided to the consumer if : 
(A) 	 The sou rce of the shellstock on display is 

identified as specified i n s ubsection (o) 
and recorded as specified in subsect ion 
(s) ; 	 a nd 

(B) 	 The s hellstock are protected from 
conta mination ; 

(3) 	 Shucked shellfish may b e removed from the 
container in which they were received and held in 
a d i splay contain er from which individual 
servings are dispensed upon a consumer ' s request 
if: 



(A) 	 The labeling information for the shellfish 
on display as specified in subsection (n) 
is retained and correl ated to the date 
when, or dates during whi ch, the shellfish 
are sold or served; and 

(B) 	 The shellfish are protected from 
contamination ; 

(4) 	 Shucked shellfish may be removed from the 
container in which they were rece i ved and 
repacked in consumer self service containers 
where allowed by law if : 
(A) 	 The labeling information for the shellfish 

is on each consumer self service container 
as specified in subsection (n) and section 
11-50-35 (c) (1) and (2) (A) to [ (E);] J.QL 

(B) 	 The labeling information as specified in 
subsection (n) is retained and correlated 
with the date when, or dates during which, 
the shellfish are sold or served; 

(C) 	 The labeling infor mation and dates 
specified in subparagraph (B) are 
maintained for ninety d ays; a nd 

(D) The s hellfish are protected from 

contamination . 


(s) 	 Shellstock, maintaining identification . 
(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (3) (B), 

shellstock tags or l abels shall remain attached 
to the container in which t h e shellstock are 
received until the container is empty; 

(2) 	 The date when the last shellstock from the 
container is sold or served shall be recorded on 
the tag or label; 

(3) 	 The identity of the source of shellstock that are 
sold or served shall be maintained by retaining 
shellstock tags or labels for ninety calendar 
days from the date that is recorded on the tag or 
label, as specified in paragraph (2), by : 
(A) 	 Using an approved record keeping system 

that keeps the tags or labels in 
chronological order correlated to the date 
that is recorded on the tag o r label, as 
specified in paragraph (2); and 

(B) 	 If shellstock are removed from its tagged 
or labeled container : 



(i) 	 Preserving source identification by 
using a record keeping system as 
s pecified in subparagraph (A); and 

(ii) 	 Ensuring that shellstock from one 
tagged or labeled container are not 
commingled with shellstock from 
another container with different 
certification numbers; different 
harvest dates ; o r different growing 
areas as identified on the t ag or 
label before being ordered by the 
consumer . [Eff 2/24/2014; am and comp 

] (Auth : HRS §321-11) 
(Imp : HRS §321-11) 

§11-50-32 Protection from conta mination after 
receiving . (a) Preventing contamination from hands . 

(1) 	 Food employees shall wash their hands as 
specified in section ll-50-22(b); 

(2) 	 Except when washing fruits and vegetables as 
specified in subsection (g) or as specified in 
paragraph (4), food employees may not con~act 
exposed, ready-to-eat food with their ba r e hands 
and shall use suitable utensils such as deli 
tissue, spatulas , tongs , singl e-use g loves, or 
dispensing equipment ; 

(3) Food employees shall minimize bare hand and arm 
contact with exposed food that i s not in a ready 
to - eat form ; 

J.il 	 Paragraph (2) does not apply to a food employee 
that contacts exposed, ready-to- eat food with 
bare hands at t he time the ready-to-eat food is 
being added as an ingredient to a food that : 
(A) 	 Contains a raw animal food and is to be 

cooked in the food establishment to heat 
al l parts of the food to the minimum 
temperature specified in section 11-50
33(a) (1)-(2) or ll-50-33(b); or 

ill 	 Does not contain a r a w animal food but is 
to be cooked in t he food establishment to 
heat all parts of the f ood tp a temperature 
of one hundred forty-five degrees 
Fahrenheit. 



[(4) ]ffi Food employees not serving a highly 
s usceptible population may contact exposed, 
ready-to-eat food wi t h their bare hands if: 
(A) 	 The [permit holder] owner or operator 

obtains prior approval from the department; 
(B) 	 Written procedures are maintained in the 

food establishment and made available to 
the department upon request that include: 
(i) 	 For each bare hand contact procedure, 

a listing of the specific ready-to-eat 
foods that are touched by bare hands; 

(ii) 	 Diagrams and other information showing 
that handwashing facilities, 
installed , located , equipped , and 
maintained as specified in sections 
11-50-61(g), (1), (o) and 11-50-72(b), 
(c) , and (e), are in an easily 
accessible location and in c l ose 
proximity to the work station where 
the bare hand contact procedure is 
conducted; 

(C) 	 A written employee health policy that 
details llow the food establis h ment complies 
with section 11-50-21 (a), (b), and (c) 
including : 
(i) 	 Documentation t hat food employees and 

conditional employees acknowledge that 
they are informed to report 
information about their health a nd 
activities as they relate to 
gastrointestinal symptoms and diseases 
tha t are transmittable through food as 
specified in section 11-50-21(a) (1); 

(ii) 	 Documentation that food employees and 
conditional employees acknowledge 
their responsibilities as specified in 
section 11-50- 21(a) (5); and 

(iii) 	 Documentation that the person in 
charge acknowledges the 
responsibilities as specified in 
section 11-50-21 (a) (2) to (4), (b), 
and (c); 

(D) 	 Documentation that food employee s 
acknowledge that they have received 
training in: 



(i) 	 The risks of contacting the specific 
ready-to-eat foods with bare hands ; 

(ii) 	 Proper handwashing as specified in 
section 11-50-22(b); 

(iii) 	 When to wash their hands as specified 
in section 11-50-22(c); 

(iv) Where to wash their hands as specified 
i n section 11-50 22(d); 

(v) 	 Proper f ingernail maintenance as 
specified in section ll -50-22(f) ; 

(vi) 	 Prohibition of jewelry as specified in 
section 11-50-22(g); and 

(vii) 	 Good hygienic practices as specified 
in section 11-50-23(a) a nd (b); 

(E) 	 Documentati on that hands are washed before 
food preparation and as necessary to 
prevent cross contamination by food 
employees as speci fi ed in section 
11-50-22 (a), (b), (c), and (d) during all 
hours of operation when the specific ready 
to- eat foods are prepared; 

(F) 	 Documentation that food employees 
contacting ready-to-eat food with bare 
hands use two or more of the following 
control measures to provide additional 
safeguards to hazards associated with bare 
hand contact: 
(i) 	 Double handwashing; 

(ii) 	 Nail brushes; 
(iii) 	 A hand antiseptic after handwashing as 

specified in section ll -50-22(e); 
(iv) 	 Incentive programs such as paid sick 

leave that assist or encourage food 
employees not to work when they are 
ill; or 

(v) 	 Other control measures approved by the 
[department;] director; and 

(G) 	 Documentation that corrective action is 
taken when subparagraphs (A) to (F) are not 
followed . 

(b) A food employee may not use a utensil more than 
once to taste food that is to be sold or served . 

(c) Packaged and unpackaged food - separation , 
packaging, and segregation. 

(1) 	 Food shall be protected from cross contamination 
by : 



(A) 	 Except as specified in clause (iii) , 
separating r aw animal foods during storage , 
preparation, holding , and display from : 
(i) 	 Raw ready-to-eat food including o ther 

r aw animal f ood such as fis h for sushi 
or molluscan shellfish, or other raw 
ready-to-eat food such as fruits and 
vegetables; and 

(ii) 	 cooked ready-to-eat food; 
(iii) 	 Frozen, commercial ly processed and 

packaged raw anima l food may be stored 
or displayed with or a bove frozen, 
commercially processed and packaged, 
ready-to eat food ; 

(B) 	 Except when combined as i ngredients , 
separating types of raw animal foods from 
each other such as beef , fish , lamb, pork, 
and poultry during storage, preparation , 
holding , a nd display by : 
(i) 	 Using separate equipment for each 

type ; 
(ii) 	 Arranging each type of food in 

equipment so that cross contamination 
of one type with another is prevented ; 
or 

(iii) 	 Preparing each type of food at 
di fferent t imes o r in separate areas ; 

(C) 	 Cleaning equipment and u tensils as 
specified in section 11-50-50(b) (1) and 
sanitizing as specified i n section 
11-50-51 ( C ); 

(D) 	 Except as specified in section 
11-50-34 (e} (2) (B) and in paragraph (2), 
storing the food in packages, covered 
containers, or wrappings; 

(E) 	 Cleaning hermetically sealed containers of 
food of visible soil before opening ; 

(F) 	 Protecting food containers that are 
received packaged together in a case or 
overwrap from cuts when the case or 
overwr ap is opened ; 

(G) 	 Storing damaged, spoiled, or recalled food 
being held in the food establishment as 
specified in secti on (11-50-73 (c) ;] 11-50
73(c); and 



(H) 	 Separating fruits and vegetables, before 
they are washed as specified in subsection 
(g) from ready-to-eat food ; 

(2) 	 Paragraph (1) (D) does not apply to : 
(A) 	 Whole, uncut, raw fruits and vegetables and 

nuts i n the shell, that requires peeling or 
hulling before consumption ; 

(B) 	 Primal cuts , quarters, or sides of raw meat 
or slab bacon that are hung on clean, 
sanitized hooks or placed on clean, 
sanitized racks; 

(C) Whole, uncut, processed meats such as 
country hams, and smoked or cured sausages 
that are placed on clean, sanitized racks; 

(D) 	 Food being cooled as specified in section 
11-50-34 (e) (2) (B); or 

(E) 	 Shellstock . 
(d) Except for containers holding food that can be 

readily and unmistakably recognized, such as dry pasta, 
working containers holding food or food ingredients that 
are removed from their original packages for use in the 
food establishment, such as cooking oils, flour, herbs , 
poLato flakes , snlt, spices, and sugar shall be identified 
with the common name of the food. 

(e) Pasteurized eggs or egg products shal l be 
s ubstituted for raw eggs in the preparation of foods such 
as Caesar salad, hollandaise or Bearnaise sauce, 
mayonnaise, meringue, eggnog, ice cream, and egg-fortified 
beverages that are not: 

(1) 	 Cooked as specified in secti on ll-50-33(a) (1) (A) 
or (B); or 

(2) 	 Included in section ll-50-33(a) (4). 
(f) 	 Protection from unapproved additives . 
(1) 	 Food shall be protected from contamination that 

may result from the addition of, as specified in 
section ll-50-3l(i) : 
(A) 	 Unsafe or unapproved food or col or 

additives; and 
(B) 	 Unsafe or unapproved levels of approved 

food and color additives ; 
(2) 	 A food employee may not : 

(A) 	 Apply sulfiting agents to fresh fruits and 
vegetables intended for raw consumption or 
to a food considered to be a good source of 
vitamin Bl; or 



(B) 	 Except for grapes, serve or sell food 
specified in subparagraph (A) that is 
treated with s ulfiting agents before 
receipt by the food establishment. 

(g) 	 Washing fruits and vegetables . 
(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (2) and except 

for whole, raw fruits and vegetables that are 
intended for washing by the consumer before 
consumption , raw fruits and vegetables s h a l l be 
thoroughly washed in water to remove soil and 
other contaminants before being cut, combined 
with other ingredients, cooked, served, or 
offered for human consumption in ready-to-eat 
form ; 

(2) 	 Fruits and vegetables may be washed by using 
chemicals as specified in section 11-50-Sl(f). 

(h) After u se as a medium for cooling the exterior 
surfaces of food such as melons or fish, packaged foods 
such as canned beverages, or cooling coils and tubes of 
equipment , ice may not be used as food. 

(i) Storage or display of food in contact with water 
or ice . 

(1) Packaged food may not be stored in direct C()ntact 
with ice or water if the food is subject to the 
entry of water because of the nature of its 
packaging, wrapping, or container or i t s 
positioning in the ice or water; 

(2) 	 Except as specified in paragraphs (3) and (4), 
unpackaged food may not be stored in direct 
conta ct with undrained ice ; 

(3) 	 ~hole , raw fruits or vegetables ; cut, raw 
vegetables such as celery or carrot sticks or cut 
potatoes; and tofu may be immersed in ice or 
water; 

( 4) Raw poultry and raw fish that are received 
immersed in ice in shipping cont ainers may remain 
in t hat condition while in storage awaiti ng 
preparation, display, service, or sale. 

(j) 	 Food shall only contact surfaces of : 
(1) 	 Equipment and utensils that are cleaned as 

specified in section 11-50-50 a nd sanitized as 
specified in section 11-~0-51; or 

(2) 	 Single-service and single-use articles[ .); or 
Linens, such as cloth napkins , as specified inill 
subsection (1) that are laundered as specified in 
section 11-50-52. 



(k) Durin g pauses in f ood preparation o r dispensing, 
food preparation and dispensing utensils s h a l l be stored: 

(1 ) Except as specified i n paragraph (2) , in t he food 
with their handles above the top of the food and 
the contai ner ; 

(2) 	 In food that is not pot e n tially ha zardous 
(time/temperature control for safety food) with 
their handles above the top of the food within 
containers or equipment that can be closed, such 
as bins of sugar, flour , or cinnamon; 

(3) 	 On a clean portion of the food preparation tabl e 
or cooking equipment only if the in-use utensil 
and the food-contact surface of the food 
preparation table or cooking equipment are 
cleaned and s anitized at a frequency specified in 
sections 1 1-50-50(b) and 11-50-51(b) ; 

(4 ) 	 In running water of suffici ent veloci ty to f l us h 
particulates to t he drain , if used wi th moist 
food s uch as i ce cream or mashed potatoes; 

(5) 	 In a clean, prot ected location if the utensils , 
such as ice scoops , are used on l y with a food 
that is not potentially hazardous 
(time/temperature control for safety food); 

(6) 	 I n a container of water if the water is 
maintained at a temperature of at l eas t o ne 
hundred thirty-five degrees Fahrenheit a n d the 
container is cle aned at a frequency specified in 
section 11-50-50 (b) (4) (G ); or 

(7) 	 In any other manner approved by t he department . 
(1) Linens [and napkins] , such as cloth napkins, may 

not be used in contact with food unless they are used to 
line a container for the service of foods and t h e linens 
and napkins are replaced each time t he container i s 
refi lled for a new consumer . 

(m ) 	 Wipin g cloths , use l imitation. 
(1 ) Cloths in- use for wiping food spi l ls from 

tableware and carry-out containers that occur as 
food is being served s h all be : 
(A) 	 Maintained dry; a nd 
(B) 	 Use d for no other purpose; 

(2) 	 Clot h s in-use for wiping counters and other 
equ ipment s urfaces s h a ll be: 
(A) 	 Held between uses in a chemical sanitizer 

solution at a concentration specified i n 
section 11-50-49(m); and 



(3) 

( 4) 

(5) 

(6) 

(n) 

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

( 4) 

(o) 

refills . 
( 1) 

(B) Laundered daily as specified in section 
11-50-52 (b) (4); 

Cloths i n -use for wiping surfaces in contact with 
raw animal foods shall be kept separate from 
cloths used for other purposes; 
Dry wiping cloths and the chemical sanitizing 
solutions specified in paragraph (2) (A) in which 
wet wiping cloths are held between uses shall be 
free of food debris and visible soil ; 
Containers of chemical sanitizing solutions 
specified in paragraph (2) (A) in which wet wiping 
cloths are held between uses shall be stored off 
the floor and used in a manner that prevents 
contamination of food, equipment, utensils , 
linens, single-service , or single-use articles; 
Singl e -use disposable sanitizer wipes shall be 
used i n accordance with EPA approved 
manufacturer's label use instructions . 
Gloves , use limitation. 
If used, single-use gloves shall be used for only 
one task such as working with ready-to- eat food 
or with raw animal food , used for no other 
purpose , and discarded when damaged or soiled, or 
when interruptions occur in the operation ; 
Except as specified in paragraph (3) , slash
resistant gloves that are used to protect the 
hands during operations requiring cutting shall 
be used in direct contact only with food that is 
subsequently cooked as specified in section 
11-50-33 such as frozen food or a primal cut of 
meat; 
Slash-resistant g l oves may be used with ready-to
eat food that will not be subsequently cooked if 
the slash-res i stant gloves have a smooth , 
durable, and nonabsorbent outer surface; or if 
the slash- resistant gloves are covered with a 
smooth , durable, nonabsorbent glove , or a single
use glove; 
Cloth gloves may not be used in direct contact 
with food unless the food is subsequently cooked 
as required in section 1 1-50-33 such as frozen 
food or a primal c u t of meat . 
Using clean tableware for second portions and 

Except for refilling a consumer ' s drinking c up or 
container without contact between the pouring 



(2) 

(3) 

(p) 
[(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

ill 

utensil and the lip- contact area of the drinking 
cup or container , food employees may not use 
tableware, including singl e-service articles , 
soiled by the consumer , to provide second 
portions or refills ; 
Except as specified in paragraph (3) , self 
service consumers may not be allowed to use 
soiled tableware , including single-service 
articles , to obtain additional food from the 
display and serving equipment ; 
Drinking cups and containers may be reused by 
self-service consumers if refilling is a 
contamination-free process as specified in 
section ll-50-46(p) (1) , (2) , and (4) . 
Refilling returnables. 
A take - home food container returned to a food 
establishment may not be refilled at a food 
establi shment with a potentially hazardous food 
(time/temperature control for safety food); 
Except as specified in paragraph (3) , a take-home 
food container refilled with food that is not 
potentially hazardous (time/temperature control 
for safety food) shall be cleaned as specified in 
section 11-50-50 ( k) (2) ; 
Personal take-out beverage containers, such as 
thermally insulated bottles, nonspill coffee 
cups, and promotional beverage glasses, ma y be 
refilled by employees or the consumer if 
refilling is a contamination- free process as 
specified in section ll-50-46(p ) (1), (2) , and 
( 4 ) . ] ill Except as specified in paragraphs (2)
(5) of this section , empty containers returned to 
a food establishment for cleaning and refilling 
with food shall be cleaned and refilled in a 
regulated food processing plant . 
A take-home food container returned to a food 
establishment may be filled at a food 
establishment with food if the food container is : 
(A) 	 Designed and constructed for reuse and in 


accordance with the requirements specified 

under sections 11-50-45 and 11-50-46 . 


ill One that is initially provided by the food 
establishment to the consumer, either empty 
or filled with food by the food 
establishment , for the purpose of being 
returned for reuse; 



ill Returned to the food establishment by t h e 
consumer a f t er use; 

J..Ql_ Subject to the following steps before being 
refilled with food : 
ill 	 Cl eane d as s pecified under section 1 1 

50-50 / 
Sani tized as specified under section 
11-50-51, and 

(iii) 	 Visually inspected by a food employee 
to verify t hat t he container , as 
returned, meets the requirements 
specified under sections 11-50-45 and 
11-50-46. 

ill 	A take- home food container returned t o a food 
establishment may be refilled at a food 
establ ishment with beverage if : 
(A) 	 The beverage is not a potentiall y hazardous 

food ; 
ill 	 The design of the container and o f t he 

rinsin g equipment and the nature of the 
beverage , whe n considered together , allow 
effective cleaning at home or in t he food 
estal:Jlishment ; 

ill 	Fac ilities for rinsing before refilling 
returned container with fresh , hot water 
t h at is under pressure and not recirculated 
a r e provided as part of the dispensing 
system; 

J..Ql 	 The consumer-owned con tainer returned t o 
t h e food establishment for refill i n g is 
r efilled for sale or service only t o t he 
same con sumer; a nd 

ill 	 The container is r efilled by : 
ill An employee of the food establishment, 

or 
(ii) 	 The owner of the container if the 

beverage system includes a 
contamination-free transfer process as 
specified under section 11-50
46(p) (1), (2) , and (4) that cannot be 
bypassed by the container owner . 

ill 	Cons umer-owned , personal take-out beverage 
containers , such as thermally insulated bottles , 
nonspill coffee cups, and promotional beverage 
glasses , may be refilled by employees or the 
consumer i f refil l ing is a contamination-free 



process as specified under section 11-50
4 6 (p) (1) , (2) , and ( 4) . 

ill 	Consumer-owned containers t hat are not food
specific may be filled at a water vending machine 
or system. 

(q) 	 Food storage . 
(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraphs (2) and (3), 

food shall be protected from contamination by 
storing the food : 
(A) 	 In a clean, dry location; 
(B) 	 Where it is not exposed to splash, dust, or 

other contamination; and 
(C) 	 At least six inches above the floor ; 

(2) 	 Food in packages and working containers may be 
stored less than six inches above the floor on 
case l ot handling equipment as specified in 
section ll-50-46(ii); 

(3 ) 	 Pressuri zed beverage containers , cased food in 
waterproof containers such as bottles or cans, 
and milk containers in plastic crates may be 
stored on a floor that is clean and not exposed 
to floor moi s ture . 

(r) 	 Food may not be stored : 
(1) 	 In locker rooms ; 
(2) 	 In toilet rooms ; 
(3) 	 In dressing rooms; 
(4) 	 In garbage rooms; 
(5) 	 In mechanical rooms; 
(6) 	 Under sewer lines that are not shielded to 

intercept potential drips; 
(7) 	 Under leaking water lines, including leaking 

automatic fire sprinkler heads, or under lines on 
which water has condensed; 

(8) 	 Under open stairwells; or 
(9) 	 Under other sources of c ontaminat ion. 
(s) Potentially hazardous food (time/temperature 

control for safety food) dispensed through a vending 
machine shall be in the package in which it was placed at 
the food establishment or food processing plant at which it 
was prepared . 

(t) During preparation, unpackaged food shall be 
protected from environmental sources of contamination . 

(u) Except for nuts i n the shell and whole, raw 
fruits and vegetables that are intended for hulling, 
peeling, or washing by the consumer before consumption, 
food o n display s hall be protected from contamination by 



the use of packaging; counter, service line, or salad bar 
f ood guards; display cases; or other effective means. 

(v) 	 Condiments, protection. 
(1) 	 Condiments shall be protected from contamination 

by being kept in dispensers that are designed t o 
provide protection, protected food displays 
provided with the proper utensils, original 
containers designed for dispensing , or individual 
packages or portions; 

(2) 	 Condiments at a vending machine location shall be 
in individual packages or provided in dispensers 
that are filled at an approved location, such as 
the food establishment that provides food to the 
vending machine location, a food processing plant 
that i s regulated by the agency that has 
jurisdiction over the operation, or a properly 
equipped facility that is located on the site of 
the vending machine location. 

(w) 	 Consumer self-service operations. 
(1) Raw , unpackaged animal food , such as beef , lamb , 

pork, poultry, and fish may not be offered for 
consumer self-service. This paragraph does not 
apply to: 
(A) 	 Consumer self- service of ready-to-eat foods 

at buffets or salad bars that serve foods 
such as sushi, sashimi, poke, or raw 
shellfish; 

(B) 	 Ready-to-cook i ndividual portions for 
immediate cooking and consumption on the 
premises s uc h as consumer-cooked meats or 
consumer-selected ingredients for Mongolian 
barbecue or yakiniku ; 

(C) 	 Raw , shell-on shrimp , or crustacean; or 
(D) 	 Raw, whole, unprocessed fish that are 

naturally protected from contamination by a 
shell or skin; 

(2) 	 Consumer self-service operation_s shall be 
provided with suitable utensils or effective 
dispensing methods that protect the food from 
contamination ; 

(3) 	 Consumer self-service operations such as buffets 
and salad bars shall be monitored by food 
employees trained in safe operating procedures . 

(x) When food sample demonstrations and food 
promotions are authorized in the establishment, the person 



in charge shall ensure that those activities comply with 
the applicable sanitation provisions of this chapter . 

(y) 	 Returned food and re- service of food . 
(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (2), after being 

served or sold and in the possession of a 
consumer , food that is unused or returned by the 
consumer may not be offered as food for human 
consumption ; 

(2) 	 Except as specified in section 11-50-37 (a) (7), a 
container of food that is not potential ly 
hazardous (time/temperature control for safety 
food) may be re-served from one consumer to 
another if : 
(A) 	 The food is dispensed so that it is 

protected from contamination and the 
container is closed between uses, such as a 
narrow-neck bottle containing catsup, steak 
sauce , or wine; or 

(B) 	 The food, such as crackers, salt, or 
pepper, is in an unopened original package 
and is maintained in sound condition . 

(z) Food shall be protected from contamination that 
may result from a factor or source not specified in 
subsections (a) to (y) . [Eff 2/24/2014 ; am and comp 

] (Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 

§11-50-33 Destruction of organisms of public health 
concern . (a) Cooking raw animal foods . 

(1) Except as specified in paragraphs (2), (3) and 
(4), raw ani mal foods such as eggs, fish, meat, 
poultry , and foods containi ng these raw animal 
foods, shall be cooked to heat all parts of the 
food to a temperature and for a time that 
complies with one of the fdllowing methods base d 
on the food that is being cooked : 
(A) 	 One hundred forty-five degrees Fahrenheit 

or above for fifteen seconds for : 
(i) 	 Raw eggs that are broken and prepared 

i n response to a consumer ' s order and 
for immediate service ; and 

(ii) Except as specified in subparagraphs 
(B) and (C) and paragraphs (2) and 
(3), fish and meat including game 
animals commercially raised for food 
as specified in section 



11-50- 31(g) (1) (A) and game animals 
under a voluntary inspection program 
as specified in section 
11- 50- 31 (g) (1) (B); 

(B) 	 One hundred fifty-five degrees Fahrenheit 
for fifteen seconds or the temperature 
specified in Table 33 - 1 that corresponds to 
the holding time for ratites , mechanically 
tenderized, and injected meats; the 
following if they are comminuted : fish, 
meat , game animals commercially raised for 
food as specified in section 
11-50-31(g) (1) (A) , and game animals in a 
voluntary inspection program as specified 
in section 11-50-31(g) (1) (B); and raw eggs 
that are not prepared as specified in 
subparagraph (A) (i) : 

Table 33-1 
Minimum 

Temperature Time 
145°F 3 minutes 
150°F 1 minute 
158°F <1 second (instantaneous) 

; or 
(C) 	 One hunqred sixty-five degrees Fahrenheit 

o r above for fifteen seconds for poultry, 
baluts, wild game animals as specified in 
section 11-50-31 (g) (1) (C) , stuffed fish, 
stuffed meat , stuffed pasta , stuffed 
poultry , stuffed ratites, or stuffing 
containing fish , meat, poultry, or ratites; 

(2) 	 Whole meat roasts including beef, corned beef, 
lamb, pork, a n d cured pork roasts such as ham 
shall be cooked : 
(A) 	 In an oven that is preheated to the 

temperature specified for the roast ' s 
weight in Table 33-2 and that is held at 
that temperature: 

Table 33-2 

Oven Type 
Oven Temperature Based on Roast Weight 
Less t h an 10 lbs 10 l bs or More 

Still Dry 350°F or more 250°F or more 
Convection 325°F or more 250°F or more 



High Humidity1 I 250°F or less 250°F or less 
1Relative humidity greater than ninety per cent for at least 
one hour as measured in the cooking chamber or exit of the 
oven; or in a moisture-impermeable bag that provides one 
hundred per cent humidi t y . 

; and 
(B) 	 As specified in Table 33-3 , to heat a ll 

parts of the food to a temperature and for 
the holding time that corresponds to that 
temperature: 

Table 33-3 
Temperature Time1 in 

Minutes 
Temperature Time1 in 

Seconds 
130 °F 112 147°F 134 
131°F 89 1 49°F 85 
133°F 56 151°F 54 
135°F 36 153°F 34 
136°F 28 155°F 22 
138°F 18 157°F 14 
140°F 12 158°F 0 
142°F 8 - -
144°F 5 - -
145°F 4 - -

1Holding time may include post-oven heat rise. 

(3) 	 A raw or undercoo ked whole-muscle, intact beef 
steak may be served or offered for sale in a 
ready- to- eat form if : 
(A) 	 The food establishment serves a popula t ion 

that is not a highly susceptible 
population; 

(B) 	 The steak i s l abe l ed to indicate that it 
meets the definition of "whole-muscle , 
intact beef" as specif i ed in section 
11-50-31 (a) (5) ; and 

(C) 	 The steak is cooked on both the top and 
bottom to a surface temperature of o ne 



hundred forty-five degrees Fahrenheit or 
above and a cooked color change is achieved 
on all external surfaces ; 

( 4) A raw animal food such as raw egg , raw fish , raw
marinated fish , raw molluscan shellfish, or steak 
tartare; or a partially cooked food such as 
lightly cooked fish , soft cooked eggs , or rare 
meat other than whole-muscle, intact beef steaks 
as specified in paragraph (3), may be served or 
offered for sale upon consumer request or 
selection in a ready-to-eat form if : 
(A) As specified in section l l-50-37(a) (3) (A) 

and (B) , the food establishment serves a 
population that is not a highly susceptible 
population; 

(B) The food , if served or offered for service 
by consumer sel ection from a c hildren's 
menu , does not contain comminuted meat; and 

(C ) The consumer is informed as specified in 
section ll-50-35(e) that to ensure its 
safety , the food should be cooked as 
specified in paragraph (1) or (2) ; or 

(D) The d epartment grants a variance from 
paragraph (1) or (2) as specified in 
section 11-50-13(a) based on a HACCP plan 
that : 
(i ) Is submitted by the [permit holder] 

owner or operator and approved as 
specified in section ll-50-13(b) ; 

(ii) Documents scientific data or other 
information showing that a lesser time 
and temperature regimen results in a 
safe food ; and 

(iii) Verifies that equipment and procedures 
for food preparation and training of 
food employees at the food 
establishment meet t he conditions of 
the variance . 

(b) Raw animal foods cooked in a microwave oven shall 
be : 

(1) Rotated or stirred throughout or midway during 
cooking to compensate for uneven distribution of 
heat ; 

(2) Covered to retain surface moisture ; 



(3) 	 Heated to a temperature of at least one hundred 
sixty-five degrees Fahrenheit in all parts of the 
food ; and 

(4) 	 Allowed to stand covered for two minutes after 
cooking to obtain temperature equilibrium. 

(c) Fruits and vegetables that are cooked for hot 
holding shall be cooked to a temperature of one hundred 
thirty-five degrees Fahrenheit. 

(d) Raw animal foods that are cooked using a non
continuous cooking process shall be : 

(1) 	 Subject to an initial heating process that is no 
longer than sixty minutes in duration; 

(2) 	 Immediately after initial heating, cooled 
according to the time and temperature parameters 
specified for cooked potentially hazardous food 
(time/temperature control for safety food) in 
section 11-50-34 (d) (1); 

(3) 	 After cooling, held frozen or cold, as specified 
for potentially hazardous food (time/temperature 
control for safety food) in section 
11-50-34 (f) (1) (B); 

(4) 	 Prior to sale or service, cooked using a process 
that heats all parts of ~he food to a temperature 
[of at least one hundred sixty-five degrees 
Fahrenheit for fifteen seconds;] and for a time 
as specified under section ll-50-33(a) (1)-(3); 

(5) 	 Cooled according to the time and temperature 
parameters specified for cooked potentially 
hazardous food (time/temperature control for 
safety food) in section 11-50- 34(d) (1) if not 
either hot held as specified in section 
ll-50-34(f) (1), served immediately, or held using 
time as a public health control as specified in 
section 11-50-34(i) after complete cooking; and 

(6) 	 Prepared and stored according to written 
procedures that : 

(A) 	 Have obtained prior approval from the 
department; 

(B) 	 Are maintained in the food establishment 
and are available to the department upon 
request; 

(C) 	 Describe how the requirements specified in 
paragraphs (1) to (5) are to be monitored 
and documented by the [permit holder] owner 
or operator and the corrective actions to 
be taken if the requirements are not met; 



(D) 	 Describe how the foods, after initial 
heating, but prior to complete cooking, are 
to be marked or otherwise identified as 
foods that must be cooked as specified in 
paragraph (4) prior to being offered for 
sale or service; and 

(E) 	 Describe how the foods, after initial 
heating but prior to cookin g as specified 
in paragraph (4), are to be separated from 
ready-to-eat foods as specified in section 
11-50-32 (c) "(1) . 

(e) 	 Parasite destruction . 
(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (2), before 

service or sale in ready-to-eat form, raw, raw
marinated, partially cooked, or marinated
partially cooked fish shall be : 
(A) 	 Frozen and stored at a temperature of minus 

four degrees Fahrenheit or below for a 
minimum of one hundred sixty-eight hours 
(seven days) in a freezer; 

(B) 	 Frozen at minus thirty-one degrees 
Fahrenheit or below until solid and stored 
at minus thi r~y-one degrees Fahrenheit or 
below for a minimum o f fifteen hours; or 

(C) 	 Frozen at minus thirty-one degrees 
Fahrenheit or below until solid and stored 
at minus four degrees Fahrenheit or below 
for a minimum of twenty-four hours; 

(2) 	 Paragraph (1) does not apply to : 
(A) 	 Molluscan shellfish; 
(B) 	 [Tuna of the species Thunnus alalunga 

(Albacore tuna) , Thunnus albacares 
(Yellowfin tuna) , Thunnus atlanticus 
(Blackfin tuna), Thunnus maccoyii (Bluefin 
tuna , 	 Southern) , Thunnus obesus (Bigeye 
tuna), Thunnus thynnus (Bluefin tuna, 
Northern) , Katsuwonus Pelamis (S kipjac k 
tuna) , Makaira nigricans (Pacific blue 
marlin) , Tetrapturus audax (Striped 
marlin); or) A scalloped product consisting 
only 	of the shucked adductor muscle; 

ill 	 Tuna of the species Thunnus alalunga 
(Albacore tuna), Thunnus albacares 
(Yellowfin tuna), Thunnus atlanticus 
(Blackfin tuna), Thunnus maccoyii (Bluefi n 
tuna, 	 Southern), Thunnus obesus (Bigeye 



t una), 	 Th unnus thynnus (Blu efin tuna , 
No r t hern) , Katsuwonus Pelamis (Skipjack 
t una) , Makaira n igricans (Pacif i c blue 
ma r lin), Tetrapturus audax (Str i ped 
marlin ) ; or 

[(C)] J..Ql_ Aquacultured fish , s uc h as salmon , 
t hat : 
(i) 	 If raised in open water, are r a ised in 

net-pens; or 
(ii) 	 Ar e raised in land-based operations 

such as ponds or tanks ; and 
(iii) 	 Are fed formulated feed , such as 

pellets , t hat ·contains no live 
parasites i nfective to the 
aquacultured fis h ; 

[ (D) ] 	 ill Fish eggs t hat have been removed from 
the skein and rinsed; or 

[ (E) ] 	 ill Non-anadromous open ocean fish 
commonly eaten raw such as tuna, marlin , 
and snapper, if the required consumer 
advisory clearly states that consuming raw 
or undercooked fish that have not been 
adequately frozen may increase t he risk of 
infection or injury from parasitic worms . 

(f) 	 Records, creation and ret e ntion . 
(1) 	 Except as specified in subsection (e) (2) and 

paragraph (2 ), if raw, raw-marinated, partially 
cooked, or marinated-partially cooked fish are 
served or sold in ready-to-eat form, the person 
in charge shall record the freezing temperature 
and time to which the fish are subjected and 
shall retain the records of t h e food 
establishment for ninet y calendar days beyond the 
time of servi ce or sale of the fis h; 

(2) 	 I f t he fish are frozen by a supplier , a written 
agreement or statement from the supplier 
stipulati ng that t h e fish suppl ied are frozen to 
a temperature and for a time specified in 
subsection (e) may substitute for the records 
specified in paragraph (1). 

(3) 	 If raw, raw-marinated, partiall y cooked, or 
marinated-partially cooked fish are served or 
sold in ready-to- eat form, and the fish are 
raised and fed as specified i n subsection 
(e) (2) (C) , a wr i t ten agreement or statement from 
the suppl ier or aquacu l turist stipulating that 



the fish were raised and fed as specified in 
subsection (e) (2) (C) shall be obtained by the 
person in charge and retained in the records of 
the food establishment for ninety calendar days 
beyond the time of service or sale of the fish; 

(g) Cooked and refrigerated food that is prepared for 
immediate service in response to an individual consumer 
order , such as a roast beef sandwich au jus, may be served 
at any temperature. 

(h) 	 Reheating for hot holding . 
(1 ) 	 Except as specified in paragraphs (2) , (3) , and 

(5), potentially hazardous food (time/temperature 
control for safety food) that is cooked, cooled, 
and reheated for hot holding shall be reheated so 
that all parts of the food reach a temperature of 
at least one hundred sixty-five degrees 
Fahrenheit for fifteen seconds; 

(2) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (3), potentially 
hazardous food (time/temperature control for 
safety food) reheated in a microwave oven for hot 
holding shall be reheated so that all parts of 
the food reach a temperature of at least one 
hundred sixty~tive degrees Fahrenheit and the 
food is rotated or stirred, covered, and allow€d 
to stand covered for two minutes after reheating; 

(3) 	 Ready-to-eat food [ taken from a commercially 
processed, hermetically sealed container , or from 
an intact package from ] that has been 
commercially processed and packaged in a food 
processing plant that is inspected by the food 
regulatory authority that has jurisdiction over 
the plant, shall be heated to a temperature of at 
least one hundred thirty- five degrees Fahrenheit 
for hot holding ; 

(4) 	 Reheating for hot holding as specified in 
paragraphs (1) to (3) shall be done rapidly and 
the time the food is between forty-one degrees 
Fahrenheit and the temperatures specified in 
paragraphs (1) to (3) may not exceed two hours; 

(5) 	 Remaining unsliced portions of meat roasts that 
are cooked as specified in subsection (a) (2) may 
be reheated for hot holding using the oven 
parameters and minimum time and temperature 
conditions specified in subsection (a) (2). 

(i) 	 Juice packaged in a food establishment shall be : 



(1) 	 Treated under a HACCP p l an as specified in 
section ll-50- 4[(j)(2)(B)](i)(2)( B) a nd (E) to 
attai n a five- l og reduction, which is equal to a 
99 . 999 per cent reduction , of the most resistant 
microorganism of public heal t h s ignificance ; or 

(2) Labe l ed , if not treated t o yield a f ive-log 
reduction of the most resistant microorganism of 
public health significance : 
(A) 	 As speci fied in section 11-50-35(c); and 
(B) 	 As specified in 21 CFR 101. 17(g) , juices 

that have not been specifically processed 
to prevent , reduce , or eliminate the 
presence of pathogens with the following , 
"Warning: This product has not been 
pasteurized and , therefore, may contain 
harmful bacteria that can cause serious 
illness in children , the elderly, and 
persons with weakened immune systems". 
[Eff 2/24/2014 ; am and comp 
(Auth : HRS §321- 11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 

§11-50-34 Limitation of growth of organisms of public 
heal t h concern . (a) Stored frozen foods shall be 
maintained frozen . 

(b ) Frozen pot entially hazardous food 
(time/temperature control for safety food) that is slacked 
to moderate the temperature shall be held : 

(1) Under refrigeration that maintains the f ood 
temperature a t forty-one degrees Fahrenheit or 
less ; 

(2) 	 At any temperature if the food remains frozen . 
(c) Potentially hazardous food (time/temperature 

control for safety food) s ha ll be t hawed : 
( 1) Under refrigeration t hat maintains the food 

temperature at forty- one degrees Fahrenhe i t or 
l ess ; or 

(2) 	 Completely submerged under running water: 
(A) 	 At a water temperature of seventy degrees 

Fahrenheit or below; 
(B) With suffici ent water velocity to agitate 

and float off loose particles in an 
overfl ow; and 

(C) 	 For a period of time t hat does not allow 
t hawed portions of ready-to-eat food to 
rise above forty-one degrees Fahrenheit; or 



(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

ill 

( d} 
(1) 

(D} 	 For a period of time that does not allow 
thawed portions of a raw animal food 
requiring cooking as specified in section 
11-50-33(a} (1) or (2) to be above for ty-one 
degrees Fahrenheit, for more than four 
hours including : 
(i} The time the food is e xposed to the 

running water and the time needed for 
preparation for cooking; or 

(ii} 	 The time it takes under refrigeration 
to lower the food temperature to 
forty-one degrees Fahrenheit ; 

As part of a cooking process if the food that is 
frozen is : 
(A} Cooked as specified in section 

11-50-33(a} (1), (2) or (b}; or 
(B} 	 Thawed in a microwave oven and immediately 


transferred to conventional cooking 

equipment , with no interruption in the 

process; 


Using any procedure if a portion of frozen ready
to-eat food is thawed and prepared for immediate 
service in response Lo an individual consumer ' s 
order; or 
Using any procedure that ensures the surface 
temperature does not exceed forty-one degrees 
Fahrenheit during thawing[ . ]; or 
Reduced oxygen packaged fish that bears a label 
that it is to be kept frozen until time of use 
should be removed from the reduced oxygen 
environment : 
(A} 	 Prior to its thawing under refrigeration as 

specified in paragraph (1) of this section ; 
or 

ill 	 Prior to, or immediately upon compl etion 
of , its thawing using procedures specified 
in paragraph (2) of this section . 

Cooling . 
Cooked potentially hazardous food 
(time/temperature control for safety food} shall 
be cooled : 
(A} 	 Within two hours from one hundred thirty


five d egrees Fahrenheit to seventy degrees 

Fahrenheit ; and 




(B) 	 With i n a total of six hours from one 
hundred thirty- five degrees Fahrenheit to 
forty-one degrees Fahrenheit or less ; 

(2) 	 Potentially hazardous food (time/temperature 
control for safety food) shall be cooled within 
four hours to forty-one degrees Fahrenheit or 
l ess if prepared from ingredients at ambient 
temperature, such as reconstituted foods and 
canned tuna ; 

(3) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (4), a 
potentially hazardous food (time/temperature 
control for safety food) received in compliance 
with laws allowing a temperature above forty-one 
degrees Fahrenheit during shipment from the 
supplier as specified in section 11-50-31(h) (2), 
shall be cooled within four hours to forty-one 
degrees Fahrenheit or less. 

(4) 	 Raw eggs shall be received as specified in 
section 11-50-31 (h) (3) and immediately placed in 
refrigerated equipment that maintains an ambi ent 
air temperature of forty-five degrees Fahrenheit 
or less; 

(e) 	 Coo l ing methods . 
(1) 	 Cooling shall be accomplished in accordance with 

the t ime and temperature criteria specified in 
subsection (d) by using one or more of the 
following methods based on the type of food being 
cooled : 
(A) 	 Placing the food in shallow pans ; 
(B) 	 Separati ng the food into smaller or thinner 

portions; 
(C) 	 Using rapid cooling equipment ; 
(D) 	 Stirring the food in a container placed in 

an ice water bath; 
(E) 	 Using containers (such as metal and 

stainless steel) t h at facilitate heat 
transfer; 

(F) 	 Adding ice as an ingredient ; or 
(G) 	 Other effective methods; 

(2) 	 When placed in cooling or cold holding equipment , 
food containers in which food is being cooled 
shall be : 
(A) 	 Arranged in the equipment to provide 

maximum heat transfer through the container 
wal l s ; and 



(B) 	 Loosely covered, or uncovered if protected 
from overhead contamination as specified in 
section 11- 50-32 (q) (1) (B), during the 
cooling period to facilitate heat transfer 
from the surface of the food. 

(f) Potentially hazardous food (time/temperature 
control for safety food), hot and cold holding . 

(1) 	 Except during preparation, cooking, or cooling , 
or when time is used as the public health control 
as specified in subsection (i), and except as 
specified in paragraphs (2) and (3) , potentially 
hazardous food (time/temperature control for 
safety food) shall be maintained: 
(A) 	 At one hundred thirty-five degrees 

Fahrenheit or above , except that roasts 
cooked to a temperature and for a time 
specified in section ll-50-33(a) (2) or 
reheated as specified in section 
l l -50-33(h) (5) may be held at a temperature 
of one hundred thirty degrees Fahrenheit or 
above; or 

(B) 	 At forty-one degrees Fahrenheit or less; 
(2) 	 Eggs that have nut been treated to dP.stroy all 

viable Salmonellae shall be stored in 
refrigerated equipment that maintains an ambient 
air temperature of forty-five degrees Fahrenheit 
or less ; 

(3) 	 Potentially hazardous food (time/temperature 
control for safety food) in a homogenous liquid 
form may be maintained outside of the temperature 
control requirements , as specified in paragraph 
(1), while contained within specially designed 
equipment that complies with the design and 
construction requirements as specified in section 
ll-50-46(p) (5) . 

(g) Ready- to-eat, potentially hazardous food 
(time/temperature control for safety food) , date marking . 

(1) 	 Except when packaging food using a reduced oxygen 
packaging method as specified in subsection (1) , 
and except as specified in paragraphs (4) and 
(5), refrigerated, ready-to-eat , potentially 
hazardous food (time/temperature control for 
safety food) prepared and held in a food 
establishment for more than twenty-four hours 
shall be clearl y marked to indicate the date or 
day by which the food shall be consumed on the 



premises, sold, or discarded when held at a 
temperature of forty-one degrees Fahrenheit o r 
less for a maximum of seven days; 

(2) 	 Except as specified in paragraphs (4) to (6), 
refrigerated, ready-to-eat , potentially hazardous 
food (time/temperature control for safety food) 
prepared and packaged by a food processing plant 
shall be clearly marked, at the time the original 
container is opened in a food establishment and 
if the food is held for more than twenty-four 
hours, to indicate the date or day by which the 
food shall be consumed o n the premises, sold, or 
discarded, based on the temperature and time 
combinations specified in paragraph (1) and : 
(A) 	 The day the original container is opened in 

the food establishment shall be counted as 
day one ; and 

(B) 	 The day or date marked by the food 
establ ishment may not exceed a 
manufacturer's use-by date if the 
manufacturer determined the use-by date 
based on food safety ; 

(3) 	 A refrigerated, ready-tu-eat, potentially 
hazardous food (time/temperature control for 
safety food) ingredient or a portion of a 
refrigerated, ready-to-eat, potentially hazardous 
food (time/temperature control for safety food) 
that i s subsequently combined with additional 
ingredients or portions of food shall retain the 
date marking of the earliest-prepared or first 
prepared ingredient ; 

(4) 	 A date marking system that meet s the criteria 
stated in paragraphs (1) a nd (2) may include : 
(A) 	 Using a method approved by the department 

for refrigerated, ready- to- eat potentially 
hazardous food (time/temperature cont rol 
for safety food) that is frequently 
rewrapped, such as lunchmeat or a roast, or 
for which date marking is impractical, such 
as soft serve mix o r mil k in a dispensing 
machine; 

(B) 	 Marking the date or day of preparation, 
with a procedure to discard the food on or 
before the last date or day by which the 
food must be consumed on the premises, 



sold , or discarded as specified i n 
paragraph (1); 

(C) 	 Marking the date or day the original 
container is opened i n a food 
establishment , with a procedure to d iscard 
the food o n or before the last date or d a y 
by which the food must be c onsumed on t he 
p remises , sold, or discard ed as s p eci f ied 
in paragraph (2); or 

(D) Us i ng calendar dates , days o f the wee k , 
color-coded marks , or other effective 
marking methods , p rovided t hat the marking 
system is discl osed to the [director] 
department u pon request; 

(5) 	 Paragraphs (1) and (2) do not apply t o individual 
mea l portions served or repackaged for sale from 
a bul k container upon a consumer ' s request;

ill 	 Paragraphs (1) and (2) do not apply to 
s hellstock . 

[(6)JJ.2.l 	 Paragraph (2) does not apply to the 

following foods p repared a n d packaged by a f ood 

p r ocessing plant inspected by a regul a t ory 

authority : 

(A) 	 Deli salads , such as ham salad, seafood 

salad, chicken salad , egg salad, pasta 
salad, potato salad , and maca r oni salad, 
manufactured in accordance with 21 CFR 110, 
entitled "Current good ma n.ufacturing 
practice in manufacturing, packing, or 
holding huma n food" ; 

(B) 	 Hard cheeses c onta ini n g not more than 39 
per cen t moisture as defined in 21 CFR 133 , 
entitled "Cheeses and related cheese 
p roducts" , s uc h as c heddar, gruyere, 
p armesan and reggiano , and romano ; 

(C) 	 Semi-soft cheeses containing more t h a n 
thirty-nine per cent moi sture , but not more 
than fifty per cent moisture , as defined in 
21 CFR 133, entitled " Cheeses a nd related 
cheese p r oducts" , s u c h as b l ue , edam, 
gorgonzol a , gouda, a nd Mo nterey jack; 

(D) 	 Cultured dairy products as defined in 2 1 
CFR 131 , entitled "Milk a nd cream", such as 
yogurt, sour cream, and buttermilk; 

(E) 	 Preserved f i s h products , such as pickled 
herring a nd dried or salted cod , and other 



acidified fish products defined in 21 CFR 
11 4, entitled "Acidified foods" ; 

(F) 	 She lf stable, dry fermented sausages, such 
as pepperoni and Genoa salami that are not 
labeled "Keep Refrigerated" as specified in 
9 CFR 317 entitled "Labeling, marking 
devices , and containers", and which retain 
the original casing on the product; and 

(G) 	 Shelf stable salt-cured products such as 
prosciutto and Parma (ham) that are not 
labeled "Keep Refrigerated" as specified in 
9 CFR 317 entitled "Labeling, marking 
devices, and containers" . 

(h) Ready-to-eat, potentially hazardous food 
(time/temperature control for safety f ood) , disposition . 

(1) 	 A food specified in subsection (g) (1) or (2) 
shall be discarded if it : 
(A) 	 Exceeds the temperature and time 

combination specified in subsection (g) (1), 
except time t hat the product is frozen ; 

(B) 	 Is in a container or package that does not 
bear a date or day; or 

(C) 	 Is appropriately marked with a date or day 
that exceeds a temperature and time 
combination as specified in subsection 
(g) ( 1); 

(2) 	 Refrigerated, ready-to-eat, potentially hazardous 
food (time/temperature c'ontrol for safety food) 
prepared in a food establishment and dispensed 
through a vending machine with an automatic 
shutoff control shall be discarded if it exceeds 
a temperature and time combination as specified 
in subsection (g) (1) ; 

(i) 	 Time a~ a public health control. 
( 1) Except as specified in paragraph (4), if time 

without temperature control is used as the public 
health control for a working supply of 
potential ly hazardous food (time/temperature 
control for safety food) before cooki ng, or for 
ready-to-eat potentially hazardous food 
(time/temperature control for safety food) that 
is displayed or he l d for sale or service : 
(A) 	 Written procedures shall be prepared in 

advance , maintained in the food 
establishment and made available to the 
department upon request that specify : 



(i) 	 Methods of compliance with paragraph 
(2) (A) to (C) or (3) (A) to (E); and 

(ii) Methods of compliance with subsection 
(d) for food that is prepared, cooked , 
and refrigerated before time is used 
as a public health control; 

(2) 	 If time without temperature control is used as 
the public health control up to a maximum o f four 
hours: 
(A) 	 The food s h a ll have an initial temperature 

of forty-one degrees Fahrenheit or l ess 
when removed from cold holding temperature 
control or one hundred [thirty-one) thirty
five degrees Fahrenheit or greater when 
removed from hot holding temperature 
control ; 

(B) 	 The food shall be marked or otherwise 
identified to indicate the time that is 
four hours past the point in time whe n the 
food is r e move d from t e mperature control; 

(C) 	 The food shall be cooked and served, served 
at any temperature if ready-to-eat, or 
discarded, within fuur hours from the point 
in time when the food is removed from 
temperature control ; and 

(D) 	 The food in unmarked containers or 
packages , or marked to exceed a four-ho u r 
limit shall be discarded; 

(3) 	 If time without temperature control is used as 
the public health control up to a maximum of six 
hours : 
(A) 	 The food shall have an ini t i al temperature 

of forty- one degrees Fahrenheit or less 
when removed from temperature control a nd 
the food temperature may not exceed seventy 
degrees Fahrenheit within a maximum time 
period of six hours; 

(B) 	 The food shall be moni tored to ensure the 
warmest portion of the food does not exceed 
seventy degrees Fahrenheit during the six
hour period, unless a n ambient air 
temperature is maintained that ensures the 
food does not exceed seventy degrees 
Fahrenheit during the six- hour ho1ding 
period; 



(C) 	 The food shall be marked or otherwise 
identified to i ndicate : 
(i) 	 The time when the food is removed from 

forty- one degrees Fahrenhei t or less 
cold holding temperature control; and 

(ii) 	 The time that is six hours past the 
point in time when the food is removed 
from cold holding temperature control ; 

(D) 	 The food shall be : 
(i) 	 Discarded if the temperature of the 

food exceeds seventy degrees 
Fahrenheit ; or 

(i i) Cooked and served, served at any 
temperature if ready-to-eat, or 
discarded within a maximum of six 
hours from the point in time when the 
food is removed from for t y-one degrees 
Fahrenheit or less cold holding 
temperature control ; and 

(E) 	 The food in unmarked containers or 
packages , or marked with a time that 
exceeds the six-hour limit shall be 
discarded ; 

( 4) A food establishment that serves a highly 
susceptible population may not use time as 
specified in paragraphs (1), (2) or (3) as the 
public health control for raw eggs . 

(j) A food establishment shall obtain a variance from 
the department as specifi ed in section ll-50-13(a) and (b) 
before : 

(1) 	 Smoking food as a method of food preservation 
rather than as a me thod of fl avor enhancement; 

(2) 	 Curing food; 
(3) 	 Us i ng food additives or adding components such as 

vinegar : 
(A) 	 As a me t hod of food preservation rather 

than as a method of flavor enhancement; or 
(B) 	 To render a food so that it i s not 

potentially hazardous (time/temperature 
control for safety food) ; 

(4) 	 Packaging a potential ly hazardous food using a 
reduced oxygen packaging method except where the 
growth of and toxin formation by Clostri dium 
botulin um and the growth of Listeria 
monocytogenes are controlled as specified in 
subsection (l); 



(5) 	 Operating a molluscan s hellfish l i fe-support 
system display tank used to store or display 
shellfish that are offered for human consumption ; 

(6) 	 Custom processing animals that are for personal 
use as f ood and not for sale or service i n a food 
establishment; 

(7) 	 Preparing food by another method that is 
determined by the department to require a 
variance; or 

(8) 	 Sprouting seeds or beans . 
(k) A food processing plant may be exempt from this 

variance requirement. 
(1) Reduced oxygen packaging without a variance, 

criteria . 
(1) 	 Except for a food establishment that obtains a 

variance as specified in subsection (j) , a food 
establishment that packages potentially hazardous 
food (time/temperature control for safety food) 
using a reduced oxygen packaging method shall 
control the growth and toxin formation of 
Clostridium botulinum and the growth of Listeria 
monocytogenes; 

(2) 	 [AJ Except as specified in paragroph (6), a food 
establishment t ha t packages potentially hazardous 
food (time/temperature control for safety food) 
using a reduced oxygen packaging method shal l 
have a HACCP plan that contains t he information 
specified in section 11-50-4 [ (j) (2) (D)] (i) (2) (D) 
and that: 
(A) 	 Identifies the food to be packaged; 
(B) 	 Except as specified in paragraphs (3) to 

(5), req uires that the packaged food shall 
be maintained at forty-one degrees 
Fahrenheit or less and meet at least one of 
the following criteria: 
(i) 	 Has an A,., of 0. 91 or less; 

(ii) Has a pH of 4.6 or less; 
(iii) 	 Is a meat or poultry product cured at 

a food processing plant regulated by 
t he USDA using substances specified in 
9 CFR 424.21, entitled "Use of food 
ingredients and sources of radiation,u 
and is received in an intact package; 
or 



(C) 

(D) 

(E) 

(F) 

(iv) 	 Is a food with a high level of 
competing organisms such as raw meat , 
raw poultry , or raw vegetables; 

Describes how the package shall be 
prominently a nd conspicuously labeled on 
the principal display panel in bold type on 
a contrasting background, with instructions 
to : 
(i) 	 Maintain the food at forty-one degrees 

Fahrenheit or below; and 
(ii) 	 Discard the food if within [fourteen) 

thirty calendar days of its packaging 
it is not served for on-premises 
consumption , or consumed if served or 
sold for off-premises consumption ; 

Limits the refrigerated shelf life to no 
more than [ fourteen) thirty calendar days 
from packaging to consumption , except the 
time the product is maintained frozen , or 
the original manufacturer ' s "sell by" or 
"use by" date , whichever occurs fi rst; 
Includes operational procedures that : 
(i) 	 Prohibit contacting ready-to-eat food 

with bare hands as specified in 
section 11-50-32 (a) (2) ; 

(ii) 	 Identify a designated work area and 
the method by which physical barriers 
or methods of separation of raw foods 
and ready-to- eat foods minimize cross 
contamination . Access to the 
processing equipment is limited to 
trained personnel fami liar with the 
potential hazards of the operation ; 
and 

(iii) 	 Del i neate cleaning and sanitization 
procedures for food-contact surfaces ; 
and 

Describes the training program that ensures 
that the individual responsib l e for the 
reduced oxygen packaging operation 
understands the : 
(i) 	 Concepts required for a safe 


operat ion; 

(ii) 	 Equipment and facilities; and 



(iii) 	 Procedures specified in subparagraph 
(E) and section 11-50-4 [ (j) (2) (D);) 
(i) (2) (D);

fil 	Is provided to the department before 
implementation as specified in section 11
50-4 (h) (8) . 

(3) 	 Except for fish that is frozen before , during, 
and after packaging , a food establishment may not 
package fish using a reduced oxygen packaging 
method; 

(4) 	 Except as specified in [paragraph (3) ,) 
paragraphs (3) and (6), a food establishment that 
packages potentially hazardous food using a cook
chill or sous vide process shall: 
(A) 	 [Implement) Provide to the department prior 

to implementation, a HACCP plan tha t 
contains the information as specified in 
section ll-50-4[(j) (2) (D);) (i) (2) (D); 

(B) 	 Ensure the food is : 
(i) 	 Prepared a nd consumed on the premises, 

or prepared and consumed off the 
premises but within the same business 
entity with no distribution or sale of 
the packaged product to another 
business entity or the consumer ; 

(ii) 	 Cooked to heat all parts of the food 
to a temperature and for a time as 
specified in section 11-50-33 (a) ; 

(iii) 	 Protected from contaminati on before 
and after cooking as specified in 
sections 11-50- 32 a nd 11-50-33 ; 

(iv) 	 Placed in a package with an oxygen 
barrier and seal ed before cooking , or 
placed in a package and sealed 
immediately after cooking and before 
reachin g a temperature below one 
hundred thirty- five degrees 
Fahrenheit ; 

(v) 	 Cooled to forty -one degrees Fahrenheit 
in the seal ed package or bag as 
specifi ed in subsection (d) and 
subsequently cooled to thirty-four 
degrees Fahrenheit within forty- eight 
hours of reaching forty - one degrees 
Fahrenheit and held at that 
tempe rature until consumed or 



discarded within thirty days after the 
date of packaging; 

(vi) 	 Cooled to forty-one degrees Fahrenheit 
in the sealed package or bag as 
specified in subsection (d) and 
subsequently [cooled to thirty-four 
degrees Fahrenheit within forty-eight 
hours of reaching forty-one degrees 
Fahrenheit, removed from refrigeration 
equipment that maintains a thirty-four 
degrees Fahrenheit food temperature 
and then held at forty-one degrees 
Fahrenheit or less for no more than 
seventy-two hours , at which time the 
food must be consumed or discarded ; 

(vii) 	 Cooled to forty-one degrees Fahrenheit 
in the sealed package or bag as 
specified in subsection (d) and 
subsequently cooled to thirty-eight 
degrees Fahrenheit or less within 
twenty-four hours of reaching forty
one degrees Fahrenheit and held there 
for no more than seven ty-two hours 
from packaging , at which time the food 
must be consumed or discarded ; or] 
held at forty-one degrees Fahrenheit 
or less for no more than seven days at 
which time the food must be consumed 
or discarded; 

[ {viii)] (vii) Cooled to forty-one degrees 
Fahrenheit in the sealed package or 
bag as specified in subsection (d) and 
subsequently held frozen with no shelf 
life restriction while frozen until 
consumed or used ; 

[ (ix)] (viii) Held in a refrigeration 
unit that is equipped with an 
electronic system that continuously 
monitors time and temperature and is 
visually examined for proper operation 
twice daily; 

[{x)) 	 {ix) If transported off-site to a 
satellite location of the same 
business entity, equipped with 
verifiable electronic mon i toring 
devices to ensure that times and 



temperatures are monitored during 
transportation; and 

[(xi ) ] 	 M Labeled with the product name 
and the date packaged; and 

(C) 	 Maintain the records required to confirm 
that cooling and cold holding refrigeration 
time/temperature parameters are required as 
part of the HACCP plan and : 
(i) 	 Make such records available to the 

[director] department upon request ; 
and 

(ii) 	 Hold such records for at least six 
months; and 

(D) 	 Implement written operational procedures as 
specified in paragraph (2) (E) and a 
training program as specified in paragraph 
( 2) ( F); 

(5) 	 [A] Except as specified under paragraph (6) , a 
food establishment that packages cheese using a 
reduced oxygen packaging method shall: 
(A) 	 Limit the cheeses packaged to those that 

are commercially manufactured in a food 
µrocessing plant with no ingredients added 
in the food establishment and that meet t he 
Standards of Identity as specified in 21 
CFR 133 . 150, entitled "Hard cheeses" , 21 
CFR 133.169, entitled "Pasteurized process 
cheese" or 21 CFR 133 . 187, entitled 
"Semisoft cheeses" ; 

(B) 	 Have a HACCP plan that contains t he 
information specified in section 
11-50-4 (j) (2) (D) and as specified in 
paragraphs (1) (2) (A) , (C) (i), (E) , and (F) ; 

(C) 	 Labe l s the package on the principal display 
panel with a "use by" date that does not 
exceed thirty calendar days from its 
packaging or the original manufacturer ' s 
"sell by" or "use by" date, whichever 
occurs first ; and 

(D) 	 Discards the reduced oxygen packaged cheese 
if it is not sold for off-premises 
consumption or consumed within thi rty 
calendar days of its packaging.

ill 	A HACCP Plan is not required when a food 
establishment uses a reduced oxygen packaging 
method to package potentially hazardous food, 



(time/temperature control for safety food) that 
is always : 
(A) Labeled with the production time and date , 

..@l Held at forty-one degrees Fa hrenheit or 

ill 
less during refrigerated storage, and 
Removed from its package i n the food 
establishment within forty-eight hours 
after packaging . [Eff 2/24/2 01 4; am and 
comp ] (Auth : HRS §321-11) 
(Imp : HRS §321-11) 

§11-50-35 Food identity, presentation, and 
on- premises labeling . [(a) Packaged f ood shall comply 
with standard of identity requirements in 21 CFR 131-169 
and 9 CFR 319 ent i t led "Definitions and standards of 
identity or composition", a nd the general r equirements i n 
21 CFR 130, entitled "Food standards : General" and 9 CFR 
3 19 Subpart A entit l ed "Genera l". 

(b)] J_& Honestly presented . 
(1) 	 Food s hal l be offered for human consumpti on in a 

way t hat does not mis l ead or misinform the 
consumer ; 

( 2) Food or color additives , col ored overwraps, or 
lights may not be used to mi srepresent the true 
appearance , color , o r quality of a food . 

[ ( C) ] 	 ill Food label s . 
(1) 	 Food packaged in a food establi shment , shall be 

labeled as specifi ed in law, including 21 CFR 
101 , entitl ed "Food labeling", and 9 CFR 3 17 
entitled "Labeling, marking devices, and 
conta iners" . 

(2) 	 The director may waive the packaged food labeling 
requirement for, but not limited to : 
(A) 	 Foods manufactured i n food establishments 

such as restaurants , bakeries, and markets, 
and sold only in those food establishments ; 

(B) 	 Foods of no n utrit iona l significance such 
as coffee ; 

(C) 	 Bulk food for f urt her processing; and 
(D) 	 Raw fruits , vegetables , and f i sh ; 

( 3) 	 Label information s hall i nc lude : 
(A ) The common name of the food, or abse nt a 

common name, an adequat ely descriptive 
identity statement; 



(B) 	 If made from two or more ingredients, a 
list of ingredients in descending order of 
predomina nce by weight, including a 
declaration of artificial color or flavor 
and chemical preservatives , if contained in 
the food; 

(C) 	 An accurate declaration of the quantity of 
contents; 

(D) 	 The name and place of business of the 
manufacturer, packer, or distributor; and 

(E) 	 The name of the food source for each major 
food allergen contained in the food unless 
the food source is already part of the 
common or usual name of the respective 
ingredient; 

[ (F) Except as exempted in the Federal Food, 
Drug, and Cosmetic Act section 403(Q) (3) to 
(5), nutrition labeling as specified in 21 
CFR 101, entitl~d "Food labeling" and 9 CFR 
317 Subpart B entitled "Nutrition 
labeling" ; 

(G) 	 For any salmonid fish containing 
canthaxanthin as a color additive, the 
labeling of the bulk fish container, 
including a list of ingredients, displayed 
on the retail container or by other written 
means, such as a counter card, that 
discloses the use of canthaxanthin;] 

(4) 	 Bulk food that is available for consumer self 
dispensing shall be prominent l y labeled with the 
following information in plain view of the 
consumer : 
(A) 	 The manufacturer ' s or processor's label 

t hat was provided with the food; or 
(B) 	 A card, sign, or other method of 

notification that includes the information 
specified in paragraph(2) (A) and (B); 

(5) 	 Bulk, unpackaged foods such as bakery products 
and unpackaged foods that are portioned to 
consumer specification need not be l abeled if: 
(A) 	 A health, nutrient content or other claim 

is not made; 
(B) 	 There are no state or local laws requiring 

labeling; and 
(C) 	 The food is manufactured or prepared on the 

premises of the food establ ishment or at 



another food establishment or a food 
processing plant that is owned by the same 
person and is regulated by the food 
regulatory agency that has jurisdiction . 

[(d)] 	E Other forms of information . 
(1) 	 If required by law, consumer warnings shall be 

provided; 
(2) 	 Food establishment or manufacturers' dating 

information on foods may not be concealed or 
altered . 

ill 	 Homemade food products shall bear a label with 
the following information: 
(A) 	 A statement that reads "Made in a home 

kitchen not routinely inspected by the 
Department of Healthu; 

ill 	 The common name of the food or, if no 
common name exists, an adequately 
descriptive identity statement; 

ill 	 If made from two or more ingredients, a 
list of ingredients in descending order of 
predominance by weight; 

JQl_ 	 Name and contact information of the 
homemade food product producer;

ill Hand-pounded poi shall bear a label that contains 
the following information : 
(A) 	 A statement that reads "This h and-pounded 

poi was prepared in a facility not 
inspected by the Department of Healt hu ; 

ill 	 Name and contact information of the 
producer . 

[( e) ] Js!.l_ Consumption of animal foods that are raw, 
undercooked, or not otherwise processed to e limi nate 
pathogens . 

(1) 	 Except as specified in sections 11-50-33(a) (3) 
and (4) (D) and 11- 50-37(a) (3), if an animal food 
such as beef, eggs, fish, lamb, pork, poultry, or 
shellfi sh is served or sold raw, undercooked, or 
without otherwise being processed to e l i minate 
pathogens, either in ready-to-eat form or as an 
ingredient in another ready-to-eat food, the 
[permit holder] owner or operator shall inform 
consumers of the significantly increased r is k of 
consuming such foods by way of a disclosure and 
reminder, as specified in paragraphs (2) and (3) 
using brochures, deli case or menu advisories , 



label statements, table tents, placards , or other 
effective written means; 

(2) 	 Disclosure s hall include : 
(A) 	 A description of the animal-derived foods , 

such as "oysters on the half shell (raw 
oysters)u, "raw-egg Caesar saladu, and 
"hamburgers (can be cooked to order)u; or 

(B) 	 Identification of the animal -derived foods 
by asterisking them to a footnote that 
states that the items are served raw or 
undercooked, or contain (or may contain) 
raw or undercooked ingredients; 

(3) 	 Reminder shall include asterisking the animal
derived foods requiring disclosure to a footnote 
that states : 
(A) 	 Regarding the safety of these items , 

written information is available upon 
request ; 

(B) 	 Consuming raw or undercooked meats, 
poultry , seafood, shellfish, or eggs may 
increase your risk of foodborne illness ; or 

(C) 	 Consuming raw or undercooked meats , 
poultry, seafood , shelltish, or eggs may 
increase the risk of foodborne illness 
especially in consumers with certain 
medical conditions . [Eff 2/24/2014; am and 
comp ] (Auth: HRS §321-11) 
(Imp: 	 HRS §321-11) 

§11-50-36 Contaminated food . Discarding or 
reconditioning unsafe, adulterated, or contaminated food . 

(1) 	 A food that is unsafe, adulterated, or not 
honestly presented as specified in section 
11- 50- 30 shall be discarded or reconditioned 
according to an approved procedure; 

(2) 	 Food that is not from an approved source as 
specified in section ll-50-3l(a) to (g) shal l be 
discarded ; 

(3) 	 Ready-to-eat food that may have been contaminated 
by an empl oyee who has been restricted or 
excluded as specified in section 11-50-2l(b) 
shall be discarded; 

(4) 	 Food that is contaminated by food employees , 
consumers , or other persons through contact with 
their hands, bodily discharges , such as nasal or 



oral 	discharges , or other means shall be 
discarded . [Eff 2/24/201 4; comp 
(Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 

§11-50-37 Special requirements for highl y susceptible 
populations . (a) Foods served to a h i ghly susceptibl e 
population : 

(1) 	 The following criteria apply to juice : 
(A) 	 For the purposes of this paragraph only, 

children who are age n i ne or less and 
receive food i n a school , day care setting, 
or similar facility that provides custodial 
care are included as highly susceptible 
popul ati ons ; 

(B) Prepackaged juice or a prepackaged beverage 
containi ng juice, that bears a warning 
label as specified in 21 CFR 101 . 17(g), 
juices that have not been specifically 
processed to prevent, reduce, or eliminate 
the presence of pathogens, or a packaged 
juice or beverage containing juice , that 
bears a warning label as specified in 
secti on 11-50-33(i) (2) may not be served or 
offered for sale ; and 

(C) 	 Unpackaged juice that i s prepared on the 
premises fo r service or sale in a ready-to
eat form shall be processed under a HACCP 
plan that contains the informat ion 
speci fied i n section ll -50- 4(j)(2)(D) to 
(E) and as specified i n 21 CFR Part 120, 
entitled " Hazard Analysis and Critical 
Control Point (HACCP) Systemsu, Subpart B 
entitled "Pathogen reductionu, 120 . 24 
ent i tled "Process controlsu ; 

(2) 	 Pasteurized eggs or egg products shall be 
substituted for raw eggs in the preparation of : 
(A) 	 Foods such as Caesar salad , hollandaise or 

Bearna i se sauce, mayonnaise, meringue, 
eggnog, ice cream, and egg- fortified 
beverages ; and 

(B) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (6), 
recipes in which more than one egg is 
broken and the eggs are combined; 

(3) 	 The following foods may not be served or offered 
for sale in a ready-to-eat form: 



(A) 	 Raw animal foods such as raw fish, raw 
marinated fish, raw molluscan shellfish, 
and steak tartare; 

(B) 	 A partially coo ked animal food such as 
lightly cooked fish, r are meat, soft-cooked 
eggs that are made from raw eggs, and 
meringue; and 

(C ) 	 Raw seed spr outs ; 
(4) 	 Food employees may not contact ready-to-ea t food 

as specified in section 11-50- 32 (a) (2) and (4) ; 
(5) 	 Time only , as the public health control as 

specified in section ll-50-3 4( i) (4) , may not be 
used for raw eggs ; 

(6) 	 Paragraph (2) (B) does not apply if : 
(A) 	 The raw eggs are combined i mmediately 

before cooking for one consumer's serving 
at a single meal , cooked as specified in 
section ll-50-33(a) (1) (A), and served 
immediately, such as an omelet, souffle , or 
scrambled eggs ; 

(B) 	 The raw eggs are combined as an ingredient 
immediately before baking and the eggs a r e 
thoroughly cooked to a ready-to-ea t form, 
such as a cake , muffin , or bread ; or 

(C) 	 The preparation of the food is conducted 
under a HACCP plan that : 
(i) 	 Identifies the food to be prepared; 

(ii) 	 Prohibits contact i ng ready-to- eat food 
with bare hands; 

(iii) 	 Includes specifications and practices 
that ensure Salmonella Enteri tidis 
growth is controlled before and after 
cooking, and is destroyed by cooking 
the eggs according to the temperature 
and time specified in section 
11-50-33 (a) (1) (B ); 

(iv) 	 Contains t h e information specified in 
section 11-50-4(j) (2) (D) including 
procedures that control cross 
contamination of r eady-to-eat food 
wi th raw eggs , and delineate cleaning 
and sanitization procedu res for food 
contact surfaces ; and 

(v) 	 Describes the training program that 
ensures that the f ood employee 
responsible for t h e preparation of the 



food understands the procedures to be 
used; 

(7) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (8), food may be 
re-served as specif i ed in section 
11-50-32 (y) (2) (A) and (B); 

(8) 	 Food may not be re-served under the following 
conditions : 
(A) 	 Any food served to patients or c l ients who 

are under contact precautions in medica l 
isol ation or quarantine, or protective 
environment isolation may not be re-served 
to others outside; 

(B) 	 Packages of food from any patients , 
clients , or other consumers should not be 
r e - served to persons in protective 
environment isol ation. [Eff 2/24/2014 ; 
comp (Auth : HRS §321-11) 
(Imp : 	 HRS §321-11) 

§§11-50 - 38 to 11-50-44 (Reserved) . 

SUBCHAPTER 4 

EQUIPMENT , UTENSILS, AND LINENS 

§11-50- 45 Material s for construction and repa i r . (a) 

Materials that are used in the construction of utensils and 
food- contac t surfaces of equ i pment may not allow the 
migra tion of deleterious substances or impart colors, 
odors , or tas t es to food and under normal u se conditions 
shall be : 

(1) 	 Safe; 
(2) 	 Durable , corrosion- resistant, and nonabsorbent; 
(3) 	 Sufficient in weight and thickness to withstand 

repeated warewashing; 
( 4) Finished to have a smooth , easily c l eanable 

s u rface ; and 
(5) 	 Resistant to pitting, chipping, crazing, 

scratching, scoring, distortion, and 
decomposition. 

(b) 	 Cast i ron, use limitati on . 
(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraphs (2) and (3) , 

cast iron may not be used for utensils or food
contact surfaces of e quipme nt; 



(2) 	 Cast. iron may be used 
(3) 	 Cast iron may be used 

food if the utensils 
uninterrupted process 
service. 

(c) 	 Lead, use limitation. 

as a surface for cooking; 
in utensils for serving 

are used only as part of an 
from cooking through 

(1) 	 Ceramic, china, and crystal utensils, a nd 
decorative utensils such as hand painted ceramic 
or china that are used in contact with food shall 
be lead- free or contain levels of lead not 
exceeding the limits of the utensil categories in 
Table 45 -1 : 

Table 45 - 1 

Utensil Category 
Ceramic Article 

Description 
Maximum Lead 

mg/L 

Beverage mugs, 
pitchers 

c ups, Coffee mugs 0.5 

Large hollowware 
(excluding pitchers) 

Bowls > 1.16 quart 1 

Small hollowware 
(excluding cups and Bowls < 1. 16 quart 2.0 

mugs) 
Flat tableware Plates, saucers 3 . 0 

(2) 	 Pewter alloys containing lead in excess of 0.05 
per cent may not be used as a food- contact 
surface ; 

(3) 	 Solder and flux containing lead i n excess of 0 . 2 
per cent may not be used as a food- con tact 
surface . 

(d) 	 Copper, use limitation . 
(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (2), copper and 

copper a lloys such as brass may not be used in 
contact with a food that has a pH below six such 
as vinegar, fruit juice , or wine or for a fitting 



or tubing installed between a backflow prevention 
device and a carbonator; 

(2) 	 Copper and copper alloys may be used in contact 
with beer brewing ingredients that have a pH 
below six in the prefermentation and fermentation 
steps of a beer brewing operation such as a 
brewpub or microbrewery. 

(e) Galvanized metal may not be used for utensils or 
food-cont act surfaces of equipment that are used in contact 
with acidic food. 

(f) Sponges may not be used in contact with cleaned 
and sanitized or in- use food-contact surfaces . 

(g) 	 Wood, use limitation. 
(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraphs (2), (3) , and 

(4), wood and wood wicker may not be used as a 
food- contact surface ; 

(2) 	 Hard maple or an equivalently hard, close-grained 
wood may be used for : 
(A) 	 Cutting boards , cutting blocks, bakers ' 

tables , and utensil s such as rolling pins, 
doughnut dowels , salad bowls, and 
chopsticks; and 

(B) 	 Wooden paddles used i n confectione ry 
operations for pres sure scraping kettles 
when manual ly preparing confections at a 
temperature of two hundred thirty degrees 
Fahrenheit or above; 

(3) 	 Whole, unc ut, raw fruits and vegetables, and nuts 
in the shell may be kept in the wood shipping 
containers in which they we re received , until the 
fruits, vegetabl es, or nuts a re used; 

(4) 	 If the nature o f the food requires r emoval of 
rinds, peels, husks, or shells before 
consumption, the whole, uncut, raw food may be 
kept in: 
(A) 	 Untreated wood containers ; or 
(B) 	 Treated wood containers if the containers 

a re treated with a preservative that meets 
the requirements specified in 21 CFR 
178 . 380 0, entitled "Preservatives for 
woodu . 

(h) Multiuse kitchenware s uch as frying pans , 
griddles, sauce pans, cookie sheets , and waffle bakers that 
have a perfluorocarbon resin coating s hall be used with 
nonscoring or nonscratching utensils and c l eaning aids. 



(i) Nonfood~contact surfaces of equipment that are 
exposed to splash, spillage , or other food soiling or that 
require frequent cleaning shall be constructed of a 
corrosion-resistant , nonabsorbent, and smooth material. 

(j) Materials that are used to make single-service 
and single-use articles: 

(1) 	 May not: 
(A) 	 Allow the migration of deleterious 

substances; or 
(B) 	 Impart colors, odors, or tastes to food; 

and 
(2) 	 Shall be: 

(A) 	 Safe; and 
(B) 	 Clean . [Eff 2/24/2014; comp 

(Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 

§11-50-46 Design and construction. (a) Equipment 
a nd utensils shal l be designed and constructed to be 
durable and to retain their c haracter i stic qualities under 
normal use conditions . 

(b) Food temperature measuring devices may not have 
sensors or stems constructed of g l ass , except that 
thermometers with glass sensors or stems that are encased 
in a shatterproof coating such as candy thermometers may be 
used. 

(c) 	 Food-contact surfaces . 
(1) 	 Multiuse food- contact surfaces shall be : 

(A) 	 Smooth ; 
(B) 	 Free of breaks , open seams , cracks, chips , 

inclusions, pits, and similar 
imperfections; 

(C) 	 Free of sharp interna l angles, corners , and 
crevices ; 

(D) 	 Finished to have smooth welds and joints; 
and 

(E) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (2), 
access ible for cleaning and inspection by 
one of the fol l owing methods : 
(i) 	 Without being disassembled; 

(ii) 	 By disassembling without the use of 
tools ; or 

(iii) 	 By easy disassembling with the use of 
handheld tools commonly available to 
maintenance and cleaning personnel 



such as screwdrivers, pliers, open-end 
wrenches, and Allen wrenches; 

(2) 	 Paragraph (1) (E) does not apply to cooking oil 
storage tanks , distribution lines for cooking 
oils , or beverage syrup lines or tubes. 

(d) 	 CIP equipment. 
(1) 	 CIP equipment shall meet the characteristics 

specified in subsection (c) and shall be designed 
and constructed so that: 
(A) 	 Cleaning and sanitizing solutions circulate 

throughout a fixed system and contact all 
interior food-contact surfaces; and 

(B) 	 The system is self-draining or capable of 
being completely drained of cleaning and 
sanitizing solutions; and 

(2) 	 CIP equipment that is not designed to be 
disassembled for cleaning shall be designed with 
inspection access points to ensure that all 
interior food-contact surfaces throughout the 
fixed system are being effectively cleaned . 

(e) Except for hot oil cooking or filtering 
equipment, "V" type threads may not be used on food-contact 
surfaces. 

(f) Hot oil filtering equipment shall meet the 
characteristics specified in subsection (c) or (d) and 
shall be readily accessible for filter replacement and 
cleaning of the filter. 

(g) Cutting or piercing parts of can openers shall be 
readily removable for cleaning and for replacement . 

(h) Nonfood-contact surfaces shall be free of 
unnecessary ledges, projections , and crevices, and designed 
and constructed to allow easy cleaning and to facilitate 
maintenance . 

(i) Kick plates shall be designed so that the areas 
behind them are accessible for inspection and cleaning by 
being: 

(1) 	 Removable by one of the methods specified in 
s ubsection (c) (1) (E) or capable of being rotated 
open; and 

(2) 	 Removable or capable of being rotated open 
without unlocking equipment doors. 

(j) Filters or other grease extracting equipment 
shall be designed to be readily removable for cleaning and 
replacement if not designed to be cleaned in place. 

(k) 	 Accuracy of temperature measuring devices , food. 



(1) 	 Food temperature measuring devices that are 
scaled only in Celsius or dually scaled in 
Celsius and Fahrenheit shall be accurate to plus 
or minus one degree Celsius in the intended range 
of use; 

(2) 	 Food temperature measuring devices that are 
scaled only in Fahrenheit shall be accurate to 
plus or minus two degrees Fahrenheit in the 
intended range of use. 

(1) Temp~rature measuring devices, ambient air and 
water. 

(1) 	 Ambient air a nd water temperature measuring 
devices that are scaled in Celsius or dua l ly 
scaled in Celsius and Fahrenheit shall be 
designed to be easily readable and accurate to 
plus or minus one and one-half degrees Celsius in 
the intended range of use. 

(2) 	 Ambient air and water temperature measuring 
devices that are scal ed only in Fahrenheit shall 
be accurate to plus or minus three degrees 
Fahrenheit in the intended range of use. 

(m) Pressure measuring devices that display the 
pressures in the water supply line for the fresh hot water 
sanitizing rinse shall have increments of one pound per 
square inch or sma l ler and shal l be accurate to plus or 
minus two pounds per square inch) in the range indicated on 
the manufacturer ' s data plate. 

(n) Exhaust ventilation hood systems in food 
preparation and warewashing areas including components such 
as hoods, fans , guards, and ducting shall be designed to 
prevent grease or condensation from draining or dripping 
onto food , equipment , utensils , linens , and single-service 
and single-use articles . 

(o) 	 Equipment openings, closures and deflectors . 
(1) 	 A cover or lid for equipment shall overlap the 

opening and be sloped to drain; 
(2) 	 An opening located within the top of a unit of 

equipment that is designed for use with a cover 
or lid shall be flanged upward at least two
tenths of an inch ; 

(3) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (4) , fixed 
piping, temperature measuring devices, rotary 
shafts, and other parts extending into equipment 
shall be provided with a watertight joint at the 
point where the item enters the equipment. 

(4) 	 I f a watertight joint is not provided : 



(A) 	 The piping, temperature measuring devices, 
rotary shafts, and other parts extending 
through the openings shall be equipped with 
an apron designed to deflect condensation, 
drips, and dust from openings into the 
food; and 

(B) 	 The opening shall be flanged as specified 
in paragraph (2). 

(p) In equipment that dispenses or vends liquid food 
or i ce in unpackaged form: 

(1) 	 The delivery tube , chute , orifice, a nd splash 
surfaces directly above the container receiving 
the food shall be designed in a manner, such as 
with barriers, baffles, or drip aprons, so t hat 
drips from condensation and splash are diverted 
from the opening of the container receiving the 
food; 

(2) 	 The delivery tube , chute, and orifice shall be 
protected from manual contact such as by being 
recessed ; 

(3) 	 The delivery tube or chute and orifice of 
equipment used to vend liquid food or ice in 
unpackaged form to self-service consumers shall 
be designed so that the delivery tube or chute 
and orifice are protected from dust, insects, 
rodents, and other contamination by a self 
closing door if the equipment is: 
(A) 	 Located in an outside area that does not 

otherwise afford the protection of an 
enclosure against the rain, windblown 
debris , insects , rodents , and other 
contaminants that are present in the 
environment ; or 

(B) 	 Available for self-service during hours 
when it is not under the full-time 
supervision of a food empl oyee ; and 

(4) 	 The dispensing equipment actuating lever or 
mechanism and filling device of beverage 
dispensing equipment shall be designed to prevent 
contact with the lip-contact surface of g l asses 
or cups that are ref i lled; 

(5) 	 Dispensing equipment in which potentially 
hazardous food (time/temperature control for 
safety food) in a homogenous liquid form is 
maintained outside of the temperature control 



requirements as specified in section 
11-50-34 (f) (1) s hall : 
(A ) Be specifically designed and equipped to 

maintain the commercial sterility of 
aseptical l y packaged food in a homogenous 
l iquid form for a specified duration from 
the time of opening the packaging within 
the equipment ; and 

(B) 	 Conform to the requirements for this 
equipment as specified in NSF/ANSI 18-2006
Manual Food and Beverage Dispensing 
Equipment . 

(q) The d i spensing compartment of a vending machine 
including a machine that is designed to vend prepackaged 
snack food t hat is not potentially hazardous 
(time/temperature control for safety food) such as chips, 
party mixes , and pretzels shall be equipped with a self 
closing door or cover if t h e machine i s: 

(1) 	 Located in an outside a r ea that does not 
otherwise afford the protection of an enclosure 
against the rain, windblown debris , insects , 
rodents , and other contaminants that are present 
in the environment; or 

(2) 	 Availabl e for self-service during hours when it 
is not under the full-time supervision of a food 
employee . 

(r) Equipment containing bearings and gears that 
require lubricants shall be designed and constructed so 
that the lubricant cannot leak, drip , or be forced int o 
food or onto food-contact surfaces . 

(s) Except for cold plates that are constructed 
integrally with an ice storage bin, beverage tubin g and 
cold-plate beverage cooling devices may not be install ed i n 
contact with stored ice . 

(t) Liquid waste drain lines may not pass through an 
ice machine or ice storage bin . 

(u) If a condenser unit is an integral component of 
equipment , the condenser unit shall be separated from the 
food and food storage space by a dustproof barrier . 

(v) Cutting or piercing parts of can openers on 
vending machines shall be protected from manual contact , 
dust , insects, rodents, and other contamination . 

(w) 	 Molluscan shellfish tanks. 
(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (2), mol l uscan 

shellfish life support system display tanks may 
not be used to store or display s hellfish that 



are offered for human consumption and shall be 
conspicuously marked so that it is obvious to the 
consumer that the shellfish are for display only; 

(2) 	 Molluscan shellfish life-support system display 
tanks that are used to store or display shellfish 
that are offered for human consumption shall be 
operated and maintained in accordance with a 
variance granted by the department as specified 
in section ll-50-13(a) and a HACCP plan that: 
(A) 	 Is submitted by the [permit holder] owner 

or operator and approved as specified in 
section 11-50-13(b) ; and 

(B} 	 Ensures that: 
(i) 	 Water used with fish other than 

molluscan shellfish does not flow into 
the molluscan tank; 

(ii) 	 The safety and quality of the 
shellfish as they were received are 
not compromised by the use of the 
tank; and 

(iii) 	 The identity of the source of the 
shellstock is retained as specified in 
section 11-50-31(s). 

(x) 	 Vending machines, automatic shutoff . 
(1) A machine vending potentially hazardous food 

(time/temperature control for safety food) shall 
have an automatic control that prevents the 
machine from vending food: 
(A} 	 If there is a power failure, mechanical 

failure , or other condition that results in 
an internal machine temperature that cannot 
maintain food temperatures as specified in 
subchapter 3 ; and 

(B) 	 If a condition specified in paragraph 
(1) (A) occurs, until the machine is 
serviced and restocked with food that has 
been maintained at temperatures specified 
in subchapter 3; 

(2) 	 When the automatic shutoff within a machine 
vending potentially hazardous food 
(time/temperature control for safety food) is 
activated: 
(A) 	 In a refrigerated vending machine, the 

ambient air temperature may not exceed 
forty-one degrees Fahrenheit for more than 
thirty minutes immediately after the 



machine is filled , serviced, or restocked ; 
or 

(B) In a hot holding vending machine , the 
ambient air temperature may not be less 
than one hundred thirty-five degrees 
Fahrenheit for more than one hundred twenty 
minutes immediately after the machine is 
filled, serviced, or restocked. 

(y) Temperature measuring devices. 
(1) In a mechanically refrigerated or hot food 

storage unit, the sensor of a temperature 
measuring device shall be located to measure the 
air temperature or a simulated product 
temperature in the warmest part of a mechanically 
refrigerated unit and in the coolest part of a 
hot food storage unit; 

(2 ) Except as specified in paragraph (3), cold or h o t 
holding equipment used for potentially hazardous 
food (time/temperature control for safety food) 
shall be designed to include and shall be 
equipped with at least one integral or 
permanently affixed temperature measuring device 
that is located to allow easy viewing of the 
device ' s temperature display ; 

(3) Paragraph (2) does not apply to equipment for 
which the placement of a temperature measuring 
device is not a practical means for measuring the 
ambient air surrounding the food because of the 
design, type, and use of the equipment, such as 
calrod units, heat lamps, cold plates , 
bainmaries , steam tables, insulated food 
transport containers , and salad bars; 

(4) Temperature measuring devices shall be designed 
to be easily readable ; 

(5) Food temperature measuring devices and water 
temperature measuring devices on warewashing 
machines shall have a numerical scale , printed 
record , o r digital readout i n increments n o 
greater than two degrees Fahrenheit in the 
intended range of use . 

(z ) A warewashing machine shall be provided with an 
easily accessible and readable data plate a ffi xe d to the 
machine by the manufacturer that indicates the machine ' s 
design and operation specifications including the: 

(1) 	 Temperatures required for washing , rinsing, and 
sanitizing; 



(2) Pressure required for the fresh wa t er sanitizing 
rinse unless t he machine is designed to use only 
a pumped sanitizing rinse ; and 

(3) 	 Conveyor s peed for conveyor machines or cycle 
time for stationary rack machines . 

(aa) Warewashing machine wash and rinse tanks shall be 
equipped with baffles, curt ains , or other means to minimize 
inter nal cross contamination of t he solu tions in wash and 
rinse tanks . 

(bb) A warewashing machine s hal l be equipped with a 
temperature measuring device that indicates the temperature 
of the water : 

(1) 	 In each wash and rin se tank ; and 
(2) 	 As the wa t er enters t he hot water sanitizing 

final rinse manifold or in the chemical 
sanitizing solution tan k . 

(cc) If hot water is used for sanitization in manual 
warewashing operations , the sanitizing compartment of the 
s i n k shal l be: 

(1) 	 Designed wi th a n integral heating device that is 
capabl e of maintain ing water at a temperature not 
less than one hundred seventy-one degrees 
Fahrenheit; and 

(2) 	 Provided with a rack or basket to a l low complete 
immersion of equipment and utensils into the hot 
water. 

(dd) A warewashing machine that is installed shall be 
equipped to : 

( 1 ) 	 Automatically dispense detergent s and sani t izers ; 
and 

(2) 	 Incorporate a visual means to verify that 
detergents and sanitizer s are delivered or a 
visual or a udible alarm to signal if the 
detergents a n d sanitizers are not delivered to 
the respective washing and sanitizing cycles . 

(ee) Warewashing machines , flow pressure device . 
(1) 	 Warewashing machines that provide a fresh hot 

water saniti zing rinse shall be e quipped with a 
pressure gauge or similar device such as a 
transducer that measures and displays the water 
pressure i n the s upply line i mmediately before 
enteri ng the warewashing machine; and 

(2) 	 If the flow pressure measuring device is upstream 
of the fresh hot water saniti z ing rinse control 
valve , the device shall be mounted in a one
fourt h inch Iron Pi pe Size (IPS) va l ve ; 



(3) 	 Paragraphs (1) and (2) do not apply to a machine 
that uses only a pumped or recirculated 
sanitizing rinse. 

(ff) Sinks and drainboards of warewashing sinks and 
machines shall be self-draining. 

(gg) Equipment compartments that are subject to 
accumulation of moisture due to conditions such as 
condensation, food or beverage drip, or water from melting 
ice shall be sloped to an outlet that allows complete 
draining. 

(hh) Vending machines, liquid waste products . 
( 1) Vending machines designed to store beverages that 

are packaged in containers made from paper 
products shall be equipped with diversion devices 
and retention pans or drains for container 
leakage ; 

(2) 	 Vending machines that dispense liquid food in 
bulk shall be: 
(A ) Provided with an internally mounted waste 

receptacle for the collection of drip, 
spillage , overflow, or other internal 
wastes ; and 

{B) 	 Equipped with an automatic shutoff d evice 
that will place the machine out of 
operatio n before the waste receptacle 
overflows; 

(3) 	 Shutoff devices specified in paragraph (2) (B) 
shall prevent water or liquid food from 
continuously running if there is a failure of a 
f l ow control device in the water or liquid food 
system or waste accumulation that could lead to 
overflow of the waste receptacle . 

(ii) 	 Vending machine, doors and openings . 
(1) 	 Vending machine doors and access opening covers 

to food and container storage spaces shall be 
t ight-fitting so that the space along the entire 
interface between the doors or covers and the 
cabinet of the machine , if the doors or covers 
are in a closed position, is no greater than one
sixteenth inch by: 
(A) 	 Being covered with louvers , screens , or 

materials that provide an equivalent 
opening of not greater than one-sixteenth 
inch. Screening of sixteen mesh to one 
inch meets this requirement; 

(B) 	 Being effectively gasketed; 



(C) 	 Having interface surfaces that are at least 
one-half inch wide ; or 

(D) 	 Jambs or surfaces used to form an L-shaped 
entry path to the interface ; 

(2) 	 Vending machine service connection openings 
through an exterior wall of a machine shall be 
closed by sealants, clamps, or grommets so that 
the openings are no larger than 1.5 millimeters 
or one-sixteenth inch. 

(jj) Food equipment that is certified or classified 
for sanitation by an American National Standards Institute 
(ANSI) - accredited certification program is deemed to comply 
with sections 11-50-45 and 11-50-46. [Eff 2/24/2014; 
comp ] (Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321
11) 

§11- 50-47 Numbers and capacities . (a) Equipment for 
cooling and heating food , and holding cold and hot food, 
shall be sufficient in number and capacity to provide food 
temperatures as specified in subchapter 3. 

(b) Manual warewashing , sink compartment 
requirements. 

(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (3) , a sink with 
at l e ast three compartments shall be provided for 
manual l y washing, rinsing , and sanitizing 
equipment and utensils; 

(2) 	 Sink compartments shall be large enough to 
accommodate immersion of the largest equipment 
and utensils. If equipment or utensils are too 
large for the warewashing sink, a warewashing 
machine or alternative equipment as specified in 
paragraph (3) shall be used; 

(3) 	 Alternative manual warewashing equipment may be 
used when there are special cleaning needs or 
constraints and its use is approved by the 
director . Alternative manual warewashing 
equipment may include : 
(A) 	 High- pressure detergent sprayers ; 
(B) 	 Low- or line-pressure spray detergent 

foamers; 
(C) 	 Other task-specific cleaning equipment; 
(D) 	 Brushes or other implements; 
(E) 	 One or two-compartment sinks if only a 

limited number of utensils need to be 
washed; or 



(F) 	 Receptacles that ·substitute for the 
compartments of a multi-compartment sink. 

(c) Drainboards, utensil racks, or tables large 
enough to accommodate all soiled and cleaned items that may 
accumulate during hours of operation shall be provided for 
necessary utensil holding before cleaning and after 
sanitizing . 

(d) If required by law, ventilation hood systems and 
devices shall be sufficient in number and capacity to 
prevent grease or condensation from collecting on walls and 
ceilings. 

(e) 	 Clothes washers and dryers. 
( 1) Except as specified in paragraph (2), if work 

clothes or linens are laundered on the premises, 
a mechanical clothes washer and dryer shall be 
provided and used; 

(2) 	 If on-premises laundering is limited to wiping 
cloths intended to be used moist, or wiping 
cloths are air-dried as specified in section 
ll-50-53(b), a mechanical clothes washer and 
dryer need not be provided. 

(f) A food dispensing utensil shall be available for 
each container displayed at a consumer self-service unit 
s u ch as a buffet or salad bar. 

(g) 	 Food temperature measuring devices . 
(1) 	 Food temperature measuring devices shall be 

provided and readily accessible for use in 
ensuring attainment and maintenance of food 
temperatures as specified in subchapter 3; 

(2) 	 A temperature measuring device with a suitable 
small diameter probe that is designed to measure 
the temperature of thin masses shall be provided 
and readily accessible to accurately measure the 
temperature in thin foods such as meat patties 
and fish filets . 

(h) In manual warewashing operations, a temperature 
measuring device shall be provided and readily accessible 
for frequently measuring the washing and sanitizing 
temperatures. A test kit or other device that accurately 
measures the concentration in parts per million of 
sanitizing solutions shall be provided. 

(i) In hot water mechanical warewashing operations , 
an irreversible registering temperature indicator shall be 
provided a nd readily accessible for measuring the utensil 
surface temperature . [Eff 2/24/2014 ; a m and comp 

J (Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 



§11-50-48 Location and installation . (a) Equipment , 
clothes washers and dryers , and storage cabinets , 
contamination prevention. 

(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (2), equipment, 
a cabinet used for the storage of food , or a 
cabinet that is used to store cleaned and 
sanitized equ ipment, utensils, laundered linens, 
and single-service and single-use articles may 
not be located: 
(A) 	 In locker rooms; 
(B) 	 In toi l et rooms; 
(C) 	 In garbage rooms; 
(D) 	 In mechanical rooms; 
(E) 	 Under sewer lines that are not shiel ded to 

intercept potential drips ; 
(F) 	 Under leaking water lines including leaking 

automatic fire sprinkler heads or under 
lines on which water has condensed ; 

(G) 	 Under open stairwells ; or 
(H) 	 Under other sources of contamination; 

(2) 	 A storage cabinet used for linens or single
service or single-use articles may be stored in a 
locker room ; 

(3) 	 If a mechanical clothes washer or dryer is 
provided, the washer or dryer shall be located so 
that it is protected from contamination and only 
where there is no exposed food ; clean equipment , 
utensils, and linens; and unwrapped single
service and single-use articles. 

(b) 	 Fixed equipment, spacing or sealing . 
(1) 	 Equipment that is fixed because it is not easily 

movable shall be installed so that it is : 
(A) 	 Spaced to allow access for cleaning along 

the sides , behind , and above the equipment; 
(B) 	 Spaced from adjoining equipment , wa l ls , and 

ceilings a distance of not more than one 
millimeter or one thirty-second inch; or 

(C) 	 Sealed to adjoining equipment or walls, if 
the equipment is exposed to spillage or 
seepage; 

(2) 	 Counter- mounted equipment that is not easily 
movable shall be i nstal l ed to allow cleaning of 
the equipment and areas underneath and around the 
equipment by being : 



(A} 	 Sealed; or 
(B) 	 Elevated on legs as specified in subsection 

(c) (4). 

(c) 	 Fixed equipment, elevation or sealing . 
(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraphs (2) and (3), 

floor-mounted equipment that is not easily 
movable shal l be sealed to the floor or elevated 
on legs that provide at least a six inch 
clearance between the floor and the equipment; 

(2) 	 If no part of the floor under the floor-mounted 
equipment is more than six inches from the point 
of c l eaning access , the c l earance space may be 
only four inches; 

(3) 	 This section does not apply to display shelving 
units, display refrigeration units, and display 
freezer units located in the consumer shopping 
areas of a retail food store, if the floor under 
the units is maintained clean ; 

(4) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (5), counter
mounted equipment that is not easily movable 
shall be elevated on legs that provide at least a 
four inch clearance between the table and the 
equipment ; 

(5) 	 The c l earance space between the table and 
counter-mounted equipment may be: 
(A) 	 Three inches if the horizontal distance of 

the table top under the equipment is no 
more than twenty inches from the point of 
access for cleaning ; or 

(B) 	 Two inches if the horizontal distance of 
the table top under the equipmen t is no 
more than three inches from the point of 
access for cleaning . [Eff 2/24/2014 ; 
comp (Auth: HRS §321-11) 
(Imp: 	 HRS §321-11) 

§11-50- 49 Maintenance and operation. (a) Good 
repair and proper adjustment . 

(1) 	 Equipment shall be maintained in a state of 
repair and condition that meets the requirements 
specified in sections 11-50-45 and 1 1-50-46 ; 

(2) 	 Equipment components such as doors , seals, 
hinges, fasteners, and kick p l ates shall be kept 
intact, tight, and adjusted in accordance with 
manufacturer's specifications; 



(3) 	 Cutting or piercing parts of can openers shall be 
kept sharp to minimize the creation of metal 
fragments that can contaminate food when the 
container is opened . 

(b) Surfaces such as cutting blocks and boards that 
are subject to scratching and scoring shall be resurfaced 
if they can no longer be effectively cleaned and sanitized, 
or discarded if they are not capable of being resurfaced . 

(c) A warewashing machine ; the compartments of sinks , 
basins, or other receptacles used for washing and rinsing 
equipment, utensils, or raw foods , or laundering wiping 
cloths; and drainboards or other equipment used to 
subs t itute for drainboards as specified in section 
11-50-47(c) shall be cleaned : 

(1) 	 Before use; 
(2) 	 Throughout the day at a frequency necessary to 

prevent recontamination of equipment and utensils 
and to ensure that the equipment performs its 
intended function; and 

(3) 	 If used , at least every twenty-four hours. 
(d) Warewashing machines, manufacturers ' operating 

instructions. 
(1) 	 A warewashing machine and its auxilia r y 

components shal l be operated in accordance with 
the machine's data plate and other manufacturer ' s 
instructions ; 

(2) 	 A warewashing machine ' s conveyor speed or 
automatic cycle times shall be maintained 
accurately timed in accordance with 
manufacturer ' s specifications . 

(e) 	 Warewashing sinks, use limitation. 
(1) 	 A warewashing sink may not be used for 

handwashing as specified in section 11-50-22(d); 
(2) 	 I f a warewashing sink is used to wash wiping 

cloths , wash produce, or thaw food, the sink 
shal l be cleaned as specified in subsection (c) 
before and after each time it is used to wash 
wiping c l oths or wash produce or thaw food . 
Sinks used to wash or thaw food shall be 
sanitized as specified in section 11-50- 51 before 
and after using the sink to wash produce or thaw 
food. 

(f) When used for warewashing, the wash compartment 
of a sink , mechanical warewasher, or wash receptacle of 
alternative manual warewashing equipment as specified in 
section ll-50-47(b) (3) , shall contain a wash solution of 



soap , detergent, acid cleaner , alka l ine cleaner , degreaser, 
abrasive cleaner, or other c lea ning agent according to the 
cleaning agent manufacturer ' s label instructions . 

(g) The wash, rinse , and sanitize solutions s hall be 
maintained clean. 

(h) The t emperature of the wash solution in manual 
warewashing equipmen t s hall be maintained at not l ess than 
one hundred ten degrees Fahrenheit or the temperature 
specified on the cleaning agent manufacturer ' s label 
instructions . 

(i) Mechanical warewashing equipment , wash solution 
temperature . 

(1) 	 The temperature of the wash solution in spray 
type warewashers that use hot water to sanitize 
may not be l ess than: 
(A) 	 For a stationary rack , single temperature 

machine , one hundred sixty-five degrees 
Fahrenheit; 

(B) 	 For a stationary rack, dual temperature 
machine, one hundred fifty degrees 
Fahrenheit; 

(C) 	 For a single tank, conveyor , dual 
temperature machine , one hundred sixty 
degrees Fahrenheit; or 

(D) 	 For a multitank, conveyor, multitemperature 
machine , one hundred fifty degrees 
Fahrenheit; 

(2) 	 The temperature of the wash solution in spray
type warewashers that use chemicals to sanitize 
may no t be less than one hundred twenty degrees 
Fahrenheit. 

(j) If immersion in hot water is used for sanitizing 
in a manual operation, the temperature of the water shall 
be maintained at one hundred seventy-one degrees Fahrenheit 
or above. 

(k) Mechanical warewashing equipment , hot water 
sanitization temperatures. 

(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (2), in a 
mechanical operation , the temperature of the 
fresh hot water sanitizing rinse as it enters the 
manifold may not be more than one hundred ninety
four deg r ees Fahrenheit, or less than: 
(A) 	 For a stationary rack, single temperature 

machine , one hundred sixty-five degrees 
Fahrenheit ; or 



(B) 	 For all other machines, one hundred eighty 
degrees Fahrenheit; 

(2) The maximum temperature specified in paragraph 
(1) , does not apply to the high pressure and 
temperature systems with wand- type, hand-held, 
spraying devices used for the in-pl ace cleaning 
and sanitizing of equipment such as meat saws . 

(1) The flow pressure of the fresh hot water 
sanitizing rinse in a warewashing machine, as measured in 
the water line immediately downstream or upstream from the 
fresh hot water sanitizing rinse control value , shall be 
within the range specified on the machine manu facturer ' s 
data plate and may not be less than five pounds per square 
inch or more than thirty pounds per square inch. 

(m) A chemical sanitizer used in a sanitizing 
solution for a manual or mechanical operation at contact 
times specified in section ll-50-51(c) (3) shal l meet the 
criteria specified in section 11-50-Bl(e) , shal l be used i n 
accordance with the EPA registered label use instructions , 
and shall be used as follows : 

(1) 	 A chlorine solution shall have a minimum 
temperature based on the concentration and pH of 
the solution as listed in Table 49-1; 

Table 49-1 
Concen tration Range Minimum Temperature 

mg/1 pH 10 or less OF pH 8 or less OF 

25 to 49 120 120 
50 to 99 100 75 

100 55 55 

(2) 	 An iodine solution shall have a: 
(A) 	 Minimum temperatu r e of sixty-eight degrees 

Fahrenheit; 
(B) 	 pH of 5.0 or less or a pH no higher than 

the level for which the manufacturer 
specifies the solution is effective ; a nd 

(C) 	 Concentration between 12.5 milligram per 
liter and twenty-five milligram per liter; 

(3) 	 A q uaternary ammonium compound solution shall : 
(A) 	 Have a minimum temperature of seventy- five 

degrees Fahrenheit; 
(B) 	 Have a concentration as specified in 

section 11-50-Bl(e) and as indicated by the 



manufacturer's use directions included in 
the labeling; a nd 

(C} 	 Be used only in water with five hundred 
mill i gram per liter hardness or less or in 
water having a hardness no greater than 
specified by the EPA-registered label use 
instructions ; 

(4) 	 If another solution of a chemical specified in 
paragraphs (1) to (3) is used, the [permit 
holder] owner or operator shall demonstrate to 
the director that the solution achieves 
sanitization and the use of the solution shall· be 
approved ; or 

(5) 	 If a chemical sanitizer other than chlorine , 
iodine, or a quaternary ammonium compound is 
used, it shall be applied in accordance with the 
EPA-registered label use instructions . 

(n) If a detergent-sanitizer is used to sanitize in a 
cleaning and sanitizing procedure where there is no 
distinct water rinse between the washing and sanitizing 
steps, the agent applied in the sanitizing step shall be 
the same detergent-sanitizer that is used in the washing 
step . 

(o) Concentration of the sanitizing solution shall be 
accurately determined by using a test kit or other device . 

(p) 	 Good repair and calibration. 
(1) 	 Utensils shall be maintained in a state of repair 

or condition that complies with the requirements 
specified in sections 11-50-45 and 11-50-46 or 
shall be discarded; 

(2) 	 Food temperature measuring devices shall be 
calibrated in accordance with manufacturer's 
specifications as necessary to ensure their 
accuracy; 

(3) 	 Ambient air temperature, water pressure, and 
water temperature measuring devices shall be 
maintained in good repair and be accurate within 
the intended range of use . 

(q) A food establishment without facilities specified 
in sections 11-50-50 and 11-50-51 for cleaning and 
sanitizing kitchenware and tableware shall provide only 
singl e-use kitchenware , single-service articles, and 
single-use articles for use by food employees and single
service articles for use by consumers . 

(r) Single-service and single-use articles , use 
limitation. 



(1) 	 Single-service and single-use articles may not be 
reused, except that the director may approve the 
reuse of single-use articles that meet the 
materials, durability, strength, and cleanability 
specifications in sections ll-50-45(a) and 
11-50-46(a) and (c) for multiuse utensils; 

(2) 	 The bulk milk container dispensing tube shall be 
cut on the diagonal leaving no more than one inch 
protruding from the chilled dispensing head. 

(s) Mollusk and crustacea shells may not be used more 
than once as serving containers. [Eff 2/24/2014; 
comp (Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321
11) 

§11- 50-50 Cleaning of equipment and utensils. (a) 
Equipment, food-contact surfaces , nonfood-contact surfaces, 
and utensils - objective . 

(1) 	 Equipment food-contact surfaces and utensils 
shall be clean to sight and touch; 

(2) 	 The food-contact surfaces of cooking equipment 
and pans shall be kept free of encrusted grease 
deposits and other soil accumulations; 

(3) 	 Nonfood-contact surfaces of equipment shall be 
kept free of an accumulation of dust, dirt, food 
residue, and other debris. 

(b) Equipment food-contact surfaces and utensils
frequency . 

( 1) Equipment food-contact surfaces and utensils 
shal l be cleaned : 
(A) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (2), 

before each use with a different type of 
raw animal food such as beef, fish, lamb, 
pork, or poultry ; 

(B) 	 Each time there is a change from working 
with raw foods to working with ready-to-eat 
foods; 

(C) 	 Between uses with raw fruits and vegetables 
and with potentially hazardous food 
(time/temperature control for safety food); 

(D) 	 Before using or storing a food temperature 
measuring device; and 

(E) 	 At any time during the operation when 
contamination may have occurred; 



(2) 	 Paragraph (1 ) (A) does not apply if the food
contact surface or utensil is in contact with a 
succession of different raw animal foods each 
requiring a higher cookin g temperature as 
specified in sect i on ll- 50- 33(a) than the 
previous food , s uch as preparing raw fis h 
followed by cutting raw poultry on the same 
cutting board; 

(3) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (4), if used 
with potentially hazardous food (time/temperature 
control for safety food), equipment food-contact 
surfaces and utensils shall be cleaned throughout 
the day at least every four h ours; 

(4) 	 Surfaces of utensils and equipment contacting 
potentially hazardous food (time/temperature 
control for safet y food) may be cleaned l ess 
frequently than every four hours if : 
(A) 	 In storage , contai ners of potentially 

hazardous f ood (time/temperature control 
for safety food) and their contents are 
maintained at temperatures specified in 
subchapter 3 and the containers are cleaned 
when they are empty; 

(B) 	 Utensils and equipment are used to prepare 
food in a refrigerated room or area that is 
maintained at one of the temperatures in 
Table 50-1 and : 
(i) 	 Th e utensils and equipment are cleaned 

at the frequency in the fol l owing 
chart that corresponds to the 
temper ature ; and 

Tabl e 50-1 
Temperature Cleaning Frequency 
41°F or less 24 hours 

>41°F t o 45°F 20 hours 
>45°F t o 50°F 16 hours 
>50°F to 55°F 10 hours 

(ii ) The cleaning frequency based on the 
ambi e nt temperature of the 
refrigerated room or area is 
documented in the food establishment ; 

(C) 	 Containers in serving s itua tions such as 
salad bars , delis, and cafeteria l ines hold 



ready-to-eat potentially h azardous food 
(time/t emperature control fo r safety food) 
that 	is maintained at the temperatures 
specified in subchapter 3 , are 
intermittently combi ned with a dditional 
supplies of t he same food t h a t is at the 
required temperature, and the containers 
are cleaned at least every t wenty-f our 
hours; 

(D) 	 Temperature measuring d evi ces are 
maintained in contact wi th f ood, such as 
when left in a con tain e r of deli f ood or in 
a r oast , held at t e mperatures specified in 
subchapter 3; 

(E) 	 Equipment is used for storage of packaged 
o r unpackaged food s uch as a reach-in 
refrigerator a nd the e quipment is c l eaned 
at a frequency necessary to preclude 
accumulation of soi l residues ; 

(F) 	 The c leaning schedule is appr oved based on 
consideration of : 
(i) 	 Characteristics of t he equipment and 

its use; 
(ii) 	 The type of food involved; 

(iii) 	 The amount of food res idue 
accumulation; and 

(iv) 	 The temperature at which the f ood is 
maintained during the operation and 
the potential for the rapid and 
progressive multiplication o f 
pathogenic or tox igenic microorga nis ms 
that are capable of causing foodbo rne 
disease; o r 

(G) 	 In-use utensils are intermittently stored 
in a container of wate r in whi ch the water 
is maintained at one hundred thirty-five 
degrees Fahrenheit or more and the ut ens i ls 
and container are cleaned at least every 
twenty-four hours or at a frequency 
necessary to preclude accumulation of soil 
residues; 

(5) 	 Except when dry c l eaning methods are used as 
specified in s ubsection (e), s urfaces of u tensils 
and equipment contacting food that is not 
potent i ally hazardous (ti me/ t e mperature control 
for safety food) shall be cleaned: 



(A) 	 At any time when contamination may have 
occurred; 

(B) 	 At least every twenty-four hours for iced 
tea dispensers and consumer self- service 
utensils such as tongs, scoops, or ladles; 

(C) 	 Before restocking consumer self-service 
equipment and utensils such as condiment 
dispensers and display containers ; and 

(D) 	 In equipment such as ice bins and beverage 
di.spensing nozzles and enclosed components 
of equipment such as ice makers, cooking 
oi l storage tanks and distribution lines , 
beverage and syrup dispensing lines or 
tubes, coffee bean grinders , and water 
vending equipment : 
(i) 	 At a frequency specified by the 

manufacturer; or 
(ii) 	 Absent ma nufacturer specifications , at 

a frequency necessary to preclude 
accumulation of soil or mold . 

(c) 	 Cooking and baking equipment . 
(1) 	 The food- contact surfaces of cooking and baking 

equipment shall be cleaned at least every twenty
four hours . This section does not apply to hot 
oil cooking and filtering equipment if it is 
cleaned as specified in subsection (b) (4) (F); 

(2) 	 The cavities and door seals of microwave ovens 
shall be cleaned at least every twenty-four hours 
by using the manufacturer ' s recorrunended cleaning 
procedure . 

(d) Nonfood-contact surfaces of equipment shall be 
cleaned at a frequency necessary to preclude accumulation 
of soil residues. 

(e) 	 Dry cleaning. 
(1) 	 If used, dry c l eaning methods such as brushing , 

scraping , and vacuuming shal l contact only 
surfaces that are soiled with dry food residues 
that are not potentially hazardous 
(time/temperature control for safety food) ; 

(2) 	 Cleaning equipment used in dry cleaning food
contact surfaces may not be used for any other 
purpose . 

(f) 	 Precleaning. 
(1) 	 Food debris on equipmen t and u tensils shall be 

scrapped over a waste disposal unit or garbage 



receptacle or shal l be removed in a warewashing 
machine with a prewash cycle; 

(2) 	 If necessary for effective cleaning, utensils and 
equipment shall be preflushed, presoaked, or 
scrubbed with abrasives . 

(g) Soiled items to be cleaned in a warewashing 
machine shall be loaded into racks, trays, or baskets or 
onto conveyors in a position that: 

(1) 	 Exposes the items to the unobstructed spray from 
all cycles ; and 

(2) 	 Allows the items to drain . 
(h) 	 Wet cleaning . 
(1) 	 Equipment food-contact surfaces and utensils 

shall be effectively washed to remove or 
compl etely loosen soils by using the manual or 
mechanical means necessary such as the 
application of detergents containing wetting 
agents and emulsifiers; acid, alkaline , or 
abrasive cleaners; hot water; brushes; scouring 
pads; high-pressure sprays; or ultrasonic 
devices; 

(2) 	 The washing procedures selected shall be based on 
the type and purpose of the equipment or utensil, 
and on the type of soil to be removed. 

(i) If washing in sink compartments or a warewashing 
machine is impractical such as when the equipment is fixed 
or the utensi l s are too large, washing shall be done by 
using alternative manual warewashing equipment as specified 
in section ll-50-47(b) (3) in accordance with the following 
procedures: 

(1) 	 Equipment shall be disassembled as necessary to 
allow access of the detergent solution to all 
parts; 

(2) 	 Equipment components and utensils shall be 
scrapped or rough cleaned to remove food particle 
accumulation; and 

(3) 	 Equipment and utensils shall be washed as 
specified in subsection (h) (1) . 

(j) Washed utensils and equipment shall be rinsed so 
that abrasives are removed and cleaning chemicals are 
removed or diluted through the use of water or a detergent
sanitizer solution by using one of the following 
procedures : 

(1) 	 Use of a distinct, separate water rinse after 
washing and before sanitizing if using: 
(A) 	 A three-compartment sink; 



(B) 	 Alternative manual warewashing equipment 
equivalent to a three-compartment sink as 
specified in section 11-50-47(b) (3); or 

(C) 	 A three-step washing, rinsing, and 
sanitizing procedure in a warewashing 
system for CIP equipment; 

(2) 	 Use of a detergent-sanitizer as specified in 
section 11-50-49(n) if using: 
(A) 	 Alternative warewashing equipment as 

specified in section 11-50-47(b) (3) that is 
approved for use with a detergent 
sanitizer ; or 

(B) 	 A warewashing system for CIP equipment; 
(3) 	 Use of a nondistinct water rinse that is 

integrated in the hot water sanitization 
immersion step of a two-compartment sink 
operation; 

(4) 	 If using a warewashing machine that does not 
recycle the sanitizing sol ution as specified in 
paragraph (5), or alternative manual warewashing 
equipment such as sprayers, use of a nondistinct 
water rinse that is: 
(A) 	 Integrated in the application of the 

sanitizing solution; and 
(B) 	 Wasted immediately after each application; 

or 
(5) 	 If using a warewashing machine that recycles the 

sanitizing solution for use in the next wash 
cycle, use of a nondistinct water rinse that is 
integrated in the application of the sanitizing 
solution . 

[(k) 	 Returnables , cleaning for refilling . 
(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraphs (2) and (3), 

returned empty containers intended for cleaning 
and refilling with food shall be cleaned and 
refilled in a regulated food processing plant; 

(2) 	 A food-specific container for beverages may be 
refilled at a food establishment if : 
(A) 	 Only a beverage that is not a potentially 

hazardous food (time/temperature control 
for safety food) is used as specified in 
section 11-50-32(p) (1); 

(B)· 	 The design of the container and of the 
rinsing equipment and the nature of the 
beverage, when considered together, allow 



effective cleaning at home or in the food 
establishment; 

(C) 	 Facilities for rinsing before refilling 
returned containers with fresh, hot water 
that is under pressure and not recirculated 
are provided as part of the dispensing 
system; 

(D) 	 The consumer- owned container returned to 
the food establishment for refilling is 
refilled for sale or service only to the 
same consumer; and 

(E) 	 The container is refilled by: 
(i) 	 An employee of the food establishment; 

or 
(ii) 	 The owner of the container if the 

beverage system includes a 
contamination-free transfer process 
that cannot be bypassed by the 
container owner; 

(3) 	 Consumer-owned containers that are not food
specific may be filled at a water vending machine 
or system . J [Eff 2/24/2014 ; am and comp 
(Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 

§11 - 50-5 1 Sanitization of equipment and utensils. 
(a) Equipment food-contact surfaces and utensils shall be 
sanitized . 

(b) Utensils and food- contact surfaces of equipment 
shall be sanitized before use after cleaning . 

(c) After being cleaned, equipment food-contact 
surfaces and utensils shall be sanitized in: 

(1) 	 Hot water manual operations by immersion for at 
least thirty seconds and as specified in section 
11-50-49 (j); 

(2) 	 Hot water mechanical operations by being cycled 
through equipment that is set up as specified in 
section 11-50-49 (d), (k), and (1) and achieving a 
utensil surface temperature of one hundred sixty 
degrees Fahrenheit as measured by an irreversible 
registering temperature indicator; or 

(3) 	 Chemical manual or mechanical operations, 
including the application of sanitizing chemicals 
by immersion, manual swabbing , brushing, or 
pressure spraying methods , using a solution as 
specified in section 11-50-49(m). Contact times 



shall be consistent with those on EPA-registered 
label use instructions by providing: 
(A) 	 Except as specified in subparagraph (B) , a 

contact time of at least ten seconds for a 
chlorine solution specified i n section 
11-50-49(m) (1); 

(B) 	 A contact time of at least seven seconds 
for a chl orine solution of fifty mg/L that 
has a pH of ten or less and a temperature 
of at least one hundred degrees Fahrenheit 
or a pH of 8 . 0 or l ess and a temperature of 
at least seventy-five degrees Fahrenheit ; 

(C) 	 A contact time of at least thirty seconds 
for other chemical sanitizing solutions; or 

(D) 	 A contact time used in relationship with a 

combination of temperature, concentration, 

and pH that, when evaluated for efficacy, 

yields sanitization as defined in section 

11- 50-2. [Eff 2/24/2014 ; comp 


] (Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp: 
HRS §321-11) 

§11-50-52 Laundering . (a) Clean linens shall be 
free from food residues and other soiling matter. 

(b) 	 Specifications. 
(1) 	 Linens that do not come in direct contact with 

food shall be laundered between operations if 
they become wet, sticky, or visibly soiled ; 

(2) 	 Cloth gloves used as specified in section 
11-50-32(n) (4) shall be l aundered before being 
used with a different type of raw animal food 
such as beef, fish , lamb, pork or poultry; 

(3) 	 Linens and napkins that are used as specified in 
section 11-50-32(1) and cloth napkins shall be 
laundered between each use; 

(4) 	 Wet wiping cloths shall be laundered daily; 
(5) 	 Dry wiping cloths shall be laundered as necessary 

to prevent contamination of food and clean 
serving utensils. 

(c) Soiled linens shall be kept in clean, 
nonabsorbent receptacles or clean, washable laundry bags 
and stored and transported to prevent contamination of 
food, clean equipment , clean utensils, and single-service 
and single-use articles . 

(d) 	 Mechanical washing . 



(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (2), linens 
shall be mechanically washed; 

(2) 	 In food establishments in which only wiping 
cloths are laundered as specified in section 
11- 50-47(e) (2) , the wiping cloths may be 
laundered in a mechanical washer, sink designated 
only for laundering wiping cloths , or a 
warewashing or food preparation sink that is 
cleaned as specified in section 11-50-49(c). 

(e) 	 Use of laundry facilities . 
(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (2) , laundry 

facilities on the premises of a food 
establishment shall be used only for the washing 
and drying of items used in the operation of the 
establishment ; 

(2) 	 Separate laundry facilities located on the 
premises for the purpose of general laundering 
such as for institutions providing boarding and 
lodging may also be used for laundering food 
establishment items . [Eff 2/24/2014 ; comp 

(Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS 
§321-11) 

§11-50-53 Protection of clean items . (a) After 
cleaning and sanitizing , equipment and utensils: 

(1) 	 Shall be air-dried or used after adequate 
draining as specified in the first paragraph of 
40 CFR 180 . 940 , entit l ed "Tolerance exemptions 
for act i ve and inert ingredients for use in 
antimicrobial formulations (food-contact surface 
sanitizing solutions)u , before contact with food; 
and 

(2) 	 May not be cloth dried except that utensils that 
have been air-dried may be polished with cloths 
that are maintained clean and dry . 

(b) Wiping cloths laundered in a food establishment 
that does not have a mechanical clothes dryer as specified 
in section 11-50-47(e) (2) s hall be air-dried in a location 
and in a manner that prevents contamination of food , 
equipment , utensils, linens , and single-service and single
use articles and the wiping cloths. This section does not 
apply if wiping cloths are stored after laundering in a 
sanitizing solution as specified in section 11-50-49(m) . 

(c) Lubricants as specified in section 11-50-Sl(i) 
shall be applied to food-contact surfaces that require 



lubrication in a manner that does not contaminate food
contact surfaces . 

(d) Equipment shall be reassembled so that food
contact surfaces are not contaminated . 

(e) Equipment, utensils, linens , and single-service 
and single- use articles. 

(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (4), cleaned 
equipment and utensils, laundered linens, and 
single-service and single-use articles shall be 
stored : 
(A) 	 In a clean, dry location; 
(B) 	 Where they are not exposed to splash, dust , 

or other contamination; and 
(C) 	 At least six inches above the floor; 

(2) 	 Clean equipment and utensils shall be stored as 
specified in paragraph (1) and shall be stored : 
(A) 	 In a self-draining position that allows air 

drying; and 
(B) 	 Covered or inverted; 

(3) 	 Single-service and single-use articles shall be 
stored as specified in paragraph (1) and shall be 
kept in the original protective package or stored 
by using other means that afford protection from 
contamination until used; 

(4) 	 Items that are kept in closed packages may be 
stored less than six inches above the floor on 
dollies, pallets, racks , and skids that are 
designed as specified in section ll-50-46(ii). 

(f) 	 Prohibitions. 
(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (2) , cleaned and 

sanitized equipment , utensils, laundered linens, 
and single-service and single-use articles may 
not be stored : 
(A) 	 In locker rooms; 
(B) 	 In toilet rooms; 
(C) 	 In garbage rooms; 
(D) 	 In mech anical rooms; 
(E) 	 Under sewer lines that are not shielded to 

intercept potential drips ; 
(F) 	 Under leaking water lines including leaking 

automatic fire sprinkler heads or under 
lines on which water has condensed ; 

(G) 	 Under open stairwells; or 
(H) 	 Under other sources of contamination; 



(2) 	 Laundered linens and single-service and single
use articles that are packaged or in a facility 
such as a cabinet may be stored in a locker room. 

(g) 	 Kitchenware and tableware . 
(1) 	 Single-service and single-use articles and 

c l eaned and sanitized .utensils shall be handled, 
displayed, and dispensed so that contamination of 
food- and lip-contact surfaces is prevented; 

(2) 	 Knives , forks , and spoons that are not prewrappe d 
shall be presented so that only the handles are 
touched by employees and by consumers if consumer 
self-service is provided; 

(3) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (2) , single
service articles that are intended for food- or 
lip-contact shall be furnished for consumer self 
service with the original individual wrapper 
intact or from an approved dispenser. 

(h) Soiled tableware s hall be removed from consumer 
eating and drinking areas and handled so that clean 
tableware is not contaminated . 

(i) 	 Preset tableware. 
(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (2), tableware 

that is preset shall be protected from 
contamination by being wrapped, covered , or 
inverted; 

(2) 	 Preset tableware may be exposed if: 
(A) 	 Unused settings are r e moved when a consumer 

is . seated ; or 
(B) 	 Settings not removed when a consumer is 

seated are cleaned and sanitized before 
further use . 

(j) After being cleaned and sanitized, equipment and 
utensils shall not be rinsed before air drying or use 
unless : 

(1 ) 	 The rinse is applied directly from a potable 
water supply by a warewashing machine that is 
maintained and operated as specified in sections 
ll-50-46(n) to (jj)and l l -50-49(a) to (o); and 

(2) 	 The rinse is applied only after the equipment and 
utensils have been sanitized by the application 
of hot water or by the application of a chemical 
sanitizer solution whose EPA registered label use 
instructions call for rinsing off the sanitizer 
after it is applied in a commercial warewashing 
machine. [Eff 2/24/2014 ; comp 
(Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 



§§11-50-54 to 11-50-59 (Reserved). 

SUBCHAPTER 5 

WATER, PLUMBING, AND WASTE 

§11-50- 60 Water. (a) Drinking water shal l be 
obtained from an approved source that is : 

(1) 	 A public water system; or 
(2) 	 A nonpublic water system that is constructed, 

maintained, and operated according to law. 
(b) A drinking water system shall be flushed and 

disinfected before being placed in service, after 
construction, repair, or modification and after an 
emergency situation, such as a flood , that may introduce 
contaminants to the system . 

(c) Bottled drinking water used or sold in a food 
establishment shall be obtained from approved sources in 
accordance with 21 CFR 129 , entitled "Processing and 
bottli ng of bottled drinking watern . 

(d) 	 Standards. Except as specified in subsection 
(e) : 

(1) 	 Water from a public water system shall meet 40 
CFR 141, entitled "National primary drinking 
water regulationsn and state drinking water 
quality standards; and 

(2) 	 Water from a nonpublic water system shall meet 
state drinking water quality standards. 

(e) 	 Nondri nking water. 
(1) 	 A nondrinking water supply shall be used only if 

its use is approved; 
(2) 	 Nondrinking water shall be used only for 

nonculinary purposes such as air conditioning, 
nonfood equi pment cooling , and fire protection. 

(f) Except when used as specified in subsection (e), 
water from a nonpublic water system shall be sampled and 
tested as required by the department. 

(g) The most recent sample report for the nonpubl ic 
water system shall be retained on file in the food 
establishment or the report shall be maintained as 
specified by state water quality regulations . 

(h) 	 Capacity. 



(1) 	 The water source and system shall be of 
sufficient capacity to meet the peak water 
demands of the food establishment; 

(2) 	 Hot water generation and distribution systems 
shall be sufficient to meet the peak hot water 
demands throughout the food establishment. 

(i) Water under pressure shall be provided to all 
fixtures, equipment, and nonfood equipment that are 
required to use water except that water supplied as 
specified in subsection (k) (l)and (2) to a temporary food 
establishment or in response to a temporary interruption of 
a water supply need not be under pressure . 

(j) Water shall be received from the source through 
the use of : 

(1) 	 An approved public water main; or 
(2) 	 One or more of the following that shall be 

constructed, maintained, and operated according 
to law : 
(A) 	 Nonpublic water main, water pumps, pipes, 

hoses , connections, and other 
appurtenances ; 

(B) 	 Water transport vehicles or other approved 
water transport delivery system; or 

(C) 	 Water containers. 
(k) Water meeting the requirements specified in 

subsections (a) to (i) shall be made available for a mobile 
facility , for a temporary food establishment without a 
permanent water supply , and for a food establishment with a 
temporary interruption of its water supply through : 

(1) 	 A supply of containers of commercially bottled 
drinking water; 

(2) 	 One or more closed portable water containers ; 
(3) 	 An enclosed vehicular water tank; or 
(4) 	 An on-premises water storage tank. 

[Eff 2/24/2014; comp (Auth : HRS 
§321-11) (Imp: HRS §321-11) 

§11-50~61 Plumbing system. (a) /Approved . 
(1) 	 A plumbing system and hoses conveying water shall 

be constructed and repaired. with approved 
materials according to law; 

(2) 	 A water filter shal l be made of safe materials. 
(b) 	 Approved system and cleanable fixtures. 
(1) 	 A plumbing system shall be designed, constructed , 

and installed according to law; 



(2) 	 A plumbing fixture such as a handwashing sink, 
toilet, or urinal shall be easi l y cleanable. 

(c) 	 Handwashing sink , installation. 
(1) 	 A handwashing sink if provided with hot water 

shall be equipped with a mixing valve or 
combination faucet; 

(2) 	 A steam mixing valve may not be used at a 
handwashing sink; 

(3) 	 A self- closing , s l ow-c l osing , or metering faucet 
shall provide a flow of water for at least 
fifteen seconds without the need to reactivate 
the faucet; 

(4) 	 An automatic handwashing facility shall be 
installed in accordance with manufacturer's 
instructions; 

(5) 	 Faucets shall provide a sufficient flow of water 
to permit proper washing and rinsing of hands. 

(d) An air gap between the water supply inlet and the 
flood level rim of the plumbing fixture, equipment, or 
nonfood equipment shall be at least twice the diameter of 
the water supply inlet and may not be less than one inch . 

(e) A backfl ow or backsiphonage prevention device 
installed on a water supply system shall meet American 
Society of Sanitary Engineering (A.S . S . E.) standards for 
construction , installation, maintenance, inspection, and 
testing for that specific application and type of device. 

(f) A water filter , screen , and other water 
conditioning device installed on water lines shall be 
designed to facilitate disassembly for periodic servicing 
and cleaning . A water filter element shall be of the 
replaceable type . 

(g) 	 Handwashing sinks . 
(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (2), at least 

one handwashing sink, a number of handwashing 
sinks necessary for their convenient use by 
employees in areas specified in subsection (1), 
and not fewer than the number of handwashing 
sinks required by law shall be provided; 

(2) 	 If approved and capable of removing the types of 
soils e ncountered in the food operations 
involved, automatic handwashing facilities may be 
substituted for handwashing sinks in a food 
establishment that has a t least one handwashing 
sink . 

(h) At least one toilet and not fewer than the 
toilets required by law shall be provided . 



(i) Facilities for disposal of mop water and similar 
liquid waste shall be provided . At least one service sink 
or one curbed cleaning facility equipped with a floor drain 
shal l be provided and conveniently located for the cleaning 
of mops or similar wet floor c l eaning tools and for the 
disposal of mop water and similar liquid waste for newly 
constructed or extensively remodeled establishments; except 
that the director may waive this requirement if an 
alternative liquid waste disposal facility is readily 
available . 

(j) A plumbing system shall be installed to preclude 
backflow of a solid, liquid, or gas contaminant into the 
water supply system at each point of use at the food 
establishment, including on a hose bibb if a hose is 
attached or on a hose bibb if a hose is not attached and 
backflow prevention is required by law, by: 

(1) 	 Providing an air gap as speci fied in subsection 
(d); or 

(2) 	 Installing an approved backflow prevention device 
as specified in subsection (e) . 

(k) 	 Backflow prevention device, carbonator. 
(1) 	 If not provided with an air gap as specified in 

subsection (d), a dual check valve with an 
intermediate vent preceded by a screen of not 
less than one hundred mesh to one inch shall be 
installed upstream from a carbonating device and 
downstream from any copper in the water supply 
line ; 

(2) 	 A dual check valve attached to the carbonator 
need not be of the vented type if an air gap or 
vented backflow prevention device has been 
otherwise provided as specified in paragraph (1) 

(1) 	 A handwashing sink shall be located: 
(1) 	 To allow convenient use by employees in food 

preparation, food dispensing , and warewashing 
areas; and 

(2) 	 In, or immediately adjacent to , toilet rooms . 
(m) A backflow prevention device shall be located so 

that it may be serviced and maintained. 
(n) A water filter , screen , and other water 

conditioning device instal led on water lines shall be 
located to facilitate disassembly for periodic servicing 
and cleaning . 

(o) 	 Using a handwashing sink. 
(1) 	 A handwash i ng sink shall be maintained so that it 

i s accessible at all times for employee use; 



(2) 	 A handwashing sink may not be used for purposes 
other than handwashing ; 

(3) 	 An automatic handwas hing facility shall be used 
in accordance with manufacturer ' s instructions. 

(p) 	 Prohibiting a cross connection. 
( 1 ) 	 A person may not create a cross connection by 

connecting a pipe or conduit between the drinking 
water system and a nondrinking water system or a 
water system of unknown quality; 

(2) 	 The piping of a nondrinking water system shall be 
durab l y identified so that it is readily 
distinguishable from piping that carries drinking 
water. 

(q) 	 Water reservoir of fogging devices, cleaning . 
(1) 	 A reservoir that is used to supply water to a 

device such as a produce fogger shall be : 
(A) 	 Maintained in accordance with 

manufacturer ' s specifications; a nd 
(B) 	 Cleaned in accordance with manufacturer ' s 

specifications or according to the 
procedures specified in paragraph (2) , 
whichever is more stringent; 

(2) 	 Cleaning procedures shall include at least the 
following steps and shall be conducted at least 
once a week: 
(A) 	 Draining and complete disassembl y of the 

water and aerosol contact parts ; 
(B) 	 Brush-cleaning the reservoir , aerosol 

tubing, and discharge nozzles with a 
suitable detergent solution; 

(C) 	 Flushing the complete system with water to 
remove the detergent solution and 
particul ate accumulation ; and 

(D) 	 Rinsing by immersing , spraying , or swabbing 
the reservoir , aerosol tubing , and 
disch arge nozzles with at least fifty mg/L 
hypochl orite solution . 

(r) 	 A plumbing system shall be : 
(1) 	 Repaired according to law; and 
(2) Maintained in good repair. 
N Water tanks 
ill Materials that are used in the cons t ruction of a 

water tank, and appurtenances shall be : 
ill Safe; 
_@l Durable, corrosion-resistant, and 

nonabsorbent; and 



ill 

ill 

ill 

ill 

ill 

J..2l 

ill Finished to have a smooth, easily cleanable 
surface . 

A water tank shall be: 
(A) 	 Enclosed from the filling inlet to the 

discharge outlet; and 
ill Sloped to an outlet that allows complete 

drainage of the tank . 
If a water tank is designed with an access port 
for inspection and cleaning, the opening shall be 
in the top of the tank and : 
ill Flanged upward at least 0 . 5 inch; and 
ill Equipped with a port cover assembly that 

is : 
(i) 	 Provided with a gasket and device for 

securing t h e cover in place; and 
(ii) Flanged to overlap the opening and 

sloped to drain. 
A fitting with "V" type threads on a water tank 
inlet or outlet shall be allowed only when a hose 
is permanently attached . 
If provided, a water tank vent shall terminate in 
a downward direction and shall be covered with : 
ill Sixteen mesh to one inch screen or 

equivalent when the vent is in a protected 
area; or 

ill 	A protective filter when the vent is in an 
area that is not protected from windblown 
dirt and debris. 

Inlet and outlet, sloped to drain. 
(A) 	 A water tank and its inlet and outlet shall 

be sloped to drain; and 
ill 	A water tank inlet shall be positioned so 

that it is protected from contaminants such 
as waste discharge, road dust, oil , or 
grease. 

A hose used for conveying drinking water from a 
water tank shall be: 
(A) 	 Safe; 
ill 	Durable, corrosion-resistant , and 

nonabsorbent; 
Resistant to pitting, chipping, crazing, 
scratching, scoring, distortion, and 
decomposition ; 
Finished with a smooth interior surface; and 
Clearly and durably identified as to its use 
if not permanently attached. 



ill 	 A filter that does not pass oil or oil vapors 
shall be installed in the air supply line between 
the compressor and drinking water system when 
compressed air is used to pressurize the water 
tank system.

ill 	 A cap and keeper chain, closed cabinet , closed 
storage tube, or other approved protective cover 
or device shall be provided for a water inlet, 
outlet , and hose. 

J.l.Ql 	 A water tank, pump, and hoses shall be flushed 
and sanitized before being placed in service 
after construction, repair, modification, and 
periods of nonuse . 

J..111 	 A person shall operate a water tank, pump, and 
hoses so that backflow and other contamination of 
the water supply are prevented . 

Jl1l 	 If not in use, a water tank and hose inlet and 
outlet fitting shall be protected using a cover 
or device as specified in subsection (i).

fill 	 Tank, pump , and hoses, dedication. 
(A) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (2), a 

water tank, pump , and hoses used for 
conveying drinking water shall be used for 
no other purpose;

ill 	Water tanks, pumps, and hoses approved for 
liquid foods may be used for conveying 
drinking water if they are cleaned and 
sanitized before they are used to convey 
water. [Eff 2/24/2014 ; am and comp 

) (Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : 
HRS §321-11) 

[§11-50-62 Mobile water tank and mobile food 
establishment water tank . (a) Materials that are used in 
the construct i on of a mobile water tank, mobile food 
establishment water tank, and appurtenances shall be : 

(1) 	 Safe; 
(2) 	 Durable , corrosion-resistant , and nonabsorbent; 

and 
(3) 	 Finished to have a smooth , easily cleanable 

surface . 
(b) 	 A mobile water tank shall be : 
(1) 	 Enclosed from the fill i ng inlet to the discharge 

outlet; and 



(2) 	 Sloped to an outlet that allows complete drainage 
of the tank . 

(c) If a water tank is designed with an access port 
for inspection and cleaning, the opening shall be in the 
top of the tank and : 

(1) 	 Fl anged upward at least 0.5 inch; and 
(2) 	 Equipped with a port cover assembly t hat is : 

(A) 	 Provided with a gasket and a device for 
securing the cover in place; and 

(B) 	 Flanged to overlap the opening and s l oped 
to drain . 

(d) A fitting with "Vu type threads on a water tank 
inlet or outlet shall be al lowed only when a hose is 
permanently attached . 

(e) If provided, a water tank vent shall terminate in 
a downward direction a nd shal l be covered with: 

(1) 	 Sixteen mesh to one inch screen or equivalent 
when the vent is in a protected area ; or 

(2) 	 A protective filter when the vent ia in a n a rea 
that is not protected from windb l own dirt and 
debris. 

(f) 	 Inlet and outlet, s l oped to drain . 
(1) 	 A water tank and its inlet and outlet shall be 

sloped to drain; 
(2) 	 A water tank inlet shall be positioned so that it 

is protected from contaminants such as waste 
discharge, road dust, oil, or grease . 

(g) A hose used for conveying drinking water from a 
water tank shall be : 

(1) 	 Safe; 
(2) 	 Durable , corrosion-resistant, and nonaborbent; 
(3) 	 Resistant to pitting, chipping , crazing, 

scratching, scoring , distortion, a nd 
decomposition; 

( 4) 	 Finished with a smooth interior surface ; and 
(5) 	 Clearly and durably identified as to its use if 

not permanently attached. 
(h) A filter that does not pass oil or oil vapors 

shall be installed in the air supply line between the 
compressor a nd drinking water system when compressed air is 
used to pressurize the water tank system . 

(i) A cap and keeper chain , closed cabinet, closed 
storage tube , or other approved protective cover or device 
shall be provided for a water inlet , outlet, and hose . 



(j) A water tank, pump, and hoses shall be flushed 
and sanitized before being placed in service after 
construction , repair, modification, and periods of nonuse. 

(k) A person shall operate a water tank, pump, and 
hoses so that backflow and other contamination of the water 
supply are prevented . 

(1) If not in use, a water tank and hose inlet and 
outlet fitting shall be protected using a cover or device 
as specified in subsection (i). 

(m) 	 Tank, pump, and hoses , dedication. 
(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (2) , a water 

t ank , pump, and hoses used for conveying drinking 
water shall be used for no other purpose; 

(2) 	 Water tanks, pumps , and hoses approved for 
liquid foods may be used for conveying drinking 
water if they are cleaned and sanitized before 
they are used to convey water .] [Eff 2/24/2014; 
R (Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS 
§321 - 11) 

§11-50-63 Sewage, other liquid waste, and rainwater . 
(a) A sewage holding tank in a mobile food establishment 
shall be: 

(1) Sized f i fteen per cent larger in capacity than 
the water supply tank ; and 

(2) 	 Provided with a tank bottom that is sloped down 
to an outlet with a shut-off valve to permit 
complete drainage of the tank, except for those 
tanks that are readily removable. 

(b) Food establishment drainage systems, i ncluding 
grease traps, that convey sewage shall be designed and 
installed as specified in section 11-50-61 (b) (1) . 

(c) 	 Backflow prevention . 
(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraphs (2), (3) and 

(4) , a direct connection may not exist between 
the sewage system and a drain originating from 
equipment in which food , portable equipment , or 
utensils are placed; 

(2) 	 Paragraph (1) does not apply to floor drains that 
originate in refrigerated spaces that are 
constructed as an integral part of the building; 

(3) 	 If allowed by law, a warewashing machine may have 
a direct conn ection between its waste outlet and 
a floor drain when the machine is located within 
five feet of a trapped floor drain and the 



machine outlet is connected to the inlet side of 
a properly vented floor drain trap; 

(4) 	 If allowed by law, a warewashing or culinary sink 
may have a direct connection . 

(d) If used, a grease trap shall be located to be 
easily accessible for cleaning . 

(e) Sewage shall be conveyed to the point of disposal 
through an approved sanitary sewage system or other system, 
including use of sewage transport vehicles, waste retention 
tanks, pumps, pipes, hoses, and connections that are 
constructed, maintained, and operated according to law . 

(f) Sewage and other liquid wastes shall be removed 
from a mobile food establishment at an approved waste 
servicing area or by a sewage transport vehicle in such a 
way that a publ ic health hazard or nuisance is not created . 

(g) A tank for liquid waste retention shall be 
thoroughly flushed and drained in a sanitary manner during 
the servicing operation . 

(h) Sewage shall be disposed through an approved 
facility that is: 

(1) 	 A public sewage treatment plant; or 
(2) 	 An individual sewage disposal system that is 

sized , constructed, maintained, and operated 
according to law. 

(i) Condensate drainage and other nonsewage liquids 
and rainwater shall be drained from point of discharge to 
disposal according to law. [Eff 2/24/2014; comp 

] (Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS §321-11) 

§11 - 50-64 Refuse, recyclables, and returnables . (a} 
If located within the food establishment, a storage area 
for refuse, recyclables, and returnables shall meet the 
requirements specified in sections 11-50-70 and ll-50- 7l(a) 
to (h), (m), and (n) . 

(b) An outdoor storage surface for refuse, 
recyclables, and returnables shall be constructed of 
nonabsorbent material such as concrete or asphalt and shall 
be smooth, durable, and sloped to drain. 

(c) If used, an outdoor enclosure for refuse, 
recyclables, and returnables shall be constructed of 
durable and cleanable materials . 

(d) 	 Receptacles . 
(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (2), receptacles 

and waste handling units for refuse, recyclables, 
and returnables and for use with materials 



containing food residue shall be durable, 
cleanable, insect- and rodent-resistant, 
leakproof, and nonabsorbent; 

(2) 	 Plastic bags and wet strength paper bags may be 
used to line receptacles for storage inside the 
food establishment, or within closed outside 
receptacles . 

(e) Except for a receptacle for beverage bottle crown 
closures, a refuse receptacle may not be located within a 
vending machine . 

(f) 	 Outside receptacles . 
(1) 	 Receptacles and waste handling units for refuse , 

recyclables, and returnables used with materials 
containing food residue and used outside the food 
establishment shall be designed and constructed 
to have tight-fitting lids, doors, or covers ; 

(2) 	 Receptacles and waste handling units for refuse 
and recyclables such as an on-site compactor 
shall be installed so that accumulation of debris 
and insect and rodent attraction and harborage 
are minimized and effective cleaning is 
facilitated around and , if the unit is not 
installed flush with the base pad, under the 
unit . 

(g) Storage areas, rooms, and receptacles, capacity 
and availability . 

(1) 	 An inside storage room and area and outside 
storage area and enclosure, and receptacles shall 
be of sufficient capacity to hold refuse , 
recyclables , and returnables that accumulate ; 

(2) 	 A receptacle shall be provided in each area of 
the food establishment or premises where refuse 
is generated or commonly discarded, or where 
recyclables or returnables are placed ; 

(3) 	 If disposable towels are used at handwashing 
lavatories , a waste receptacle shall be loca t ed 
at each lavatory or group of adjacent lavatories. 

(h) A toilet room used by females shall be provided 
with a cov ered receptacle for sanitary napkins . 

(i) 	 Cleaning implements and supplies . 
(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (2), suitable 

cleaning implements and supplies such as high 
pressure pumps , hot water, steam, and detergent 
shall be provided a s necessary for effective 
cleaning of receptacles and waste handling units 
for refuse , recyclables, and returnables ; 



(2) 	 If approved, off-premises-based cleaning services 
may be used if on-premises cleaning implements 
and supplies are not provided. 

(j) Storage areas , redeeming machines , receptacles 
and waste handling units , location . 

(1) 	 An area designated for refuse, recyclables , 
returnables, and , e xcept as specified in 
paragraph (2), a redeeming machine for 
recyclables or returnables shall be located so 
that it is separate from food, equipment, 
utensils, linens, and single-service and single
use articles and a public health hazard or 
nuisance is not created; 

(2) 	 A redeeming machine may be located in the 
packaged food storage area or consumer area of a 
food establishment if food, equipment, utensils , 
linens, and singl e-service and single-use 
articles are not subject to contamination from 
the machines and a public health hazard or 
nuisance is not created ; 

(3) 	 The location of receptacles and waste handling 
units for refuse, recyclables, and returnables 
may not create a public health hazard or nuisance 
or interfere with the cleaning of adjacent space . 

(k) Refuse , recyclables, and returnables shall be 
stor ed in receptacles or waste handling units so that they 
are inaccessible to insects and rodents . 

(1) Storage areas, enclosures , and receptacles for 
refuse, recyclables , and returnables shall be maintained in 
good repair. 

(m) 	 Outside storage prohibitions . 
(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (2), refuse 

receptacles not meeting the requirements 
specified in subsection (d) (1) such as 
receptacles that are not rodent-resistant, 
unprotected plastic bags and paper bags, or baled 
units that contain materials with food residue 
may not be stored outside; 

(2) 	 Cardboard or other packaging material that does 
not contain food residues and that is awaiting 
regularly scheduled delivery to a recycling or 
disposal site may be stored outside without being 
in a covered receptacle if it is stored so that 
it does not create a rodent harborage problem . 

(n) Receptacles and waste handling units for refuse, 
recyclables , and returnables shall be kept covered : 



(1) 	 Inside the food establishment if the receptacles 
a nd units : 
(A) 	 Contain food residue and are not in 

continuous use; or 
(B) 	 After they are filled ; and 

(2) 	 With tight-fitting lids or doors if kept outside 
the food establishment. 

(o) Drains in receptacles and waste handling units 
for refuse , recyclables, and returnables shall have drain 
plugs in place . 

(p) A storage area and enclosure for refuse , 
recyclables , or returnables shall be maintained free of 
unnecessary items, as specified in section 11-50-74(n), and 
clean . 

(q) 	 Cleaning receptacles. 
(1) 	 Receptacles and waste handling units for refuse, 

recyclables, and returnables shall be thoroughly 
cleaned in a way that does not contaminate food, 
equipment, utensils, linens , or single-service 
and single-use articles, and waste water shall be 
disposed of as specified in section 11-50-63(e); 

(2) 	 Soiled receptacles and waste handling units for 
refuse, recyclables , and returnables shall be 
cleaned at a frequency necessary to prevent them 
from developing a buildup of soil or becoming 
attractants for insects and rodents . 

(r) Refuse, recyclables, and returnables shall be 
removed from the premises at a frequency that will minimize 
th_e development of objectionable odors and other conditions 
that attract or harbor insects and rodents . 

(s) Refuse, recyclables, and returnables shall be 
removed from the premises by way of: 

(1) 	 Portable receptacles that are constructed and 
maintained according to law; or 

(2) 	 A transport vehicle that is constructed, 
maintained, and operated according to law. 

(t) Solid waste not disposed of through the sewage 
system such a s through grinders and pulpers shall be 
recycled or disposed of in an approved public o r private 
corrununity recycl ing or refuse facility ; or solid waste 
shall be disposed of in an individual refuse facility such 
as a landfill or incinerator which is sized, constructed, 
maintained, and operated according to law . [Eff 
2/24/2014 ; comp J (Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : 
HRS §321-11) 



§§11-50-65 to 11-50-69 (Reserved) . 

SUBCHAPTER 6 

PHYSICAL FAC I LITIES 

§11-50-70 Materials for construction and repair . 
Materials for indoor f l oor, wal l , a nd cei l ing surfaces 
u nder conditions of n o rma l use shal l be : 

(1) 	 Smooth , durable , and easily cleanable for a r eas 
where food e~tablishmen t operation s are 
conducted; 

(2) 	 Closely woven and easily cleanable carpet for 
carpeted areas; and 

(3) 	 Nonabsorbent for areas subject to moisture such 
as food preparation areas , wa l k-in refrigerators, 
warewash i ng areas , toilet rooms , mobile food 
establishment servicin g areas , and areas subject 
to fl ushing or spray cleanin g methods . [Eff 
2/24/2014; comp J (Auth : HRS §321
11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 

§1 1- 50- 71 Design , construction, and installation. 
(a) Except as specified in s ubsection (d) and except for 
a ntislip floor cover i ngs or applications that may be used 
for safety reasons, floors , floor coverings, walls , wa l l 
coverings , and ceilings shall be designed , constructed, and 
install ed so t hey are smooth and easi l y cleanable . 

(b) 	 Floors , wa l ls, and ceilings , utility lines. 
(1) 	 Utility service lines and pipes may not be 

unnecessarily exposed; 
(2 ) Exposed utility service lines and pipes s hall be 

installed so they do not obstruct or prevent 
cleaning of the floors , walls , or ceil ings ; 

(3) 	 Exposed horizontal uti l ity service lines and 
pipes may not be i nsta l led on the floor . 

(c) Floor and wall junct ures , coved, and enclosed or 
sealed . 

( 1 ) 	 In food establi shments in which cleaning methods 
other than water flushing are used for cleaning 
floors, t he floor and wall junctures shall be 
coved or closed to no larger than one thirty-
second i nch ; 



(2) 

(d ) 
(1) 

(2) 

( e) 

r emovable 
(f) 

(1) 

(2) 

(g) 
(1) 

(2) 

The floors in food establishments i n which wa ter 
flush cleaning methods are u sed shall b e provided 
with drains and be graded to drain, a nd the f l oor 
and wall junctures shall be coved a nd sealed. 
Floor carpeting, restrictions a nd i n s tallat i on . 
A f l oor cover i n g such a s carpeti ng or similar 
material may not b e installed as a floor covering 
in f ood prep a r ati on a reas , wal k- in r efrige rators , 
warewashing areas, toilet room areas whe r e 
handwashing lavator i es , toilets , a nd urinals are 
located, re f use storage r ooms , or other a reas 
where the floor is subject t o mo i sture , f l ushing, 
or s p ray cleaning methods; 
If carpeting is installed as a f l oor covering in 
areas other t han those speci fied in paragraph 
(1), 	 it shall be : 
(A) Securely attached to the floor with a 

durable mas t ic, by using a stretch and tack 
method , or b y a not her me thod ; a nd 

(B) 	 Instal l ed tightly ag~ins t the wall under 
the coving or installed away from t h e wall 
with a space between the carpet a nd t h e 
wall and with the e d ges of the carpet 
secured by metal stripping or some other 
means. 

Mats 	and duckboards s hall b e designed to be 
and 	e asily c l eanable . 

Wa ll a nd cei ling coverings and coatings . 
Wall and cei l i n g coveri ng materials shal l be 
attached so t hat they are eas ily cleanabl e ; 
Except in areas used only for dry storage , 
concrete , porous blocks, or bricks used for 
indoor wa l l constructi on shall be f inished and 
seal ed t o provide a s mooth, n o nabsorbent , easily 
cleanab le surface. 
Walls and ceilings , att achment s . 
Except as speci fied in paragraph (2), attachments 
to walls and ceiling s such as l ight fixtures, 
mechanical room ventilation system components, 
vent covers , wall mounted fans, decorative items , 
a nd other attachments shall be eas i ly cleanable ; 
In a consumer area , wall and ceil i ng surfaces and 
decorative items and attachments that are 
provided for ambiance need not meet t hi s 
r equ irement if they are kept c l ean . 



[(h) Except for temporary food establi shments , s t uds, 
joists , and rafters may not be e xposed in areas s ub j ect to 
moistu re . 

( i ) l J..b.l_ Li ght bulbs , protective shielding . 
( 1) Except as specified in paragraph (2 ), light bulbs 

shal l be shielded , coated, or otherwise shatter
res i stan t in areas where there is exposed food ; 
clean equipment , utensils , and linens; or 
unwr apped single-service and single-use art i cles ; 

(2) Shielded , coated, or otherwise shatter-resistant 
bulbs need not be used in areas used only for 
storing food in unopened packages , if : 
(A) The integrity of the packages cannot be 

affected by broken glass falling onto them; 
and 

(B) The packages are capable of being cleaned 
of debris from broken bul bs before the 
packages are opened ; 

(3) An infrared or other heat lamp shall be protected 
agains t breakage by a shield surrounding and 
extending beyond the bulb so t hat only the face 
of the bulb is exposed . 

[(j)]fil Heating, ventilating , and air conditioning 
systems shall be designed and installed so that make-up air 
intake and exhaust vents do not cause contamination of 
food , food-contact surfaces , equipment , or utensils . 

[(k) l ill Insect control devices , design and 
instal l ation . 

(1) 	 Insect control devices that are used to 
electrocute or stun flying insects shall be 
des i gned to retain the insect within the device ; 

(2) 	 Insect control devices shall be installed so 
that : 
(A) 	 The devices are not located over a food 

preparation area ; and 
(B) 	 Dead insects and insect fragments are 

prevented from being i mpel l ed onto or 
fa l ling on exposed food; clean equipment , 
utensils , and linens ; and unwrapped singl e
service and single-use articles . 

[ (l) ]fil Except where a toilet room is l ocated 
outside a food establishment and does not open directly 
into the food establishment such as a toi l et room that is 
provided by the management of a s h opping mall , a toilet 
room located on the premises shall be completely enclosed 
and provided with a tight-fitting and self-closing door . 



[(m)]fil Outer openings, protected . 
(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraphs (2) to (5) , 

outer openings of a food establishment s hall be 
protected against the entry of insects and 
rodents by : 
(A) Filling or closing holes and other gaps 

along floors, walls , and ceilings ; 
(B) 	 Closed , tight- fitting windows; and 
(C) 	 Sol id, self-closing, tight-fitting doors; 

(2) 	 Paragraph (1) does not apply if a food 
es t ablishment opens into a larger structure, such 
as a mall , airport, or office building, or into 
an attached structure , such as a porch, and the 
outer openings from the larger or attached 
structure are protected against the entry of 
insects and rodents ; 

(3) 	 Exterior doors used as exits need not be self 
closing if they are : 
(A) 	 Solid and tight-fitting ; 
(B) 	 Designated for use only when an emergency 

exists, by the fire protection authority 
that has jurisdiction over the food 
establishment ; and 

(C) 	 Limited-use so they are not used for 
entrance or exit from the building for 
purposes other than the designated 
emergency exit use; 

(4) 	 Except as specified in paragraphs (2) and (5), if 
the windows or doors of a food establishment, or 
of a larger structure within which a food 
establishment is located, are kept open for 
ventilation or other purposes [or a temporary 
food establishment is not provided with windows 
and doors as specified in paragraph (1 )) , the 
openings shall be protected against the entry of 
insects, rodents and other pests by : 
(A) 	 Sixteen mesh to one inch screens ; 
(B) 	 Properly designed and installed air 

curtains to control flying insect s ; or 
(C) 	 Other effective means; 

(5) 	 Paragraph (4) does not apply if flying insects 
and other pests are absent due to the location of 
the establishment , the weather, or other limi ting 
condition; 

(6) 	 The requirements of this section may be waived or 
modified when alternative controls acceptable to 



the director are uti l ized to ensure that all food 
and food-contact surfaces of equipment and 
utensils are effectively protected against 
contamination, and no other public health hazards 
will 	resul t from the conduct of the operation . 

[ (n)) (m) Perimeter walls and roofs of a food 
establishment shall effectively protect the establishment 
from the weather and the entry of insects, rodents, and 
other animals . 

[ (o})J.El Except for machines that vend canned 
beverages, if located outside , a machine used to vend food 
shall be provided with overhead protection . 

[ (p))J.£2_ Except for areas used only for the loading 
of water or the discharge of sewage and other l iquid waste, 
through the use of a closed system of hoses , servicing 
areas shall be provided with overhead protection . 

[(q))lEl_ Exterior wa l king and d r iving surfaces shall 
be graded to drain . 

[(r})J.31 Outdoor refuse areas shall be constructed 
in accordance with law and shall be curbed and g~aded to 
drain to collect and dispose of liquid waste that result 
from the refuse and from cleaning t h e area and waste 
receptacles . 

[ (s) ) J...£1 Establishment operations shall be separated 
from any living or sleeping quarters by complete 
partiti oning and shall have no direct opening into any 
living or sleeping quarters, except through a solid, tight
fitting a n d self- closing door . Entrance into t he 
establishment shall not be through any living or sleeping 
quarters . [Eff 2/24/2014 ; am and comp ) 
(Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 

§11-50-72 Numbers and capacities . (a) Handwashing 
sinks shall be provided as speci fied in section 
11- 50- 61(g} . 

(b) Each handwashing sink or group of two adjacent 
handwashing sinks shall be provi ded with a supply of hand 
cleaning liquid, powder , or bar soap . 

(c) Each handwashing sink or group of adjacent 
handwashing sin ks shall be provided with : 

(1) 	 Individual, disposable towels ; 
(2) 	 A continuous towel system that supplies the user 

with a clean towel ; or 
(3) 	 A heated-air hand drying device ; or 



(4) 	 A hand drying device that employs an air- knife 
system that delivers high velocity, pressurized 
air at ambient temperatures. 

(d) A sink used for food preparation or utensil 
washing , or a service sink or curbed cleaning facility used 
for the disposal of mop water or similar wastes , may not be 
provided with the handwashing aids and devices required for 
a handwashing sink as specified in subsections (b) and (c) , 
and section 11-50-64 (g) (3). 

(e) A sign or poster that notifies food employees to 
wash their hands shall be provided at all handwashing sinks 
used by food employees and shall be clearly visible to food 
employees. 

(f) A handwashing sink or group of adjacent 
handwashing sinks that is provided with disposable towels 
shall be provided with a waste receptacle as specified in 
section 11-50-64 (g) (3) . 

(g) Toilets and urinals shall be provided as 
specified in section 11-50-61(h). 

(h) A supply of toilet tissue shall be available at 
each toilet. 

(i) 	 The light intensity shall be: 
(1) 	 At least one hundred eight lux (ten footcandles) 

at a distance of thirty inches above the floor, 
in walk- in refrigeration units and dry food 
storage areas and in other areas and rooms during 
periods of cleaning; 

(2) 	 At least two hundred fifteen lux (twenty 
footcandles): 
(A) 	 At a surface where food is provided for 

consumer self-service such as buffets and 
salad bars or where fresh produce or 
packaged foods are sold or offered for 
consumption; 

(B) 	 Inside equipment such as reach-in and 
under-counter refrigerators; . and 

(C) 	 At a distance of thirty inches above the 
floor in areas used for handwashing , 
warewashing, and equipment and utensil 
storage, and in toilet rooms; and 

(3) 	 At least five hundred forty lux (fifty 
footcandles) at a surface where a food employee 
is working with food or working with utensils or 
equipment such as knives , slicers, grinders, or 
saws where employee safety is a factor . 

(j) 	 Designation. 



(1) 	 Dressing rooms or dressing areas shall be 
designated if employees routinely change their 
clothes in the establishment; 

(2) 	 Lockers or other suitable facilities shall be 
provided for the orderly storage of employees ' 
clothing and other possessions . 

(k) A service sink or curbed cleaning faci l ity shall 
be provided as specified in section 11-50-61(i). [Eff 
2/24/2014; comp J (Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp: 
HRS §321-11) 

§11- 50- 73 Location and placement. (a) Handwashing 
sinks shall be conveniently located as specified in section 
11-50-61 (1). 

(b) Toilet rooms shall be conveniently located and 
accessible to employees during all hours of operation 

(c) 	 Designated areas. 
(1) 	 Areas designated for empl oyees to eat , drink, and 

use tobacco shall be located so that food , 
equipment , linens , and single-service and single
use articles are protected from contamination ; 

(2) 	 Lockers or other suitable facilities shall be 
located in a designated room or area where 
contamination of food, equipment , utensils, 
linens , and single-service and single-use 
articles cannot occur . 

(d) Products that are h e l d by the [permit holder] 
owner or operator for credit , redemption, or return to the 
distributor , such as damaged , spoiled , or recalled 
products, shall be segregated and held in designated areas 
that are separated from food, equipment, utensils, linens , 
and single-service a nd single-use articles . 

(e) Units , receptacles, and areas designated for 
storage of refuse and recyclable and returnable containers 
shall be located as specified in section l l -50-64(j) . [Eff 
2/24/2014 ; comp (Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp : 
HRS §321-11) 

§11-50-74 Maintenance and operation . (a) Physical 
facilities shall be maintained in good repair . 

(b) 	 Cleaning , frequency and restrictions. 
(1) 	 Physical facilities shall be cleaned as often as 

necessary to keep them clean; 



(2) 	 Except for cleaning that is necessary due to a 
spill or other accident , cleaning shall be done 
during periods when the least amount of food is 
exposed such as after closing . 

(c) 	 Cleaning floors, dustless methods . 
(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (2), only 

dustless methods of cleaning shall be used, such 
as wet cleaning, vacuum cleaning, mopping with 
treated dust mops, or sweeping using a broom and 
dust-arresting compounds; 

(2) 	 Spills or drippage on floors that occur between 
normal floor cleaning times may be cleaned : 
(A) 	 Without the use of dust-arresting 

compounds; and 
(B) 	 In t he case of liquid spills or drippage, 

with the use of a small amount of absorbent 
compound such as sawdust or diatomaceous 
earth applied immediately before spot 
cleaning. 

(d) Intake and exhaust air ducts shall be cleaned and 
filters changed s o they are not a sour ce of contamination 
by dust, dirt, and other materials . 

(e) Food preparation sinks, handwashing sinks, and 
warewashing equipment may not be used for the cleaning of 
maintenance tools, the preparation or holding of 
maintenance materials, or the disposal of mop water and 
similar liquid wastes . 

(f) After use, mops shall be placed in a position 
that allows them to a ir-dry without soiling walls, 
equipment, or supplies . 

(g) Except as specified in subsection (c) (2), 
sawdust, wood shavings, granular salt, baked clay, 
diatomaceous earth, or similar materials may not be used on 
floors . 

(h) Plumbing fixtures such as handwashing sinks, 
toilets, and urinals shall be cleaned as often as necessary 
to keep them clean . 

(i) Except during cleaning and maintenance 
operations, toilet room doors as specified in section 
11-50-71(1) shall be kept closed . 

(j) 	 Using dressing rooms and lockers . 
(1) 	 Dressing rooms shall be used by employees if t he 

employees r egularly change their clothes in the 
establishment ; 



(2) 	 Lockers or other suitable facilities shall be 
used for the orderly storage of employee clothing 
and other possessions . 

(k) The premises shall be maintained free of insects, 
rodents, and other pests . The presence of insects , 
rodents, and other pests s hall be controlled by : 

(1) 	 Routinely inspecting incoming shipments of food 
and supplies; 

(2) 	 Routinely inspecting the premises for evidence of 
pests; 

(3) 	 Using methods, if pests are found, such as 
trapping devices or other means of pest control 
as specified in section 11-50-81 (c), (k) and 
(1); 	 a nd 

(4) 	 Eliminating harborage conditions. 
(1) Dead or trapped birds , insects, rodents, and 

other pests shall be removed from control devices and the 
premises at a frequency that prevents t heir accumulation, 
decomposition, or the attraction of pests . 

(m) Maintenance tools such as brooms, mops , vacuum 
cleaner s, and similar items shall be : 

(1) 	 Stored so they do not contaminate food, 
equipment , utensils, linens, and single-service 
and singl e-use articles; and 

(2) 	 Stored in an orderly manner that facilitates 
cleaning t h e area used for storing the 
maintenance tools . 

(n) 	 The premises shall be free of : 
(1) 	 Items that are unnecessary to the operation or 

maintenance of the establishment such as 
equipment that is nonfunctional or no longer 
used; and 

(2) 	 Litter . 
(o) 	 Prohibiting animals. 
(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraphs (2) and (3), 

live animals may not be al l owed on the premises 
of a food establishment; 

(2) 	 Live animals may be allowed in the following 
s i tuations if t he contamination of food; clean 
equipment , utensils , and linens; and unwrapped 
single-service and single-use art icles cannot 
result : 
(A) 	 Edible fish or decorative fish in 

aquariums, shellfi sh or crustacea on ice or 
under refrigeration, and shellfish and 
crustacea in display tank systems; 



(B) 	 Patrol dogs accompanying police or security 
officers in offices and dining, sales, and 
storage areas , and sentry dogs running 
loose in outside fenced areas ; 

(C) 	 In areas that are not used for food 
preparation and that are usually open for 
customers , such as dining a nd sales areas, 
service animals that are controlled by the 
disabled employee or person, if a health or 
safety hazard will not result from the 
presence or activities of the service 
animal; 

(D) 	 Pets in the common dining areas of 
institutional care facilities such as 
nursing homes , assisted living facilities, 
group homes , or residential care facilities 
at times other than during meals if : 
(i) 	 Effective partitioning and self-

closing doors separate the common 
dining areas from food storage or food 
preparation areas; 

(ii) 	 Condiments, equipment, and utensi l s 
are stored in enclosed cabinets or 
removed from the common dining areas 
when pets are present; and 

(iii) 	 Dining areas includi ng tables, 
countertops , and simi lar surfaces are 
effectively cleaned before the next 
meal service ; and 

(E) 	 In areas that are not used for food 
preparation, storage, sales, display, or 
dining, in which there are caged animals or 
animals that are similarly confined, such 
as in a variety store that sells pets or a 
tourist park that displ ays animals; 

(3) 	 Live or dead fish bait may be stored if 
contamination of food; clean equipment, utensils, 
and linens ; and unwrapped single- service and 
single-use articles cannot result. [Eff 
2/24/2014; comp (Auth: HRS §321
11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 

§§11-50-75 to 11-50-79 (Reserved) . 



SUBCHAPTER 7 

POISONOUS OR TOXIC MATERIALS 

§11-50-80 Labeling and identification . (a) 
Containers of poisonous or toxic materials and personal 
care items shall bear a legible manufacturer ' s label . 

(b) Working containers used for storing poisonous or 
toxic materials such as cleaners and sanitizers taken from 
bulk supplies shall be clearly and individually identified 
with the common name of the material. [Eff 2/24/2014; comp 

(Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS §321-11) 

§11-50-81 Operational supplies and applications . (a) 
Poisonous or toxic materials shall be stored so they cannot 
contaminate food , equipment, utensils, linens, and single
service and single-use articles by : 

(1) 	 Separating the poisonous or toxic materials by 
spacing or partitioning; and 

(2) 	 Locating the poisonous or toxic materials in an 
area that is not above food, equipment, utensils, 
linens , and single-service or single-use 
articles . This paragraph does not apply to 
equipment and utensil cleaners and sanitizers 
that are stored in warewashing areas for 
availability and convenience if the materials are 
stored to prevent contamination of food, 
equipment , utensils, linens, a nd single-service 
and single-use articles . 

(b) 	 Presence and use restriction . 
(1) 	 Only those poisonous or toxic materials that are 

required for the operation and maintenance of a 
food establishment , such as for the cleaning and 
sanitizing of equipment and utensils and the 
control of insects and rodents, shall be allowed 
in a food establishment; 

(2) 	 Paragraph (1) does not apply to packaged 
poisonous or toxic materials that are for retail 
sale . 

(c) 	 Poisonous or toxic materials shall be : 
(1) 	 Used according to : 

(A) 	 This chapter and law; 
(B) 	 Manufacturer ' s use directions included in 

labeling, and , for a pesticide, 
manufacturer ' s label instructions that 



state that use is allowed in a food 
establishment; 

(C) 	 The conditions of certification, if 
certification is required, for use of the 
pest control materials; and 

(D) 	 Additional conditions that may be 
established by the [department;] director; 
and 

(2) 	 Applied so that : 
(A) 	 A hazard to employees or other persons i s 

not constituted; and 
(B) 	 Contamination including toxic residues due 

to drip, drain, fog, splash, or spray on 
food, equipment , utensil s , linens, and 
single-service and single-use articles is 
prevented, a nd for a restricted use 
pesticide, this is achieved by: 
(i) 	 Removing the items; 

(ii) 	 Covering the items with impermeable 
covers ; or 

(iii) 	 Taking other appropriate preventive 
actions; and 

(iv) 	 Clea ning and sanitizing equipment and 
utensils after the application; 

(3) 	 A restricted use pesticide shall be applied only 
by a licensed pest control operator , or a person 
under the direct supervision of a licensed pest 
control operator. 

(d) A container previously used to store poisonous or 
toxic materials may not be used to store, transport, or 
dispense food. 

[(e) Chemical sanitizers and other chemical 
antimicrobials applied to food-contact surfaces shall meet 
the requirements specified in 40 CFR 180.940, entit l ed 
"Tolerance exemptions for active and inert ingredients for 
use in antimicrobial formulations (food-contact surface 
sanitizing solutions)" . 

(f) Chemicals for washing, treatment, storage and 
processing fruits and vegetables, criteria . 

( 1) Chemicals used to wash or peel r aw , whole fruits 
and vegetables shall meet the requirements 
specified in 21 CFR 173 .315 ent i tled "Chemicals 
used in washing or to assist in t he peeling of 
fruits and vegetables"; 

(2) 	 Ozone as an antimicrobi al agent used in the 
treatment, storage, and processing of fruits and 



vegetables in a food establ ishment shall meet the 
requirements specified in 21 CFR 173.368, 
entitled "Ozonen. 

(g) Chemicals used as boiler water additives shall 
meet the requirements specified in 21 CFR 173.310, entitled 
"Boiler water additivesu . 

(h) Drying agents used in conjunction with 
sanitization shall: 

(1) 	 Contain only components that are listed as one of 
the following: 
(A) 	 Generally recognized as safe for use in 

food as specified in 21 CFR 182, entitled 
"Substances generally recognized as safen, 
or 21 CFR 184, entitled "Direct food 
substances affirmed as generally recognized 
as safen ; 

(B) 	 Generally recognized as safe for the 
intended use as specified i n 21 CFR 186, 
entitled "Indirect food substances affirmed 
as generally recognized as safen; 

(C) 	 Approved for use as a drying agent under a 
prior sanction specified in 21 CFR 181, 
entitled "Prior-sanctioned food 
ingredientsn; 

(D) 	 Specifically regulated as an indirect food 
additive for use as a drying agent as 
specified in 21 CFR Parts 175-178; or 

(E) 	 Approved for use as a drying agent under 
the threshold of regulation process 
established by 21 CFR 170 . 39 , entitled 
"Threshold of regulation for substances 
used in food-contact articlesn ; and 

(2) 	 When sanitization is with chemicals, the approval 
required in paragraph (1) (C) or (E) or the 
regulation as an indirect food additive required 
in paragraph (1) (D), shall be specifically for 
use with chemical sanitizing solutions . 

(i) Lubricants shall meet the r equirements specified 
in 21 CFR 178 . 3570 , entitled "Lubricants with incidental 
food contactn , if they are used on food-contact surfaces, 
on bearings and gears located on or within food-contact 
surfaces, or on bearings and gears that are located so that 
lubricants may leak, drip , or be forced into food or onto 
food- contact surfaces . 



(j) 	 Restricted use pesticides specified in subsection 
(c) (3) shall meet the requirements specified in 40 CFR 152 
Subpart I, entitled "Classification of Pesticides" . ] 

(k)] M Rodent bait shall be contained in a covered, 
tamper-resistant bait station . 

((1)) ill Tracking powders, pest control and 
monitoring . 

(1) 	 Except as specified in paragraph (2), a tracking 
powder pesticide may not be used in a food 
establishment; 

(2) 	 If used, a nontoxic tracking powder such as 
talcum or flour may not contaminate food , 
equipment, utensils, linens, and single-service 
and single-use articles . 

[(m)] 	 J...9l Medicines restriction and storage . 
(1) 	 Except for medicines that are stored o r displayed 

for retail sale, only those medicines that are 
necessary for the health of employees shall be 
allowed in a food establis hment; 

(2) 	 Medicines t hat are in a food establishment for 
the employees' use shall be labeled as specified 
in section 11-50-BO(a) and located to prevent the 
contamination of food , equipment , utensils, 
linens, and single-service and single-use 
articles . 

[(n)J l.!:U_ Medicines belonging to employees that 
require refrigeration and are stored in a food refrigerator 
shall be stored in a package or container and kept inside a 
covered, leakproof container that is identified as a 
container for the stor age of medicines . 

[(o)] ill First aid supplies that are in a food 
establishment for the employees ' use shall be : 

(1) 	 Labeled as specified in secti on 11-50-BO(a); and 
(2) 	 Stored in a kit or a container that is located to 

prevent the contamination of food, equipment, 
utensils, and linens, and single-service and 
single-use articles . 

[ (p)] ill Except as specified in subsections (n) and 
(o), employees shall store their personal care items i n 
facilities as specified in section 11- 50-72 (j) (2)) . [Eff 
2/24/2014 ; am and comp J (Auth : HRS §321
11) (Imp : HRS §321 - 11) 

§11-50-82 Stock and retail sale. Poisonous or toxic 
materials shall be stored and displayed for retail sale so 



they cannot contaminate food, equipment, utensils , linens, 
and single-service and single-use articles by: 

(1) 	 Separating the poisonous or toxic materials by 
spacing or partitioning; and 

(2) 	 Locating the poisonous or toxic materials in an 
area tha t is not above food , equipment, utensil s, 
linens , and s ingle-service or single-use 
articles. [Eff 2/2 4/2014; comp 
(Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 

§§11-50-83 to 11-50-84 (Reserved). 

[SUBCHAPTER 8 

MOBILE FOOD ESTABLISHMENTS 

§11-50-85 General requirements . (a) Mobile food 
establishments shall comply with the requirements of this 
chapter , except as otherwise provided in this subchapter . 

(b) The department may impose additional requirements 
to protect against health hazards or nuisances related to 
the conduct of food establishments as mobile operations. 

(c) The department may prohibit the sale of some or 
all potentially hazardous foods. 

(d) When no h ealth hazard will result, the department 
may waive or modify the requirements of this chapter for 
mobile food establishments . 

(e) A mobile food establishment shall be of a design 
that allows relocation of the mobile food establishment to 
an approved establishment as needed. (Eff 2/24/2014 ; 
R (Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS §321-11) 

§11-50-86 Approved food establishment requirements. 
(a) Mobile food establishments shall operate out of an 
approved food establishment and shall return to the 
approved food establishment for cleaning and servicing . 

(b) The approved food establishment shall provide a 
servicing area that is convenien t ly accessible for the 
mobile food establishmen t cleaning, discharging liquid or 
solid wastes , refilling water tanks and i ce bins, and 
boarding food. 



(c) The approved food establishment shall be used for 
the following purposes: 

(1) Storage . Food, equi pment , utensils , and supplies 
shal l be stored in the approved f ood 
establishment unless stored on board mobile food 
establis hments; 

(2) 	 Food preparation . All food preparation not 
permitted on board mobile food establishments 
shall take place at the approved food 
establishment; 

(3) 	 Cleaning . Multi -use equipment a nd utensils that 
are not permitted to be cle aned on board mobi l e 
foo d establishments shall be cleaned and 
sanitized at the approved food establishment at 
least once each day at the conclusion of the 
dai l y operations ; 

(4) 	 Water suppiy . The water tank(s ) of a ll mobile 
food establishments s hall be drained and filled 
d a ily with potable water at an approved servicing 
a r ea at the approved food establishment; 

(5) 	 Wastewater di sposal. Wastewater holding tank(s) 
of all mobile food e stablishments s hall be 
drained daily and cleaned at a n approved 
servicing area ; 

(6) 	 Cooking and reheating . All cooking not permitted 
o n mobile f ood est ablishments shall take place a t 
t h e approved food estab l ishment ; 

(7) 	 Cool ing . Leftover food to be reheated fo r later 
service s h all be r apidly cooled as specified in 
section ll-50-34(d). 

(d) A mobile food establishment may use more than one 
approved food establishment . The names and addresses of 
all sites used as an approved food establishme n t for a 
mobile food establishment shall be provided to the 
department in writing for approval . The director may l imi t 
the number of mobile establishments operating out of the 
same food establishment . 

(e) If the owner of the mobi l e f ood establishment i s 
not also t he owner of the approved food establishment , the 
f ollowing s hall apply : 

(1) 	 Writte n documentation d e tailing t he operational 
agreement between t he two parties s hall be 
provided. The documentatio n required shall 
include, but not be limited to , the days, times, 
a nd specific types of operations to be conducted 
in the approved food establis hme nt . The written 



documentation must be submitted annually along 
with the renewal application and fees; 

(2) 	 The approved food establi shment shall be provided 
with a means by which used of the facility can be 
documented and verified by the director. 
Acceptable methods are: 
(A) 	 The use of time cards stamped by a punch 

clock sealed by the director; 
(B) 	 A tampered-proof electronic log-in; 
(C) 	 Log-in sheets listing dates and times of an 

approved food establishment use shall be 
maintained on a form provided by the 
department. Each daily entry shall be 
ini t ia l ed or signed by representatives of 
both the approved food establishment and 
the mobil e food establishment; or 

(D) 	 An alternative record keeping method 
approved by the director if such method 
adequately documents the usage of the 
approved food establishment by the mobile 
food establishment . These records shall be 
retained at the approved food establishment 
for at least twelve months and shall be 
made available to the director upon 
r equest; 

(3) 	 These records shall be retained at the approved 
food establishment for at least twelve mont hs and 
shal l be made available to the director upon 
request . 

(4) 	 Separate clearly designated storage areas for 
food, supplies, and equipme n t shall be provided 
in the approved food establishment for use by the 
mobile food establishment. 

(f) 	 A private home kitchen s hall not be u sed as an 
approved food establishment . [Eff 2/24/2014; 
R ] (Auth: HRS §321-11) 

(Imp : HRS §321 - 11) 


§11- 50- 87 Food supplies, storage , display and 
service . (a) Food supplies. A list of all foods offered 
s hall be submitted to the department for approval . 
Approval shall be based on a determination by the director 
that the mobi le food establishment is provided with the 
minimum faci lities necessary for a safe and sanitary 
operation . 



(b) Food storage . Excess food not carried on the 
mobile food establishment shall be stored at the approved 
food establishment . 

(c) Food display and service . Self-service of 
unpackaged potentially hazardous food by customers is 
prohibited except through self-dispensi ng unit s that do not 
require a separate dispensing utensil such as a scoop or 
tongs, if approved by the director. [Eff 2/24/2014; 
R 	 ] (Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 

§11-50-88 Single-service restrictions . (a) Food 
shal l be served to customers in, or on, single-service or 
single-use containers only . 

(b) On ly single- service utensils shall be provided to 
customers. [Eff 2/24/2014; R ] (Auth : HRS 
§321-11) (Imp: HRS §321-11) 

§11-50-89 Water system . (a) Mobile food 
establishments where exposed or unpackaged foods are 
handled shall be equipped with an approved self-contained 
water system t hat provides sufficient water at the required 
temperatures to meet the needs of the operation and shall 
be constructed and operated as specified in section 
11-50-62 . 

(b) The water supply and sink requirements shall be 
as follows : 

(1) 	 Mobile food establ ishments r equired t o have a 
water system shall be equipped with a handwashing 
sink as specified in sections ll-50-60(k) and 
ll-50 - 61(c) and (g) . The wat er system shall be 
of sufficient capacity to furnish the amount of 
water needed for the hours of operation, but not 
l ess than five gallons ; 

(2) 	 Mobile food establishments that conduct food 
preparation or warewashing on the mobile unit 
shall be equipped as specified in sections 
11-50-47(b) and ll-50- 49(h) . In such case the 
water system shall be of sufficient capacity to 
f u rnish the amount of water needed for the hours 
of operation . The minimum volume of water shall 
be approved by the director based on operational 
factors that may include , but not be limited to, 
the hours of operation , the number of workers 
involved, the type and amount of food prepared, 



and extent of food-handling/warewashing conducted 
on board the mobile food establishment . Water 
use projections or estimations shall be provided 
by the applicant . [Eff 2/24/2014; 
R ] (Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS 
§321-11) 

§11-50-90 Wastewater system . All mobile food 
establishments equipped with a water system shall be 
provided with a wastewater holding tank sized at least 
fifteen per cent larger than the water suppl y and shall be 
constructed and operated as specified in section 11-50-63. 
[Eff 2/24/2014 ; R ] (Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : 
HRS §321-11) 

§11 - 50-91 Other requirements . (a) For 
identification purposes , the permit number of the permit 
issued by the department shall be permanently and 
prominently displayed on two sides of the exterior of the 
mobile food establishment in characters not less than four 
inches high, of strokes not less than one-fourth inch wide 
and of a color that contrasts with the background. 

(b) All mobile food establishments shall be capable 
of being moved from their vending site at any time. They 
shall be moved from the vending site to the approved food 
establ ishment for cleaning and servicing. 

(c) No utility service lines shall be connected to a 
mobile food establishment . 

(d) All equipment essential to t he basic operation of 
the mobile food establishment shall be physically attached 
to or located aboard the mobile unit . This includes , but 
is not limited to , grills, ice chests, storage containers, 
and generators.] [Eff 2/24/2014; R ] (Auth: 
HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §32 1 -11) 

§§11-50-92 to 11-50-94 (Reserved) . 

[SUBCHAPTER 9 

TEMPORARY FOOD ESTABLISHMENTS 



§11-50-95 General requirements . (a) A temporary 
food establishment shall comply with the requirements of 
this chapter , except as otherwise provided in t hi s 
subchapter. 

(b) The department may i mpose a dditional requi rements 
to protec t against health hazards or nuisances related to 
the conduct of temporary food establishments . 

(c) The departme nt may prohibit the sale of some or 
all potentially hazardous foods . 

(d) When no health hazards will result , the 
department may waive or modify requirements of this chapter 
for temporary food establi s hments. [Eff 2/24/20 1 4; 
R 	 ] (Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 

§11-50-96 Speci al requirements . (a) All temporary 
food establishment operational sites shall be approved by 
t h e department . Temporary food establishment operat i onal 
si t es shall include the approved food establishment sites, 
event sites , vending or distribution sites and any other 
sites where food is prepared, packaged, stored, served, 
v e nded , or distributed . 

(b) All temporary food establishment menus and 
schematic plans shall be approved by the departmen t . 

(1) 	 The permit appl icant may be required to submit to 
the department in writing, a complete menu and 
schematic plan of the proposed operation ; 

(2) 	 This sch ematic shall clearly detail, step by 
step , the flow and handl ing of all foods on the 
menu from the initial receipt of ingredients , 
through the processing or preparation of the 
foods, to the final distribution of the food to 
the consumer . [Eff 2/24/2014; R 
(Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 

§11-50-97 Approved food establishment requirements . 
An approved food establishment shall be available and used 
fo r any food preparation that is not a l lowed at the event 
site and to c l ean and sani t ize multi-use utensils and 
equipment b efore the event and at the end of each business 
day . [Eff 2/24/2014 ; R ] (Auth : HRS §321-11) 
( I mp: HRS §321-11 ) 



§11-50-98 Single-service restrictions. (a) Food 
shall be served to customers in, or on, single-service or 
single-use containers only. 

(b) Only single-service utensils shall be provided to 
customers . [Eff 2/24/2014; R ] (Auth: HRS 
§321-11) (Imp: HRS §321-11) 

§11-50-99 Handwashing facilities. Temporary food 
establishments where exposed or unpackaged foods are 
handled shall be provided with at least one handwashing 
sink as specified in sections ll-50-60(k) and 11-50-61(c) 
and (g). If an alternative water supply is provided 
instead of water under pressure, it shall be of sufficient 
capacity to furnish the amount of water needed for the 
hours of operation, but not less than five gallons. [Eff 
2/24/2014; R ] (Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS 
§321-11) 

§11-50-100 Wastewater disposal . ~astewater shall be 
disposed of in a manner that does not create a nuisance. 
[Eff 2/24/2014; R (Auth: HRS §321-11) 
(Imp: HRS §321-11) 

§11-50-101 Other facilities and operations. (a) 
Temporary food establishments shall be located in a clean, 
controlled area in which the potential for contamination of 
food and food contact equipment is minimized . 

(b) Garbage and refuse from temporary food 
establishments shall be stored in tightly covered leakproof 
containers until removed. 

(c) Refuse containers shall be available on the 
grounds at convenient locations . 

(d) All garbage and refuse shall be disposed of at a 
frequency and in a manner that does not create a nuisance. 
[Eff 2/24/2014; R (Auth: HRS §321-11) 
(Imp: HRS §321-11) 

§§11-50-102 to 11-50-104 (Reserved) . J" 



2. Material, except source notes, to be repealed is 
bracketed. New material is underscored. 

3. Additions to update source notes to reflect these 
amendments and compilation are not underscored. 

4 . These amendments to and compilation of chapter 11
50, Hawaii Administrative Rules shall take effect ten days 
after filing with the Office of the Lieutenant Governor. 

I certify that the foregoing are copies of the rules , 
drafted in the Ramseyer format pursuant to the requirements 
of section 91-4.1, Hawaii Revised Statues, which were 
adopted on August 2, 1982 and filed with the office of the 
Lieutenant Governor. 

VIRGINIA PRESSLER 
Director 
Department of Health 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Deputy Attorney General 


	SBRRB Apr. 19, 2017 Agenda Exhibit 1A OCR
	Structure Bookmarks
	Exhibit 1 .
	Figure
	Amendment to Title 08, Chapter 101, .Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale .of Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui .
	1. Section 08-101-5, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of Intoxicating Liquor of the County ofMaui, is amended by amending the definition of "condominium hotel" to read as follows: 
	'"'Condominium hotel" means an establishment consisting of one or more buildings that includes: 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	Guest rooms that are units, as defined in section 514B-3, HRS, which are used to provide transient lodging for periods of less than thirty days under a written contract with the owner of a unit in the condominium hotel operation; and 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	Guest rooms that are units, owned or managed by the condominium hotel operator providing transient lodging for periods of less than thirty days, which are offered for adequate pay to transient guests[; andL 


	[{c) A suitable and adequate kitchen and dining room, where meals are regularly prepared and served to guests and other customers.] 
	A condominium hotel does not include a hotel that may be part of a condominium property regime established under chapter 514B, HRS, that does not have guest rooms that are separate units, as defined in section 514B-3, HRS. [Eff 7 / 1/00; am and comp 7 / 15/02; am and comp 4/22/ 12; am and comp 6/18/15; am and comp 11/29/15; am and comp] (Auth: HRS§§ 91-2, 2811 7) (Imp: HRS §281-17)" 
	2. Section 08-101-5, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of Intoxicating Liquor ofthe County of Maui, is amended by amending the definition of "hotel" to read as follows: 
	""Hotel" means a premises consisting of one or more buildings which contain at least forty separate rooms, units, or apartments, providing sleeping accommodations for adequate pay to transient or permanent guests[, and a suitable and adequate kitchen and dining room, where meals are regularly prepared and served to hotel guests and other customers). [Eff 7 / 1 / 00; am and comp 7 / 15/02; am and comp 4/22/ 12; am and comp 6/ 18/ 15; am and comp 11/29/15; am and comp] (Auth: HRS§§ 91-2, 281-17) (Imp: HRS §28
	3. Section 08-101-5, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of Intoxicating Liquor ofthe County of Maui, is amended by amending the definition of "open for business" to read as follows: 
	""Open for business" means whenever any type of service or consumption is performed within the licensed premises; or when the licensee solicits and receives an order for; have or keep or offer or expose for sale; deliver for value or in any other way, including purely gratuitously; peddle; keep with intent to sell; or traffic in any liquor or merchandise[; or when any person other than an onduty employee of the licensee is within the premises}. [Eff 7 / 1 / 00; am and comp 7 / 15/02; am and comp 4/22/ 12; 
	4 . Section 08-101-5, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of Intoxicating Liquor ofthe County ofMaui, is amended by amending the definition of "premises" or "licensed premises" to read as follows: 
	'"'Premises" or "licensed premises" means the building and property that houses the establishment for which a license has been or is proposed to be issued; provided that in the case of a class 12 hotel license, "premises" includes the hotel premises; provided further that in the case of a class 15 condominium hotel license, "premises" includes [units,} apartments, as defined in section 514B-3, HRS, that are used to provide transient lodging for periods of less than thirty days under a written contract with 
	5. Section 08-101-10, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended by amending subsection {a) to read as follows: 
	"(a) The commission is established in accordance with the provisions of chapter 281, HRS, and chapter 13 of the (Charter ofthe County.] revised charter of the County of Maui (19831, as amended. The commission shall have the sole jurisdiction, power, authority, and discretion, subject to the rules of the commission and chapter 281, HRS: 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	To grant, refuse, suspend, and revoke any licenses for the manufacture, importation, and sale of liquors; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	To take appropriate action against a person who, directly or indirectly, manufactures, sells, or [sells] purchases any liquor without being authorized pursuant to the rules of the commission; provided the liquor control adjudication board shall have the jurisdiction, power, authority, and discretion to hear and determine administrative complaints of the director regarding violations of the 


	(3) 
	(4) 
	(5) 
	liquor laws of the State or of the rules of the liquor commission, and impose penalties for violations thereof as may be provided by law; To control, supervise, and regulate the manufacture, importation, and sale of liquors by investigation, enforcement, and education, provided that any educational program shall be limited to the commission staff, commissioners, liquor control adjudication board members, licensees, and their employees and shall be financed through the money collected from the assessment of 
	be responsible for the operations and activities of the staff. The director may hire and remove hearings officers, investigators, and clerical, or other assistants as its business may from time to time require, to prescribe their duties, and fix their compensation; to engage the services of experts and persons engaged in the practice of a profession, if deemed expedient. Every investigator within the scope of the investigator's duties shall have the powers of a police officer[. A commission employee may sup
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	Notifies the commission in writing of the employee's intent to support, advocate, or aid in the election or defeat of a candidate for public office; and 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	If a candidate for public office, takes a leave of absence in accordance with section 78-23, HRS, for a period beginning prior to the initiation of political activities related to the candidacy and ending the day following the general election for the office; 


	Notwithstanding chapter 11, HRS, or any other law to the contrary, no commission employee shall solicit or receive contributions, or receive or transfer money or anything ofvalue from a licensee for the purpose ofsupporting, advocating, or aiding in the election or defeat of a candidate for public office. Violation of this subsection shall be: 
	(a) Punishable by summary dismissal of the employee; and 
	(b} Subject to fines in accordance with section 11-410, HRS]; 
	(6) .
	(6) .
	(6) .
	To limit the number of licenses of any class or kind within the County or the number of licenses of any class or kind to do business in any given locality, when in the judgment of the commission such limitations are in the public interest; 

	(7) .
	(7) .
	To prescribe the nature of the proof to be furnished, the notices to be given, and the conditions to be met or observed in case of the issuance of a duplicate license in place of one alleged to have been lost or destroyed, including a requirement of any indemnity deemed appropriate to the case; 

	(8) .
	(8) .
	To fix the hours between which licensed premises of any class or classes may regularly be open for the transaction of business, which shall be uniform throughout the County as to each class respectively; 

	(9) .
	(9) .
	To prescribe all forms to be used for the purposes of the rules of the commission not otherwise provided for in the rules of the commission, and the character and manner of keeping of books, records, and accounts to be kept by licensees in any matter pertaining to their business; 

	(
	(
	10) .To investigate violations of the rules of the commission, State liquor laws, State liquor tax laws, and, violations of the applicable department of health's allowable noise levels, through its investigators or otherwise, and to report such violations to the prosecuting officer for prosecution and, where appropriate, the [director] department of taxation to hear and determine complaints against any licensee; 

	(11) .
	(11) .
	To prescribe by rule, the terms, conditions, and circumstances under which persons or any class of persons may be employed by holders of liquor licenses; 

	(12) .
	(12) .
	To prescribe by rule, the term of any license or solicitor's and representative's permit authorized by the rules of the commission, the annual or prorated amount and the manner of payment of fees for such licenses and permits, and the amount of filing fees; and 

	(13) .
	(13) .
	To prescribe by rule, the circumstances and penalty for the unauthorized manufacturing or selling of any liquor. [Eff 7 / 1 / 00; am and comp 4/22/ 12; am and comp} (Auth: HRS§§ 91-2, 281


	17) (Imp: HRS §281-17)" 
	6. Section 08-101-19, Ru les Governing the Manufacture and Sale of Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended to read as follows: 
	"§08-101-19 [(Reserved)] Political activities of commission employees. (a) A commission employee may support, advocate, or aid in the election or defeat of any candidate for public office, or run for public office; provided the employee: 
	ill .Notifies the commission in writing of the employee's intent to support, advocate, or aid in the election or defeat of a candidate for public office; and 
	@ .If a candidate for public office, takes a leave of absence in accordance with section 78-23, HRS, for a period beginning prior to the initiation of political activities related to the candidacy and ending the day following the general election for the office . 
	.lli) Notwithstanding chapter 11, HRS, or any other law to the contrary, no commission employee shall solicit or receive contributions, or receive or transfer money or anything of value from a licensee for the purpose of supporting, advocating, or aiding in the election or defeat of a candidate for public office. Violation of this subsection shall be: 
	ill Punishable by summary dismissal of the employee; and @ Subject to fines in accordance with section 11-410, HRS. [Eff] (Auth: HRS §§ 91-2, 281-17) (Imp: HRS §281-17)" 
	7. Section 08-101-21, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended to read as follows: 
	"§08-101-21 Licensee purchases from class 1 manufacturers,._ ( and) class 3 wholesalers. class 14 brewpub licensee. class 16 winery licensee. and class 18 small craft producer pub licensee only. 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	It shall be unlawful for any licensee, except a class 1, 3..1. or 10 licensee, to purchase, acquire, possess, serve.I. or sell any liquor from any person other than a class 1 [,] manufacturers' licensee, or a class 3(,] wholesale dealers' licensee, class 14 brewpub licensee, class 16 winery licensee, and class 18 small craft producer pub licensee, or a person authorized by the commission as a solicitor or representative of a manufacturer or wholesale dealer, pursuant to this rule, except as otherwise provid

	(b) 
	(b) 
	It shall be unlawful for any licensee to obtain any liquor from a class 1 [,) manufacturers' licensee, or a class 3(,) wholesale dealers' licensee, class 14 brewpub licensee, class 16 winery licensee, and class 18 small craft producer pub licensee, or a person authorized by the commission as a solicitor or representative of a manufacturer or wholesale dealer except for use under the terms of their license. [Eff 7 / 1/00; am and comp 4/22/ 12; am and compJ (Auth: HRS§§ 91-2, 281-17) (Imp: HRS §281-17)" 


	8. Section 08-101-22, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended to read as follows: 
	"§08-101-22 Licenses, classes. (a) Licenses may be granted by the commission as provided in this rule. 
	(b) .
	(b) .
	(b) .
	Class 1. Manufacturer license. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	A license for the manufacture of liquor shall authorize the licensee to manufacture the liquor therein specified and to sell it at wholesale in original packages to any person who holds a license to resell it and to sell draught beer or wine manufactured from grapes or other fruits grown in the [state] State in any quantity to any person for private use and consumption. 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Under this license, no liquor shall be consumed on the premises except as authorized by the commission. 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	(3) .
	Of this class, there shall be the following kinds: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Beer; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Wine; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Alcohol; and 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	Other specified liquor. 



	(4) 
	(4) 
	It shall be unlawful for any holder of a manufacturer license to have any interest whatsoever in the license or licensed premises of any other licensee, except as may be provided within section 08-101-106 of the rules of the commission. This subsection shall not prevent the holder of a manufacturer license under this chapter or under the law of another jurisdiction from maintaining any interest in the license or licensed premises ofa wholesale dealer licensee under this chapter. 

	(c) .
	(c) .
	Class 2 . Restaurant license. 

	(
	(
	1) .A license under this class shall authorize the licensee to sell liquor specified in this section for consumption on the premises; provided that a restaurant licensee, with commission approval, may provide off-premises catering of food and liquor by applying and obtaining approval for a catering permit while performing food catering functions; provided further that the catering activity shall be directly related to the licensee's operation as a restaurant. A license under this class shall also authorize 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	A licensee under this class shall be issued a license according to the category of establishment the licensee owns or operates. The categories shall be: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	A standard bar; or 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	(B) .
	Premises in which live entertainment or recorded music is provided. Facilities for dancing by the patrons may be permitted as provided by the rules of the commission. The subcategories of this category shall be: 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Premises in which recorded background music is provided; and 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	Premises in which live entertainment or recorded music is provided; provided that facilities for dancing by the patrons may be permitted as provided by the rules of the commission. 





	(3) .
	(3) .
	If a licensee under class 2 desires to change the category of establishment the licensee owns or operates, the licensee shall apply for a new license applicable to the category of the licensee's establishment. 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	(4) .
	Of this class, there shall be the following kinds: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	General (includes all liquor except alcohol); 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Beer and wine; and 


	(C) .Beer. 

	(5) .
	(5) .
	Notwithstanding section 281-57, HRS, the commission may approve at one public hearing and without notice the change to a class 2 restaurant license of a licensee holding and operating a class 5 dispenser license who meets the requirements of a class 2 license. 

	(6) .
	(6) .
	Restaurant license may be granted to a place, which regularly, and in a bona fide manner, is used and kept open for the serving of meals to patrons for compensation, and which has suitable State department of health and County of Maui department of fire control approved kitchen facilities within, containing the necessary equipment and supplies for cooking an assortment of foods, which may be required for ordinary meals. Additionally, the premises must have been continuously operated for one year prior to an

	(d) .
	(d) .
	Class 3. Wholesale dealer license. 

	(
	(
	1) A license for the sale of liquor at wholesale shall authorize the licensee to import and sell only to licensees or to others who are by law authorized to resell the liquor specified by the license but are not by law required to hold a license provided that a class 3 licensee may sell samples of liquor back to the manufacturer. 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Under a class 3 license no liquor shall be consumed on the premises except as authorized by the commission. 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	(3) .
	Of this class, there shall be the following kinds: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	General (includes all liquor except alcohol); 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Beer and wine; and 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Alcohol. 



	(4) .
	(4) .
	If any wholesale dealer solicits or takes any orders in any county other than that where the dealer's place of business is located, the orders may be filled only by shipment direct from the county in which the wholesale dealer holds the dealer license. Nothing in this subsection shall prevent a wholesaler from selling liquor to post exchanges, ships' service stores, army or navy officers' clubs, or like organizations located on army or navy reservations, or to any vessel other than vessels performing a regu

	(e) .
	(e) .
	Class 4. Retail dealer license. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	A license to sell liquor at retail or to class 10 licensees, shall authorize the licensee to sell the liquor therein specified in their original packages. 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Under a class 4 license, no liquor shall be consumed on the premises except as authorized by the commission. 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	(3) .
	Of this class, there shall be the following kinds: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	General (includes all liquor except alcohol); 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Beer and wine; and 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Alcohol. 



	(f) .
	(f) .
	Class 5. Dispenser license. 

	(
	(
	1) A license under this class shall authorize the licensee to sell liquor specified in this subsection for consumption on the premises. 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	A licensee under this class shall be issued a license according to the category of establishment the licensee owns or operates. The categories shall be: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	A standard bar; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Premises in which a person performs or entertains unclothed or in attire restricted to use by entertainers pursuant to the rules of the commission; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	(C) .
	Premises in which live entertainment or recorded music 1s provided. The subcategories of this category shall be: 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Premises in which recorded background music 1s provided; 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	Premises in which live entertainment or recorded music is provided; provided that facilities for dancing by the patrons may be permitted as provided by the rules of the commission; or 



	(D) .
	(D) .
	(D) .
	Premises in which employees or entertainers are compensated to sit with patrons, whether or not the employees or entertainers are consuming nonalcoholic beverages while in the company of the patrons, pursuant to the rules of the commission(. The restrictions of this category shall be: 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Employees, entertainers, or any other persons therein shall be twenty-one years of age or older. 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	There shall be no more than twelve category D, class 5, dispenser licenses in the County.]; provided that all employees, entertainers, or other persons or patrons therein shall be twenty-one year of age or older. 





	(3) .
	(3) .
	If a licensee under class 5 desires to change the category of establishment the licensee owns or operates, the licensee shall apply for a new license applicable to the category of the licensee's establishment. 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	(4) .
	Of this class, there shall be the following kinds: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	General (includes all liquor except alcohol); 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Beer and wine; and 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Beer. 



	(5) .
	(5) .
	Any licensee holding a different class of license and who would otherwise come within this class with the same or downgrade of kind or category of license, or both, shall not be required to apply for a new license. 

	(g) .
	(g) .
	Class 6. Club license. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	A club license shall be general only but shall exclude alcohol and shall authorize the licensee to sell liquor to members of the club, and to guests of the club enjoying the privileges of membership for consumption only on the premises kept and operated by the club; provided that the license shall also authorize any club member to keep in the member's private locker on the premises a reasonable quantity of liquor owned by the member, for the member's own personal use and not to be sold that may be consumed 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	Club licensees shall keep a complete list of its members, which list shall at all times be conspicuously posted and exposed to view, convenient for inspection on the licensed premises. The categories of this class shall be as follows: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	A standard bar; or 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	Premises in which live entertainment or recorded music is provided. Facilities for dancing by the patrons may be permitted as provided by the rules of the commission. The subcategories of this category shall be: 


	(i) .Premises in which recorded music is provided; or 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	A special license may be granted by the director for the sale ofliquor for a period not to exceed three consecutive days at the same location for fundraising events by nonprofit organizations, political candidates, and political parties; provided that any registered educational or charitable nonprofit organization may sell liquor in its original package for off-premises consumption. 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Special licenses shall be issued only to charitable or educational nonprofit organizations, to political parties and to candidates seeking public office from which organization no person is entitled to or takes, directly or indirectly, any share of the profits thereof. Nonprofit charitable or educational organizations shall be required to attach their U.S. Internal Revenue's section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), 501(c)(10), or 50l(c)( 19) exemption letter and political candidates shall be required to attach a copy 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	(3) .
	Of this class, there shall be the following kinds: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	General (includes all liquor except alcohol); 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Beer and wine; and 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Beer. 



	(4) .
	(4) .
	Liquor sold under a class 10 license shall be consumed on the premises. 

	(k) .
	(k) .
	Class 11. Cabaret licenses. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	A cabaret license shall be general only but shall exclude alcohol and shall authorize the sale of liquor for consumption on the premises. 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	This license shall be issued only for premises where: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Food is served; 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	Facilities for dancing by the patrons are provided, including a dance floor of not more than one hundred square feet; and 

	(C) 
	(C) 
	Live entertainment other than by a person who performs or entertains unclothed, is visible and audible to all patrons. 



	(3) 
	(3) 
	(3) 
	Professional entertainment by persons who perform or entertain unclothed shall only be authorized by: 

	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	A cabaret license for premises where professional entertainment by persons who perform or entertain unclothed was presented on a regular and consistent basis immediately prior to June 15, 1990; or 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	A cabaret license that, pursuant to rules adopted by the commission, permits professional entertainment by persons who perform or entertain unclothed. 



	(4) .
	(4) .
	A cabaret license under subparagraphs (3)(A) or (3)(B) of this subsection authorizing professional entertainment by persons who perform or entertain unclothed shall be transferable through June 30, 2000. 

	(5) .
	(5) .
	A cabaret license under subparagraphs (3)(A) or (3)(B) authorizing professional entertainment by persons who perform or entertain 


	(ii) Premises in which live entertainment or recorded music 
	(ii) Premises in which live entertainment or recorded music 
	(ii) Premises in which live entertainment or recorded music 

	is provided. 
	is provided. 

	{3) 
	{3) 
	Any person enjoying the guest privileges of a club and to whom 

	TR
	liquor may be sold must be a bona fide guest of a member of the 

	TR
	club, and the member must be present at all times within the 

	TR
	premises with his or her guest(s). 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	Clubs shall keep records as to registration of guests for at least one 

	TR
	year, which records shall be produced whenever required by the 

	TR
	director. 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Licensee shall have readily available at all times a guest book on the 

	TR
	licensed premises and shall be responsible for its member signing 

	TR
	in his or her guest(s) at the time his or her guest(s) enter the licensed 

	TR
	premises. 

	(h) 
	(h) 
	Class 8. Transient vessel license. 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	A general license may be granted to the owner of any vessel for the 

	TR
	sale of liquor (other than alcohol) on board the vessel while en route 

	TR
	within the jurisdictional limits of the [state] State and within any 

	TR
	port of the [state.] State. 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Sales shall be made only for consumption by passengers and their 

	TR
	guests on board the vessel. 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	The license shall be issuable in each county where the sales are to 

	TR
	be made. 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	The application for the license may be made by any agent 

	TR
	representing the owner. 

	(i) 
	(i) 
	Class 9. Tour or cruise vessel license. 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	A general license may be granted to the owner of any tour or cruise 

	TR
	vessel for the sale of liquor other than alcohol on board the vessel 

	TR
	while in the waters of the [state;] State; provided that sales be made 

	TR
	only for consumption by passengers on board while the vessel is in 

	TR
	operation outside the port or dock of any island of the [state,] State, 

	TR
	unless otherwise approved by the commission. 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	The license shall be issuable in the county where the home port of 

	TR
	the vessel is situated. 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	If on any vessel for which no license has been obtained under the 

	TR
	rules of the commission, any liquor is sold or served within three 

	TR
	miles off the shore of any island of the County, the same shall 

	TR
	constitute a violation of the rules of the commission. 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	A license under this class shall be issued a license according to the 

	TR
	category of establishment the licensee owns or operates. The 

	TR
	categories shall be: 

	TR
	(A) A standard bar; or 

	TR
	(B) Premises in which live entertainment or recorded music is 

	TR
	provided. Facilities for dancing by the patrons may be permitted as 

	TR
	provided by the rules of the commission. 

	0) 
	0) 
	Class 10. Special license. 


	unclothed shall not be transferable after June 30, 2000, except upon approval by the commission, and pursuant to rules adopted by the comm1ss10n. 
	(6) .
	(6) .
	(6) .
	[Notwithstanding any rule of the commission to the contrary, cabarets in] A cabaret license in a resort areas may be open for the transaction of business until 4 :00 a .m. throughout the entire week. 

	(7) .
	(7) .
	Any cabaret premises not located within a county zoned resort district shall operate only during the hours prescribed for dispenser premises. 

	(8) .
	(8) .
	All bars in cabaret premises, in order to operate during hours prescribed for cabarets must confine liquor service to patrons within an area where live entertainment is visible and audible to all patrons. Bars in cabaret premises which do not comply with the foregoing requirements shall operate only during the hours prescribed for dispenser premises. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Class 12. Hotel license. 


	(1} A license to sell liquor in a hotel shall authorize the licensee to provide entertainment and dancing on the hotel premises and to sell all liquor, except alcohol for consumption on the premises; provided that a hotel licensee, with commission approval, may provide offpremises catering offood and liquor if the catering activity is directly related to the licensee's food service. 
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	A hotel licensee may be granted a catering permit while performing food catering functions. 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	No catering service for the sale of liquor will be performed off the licensee's premises unless prior written application for the service has been delivered to the department and approved by the director. The director shall not approve any catered function unless it includes a written statement signed by the owner or representative of the property that the function will be subject to the liquor laws and to inspection by investigators. Application shall be submitted at least seven days prior to the catered f

	(C) .
	(C) .
	The director will not approve catering functions on premises not zoned to allow commercial activities thereon unless the catered function is requested and hosted by the owner or the lessee or its like of the property or anyone with written authorization for the use of the property. 


	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	Procedures such as room service, self-service [no host,] no-host minibars, or similar service in guest rooms, and service at parties in areas that are the property of, and contiguous to the hotel are permitted subject to liquor laws, rules of the commission, and the following conditions: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Except as provided in paragraph (3) of this subsection, hotel licensees are prohibited from selling liquor as authorized by retail dealers' licenses. 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	(B) .
	Room service: 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Liquor may be sold by the individual drink, or in its original manufacturer sealed container for consumption within a registered guest's room; 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	Current prices of alcoholic beverages shall be conspicuously posted and exposed to view or within the guest's room service menu at all times within the interior of each guest room; and 




	(iii) .The sale and service of liquor shall be made by an employee approved by the director. 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	(3) .
	A license to sell liquor within a hotel shall, upon written approval of the commission, authorize the sale of liquor of any kind or brand to hotel guests for consumption within their respective hotel rooms, subject to the following conditions: · 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Minibars or honor bars: 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Storage of any liquor authorized for sale under this rule shall be completely enclosed in a secured cabinet or other suitable container and shall be accessible by means of a key or other similar device provided to the hotel guests; 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	A written schedule of selling pnces shall be conspicuously posted in a manner convenient for inspection within the hotel rooms or selling prices shall be affixed to each bottle of liquor; 


	(iii) .Retail sales shall be limited to not more than the following container sizes: distilled spirits, 50 milliliters; beer, 12 ounces; and wine, 375 milliliters; and 
	(iv) .At no time nor under any circumstances shall any licensee or its employee issue the key or similar device to the enclosed liquor cabinet or other suitable liquor container to anyone under twenty-one years of age. 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	(B) .
	At no time nor under any circumstances shall a licensee permit liquor to be furnished: 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	To any person under twenty-one years of age; 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	To any person, who at the time, is under the influence of liquor; or 


	(iii) .To any person when there is reasonable grounds to believe that such person is permitting any person under twenty-one years of age to consume said liquor. 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	The licensee shall fully comply with any additional condition or restriction which the commission, in its discretion, may impose to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the public. 



	(4) .
	(4) .
	Licensees shall be restricted from selling liquor in its original packages except via room service and in minibars installed in hotel guest rooms. Said service shall be initiated at the request of the 


	101-13 
	adult guest. Minibar and room service sales shall be restricted to registered guests of the hotel of legal drinking age and consumption of liquor shall be restricted to the hotel guest room. 
	(5) .Unless authorized by law, hotel licensees shall not sell liquor in the manner authorized by the retail dealer's licenses. 
	Notwithstanding section 281-57, HRS, the commission may approve at one public hearing and without notice the change to a class 2 restaurant license(s) of a licensee holding and operating a class 12 hotel license, who meets the requirements of a class 2 license. 
	(m) .
	(m) .
	(m) .
	Class 13. Caterer license. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	A general license may be granted to any class 2[,] restaurant licensee, or any applicant, who is authorized to sell liquor for onpremises consumption who has on file with the department an approved one year financial report showing thirty percent of the establishment's gross revenue is derived from the sale of food that is prepared and cooked within its department of health and department of fire control approved kitchen facilities and served for consumption by patrons within its premises, and who serves f

	(2) .
	(2) .
	No catering service for the sale of liquor shall be performed off the licensee's premises unless prior written application for the service has been delivered to the department and approved by the director. Off premises catering will only be authorized upon issuance by the department and the licensee receiving a class 13[,] caterer's license. The commission shall not approve any catered function unless it includes a written statement signed by the owner or representative of the property that the function wil

	(3) .
	(3) .
	The commission shall not issue a caterer's license to any licensee whose original license does not authorize the licensee to sell and serve alcoholic beverages for consumption on the premises. 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	The commission shall not approve catering functions on premises not zoned to allow commercial activities thereon unless the catered function is requested and hosted by the owner of the property or anyone authorized the use of the property. Catered functions for which the owner or the lessee or its like of the property is being compensated for the use of the property shall be limited to properly zoned property. 

	(5) .
	(5) .
	The application for a caterer license shall be submitted to the department at least seven working days prior to the catered function and shall include, but not be limited to, a floor plan showing the boundaries of the proposed catered licensed premises; the date, times, and location of the event; a lease, rental agreement or authorization which allow the applicant the use and exclusive 


	control of the property for the sale, service.i. and consumption of 
	liquor, and obtaining a statement from the licensee that all required 
	governmental clearances were obtained for the catered function. 
	(6) .
	(6) .
	(6) .
	A caterer license may be granted by the director for the sale ofliquor for a period not to exceed one day for any occasion or location, provided a class 12(,) hotel licensee, may be granted a caterer license by the director for sale of liquor for a period not to exceed three consecutive days for any occasion or location, whose catering function is directly related to its operation and the catered group consists of permanent or transient hotel guests that registered for and provided sleeping accommodations a

	(7) .
	(7) .
	Catered functions for which patrons are being assessed a fee is prohibited. The privilege of catering is to permit legitimate catered functions and is not intended to be utilized to circumvent the liquor laws by allowing a licensee to operate its liquor license outside of its licensed premises. Any use of property for catered events by a licensee which appears to be an extension of the licensee's premises, place the health, safety and welfare of the public at risk, or appears to be excessive where a liquor 

	(8) .
	(8) .
	A licensee who is authorized to provide catering shall report the gross sales of liquor and pay the applicable fees pursuant to section 08-101-50 of the rules of the commission. 

	(n) .
	(n) .
	Class 14. Brewpub license. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	A brewpub licensee: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	May sell malt beverages manufactured on the licensee's premises for consumption on the premises; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	May sell malt beverages manufactured by the licensee in brewery-sealed packages to class 3[,] wholesale dealer licensees pursuant to conditions imposed by the [county) County by ordinance or rule; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	May sell intoxicating liquor purchased from a class 3 wholesale dealer licensee to consumers for consumption on the licensee's premises; 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	May, subject to federal labeling and bottling requirements, sell malt beverages manufactured on the licensee's premises to consumers in brewery-sealed kegs and growlers for offpremise consumption; provided that for purposes of this paragraph, "growler" means a glass or metal container, not to exceed one half-gallon, which shall be securely sealed; 

	(E) .
	(E) .
	May, subject to federal labeling and bottling requirements, sell malt beverages manufactured on the licensee's premises in recyclable containers provided by the licensee or by the consumer which do not exceed one gallon per container and 




	(2) 
	(o) 
	(1) 
	are securely sealed on the licensee's premises to consumers for off-premises consumption; 
	(F) .
	(F) .
	(F) .
	Shall comply with all regulations pertaining to class 4 retail dealer licensees when engaging in the retail sale of malt beverages; 

	(G) .
	(G) .
	May, su bject to federal labeling and bottling requirements, sell malt beverages manufactured on the licensee's premises in brewery-sealed containers directly to class 2 restaurant licensees, class 3 wholesale dealer licensees, class 4 retail dealer licensees, class 5 dispenser licensees, class 6 club licensees, class 8 transient vessel licensees, class 9 tour or cruise vessel licensees, class 10 special licensees, class 11 cabaret licensees, class 12 hotel licensees, class 13 caterer licensees, class 14 br

	(H) .
	(H) .
	(H) .
	May conduct the activities under paragraphs (A) through (G) at one location other than the licensee's premises; provided that: 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	The manufacturing takes place in Hawaii; and 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	The other location is properly licensed under the same 




	ownership. The categories of establishments shall be as follows: 
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	A standard bar; or 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	(B) .
	Premises in which live entertainment or recorded music is provided. Facilities for dancing by the patrons may be permitted as provided by the rules of the commission. The subcategories of this category shall be: 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Premises in which recorded music is provided; or 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	Premises in which live entertainment or recorded music is provided; provided that facilities for dancing by the patrons may be permitted as provided by the rules of the commission. 




	Class 15. Condominium hotel license. A license to sell liquor in a condominium hotel shall authorize the licensee to provide entertainment and dancing on the condominium hotel premises and to sell all liquor except alcohol for consumption on the premises; provided that a condominium hotel licensee, with commission approval, may provide off-premises catering of food and liquor if the catering activity is directly related to the licensee's food service by applying and obtaining approval for a catering permit 
	(A) .A condominium hotel licensee may be granted a catering permit while performing food catering functions. 
	{B) .No catering service for the sale of liquor will be performed off the licensee's premises unless prior written application for the service has been delivered to the department and approved by the director. The director shall not approve any catered function unless it includes a written statement signed by the owner or representative of the property that the function will be subject to the liquor laws and to inspection by investigators. Application shall be submitted at least seven days prior to the cate
	(C) .The director will not approve catering functions on premises not zoned to allow commercial activities thereon unless the catered function is requested and hosted by the owner or the lessee or its like of the property or anyone with written authorization for the use of the property. 
	(2) .Room service, self-service no host minibars, or similar service in apartments, and service at parties in areas that are the property of and contiguous to the condominium hotel are permitted with commission approval and subject to the following conditions: 
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Room [Service:] service: 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Liquor may be sold by the individual drink, or in its original manufacturer-sealed container for consumption within a registered guest's apartment. 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	Current prices of alcoholic beverages shall be conspicuously posted and exposed to view or within the apartment's room service menu at all times within the interior of each guest apartment. 


	(iii) .The sale and service of liquor shall be made by an employee approved by the director. 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	(B) .
	Minibars or honor bars: 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Storage of any liquor authorized for sale under this rule shall be completely enclosed in a secured cabinet or other suitable container and shall be accessible by means of a key or other similar device provided to the hotel guests[;l. 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	A written schedule of selling prices shall be conspicuously posted in a manner convenient for inspection within the hotel rooms or selling prices shall be affixed to each bottle of liquor. 




	(iii) .Retail sales shall be limited to not more than the following container sizes: distilled spirits, 50 milliliters; beer, 12 ounces; and wine, 375 milliliters[;].:. 
	(iv) .At no time or under any circumstances shall any licensee or its employee issue the key or similar device 
	(3) 
	(4) 
	(5) 
	(6) (7) 
	(p) (1) (2) 
	(3) 
	(4) 
	(5) 
	to the enclosed liquor cabinet or other suitable liquor 
	container to anyone under twenty-one years of age. At no time or under any circumstances shall a licensee permit liquor to be furnished: {A) To any person under twenty-one years of age; 
	(B) .
	(B) .
	(B) .
	To any person, who at the time, is under the influence of liquor; or 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	To any person when there is reasonable grounds to believe that such person is permitting any person under twenty-one years of age to consume said liquor. 


	The licensee shall fully comply with any additional condition or restriction which the commission, in its discretion, may impose to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the public. Licensees shall be restricted from selling liquor in its original packages except via room service and in minibars installed in condominium hotel guest rooms. Said service shall be initiated at the request of the adult guest. Minibar and room service sales shall be restricted to registered guests of the condominium hotel of
	(6) .
	(6) .
	(6) .
	Shall comply with all rules pertaining to class 4 retail dealer licensees when engaging in the retail sale of wine; and 

	(7) .
	(7) .
	May sell wine manufactured on the licensee's premises in winerysealed containers directly to class 2 restaurant licensees, class 3 wholesale dealer licensees, class 4 retail dealer licensees, class 5 dispenser licensees, class 6 club licensees, class 8 transient vessel licensees, class 9 tour or cruise vessel licensees, class 10 special licensees, class 11 cabaret licensees, class 12 hotel licensees, class 13 caterer licensees, class 14 brewpub licensees, class 15 condominium hotel licensees, and class 18 


	(q) 
	(q) 
	(q) 
	(q) 
	Class 18. Small craft producer pub license. A small craft producer pub licensee: 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Shall manufacture not more than: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Sixty thousand barrels of malt beverages; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Twenty thousand barrels of wine; or 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Seven thousand five hundred barrels of alcohol on the licensee's premises during the license year; provided that for purposes of this paragraph, "barrel" means a container not exceeding thirty one gallons or wine gallons of liquor; 



	(2) .
	(2) .
	May sell malt beverages, wine, or alcohol manufactured on the licensee's premises for consumption on the premises; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	May sell malt beverages, wine, or alcohol manufactured by the licensee in producer-sealed packages to class 3 wholesale dealer licensees pursuant to conditions imposed by the [county) County by ordinance or rule; 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	(4) .
	May sell intoxicating liquor purchased from a class 3 wholesale dealer licensee to consumers for consumption on the licensee's premises. The categories of establishments shall be as follows: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	A standard bar; or 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Premises in which live entertainment or recorded music is provided. Facilities for dancing by the patrons may be permitted as provided by commission rules; 



	(5) .
	(5) .
	May, subject to federal labeling and bottling requirements, sell malt beverages manufactured on the licensee's premises to consumers in producer-sealed kegs and growlers for off-premises consumption; provided that for purposes of this paragraph, "growler" means a glass or metal container, not to exceed one half-gallon, which shall be securely sealed; 

	(6) .
	(6) .
	(6) .
	May, subject to federal labeling and bottling requirements, sell malt beverages, wine, or alcohol manufactured on the licensee's premises in recyclable containers provided by the licensee or by the consumer which do not exceed: 

	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	One gallon per container for malt beverages and wine; and 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	One liter for alcohol; and are securely sealed on the licensee's premises to consumers for off-premises consumption; 



	(7) .
	(7) .
	Shall comply with all regulations pertaining to class 4 retail dealer licensees when engaging in the retail sale of malt beverages, wine, and alcohol; 

	(8) .
	(8) .
	May, subject to federal labeling and bottling requirements, sell malt beverages, wine, and alcohol manufactured on the licensee's premises in producer-sealed containers directly to class 2 restaurant licensees, class 3 wholesale dealer licensees, class 4 retail dealer licensees, class 5 dispenser licensees, class 6 club licensees, class 8 transient vessel licensees, class 9 tour or cruise vessel licensees, class 10 special licensees, class 11 cabaret licensees, class 12 hotel licensees, class 13 caterer lic

	(9) .
	(9) .
	(9) .
	May conduct the activities under paragraphs (1) through (8) at one location other than the licensee's premises; provided that: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	The manufacturing takes place in Hawaii; and 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	The other location is properly licensed under the same ownership. 





	(r) 
	(r) 
	Restaurants, retail dealers, dispensers, clubs, cabarets, hotels, caterers, brewpubs, condominium hotels, and small craft producer pubs licensed under class 2, class 4, class 5, class 6, class 11, class 12, class 13, class 14, class 15, and class 18 shall maintain at all times liquor liability insurance coverage in an amount not less than $1,000,000; provided that convenience minimarts holding a class 4 license shall not be required to maintain liquor liability insurance coverage in that amount. Proof of co

	(s) 
	(s) 
	It shall be unlawful for any licensee to utilize any liquor, acquired or purchased from a class l [,] manufacturers' licensee, or a class 3[,) wholesale dealers' licensee, or a person authorized by the commission as a solicitor or representative of a manufacturer or for personal or private use or consumption, except as authorized by the commission. All liquor shall be sold as authorized by the license issued. 


	ill A patron may remove from a class 2 restaurant licensee, class 5 dispenser licensee, class 6 club licensee, class 12 hotel licensee, class 14 brewpub licensee, class 15 condominium hotel licensee, and class 18 small craft producer pub licensee, licensed premises, who has on file with the department a current yearly approved financial report that shows at least thirty percent of 
	ill A patron may remove from a class 2 restaurant licensee, class 5 dispenser licensee, class 6 club licensee, class 12 hotel licensee, class 14 brewpub licensee, class 15 condominium hotel licensee, and class 18 small craft producer pub licensee, licensed premises, who has on file with the department a current yearly approved financial report that shows at least thirty percent of 
	establishment's gross revenue is derived from the sale of food that is prepared and cooked at the time ofordering within its State of Hawaii department of health and County of Maui, department of fire and public safety approved kitchen facilities, any portion of wine, liquor, or beer that was purchased on or brought onto the premises of the licensee, for consumption with a meal; provided that it is recorked or resealed in its original container as provided in section 281-31(u), HRS. A licensee wishing to ex

	3 .3 and 291-3.4 of the Hawaii Revised Statutes. [Eff 7 / 1/00; am and comp 7 / 15/02; am and comp 4/22/ 12; am and comp 6/18/15; am and comp] (Auth: HRS §§91-2, 281-17) (Imp: HRS §281-17)" 
	9. Section 08-101-25, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended by amending subsection 
	(a) to .read as follows: 
	"(a) Hours during which licensed premises may be open for the transaction of business shall be as follows: 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Dispensers, restaurants, clubs, transient vessels, tour or cruise vessels, and specials: any hour of the day from [8:00] 6:00 a.rn. to 

	2:00 a .m ., the following day. 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Cabarets: any hour of the day from [8:00] 6:00 a.m. to 4:00 a.m., the following day. 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	(3) .
	Hotels and condominium hotels: any hour of the day [from 6:00 

	a.m . to 4:00 a.m., the following day]. 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	Retailers: any hour of the day [from 6:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m]. 

	(5) .
	(5) .
	Manufacturers and wholesalers: any hour of the day [from 6:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m]. 

	(6) .
	(6) .
	(6) .
	[Brewpub:] Brewpubs: any hour of the day from (8:00] 6:00 a.m. to 

	2:00 a.m., the following day for on-premises consumption liquor sales and 6:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. for off-premises retail liquor sales. 

	(7) .
	(7) .
	Small craft producer [pub:] pubs: any hour of the day from [8:00] 


	6:00 a.m. to 2:00 a.m., the following day for [of-premise] onpremises consumption liquor sales, any hour of the day for manufacture and wholesale, and 6:00 a .m. to 11:00 p.m. for [offpremise] off-premises retail liquor sales. 
	.(fil .Caterers: any hour of the day from 6:00 a.m. to 2:00 a.m., the following day. 
	f2l .Wineries: any hour of the day for manufacture and wholesale, and from 6:00 a.m. to 11 :00 p.m. for off-premises retail sales and on premises wine tasting activities. [Eff 7 / 1/00; am and comp 6/ 18/ 15; am and comp] (Auth: HRS§§ 91-2, 281-17) (Imp: HRS §281-17)" 
	10. Section 08-101-28, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended to read as follows: 
	"§08-101-28 Special conditions for class 4[,] retail dealer's licenses. (a) Every retail licensee shall display and expose for view, within the liquor sales area of the licensed premises, a price for each size of each brand of liquor sold. 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	If a retail dealer's licensed premises are open to the public during hours when the sale of liquor is not permitted, the licensee shall post conspicuous signs in the area or areas where liquor sales are usually made, giving notice to customers that the sale of liquor is prohibited during that time. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	Customers making purchases at retail premises must enter the licensed premises to purchase liquor. The drive-in method whereby the customer orders from a motor vehicle or the licensee delivers liquor to the vehicle, or both, is prohibited. 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	This section shall not be construed to prohibit assistance to any person who is physically unable to walk, lift, or carry purchases of liquor due to a disability, or allowing the delivery of liquor product to a physically challenged person's vehicle or primary residence. Liquor orders may be made on the licensee's website or by telephone call to the licensed premises. Deliveries of liquor products to private residences or businesses with a bona fide order from the purchaser by a class 4[,] retail dealers' l


	(l} .An employee of the licensee, who is approved by the director pursuant to section 08-101-70 of the rules of the commission, makes the delivery of the liquor product directly to the purchaser; 
	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	That the employee ensures that the person receiving the delivery is twenty-one years of age or older , licensee produces a receipt of delivery signed by a person verified to be of legal age and the person receiving the product is not under the influence of liquor or drug(s) at the point of delivery; and 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	The licensee or employee is not in violation of any rules or State laws. 


	(e) It shall be unlawful for any holder of a retail dealers' license, or any person acting as an agent or representative for any holder of a retail dealers' license, directly or indirectly, or through any subsidiary or affiliate to solicit or obtain any financial assistance, or anything of value from any industry member. 
	ill Retail licensee shall be permitted to offer discounts on liquor in connection with the sale of the same or other liquor provided the discount price shall be posted and liquor shall not be sold below cost of liquor. Cost of liquor shall mean the licensee's wholesale purchase price including any tax, shipping, and handling cost. [Eff 7/1/00; am and comp] (Auth: HRS§§ 91-2, 281-17) (Imp: HRS §281-1 7)" 
	11. Section 08-101-30, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended by amending subsection 
	(a) to read as follows: 
	"(a) Applications for liquor licenses, renewals, transfers, management agreement, solicitor's permit, or change of partner(s) in a partnership, limited 
	"(a) Applications for liquor licenses, renewals, transfers, management agreement, solicitor's permit, or change of partner(s) in a partnership, limited 
	liability partnership, member, manager, organizer or any person of a limited liability company, or officer(s), director(s), and stockholder(s) owning or controlling twenty-five percent or more of the outstanding stock or ownership of a corporation, thereof, and all notices of public hearing sent, and affidavits filed by applicants in connection with and part of such applications, shall be in the respective original forms and accompanied by the following necessary documentation and any other original forms o

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Department of health clearance; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	State and federal tax clearances or that the applicant h as entered 

	TR
	into and is complying with an installment plan agreement with the 

	TR
	department of taxation for the payment of delinquent taxes in 

	TR
	installments; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Floor plans .(not construction plans) drawn to scale; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	Tax map (drawn to scale) and list of all tax map key numbers, names 

	TR
	and addresses of property owners, and lessees and owners of record 

	TR
	of shares in a cooperative apartment situated within a radius of five 

	TR
	hundred feet of the proposed premises; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Personal history statement; 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	Verification of any corporation, partnership, association, limited 

	TR
	liability company, limited liability partnership, or any other entity; 

	(7) 
	(7) 
	Affidavit of mailing of notices of public hearing and certificate of 

	TR
	mailing as verified by the United States Postal Service; 

	(8) 
	(8) 
	Transferor's gross sales report; 

	(9) 
	(9) 
	Transferor's endorsement of transfer; 

	(10) 
	(10) 
	Executed copy of agreement of sale, lease, rental agreement, which 

	TR
	states that the premises and its operation must be under the 

	TR
	licensee's exclusive control at all times; 

	(11) 
	(11) 
	Additional fee assessment agreement; 

	(12) 
	(12) 
	Coast guard documentation; 

	( 13) 
	( 13) 
	Zoning clearance; 

	( 14) 
	( 14) 
	Building permit; 

	(15) 
	(15) 
	Criminal history record check; 

	( 16) 
	( 16) 
	Stockholder's list; 

	{17) 
	{17) 
	Certificate of occupancy, miscellaneous inspection report, and 

	TR
	clearance from the department of fire control (miscellaneous 

	TR
	inspection report and clearance from the department of fire control 

	TR
	shall indicate that all governmental regulations and administrative 

	TR
	rules have been complied with); 

	( 18) 
	( 18) 
	Guaranty or bond; and 

	(19) 
	(19) 
	Copy of a federal or [state] State governmental picture identification 

	TR
	and social security card for each person. [Eff 7 / l /00; am and comp 

	TR
	7 / 15/02; am and comp 4/22/ 12; am and comp] (Auth: HRS §§91

	TR
	2, 281-17) (Imp: HRS §281-17)" 


	12. Section 08-101-30, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of Intoxicating Liquor of the County of Maui, is amended by amending subsections 
	(e) and (f) to read as follows: 
	"(e) The director may reject, refuse to accept, or return any application or request that is incomplete, illegible, or does not meet any requirement(s) of or not in compliance with any rule of the commission or section of chapter 281, HRS, or revoke any action taken after discovering that any information contained within the application, any document submitted or affidavit is false. 
	(f) Licensee shall apply for and secure the commission's approval, in writing, prior to a change in ownership of any number of shares of the stock which results in a person thereof becoming the owner of twenty-five percent or more of the outstanding voting capital stock. In addition, the partnership, limited liability partnership, limited liability company, corporate licensee, or any other person, or any person in a subdivision, or management agreement thereof, shall, on the proper application forms and the
	Application for the admission, election, or withdrawal of any officer, director, or a person owning or controlling twenty-five percent or more of the corporate stock, member of a limited liability company, or partner in a partnership or limited liability partnership, or any person, or any person of a subdivision, or management agreement thereof, shall include, but not limited to, the application form, corporate minutes, secretary's certification of the minutes, or its like submitted by the licensee which sh


	SBRRB Apr. 19, 2017 Agenda Exhibit 1B OCR
	Structure Bookmarks
	Figure
	Figure


	SBRRB Apr. 19, 2017 Agenda Exhibit 2 OCR
	Structure Bookmarks
	Exhibit 2 .
	~\.
	Figure

	L-~-----' 
	~ .
	~ .
	:,;, 

	Amendment and Compilation of Chapter 4-143 .Hawaii Administrative Rules .
	Month xx, XXXX .
	1 . Chapter 143 of Title 4, Hawaii Administrative Rules , entitled "Standards for Coffee" , is amended and compiled to read as follows : 
	"HAWAII ADMINISTRATIVE RULES 
	TITLE 4 
	DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
	SUBTITLE 7 
	QUALITY ASSURANCE DIVISION 
	CHAPTER 143 
	STANDARDS FOR COFFEE 
	§4-143-1 Labeling and documentation requirements §4-143-2 Inspection and fees §4-143-3 Definitions §4-143-4 Repealed §4-143-5 Repealed §4-143-6 Standards for grades of green coffee §4-143-7 Repealed 
	§4-143-8 Provisions for enforcement, penalties and 
	prosecution §4-143-9 Abbreviations §4-143-10 Repealed §4-143-11 Standards for grades of natural coffee §4 -143-12 Standards for grades of mixed natural coffee §4-143-13 Record keeping 
	Historical Note: Chapter 4-143 is based substantially upon Chapter 4-43, Hawaii Administrative Rules, 
	Historical Note: Chapter 4-143 is based substantially upon Chapter 4-43, Hawaii Administrative Rules, 
	"Standards for Coffee," of the Marketing Division, Department of Agriculture . [Eff 5/29/81; R 10/08/01] 

	Figure
	§4-143-1 Labeling and documentation 
	requirements . (a) No person shall sell or offer, expose for sale, or transport Hawai'i-grown green coffee, natural coffee, or mixed natural coffee outside the geographic region of production as defined in section 4-143-3 , unless each container is conspicuously labeled in the English language with the exact grade or lower grade for the green coffee, natural coffee, or mixed natural coffee or the term offgrade, as applicable . No person shall transport, or cause the transport of, Hawai'i-grown cherry coffee
	the geographic region statement may also be documented 
	on a form provided by the department accompanying each 
	container. 
	{b) Any tag or container label representing a 
	geographic region or grade term which is determined to 
	be incorrect shall be corrected by the complete 
	obliteration of the incorrect information and 
	substituted with the correct statement of fact . Any 
	accompanying documentation form determined to be 
	incorrect shall be corrected by the complete 
	obliteration of the incorrect information and 
	substituted with the correct statement of fact . 
	(c) The let ters and figures used to meet the 
	requirements of this section shall be of bold type and legible . 
	(d) The grade terms to be used shall be exactly as shown in sections 4-143-6 , 4 -143-11, and 143-12 , 
	except that grade terms may be abbreviated as shown in section 4-143-9, or may be expressed in all capital l etters, or both . The geographic region terms to be used shall be exactly as shown in section 4-143-3 . The use of a geographic region term on offgrade coffee 
	is prohibited. 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	The requir ements of this section shall apply to both intra-state and export sales and distribution of Hawai'i-grown coffee. 

	(f) 
	(f) 
	Any green coffee, natural coffee, or mixed natural coffee labeled with a grade term defined in 


	[sections] section 4-143-6, 4-143-11, or 143-12, shall meet the standards of the labeled grade. 
	(g) The use of a grade term defined in [sections] section 4-143-6 , 4-143-11, or 4-143-12, or any abbreviation or variation of the grade term that is intended to represent or imply that the green coffee, natural coffee, or mixed natural coffee so labeled is grown in Hawai'i, on coffee that is not grown in Hawai'i is prohibited. The use of any geographic region defined in section 4-143-3, on cherry coffee, parchment coffee, green coffee, natural coffee, or mixed natural coffee that is not grown in the geogra
	(h} The use of any other grade term or fanciful term which is not defined in [sections] section 4-1436, 4-143-11, or 4-143-12 to represent or imply that the cherry coffee, parchment coffee, green coffee, natural coffee, or mixed natural coffee has a grade adopted under this chapter is prohibited. 
	(i} Tags marked with a grade or geographic region statement pursuant to subsection (a) or (j) or as required for inspection for certification pursuant to section 4-l43-2{b} shall consist of a tamper-proof tag attached to each container of coffe~ beans in a manner that opening the container will alter the tag. The tags shall be light in color, made of a material that resists tearing and measuring a minimum of t wo inches by four inches, with a blank area at least two inches by two inches . 
	(j) Hawai'i-grown green coffee, natural coffee, or mixed natural coffee not meeting the quality standards of Hawaii No. 3 green coffee, Hawai i Natural Prime coffee, or Hawaii Mixed Natur al Prime Coffee shall be labeled with the term "offgrade" or the term "coffee" without reference to any geographic region. The term "offgrade" shall appear on the tag described in subsection (i) , or on the container on the same panel as the declaration of identity required by section 4-93 -2 [Hawaii Administrative Rules] 
	§4-143-2 Inspect ion and fees. (a) Inspection for certification of green coffee, natural coffee, or mixed natural coffee by the department shall be voluntary on the part of the applicant and will be made only upon the request of the applicant . 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	Inspection for certification of green coffee, natural coffee, or mixed natural coffee for grade and condition by the department shall be conducted upon the processing of parchment coffee into green coffee or natural coffee, provided that the green coffee, natural coffee , or mixed natural coffee shall be graded, placed into sealed containers, and tagged as described in section 4-143-l{i) before the green coffee, natural coffee, or mixed natural coffee is offered for inspection. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	The application for certification shall include a signed statement attesting to the geographic region of production as defined in section 4-143 -3, of the green coffee, natural coffee, or mixed natural coffee and the quantity in pounds . 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	It shall be the responsibility of the owner of the coffee to apply to the department for certification. 


	{e) The department shall provide green coffee, natural coffee, or mixed natural coffee inspection at 
	centralized pulping, hulling, grading, milling, processing, shipping£ or storage plants . 
	(f) 
	(f) 
	(f) 
	Each application for inspection shall be completed by the applicant on an approved department form, signed and filed with the office of inspection or any inspector at or near the place where the inspection is desired. The application, due to noncompliance with this chapter, may be rejected by the supervisor . The supervisor shall notify the applicant in writing of the reason for the rejection as soon as possible . 

	(g) 
	(g) 
	The applicant shall make every container of each l ot of the product to be inspected readily accessible for sampling and inspection. Coffee bags or containers sampled for certification shall not be moved from the facility where it was sampled until approval is given by the department. Movement of coffees without approval shall be considered a violation under section 4-143-B(d) . 

	(h) 
	(h) 
	Inspection and certification for quality or condition shall be based on [sections] section 4-143-6, 4-143-11 , or 4-143-12. A request for certification may include a request restricted to a portion of, or in addition to the requirements in section 4-143-6, 4-143-11, or 4-143-12, upon approval of the supervisor, provided that a letter of certification may be issued in lieu of a certificate at the discretion of the supervisor. 

	(i) 
	(i) 
	An application for certification may be withdrawn by the appli cant at any time before the inspection is performed, provided that the applicant shall be billed for any expenses incurred after the application was made . 

	(j) 
	(j) 
	Proof of the authority of any person applying for inspection on behalf of another person may be required at the discretion of the inspector. 

	(k) 
	(k) 
	The original certificate, when issued, shall immediately be mailed or made available to the applicant or a person designated by the applicant . One additional copy of the certificate shall be issued without charge if requested by the applicant before the certificate is issued. Applicants may make a 


	Co .
	request in writing to the inspec tion office for additional copies or fa csimile copies of a certificate at a fee of [$4B. OO] $48 for each page. 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	An inspection f ee rate of [$4B . OO] $48 per hour for regular time and [$72 . 00] $72 per hour for overtime shall be charged by the department, and shal l be paid by the applicant . Additional char ges may be assessed for t r ansportation, travel time , stand-by t i me , per diem, mi l eage, and other actual expenses incurr ed by the department . 

	(m) 
	(m) 
	When payment for inspection is not received within thirty days of the date of the bill, the department may withhold inspecti on for certification until payment is made. An interest charge of one-half of one per cent of the unpaid balance shall be assessed for each month, or portion of a month, that payment is not received after the initial thirty days after t he date of the bill. 

	(n) 
	(n) 
	An application for an appeal inspection may be made by any financially inte rested person dissatisfied with the original determination, provided 


	that : 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	The identity of the product has not been l ost ; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	The original lot has not been disturbed and is accessible; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	The appeal request and the reason for the appeal are submitted in writing, and the reason for the appeal request is not unsubstanti a l ; 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	The product has not undergone material change i n condition since the ori ginal inspecti on; and 

	(5) .
	(5) .
	Not more than fourteen days has transpired 


	from the date of the original cer tificate . The fee to be charged for an appeal inspection shall be based on the fees and other charges speci f i ed in subsection (1) or [$350 . 00] $350 , whichever is greater, prov ided that should the result of the appeal inspection disclose that a material error was made in the or iginal inspection, no fees or charges shall be assessed for the appeal inspecti on. [Eff 10/8/ 01 ; am 
	from the date of the original cer tificate . The fee to be charged for an appeal inspection shall be based on the fees and other charges speci f i ed in subsection (1) or [$350 . 00] $350 , whichever is greater, prov ided that should the result of the appeal inspection disclose that a material error was made in the or iginal inspection, no fees or charges shall be assessed for the appeal inspecti on. [Eff 10/8/ 01 ; am 
	and comp 5/24/14; am and comp (Auth: HRS §§147-7, 147-8) (I mp: HRS §§147-7, 147-8) 

	§4-143-3 Definitions . As used in this chapter: 
	"Applicant" means a person that applies for or requests inspection for certification who has a financial interest in the product and who shall be responsib le for payment of certification fees . 
	"Bean" means the seed of the fruit of the coffee plant, which has been dried and from which the pulp and the spermoderm have been removed and is also known as green coffee bean . 
	"Black bean" means green coffee or natural coffee, when the bean is darkly discolored. 
	"Broken bean" or "cut bean" means a bean or part of a bean that is damaged by a cracked, chipped, or nicked condition. 
	"Certificate" means any form of certification, either written[, ] or printed, issued by an inspector under this chapter to certify the type, grade, quality, quantity, or condition of green coffee, natural coffee, or mixed natural coffee . 
	"Cherry coffee" means an agricultural commodity 
	comprised of the unprocessed fruit of the coffee 
	plant. 
	"Clean" means green coffee, natural coffee, or 
	mixed natural coffee that is free from damage by d i rt, 
	dust, or other foreign matter. 
	"Damage" means any defect which materially 
	detracts from the quality and condition of the green 
	coffee or natural coffee bean. 
	"Department" means the department of agriculture. 
	"Dry mill" means a location where parchment 
	coffee is processed into green or natural coffee . 
	"Dry miller" means a person who processes 
	parchment coffee into green or natural coffee . 
	"Excessivel y dirty" means caked with dirt. 
	"Fermented" means the cherry has a definite sour 
	odor . 
	"Geographic region" means the geographic areas 
	designated as follows : Hamakua is the district of 
	C/0 .
	Hamakua on the island of Hawai'i, as designated by the State of Hawaii Tax Map; Hawaii is the State of Hawaii; Hawaii Island is the island of Hawai'i; Kau is the district of Ka'u on the island of Hawai'i, as designated by the State of Hawaii Tax Map; Kauai is the island of Kaua' i; Kana is the No"rth Kona and South Kona districts on the island of Hawai'i, as designated by the State of Hawaii Tax Map; Maui is the island of Maui ; Molokai is the island of Moloka'i; and Oahu is 
	the island of Oahu. 
	"Good aroma and flavor when brewed" means the coffee beverage, prepared according to accepted procedures , possesses a desirable flavor and aroma and is free from all foreign, undesirable, or offensive flavors or aromas . 
	"Good roasting quality" means the green coffee, when properly roasted, possesses uniform color and brightness . 
	"Green coffee" means coffee beans which have been processed from cherry coffee by removing the pulp, the adhering mucilage, and the hull . 
	"Hamakua coffee" means green coffee processed 
	from cherry coffee which is grown in the geographic 
	region of Hamakua and which at least meets the minimum 
	requirements of Hawaii Island Prime green coffee. 
	"Hamakua mixed natural coffee" means a 
	combination of green coffee and natural coffee 
	processed from cherry coffee which is grown in the 
	geographic region of Hamakua and which at least meets 
	the minimum requirements of Hawaii Island Mixed 
	Natural Prime coffee . 
	"Hamakua natural coffee" means natural coffee 
	processed from cherry coffee which is grown in the 
	geographic region of Hamakua and which at least meets 
	the minimum requirements of Hawaii Island Natural 
	Prime coffee . 
	"Hawaii coffee" means green coffee processed from 
	cherry coffee which is grown in the State of Hawaii 
	and which at least meets the minimum requirements of 
	Hawaii No. 3 green coffee . 
	"Hawaii Island coffee" means green coffee processed from cherry coffee whi ch is grown in the geographic region of the Hawai'i Island, other than coffee grown in the geographic region of Kana, and which at least meets the minimum requirements of Hawaii Island Prime coffee . 
	"Hawaii Island mix ed natural coffee" means a combination of green and natural coffee processed from cherry coffee which is grown i n the geographic region of the Hawai'i Island, other than coffee grown in the geographic r egion of Kona, and which at least meets the minimum requirements of Hawaii Island Mixed Natural Prime coffee . 
	"Hawaii Island natural coffee" means natural 
	coffee processed from cherry coffee which is grown in geographic region of the Hawai' i [island] Island, other than coffee grown in the geographic region of Kana, and which at least meets the minimum requirements of Hawaii Island Natural Prime coffee . 
	"Hawaii mixed natural coffee" means a combination 
	of green coffee and natural coffee processed from 
	cherry coffee which is grown in the State of Hawaii 
	and which at least meets the minimum requirements of 
	Hawaii Mixed Natural Prime coffee . 
	"Hawaii natural coffee" means natural coffee 
	processed from cherry coffee which is grown in the 
	State of Hawaii and which at least meets the minimum 
	requirements of Hawaii Natural Prime coffee . 
	"Hull" means the dried spermoderm which is the 
	light tan or buff-colored membrane encasing the bean. 
	"Husk" means the outer part of the dried cherry 
	consisting of dried pulp . . 
	"Inspector" means an employee of the department 
	or a person designated by the supervisor, who is 
	authorized to investigate, sample, inspect, and 
	certify for any applicant the quality and condition of 
	green coffee, natural coffee, and mixed natural coffee 
	and to enforce the requirements of this chapter. 
	"Interested party" means any person who has a 
	financial interest in the product for which inspection 
	is requested. 
	9 
	ll/ .
	"Kau coffee" means green coffee processed from cherry coffee which is grown in the geographic region of Ka'u and which at least meets the minimum requirements of Hawaii Island Prime green coffee . 
	"Kau mixed natural coffee means a combination of green coffee and natural coffee processed from cherry coffee which is grown in the geographic region of Ka'u and which at least meets the minimum requirements of Hawaii Island Mixed Natural Prime coffee . 
	"Kau natural coffee" means natural coffee 
	processed from cherry coffee whi ch is grown in the geographic region of Ka'u and which at least meets the minimum requirements of Hawaii Island Natural Prime coffee. 
	"Kauai coffee" means green coffee processed from 
	cherry coffee which is grown in the geographic region 
	of Kaua'i and which at least meets the minimum 
	requirements of Kauai Prime green coffee . 
	"Kauai mixed natural coffee" means a combination 
	of green coffee and natural coffee processed from 
	cherry coffee which i s grown in the geographic region 
	of Kaua'i and whi ch at l east meets the minimum 
	requirements of Kauai Mixed Natural Prime coffee . 
	"Kauai natural coffee" means natural coffee 
	processed from cherry coffee which is grown in the 
	geographic region of Ka ua' i and which at least meets 
	the minimum requirements of Kauai Natural Prime 
	coffee . 
	"Kona coffee" means green coffee processed from 
	cherry coffee which is grown in the geographic region 
	of Kona and which at least meets the minimum 
	requirements of Kena Prime green coffee . 
	"Kena mixed natural coffee" means a combination 
	of green coffee and natural coffee processed from 
	cherry coffee which is grown in the geographic region 
	of Kena and which at least meets the minimum 
	requirements of Kona Mixed Natural Prime coffee . 
	"Kana natural coffee" means natural coffee 
	processed from cherr y coffee which is grown in the 
	processed from cherr y coffee which is grown in the 
	geographic region of Kona and which at least meets the minimum requirements of Kona Natural Prime coffee . 

	"Maui cof fee" means green coffee proce ss~d from cherry coffee which is grown i n the geographic region of Maui and which at least meets the minimum requirements of Maui Prime green coffee . 
	means a combination of gr een coffee and natural coffee processed from cherry coffee which is grown in the geographic region of Maui and which at least meets the minimum requirements of Maui Mixed Natural Prime coffee. 
	"Maui mixed natural coffee
	11 

	means natural coffee processed from cherry coffee which is grown in the geographic region of Maui and which at least meets the minimum requirements of Maui Natural Prime coffee . 
	"Maui natural coffee
	11 

	means a location where cherry coffee is processed into parchment coffee or parchment coffee is processed into green coffee, or both. 
	"Mill
	11 

	"Miller" m~ans a person that processes cherry 
	coffee into parchment coffee or processes parchment 
	coffee into green coffee, or both. 
	"Moldy bean" means a bean with mold or evidence 
	of mold growth. 
	"Molokai coffee" means green coffee processed 
	from cherry coffee which is grown in the geographic 
	region of Moloka' i and which at least meets the minimum 
	requirements of Molokai Prime green coffee. 
	"Molokai mixed natural coffee means a combination 
	of green coffee and natural coffee processed from 
	cherr y coffee which is grown in the geographic region 
	of Moloka'i and which at least meets the minimum 
	requirements of Molokai Mixed Natural Prime coffee. 
	"Molokai natural coffee" means natural coffee 
	processed from cherry coffee which is grown in the 
	geographic region of Molokai and which at least meets 
	the minimum requirements of Molokai Natural Prime 
	coffee . 
	"Mother bean" means a bean that is not solid and 
	has a loosely wrapped cotyledon . 
	"Natural coffee" means coffee which has been 
	processed from cherry coffee that has been dried with 
	Figure
	the husk on, or coffee which has been processed from parchment coffee with adhering mucilage . 
	"Oahu coffee" means green coffee processed from cherry coffee which is grown in the geographic region of Oahu and ·which at least meets the minimum require~ents of Oahu Prime green coffee. 
	"Oahu mixed natural coffee" means a combination of green coffee and natural coffee processed from cherry coffee which is grown in the geographic region of Oahu and which at least meets the minimum requirements of Oahu Mixed Natural Prime coffee . 
	"Oahu natural coffee" means natural coffee processed from cherry coffee which is grown in the geographic region of Oahu and which at least meets the minimum requirements of Oahu Natural Prime coffee . 
	"Offgrade" is a descriptive term applicable to 
	coffee which has a market value, and designates a 
	quality lower than Hawaii No. 3 grade for green 
	coffee, or the grade terms defined in section 4-143-11 
	for natural coffee, or the grade terms defined in 
	section 4-143-12 for mixed natural coffee. 
	"Office of inspection" means the office of an 
	authorized inspector of coffee . 
	"Parchment" means the portion of the fruit of the 
	coffee plant consisting of the hull, from which the 
	pulp has been removed, and the enclosed seed. 
	"Parchment coffee" means an agricultural 
	commodity comprised of parchment . 
	"Partly black bean" means a bean that is darkly 
	discolored only partially. 
	"Partly moldy bean" means a bean that is moldy 
	only partially or shows evidence of mold growth only 
	partially. 
	"Partly sour bean" means a bean that has a faint 
	fermented flavor or odor and is partially buff or 
	yellowish-brown i n color. 
	"Partly stinker bean" means a bean that, on being 
	freshly cut, gives off an unpleasant odor. A partly 
	stinker bean may be partly light-brown or brownish or 
	occasionally have a waxy appearance . 
	"Person" means any individual, partnership, 
	corporation, or separate legal entity. 
	"Pod" means an intact dried cherry. 
	"Quaker" means a bean that is poorly developed, , exceptionally light in weight~ and is light in color when roasted. 
	"Quali ty" means the inherent properties or attributes of a product which determines its relative degree of excellence. 
	"Shell" means part of a bean that is thin, light in weight, and shell-like in appearance . 
	"Silver-skin" means the dried seed coat of the bean, whic-h is tightly adhering, thin, tissue-like membrane covering the bean . 
	"Sour bean" means a bean that has a fermented odor or flavor . A sour bean is usually buff or yellowish-brown in color . 
	"Stick" means a slender piece of wood from a tree or shrub. 
	"Stinker bean" means a bean, upon being freshly cut, that gives off a very unpleasant odor. A stinker bean may be light-brown or brownish or occasionally have a waxy appearance . 
	"Stone" means a rock, a piece of a rock, or concreted earthy or mineral matter. 
	"Supervisor" means the coffee program specialist in the commodi ties branch of the department or a person designated by the manager of the commodities branch. 
	"Type I bean" means a bean which is produced two to a cherry and which is perceptively flat on one side and convex on the other. 
	"Type II bean" means a bean whi ch is produced one 
	to a cherry and is generally oval in shape and round 
	in diameter . [A±-se} A type II bean is also referred 
	to as peaberry. 
	"Uniformly good green color" means all of the 
	beans are of nearly the same green color, 
	characteristic for the variety of properl y grown and 
	processed beans which have not undergone any material 
	deterioration. 
	"Wet mill" means a location where cherry coffee 
	is processed into parchment coffee . 
	l I(r; .
	l I(r; .
	"Wet miller" means a person that p rocesses cherry coffee into parchment coffee . [Eff ·10/8/0l; am and comp 5/ 24/14; am and comp ] (Auth: HRS §§147-4 , 147-22) (Imp: §§147-4 , 147-22) 
	§4 -143-4 REPEALED . [R 5/24/14] 
	§4-143-5 REPEALED . [R 5/24/14] 
	§4-143 -6 Standards for grades of green coffee . 
	(a) Hawaii Extra Fancy green coffee consists of Hawaii beans of one type, which are clean and possess a uniformly good green color, good roasting quality, and good aroma and flavor when brewed; which do not exceed t welve per cent or which do not contain less than nine per cent moisture by weight; which do not exceed eight full imperfections per three hundred grams as described in subsection (i) ; ·which do not exceed three per cent by weight other type beans; and which in the case of type I beans meet the 
	(1) .Kona coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Kana Extra Fancy green coffee . This classification shall apply to Kona coffee 
	only[.-] i.. 
	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	Kauai coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Kauai Extra Fancy green coffee . This classification shall apply to Kauai coffee only[--,-] i.. 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Maui coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Maui Extra Fancy green coffee . This 


	classification shall apply to Maui coffee only[7]L 
	(4) .
	(4) .
	(4) .
	Molokai coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Molokai Extra Fancy green coffee. This classification shall apply to Molokai coffee only[7]L 

	(5) .
	(5) .
	Oahu coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Oahu Extra Fancy green coffee . This classification shall apply to Oahu coffee only[7]; and 

	(6) .
	(6) .
	Hawaii Island coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Hawaii Island Extra Fancy green coffee. This classification shall apply to Hawaii Island coffee only. 


	(b) Hawaii Fancy green coffee consists of Hawaii beans of one type, which are clean and possess a uniformly good green color, good roasting quality, and good aroma and flavor when brewed; which do not exceed twelve per cent or which do not contain less than nine per cent moisture by weight; which do not exceed twel ve full imperfections per three hundred grams as described in subsection (i); which do not exceed three per cent by weight other type beans; and which in the case of type I beans meet the minimum
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Kana coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Kana Fancy green coffee. This classification shall apply to Kana coffee only[7]L 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Kauai coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Kauai Fancy green coffee. This classification shall apply to Kauai coffee only(7]~ 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Maui coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Maui 


	Figure
	Figure
	Fancy green coffee . This classification shall apply to Maui coffee 
	only[.JL 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	(4) .
	Molokai coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Molokai Fancy green coffee . This classification shall apply to Molokai coffee only[.]L 

	(5) .
	(5) .
	Oahu coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Oahu Fancy green coffee . This classification shall apply to Oahu coffee only[.]; and 

	(6) .
	(6) .
	Hawaii Island coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Hawaii Island Fancy green coffee. This classification shall apply to Hawaii Island coffee only. 


	(c) Hawaii No. 1 green coffee consists of Hawaii beans of one type , which are clean and possess a uniformly good green color, good roasting quality, and good aroma and flavor when brewed; which do not exceed twelve per cent or which do not contain less than nine per cent moisture by weight; which do not exceed eighteen full imperfections per three hundred grams as described in subsection (i); which do not exceed three per cent by weight other type beans; and which meet the minimum size requirement of size 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Kona coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Kona No. 1 green coffee. This classification shall apply to Kona coffee only[7JL 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Kauai coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Kauai No . 1 green coffee. This classification shall apply to Kauai coffee only[.]L 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Maui coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Maui No . 1 green coffee . This classification shall apply to Maui coffee only[.]L 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	Molokai coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Molokai No. 1 green coffee . Thi s classification shall apply to Molokai coffee only h-J i. 

	(5) .
	(5) .
	Oahu coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Oahu No . 1 green coffee. This classification shall apply to Oahu coffee only[7 ]; and 

	(6) .
	(6) .
	Hawaii Island coffee which meets the . requirements of this subsection may be classified as Hawaii Island No . 1 green coffee. This classification shall apply to Hawaii Island coffee only . 


	(d} Hawaii Select green coffee consists of Hawaii beans, which are clean and which do not impart sour, fermented , moldy, medicinal, or other undesirable aromas and flavors when brewed; which do not exceed t we1ve per cent or which do not contain less than nine per cent moisture by weight; and which do not exceed five per cent defective beans, by weight, incl uded therein not more than two per cent, by weight, sour, stinker, black, or moldy beans that equal full imperfections only, as described in subsectio
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Kona coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Kana Select green coffee. This c lassification shall apply to Kana coffee only[7J1. 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Kauai coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Kauai Select green coffee . This classification shall apply to Kauai coffee only[7J1. 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Maui coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Maui Select green coffee. This classification shall apply to Maui coffee only[7 ]1. 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	Molokai coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as 


	Figure
	Molokai Select green coffee. This 
	classification shall apply to Molokai coffee 
	only[-;-]; 
	(5) .
	(5) .
	(5) .
	Oahu coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Oahu Select green coffee. This classification shall apply to Oahu coffee only(-;-]; and 

	(6) .
	(6) .
	Hawaii Island coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classifi ed as Hawaii Island Select green coffee. This classification shall apply to Hawaii Island coffee only. 


	(e) 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	Hawaii Prime green coffee consists of Hawaii beans which are clean; which do not impart sour, fermented, moldy, medicinal, or other undesirable aromas and flavors when brewed; which do not exceed twelve per cent or which does not contain less than nine per cent moisture by weight; and which do not exceed twenty per cent defective beans, by weight, included therein not more than five per cent, by weight, sour, stinker, blackL or moldy beans that equal full imperfections only, as described in subsections (i} 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Kona coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Kona Prime green coffee . This classification shall apply to Kona coffee only[~JL 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Kauai coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Kauai Prime green coffee. This classification shall apply to Kauai coffee only[-;-]L 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Maui coffee which meets tne requirements of this subsection may be classified as Maui Prime green coffee . This classification shall apply to Maui coffee only[-;-)L 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	Mol okai coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Mol okai Prime green coffee . This classification shall apply to Molokai coffee only [-;-]L 

	(5) .
	(5) .
	Oahu coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Oahu Prime green coffee . This classification shall apply to Oahu coffee only[~]; and 

	(6) .
	(6) .
	Hawaii Island coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Hawaii Island Prime green coffee . This classification shall apply to Hawaii Island coffee only[~] L 

	(7) .
	(7) .
	The defect tolerance of twenty per cent defective beans by weight shall be in effect until June 30 , [2017 . ] 2020 . Beginning July 1, [2017,] 2020, the defect tolerance shall be fifteen per cent defective beans by weight . 



	(f) 
	(f) 
	Hawaii No. 3 green coffee consists of Hawaii beans which are clean; which do not impart sour, fermented, moldy, medicinal, or other undesirable aromas and flavors when brewed; which do not exceed twelve per cent or do not contain less than nine per cent moisture, by weight; and ·which do not exceed thirty-five per cent defective beans, by weight, included therein not more than five per cent, by weight, black, moldy, sour, or stinker beans that equal full imperfections only, as described in subsections (i) (
	"Kana", "Kauai", "Maui", "Molokai" , "Oahu"


	(g) 
	(g) 
	Offgrade is not a grade within the meaning of these standards but is a descriptive term applicable to green coffee which has a market value and designates a quality lower than Hawaii No. 3 green coffee . Use of the terms "Hamakua", "Hawaii", "Kau", "Kana", "Kauai", "Maui", "Molokai", "Oahuu2... or "Hawaii Island" in conjunction with the term offgrade is prohibited. 

	(h) 
	(h) 
	All owances and limitations stated in this .section shall be applied to the entire lot, and a .composite sample from the lot shall be used to .determine the grade. .

	(i) 
	(i) 
	(i) 
	Specific defects and the ex tent to which these defects affect grade in terms of imperfection equivalents shall be as follows : 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	One bean that has more than fifty per cent of an equivalent full bean surface that is black or moldy shall equal one full imperfection; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	One bean that is more than faintly affected by a sour or stinker odor shall equal one full imperfection; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	One pod or piece of a pod that is more than fifty per cent equivalent of a full pod shall equal one full imperfection; 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	One full husk or piece of a husk that is more than fifty per cent equivalent of a full husk shall equal one full imperfection; 

	(5) .
	(5) .
	One full hull or piece of a hull that is more than fifty per cent equivalent of a full hull shall equal one f ull imperfection; 

	(6) .
	(6) .
	One stone more than four millimeters in any dimension shall equal one full imperfection; 

	(7) .
	(7) .
	One stick more than four millimeters and up to ten millimeters in length shall equal one full imperfection; 

	(8) .
	(8) .
	One stick more than ten millimeters in length shall equal two full imperfections. 




	Where only a piece of a black bean, moldy bean, sour bean, stinker bean, pod, huskL or hull are present, and they do not equal one full imperfection as described in paragraphs (1), (2) , {3), (4), and 
	(5), .each shall be scored as one-fifth of a full 
	imperfection. For example, one bean with less than 
	fifty per cent of its surface black shall be scored as 
	one-fifth of a full imperfection. 
	A partly black, partly moldy, or partly sour 
	bean, or a stick or a stone that does not equal one 
	full .imperfection as described in paragraphs (1), (2), 
	(6), and {7) shall be scored as one-fifth of a full imperfection. A quaker, shell, mother bean, or bean or a piece of a bean affected by damage by an insect or damage by 
	a broken or cut bean shall be scored as one-fifth of a full imperfection. 
	A bean that is affected by not more than two pinholes caused by insect damage regardless of discoloration associated with the insect damage shall be scored as one-tenth of a full imperfection. The defect tolerance of one-tenth of a full imperfection of not more than two pinholes caused by insect damage regardless of discoloration associated with the insect damage shall be in effect until June 30, [~] 2020 . Beginning July 1, [~] 2020, the defect tolerance shall be one-fifth of a full imperfection. 
	A bean that is affected by greater than two pinholes caused by insect damage regardless of discoloration associated with the insect damage shall be scored as one-fifth of a full imperfection. 
	Any other defect not listed in this subsection shall be scored as one-fifth of a full imperfection to the extent that these defects affect the quality or condition of the beans in the lot. 
	(j) Size classifications for green coffee shall be as follows : 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	For type I green coffee : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Size 11 shall consist of beans which will not pass through an 11/64 inch round hole ; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Size 14 shall consist of beans which will not pass through a 14/64 inch round hole; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Size 16 shall consist of beans which will not pass through a 16/64 inch round hole; 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	Size 17 shall consist of beans which will not pass through a 17/64 inch round hole; 

	(E) .
	(E) .
	Size 18 shall consist of beans which will not pass through a 18/64 inch round hole; and 

	(F) .
	(F) .
	Size 19 shall consist of beans which will not pass through a 19/64 inch round hole; and 



	(2) .
	(2) .
	For type II green coffee: 


	Figure
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Size 10 shall consist of beans which will not pass through a 10/64 inch slotted hole; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Size 12 shall consist of beans which will not pass through a 12/64 inch slotted hole; and 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Size 13 shall consist of beans which will not pass through a 13/64 inch slotted hole . 


	In order to allow for variations incident to proper sizing for type I and type II green coffee , not more than a total of ten per cent, by weight, of the beans in any lot may be smaller than the size specified. 
	(k) When size or type is specified for Hawaii Select green coffee or Hawaii Prime green coffee, not more than a total of three per cent by weight other type beans shall be permitted in any lot. [Eff 10/8/01; am and comp 5/24/14; am and comp ] (Auth: HRS §§147-4, 147-22) (Imp: HRS §§147-4, 147-22) 
	§4-143-7 REPEALED. [R 5/24/14 ) 
	§4-143 -8 Provisions for enforcement, penalties and prosecution. (a) A.Dy authorized inspector of the department may enter any public or private premises, including any vehicle of transport, during business hours to: 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Inspect for the quality, condition, and origin of coffee; and 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Enforce the labeling, record keeping, and certification requirements of this chapter. 


	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	The inspector may take representative .sampl es of the coffee for inspection. .

	(c) 
	(c) 
	Any authorized inspector, upon determining .that this chapter or chapter 147 , Hawaii Revised .Statutes, is being violated, may place a stop sale .


	notice upon or near the coffee that is in violation. When a stop sale notice is issued: 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	The coffee shall not be sold, offered for sale, transferred, moved off the premises, or otherwise disposed of until the stop sale notice has been removed by an authorized inspector or wr itten permission is received from the department[7]L 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	No person shall remove, deface, or otherwi se tamper with any stop sale notice except upon approval of an authorized inspector[~); and 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	The stop sale notice shall be accompanied by a non-compliance notice issued by the department indicating the violation and corrective action required. 


	(d} Any person who violates any provision of this chapter may be subject to the actions, procedures, and penalties provided in sections 147 -2 
	and 147-25, 
	and 147-25, 
	and 147-25, 
	Hawaii Revised Statutes . 
	[Eff 10/8/01; 
	am 

	and comp 
	and comp 
	5/24/14; 
	am 
	and comp 
	] 

	(Auth: 
	(Auth: 
	HRS 
	§§147-2, 
	147-22, 
	147-25) 
	(Imp : 
	HRS 

	§§147-4 , 
	§§147-4 , 
	147-24) 


	§4-143 -9 Abbreviati ons . Grade designations on labels for coffee shall be as stated in this chapter except that Hawaii may be abbreviated as "HI . " or "Haw. " and Extra may be abbreviated as "Ex.", provided that a period need not be used . [Eff 10/8/01; am and comp 5/24/14; comp ] (Auth : HRS §§147-4, 147-22} (Imp : HRS §§147-4, 147-22) 
	§4-143-10 REPEALED [R 5/24/14] 
	§4 -143 -11 Standards for grade s of natural coffee . (a) Hawai i Natural Prime coffee consists of Hawaii coffee beans which have been processed from cherry coffee that has been dried with the husk on, or which has been processed from parchment coffee with adhering mucilage, of one type, which are clean and do 
	Figure
	Figure
	not exceed thirteen per cent or which do not cont ain l ess than eight per cent moisture by weight, which do not exceed t wenty per cent defective beans, by weight, as defined in section 4-143-6 , included therein not more than five per cent by we ight, black or moldy beans that equal full imperfections only, as described 
	in section 4-143-6(i) (1) . Sour or stinker beans, or partly sour or partly stinker beans are not considered 
	defective beans . 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Kona natural coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Kona Natural Prime coffee . This classification shall apply to Kana natural coffee only[.]L 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Kauai natural coffee which meets the requirements of t his subsection may be classified as Kauai Natural Prime coffee . This classification shall apply to Kauai natural coffee only[.]L 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Maui natural coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Maui Natural Prime coffee. This classification shall apply to Maui natural coffee only[.]L 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	Molokai natural coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Molokai Natural Prime coffee . This classification shall appl y to Molokai natural coffee only[.]L 

	(5) .
	(5) .
	Oahu natural coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Oahu Natural Prime coffee . This classification shall apply to Oahu natural coffee only[.]; and 

	(6) .
	(6) .
	Hawaii Island natural coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Hawaii Island Natural Prime coffee. This classification shall apply to Hawaii Island natural coffee only. 

	(7) .
	(7) .
	The defect tolerance of t wenty per cent defective beans by weight shall be in effect until June 30, [2017 . ] 2020 . Beginning 


	July .1 , [2017 , ] 202 0, the defect tolerance 
	shall be fifteen per cent defective beans by 
	weight. 
	(b) Size classifications for natural coffee shall be as follows : 
	( 1) .For type I natural coffee: 
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Size 11 shall consist of beans which will not pass through a 11/64 inch round hol e; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Size 14 shal l consist of beans which will not pass through a 14/64 inch round hole; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Si ze l6 shall consist of beans which will not pass through a 16/64 inch round hole; 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	Size 17 shall consist of beans which will not pass through a 17/64 inch r ound hole; 

	(
	(
	E) Size 18 shal l consist of beans which will not pass through a 18/64 inch round hole; and 

	(F) .
	(F) .
	Size 19 shall consist of beans which will not pass through a 19/64 inch round hole; and 


	(2) .For type I I natural coffee: 
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Size l O shall consist of beans which will not pass through a 10/64 inch slotted hol e; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Size 12 shall consist of beans whi ch will not pass through a 12/64 inch slotted hole; and 

	(
	(
	C) Size 13 shall consis t of beans which will not pass through a 13/64 inch slotted hol e. 


	In order to allow for variations incident to proper sizing for type I and type II natural coffee, not more than a total of ten per cent, by weight, of the beans in any lot may be smaller than the size specified. 
	(c) .When size is specified, not more than a 
	Figure
	Figure
	total of three per cent by weight other type beans shall be permitted in any lot . 
	(d) Offgrade is not a grade within the meaning of these standards but is a descriptive term applicable to natural coffee which has a market value and designates a quality lower than Hawaii Natural Prime coffee. Use of the terms. "Hamakua", "Hawaii", "Kau", "Kona", "Kauai" , "Maui", "Molokai" , "Oahu"_,_or 
	"Hawaii Island" in conjunction with the term offgrade is prohibited. [Eff and comp 5/24/14 ; am and comp ] (Auth: HRS §§147-4, 147-22) 
	(Imp : HRS §§147-4, 147-22) 
	§4-143-12 Standards for grades of mixed natural coffee . (a) Hawaii Mixed Natural Prime coffee consists of a combination of Hawaii green coffee beans and Hawaii natural coffee beans which have been processed from cherry coffee that has been dried with the husk on, or which has been processed from parchment coffee with adhering mucilage, which are clean and do not exceed thirteen per cent moisture, by weight or which do not contain less than eight per cent moisture, by weight, which do not exceed twenty per 
	beans . 
	beans . 
	beans . 

	( 1) 
	( 1) 
	Kana mixed natural coffee which meets 
	the 

	requirements 
	requirements 
	of 
	this subsection may be 

	classified as 
	classified as 
	Kana Mixed Natural Prime 

	coffee . 
	coffee . 
	This classification shall apply to 

	Kana mixed natural coffee only[~JL 
	Kana mixed natural coffee only[~JL 

	( 2) 
	( 2) 
	Kauai mixed natural coffee which meets 
	the 

	requirements 
	requirements 
	of 
	this subsection may be 

	classified as 
	classified as 
	Kauai Mixed Natural Prime 

	coffee. 
	coffee. 
	This classification shall apply to 

	Kauai 
	Kauai 
	mixed natural coffee only[~JL 


	(3) .
	(3) .
	(3) .
	Maui mixed natural coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Maui Mixed Natural Prime coffee . This classification shall apply to Maui mixed natural coffee only[7]L 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	(4) .
	Molokai mixed natural coffee which meets the 

	[requirement] requirements of this subsection may be classified as Molokai Mixed Natural Prime coffee . This classification shall apply to Molokai mixed natural coffee only[7] L 

	(5) .
	(5) .
	Oahu mixed natural coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be c l assified as Oahu Mixed Natural prime coffee . This classification shall apply to Oahu mixed natural coffee only[7]; and 

	(6) .
	(6) .
	Hawaii Island mi xed natural coffee which meets the requirements of this subsection may be classified as Hawaii Island Mixed Natural Prime coffee. This classification shall appl y to Hawaii Island mixed natural coffee only. 

	(7) .
	(7) .
	The defect tolerance of twenty per cent defective beans by weight shall be in effect until June 30, [2 017 . ] 202 O. Beginning Jul y 1, [2017,] 2020, the defect tolerance shall be fifteen per cent defective beans by weight. 


	(b) Size classification for mixed natural coffee shall be as follows: 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	For type I mixed nat ural coffee: 

	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	Size 11 shall consist of beans which will not pass thr ough a 11/64 inch round hole; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Size 14 shall consist of beans which will not pass through a 14/64 inch round hole; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Size 16 shall consist of beans which will not pass through a 16/64 inch round hole; 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	Size 17 shall consist of beans which will not pass through a 17/64 inch round hole; 

	(E) .
	(E) .
	Size 18 shall consist of beans which will not pass through a 18/64 inch round hole ; and 

	(
	(
	F) .Size 19 shall consist of beans which will not pass through a 19/64 inch round hole; and 



	(
	(
	(
	2) For type II mixed natural coffee : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Size 10 shall consist of beans which will not pass through a 10/64 inch slotted hole ; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Size 12 shall consist of beans which will not pass through a 12/64 inch slotted hole; and 

	(
	(
	C) Size 13 shall consist of beans which will not pass through a 13/64 inch slotted hole . 




	Figure
	Figure
	In order to allow for variations incident to proper sizing for type I and type II green or natural coffee, not more than a total of ten per cent, by weight, of the beans in any lot may be smaller than the size specified. 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	When size is specified, not more than a total of three per cent by weight other type beans shall be permitted in any lot . 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	Offgrade is not a grade within the meaning of these standards but is a descriptive term applicable to mixed natural coffee which has a market value and designates a quality lower than Hawaii Mixed Natural Prime coffee. Use of the terms "Hamakua", 


	"Hawaii", "Kau", "Kana ", "Kauai", "Maui", "Molokai", "Oahu".!... or "Hawaii [island] Island" in conjunction with the term offgrade is prohibited. [Eff and comp 5/24/2014; am and comp ] (Auth: HRS §§147-4, 147-22) (Imp: HRS §§147 -4, 147-22) 
	§4-143 -13 Record keeping. (a) Every person who produces, processes, transports, or distributes 
	Hawai'i-grown cherry, parchment, green, or natural coffee shall maintain records of each purchase, transport, or sale. 
	(b) .
	(b) .
	(b) .
	Records shall include : 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	The name , address, and telephone number of the seller; 


	( 2) The name, address, and tele12hone number of the buyer; 
	(3) .The name , address, and telephone number of the transporter; 
	( 
	( 
	( 
	4) The quantity of Hawai'i-grown coffee purchased, transported, or sold; 

	( 
	( 
	5) The grade of Hawai'i-grown coffee purchased, transported, or sold, if applicable; 

	( 
	( 
	6) .The date of the sale or purchase; and 


	(7) .A lot number, tax map key~ or other identifying mark for each transaction . 
	(c) Records of each sale, purchase , or transport of Hawai'i-grown coffee shall be retained for a minimum of six years." [Eff and comp 5/24/14; am and 
	comp .] (Auth : §147-4) (Imp : §147 -4) 
	2. Material, except source notes, to be repealed is bracketed and sticken. New material is underscored . 
	3 
	3 
	3 
	. Additi ons to update source notes to reflect these amendments and compilation are not underscored. 

	4 
	4 
	. These amendments to and compilation of chapter 4-l43, Hawaii Administrative Rules shall take effect ten days after filing with the Office of the Lieutenant Governor . 


	I certify that the foregoing are copies of the rules , drafted in the Ramseyer format pursuant to the requirements of section 91-4 . 1, Hawaii Revised statutes, which were adopted on Month xx, XXXX, and filed with the Office of the Lieutenant Governor. 
	~cott E. Enright Chairperson Board of Agriculture 
	APPROVED AS TO FORM : 




	SBRRB Apr. 19, 2017 Agenda Exhibit 3A OCR
	Structure Bookmarks
	Exhibit 3 .
	Rules Amending Title 11 .Hawaii Admini strative Rules .
	February 24 , 2014 .
	1 . Chapter 50 of Title 11 , Hawaii Administrative Rules, entitled "Food Safety Code" is amended and compiled to read as follows : 
	"HAWAII ADMINISTRATIVE RULES .TITLE 11 .DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH .CHAPTER 50 .FOOD SAFETY CODE .
	Subchapter 1 General Provisions 
	§11-50-1 
	§11-50-1 
	§11-50-1 
	Purpose 

	§11-50-2 
	§11-50-2 
	Definitions 

	§11-50-3 
	§11-50-3 
	Permits, 
	special events, 
	homemade 
	food 

	TR
	products and 
	hand-pounded 
	poi, 
	and 

	TR
	exemptions 

	§11-50-4 
	§11-50-4 
	Permit application and supporting 

	TR
	documentation 

	§11-50-5 
	§11-50-5 
	Repealed 

	§11-50-6 
	§11-50-6 
	Repealed 

	§11-50-7 
	§11-50-7 
	Fees 

	§11-50-8 
	§11-50-8 
	I nspection 
	and correction of violations 

	§11-50-9 
	§11-50-9 
	Placarding 

	§11-50-10 
	§11-50-10 
	Embargo 
	and 
	detent ion 

	§11-50-11 
	§11-50-11 
	Prevention of foodborne 
	disease 

	TR
	transmission by employees 

	§11-50-12 
	§11-50-12 
	Permit 
	suspension 

	§11-50-13 
	§11-50-13 
	Variances 

	§11-50-14 
	§11-50-14 
	Penalties and 
	remedies 

	§11-50-15 
	§11-50-15 
	Severability 

	§§11-50-16 to 
	§§11-50-16 to 
	11-50-19 
	(Reserved) 


	Subchapter 2 Personnel 
	Subchapter 2 Personnel 
	Subchapter 3 Food 

	§11-50-20 
	§11-50-20 
	§11-50-20 
	Supervision 

	§11-50-21 
	§11-50-21 
	Employee 
	health 

	§11-50-22 
	§11-50-22 
	Personal cleanliness 

	§11-50-23 
	§11-50-23 
	Hygienic practices 

	§§11-50-24 
	§§11-50-24 
	to 
	11-50-29 
	(Reserved) 


	§11-50-30 Characteristics §11-50-31 Source, specifications for receiving, original containers and records §11-50-32 Protection from contamination after receiving §11-50-33 Destruction of organisms of public health concern §11-50-34 Limitation of growth of organisms of public health concern §11-50-35 Food identity, presentation, and on-premises labeling 
	§11-50-36 Contaminated food 
	§11-50-37 Special requirements for highly suscept ible populations §§11-50-38 to 11-50-44 (Reserved) 
	Subchapter 4 Equipment, Utensils , and Linens 
	§11-50-45 Materials for construction and repair 
	§11-50-4 6 Design and construction 
	§11-50-47 Numbers and capacities 
	§11-50-48 Location and installation 
	§11-50-4 9 Maintenance and operation 
	§11-50-50 Cleaning of equipment and utensils 
	§11-50-51 Sanitization of equipment and utensils 
	§11-50-52 Laundering 
	§11-50-53 Protection of clean items 
	§§11-50-54 to 11-50-59 (Reserved) 
	Subchapter 5 Water, Plumbing, and Waste 
	§11-50-60 Water 
	§11-50-61 Plumbing system 
	§11-50-62 Repealed 
	§11-50'-63 Sewage, other liquid waste, and rainwater 
	§11-50-64 Refuse, recyclables, and returnables §§11-50-65 to 11-50-69 (Reserved) 
	Subchapter 6 Physical Facilities 
	§11-50-70 
	§11-50-70 
	§11-50-70 
	Materials 
	for construction and 
	repair 

	§11-50-71 
	§11-50-71 
	Design, 
	construction, 
	and installation 

	§11-50-72 
	§11-50-72 
	Numbers 
	and 
	capacities 

	§11-50-73 
	§11-50-73 
	Location and placement 

	§11-50-74 
	§11-50-74 
	Maintenance 
	and operation 

	§§11-50-75 
	§§11-50-75 
	to 
	11-50-79 
	(Reserved) 


	Subchapter 7 Poisonous or Toxic Materials 
	§11-50-80 Labeling and identification §11-50-81 Operational supplies and applications §11-50-82 Stock and retail sal e §§11-50-83 to 11-50-84 (Reserved) 
	Subchapter 8 Mobile Food Establishments -Repealed 
	§§11-50-85 to 11-50-94 Repealed 
	Subchapter 9 Temporary Food Establishments Repealed 
	§§11-50-95 to. 11-50-104 Repealed 
	Historical Note : Chapter 11-50, Hawaii Administrative Rules is based substantially on Chapter 11-12, Food Establishment Sanitation, Department of 'Health, State of Hawaii. [Eff 11/22/96; comp 3/15/99; comp 6/15/2007; R 2/24/14 ] 
	SUBCHAPTER 1 
	GENERAL PROVISIONS 
	§11-50-1 Purpose . The purpose of this chapter is to provide minimum requirements for the protection of the life, health, safety, and welfare of the general public . 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	This chapter applies to all food establishments, or portions thereof, used, designed, or intended to be used as a food establishment or food operation within the State; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	The minimum requirements established herein shall not be construed as lowering the standards established by local ordinances or rules; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Whenever local requirements contain more stringent provisions than a ny of the minimum requirements of this chapter, the more stringent requirements shall govern; and 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	No ordinance, rules, ruling, or decision of any municipal body or officer of authority of any county shall r epeal, amend, modify, or dispense with any of the minimum requirements provided in this chapter . [Eff 2/24/2014; comp 


	(Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11 ) 
	§11-50-2 Definitions. As used in this chapter : "Adulterated" has the meaning stated in section 402 of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act . 
	"Approved" means acceptable to the department based on a determination of conformity with principles, practices, and generally recognized standards that protect public health . 
	"Asymptomatic" means without obvious symptoms; not showing or producing indications of a disease or other medical condition, such as an individual infected with a pathogen but not exhibiting or producing any signs or symptoms of vomiting, diarrhea, or jaundice . Asymptomatic includes not showing symptoms because symptoms have resolved or subsided, or because symptoms never manifested. 
	"Aw" means water activity which is a measure of the free moisture in a food, is the quotient of the water vapor pressure of the substance divided by the vapor pressure of pure water at the same temperature, and is indicated by the symbol Aw . 
	means an embryo inside a fertile egg that has been incubated for a period sufficient for the embryo t o reach a specific stage of development after which it is removed from incubation before hatching. 
	"Balut
	11 

	me ans a l iquid for drinking, including water. 
	"Beverage
	11 

	means water that is sealed in bottles, packages, or other containers and offered for sale for human consumption, including bottled mineral water. 
	"Bottled drinking water
	11 

	means a tubular container for sausage products made of either natural or artificial (synthetic) material. 
	"Casing
	11 

	means a unique combination of letters and numbers assigned by a shellfish control authority to a molluscan shellfish deal er according to the provisions of the National Shellfish Sanitation Program. 
	"Certification number
	11 

	means the [2009] 2013 Code of Federal Regulations. Citations in this chapter to the CFR refer sequentially to the Title, Part, and Section numbers, such as, 40 CFR 180.194 refers to Title 40, Part 180, Section 194. 
	"CFR
	11 

	means cleaned in place by the circulation or flowing by mechanical means through a piping system of a detergent solution, water rinse, and sanitizing solution onto or over equipment surfaces that require cleaning, such as the method used, in part, to clean and saniti ze a frozen dessert machine. The term does not include the cleaning of equipment s uch as band saws, slicers, or mixers that are subjected to in-place manual cleaning without the use of a CIP system. 
	"CIP
	11 

	has the meaning stated in the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, section 201(t) and 21 CFR 70. 3 (f). 
	"Color additive
	11 

	means: 
	"Commingle
	11 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	To combine shellstock harvested on different days or from different growing areas as identified on the tag or label; or 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	To combine shucked shellfish from containers with different container codes or different shucking dates . 


	means reduced in size by methods including chopping, flaking, grinding, or mincing. Comminuted includes fish or meat products that are reduced in size and restructured or reformulated such as gefilte fish, gyros , ground beef, and sausage; a nd a mixture of two 
	"Comminuted
	11 

	or more types of meat that have been reduced in size and 
	combined, such as sausages made from two or more meats . 
	"Conditional employee" means a potenti~l food employee to whom a job offer is made, conditional on responses to subsequent medical questions or examinations designed to identify potential food employees who may be suffering from a disease that can be transmitted through food and done in compliance with Title 1 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 . 
	"Confirmed disease outbreak" means a foodborne disease outbreak in which laboratory analysis of appropriate specimens identifies a causative agent and epidemiological analysis implicates the food as the source of the illness. 
	"Consumer" means a person who is a member of the public, takes possession of food, is not functioning in the capacity of an operator of a food establishment or food processing plant, and does not offer the food for resale . 
	"Corrosion-resistant material" means a material that maintains acceptable surface cleanability characteristics under prolonged influence of the food to be contacted, the normal use of cleaning compounds and sanitizing solutions , and other condi tions of the use environment . 
	"Counter-mounted equipment" means equipment t hat is not portable and is designed to be mounted off the floor on a table, counter, or shelf. 
	means a point or procedure in a specific food system where loss of control may result in an unacceptable heal th risk. 
	"Critical control point
	11 

	"Critical limit" means the maximum or minimum value to which a physical, biological, or chemical parameter must be controlled at a critical control point to minimize the risk that the identified food safety hazard may occur. 
	means fresh leafy greens whose leaves have been cut, shredded, sliced, chopped, or torn . The term "leafy greens" includes iceberg lettuce, romaine lettuce, leaf lettuce, butter lettuce, baby leaf lettuce 
	"Cut leafy greens
	11 

	(i . e . , immature lettuce or l eafy greens), escarole, endive, spring mix, spinach, cabbage, kale, arugula, and chard. does not include herbs such as cilantro or parsley. 
	The term "leafy greens
	11 

	"Dealer" means a person who is aut horized by a shellfish control authority for the activities of shellstock shipper, shucker-packer, repacker, reshipper, or depuration processor of molluscan shellfish according to 
	the provisions of the National Shellfish Sanitation Program. "Department" means the department of health, State of Hawaii. 
	"Director" means the director of health of the department of health, State of Hawaii, or an authorized representative. 
	"Disclosure" means a written statement that clearly identifies the animal-derived foods which are, or can be ordered, raw, undercooked, or without otherwise being processed to eliminate pathogens, or items that contain an ingredient that is raw, undercooked, or without otherwise being processed to eliminate pathogens . 
	"Drinking water" means water that meets criteria as specified in 40 CFR 141, entitl ed "National primary drinking water regulations", and is traditionally known as except where the term used connotes t hat the wat er i s not potable, such as "boiler water", "mop water", "rainwater", "wastewater", and "nondrinking" water . 
	"potable water" . Drinking water includes the term "water
	11 

	"Dry storage area" means a room or area designated for the storage of packaged or containerized bul k food that is not potentially hazardous (time/temperature control for safety food) and dry goods such as single-service items . 
	"Easily cleanable" means a characterist ic of a surface that: 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Allows effective removal of soil by normal cleaning methods; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Is dependent on the materiai, design, construction, and installation of the surface; and 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Varies with the likelihood of the surface ' s role in introducing pathogenic or toxigenic agents or other contaminants into food based on the surface's approved placement, purpose, and use . 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	(4) .
	Easily cleanable includes a tiered application of the criteria that qualify the surface as easily cleanable as specified in paragraph (1) to different situati ons in which varying degrees of cleanability are required such as : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	The appropriateness of stainless steel for a food preparation surface as opposed to the lack of need for stainless steel to be used for floors or for tables used for consumer dining; or 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	The need for a different degree of cleanability for a utilitarian attachment or accessory in the kitchen as opposed to a decorative attachment or accessory in the consumer dining area . 




	["Easily movableu means : 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Portable; mounted on ca sters, gliders, or rollers; or provided with a mechanical means to safely tilt a unit of equipment for cleaning; and 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Having no utility connection, a utility connection that disconnects quickly, or a flexible utility connection line of sufficient length to allow the equipment to be moved for cleaning of the equipment and adjacent area .] 


	"Eggu means the shell egg of avian species such as chicken, duck, goose, guinea, quail, ratites , or turkey. [(l)J Egg does not include : 
	[(A) ] .ill A balut; 
	[( B)J .ill The egg of reptile species such as 
	alligator; or 
	((C)] .ill An egg product. 
	"Egg productu means all , or a portion of, the contents found inside eggs separated from the shell and pasteurized in a food processing plant, with or without added ingredients, intended for human consumption, such as dried, frozen, or liquid eggs. The term does not include food which contains eggs only in a relatively small proportion s uch as cake mixes . 
	"Employeeu means the (permit holder,] owner or operator, person i n charge, food employee, person having supervisory or management duties, person on the payroll , family member, volunteer, person performing work under contractual agreement, or other person working in a food establishment . 
	("Enterohemorrhagic Escherichia Colin (EHEC) means E. Coli which cause hemorrhagic colitis, meaning bleeding enterically or bleeding from the intestine. The term is typically used in association with E. Coli that has the capacity to produce Shiga toxins and to cause attaching and effacing lesions in the intestine . EHEC is a subset of STEC, whose members produce additional virulence factors. Infections with EHEC may be asymptomatic but are classically associated with bloody diarrhea (hemorrhagic colitis) an
	026:Hll; E. Coli 0145 : NM; E. Coli 0103:H2; or E. Coli 
	0111 : NM . See also Shiga toxin-producing E. Coli . ] 
	"EPA" means the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. 
	"Equipment" means an article that is used in the operation of a food establishment such as a freezer, 
	grinder, hood, ice maker, meat block, mixer, oven, reach-in 
	refrigerator, scale, sink, slicer, stove, table, 
	temperature measuring device for ambient air, vending machine, or warewashing machine. ["Equipment"] This does 
	not include apparatuses used for handling or storing large 
	quantities of packaged foods that are received from a 
	supplier in a cased or overwrapped lot, such as hand 
	trucks, forklifts , dollies, pallets, racks, and skids. 
	"Exclude" means to prevent a person from working as an employee in a food est ablishment or entering a food establishment as an employee. 
	"FDA" means the U.S. Food and Drug Administration. 
	"Fish" means fresh or saltwater finfish, crustaceans and other forms of aquatic life (including alligator, frog, aquatic turtle, jellyfish, sea cucumber, and sea urchin and the roe of such animals) other than birds or mammals , and all mollusks, if such animal life is intended for human consumption. Fish includes an edible human food product derived in whole or in part from fish , including fish that have been processed in any manner . 
	"Food" means a raw, cooked, or processed edible substance, ice, beverage, or ingredient used or intended for use or for sale in whole or in part for human consumption, or chewing gum. 
	"Food additive" has the meaning stated in the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, section 20l(s) a nd 21 CFR 170.3(e)(l) . 
	"Food-contact surface" means : 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	A surface of equipment or a utensil with which food normally comes into contact; or 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	A surface of equipment or a utensil from which food may drain, drip, or splash: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	I nto a food; or 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Onto a surface normally in contact with food . 




	"Food employee" means an individual working with unpackaged food, food equipment or utensils, or foodcontact surfaces . 
	"Food establishment" means : 
	(1) .Any place or portion thereof, maintained, used, or operated f or the purpose of storing , 
	preparing, serving, manufacturing, packaging, transporting, or otherwise handling food [at the] for distribution at retail or wholesale [level;] to the public; and 
	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	Any place or portion thereof, used [for cleaning food equipment or utensils] in support of [another] and in conjunction with any other food establishment [; and 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Any operation that is conducted in or in conjunction with a mobile, stati onary, temporary, or permanent facility or location where food is served or prov"ided to the public, with or without charge, regardless of whether the food is consumed on or off the premises]. 


	"Food processing plant" means a commercial operation that manufactures , packages, labels, or stores food for human consumption, and provides food for sale or distribution to other business entities s uc h as f ood processing plants or food establishments . 
	"Game animal" means an animal, the products of which a r e food, t hat is not classified as livestock, s heep, swine, goat, horse, mule, or other equine in 9 CFR 301 . 2, entitled "Definitions", or as poultry, or fish . 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Game animals includes mammals such as reindeer, e lk, deer, antelope, water buffalo, bison, rabbit, squirrel, opossum, raccoon, nutria, or muskrat, and nonaquatic reptiles such as land snakes . 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Game animals does not include ratites . 


	"General use pesticide" means a pesticide that is not classified by EPA for restricted use as specified in 40 CFR 152.175, entitled "Pesticides classified for restricted use" . 
	"Grade A standards" means the requirements of the United States Public Health Service/FDA "Grade A Pasteurized Milk Ordinance" with which certain fluid and dry milk and milk products comply. 
	"HACCP" means Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point. 
	"HACCP plan" means a written document that delineates the formal procedures for following the hazard analysis and critical control point principles developed by The National Advisory Committee on Microbiological Criteria for Foods. 
	"Hand-pounded poi" means a product made from the process of manually pulverizing cooked taro with a stone 
	"Hand-pounded poi" means a product made from the process of manually pulverizing cooked taro with a stone 
	implement on a wooden board designed for the purpose of 

	pounding poi . 
	"Handwashing sinku means a lavatory, a basin or vessel for washing, a wash basin, or a plumbing f i xture especially placed for use in personal hygiene and designed for the washing of the hands. A handwashing sink includes an automatic handwashi ng facility. 
	"Hazardu means a biological, chemical, or physical property t hat may cause an unacceptable consumer health risk. 
	"Health practitioneru means a physician licensed to practice medicine, or if allowed by law, a nurse practitioner, physician assistant, or similar medical professional . 
	"Hermetically sealed containeru means a container t hat i s designed and intended to be secure against the entry of microorganisms and , in the case of low acid canned foods , to maintain the commercial sterility of its contents after processing. 
	"Highly susceptible populationu means persons who are more likely than other people in t he general population to experience foodborne disease because they are: 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Inununocompromi sed; preschool age children, or ol der adults; and 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Obtaining food at a facility that provides servi ces such as custodial care, health care, or assisted living, such as a child or adult day care center, kidney dialysis center, hospital or nursing home , or nutritional or sociali zation services such as a senior center . 


	["HRSu means Hawai i Revised Sta t utes .] "Home kitchen" means a kitchen designed for , and intended to be used by, the residents of a private home. ["Homeless" means : 
	(1 ) An individual or f amily who lacks a fixed, regular, and adequate night-time residence; or 
	(2) .An individual or family who has a primary night-time res idence that is: 
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	A supervised publicl y or privately operated shelter designed to provide temporary living accommodations ; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	An institution that provides temporary residence for i ndivi duals intended to be i nstitutionalized; or 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	A public or private place not designed for or ordinarily used as sleeping accommodations for human beings . 


	This .term does not include any individual imprisoned or 
	otherwise detained under an Act of Congress or a state 
	law. ] 
	"Homemade food products" means not potentially hazardous food produced or packaged in a home kitchen but does not include fermented foods, acidified foods, canned or bottled foods (other t han jams and jellies), dri ed meats or seafood, low acid canned foods and garlic in oil. 
	"HRS" means the Hawaii Revised Statutes . 
	"Imminent health hazard" means a significant threat or danger to health that is considered to exist when there ·is evidence sufficient to show that a product, practice, circumstance, or event creates a situation that requir es immediate correction or cessation of. operation to prevent injury based on : 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	The number of potential injuries; and 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	The nature, severity, and duration of the anticipated injury. 


	"Injected" means manipulating meat to which a solut ion has been introduced into its interior by processes that are referred to as "injecting", "pump marinat ing", or "stitch pumping" . 
	"Juice" means the aqueous liquid expressed or extracted from one or more fruits or veget ables, purees of the edible portions of one or more fruits or vegetables, or any concentrates of such l iquid or puree. The term does not include, for purposes of HACCP, liquids, purees, or concentrates that are not used as beverages or i ngredients of beverages . 
	" Kitchenware" means food preparation and storage utensils . "Law" means applicable local, state, and federal statutes, regulations, rules, and ordinances . 
	"Linens" means fabric items such as cloth hampers, c l oth napkins, table cloths, wiping cloths, and work garments including cloth gloves . 
	"Major food allergen" : 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Means : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Milk, egg, fish (such as bass, flounder, cod, and including crustacean shellf ish such as crab, lobster, or shrimp), tree nuts (such as almonds, pecans, or walnuts), wheat, peanuts, and soybeans ; or 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	A food ingredient that cont ain s protein derived from a food as specifi ed in subparagraph (A); 



	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	Major food allergen does not incl ude: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Any highly refined oil derived from a food specified in paragraph (1) (A) and any ingredient derived from such highly refined oil; or 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Any ingredient that is exempt under the petition or notification process specified in the Food Allergen Labeling and Consumer Protection Act of 2004 (Public Law 108-282) . 




	"Meat" means the flesh of animals used as food including the dressed flesh of cattle, s wine, sheep, or goats and other edible a ni mals, except f ish, poultry, and wild game animals as specified in section 11-50-31 (g) (1) (C) . 
	"Mechanically tenderized" means manipulating mea t with deep penetration by processes which may be referred to as "blade tenderizing", "jaccarding", "pinning", "needling", or using blades, pins, needles or any mechanical device. The term does not i nc lude processes by which solutions are injected into me at . 
	"Menu change" means a modification of a food establi s hment's menu that would require a change in the food establishment's food preparation methods, e quipment, or storage capacity previously approved by the [department . ] director. These changes may include but are not limited to, the addition of potentially hazardous foods to a menu, installation of new food preparation or storage equipment, or increasing storage capacity . 
	"mg/L" means milligrams per liter, which is t he metric equivalent of parts per million (ppm). 
	["Mobile food establishment" means a vehicle-mounted food establishment capable of being readily moved that operates in conjunction with an approved food establishment . This includes but is not limited to, licensed trailer-type vehicles, push carts, lunchwagons, tour cruise boats and peddlers.] 
	"Molluscan shellfish" means any edible species of fresh or frozen oysters, clams, mussels, and scallops or edible portions thereof, except when the scallop product consists only of the shucked adductor muscle . 
	"Natural disasteru means any disaster such as a tsunami, hurricane, volcanic eruption, typhoon, ea rthquake, or flood . 
	"Non-continuous cookingu means the cooking of food in a food establishment using a process in which the initial heating of the food is intentionally halted so that it may be cooled and held for complete cooking at a later time prior to sale or service . The t erm does not include cooking procedures that only involve temporarily interrupting or slowing an otherwise continuous cooking process . 
	"Owne ru means a pe rson who has vested rights i n equity or at law in the real property or proprietary interests of the food establishment or any part of it. 
	"Operatoru means the person responsible for the overall management of the food establishment. 
	"Packagedu means bottled, canned, cartoned, [securely] bagged, or [se curely] wrapped, whether pa ckaged i n a food establishment or a food processing plant . The term does not include [a wrapper, carry-out box, or other nondurable container used to contai neri ze food with the purpose of facilitating food protection during service and receipt of the food by the consumer . ) food wrapped or placed in a carry-out container to protect it dur i ng service or delivery to t he consumer by a food employee . 
	"Permitu means the document issued by the [department] director t hat authorizes a person to operate a food establi s hment . 
	"Permit holderu means the entity that : 
	(1) .I s legally responsible for the operation of the food establishment such as the owner, the owner ' s agent, or other person; and 
	(2 ) .Possesses a valid permit to operate a food establishment . 
	" Personu means an association, a corporation, i ndividua l, partnership, other legal entity, government, or governmental subdivision or agency. 
	"Personal care itemsu means items or substances that may be poisonous, toxic, or a source of contamination and are used to ma intain or enhance a person' s health, hygiene , or appearance . Personal care items include medicines; first aid supplies; and other items such as cosmetics, a nd toiletries such as toothpaste and mouthwash . 
	"Per son in chargeu means the individual present at a food establishment who is responsible for the operation at the time of inspection. 
	"pH" means the symbol for the negative logarithm of the hydrogen ion concentration, which is a measure of the degree of acidity or alkalinity of a solution. Values between zero and seven indicate acidity and values between seven and fourteen indicate alkalinity. The value for pure distilled water is seven, which is considered neutral. 
	"PHF" means potentially hazardous food . 
	"Physical facilities" means the structure and interior surfaces of a food establishment including accessories such as soap and towel dispensers and attachments such as light fixtures and heating or air conditioning system vents . 
	"Plumbing fixture" means a receptacle or device that : 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Is permanently or temporarily connected to the water distribution system of the premises and demands a s upply of water from the system; or 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Discharges used water, waste materi als, or sewage directly or indirectly to the drainage system of the premises. 


	" Plumbing system" means the water supply and distribution pipes; plumbing fixtures and traps; soil, waste, and vent pipes; sanitary and stor m sewers and building drains, including their respective connections, devices, and appurtenances within the premises; and watertreating equipment . 
	"Poisonous or toxic materials" means substance s that are not intended for ingestion and are included in four categories : 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Cleaners and sanitizers, which incl ude cleaning and sanitizing agents and agent s such as caustics, acids, drying agents, polishes, and other chemicals; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Pesticides, except sanitizers, which incl ude substances s uch as insecticides and rodenticides; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Substances necessary for the operat ion and maintenance of the establishment such as nonfood grade lubricants and personal care items that may be deleterious to health; and 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	Substances that are not necessary for the operation and maintenance of the establishment and are on the premises for retail sale, such as petroleum products and paints . 


	"Potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food)" means a food that requires time/temperature c ontrol for safety (TCS) to limit pathogenic microorganism growth or toxin formation . 
	(1) .Potentially hazardous food includes: 
	(A) .An animal food that is raw or heat treated; a plant food that is heat treated or consists of raw seed sprouts, cut melons, cut leafy greens, cut tomatoes or mixtures of cut tomatoes that are not modified i n a way so that they are unable to support pathogenic microorganism growth or toxin formation , or garlic-in-oil mixtures that are not modified in a way so that they are unable to support pathogenic microorganism growth or toxin formation; and 
	(Bl .Except as specified in paragraph (2) (D), a food that because of the interaction of its Aw and pH values is designated as Product Assessment Required (PA) in Table 2-1 or Table 2-2 : 
	Table 2-1 Interaction of pH and Aw for control of spores in food heat-treated to destroy vegetative cells and subsequently packaged 
	Table 2-1 Interaction of pH and Aw for control of spores in food heat-treated to destroy vegetative cells and subsequently packaged 
	Table 2-1 Interaction of pH and Aw for control of spores in food heat-treated to destroy vegetative cells and subsequently packaged 

	A,., values 
	A,., values 
	pH values 

	4 . 6 or less 
	4 . 6 or less 
	> 4 . 6 to 5 . 6 
	> 5.6 

	~0.92 
	~0.92 
	non-PHF/nou-TCS food 
	non-PHF/non-TCS food 
	non-PHF/non-TCS food 

	>0.92 to 0.95 
	>0.92 to 0.95 
	non-PHF/non-TCS food 
	non-PHF/non-TCS food 
	PA 

	>0 . 95 
	>0 . 95 
	non-PHF/non-TCS food 
	PA 
	PA 


	Table 2-2 Interaction of pH and Aw for control of vegetative cells and spores in food not heat-treated or heat-treated but not packaged 
	A,., values 
	A,., values 
	A,., values 
	pH values 

	< 4.2 
	< 4.2 
	4.2 to 4 . 6 
	> 4 . 6 to 5.0 
	> 5.0 

	<0 . 88 
	<0 . 88 
	non-PHF/non-TCS food 
	non-PHF/non-TCS food 
	non-PHF/non-TCS food 
	non-PHF/non-TCS food 

	0.88 to 0.90 
	0.88 to 0.90 
	non-PHF/non-TCS food 
	non-PHF/non-TCS food 
	non-PHF/non-TCS food 
	PA 

	>0.90 to 0 . 92 
	>0.90 to 0 . 92 
	non-PHF/non-TCS food 
	non-PHF/non-TCS food 
	PA 
	PA 

	>0.92 
	>0.92 
	non-PHF/non-TCS food 
	PA 
	PA 
	PA 


	(2) .Potentially hazardous food does not include : 
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	An air-cooled hard-boiled egg with shell intact, or an egg with shell intact that is not hard-boiled, but has been pasteurized to destroy all viable salmonellae; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	A food in an unopened hermetically sealed container that is commercially processed to achieve and maintain commercial sterility under conditions of non-refrigerated storage and distribution; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	A food that because of its pH or Aw value, or interaction of Aw and pH values, is designated as a non-PHF/non-TCS food in Table 2-1 or Table 2-2 of this definition; 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	(D) .
	A food that is designated as Product Assessment Required (PA) in Table 2-1 or Table 2-2 of this definition and has undergone a Product Assessment showing that the growth or toxin formation of pathogenic microorganisms that are reasonably likely to occur i n that food is precluded due to : 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Intrinsic factors including added or natural characteristics of t he food such as preservatives, antimicrobials, hurnectants, acidulants, or nutrients ; 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	Extrinsic factors including envir onmental or operational factors that affect the food such as packaging, modified atmosphere such as reduced oxygen packaging, shelf life and use, or temperature range of storage and use; or 


	(iii) A combination of intrinsic and extrinsi c factors; or 

	(E) .
	(E) .
	A food that does not support the growth or toxin formation of pathogenic microorganisms in accordance with one of the paragraph (2) (A}, (2) (B), (2) (C), or 


	(2) (D) of this definition even though the food may contain a pathogenic microorganism or chemical or physical contaminant at a level sufficient to cause illness or injury . 
	"Poultry" means : 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Any domesticated bird (chickens, turkeys, ducks, geese, guineas, ratites, or squabs) , whether l ive or dead, as defined in 9 CFR 381 . 1; and 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Any migratory waterfowl or game bird, pheasant, partridge, quail, grouse, or pigeon, whether live or dead, as defined in 9 CFR 362 . 1 . 


	"Premises" means: 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	The physical facility, its contents, and the contiguous land or property under the control of the [permit holder;] owner or operator; or 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	The physical facility, its contents, and the land or property not described in paragraph (1) if its facilities and contents are under the control of the [permit holder] owner or operator and may impact food establishment personnel, facilities, or operations, and a food est abl ishment is only one component of a larger operation such as a health care facility, hotel, motel, school, recreational camp, or prison. 


	"Primal cut" means a basic major cut into which carcasses and sides of meat are separated, such as a beef round, pork loin, lamb flank, or veal breast . 
	"Public water system" has ~he meaning stated in 40 CFR 141, entitled "National primary drinking water regulations" . 
	" Ratite" means a flightless bird such as an emu, ostrich, or rhea. "Reduced oxygen packaging": 
	(1) .Means: 
	(A) .The reduction of the amount of oxygen in a package by removing oxygen; displacing oxygen and replacing it with another gas or combination of gases; or otherwise controlling the oxygen content to a level below that normally found in the atmosphere 
	(approximately twenty-one per cent at sea level); and 
	(B) .A process as specified i n subparagraph (A) that involves a food for which the hazards Clostridium botulinum or Listeria monocytogenes require control in the final packaged form; 
	(2) .Reduced oxygen packaging includes : 
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Vacuum packaging, in which air is removed from a package of food and the package is 

	hermetically sealed so that a vacuum remains inside the package; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Modified atmosphere packaging, in which the atmosphere of a package of food is modified so t hat its composition is different from air but the atmosphere may change over time due to the permeability of the packaging material or the respiration of the food. Modified atmosphere packaging includes reduction in the proportion of oxygen, total replacement of oxygen, or an increase in the proportion of other gases such as carbon dioxide or nitrogen; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Controlled atmosphere packaging, in which the atmosphere of a package of food is modified so that until the package is opened, its composition is different from air, and continuous control of that atmosphere is maintained, such as by using oxygen scavengers or a combination of total replacement of oxygen, nonrespiring food, and impermeable packaging material; 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	Cook chill packaging, i n which cooked food is hot filled into impermeable bags which have the air expelled and are then sealed or crimped c l osed . The bagged food is rapidly chill ed and refrigerated at temperatures that inhibit the growth of psychrotrophic pathogens; or 

	(E) .
	(E) .
	Sous vide packaging, in which raw or partially cooked food is placed in a hermetically sealed, impermeable bag, cooked in the bag, rapidly chilled, and refrigerated at temperatures that inhibit the growth of psychrotrophic pathogens . 


	"Refuse" means solid waste not car ried by water through the sewage system. 
	"Regulatory authority" means the l ocal, state, or federal enforcement body or authorized representative having jurisdiction over the food establishment. 
	"Reminder" means a written statement concerning the health risk of consuming animal foods raw, undercooked, or without otherwise being processed to elimi nate pathogens. 
	"Re-service" means the transfer of food that is unused and returned by a consumer after being served or sold and in t he possession of the consumer, to another person. 
	"Restrictu means to limit the activities of a food 
	employee so that there is no risk of transmitting a disease 
	that .is transmissible through food and the food employee 
	does .not work with exposed food, clean equipment, utensils, 
	linens, or unwrapped single-service or single-use articles . 
	"Restricted eggu means any check, dirty egg, incubator reject, inedible, leaker, or loss as defined in 9 CFR 590. "Restricted use pesticideu means a pesticide product that contains the active ingredients specified in 40 CFR 
	152 . 175 , entitled "Pesticides classified for restri cted useu and that is limited to use by or under the direct supervision of a certified applicator . 
	"Risk" means the likelihood that an adverse health effect will occur within a population as a result of a hazard in a food . 
	" Safe material" means : 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	An article manufactured from or composed of materials that may not reasonably be expected to result, directly or indirectl y, in thei r becoming a component or otherwise affecting the characte ristics of any food; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	An additive that is used as specified in section 109 of the FedAral Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act; or 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Other materials that are not additives and that are used in conformity with applicable regulations of the Food and Drug Admi nistrat ion . 


	"Sanitizationu means the application of cumulative heat or chemicals on cleaned food-contact surfaces that, when evaluated for efficacy, is sufficient to yield a reduction of five logs, which is equal to a 99 . 999 pe r cent reduction, of representative disease microorganisms of public health importance . 
	"Sealed" means free of cracks or other openings that allow the entry or passage of moisture . 
	"Service animalu means an animal that meets the criteria as specified in 28 CFR 36, entitled "Nondiscrimination on the basis of disability in public places and commercial facilitiesu . 
	"Servicing areau means an operating base locat ion to which a mobile food establishment or transport ati on vehicle returns regularly for such things as vehicle and equipment cleaning, discharging liquid or solid wastes, refilling water tanks and ice bins, and boarding food . 
	"Sewagen means liquid waste containing animal or vegetable matter in suspension or solution and may include liqui ds containing chemicals in solution . 
	"Shellf ish control authorityn means a state, federal, foreign, tribal, or other government entity legally responsible for administering a program that includes certification of molluscan shellfish harvesters and dealers for interstate commerce. 
	"Shellstockn means raw, in-shell molluscan shellfish . 
	"Shiga toxin-producing Escherichia Colin (STEC) means any E. Coli capable of producing Shiga toxins [(also called verocytotoxins or "Shiga-liken toxins) . ] (also called verocytotoxins). STEC infections can be asymptomatic or may result in a spectrum of illness ranging from mil d nonbloody diarrhea, to hemorrhagic colitis (i . e . , blood diarrhea), to hemolytic uremic syndrome (HUS -a type of kidney failure). Examples of serotypes of STEC include [both 0157 and non-0157 E. Coli . Also see Enterohemorrhagi
	E . coli 0157 : NM; E. coli 026 :Hll; E . coli 0145:NM; E . coli 0103 : H2; and E . coli 0111 : NM . STEC are sometimes referred to as VTEC (verocytotoxigenic E . coli) or as EHEC 
	(Enterohemorrhagic E. coli) . EHEC are a subset of STEC of which can cause hemorrhagic colitis or HUS . "Shucked shellfishn means molluscan shellfish that have one or both shell s removed. 
	"Single-servi ce articlesn means tableware, carry-out utensils, and other items such as bags, containers, placemats, stirrers, straws, toothpicks, and wrappers t hat are designed and constructed for one time, one person use after which they are intended for discard. 
	"Si ngle-use articlesn means utensils and bulk food containers designed and constructed to be used once and discarded. Single-use articles include items such as wax paper, butcher paper, plastic wrap, formed aluminum food containers, jars, plastic tubs or buckets, bread wrappers, pickle barrels, ketchup bottles, and number 10 cans which do not meet the materials, durability, strength, and cleanability specifications in sections 11-50-45(a) and 11-50-46(a) and (c) for multiuse utensils . 
	"Slackingn means the process of moderating the temperature of a food such as allowing a food to gradually increase from a temperature of minus ten degrees Fahrenheit to twenty-five degrees Fahrenheit in preparation for deepfat frying or to facilitate even heat penetration during the cooking of previously block-frozen food such as shrimp . 
	"Smooth" means : 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	A food-contact surface having a surface free of pits and inclusions with a cleanability equal to or exceeding that of (100 grit) number 3 stainless steel; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	A nonfood-contact surface of equipment having a surface equal to that of conunercial grade hotrolled steel free of visible scale; and 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	A floor, wall, or ceiling having an even or level surface with no roughness or projections that renders it difficult to clean. 


	"Special event" means a planned activity where food is distributed to the public with or without charge at a single specified location held indoors or outdoors, in public or privately owned or leased premises, and may include a sporting event, carnival, fairs, farmer's markets, public exhibition, festival, religious organization function, parade or other similar gathering . 
	" State" means the State of Hawaii . 
	"Support kitchen" means a food est ablishment that provides facilities or services in support of another food establishment for cleaning, storage, food preparation, cooking, cooling, reheating, servicing water supply, or wastewater disposal. A private home kitchen shall not be used as an approved support kitchen. 
	"Tableware" means eating, drinking, and serving utensils for table use such as flatware includi ng forks , knives, and spoons; hollowware including bowls, cups, serving dishes, and tumblers ; and plates . 
	"TCS food" means time/temperature control for safety food . 
	"Temperature measuring device" means a thermometer, thermocouple, thermistor, or other device that indi cates t he temperature of food, air, or water. 
	["Temporary food establishment" means any food establishment which operates at a fixed location for a limited period of time and does not exceed twenty days i n any one hundred twenty day period and does not sell products to other food establishments . ) 
	"USDA" means the U. S. Department of Agriculture. 
	"Utensil" means a food-contact implement or container used in the storage, preparation, transportation, dispensing, sale, or service of food, such as kitchenware or tableware that is multiuse, single-service, or singleuse; gloves used in contact with food; temperature sensing probes of food temperature measuring devices; and probe
	t ype price or identification tags used in contact with 
	food . 
	"Variance" means a written document i ssued by the 
	[department] director that authorizes a modification or 
	waiver of one or more requirements of this chapter if, in 
	the opinion of the [department,] director, a health hazard 
	or nui sance will not result from the modification or 
	waiver . 
	"Vending machine" means a self-service device t hat, upon insertion of a coin, paper currency, token, card, or key, or by optional manual operation, dispenses unit servings of food in bulk or in packages without the necessity of replenishing the device between each vending operation . 
	" Vending machine location" means t he room, enclosure, space, or area where one or more vending machines are installed and operated and includes the storage areas and areas on the premises that are used to service and maintain the vending machines . 
	"Water activity" means the measure of the free moisture in a food, is the quotient of the water vapor pressure of the substance divided by the vapor pressure of pure water at Lhe same temperature , and is indicated by the symbol Aw , 
	"Whole-muscle, intact beef" means whole muscle beef that is not injected, mechanically tenderized, reconstructed, or scored and marinated, from which beef steaks may be cut . 
	"Warewashing" means t he cleaning and saniti zing of utensils and food-contact surfaces of equipment . [Eff 2/24/2014; am and comp ] (Auth : HRS §321
	11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-3 Permits[.] , special events, homemade food products and hand-pounded poi, and exemptions . (a) [A] Permits . No person may [not] operate a food establishment without a valid permit [to operate] issued by the [department . ] director, which shall remain valid for one year from the date of issuance unless suspended by the director, after which it shall become void unless renewed in accordance with section 11-50-4,except as otherwise provided in this section. [A permit shall be valid for one year afte
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	To 
	qualify for 
	a 
	permit, 
	an 
	appl icant shall: 

	( 1) 
	( 1) 
	Be 
	an 
	owner 
	of the 
	food 
	establishment 
	or 
	an 

	TR
	officer of the legal 
	ownership; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Acknowledge 
	that application for 
	an 
	issuance of 
	a 

	TR
	permit is in agreement 
	to be 
	familiar with and 

	TR
	operate in compliance with the 
	requirements of 

	TR
	the 
	chapter; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	As 
	specified in section 11-50-B(c), 
	agree 
	to 

	TR
	all ow access 
	to 
	the 
	food 
	est ablishment and 
	to 

	TR
	provide 
	any 
	requested information reasonably 

	TR
	necessary 
	to determine compliance 
	with this 

	TR
	chapter; 
	and 

	( 4) 
	( 4) 
	Pay 
	the applicable permit 
	f e es 
	at 
	the time 
	the 

	TR
	application is submit ted . ] 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	Special 
	events . 
	Any 
	person who 
	intends 
	to 


	operate a event may 
	ill 
	ill 
	ill 
	ill 
	food establishment in conjunction with a special 
	apply for a special event permit: A special event permit shall not be issued until the applicant has submitted documents and information i n accordance with, and otherwise conforms to, the requirements of section 11-50-4 . The director may issue a special event permit t o operate a food establishment in conjunct.ion with a special event only i f the documents and other information provided pursuant to section 11-50-4, or otherwise r equested by the direc t or, are consistent with the protection of public he
	J.£.L Homemade food products and hand-pounded poi . Any. person who operates a food establ ishment that produces or packages only homemade food products in a home kitchen or only produces hand-pounded poi shall be exempt from the provisions of this chapter, except that they shall remain subject to inspection in accordance with section 11-50-8, the provisions of sections 11-50-10, 11-50-11, 11-50-14, and shall adhere to the fol lowing special conditions, violations of which shall constitut e violations of th
	ill .Obtain food safety certification in accordance with section ll-50-20(c); 
	Ql .Ensure that a handwashing sink with appropriate cleaning compound is avail able at all times during food preparation activities a nd is used to maint ain c l eanliness pursuant to secti ons 11-5022 (b) and (c) ;
	ill Label all food in accordance with the requirements of section ll-50-35(c); and ill Distribute food products only directly to the consumer . 
	[(c) A permit is not required for:] (d) Exemptions . The following food establishments shal l be exempt from the provisi ons of this chapter except that they shall remain subject to inspection i n accordance with section 11-50-8 , the provisions of sections 11-50-10, 11-50-11, and 11-5014 , and shall adhere to the following special conditions, violations of which shall constitute violations o·f this 
	chapter: 
	( 1 ) .[An establishment that offers only prepackaged foods that are not potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food) manufactured and packaged in an approved food establishment;) A food establishment that is inspected by another federal , state or county regulatory agency, provided that the agency has enter ed i nto a memorandum of understanding or a memorandum of agreement with the director and the agency ma intains regulatory responsibi lity for the establishment; 
	(2) .[A food establishment offers for sale only whole , uncut fresh fruits a nd vegetables; ) A food establishment that sells or otherwise distributes only prepackaged foods that are not potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food) manufactured and packaged in a food 


	SBRRB Apr. 19, 2017 Agenda Exhibit 3B1 OCR
	Structure Bookmarks
	establishment permitted by the director or 
	otherwise approved by an equivalent agency in 
	another jurisdiction; 
	(3) .
	(3) .
	(3) .
	[A kitchen in a private home, operating as a small family child-care provider, or a bed-andbreakfast operation that prepares and offers only not potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food) to guests if the home is owner occupied, the number of guests does not exceed six, and the consumer is informed by statements contained in publi shed advertisements , mailed brochures, and placards posted at the registration area that the food is prepared in a kitchen that is not regulated and i

	(4) .
	(4) .
	A food establishment that is inspected by another federal or Hawaii state or county regulatory agency, provided that a memorandum of understanding or a memorandum of agreement has been filed with the department and the agency assumes regul atory responsibility for the establishment; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	(5) 
	A producer of hand-pounded poi, where the producer : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Sells hand-pounded poi directly to the consumer ; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Has available a permanent or temporary hand-wash sink and adequate soap and disposable hand towels supplied, within ten feet of the operating area; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Label s each container of poi with the name and contact information of t he producer; 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	Labels each container of poi with a prominent and clear label stating that "This hand-pounded poi was not prepared in a Department of Health approved facility, and consuming this product may increase your risk of contracting a foodborne illnessn; 

	(E) .
	(E) .
	Attends a department of health approved food safety workshop and pass the food safety certifi cation exam; 

	(F) .
	(F) .
	Complies with any and a l l other measures aut horized by the director of health t o protect public health and safety with respect to hand-pounded poi; 




	(6)) A food establishment that [offers] sells or otherwise distributes only pre-packaged frozen confections produced in [an approved]~ food establishment permitted by the department or otherwise approved by an equivalent agency in another jurisdiction; [or food processing plant;] 
	[(7)] ill A food establishment that [offers] sells or otherwise distributes only not potentially hazardous hot beverages (such as coffee or hot tea) served directly into sanitary single-service articles; and 
	[(8) A establishment that offers only dry, not potentially hazardous, not ready-to-eat foods (such as dry beans, dry grains, coffee beans, tea leaves, or herbs for tea); or 
	(9) .Vending machines dispensing only pre-packaged food manufactured and packaged in an approved f ood establishment .]
	ill .A home kitchen operated by a child-care provider where food is served to no more than twelve children, or a home kitchen operated by an adultcare provider or bed-and-breakfast where food is served to no more than six guests, so long as the person in charge obtain~ food protection certification pursuant to section 11-50-20(c), food operations are limited to those risk categories enumerated in section 11-50-7(e) (1) 
	(4), and a placard remains posted at the registration area notifying any consumer that the food served is "Made in a home kitchen not routinely inspected by the Department of Healthn. [Eff 2/24/2014; am and comp {Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-4 Permit application, renewal and supporting documentation. {a) A permit to operate a food establishment, and any renewal of a permit to operate a food establishment, may [shall not] be issued [unless and until] after the department receives a complete appli cation on the forms provided by the department, as well as all necessary plans, menus, operating procedures, the required fee , other informa tion deemed necessary to access the operations of the proposed food establishment, and the preoperationa
	(b) For any new permit, or [converted existing food establishments,] the renewal of an existing permit, the applicant shall submit to the department : 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	A completed application for food establishment permit[;] or appli cation for renewal; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	The plans and specifications of the food establishment with an application for plan review, if requested by the department; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	A list of food items to be offered by the food establishment[;] ,if requested by the department; 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	A HACCP planL if requested by the department; [and] 

	(5) .
	(5) .
	Other information that may be required by the department to assure proper handling of food . Any documents detailing significant operational or menu changes anticipated or which have a l ready occurred; 


	Any documents detailing the operational agreement between a food establishment and a support kitchen, if applicable; and 
	ill .

	J_JJ__ .Any other information that may be r e quested by the department to ensure proper food handling. [(c) For existing food establishments, the department may renew a permit after : 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	A statement for renewal is submitted; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	The required fee is submitted; and 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	If a significant operational or menu change has occurred, an inspection shows that the establishment is in compliance with this chapter . 


	(d)J E For changes of ownership of food establishments, the [department] director may issue a permit to a new owner of an existing establishment after : 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	A completed application for food establishment is submitted; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	The required fee is submitted; and 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	An inspection shows that the establishment is in compliance with this chapter . 


	[(e)J ~ The department [shall not] may decli ne to act upon [nor consider] any incomplete application [for a food establi shment permit.]~ An application shall be deemed complete only when all required and requested information, including the appli cation form, plans, specifications, and other information have been [timely] submitted . 
	[(f)] M Every application shall be signed .e.y a person with authority to represent the food establishment' s 
	owner or operator and shall constitute an acknowledgment and agreement, that the applicant, and those the applicant represents, will comply with all t he t erms and conditions of this chapter . 
	[(g)] ill The department may require the submissi on of additional information after the application has been [submitted,] submitted and may [ensure that, if an application is incomplete or otherwise deficient, ] suspend t he processing of the application [shall not b e completed] until such time as t he applicant has supplied all required information or otherwise corrected the deficiency. 
	[(h)J .i9l The failure of the department to act on a completed application within t hirty days of the receipt of t he application shall be deemed an approval of the application; provide d tha t the applicant [acts consistently] has acted i n good faith with the application process and has submitted all requested information. 
	[(i)J ~ The department may request t hat an application for a food establishment permit be accompanied by plans and specifications includi ng but not limited t o : 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Intended menu; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Anticipated volume of food to be stored, prepared, and sold or served; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Proposed layout, mecha nical schematics, constructions materi als, and finish schedules; 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	Proposed equipment types, manufactures, model numbers, locations, dimensions, performance capacity, and installation specifications; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Evidence that standard procedures that ensure compliance wit h the requi rements of this chapter are developed or are deemed developed; 

	(6) .
	(6) .
	A wastewater generation statement if the food establishment will be connected to an i ndividual wastewater s ystem; 

	(7) .
	(7) .
	Wi ndow and door schedules for naturally ventilated food establishments; and 

	(8) .
	(8) .
	Other information t hat may be required by t he [director] departme nt for the proper review of the proposed constructi on, conversion, or 


	modification, and procedures for operating a food establishment . [(j)] ill Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point (HACCP) plan . 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	A HACCP plan shall accompany an application for a food establishment permit when : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	A variance is required as specified in section 11-50-33(a) (4) (D) , 11-50-34(j), or 11-50-4 6 (w) ( 2) ; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	A variance is requested[;] by the applicant; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	(C) .
	The [department] director determines that a [food preparation or processing me thod requires a variance] HACCP plan is needed 

	based on information submitted pursuant to an application for permit; or 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	Circumstances discovered during an inspection indi cate t he need for a HACCP plan. 



	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	For a food establishment that is required to have a HACCP plan, the plans and specifications shall indicate : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	A categorization of the types of 

	potentially hazardous foods (time/temperature control for safety foods) that are specified in the menu such as soups and sauces, salads , and bulk, solid foods such as meat roasts, or of other foods that are specified by the [department;] director; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	(B) .
	A flow diagram by specific food or risk category type identifying critical control points and providing information on the following : 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Ingredients , materials, and equipment used in the preparation of that food; and 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	Formulations or recipes that del ineate methods and procedural control measures that address the food safety concerns involved; 



	(C) .
	(C) .
	Food employee and supervisory training plan that addresses the food safety issues of concern; 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	(D) .
	A statement of standard operating procedures for the plan under consideration including clearly identifying : 

	(i) 
	(i) 
	(i) 
	Each critical control point; 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	The critical limits for each critical control point; 






	(iii) .The method and frequency for monitoring and controlling each 
	critical control point by the food employee designated by the person in charge; 
	(iv) .
	(iv) .
	(iv) .
	The method and frequency for the person in charge to routinely verify that the food employee is following standard operating procedures and monitoring critical control points; 

	(v) .
	(v) .
	Action t o be taken by the person in charge if the critical limits f or each critical control point are not met; and 

	(vi) .
	(vi) .
	Records to be maintained by the person in charge to demonstrate that the HACCP plan is properly operated and managed; and 


	(E) .Additional scientific data or other information, as required by the [department,] director, supporting the determination that food safety is not compromised by the proposal. 
	[(k)] ill The department [shall] may conduct one or more prcoperational inspP.r.tions to verify that the food establishment is constructed and equipped in accordance with the approved plans and approved modifications of those plans, has established standard operating procedures as specified in [section 11-50-4 (i) (5),] subsection (h) (5) , and is in compliance with this chapter and other laws. 
	[Eff 2/24/2014; am and comp (Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS. §321-11) 
	[§11-50-5 Special provisions regarding temporary food establishment . (a) Any person may operate a temporary food establishment if: 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	A completed appl ication for a temporary food establishment permit is submitted to the department and processed; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	That person has a temporary food establishment permit or a copy of an application recognized as a temporary food establishment permit that has been approved and signed by the director; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	The t emporary food establishment permit or the copy of the signed application is kept a t the site of the temporary operation and shall be made 


	available to any member of the public upon request; and 
	(4) .The temporary operation does not exceed twenty days in any one hundred twenty day period; 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	The completed application for a temporary food establishment permit shall be submitted at least ten business days prior to the opening date of the event . If this requirement is not met, the application for permit may not be reviewed and processed; 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	When a temporary food establishment extends operation beyond twenty days in any one hundred twenty day period, the requirements for a fixed food establishment shall be met and any continued operation without first obtaining for a fixed shall constitute the operation of a food establishment without a permit and a violation of this chapter. 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	All persons who intend to operate a temporary food establishment shall apply to the department of health to allow a hazard evaluation of the product and proposed operation (or at least to make an informed decision as to whether the food is potentially hazardous food or nonpotentially hazardous food) . If the food is nonpotentially hdzardous and there are no specific hazards which must be addressed, no permit will be required. ] 


	[Eff 2/24/2014; R ] (Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS §321-11) 
	(§11-50-6 Responsibilities of the permit holder . Upon acceptance of the permit issued by the department , the permit holder in order t o retain the permit shall: 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Post the permit in a location in t he food establishment that is conspicuous to consumers; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Comply with the provisions of this chapter including the conditions of a granted variance as specified in section ll-50-13(i), and approved plans as specified in section 11-50-4(i) ; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	If a food establishment is required in sect ion 11-50-4(j) (1) and (2) to operate under a HACCP pl an, comply with the plan as specified in section 11-50-13(i); 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	Immediately discontinue operations and notify the department if an imminent health hazard may exist as specified in section 11-50-S(i); 

	(5) .
	(5) .
	Allow representatives of the department access to the food establishment as speci fied in section 11-50-S(c); 

	(6) .
	(6) .
	(6) .
	Replace existing facilities and equipment with facilities and equipme nt that comply with this chapter if: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	The department directs the replacement because the facilities and equipment constitute a public health hazard or nuisance or no longer comply with the criteria upon which the facilities and equipment were accepted; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	The department directs the replacement of the facilities and equipment because of a change of ownership; or 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	The facilities and equipment are replaced in the normal course of operation; 



	(7) .
	(7) .
	Comply with directives of the department including t ime frames for corrective actions specified in inspection reports , notices, orders, warnings, and other directives issued by the department in regard to the permit holder's food establishment or in response to community emergencies; 

	(8) .
	(8) .
	Accept notices issued and served by the department according to law; and 

	(9) .
	(9) .
	Be subject to the administrative, civil, and injunctive remedies authorized in law for failure to comply with this chapt er or a directive of the department, including time frames for corrective actions specified in inspection reports, notices, orders, warnings, and other directives . ] [Eff 2/24/2014 ; R ] (Auth: HRS §321-11) 


	(Imp : HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-7 Fees . (a) Each application for issuance or renewal of a food establishment permit shall be accompanied by the payment of a fee. 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	No food establishment permit shall be issued or renewed unless all fees required by this chapter are paid. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	If an establishment fails to qualify for issuance or renewal of a food establishment permit, no part of the fee will be refunded to the applicant. 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	A renewal fee for each food establishment shall be paid to the department before the permit expiration date. 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	The fees shall be based on t he following permit categories s hown in Table 7-1. The permit categories are 


	based on the total number of food operations within the establishment . These food operations include the following : 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Receiving; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Cold storage, holding, preparation, and thawing; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Hot storage, holding, and preparation; 


	( 4) Thermal processing; 
	(5) 
	(5) 
	(5) 
	Transportation; 

	(6) 
	(6) 
	Cooling; 

	(7) 
	(7) 
	Reheating; and 

	(8) 
	(8) 
	Display . 


	(f) The following permit risk categories are as follows : 
	(
	(
	(
	(
	1) Category 1 Any six to eight of the food operations noted in subsection 

	( e) ; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	Category 2 Any t hree to five of the food operations noted in subsection 

	(e) ; and 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Category 3 Any zero to two of t he food 


	operations noted in subsection (e); 
	(g) Annual and renewal permit fees are as specified in Table 7-1 . 
	Table 7-1 [ANNUAL AND RENEWAL] PERMIT FEES SCHEDULE 
	Table 7-1 [ANNUAL AND RENEWAL] PERMIT FEES SCHEDULE 
	Table 7-1 [ANNUAL AND RENEWAL] PERMIT FEES SCHEDULE 

	TR
	FOOD ESTABLISHMENT TYPE 
	s . f. 1 (size) 
	RISK CATEGORY 
	[ANNUAL I RENEWAL ] PERMIT FEE 

	1. 
	1. 
	Catering 
	-
	1 
	$400 

	2 . 
	2 . 
	Catering 
	-
	2 
	$300 

	3 . 
	3 . 
	Catering 
	-
	3 
	$200 

	[ 4 . 
	[ 4 . 
	Convenience store 
	5:1,000 
	1 
	$300 

	5 . 
	5 . 
	Convenience store 
	5:1 , 000 
	2 
	$200 

	6 . 
	6 . 
	Convenience store 
	5:1,000 
	3 
	$100) 

	[ 7 . ] 4 . 
	[ 7 . ] 4 . 
	Food Manufacturer -small 
	5:1,000 
	1 
	$300 

	[8 .] 5 . 
	[8 .] 5 . 
	Food Manufacturer -small 
	5:1 , 000 
	2 
	$200 

	[ 9 . ] 6 . 
	[ 9 . ] 6 . 
	Food Manufacturer -small 
	5:1,000 
	3 
	$100 

	[10 . )7 . 
	[10 . )7 . 
	Food Manufacturer -large 
	>1,000 
	1 
	$400 

	[11.)8 . 
	[11.)8 . 
	Food Manufacturer -large 
	>1,000 
	2 
	$300 


	[12.]9. 
	[12.]9. 
	[12.]9. 
	Food Manufacturer -large 
	>1,000 
	3 
	$200 

	[13 . ]10 . 
	[13 . ]10 . 
	Food Warehouse -small 
	s:1 , 000 
	-
	$100 

	[14 . ]ll. 
	[14 . ]ll. 
	Food Warehouse -large 
	>1,000 
	-
	$300 

	[15 . ]12 . 
	[15 . ]12 . 
	Hotel Main Kitchen/ Banquet/Convention 
	-
	1 
	$600 

	[16 . ] 13 . 
	[16 . ] 13 . 
	Hotel Main Kitchen/ Banquet/Convention 
	-
	2 
	$500 

	[17 . ]!.!.:_ 
	[17 . ]!.!.:_ 
	High Risk Institutional Kitchens (pre-schools , elementary schools, hospitals, other high-risk populations) 
	-
	1 
	$400 

	(18 .] 15 . 
	(18 .] 15 . 
	Institutional Kitchens (schools, adult/child day care facilities , prisons, etc. ) 
	-
	1 
	$400 

	[19.]16. 
	[19.]16. 
	Institutional Kitchens (schools, adult/child day care facilities, prisons, etc . ) 
	-
	2 
	$300 

	[20 . ] 17 . 
	[20 . ] 17 . 
	Institutional Kitchens (schools , adult/child day care facilities, prisons, etc. ) 
	-
	3 
	$100 

	(21.]18 . 
	(21.]18 . 
	Market -small 
	s:1,000 
	1 
	$300 

	[22 . ]19 . 
	[22 . ]19 . 
	Market -small 
	s:1,000 
	2 
	$200 

	[23 . ]20 . 
	[23 . ]20 . 
	Market -small 
	s:1,000 
	3 
	$100 

	[24 . ]21. 
	[24 . ]21. 
	Market -large 
	>1,000 
	1 
	$400 

	[25 . ]22 . 
	[25 . ]22 . 
	Market -large 
	>1,000 
	2 
	$300 

	(26 . ] 23 . 
	(26 . ] 23 . 
	Market -large 
	>1,000 
	3 
	$200 

	(27.]24 . 
	(27.]24 . 
	Mobile [Lunchwagons , Trailers, Boats] Establishments 
	-
	1 
	$300 

	(28 . ]25. 
	(28 . ]25. 
	Mobile [Lunchwagons, Trailers, Boats] Establishments 
	-
	2 
	$200 

	(29 . ]26. 
	(29 . ]26. 
	Mobile [Lunchwagons, Traile rs, Boats] Establishments 
	-
	3 
	$100 

	(30 . 
	(30 . 
	Mobile Push Cart 
	-
	1 
	$150 

	31. 
	31. 
	Mobile Push Cart 
	-
	2 
	$100 

	32 . 
	32 . 
	Mobile Push Cart 
	-
	3 
	$50] 

	[33 . ]27. 
	[33 . ]27. 
	[Mobile Unit] Support Kitchen 
	-
	1 
	$300 

	[34 .]28 . 
	[34 .]28 . 
	[Mobile Unit] Support 
	-
	2 
	$200 


	Table
	TR
	Kitchen 

	[35.]29 . 
	[35.]29 . 
	[Mobile Unit ] Support Kitche n 
	-
	3 
	$100 

	[36.]30 . [37.]31. 
	[36.]30 . [37.]31. 
	Re staurant -small Restaurant -smal l 
	~1,000 ~1 ,000 
	1 2 
	$300 $200 

	[38 . ]32 . 
	[38 . ]32 . 
	Restaurant -small 
	~1,000 
	3 
	$100 

	[39.]33 . [40 . ]34. [41.]35. [42 . ]36. [43 .] 37 . [44.]38 . 
	[39.]33 . [40 . ]34. [41.]35. [42 . ]36. [43 .] 37 . [44.]38 . 
	Restaurant -large Restaurant -large Restaurant -large Service Area -limited food prep Service Area -no food p rep [Any Food Es tablishment used only to p r epare or serve food to the homeless without 
	>1 ,000 >1 ,000 >1 ,000 --
	1 2 3 --
	$400 $300 $200 $100 $50 

	TR
	compensation, consideration, or donation by the person or persons be i ng served]Homeless Feeding/Charitable or Benevolent o rganizati on 
	-
	[-]1:. 
	$0 


	39 .-
	39 .-
	39 .-
	Homeless Feeding/Charitable or Benevolent Organizati on 
	--
	2-
	$0 

	40 .-
	40 .-
	Homeless Feeding/Charitable or Benevolent Organization 
	--
	3-
	$0 

	[45.]41. 
	[45.]41. 
	[Temporary] Special Event 

	TR
	Food Establishment : 
	--
	--
	$50 

	TR
	1-5 
	days 

	[46 . ]42 . 
	[46 . ]42 . 
	[Tempor ary]Special Event 

	TR
	Food Establishme nt : 
	--
	--
	$75 

	TR
	6-10 days 

	[47 . ]43 . 
	[47 . ]43 . 
	[Temporary]Special Event 

	TR
	Food Establishment : 
	--
	--
	$100 

	TR
	11-20 
	days 

	44 .-
	44 .-
	Special Event 
	Food 
	$100 

	TR
	Establishme nt: 
	2 1-30 days 
	+$5 
	fOI 

	TR
	-
	-
	each 

	TR
	-
	-
	day 

	TR
	over 
	2( 

	TR
	days 

	[48 . ]45 . 
	[48 . ]45 . 
	[Temporary] 
	Special Event 

	TR
	Food Establishment : Value added farm eroducts 
	--
	--
	$25 

	[49 . ]46 . 
	[49 . ]46 . 
	[Temporar y] 
	Special Event 
	-
	-
	$0 


	Food Establishment (applicants such as :}'.'.OUth groups, schools, hoseitals, religious groues, community_ service organizations, athletic groues, and other charitable or benevolent orqanizations) 
	Food Establishment (applicants such as :}'.'.OUth groups, schools, hoseitals, religious groues, community_ service organizations, athletic groues, and other charitable or benevolent orqanizations) 
	Food Establishment (applicants such as :}'.'.OUth groups, schools, hoseitals, religious groues, community_ service organizations, athletic groues, and other charitable or benevolent orqanizations) 


	s.f. means square feet 
	1

	(h) 
	(h) 
	(h) 
	All permit fees are non-transferable and nonrefundabl e and must be fully paid prior to the issuance of any new or renewed permit. 

	(i) 
	(i) 
	Food establishment renewal fees that are received by t he department after the expiration date will be subject to an additional late fee equal to twenty per cent of the annual permit fee . 

	(j) 
	(j) 
	Food establishment permits shall not be issued or renewed i f any outstanding fines imposed by the department have not been paid in full . 


	[(j)] ill Plan review fees are as specified in Table .7-2. .
	Table 7-2 PLAN REVIEW FEE TABLE 
	PLAN REVIEW TYPE 
	PLAN REVIEW TYPE 
	PLAN REVIEW TYPE 
	SUB-TYPE 
	FEE 

	Food Establishment, Liquor Establishment, Mobile Unit 
	Food Establishment, Liquor Establishment, Mobile Unit 
	1,000 s . f . or l ess 
	$200 

	Food Establishment, Liquor Establishment, Mobile Unit 
	Food Establishment, Liquor Establishment, Mobile Unit 
	>1,000 s . f . 
	$300 

	Prepackaged Only 
	Prepackaged Only 
	Mobile or fixed 
	No Fee 


	s.f. .means square feet 
	1

	[Eff 2/24/2014; am and comp (Auth: HRS §321-11 ) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-8 I nspection and correction of violations . 
	(a) .
	(a) .
	(a) .
	(a) .
	Establishing inspection interval. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	The department may inspect? food establishment at a frequency based upon the risk of foodborne illness transmission as determined by t he department . Inspections shall also be conducted in response to a complaint or an epidemiological investigation of an alleged foodborne illness outbreak; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	The [director] department shall be permitted to e xamine the records of the establishment to get pertinent information regarding food, suppli es, and services purchased, received, or used and persons employed . 



	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	The department may [prioritize,] prioritize and conduct more frequent inspections based upon its assessment of a food establishment ' s history of compliance with this chapter and the establishment ' s potential as a vector of foodborne illness by evaluating: 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Past performance, for nonconformance with this chapter or HACCP plan requirements that are critica l items; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Past performance, for numerous or repeat violations of this c hapter or HACCP plan requirements that are noncritical items; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Past performance, for complaints investigated a nd found to be valid; 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	The hazards associated with the particular foods that are prepared, stor ed, or served; 

	(5) .
	(5) .
	The type of operation including the methods and extent of food storage, preparation, and service; 

	(6) .
	(6) .
	The number of people served; and 

	(7) .
	(7) .
	Whether t he population served is a highly susceptible popul ation . 



	(c) 
	(c) 
	After the [director] department presents official credentials and [provides notice of the purpose of, and] indicates ar1 i ntent to conduct an jnspection, the person in charge shall allow the [direct or] department to determine if the food establishment is in compliance with this chapter by allowing access to the establishment, a llowing inspection, and providing information and records specified in this chapter and to which the department is entitled according to law, during the food establishment ' s hour

	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	An inspection report or other [electronic] record shall be used to document [observed violative] the conditions observed [or other deviations from] and any noncompliance with this chapter that [require correction by the permit holder that] requires correction, which may include a ny of [may include] the following: 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Nonconformance with requirements of this chapter; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Failure of the appropriate food employees to demonstrate their knowledge of, and ability to perform in accordance with, the procedural, monitoring, ve rification, and correcti ve action practices required by the department as specified in section ll-50-13(i) ; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Failure of the person in charge to provide records required by the department for determining conformance with a HACCP plan as 




	specified in section [11-50-4 (j) (2) (D) (vi);] 1150-4 (i) (2) (D) (iv); and 
	(4) .Nonconformance with critical limits of a HACCP plan. 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	The [director] department shall specify on the inspection report [form] the time frame for correction of the violations [as specified in subsections (i) , (k) , and 

	(m) 
	(m) 
	. ] in accordance with this chapter. 


	(f) .At the concl usion of the inspection, the 
	[director] department shall request a signature by the person i n charge acknowledging receipt of the [inspectional] department's findings . 
	(g) 
	(g) 
	(g) 
	Refusal to sign acknowl edgment of [inspectional] the department's findings [will] shall not affect the [permit holder' s] owner or operator's obligation to correct the violations noted in the inspection report within the time frames specified . 

	(h) 
	(h) 
	The [director] department shall treat the inspection report as a public document and shall make the report available for disclosure to a person who requests the report as provided [in] .e.y law. 

	(i) 
	(i) 
	(i) 
	Ceasing operation and [report -I mminent] selfreporting -imminent health hazard. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	[Except as specified in paragraph (2) , a permit holder] The owner or operator shall i mmediately discontinue food operations and notify the department [if) that an imminent health hazard may exist because of an emergency s uch as a fire, flood, extended interruption of electrical or water service, sewage backup, natural disaster, misuse of poisonous or toxic material s , onset of an apparent foodborne illness outbreak, gross insanit ary occurrence or conditi on, or other circumstance that may endanger publ

	(2) .
	(2) .
	[A permit holder] An owner or oper ator may [not be required] be allowed to [discontinue) continue operations in an area of an establi shment that is unaffected by the imminent health hazard . 



	(j) 
	(j) 
	Resumption of operations. If operations are [discontinued as specified in subsection (i) or otherwise according to law,] voluntarily suspended or suspended as may otherwise be provided by this chapter, the [permit holder] owner or operator shall obtain approval from the department before resuming operations . 

	(k) 
	(k) 
	Timely correction [-violation of critical item. ] of violations . 


	( 1) 
	( 1) 
	( 1) 
	Except as [specified in paragraph (2),) otherwise 

	TR
	directed by the department, [a permit holder] an 

	TR
	owner or operator shall [at the time of 

	TR
	inspection] immediately correct a critical 

	TR
	violation of this chapter and implement 

	TR
	corrective actions for a HACCP plan provision 

	TR
	that is not in compliance with its critical 

	TR
	[limit;] limit . 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Considering the nature of the potential hazard 

	TR
	involved and the complexity of the corrective 

	TR
	action needed, the [director may agree to or] 

	TR
	department may specify a longer time frame [after 

	TR
	the inspection,] for the [permit holder] owner or 

	TR
	operator to correct critical violations or HACCP 

	ill 
	ill 
	plan deviations . The owner or operator shall correct all critical 

	TR
	and non-criti cal violations by a date and time 

	TR
	specified by the department in any inspection 

	TR
	report or other directive from the department . 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	Verification and documentation of correction. 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	After observing at the time of inspection a 

	TR
	correction of a critical violation or a HACCP 

	TR
	plan deviation, the [director] department shall 

	TR
	enter the violation and information about the 

	TR
	corrective action on the inspection [report;) 

	TR
	report. 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	[As specified in subsection (k) (2), after] After 

	TR
	receiving notification that t he [permi t holder] 

	TR
	owner or operator has corrected a critical 

	TR
	violation or HACCP plan deviation, or at the end 

	TR
	of the specified period of time, the [director] 

	TR
	department shall verify correction of the 

	TR
	violation, document the information on an 

	TR
	inspection report, and enter the report in the 

	TR
	department's records . 

	(m) 
	(m) 
	[Time frame for correction -ot her viol ations . 


	The permit holder shall correct all other violations by a date and time agreed to or specified by the direc tor . 
	(n)] Upon request, the [director] department shall provide a copy of the completed inspection report to t he [permit holder] owner or operator or person in charge. 
	[ (o) Time frame for correction -temporary food establishment . The permit holder shall correct all violations immediately. Failure to comply with this notice 
	may result in immediate termination of the temporary authorization to operate .] [Eff 2/24/2014; am and comp ] (Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-9 Placarding. (a) Upon completion of [a regular inspection or follow-up inspection, ] an inspection, the [director shall] department may post at [every] the food establishment a color coded placard indicating the compliance status of that establishment. The placard shall be posted in a location clearly visible to the general public·and patrons entering the food establishment . 
	(1) .Clearly visible to the general public and patrons means: 
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Posted in the window of the food establishment within five feet of the main entrance to the establishment; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Posted in a display case (such as a menu box) mounted on the outside wall of the food establishment withi n five feet of the main entrance to the establishment; or 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	[Posted in a l ocation approved by the director to ensure proper notice to the general public and patrons . ] In the event that a food establishment is operated i n the same bui lding as a separately pe rmitted or licensed business, or in t he event that a facility shares common patron entrance with a sepa r ately permitted facility or licensed business, or in the event of both, posted in the initial patron contact area; or 


	lQl .Posted in any other location approved by the director to ensure proper notice to the general publ ic and patrons. 
	(b) [In the event that a food establishment is operated i n the same building as a separately permitted or lice nsed business, or in the event that a facility shares common patron entrance with a separately permitted facility or licensed business, or in the event of both, the director shall post the placard in the initial patron contact area, or in a location approved by the director. 
	(c)J The pl acard shall not be defaced, marred, camouflaged, hidden, or removed. It shall be unlawful to operate a food establishment unless the placard is posted in accordance with this [chapter . ] chapter and tampering of 
	any kind with the placard may result in the immediate suspension of the food establishment permit . 
	[(d) Removal of the placard is a violation of this chapter and may result in the suspension of the food establishment permit, and may be subject to daily fines as specified in section 321-20, HRS. 
	(e)] J...£1_ A placard shall remain valid from the t i me of issuance until [a new placard is issued at the completion of a regular inspection, follow-up inspection, or change of ownership . ] it is removed or replaced by the department . 
	[ ( f) l .ill Placard color coding: 
	( 1) .A green placard s hall [be posted when : ] indicate : 
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Zero or one critical violation was observed during [the regular] an inspecti on, and the critical violation was corrected or mitigated during the inspection; or 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	A follow-up inspection [ver ifies] has verified correction of all criti cal violations; 


	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	A yellow placard shall [be posted when] indicate one violation as described in paragraph (1) (A) remuins uncorrecterl or [whenl two or more critical violations were observed during [a r egular inspection or foodborne illness] an inspection[ :] and additional corrective action is necessary. 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	[Follow-up inspections will] A follow-up inspection may be conducted within two business days to ensure all critical violations are corrected or mitigated and remain corrected; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	The yellow placard shall remain posted until all critical violations are corrected or mitigated [and verified;] to the satisfaction of the director; 



	(3) .
	(3) .
	A red placard shall [be posted when] indicate there is[ :] an immedi at e danger to public health and closure of the food establishment is necessary to protect public health : 


	(A) .[Closure of the facility due to immediate danger to public health, such as] A red placard may be posted upon a finding by the department that there exists an imminent health hazard which includes, but is not limited to: 
	(i) .The department being denied entry into the food establishment or being unable to perform an inspection due to circumstances within the control of the [permit holder] owner or operator or person in charge; The food establishment having no valid permit to operate issued by the 
	department; 
	(iii) .Epidemiological evidence of foodborne illness or disease transmission connected to the food establishment; 
	[ (ii) l (iv) An employee of the food establishment who is a carrier of a communicable disease working in a capacity whereby the disease may be transmitted through food; 
	[ (iii) l (v) Hot or cold water not available as required; [ (iv)] (vi ) No power available to operate refrigeration or cooking equipment; [ (v)] (vii) Rodent or vermin infestation; [(vi)] (viii) Sewage overflow or floodinq within the establishment; 
	[(vii) ] (ix) Any ot her condition that poses an immediate danger to public health[ ; ] or the environment, as determined by the director; 
	(B) .Upon the posting of a red placard, closure of the food establishment shall be effectuated by an i mmediate suspension [Suspension] of the food establishment permit [; l...:.. The r ed placard shall indicate t hat 
	ill 

	the applicable food establishment permit has been suspended and shall constitute written notice to the owner or operator pursuant to section 11-5012 (c). 
	(ii) .The procedures of section 11-50-12(c) sha ll be applicable and shall 
	govern the disposition of both the red placard and the permit suspension. [(g)] .Du_ Critical violations may include, but are not limi ted to: 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Employees with communicable diseases , wounds , and rashes; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	An employee has discharge from the eyes, nose, or mouth; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Hands not clean and not properly washed, gloves not used properly; 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	Handwashing facilities not provided, not .supplied, not properly operating, or .inaccessibl e; .

	(5) .
	(5) .
	Improper temperature control of potentially hazardous foods ; 

	(6) .
	(6) .
	PHF (time/temperature control f or safety food) not properly l abeled when using time as a public health control; 

	(7) .
	(7) .
	PHF (time/temperature control for safety food) improperl y cooled; 

	(8) .
	(8) .
	Impr oper coo~ing time and temperatures not adhered to; 

	(9) .
	(9) .
	Improper reheating procedures for hot holding not adhered to; 

	(10) .
	(10) .
	Re-service of returned food; 

	(11) .
	(11) .
	Food contaminated or adulterated; 

	(12) .
	(12) .
	Food-contact surfaces not cleaned and sanitized as required; 

	(13) .
	(13) .
	Improper warewashing procedure; 

	(14) .
	(14) .
	Non-compliance with proper shellfish handling a nd service; 

	(15) .
	(15) .
	Non-compliance with HACCP pl ans, specialized process, and variances; 

	(16) .
	(16) .
	Prohibited food offered to highly s usceptible populati on; 

	(17) .
	(17) .
	Hot or cold water not available as required; 

	(18) .
	(18) .
	Sewage and wastewat er not properly disposed of; 

	(19) .
	(19) .
	Rodents, insects, birds, or prohibited animals within establishment; 

	(20) .
	(20) .
	Food not protected from cross contamination; 

	(21) 
	(21) 
	Restrictions on eating and the use of tobacco; and 

	(22) .
	(22) .
	Improper storage or use of poisonous or toxic materials . 


	[Eff 2/24/2014; am and comp (Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-10 Embargo and detention. (a) Based upon [i nspection] the department' s findings or other evidence, 
	the director may embargo or detain any food determined to be a potential health hazard. 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	The [director] department may attach a tag or other appropriate marking to food determined to be a potential health hazard. The marking shall be removed only by the [director following verification that the condition has been corrected;) department; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Food embargoed or detained pursuant to this subsection shall not be moved or used unless the embargo or detainment has been rescinded; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	(3) .
	Within [seventy-two hours) seven days of t he embargo or detainment, the director shall : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	[Inform the establishment of the potential health hazard and supporting evidence justifying the action; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	J Extend the holding period for [a specified) the period of time needed to [complete testing or research) further investigate 




	[to determine] the safety of the food being held; or [ (C)J ill Rescind the action . 
	(b) [If the director determines the food to be a potential health hazard, the director] The tag or other marking indicating that food has been embargoed or detained shall: 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	[State in writing,] Provide the [specific reasons for which the food has been) department's findings and conclusions with respect to the food determined to be a potential healt h hazard; and 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	[Offer an opportunity for a hearing to a ) Notify the person whose food has been [determined to be a potential health hazard, provided a written r e quest for a hearing is filed with the director by the permit holder within twenty days after receipt of the notice as specified in subsection 


	(a) (3) (A) ; J embargoed or detained of their right to request a hearing. [(A) If a written request is filed within twent y 
	days, an opportunity for a hearing with the director or t he director's designated representative shall be provided; J (c) If the owner of food which has been embargoed or de tained submits a written request to the department for a hearing to contest the embargo or detainment within seven days 
	days, an opportunity for a hearing with the director or t he director's designated representative shall be provided; J (c) If the owner of food which has been embargoed or de tained submits a written request to the department for a hearing to contest the embargo or detainment within seven days 
	from the date the tag or other marking was affixed to the food, the director shall provide a hearing as soon as practicable. At such hearing the director shall : 

	ill Determine whether the embargoed or detained food is a potential health hazard; ill Determine whether the food must be destroyed and under what circumstances; and 
	ill .Issue a final order for the continued embargo or detainment and ultimate disposition of the embargoed or detained food, or rescind the action. 
	[(B)] (d) If no written request is [filed] submitted to the department within [the twenty day period,] seven days from the date the tag or other marking of embargo or detainment was affixed to the food, the department' s findings and conclusions shall become final and the [permit holder] owner or operator of the food establishment shall 
	[properly] dispose of the embargoed or detained food[.] in the manner prescribed by the director. [Eff 2/24/2014; am and comp (Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-11 Prevention of foodborne disease transmission by employees . (a) The department shall act when it has reasonable cause to believe that a food employee or conditional employee has possibly transmitted disease ; may be infected with a disease in a communicable form that is transmissible through food; may be a carrier of infectious agents that cause a disease that is transmissible through food; or is affected with a boil, an infected wound, or acute respiratory infection, by : 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Securing a confidential medical history of the food employee or conditional employee suspected of transmitting disease or making other investigations as deemed appropriate; and 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Requiring appropriate medical examinations, including collection of specimens for laboratory analysis , of a suspected food employee or conditional employee . 


	(b) Based on the findings of an investigation related to a food employee or conditional employee who is suspected 
	of being infected or diseased, the department may issue an order to the suspected food employee, conditional employee, or [permit holder] owner or operator instituting one or more of the following control measures : 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Restricting the food employee or conditional employee; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Excluding the food employee or conditional employee; or 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Closing the food establishment by summarily suspending a permit to operate pursuant to section ll-50-12(c). 


	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	Based on the findings of the investigation as specified in subsection (a) and to control disease transmission, the department may issue an order of restriction or exclusion to a suspected food employee or the [permit holder] owner or operator without prior warning, notice of a hearing, or a hearing if the order : 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	States the reasons for the restriction or exclusion that is ordered; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	States the evidence that t he food employee or [permit holder] owner or operator shall provide in order to demonstrate that the reasons for the restriction or exclusion are eliminated; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	States that the suspected food employee or the [permit holder] owner or operator may request an appeal hearing by submitting a timely request as provided in law; and 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	Provides the name and address of the department representative to whom a request for an appeal hearing may be made. 



	(d) 
	(d) 
	The department shall release a food employee or conditional employee from restriction or exclusion according to law and the conditions specified in section ll-50-21(c) . [Eff 2/24/2014; comp (Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS §321-11) 


	§11-50-12 Permit suspension . (a) The [department] director may suspend a permit whenever : 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	An inspection of the establishment reveals that the establishment has not corrected the violations in the required time; or 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	The department is una ble to conduct inspections in accordance with this chapter due to circumstances within the control of the permit holder or person in charge . 

	(b) .
	(b) .
	Permit suspension procedures . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	The department shall notify the [permit holder,) owner or operator, or the person in charge in writing, when a permit is to be suspended; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	The department shall state in writing, specific reasons for which the permit is to be suspended; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	The department shall offer an opportunity for a hearing to a person whose permit is t o be suspended, provided a written request for a hearing is filed with the department by the [permit holder,) owner or operator, not l ater than twenty calendar days after receipt of the notice; 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	If a written request for a hearing is filed within twenty calendar days after the notice of suspension, an opportunity for a hearing with the department or the department's designated representative shall be offered; 

	(5) .
	(5) .
	If no written request for a hearing i s filed within twenty calendar days after the notice of suspension, the permit shall be suspended upon [serving) service of the suspension notice; 

	(6) .
	(6) .
	The establishment shaJl he closed and shall remain closed until the permit has been reinstated; 

	(7) .
	(7) .
	A person whose permit has been suspended may request an inspection, and the permit shall be reinstated if the inspection shows the correction of the violation that led to the suspension. 


	(c) Notwithstanding subsections (a), where the [department) director finds there exists [in an establishment) an imminent health hazard [to the public health,) associated with the food establishment, unless the [hazard) threat to public health is immediately corrected, the department may [temporarily) immediately close the food establishment and suspend the permit [of the establishrnent)L without prior notice and hearing [and order the establishment immediately closed)L by issuing an order in writing [.) or
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	An imminent health hazard exists under conditions described in the definition of "Imminent health hazardu [and section) in section 11-50-2, sections 11-50-9 (f) (3) (A) [ (i) to (vii);) and 1150-9 (g) , and as may otherwise be determined by the director. 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	The food establishment shall remain closed and the permit suspension shal l [be] remain in effect until the [opportunity for a hearing is given within twenty-four hours after the service of the s uspension order . After] permit is reinstated by the department.


	ill .The department shall provide the owner or operator an opportunity to contest the closure and permit suspension and, unless waived by the owner or operator, such a hearing shall be held no later than for ty-eight (48) hours after the service of the notice of suspension or posting of a red placard, except that in the case of state and federal holidays and non-business days, the hearing shall be provided no later than the next business day thereafter. 
	ill .At the hearing, t he [department] director or t he [department's] director' s designated representative may affirm, modify, or rescind the order as appropriate . 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	In the event of a natural disaster, t he depart ment has the authority to order an establi shment immerli.ately c l osed i f, i n the opinion of the department, the establishment cannot operate in a safe and sanitary manner . The [department] director shal l decide under what conditions the establishment will be allowed to reopen . 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	All hearings shall comply with chapter 91, HRS, and the Hawaii Administrative Rul es, chapter 11-1, entitled "Rules of Practice and Procedureu. [Eff 2/24/2014; am and comp (Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §32111) 


	11-50-13 Variances . (a) The department may grant a variance by modifying or waiving the requirements of this chapter if in the opinion of the [department] director a health hazard or nuisance will not result from the variance . If a variance is granted, the department shall retain the information specified in subsection (b) in its records for the food establishment . 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	Before a variance from a requirement of this chapter is approved, the information that shall be provided by the person requesting the variance and retained in the department' s file on the food establ ishment including: 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	A statement of the propose d variance of the chapter requirement c iting relevant chapter section numbers; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	An analysis of the rationale for how the potential public health hazards and nuisances addressed by the relevant chapter sections will be alternatively addressed by the proposal; and 


	(3 ) .A HACCP plan if required as specified in section [11-50-4(j) (1 ) ] 11-50-4(i) (1) that includes the information specified in section [11-50-4(j) (2)) 11-50-4(i) (2) as it is relevant to t he variance requested. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	Every application for a variance shall be made on forms furnished by the department. 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	The department shall not act upon or consider any incomplete application for variance . An application shall be deemed complete only when all required and requested information, including the application form, plans, speci f i cations, applicable fees, and other informati on have been timel y submitted; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Every application shall be signed by the applicant and sha ll constitnt P. An acknowledgment and agreement that the applicant will comply with all t he terms and conditions of the variance and this chapter; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	The department may require the submissi on of additional information, including challenge studies if applicable, after the application has been submitted, and may ensure t hat, if an application is incomplete or otherwise deficient, processing of the application sha ll not be completed until such time as the applicant has supplied all requi red information or otherwise corrected the defi c i ency. If t he vari ance applicati on requires a chall enge study for pathogen inactivation or growth inhibition to de

	(4) .
	(4) .
	The failure of the department to act on a completed application within thirty days of the 




	receipt of such application s hall be deemed an 
	approval of such application provided that the 
	applicant acts consistently with the application 
	process and has submitted all required or 
	requested information. 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	Any approved variance shall be granted for time periods and under conditions consistent with this chapter and within the following limitations: 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	The department ·may issue a variance for a period not exceeding two years; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	The department may revoke the variance at any time if the vari ance becomes a threat to public health and safety. 



	(e) 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	Variance renewal. Any variance granted pursuant to this section may be renewed for periods not exceeding two years provided that: 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	All of the conditions specified in the immediately preceding variance are complied with; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Curre nt food safety concerns and concerns addressed in t he immediately preceding variance are addressed; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	A renewal appli cation is submitt ed at least one hundred eighty days ~rior to expiration of the preceding variance; and 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	A variance renewal fee of $200 is paid to the department. 



	(f) 
	(f) 
	The department shall afford a hearing in accordance with chapter 91, HRS, in relation to an application for the denial of a variance. 

	(g) 
	(g) 
	No variance shall be construed to prevent or limit the applicati on of any emergency provisions and procedures provided by law. 

	(h) 
	(h) 
	A non-refundabl e application processing fee of $200 shall be made payable to the department for all new and renewal variance applications . 

	(i) 
	(i) 
	(i) 
	If the department grants a variance as specified in subsection (a), or a HACCP pl an is otherwise required as specified in section [11-50-4 (j) (1)] 11-50-4 (i) (1) and (2) the permit holder s hall : 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Comply with the HACCP plans and procedures that are submitted as specified in secti on [11-504 (j) (2)] 11-50-4 (i) (2) and approved as a basis for the modification or waiver; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Maintain and provide to the department, upon request, records specified in section [11-50-4(j) (2) (D)] 11-50-4(i) (2) (D) and (E) that 






	SBRRB Apr. 19, 2017 Agenda Exhibit 3B2 OCR
	Structure Bookmarks
	demonstrate that the following are routinely employed: 
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Procedures for monitoring the critical control points; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Monitoring of the critical control points; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Verification of the effectiveness of the operation or process; and 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	Necessary corrective actions if there is failure at a critical control point; and 


	(3) .Provide any additional information and analyses deemed necessary by the department to e liminate or control public health hazards or nuisance. 
	[Eff 2/24/2014; am and comp J (Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-14 Penalties and remedies. Any person who 
	violates any provision of this chapter or an order of the [department] director thereunder, shall be subject to a fine as provided in section 321-20, HRS. Each and every violation is a separate offense . [Eff 2/24/2014; am and comp 
	] (Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-15 Severability. If any provision of this chapter, or the applicati on of any provision of this chapter to any person or circumstance, is he ld invalid, the application of the provision to other persons or circums t ances, and the r emainder of this chapter, shall not be affected the r eby . [Eff 2/24/2014; comp 
	(Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS §321-11) 
	§§11-50-16 to 11-50-19 (Reserved) . 
	SUBCHAPTER 2 
	PERSONNEL 
	§11-50-20 Supervision. (a) Except as specified in subsection (b), the [permit holder] owner or operator shall be the person in charge or shall designate a person in charge and shall ensure that a person in charge is present at the food establishment during all hours of operation. 
	(b) In a food establishment with two or more separatel y permitted departments that are the legal responsibility of the same [permit holder] owner or operator and that are located on the same premises, the permit holder may, during specific time periods when food is not being prepared, packaged, or served, designate a single person in charge who is present on the premises during all hours of operation, and who is responsible for each separately permitted food establishment on the 
	premises . 
	premises . 
	premises . 

	ill 
	ill 
	Food protection certification. 

	ill 
	ill 
	The 
	person in charge shall demonstrate 
	knowledge 

	TR
	of basic food 
	safety by successfully completing 
	a 

	TR
	food 
	safety 
	course 
	that is part of 
	a 
	department 

	TR
	food 
	safety program 
	or other program 

	ill 
	ill 
	approved by the department. The requirements of this section 
	may 
	be waived by 

	TR
	the department 
	for any food 
	establishment deemed 


	by t he director to pose minimal risk of 
	causing, or contributing to, foodborne illness 
	based on the nature of t he operation and extent of food preparation . 
	ill Successful completjon of a food safety course may be demonstrated by any valid document intended by an approved program to serve that purpose . [(c)]J.El The person in charge shall ensure that : 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Food establishment operations are not conducted in a private home or in a room used as living or sleeping quarters as specified in section [11-50-71 (s);] 11-50-71 (r); 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Persons unnecessary t o the food establishment operation are not allowed i n the food preparation, food storage, or warewashing areas, except that bri ef visits and tours may be authorized by the person in charge if steps are taken to ensure that exposed food; clean equipment, utensils, and linens; and unwrapped singl e-service and single-use articles are protected from contamination; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Employees and other persons such as delivery and maint enance persons and pesticide applicators entering the food preparation, food storage, and warewashing areas comply with this chapter; 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	Employees are effectively cleaning their hands, by routinely monitoring the employees' handwashing; 

	(5) .
	(5) .
	Employees are visibly observing foods as they are received to determine that they are from approved sources, delivered at the required temperatures, protected from contamination, unadulterated, and accurately presented, by routinely monitoring the employees ' observations and periodically evaluating foods upon their receipt; 

	(6) .
	(6) .
	Employees are properly cooking potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety f ood), being particularly careful in cooking those foods known to cause severe foodborne illness a nd death, such as eggs and comminuted meats, through daily oversight of the employees' routine monitoring of the cooking temperatures using appropriate temperature measuring devices properly scaled and calibrated as specified in sections 11-50-46(k) and 11-50-49 (p) (2); 

	(7) .
	(7) .
	(7) .
	Employees are using proper methods to rapidly .cool potentially hazardous foods .

	(time/temperature control for safety foods) that are not held hot or are not for consumption within four hours, through daily oversight of t he employees ' routine monitoring of food temperatures during cooling; 

	(8) .
	(8) .
	Consumers who order raw; or partially cooked ready-to-eat foods of animal origin are informed as specified in section [ll-50-35(e)] ll-50-35(d) that the food is not cooked sufficiently to ensure its safety; 

	(9) .
	(9) .
	Employees are properly sanitizing cleaned .multiuse equipment and utensils before they are .reused, through routine monitoring of solution .temperature and exposure time for hot water .sanitizing, and chemical concentration, pH, .temperature, and exposure time for chemical .sani tizing; .

	(10) .
	(10) .
	Consumers are notified that c l e an tableware is to be used when they return to self-service areas such as salad bars and buffets as specified in section 11-50-32(0) ; 

	(11) .
	(11) .
	Except when approval is obtained from the 


	department as specified in section [11-50-32 (a) (4),] 11-50-32 (a) (5) employees are preventing cross-contamination of ready-to-eat food with bare hands by prope rly using suitable 
	department as specified in section [11-50-32 (a) (4),] 11-50-32 (a) (5) employees are preventing cross-contamination of ready-to-eat food with bare hands by prope rly using suitable 
	utensils such as deli tissue, spatulas, tongs, single-use gloves, or dispensing equipment; 

	(12) .
	(12) .
	(12) .
	Employees are properly trained in food safety, including food allergy awareness, as it relates to their assigned duties; and 

	(13) 
	(13) 
	Food employees and conditional employees are informed of their responsibility to report in accordance with law, to the person in charge, information about their health and activities as they relate to diseases that are transmissible through food , as specified in section 11-50-21 (a) (1). [Eff 2/24/2014; am and comp 


	] (Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §32111) 
	§11-50-21 Employee health. (a) Responsibility of [permit holder,] owner or operator, person in charge, and conditional employees. 
	(1) .The [permit holder] owner or operator shall require food employees and conditional empl oyees to report to the person in charge information about th~ir health and activities as they relate to diseases that are transmissible through food . A food employee or conditional employee shall report the information in a manner that allows the person in charge to reduce the risk of foodborne disease transmission, including providing necessary additional information, such as the date of onset of sympt oms and an 
	(A) Has any of the following symptoms : 
	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Vomiting; 

	(ii) 
	(ii) 
	Diarrhea; 


	(i ii) Jaundice; 
	(iv) 
	(iv) 
	(iv) 
	Sore throat with fever; or 

	(v) .
	(v) .
	A lesion containing pus such as a boil or infected wound that is open or draining and is on the hands or wrists, unless an impermeable cover s uch as a finger cot or stall protects the lesion and a single-use glove is worn over the impermeable cover or on exposed portions of the arms , unless the lesion is protected by an 


	impermeable cover, or on the other 
	parts .of the body, unless the lesion 
	is covered by a dry, durable, tight
	fitting .bandage; 
	(B) .
	(B) .
	(B) .
	(B) .
	Has an illness diagnosed by a health practitioner due to: 

	(i ) .Norovirus ; 
	(ii) .Hepatitis A v i rus; 
	(iii) .Shigella spp . ; 
	(iv) .
	(iv) .
	(iv) .
	[Enterohemorrhagic or] Shiga toxinproducing Escherichia Coli; [or] 

	(v) .
	(v) .
	Salmonella Typhi; or 

	(vi) .
	(vi) .
	nontyphoidal Salmonella; 



	(C) .
	(C) .
	Had a previous illness, diagnosed by a health practitioner, within the past three months due to Salmonella Typhi, without having received antibiotic therapy, as determined by a health practitioner; 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	Has been exposed to, or is the suspected source of, a confirmed disease outbreak, because the food employee or conditional employee consumed or prepared food implicated in the outbreak, or consumed food at an event prepared by a person who is infected or ill with : 


	(i) .Norovirus within the past forty-eight hours of the l ast exposure; 
	(ii} [Enterohemorrhagic or] Shiga toxinproducing Escherichia Coli[,] or Shi gella spp. within the past three days of the last exposure; 
	(iii} .Salmonella Typhi within t he past fourteen days of the last exposure; or (iv} Hepatitis A virus within the past thirty days of the last exposure; or 
	(E) .Has been exposed by attending or working in a setting where there is a confirmed disease outbreak, o r living in the same household as, and has knowl edge about, an individual who works or attends a setting where t here is a confi rmed qisease outbreak, or living in the same household as, and has knowledge about, an individual diagnosed with an illness caused by : (i} Norovirus within the past forty-eight 
	hours of the last exposure; 
	(ii) .[Enterohemorrhagic or] Shiga toxinproducing Escherichia Coli[,] or Shigella spp. within the past three days of the last exposure; 
	(iii) .Salmonella Typhi within the past fourteen days of the last exposure; or 
	(iv) .Hepatitis A virus within the past thirty days of the last exposure; 
	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	The person in charge shall ensure that a conditional empl oyee : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Who exhibits or reports a symptom, or who reports a diagnosed illness as specified in subsection (a) (1) (A) to (C), is prohibited from becoming a food employee until the conditional employee meets the criteria for the specific symptoms or diagnosed illness as specified in subsection (c); or 

	(8) .
	(8) .
	Who will work as a food employee in a food establishment that serves as a highly susceptible population and reports a history of exposure as specified in subsection (a) (1) (D)and(E) , is prohibited from becoming a food employee until the conditional employee meets the criteria as specified in s ubsection (c) (9) ; 



	(3) .
	(3) .
	The person in charge s hall ensure that a food employee who exhibits or reports a symptom, or who reports a diagnosed illness or a history of exposure as specified in subsection (a) (1 ) (A) to 


	(E) is : 
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Excluded as specified in subsection (b) (1 ) to (3) , (4) (A), (5) (A), (6) (A) , [or] 

	(7) 
	(7) 
	(7) 
	[ (A)] , or (8) (A) a nd in compliance with the provisi ons specified in subsection 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	(1) .to [(7) ;] ~ 



	(8) 
	(8) 
	Restricted as specified in subsection 


	(b)(4)(8), (5)(8), (6)(8), [(7)(8) , 
	or] (B)J....§1 or (9) or (10) and in compliance with the provisions specified in subsection 
	(C) ( 4 ) .to [ ( 9) ; ] (10) ; 
	(4) .
	(4) .
	(4) .
	A food employee or conditional employee shall report to t he person in charge the information as specified in paragraph (l); 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	A .food employee shall : 


	(A) .Comply with an exclusion as specified in subsection (b) (1 ) to (3), and (4) (A) , 
	(5) (A), 
	(5) (A), 
	(5) (A), 
	(6) (A) , 
	J..2l or 
	[(7)] fil(A) 
	and 

	with the provisions specified in subsection 
	with the provisions specified in subsection 

	(C) ( 1) 
	(C) ( 1) 
	to 
	[ ( 7) ; ] 
	(8) ; 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	Comply with 
	a 
	restriction 
	as 
	specified in 

	TR
	subsection 
	(b) (4) (B) , 
	(5) (B), 
	(6) (B), 

	TR
	(7) [ (B), 
	or 
	(8) 
	or 
	(9)], 
	(8) (B), 
	or 
	(8), 

	TR
	(9) , 
	or 
	(10) 
	and comply 
	with the provisions 

	TR
	specified in subsection 
	(c) (4) 
	to 
	[ ( 9) ; ] 

	TR
	(10); 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	The 
	person in charge 
	shall exclude 
	or 
	restrict 
	a 


	food employee from a food establishment in accordance with the following : 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except when the symptom is from a noninfectious condition, exclude a food employee if the food employee is : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Symptomatic with vomiting or diarrhea; or 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Symptomatic with vomiting or diarrhea and diagnosed with an infection from Norovir us, Shi gella spp . , nontyphoidal Salmonella, or [Enterohemorrhagic or] Shiga toxinproducing E. Coli; 



	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	Exclude a food employee who is: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	J aunrliced and the onset of jaundice occurred within the last seven calenda r days, unless the food employee provides to the person in charge writ ten medical documentation from a health practitioner specifying that the jaundice is not caused by hepat i tis A virus or other fecal-orally transmitted infection; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Diagnosed with an infection from hepatitis A virus within fourteen calendar days from the onset of any illness symptoms, or within seven calendar days of the onset of jaundice; or 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Diagnosed with an infection from hepatitis A virus without developing symptoms; 



	(3) .
	(3) .
	(3) .
	Exclude a food employee who is diagnosed with an infection from Salmonella Typhi, or reports a previous infection with Salmonella Typhi within the past three months as specified in subsect ion 

	(a) (1) (C) ; 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	(4) .
	If a food employee is diagnosed with an i nfec tion from Norovirus and is asymptomatic: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Exclude the food empl oyee who works in a food establishment serving a highly susceptible population; or 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Restrict the food employee who works in a food est ablishment not serving a highly susceptible population; 



	(5) .
	(5) .
	(5) .
	If a food employee is diagnosed with an infection from Shigella spp . and is asymptomatic : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Exclude t he food employee who works in a food establishment serving a highly susceptible population; or 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Restrict the food employee who works in a food establishment not serving a highly susceptible population; 



	(6) .
	(6) .
	If a food employee is diagnosed with an infection from [Enterohemorrhagic or] Shiga toxin-producing 


	E. Coli, and is asymptomatic: 
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Exclude the food employee who works in a food establi s hment serving a highly susceptible population; or 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Restrict the food employee who works in a food establishment not serving a highly susceptible population; 


	J..1l .If a food employee is diagnosed with an infection from nontyphoidal Salmonella and is asymptomatic, restrict the food employee who works in a food establishment serving a highly susceptible population or in a food establishment not serving a highly susceptible population; 
	[(7)]fil .If a food employee is ill with symptoms of acute onset of sore throat with fever : 
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Exclude the food employee who works in a food establishment serving a highly susceptible population; or 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Restrict the f ood employee who works in a food establishment not serving a highly susceptible population; 


	[(B)]fil If a food empl oyee is infected with a skin lesion containing pus such as a boil or infected wound that i s open or draining and not properly covered as specified in subsection (a) (1) (A) (v), restrict the f ood employee; 
	[ (9) ] (10) If a food employee is exposed to a foodborne pathogen as specified in subsection 
	(a) (1) (D) and (E) , restrict the food employee who 
	works in a food establishment serving a highly susceptible population. 
	(c) The person in charge shal l adhere to the following conditions when removing, adjusting, or retaining the exclusion or restriction of a food employee : 
	(1) Except when a food employee is diagnosed with an infection from hepatitis A virus or Salmonella Typhi: 
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Reinstat e a food employee who was excluded as specified in subsection (bl (1) (A) if the food employee : 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Is asymptomatic for at least twentyfour hours; or 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	Provi des to t he person in charge written medical documentation from a health practitioner that states the symptom is from a noninfectious condition; 



	(B) .
	(B) .
	(B) .
	If a food employee was diagnosed wi th an infection from Norovirus and excl uded as specified in subsection (bl (1) (B l: 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Restrict the food employee, who is asymptoma~ic for at l east twenty-four hours a nd works in a food establishment not serving a highly susceptible population, until the conditions for reinstatement as specified in subsection (bl (4 ) (A) or 

	(B) are met; or 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	Retain the exclusion for the food employee, who is asymptomatic for at least twenty-four hours and works in a food establishment that serves a highly susceptible popul ation, until the conditions for reinstatement as specified in subsection (b) (4) (A) or 


	(B) are met; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	If a food employee was diagnosed with an infection from Shigella spp. and excluded as speci fied in subsection (b) (1 ) (B) : 


	(i) .Restrict the food employee, who is asymptomatic for at least t wenty-four hours and works in a food establishment not serving a highly suscepti ble population, until the conditions for reinstatement as 
	specified in pa ragraph (5) (A) or (B) are met; or 
	(ii) .Retain the exclusion f or the food employee, who is asymptomatic for at least twenty-four hours and works in a food establishment that serves a highly susceptible population, until the conditions for reinstatement as specified in subsection (b) (5) (A) or 
	(B) , or (5) (A) and (c) (1) (C) (i) are met; 
	(D) .If a food employee was diagnosed with an infection from [Enterohemorrhagic or] Shiga toxin-producing E. Coli and excluded as specified in subsection (b) (1) (B) : 
	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Restrict the food employee, who is asymptomatic for at least twenty-four hours and works in a food establishment not serving a highly susceptible population, until the conditions for reinstatement as specified in subsection (b) (6) (A) or 

	(B) are met; or 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	Retain the exclusion for the food employee, who is asymptomatic for at least twenty-four hours and works in a food establishment that serves a highly susceptible population, until the conditions f or reinstatement a s specified in subsection (b) (6) (A) or 


	(B) are met; 
	ill .If a food employee was diagnosed with an infection from nontyphoidal Salmonella and excluded as specified in subsection 
	(b) (1) .(B) : 
	ill .Restrict the food employee, who is asymptomatic for at least thirty days until conditions for reinstatement as specified in subsection (c ) (7) (A) and 
	(B) are met; or 
	(ii) .Retain the exclusion for the food employee who is symptomatic , until conditions for reinstatement as specified in subsection (c) (7) (A) and 
	(B) are met; 
	(2) 
	(3) 
	( 4) 
	(5) 
	Reinstate a food employee who was excluded as specified in subsection (b) (2) if the person in charge obtains approval from the department and one of t he following conditions is met : 
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	The food employee has been jaundiced for .more than seven calendar days; .

	(B) .
	(B) .
	The anicteric food employee has been .symptomatic with symptoms other than .jaundice for more than fourteen calendar .days; or .

	(C) .
	(C) .
	The food employee provides to the person in charge written medical documentation from a health practitioner stating that the food employee is free of a hepatitis A virus infection; 


	Reinstate a food employee who was excluded as specified in subsection (b) (3) if: 
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	The person in charge obtains approval from .the department; and .

	(B) .
	(B) .
	The food employee provides to the person in charge written medical documentation from a health practitioner that states the food employee i s free from S . Typhi infection; 


	Reinstate a food employee who was excluded as specified in subsecti on (b) (1) (B) or (4) (A) who was restricted in subsection (b) (4) (B) if the person in charge obtains approval from the department and one of the following conditions is met: 
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	The excluded or restricted food employee provides to t he person in charge written medical documentation from a health practitioner stating that the food employee is free of a Norovirus infection; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	The food employee was excluded or restrict ed after symptoms of vomiting or diarrhea resolved, and more than fortyeight hours have passed since the food empl oyee became asymptomatic; or 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	The food employee was excluded or restricted and did not develop symptoms and more than forty-eight hours have passed since the food employee was diagnosed; 


	Reinstate a food employee who was excluded as specified in subsection (b) (1) (B) or (5) (A) or who was restricted in subsection (b) (5) (B) if the 
	person in charge obtains approval from the 
	department and one of the following conditi ons is 
	met : 
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	The excluded or restricted food employee provides to the person in charge written medi cal documentation from a health practitioner stating that the food employee is free of a Shigel la spp . i nfection based on test results showing two consecutive negative stool specimen cultures that are taken : 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Not earlier t ha n forty-eight hours after discontinuance of antibiotics; and 

	(ii) 
	(ii) 
	At least twenty-four hours apart ; 



	(B) .
	(B) .
	(B) .
	The food employee was excluded or 

	· restricted after symptoms of vomiting or diarrhea resolved, and more than seven calendar days have passed s ince the food employee became asymptomatic; or 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	The food employee was excluded or restricted and did not develop symptoms and more than seven calendar days have passed since the food empl oyee was diagnosed; 


	(6) .Reinstate a food employee who was excluded or restricted as specified in subsect ion (b) (1) (B) or (b) (6) (A) or who was restricted in subsection 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(6) (B) if the person in charge obtains approval from the department and one of the following conditions is met : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	The excluded or restricted food employee provides to the person in char ge written medical documentation from a health practitioner stating that the food employee is free of a n infection from 


	[Enterohemorrhagic or] Shiga toxinproducing Escherichia Coli based on test results that show t wo consecutive negative st ool specimen cultures t hat are taken: 
	(i) 
	(i) 
	(i) 
	Not earlier than forty-eight hours after discontinuance of antibi otics; 

	(ii) 
	(ii) 
	At least twenty-four hours apart; 


	(B) .The food empl oyee was excluded or restricted after symptoms of vomiting or di arrhea resolved and more than seven 
	calendar days have passed since the food employee became asymptomatic; or 
	(C) .The food employee was excluded or restricted and did not develop symptoms and more than seven days have passed since the food employee was diagnosed; 
	Reinstate a food empl oyee who was excluded as
	ill 
	specified in subsecti on (b) (1) (B) or who was restricted as specified in subsection (b) (7) if the person in charge obtains approval from the department and one of the following conditions is met: 
	(A) .The excluded or restricted food employee provides to the person in charge written medical documentation from a health practitioner stating that the food employee is free of nontyphoidal Salmonella infection based on test results showing two consecutive negative stool specimen cultures that are taken; Not earlier than forty-eight hours 
	ill 

	after discontinuance of antibiot ics, and 
	(ii) .At least twenty-four hours apart; 
	ill .The food employee was restricted after symptoms of vomiting or diarrhea resolved, and more than thirty days have passed since the food employee became asymptomatic; or 
	ill .The food employee was excluded or restricted and did not develop symptoms and more than thirty days have passed since the food employee was diagnosed. 
	[(7)]..@l Reinstate a food employee who was excluded or restricted as specified in subsection 
	[ (b) (7) (A)] (b) (8) (A) or (B) if the food employee provides to the person in charge written medical documentation from a health practitioner stating that the food empl oyee meets one of the following conditions : 
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Has received antibiotic therapy for Streptococcus pyogenes infection for more than twenty-four hours; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Has at least one negative throat specimen culture for Streptococcus pyogenes infection; or 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Is otherwise determined by a health practitioner to be free of a Streptococcus pyogenes i nfection; 


	[(8)]fil .Reinstate a food employee who was restricted as specified in subsection [(b) (8) ) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(9) if the skin, infected wound, cut, or pustular boil is properly covered with one of the f ollowing: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	An impermeable cover such as a finger cot or stall and a single-use glove over the impermeable cover if the infected wound or pustular boil is on the hand, finger, or wrist; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	An impermeable cover on the arm if the infected wound or pustular boil is on the arm; or 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	A dry, durable, tight-fitting bandage if the infected wound or pustular boil is on another part of the body; 


	[(9)JQQl .Reinstate a food employee who was restricted as specified in s ubsection [(b) (9)) 
	(b) (10) and was exposed to one of the following pathogens as specified in subsection (a) (1) (D) or 
	(E): 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	Norovirus and one of the following conditions is met : 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	More than forty-eight hours have passed since the last day the food empl oyee was potentially exposed; or 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	More than forty-eight hours have passed since the food employee' s household contact became asymptomatic; 



	(B) .
	(B) .
	(B) .
	Shigella spp. or [Enterohemorrhagic or] Shiga toxin producing Escherichia Coli and one of the following conditions is met : 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	More than three calendar days have passed since the last day the f ood employee was potentially exposed ; or 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	More than three calendar days have passed since the food employee ' s household cont act became asymptomatic; 



	(C) .
	(C) .
	(C) .
	S . Typhi and one of the following .conditions is met: .

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	More than fourteen calendar days have passed since the last day the food employee was potentially exposed; or 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	More than fourteen calendar days have passed since the food employee's household contact became asymptomatic. 



	(D) .
	(D) .
	(D) .
	Hepatitis A virus and one of the following conditions is met: 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	The food employee is immune to hepatitis A virus infection because of a prior illness from hepatitis A; 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	The food employee is immune to hepatitis A virus infection because of vaccination against hepatitis A; 




	(iii) .The food employee is i mmune to hepatitis A virus infection because of IgG administration; 
	(iv) .
	(iv) .
	(iv) .
	More than thirty calendar days have passed since the last day the food employee was potentially exposed; 

	(v) .
	(v) .
	More than thirty calendar days have passed since the food employee's household contact became jaundiced; or 

	(vi) .
	(vi) .
	The food employee does not use an alternative procedure that allows bare hand contact with ready-to-eat food until at least thirty calendar days after the potential exposure, as specified in subsection [(c) (9) (D) (iv) and (v) ,] (c) (10) (D) (iv) and (v) , and the food employee receives additional training about hepatitis A symptoms and preventing the transmission of infection, proper handwashing procedures, and protecting ready-toeat food from contamination introduced by bare hand contact . [Eff 2/24/20


	§11-50-22 Personal cleanliness . (a) Food employees shall keep their hands and exposed portions of their arms clean . 
	(b) .
	(b) .
	(b) .
	Cleaning procedure. 

	(
	(
	1) Except as specified in paragraph (4), food employees shall clean their hands and exposed portions of their arms, including surrogate prosthetic devices for hands or arms for at least 


	twenty seconds, using a cleaning compound in a 
	handwashing sink that is equipped as specified i n 
	sections 11-50-61(c) and 11-50-72(a) to (f) ; 
	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	Food employees shall use the following cleaning procedure in the order stated to clean their hands and exposed portions of their arms , including surrogate prosthetic devices for hands and arms : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Rinse under clean, running water; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Apply an amount of cleaning compound recommended by t he cleaning compound manufacturer; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	(C) .
	Rub together vigorously for at least ten to fifteen seconds while : 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Payi ng particular attention to removing soil from underneath the fingernails during the cleaning procedure; 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	Creating friction on the surfaces of the hands and arms or surrogate prosthetic devices for hands and arms, finger tips, and areas between the fingers; 



	(D) .
	(D) .
	Thoroughly rinse under clean, running water; and 

	(E) .
	(E) .
	Immediately follow the cleaning procedure with thorough drying using a method as speci fied in sect ion l l -50-72(c) ; 



	(3) .
	(3) .
	To avoid recontaminating t heir hands or surrogate prosthetic devices, food employees may use disposable paper towels or similar clean barriers when touching surfaces such as manually operated faucet handles on a handwashing sink or the handle of a restroom door; 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	If approved and capable of removing the types of soils encountered in the food operations involved, an automatic handwashing facility may be used by food employees to clean their hands or surrogate prosthetic devices . 


	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	Food employees shall clean their hands and exposed portions of their arms as specified in [section ll-50-22(b)J subsection (b) immediately before engaging in food preparation including working with exposed food, clean equipment and utensils , and unwrapped single-service and single-use articles and : 

	(
	(
	(
	1) After touching bare human body parts other than clean hands and c l ean, exposed portions of arms; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	After using the toilet room; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	After caring for or handling service animals or aquatic animals as specified in section 11-50-23(d) (2) ; 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	Except as specified in section 11-50-23(a) (2), after coughing, sneezing, using a handkerchief or disposable tissue, using tobacco, eating, or drinking; 

	(5) .
	(5) .
	After handling soiled equipment or utensils; 

	(6) .
	(6) .
	During food preparation, as often as necessary to remove soil and contamination and to prevent cross contamination when changing tasks ; 

	(7) .
	(7) .
	When switching between working with raw food and working with ready-to-eat food; 

	(8) .
	(8) .
	Before donning gloves [for ] to initiate a task that involves working with food; and 

	(9) .
	(9) .
	After engaging in other activities that contaminate the hands. 



	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	Food employees shall clean their hands in a handwashing sink or approved automatic handwashing facility and may not cleau t heir hands in a sink used for food preparation or warewashing, or in a service sink or a curbed cleaning facility used for the disposal of mop water and similar liquid waste . 

	(e) .
	(e) .
	(e) .
	Hand antiseptics. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	A hand antiseptic used as a topi cal application, a hand antiseptic solution used as a hand dip, or a hand antiseptic soap shall : 

	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	Comply with one of the following : 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Be an approved drug that is listed in the FDA publication "Approved Drug Products with Therapeutic Equivalence Evaluationsu as an approved drug based on safety and effectiveness; or 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	Have active antimicrobial ingredients that are listed in the FDA monograph for OTC Heal th-Care Antiseptic Drug Products as an antiseptic handwash; 



	(B) .
	(B) .
	[Comply with one of the following :] Consist only of components which the intended use of each compl ies with one of the following : 






	(i) .[Have components that are exempted from the requirement of being listed in federal food additive regulations] 
	(i) .[Have components that are exempted from the requirement of being listed in federal food additive regulations] 
	A threshold of regulation exemption as 

	specified in 21 CFR 170 . 39, entitled 
	"Threshold of regulation for 
	substances used in food-contact 
	articles"; 
	(ii) .Comply with and be listed in 21 CFR 178, entitled "Indirect food additives: adjuvants, production aids, and sanitizers" as regulated for use as a food additive with conditions of safe use; or 
	(iii) .[Comply with and be listed in]~ determination of generally recognized as safe (GRAS). Partial listings of substances with food uses that are GRAS may be found in 21 CFR 182, entitled "Substances generally recognized as safe", 21 CFR 184 , entitled "Direct food substances affirmed as generally recognized as safe", or 21 CFR 186, entitled "Indirect food substances affirmed as generally recognized as safe", for use in contact with food[; and] , and in FDA's Inventory of GRAS Notices, or A prior sanction
	Ingredients," and 
	(C) .Be applied only to hands that are cleaned as specified in subsection (b); 
	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	If a hand antiseptic or a hand antiseptic solution used as a hand dip does not meet the criteria specified in paragraph (1) (B), use shall be : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Followed by thorough hand rinsing in clean water before hand contact with food or by the use of gloves; or 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Limited to situations that involve no direct contact with food by the bare hands; 



	(3) .
	(3) .
	A hand antiseptic solution used as a hand dip shall be maintained clean and at a strength equivalent to at least one hundred milligrams per liter of chlorine. 

	(f) .
	(f) .
	(f) .
	Fingernails maintenance. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Food employees shall keep their fingernails trimmed, filed, and maintained so the edges and surfaces are cleanable and not rough; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Unless wearing intact gloves in good repair, a food empl oyee may not wear fingernail polish or artificial fingernails when working with exposed food . 




	(g) 
	(g) 
	(g) 
	Except for a plain ring such as a wedding band, while preparing food, food employees may not wear jewelry including medical information jewelry on t heir arms and hands. 

	(h) 
	(h) 
	Food employees shall wear clean outer clothing to prevent contamination of food, equipment, utensils, linens, and single-service and single-use articles . [Eff 2/24/2014; am and comp (Auth : HRS §321-11) 


	(Imp: .HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-23 Hygienic practices . (a) Eating, drinking, or using tobacco. 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (2), an employee shall eat, drink, or use any form of tobacco only in designated areas where the contaminat ion of exposed food ; clean equipment, ut ensils, and linens; unwrapped single-service and single-use art icles; or other items needing protection cannot result; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	A food employee may drink from a closed beverage container if the container i s handled to prevent contamination of : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	The employee' s hands; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	The container; and 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Exposed food, clean equipment, utensils, linens , unwrapped single-service, and single-use articles . 




	(b) Food employees experiencing persist ent sneezing, coughing, or a runny nose that causes discharges from the eyes, nose, or mouth may not work with exposed food; c lean equipment, utensils, and linens; or unwr apped singleservice or single-use articles . 
	(c) .
	(c) .
	(c) .
	Hair restraints effectiveness . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as provided in paragraph (2), food employees may be required to we ar hair restraints such as hats, hair coverings or nets, beard restraints, and clothing that covers body hair, that are designed and worn to effecti vely keep 


	their hair from contacting exposed food; clean equipment, utensils, and linens; and unwrapped single-service and single-use articles; 
	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	This section does not apply to food employees such as counter staff who only serve beverages and wrapped or packaged foods, hostesses, and wait staff if they present a minimal risk of contaminating exposed food; clean equipment, utensils , and linens; and unwrapped singleservice and single-use articles . 

	(d) .
	(d) .
	Animals handling prohibition. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (2), food employees may not care for or handle animals that may be present such as patrol dogs, service animals, or pets that are allowed as specified in section 11-50-74 (o) (2) (B) to (E); 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Food employees with service animals may handle or care for their service animals and food employees may handle or care for fish in aquariums or molluscan s hellfish or crustacea in display tanks if they wash their hands as specified in section 


	11-50-22 (b) and 
	11-50-22 (b) and 
	11-50-22 (b) and 
	(c) (3) . 
	[Eff 2/24/2014; 

	comp 
	comp 
	] 
	(Auth : 
	HRS 
	§321-11) (Imp : 

	HRS 
	HRS 
	§321-11) 


	§§11-50-24 to 11-50-29 (Reserved). 
	SUBCHAPTER 3 
	FOOD 
	§11-50-30 Characteristics. Food shall be safe, unadulterated, and, as specified in section ll-50-35(b) , honestly presented. [Eff 2/24/2014; comp (Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-31 Source, specifications for receiving, original containers and records . (a) Compliance with food law. 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Food shall be obtained from sources that comply with law; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Food prepared in a private home may not be used or offered for human consumption in a food establishment; 


	[(3) .Packaged food s hall be labeled as specified in law, including 21 CFR 101, entitled "Food labelingu; 9 CFR 317, entitled "Labeling, marking devices, and containersu, and 9 CFR 381 Subpart N entitled "Labeling and containersu, and as specified in subsections (n) and (o); 
	(4)]fil Fish, other than those specified in section 11-50-33(e) (2), that are intended for consumption in raw or undercooked form and allowed as specified in section ll-50-33(a) (4) , may be offered for sale or service if they are obtained from a supplier that freezes the fish as specified in section 11-50-33(e); or if they are frozen on t he premises as specified in section 11-50-33(e) and records are retained as specified in section 11-50-33(f) ; 
	[(S) Jill Whole-muscle, intact beef steaks that are intended for consumption in an undercooked form without a consumer advisory as specified i n section 11-50-33 (a) (3) shall be : 
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Obtained from a food processing plant that, upon request by the purchaser, packages t he steak~ and labels them, to indicate that the s teaks meet the definition of wholemuscle, intact beef; or 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Deemed acceptable by the director based on other evidence, such as written buyer specifications or invoices, that indicates that the steaks meet the definition of whole-muscle, intact beef; and 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	(C) .
	If individually cut in a food .establishment: .

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Cut from whole-muscle intact beef that is labeled by a food processi ng plant as specifi ed in subparagraph (A) or identified as specified in subparagraph (B); 

	(ii) 
	(ii) 
	Prepared so they remain intact; and 




	(iii) .If packaged for undercooking in a food establishment, labeled as s p ecified in subparagraph (A) or identified as specified in subparagraph (B) . 
	[ (6)Jill Meat and poultry that is not a ready-t o-eat food and is in a packaged form when it is offered for sale or otherwise offered for consumption, shall be labeled to include safe handling 
	instructions as specified in l aw, including 9 CFR 
	317.2(1) and 9 CFR 381.125(b); 
	[(7)]J....§l .Eggs that have not been specifically treated to destroy all viable Salmonellae shall be labeled t o include safe handling instructions as specified in law, including 21 CFR 101.17(h) . 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	Food in a hermetically sealed contai ner shall be obtained from a food processing pl ant that is regulated by the food r egulatory agency that has jurisdiction over the plant. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	Fluid milk and milk products sha ll be obtained from sources that compl y with Grade A Standards as specified in law . 

	(d) .
	(d) .
	(d) .
	Fish. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Fish that are received for sale or service shall be : 

	(A) .Commercially and legally caught or harvested; or 
	(B ) .Approved for sale or service; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Mo l luscan s hellfish that are recreationally caught may not be received for sale or service. 




	(e ) .Molluscan shellfish. 
	(1 ) Mol luscan shellfish shall be obtained from sources according to law or the requirements specified in the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Public Health Service, Food and Drug Administration, National Shellfish Sanitation Program Guide for the Control of Molluscan Shellfish; 
	(2) .Molluscan shell fish received in i nterstate commerce shall be from sources that are listed in the Interstate Certified Shellfish Shippers List. 
	(f) .
	(f) .
	(f) .
	Wild mushrooms . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (2) , mushroom species picked in t he wi l d shall [be obtained from sources where each mushroom is indivi dually inspected and found t o be safe by an approved mushroom identification expert;] not be offered for sale or service by a food establishment unless the food est ablishme nt has been approved to do so by the department; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	This section does not apply to : 


	(A) Cultivated wild mushroom species that are grown, harvest ed, and processed i n an 
	operation that is regulated by the food 
	regulatory agency that has jurisdi ction 
	over .the operation; or 
	(B) .Wild mushroom species if they are in packaged form and are the product of a food processing plant that is regulated by the food regulatory agency that has j ur i sdiction over the plant . 
	(g) Game animals . I f game animals are received for sale or service they shall be : 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Commercially rai sed for food and: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Raised, slaughtered, and processed under a voluntary inspection program that is conducted by the agency that has animal health jurisdiction; or 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Under a routine inspection program conducted by a regulatory agency other t han the agency that has animal health jurisdiction; and 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	(C) .
	Raised, slaughtered, and processed according to: 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Laws governing meat and poultry as determined by t he agency that has animal health j urisdiction and the agency that conducts the inspection program; and 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	Requirements which are developed by t h e agency that has animal health jurisdiction and the agency that conducts the inspection program with consideration of factors such as the need for antemortem and postmortem examination by an approved veterinarian or veterinarian's designee; 





	(2) .
	(2) .
	Under a voluntary inspection program administered by the USDA for game animals such as exotic animals (reindeer, el k, deer, antelope, water buffalo, or bison) that are "inspect ed and approvedu in accordance with 9 CFR 352 , entitled "Exotic animals and horses; voluntary inspectionu or rabbits that are "inspected and certifiedu in accordance with 9 CFR 354, entitled "Vol untary inspection of rabbits and edibl e products thereofu ; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	(3) .
	As allowed by law, for wild game ani mals that are live caught: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Under a routine inspection program conducted by a regulatory agency such as the agency that has animal health jurisdiction; and 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	(B) .
	Slaughtered and processed according to : 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Laws governing meat and poultry as determined by the agency that has animal health jurisdiction and the agency that conducts the inspection program; and 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	Requirements which are developed by the agency that has animal health jurisdiction and the agency that conducts the inspection program with consideration of factors such as the need for antemortem and postmortem examination by an approved veterinarian or veterinarian's designee; or 





	(4) .
	(4) .
	(4) .
	As allowed by law, for field-dressed wild game animals under a routine inspection program that ensures the animals : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Receive a postmortem examination by an approved veterinarian or veterinarian ' s designee; or 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Are field-dressed and transported according to requirements specified by the agency that has animal health j ur i sdiction and the agency that conducts the inspection program; and 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Are processed according to laws governing meat and poultry as determined by the agency that has animal health jurisdiction and the agency that conducts the inspection program. 



	(h) .
	(h) .
	Temperature when received . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (2), refrigerated, potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food) s ha l l be a t a temperature of forty-one degrees Fahrenheit or below when received; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	If a temperature other than forty-one degrees Fahrenheit for a potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food) is 


	specified in law governing its distribution, such 
	as laws governing milk and molluscan she llfish, 
	the food may be received a t the specified 
	temperature; 
	(3) .
	(3) .
	(3) .
	Raw eggs shall be received in refrigerated equipment that maintains a n ambient air temperature of forty-five degrees Fahrenheit or less; 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	Potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food) that is cooked to a temperature and for a time specified in sect ion 11-50-33(a) to (c) and re ceived hot shall be at a temperature of one hundred thirty-five degrees Fahrenheit or above ; 

	(5) .
	(5) .
	A food that is labeled frozen and shipped frozen by a food processing plant shall be received frozen; 

	(6) .
	(6) .
	Upon receipt, potentially hazardous food 


	(time/temperature control for safety food) shall be free of evidence of previous temperature abuse . 
	(i) 
	(i) 
	(i) 
	(i) 
	Food may not contain unapproved food additives or additives that : 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Exceed amounts specified in 21 CFR 170-180 relating to food additives; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Generally recognized as safe or prior sanctioned substances that exceed amounts specified in 21 CFR 181-186; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Substances that exceed amounts specified in 9 CFR Subpart C Section 424 . 21(b) , entitled "Food ingredients and sources of radiationu; or 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	Pesticide residues that exceed provisions specified in 40 CFR 180, entitled " Tolerances and exceptions for pesticide chemical residues in foodu . 



	(j) 
	(j) 
	(j) 
	Eggs shall be received clean and sound and may not exceed the restricted egg tolerances for U. S . Consumer Grade Bas specified in United States Standards, Grades, and Weight Classes for Shell Eggs, AMS 56 . 200 et seq . , administered by the Agricultural Marketing Service of USDA . 

	(k) .
	(k) .
	(k) .
	Eggs and milk products, pasteurized. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Egg products shall be obtained pasteurized; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	Fluid and dry milk and milk products shall: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Be obtained pasteurized; and 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Comply with Grade A Standards as specified 






	in law; 
	(3) .
	(3) .
	(3) .
	Frozen milk products, such as ice cream, shall be obtained pasteurized as specified in 21 CFR 135, entitled "Frozen desserts" . 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	Cheese shall be obtained pasteurized unless alternative procedures to pasteurization are specified in the CFR, such as 21 CFR 133, entitled "Cheeses and related cheese products", for curing certain cheese vari eties . 


	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Food packages shall be in good condition and protect the integrity of the contents so that the food is not exposed to adulteration or potential contaminant s . 

	(m) 
	(m) 
	(m) 
	Ice for use as a food or a cool ing medi um shall be made from drinking water . 

	(n) .
	(n) .
	(n) .
	Shucked shellfish, packaging and i dentification . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Raw shucked shellfish shall be obtained in nonreturnable packages which bear a legible label that identifies the : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Name, address, and certification number of the shucker, packer, or repacker of t he moll uscan shellfish; and 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	The "sell by" or "best if used by" date for packages with a capacity of less than onehalf gallon or the date shucked for packages with a capacity of one-half gallon or more; 



	(2) .
	(2) .
	A package of raw shucked shellfish that does not bear a label or which bears a label which does not contain all the information as specified in paragraph (1) shall be subject to a hold order, as allowed by law, or seizure and destruction . 

	(o) .
	(o) .
	Shellstock identification . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Shel lstock shall be obtained in containers bearing legible source identification tags or labels that are affixed by the harvester or dealer that depurates, ships, or reships the shellstock, as specified in state rules or the National Shellfish Sanitation Program Guide for the Control of Molluscan Shel lfish, and : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Except a s specified in paragraph (3), the harvester' s tag or label shall list the following information in the following order : 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	The harvester ' s identification number that is assigned by the shellfish control authority; 

	(ii) 
	(ii) 
	The date of harvesting; 


	(iii) .The most precise ident i fication of the harvest location or aquaculture si te that is practicable based on the system of harvest area designations that is in use by the shellfish control authority and including the abbreviation of t he name of the state or country in which the shellfish are harvested; 
	(iv) 
	(iv) 
	(iv) 
	The type and quantity of she llfish; and 

	(v) .
	(v) .
	The following s t atement in bold, capitalized type: "This tag is r equired to be a t tached until cont ainer is empty or retagged and thereafter kept on file for 90 daysu ; and 



	(B) .
	(B) .
	(B) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (4), each dealer' s tag or label shall list the following information in the following order: 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	The dealer's name and address, and the certificati on number assigned by the shellfish control a uthority; 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	The original shipper ' s certification number including t he abbreviation of the name of the state or country in which the she llfish are harvested; 




	(iii) .The same informat ion as specified for a harvester's tag in subparagraph 
	(A) (ii) to (iv); and 
	(iv) .The following statement in bold, capitalized type: "This tag i s required to be attached until container is empty a nd thereafter kept on file for 90 daysu; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	A container of shellstock that does not bear a tag or label or that bears a tag or label that does not contain all t he information as specified in paragraph (1) shall be subject to a hold order, as allowed by law, or sei zure and destruction in accordance with 21 CFR Subpart D, entitl ed "Specific administrative decisions regarding interstate shipmentsu, Section 124 0. 60(d); 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	I f a space i s provided on the harveste r ' s tag or l a bel for a dealer ' s name, address, and certification number, the dealer ' s information shall be listed first; 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	If the harvester's tag or label is designed to accommodate each dealer ' s i dent ification as specified in paragraph (1 ) (B) (i) and (ii), individual dealer tags or labels need not be provided. 



	(p) 
	(p) 
	(p) 
	When received by a food establishment, shellst ock shall be reasonably free of mud, dead shellfish, and shellfish with broken shells. Dead shellfish or shellstock with badly b r oken shells shall be discarded . 

	(q) .
	(q) .
	(q) .
	Juice treated. Pre-packaged juice shall: 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Be obtained from a processor with a HACCP system a s specified in 21 CFR Part 120, entitled "Hazard analysis and critical control (HACCP) systems"; and 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Be obtained pasteurized or otherwise treated to attain a five-log reduction of the most resistant microorganism of public health significance as specified in 21 CFR Part 120 .24, entitled "Process Controls" . 

	(r) .
	(r) .
	Molluscan shellfish, original cont ainer. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as specifi ed in paragraphs (2) to (4), molluscan s hellfish may not be removed from t he container in which they are received other than immediately befor e sale or preparation for service; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	For display purposes, shellstock may be removed from the container in which they are received, displayed on drained ice, or held in a display containe r, and a quantity specified by a consumer may be removed from the display or display container a nd provided to the consumer if: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	The source of the shellstock on display is identified as specified i n s ubsection (o) and recorded as specified in subsect ion 

	(s) ; .and 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	The s hellstock are protected from contamination; 



	(3) .
	(3) .
	(3) .
	Shucked shellfish may be removed from the container in which they were received and held in a di splay container from which individual servings are dispensed upon a consumer' s request if: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	The labeling information for the shellfish on display as specified in subsection (n) is retained and correl ated to the date when, or dates during which, the shellfish are sold or served; and 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	The shellfish are protected from contamination; 



	(4) .
	(4) .
	(4) .
	Shucked shellfish may be removed from the container in which they were recei ved and repacked in consumer self service containers where allowed by law if: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	The labeling information for the shellfish is on each consumer self service container as specified in subsection (n) and section 11-50-35 (c) (1) and (2) (A) to [ (E);] J.QL 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	The labeling information as specified in subsection (n) is retained and correlated with the date when, or dates during which, the shellfish are sold or served; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	The labeling information and dates specified in subparagraph (B) are maintained for ninety days; and 

	(
	(
	D) The s hellfish are protected from .contamination . .



	(s) .
	(s) .
	Shellstock, maintaining identification . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (3) (B), shellstock tags or l abels shall remain attached to the container in which t he shellstock are received until the container is empty; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	The date when the last shellstock from the container is sold or served shall be recorded on the tag or label; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	(3) .
	The identity of the source of shellstock that are sold or served shall be maintained by retaining shellstock tags or labels for ninety calendar days from the date that is recorded on the tag or label, as specified in paragraph (2), by : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Using an approved record keeping system that keeps the tags or labels in chronological order correlated to the date that is recorded on the tag or label, as specified in paragraph (2); and 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	(B) .
	If shellstock are removed from its tagged or labeled container : 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Preserving source identification by using a record keeping system as specified in subparagraph (A); and 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	Ensuring that shellstock from one tagged or labeled container are not commingled with shellstock from another container with different certification numbers; different harvest dates ; or different growing areas as identified on the t ag or label before being ordered by the consumer . [Eff 2/24/2014; am and comp 








	] (Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-32 Protection from contamination after receiving . (a) Preventing contamination from hands . 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Food employees shall wash their hands as specified in section ll-50-22(b); 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Except when washing fruits and vegetables as specified in subsection (g) or as specified in paragraph (4), food employees may not con~act exposed, ready-to-eat food with their bar e hands and shall use suitable utensils such as deli tissue, spatulas, tongs, single-use gloves, or dispensing equipment; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Food employees shall minimize bare hand and arm contact with exposed food that i s not in a readyto-eat form; 


	J.il .Paragraph (2) does not apply to a food employee that contacts exposed, ready-to-eat food with bare hands at t he time the ready-to-eat food is being added as an ingredient to a food that : 
	(A) .Contains a raw animal food and is to be cooked in the food establishment to heat all parts of the food to the minimum temperature specified in section 11-5033(a) (1)-(2) or ll-50-33(b); or 
	ill .Does not contain a r aw animal food but is to be cooked in t he food establishment to heat all parts of the f ood tp a temperature of one hundred forty-five degrees Fahrenheit. 
	[(4) ]ffi Food employees not serving a highly susceptible population may contact exposed, ready-to-eat food wit h their bare hands if: 
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	The [permit holder] owner or operator obtains prior approval from the department; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	(B) .
	Written procedures are maintained in the food establishment and made available to the department upon request that include: 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	For each bare hand contact procedure, a listing of the specific ready-to-eat foods that are touched by bare hands; 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	Diagrams and other information showing that handwashing facilities, installed, located, equipped, and maintained as specified in sections 11-50-61(g), (1), (o) and 11-50-72(b), 


	(c) , and (e), are in an easily accessible location and in c l ose proximity to the work station where the bare hand contact procedure is conducted; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	(C) .
	A written employee health policy that details llow the food establishment complies with section 11-50-21 (a), (b), and (c) including : 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Documentation t hat food employees and conditional employees acknowledge that they are informed to report information about their health a nd activities as they relate to gastrointestinal symptoms and diseases that are transmittable through food as specified in section 11-50-21(a) (1); 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	Documentation that food employees and conditional employees acknowledge their responsibilities as specified in section 11-50-21(a) (5); and 


	(iii) .Documentation that the person in charge acknowledges the responsibilities as specified in section 11-50-21 (a) (2) to (4), (b), and (c); 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	(D) .
	Documentation that food employee s acknowledge that they have received training in: 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	The risks of contacting the specific ready-to-eat foods with bare hands; 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	Proper handwashing as specified in section 11-50-22(b); 


	(iii) .When to wash their hands as specified in section 11-50-22(c); 
	(iv) 
	(iv) 
	(iv) 
	Where to wash their hands as specified i n section 11-50 22(d); 

	(v) .
	(v) .
	Proper f ingernail maintenance as specified in section ll-50-22(f) ; 

	(vi) .
	(vi) .
	Prohibition of jewelry as specified in section 11-50-22(g); and 


	(vii) .Good hygienic practices as specified in section 11-50-23(a) a nd (b); 

	(E) .
	(E) .
	Documentati on that hands are washed before food preparation and as necessary to prevent cross contamination by food employees as specified in section 11-50-22 (a), (b), (c), and (d) during all hours of operation when the specific readyto-eat foods are prepared; 

	(F) .
	(F) .
	(F) .
	Documentation that food employees contacting ready-to-eat food with bare hands use two or more of the following control measures to provide additional safeguards to hazards associated with bare hand contact: 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Double handwashing; 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	Nail brushes; 


	(iii) .A hand antiseptic after handwashing as specified in section ll-50-22(e); 
	(iv) .
	(iv) .
	(iv) .
	Incentive programs such as paid sick leave that assist or encourage food employees not to work when they are ill; or 

	(v) .
	(v) .
	Other control measures approved by the [department;] director; and 



	(G) .
	(G) .
	Documentation that corrective action is taken when subparagraphs (A) to (F) are not followed . 


	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	A food employee may not use a utensil more than once to taste food that is to be sold or served. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	Packaged and unpackaged food -separation, packaging, and segregation. 


	(1) .Food shall be protected from cross contamination by : 


	SBRRB Apr. 19, 2017 Agenda Exhibit 3C1 OCR
	SBRRB Apr. 19, 2017 Agenda Exhibit 3C2 OCR
	Structure Bookmarks
	(3) 
	(4) 
	(5) 
	ill 
	( d} (1) 
	(D} .For a period of time that does not allow thawed portions of a raw animal food requiring cooking as specified in section 11-50-33(a} (1) or (2) to be above forty-one degrees Fahrenheit, for more than four hours including : (i} The time the food is exposed to the 
	running water and the time needed for preparation for cooking; or 
	(ii} .The time it takes under refrigeration to lower the food temperature to forty-one degrees Fahrenheit; 
	As part of a cooking process if the food that is frozen is : (A} Cooked as specified in section 
	11-50-33(a} (1), (2) or (b}; or 
	(B} .Thawed in a microwave oven and immediately .transferred to conventional cooking .equipment, with no interruption in the .process; .
	Using any procedure if a portion of frozen readyto-eat food is thawed and prepared for immediate service in response Lo an individual consumer' s order; or Using any procedure that ensures the surface temperature does not exceed forty-one degrees Fahrenheit during thawing[ . ]; or Reduced oxygen packaged fish that bears a label that it is to be kept frozen until time of use should be removed from the reduced oxygen environment : 
	(A} .Prior to its thawing under refrigeration as specified in paragraph (1) of this section; or 
	ill .Prior to, or immediately upon compl etion of, its thawing using procedures specified in paragraph (2) of this section . 
	Cooling . Cooked potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food} shall be cooled: 
	(A} .Within two hours from one hundred thirty.five degrees Fahrenheit to seventy degrees .Fahrenheit; and .
	(B) .Withi n a total of six hours from one hundred thirty-five degrees Fahrenheit to forty-one degrees Fahrenheit or less; 
	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	Potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food) shall be cooled within four hours to forty-one degrees Fahrenheit or l ess if prepared from ingredients at ambient temperature, such as reconstituted foods and canned tuna; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (4), a potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food) received in compliance with laws allowing a temperature above forty-one degrees Fahrenheit during shipment from the supplier as specified in section 11-50-31(h) (2), shall be cooled within four hours to forty-one degrees Fahrenheit or less. 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	Raw eggs shall be received as specified in section 11-50-31 (h) (3) and immediately placed in refrigerated equipment that maintains an ambi ent air temperature of forty-five degrees Fahrenheit or less; 

	(e) .
	(e) .
	Cool ing methods . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Cooling shall be accomplished in accordance with the t ime and temperature criteria specified in subsection (d) by using one or more of the following methods based on the type of food being cooled : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Placing the food in shallow pans; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Separati ng the food into smaller or thinner portions; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Using rapid cooling equipment; 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	Stirring the food in a container placed in an ice water bath; 

	(E) .
	(E) .
	Using containers (such as metal and stainless steel) t hat facilitate heat transfer; 

	(F) .
	(F) .
	Adding ice as an ingredient; or 

	(G) .
	(G) .
	Other effective methods; 



	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	When placed in cooling or cold holding equipment, food containers in which food is being cooled shall be : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Arranged in the equipment to provide maximum heat transfer through the container walls; and 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Loosely covered, or uncovered if protected from overhead contamination as specified in section 11-50-32 (q) (1) (B), during the cooling period to facilitate heat transfer from the surface of the food. 




	(f) Potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food), hot and cold holding . 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except during preparation, cooking, or cooling, or when time is used as the public health control as specified in subsection (i), and except as specified in paragraphs (2) and (3) , potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food) shall be maintained: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	At one hundred thirty-five degrees Fahrenheit or above , except that roasts cooked to a temperature and for a time specified in section ll-50-33(a) (2) or reheated as specified in section l l -50-33(h) (5) may be held at a temperature of one hundred thirty degrees Fahrenheit or above; or 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	At forty-one degrees Fahrenheit or less; 



	(2) .
	(2) .
	Eggs that have nut been treated to dP.stroy all viable Salmonellae shall be stored in refrigerated equipment that maintains an ambient air temperature of forty-five degrees Fahrenheit or less; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food) in a homogenous liquid form may be maintained outside of the temperature control requirements, as specified in paragraph 


	(1), while contained within specially designed equipment that complies with the design and construction requirements as specified in section ll-50-46(p) (5) . 
	(g) Ready-to-eat, potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food) , date marking . 
	(1) .Except when packaging food using a reduced oxygen packaging method as specified in subsection (1) , and except as specified in paragraphs (4) and 
	(5), refrigerated, ready-to-eat, potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food) prepared and held in a food establishment for more than twenty-four hours shall be clearl y marked to indicate the date or day by which the food shall be consumed on the 
	premises, sold, or discarded when held at a temperature of forty-one degrees Fahrenheit o r less for a maximum of seven days; 
	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	Except as specified in paragraphs (4) to (6), refrigerated, ready-to-eat, potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food) prepared and packaged by a food processing plant shall be clearly marked, at the time the original container is opened in a food establishment and if the food is held for more than twenty-four hours, to indicate the date or day by which the food shall be consumed on the premises, sold, or discarded, based on the temperature and time combinations specified in paragra

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	The day the original container is opened in the food establishment shall be counted as day one ; and 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	The day or date marked by the food establ ishment may not exceed a manufacturer's use-by date if the manufacturer determined the use-by date based on food safety; 



	(3) .
	(3) .
	A refrigerated, ready-tu-eat, potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food) ingredient or a portion of a refrigerated, ready-to-eat, potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food) that i s subsequently combined with additional ingredients or portions of food shall retain the date marking of the earliest-prepared or first prepared ingredient; 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	(4) .
	A date marking system that meet s the criteria stated in paragraphs (1) a nd (2) may include : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Using a method approved by the department for refrigerated, ready-to-eat potentially hazardous food (time/temperature cont rol for safety food) that is frequently rewrapped, such as lunchmeat or a roast, or for which date marking is impractical, such as soft serve mix or milk in a dispensing machine; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Marking the date or day of preparation, with a procedure to discard the food on or before the last date or day by which the food must be consumed on the premises, 




	sold, or discarded as specified i n paragraph (1); 
	(C) .
	(C) .
	(C) .
	Marking the date or day the original container is opened i n a food establishment , with a procedure to discard the food on or before the last date or day by which the food must be consumed on t he premises, sold, or discarded as specified in paragraph (2); or 

	(D) 
	(D) 
	Usi ng calendar dates, days of the week, color-coded marks, or other effective marking methods, provided t hat the marking system is discl osed to the [director] department upon request; 


	(5) .Paragraphs (1) and (2) do not apply t o individual meal portions served or repackaged for sale from a bulk container upon a consumer' s request;
	ill .Paragraphs (1) and (2) do not apply to s hellstock. 
	[(6)JJ.2.l .Paragraph (2) does not apply to the .following foods prepared and packaged by a food .p r ocessing plant inspected by a regul a t ory .authority : .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Deli salads, such as ham salad, seafood salad, chicken salad, egg salad, pasta salad, potato salad, and macaroni salad, manufactured in accordance with 21 CFR 110, entitled "Current good ma n.ufacturing practice in manufacturing, packing, or holding huma n food" ; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Hard cheeses containi ng not more than 39 per cent moisture as defined in 21 CFR 133, entitled "Cheeses and related cheese products", such as cheddar, gruyere, parmesan and reggiano, and romano; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Semi-soft cheeses containing more t han thirty-nine per cent moi sture , but not more than fifty per cent moisture, as defined in 21 CFR 133, entitled "Cheeses and related cheese pr oducts", such as blue, edam, gorgonzol a , gouda, and Monterey jack; 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	Cultured dairy products as defined in 21 CFR 131, entitled "Milk and cream", such as yogurt, sour cream, and buttermilk; 

	(E) .
	(E) .
	Preserved f i s h products, such as pickled herring a nd dried or salted cod, and other 


	acidified fish products defined in 21 CFR 114, entitled "Acidified foods" ; 
	(F) .
	(F) .
	(F) .
	She lf stable, dry fermented sausages, such as pepperoni and Genoa salami that are not labeled "Keep Refrigerated" as specified in 9 CFR 317 entitled "Labeling, marking devices, and containers", and which retain the original casing on the product; and 

	(G) .
	(G) .
	Shelf stable salt-cured products such as prosciutto and Parma (ham) that are not labeled "Keep Refrigerated" as specified in 9 CFR 317 entitled "Labeling, marking devices, and containers" . 


	(h) Ready-to-eat, potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety f ood) , disposition. 
	(1) .A food specified in subsection (g) (1) or (2) shall be discarded if it: 
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Exceeds the temperature and time combination specified in subsection (g) (1), except time t hat the product is frozen; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Is in a container or package that does not bear a date or day; or 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Is appropriately marked with a date or day that exceeds a temperature and time combination as specified in subsection 


	(g) ( 1); 
	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	Refrigerated, ready-to-eat, potentially hazardous food (time/temperature c'ontrol for safety food) prepared in a food establishment and dispensed through a vending machine with an automatic shutoff control shall be discarded if it exceeds a temperature and time combination as specified in subsection (g) (1) ; 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	Time a~ a public health control. 


	( 1) Except as specified in paragraph (4), if time without temperature control is used as the public health control for a working supply of potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food) before cooki ng, or for ready-to-eat potentially hazardous food 
	(time/temperature control for safety food) that is displayed or he l d for sale or service : 
	(A) .Written procedures shall be prepared in advance, maintained in the food establishment and made available to the department upon request that specify: 
	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Methods of compliance with paragraph 

	(2) (A) to (C) or (3) (A) to (E); and 

	(ii) 
	(ii) 
	Methods of compliance with subsection 


	(d) for food that is prepared, cooked, and refrigerated before time is used as a public health control; 
	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	If time without temperature control is used as the public health control up to a maximum of four hours: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	The food sha ll have an initial temperature of forty-one degrees Fahrenheit or l ess when removed from cold holding temperature control or one hundred [thirty-one) thirtyfive degrees Fahrenheit or greater when removed from hot holding temperature control ; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	The food shall be marked or otherwise identified to indicate the time that is four hours past the point in time when the food is r emoved from t emperature control; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	The food shall be cooked and served, served at any temperature if ready-to-eat, or discarded, within fuur hours from the point in time when the food is removed from temperature control ; and 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	The food in unmarked containers or packages , or marked to exceed a four-hour limit shall be discarded; 



	(3) .
	(3) .
	(3) .
	If time without temperature control is used as the public health control up to a maximum of six hours : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	The food shall have an init i al temperature of forty-one degrees Fahrenheit or less when removed from temperature control and the food temperature may not exceed seventy degrees Fahrenheit within a maximum time period of six hours; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	The food shall be moni tored to ensure the warmest portion of the food does not exceed seventy degrees Fahrenheit during the sixhour period, unless a n ambient air temperature is maintained that ensures the food does not exceed seventy degrees Fahrenheit during the six-hour ho1ding period; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	(C) .
	The food shall be marked or otherwise identified to i ndicate : 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	The time when the food is removed from forty-one degrees Fahrenheit or less cold holding temperature control; and 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	The time that is six hours past the point in time when the food is removed from cold holding temperature control ; 



	(D) .
	(D) .
	(D) .
	The food shall be : 

	(i) .Discarded if the temperature of the food exceeds seventy degrees Fahrenheit; or 
	(i i) Cooked and served, served at any temperature if ready-to-eat, or discarded within a maximum of six hours from the point in time when the food is removed from fort y-one degrees Fahrenheit or less cold holding temperature control ; and 

	(E) .
	(E) .
	The food in unmarked containers or packages, or marked with a time that exceeds the six-hour limit shall be discarded; 




	( 4) A food establishment that serves a highly susceptible population may not use time as specified in paragraphs (1), (2) or (3) as the public health control for raw eggs . 
	(j) 
	(j) 
	(j) 
	(j) 
	A food establishment shall obtain a variance from the department as specifi ed in section ll-50-13(a) and (b) before : 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Smoking food as a method of food preservation rather than as a me thod of flavor enhancement; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Curing food; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	(3) .
	Usi ng food additives or adding components such as vinegar : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	As a met hod of food preservation rather than as a method of flavor enhancement; or 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	To render a food so that it i s not potentially hazardous (time/temperature control for safety food) ; 



	(4) .
	(4) .
	Packaging a potential ly hazardous food using a reduced oxygen packaging method except where the growth of and toxin formation by Clostri dium botulin um and the growth of Listeria monocytogenes are controlled as specified in subsection (l); 

	(5) .
	(5) .
	Operating a molluscan s hellfish l i fe-support system display tank used to store or display shellfish that are offered for human consumption; 

	(6) .
	(6) .
	Custom processing animals that are for personal use as f ood and not for sale or service i n a food establishment; 

	(7) .
	(7) .
	Preparing food by another method that is determined by the department to require a variance; or 

	(8) .
	(8) .
	Sprouting seeds or beans . 



	(k) 
	(k) 
	A food processing plant may be exempt from this variance requirement. 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Reduced oxygen packaging without a variance, criteria. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except for a food establishment that obtains a variance as specified in subsection (j) , a food establishment that packages potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food) using a reduced oxygen packaging method shall control the growth and toxin formation of Clostridium botulinum and the growth of Listeria monocytogenes; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	[AJ Except as specified in paragroph (6), a food establishment t ha t packages potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food) using a reduced oxygen packaging method shall have a HACCP plan that contains t he information specified in section 11-50-4 [ (j) (2) (D)] (i) (2) (D) and that: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Identifies the food to be packaged; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	(B) .
	Except as specified in paragraphs (3) to (5), requires that the packaged food shall be maintained at forty-one degrees Fahrenheit or less and meet at least one of the following criteria: 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Has an A,., of 0. 91 or less; 

	(ii) 
	(ii) 
	Has a pH of 4.6 or less; 








	(iii) .Is a meat or poultry product cured at a food processing plant regulated by t he USDA using substances specified in 9 CFR 424.21, entitled "Use of food ingredients and sources of radiation,u and is received in an intact package; or 
	(C) 
	(D) 
	(E) 
	(F) 
	(iv) .Is a food with a high level of competing organisms such as raw meat, raw poultry, or raw vegetables; 
	Describes how the package shall be prominently a nd conspicuously labeled on the principal display panel in bold type on a contrasting background, with instructions to : 
	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Maintain the food at forty-one degrees Fahrenheit or below; and 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	Discard the food if within [fourteen) thirty calendar days of its packaging it is not served for on-premises consumption, or consumed if served or sold for off-premises consumption; 


	Limits the refrigerated shelf life to no more than [fourteen) thirty calendar days from packaging to consumption, except the time the product is maintained frozen , or the original manufacturer' s "sell by" or "use by" date, whichever occurs first; Includes operational procedures that : 
	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Prohibit contacting ready-to-eat food with bare hands as specified in section 11-50-32 (a) (2) ; 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	Identify a designated work area and the method by which physical barriers or methods of separation of raw foods and ready-to-eat foods minimize cross contamination. Access to the processing equipment is limited to trained personnel familiar with the potential hazards of the operation; and 


	(iii) .Deli neate cleaning and sanitization procedures for food-contact surfaces ; and 
	Describes the training program that ensures that the individual responsibl e for the reduced oxygen packaging operation understands the : 
	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Concepts required for a safe .operation; .

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	Equipment and facilities; and 


	(iii) .Procedures specified in subparagraph 
	(E) and section 11-50-4 [ (j) (2) (D);) (i) (2) (D);
	fil .Is provided to the department before implementation as specified in section 1150-4 (h) (8) . 
	(3) .
	(3) .
	(3) .
	Except for fish that is frozen before, during, and after packaging, a food establishment may not package fish using a reduced oxygen packaging method; 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	(4) .
	Except as specified in [paragraph (3) ,) paragraphs (3) and (6), a food establishment that packages potentially hazardous food using a cookchill or sous vide process shall: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	[Implement) Provide to the department prior to implementation, a HACCP plan tha t contains the information as specified in section ll-50-4[(j) (2) (D);) (i) (2) (D); 

	(
	(
	(
	B) .Ensure the food is : 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Prepared a nd consumed on the premises, or prepared and consumed off the premises but within the same business entity with no distribution or sale of the packaged product to another business entity or the consumer; 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	Cooked to heat all parts of the food to a temperature and for a time as specified in section 11-50-33 (a) ; 






	(iii) .Protected from contaminati on before and after cooking as specified in sections 11-50-32 and 11-50-33; 
	(iv) .
	(iv) .
	(iv) .
	Placed in a package with an oxygen barrier and seal ed before cooking, or placed in a package and sealed immediately after cooking and before reaching a temperature below one hundred thirty-five degrees Fahrenheit; 

	(v) .
	(v) .
	Cooled to forty-one degrees Fahrenheit in the seal ed package or bag as specifi ed in subsection (d) and subsequently cooled to thirty-four degrees Fahrenheit within forty-eight hours of reaching forty-one degrees Fahrenheit and held at that temperature until consumed or 


	discarded within thirty days after the date of packaging; 
	(vi) .Cooled to forty-one degrees Fahrenheit in the sealed package or bag as specified in subsection (d) and subsequently [cooled to thirty-four degrees Fahrenheit within forty-eight hours of reaching forty-one degrees Fahrenheit, removed from refrigeration equipment that maintains a thirty-four degrees Fahrenheit food temperature and then held at forty-one degrees Fahrenheit or less for no more than seventy-two hours , at which time the food must be consumed or discarded; 
	(vii) .Cooled to forty-one degrees Fahrenheit in the sealed package or bag as specified in subsection (d) and subsequently cooled to thirty-eight degrees Fahrenheit or less within twenty-four hours of reaching fortyone degrees Fahrenheit and held there for no more than seventy-two hours from packaging, at which time the food must be consumed or discarded; or] held at forty-one degrees Fahrenheit or less for no more than seven days at which time the food must be consumed or discarded; 
	[ {viii)] (vii) Cooled to forty-one degrees Fahrenheit in the sealed package or bag as specified in subsection (d) and subsequently held frozen with no shelf life restriction while frozen until consumed or used; [ (ix)] (viii) Held in a refrigeration unit that is equipped with an electronic system that continuously monitors time and temperature and is visually examined for proper operation twice daily; 
	[{x)) .{ix) If transported off-site to a satellite location of the same business entity, equipped with verifiable electronic moni toring devices to ensure that times and 
	temperatures are monitored during transportation; and 
	[(xi) ] .M Labeled with the product name and the date packaged; and 
	(C) .
	(C) .
	(C) .
	(C) .
	Maintain the records required to confirm that cooling and cold holding refrigeration time/temperature parameters are required as part of the HACCP plan and : 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Make such records available to the [director] department upon request; and 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	Hold such records for at least six months; and 



	(D) .
	(D) .
	Implement written operational procedures as specified in paragraph (2) (E) and a training program as specified in paragraph 


	(2) (F); 
	(5) .[A] Except as specified under paragraph (6) , a food establishment that packages cheese using a reduced oxygen packaging method shall: 
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Limit the cheeses packaged to those that are commercially manufactured in a food µrocessing plant with no ingredients added in the food establishment and that meet t he Standards of Identity as specified in 21 CFR 133 . 150, entitled "Hard cheeses", 21 CFR 133.169, entitled "Pasteurized process cheese" or 21 CFR 133 . 187, entitled "Semisoft cheeses"; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Have a HACCP plan that contains t he information specified in section 11-50-4 (j) (2) (D) and as specified in paragraphs (1) (2) (A) , (C) (i), (E) , and (F) ; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Label s the package on the principal display panel with a "use by" date that does not exceed thirty calendar days from its packaging or the original manufacturer' s "sell by" or "use by" date, whichever occurs first; and 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	Discards the reduced oxygen packaged cheese if it is not sold for off-premises consumption or consumed within thi rty calendar days of its packaging.


	ill .A HACCP Plan is not required when a food establishment uses a reduced oxygen packaging method to package potentially hazardous food, 
	ill .A HACCP Plan is not required when a food establishment uses a reduced oxygen packaging method to package potentially hazardous food, 
	(time/temperature control for safety food) that is always : 

	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	Labeled 
	with 
	the production time and date, 

	..@l 
	..@l 
	Held at 
	forty-one degrees 
	Fahrenheit 
	or 

	ill 
	ill 
	less during refrigerated storage, and Removed from its package i n the food 

	TR
	establishment 
	within forty-eight 
	hours 

	TR
	after packaging. 
	[Eff 2/24/2014; 
	am 
	and 

	TR
	comp 
	] 
	(Auth : 
	HRS 
	§321-11) 

	TR
	(Imp : 
	HRS 
	§321-11) 


	§11-50-35 Food identity, presentation, and on-premises labeling . [(a) Packaged f ood shall comply with standard of identity requirements in 21 CFR 131-169 and 9 CFR 319 enti t led "Definitions and standards of identity or composition", a nd the general r equirements i n 21 CFR 130, entitled "Food standards : General" and 9 CFR 319 Subpart A entit l ed "General". 
	(b)] J_& Honestly presented. 
	(1) .Food s hall be offered for human consumpti on in a way t hat does not misl ead or misinform the consumer; 
	( 2) Food or color additives, col ored overwraps, or lights may not be used to mi srepresent the true appearance, color, or quality of a food. 
	[ ( C) ] .ill Food label s . 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Food packaged in a food establi shment, shall be labeled as specifi ed in law, including 21 CFR 101, entitled "Food labeling", and 9 CFR 317 entitled "Labeling, marking devices, and conta iners" . 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	The director may waive the packaged food labeling requirement for, but not limited to : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Foods manufactured i n food establishments such as restaurants, bakeries, and markets, and sold only in those food establishments; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Foods of no nutrit ional significance such as coffee; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Bulk food for f urt her processing; and 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	Raw fruits, vegetables, and fi sh; 




	( 3) .Label information shall i nc lude : 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	The common name of the food, or absent a common name, an adequat ely descriptive identity statement; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	If made from two or more ingredients, a list of ingredients in descending order of predominance by weight, including a declaration of artificial color or flavor and chemical preservatives, if contained in the food; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	An accurate declaration of the quantity of contents; 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	The name and place of business of the manufacturer, packer, or distributor; and 

	(E) .
	(E) .
	The name of the food source for each major food allergen contained in the food unless the food source is already part of the common or usual name of the respective ingredient; 


	[ (F) Except as exempted in the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act section 403(Q) (3) to (5), nutrition labeling as specified in 21 CFR 101, entitl~d "Food labeling" and 9 CFR 317 Subpart B entitled "Nutrition labeling"; 
	(G) .For any salmonid fish containing canthaxanthin as a color additive, the labeling of the bulk fish container, including a list of ingredients, displayed on the retail container or by other written means, such as a counter card, that discloses the use of canthaxanthin;] 
	(4) .Bulk food that is available for consumer selfdispensing shall be prominentl y labeled with the following information in plain view of the consumer : 
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	The manufacturer ' s or processor's label t hat was provided with the food; or 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	A card, sign, or other method of 


	notification that includes the information specified in paragraph(2) (A) and (B); 
	(5) .Bulk, unpackaged foods such as bakery products and unpackaged foods that are portioned to consumer specification need not be l abeled if: 
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	A health, nutrient content or other claim is not made; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	There are no state or local laws requiring labeling; and 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	The food is manufactured or prepared on the premises of the food establ ishment or at 


	another food establishment or a food 
	processing plant that is owned by the same 
	person and is regulated by the food 
	regulatory agency that has jurisdiction. 
	[(d)] .E Other forms of information . 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	If required by law, consumer warnings shall be provided; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Food establishment or manufacturers' dating information on foods may not be concealed or altered . 


	ill .Homemade food products shall bear a label with the following information: 
	(A) .A statement that reads "Made in a home kitchen not routinely inspected by the Department of Healthu; 
	ill .The common name of the food or, if no common name exists, an adequately descriptive identity statement; 
	ill .If made from two or more ingredients, a list of ingredients in descending order of predominance by weight; 
	JQl_ .Name and contact information of the homemade food product producer;ill Hand-pounded poi shall bear a label that contains the following information : 
	(A) .A statement that reads "This hand-pounded poi was prepared in a facility not inspected by the Department of Healt hu ; 
	ill .Name and contact information of the producer. 
	[(e) ] Js!.l_ Consumption of animal foods that are raw, undercooked, or not otherwise processed to elimi nate pathogens . 
	(1) .Except as specified in sections 11-50-33(a) (3) and (4) (D) and 11-50-37(a) (3), if an animal food such as beef, eggs, fish, lamb, pork, poultry, or shellfi sh is served or sold raw, undercooked, or without otherwise being processed to e l i minate pathogens, either in ready-to-eat form or as an ingredient in another ready-to-eat food, the [permit holder] owner or operator shall inform consumers of the significantly increased r isk of consuming such foods by way of a disclosure and reminder, as specifi
	label statements, table tents, placards , or other effective written means; 
	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	Disclosure s hall include : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	A description of the animal-derived foods , such as "oysters on the half shell (raw oysters)u, "raw-egg Caesar saladu, and "hamburgers (can be cooked to order)u; or 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Identification of the animal -derived foods by asterisking them to a footnote that states that the items are served raw or undercooked, or contain (or may contain) raw or undercooked ingredients; 



	(3) .
	(3) .
	(3) .
	Reminder shall include asterisking the animalderived foods requiring disclosure to a footnote that states : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Regarding the safety of these items, written information is available upon request ; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Consuming raw or undercooked meats, poultry, seafood, shellfish, or eggs may increase your risk of foodborne illness; or 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Consuming raw or undercooked meats, poultry, seafood, shelltish, or eggs may increase the risk of foodborne illness especially in consumers with certain medical conditions . [Eff 2/24/2014; am and comp ] (Auth: HRS §321-11) 




	(Imp: .HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-36 Contaminated food . Discarding or reconditioning unsafe, adulterated, or contaminated food . 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	A food that is unsafe, adulterated, or not honestly presented as specified in section 11-50-30 shall be discarded or reconditioned according to an approved procedure; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Food that is not from an approved source as specified in section ll-50-3l(a) to (g) shal l be discarded; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Ready-to-eat food that may have been contaminated by an empl oyee who has been restricted or excluded as specified in section 11-50-2l(b) shall be discarded; 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	Food that is contaminated by food employees, consumers, or other persons through contact with their hands, bodily discharges, such as nasal or 


	oral .discharges, or other means shall be 
	discarded . [Eff 2/24/2014; comp 
	(Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-37 Special requirements for highl y susceptible populations . (a) Foods served to a hi ghly susceptibl e population: 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	The following criteria apply to juice : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	For the purposes of this paragraph only, children who are age ni ne or less and receive food i n a school, day care setting, or similar facility that provides custodial care are included as highly susceptible populati ons; 

	(B) 
	(B) 
	Prepackaged juice or a prepackaged beverage containi ng juice, that bears a warning label as specified in 21 CFR 101 .17(g), juices that have not been specifically processed to prevent, reduce, or eliminate the presence of pathogens, or a packaged juice or beverage containing juice, that bears a warning label as specified in secti on 11-50-33(i) (2) may not be served or offered for sale; and 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Unpackaged juice that i s prepared on the premises for service or sale in a ready-toeat form shall be processed under a HACCP plan that contains the informat ion speci fied i n section ll-50-4(j)(2)(D) to 


	(E) and as specified i n 21 CFR Part 120, entitled "Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point (HACCP) Systemsu, Subpart B entitled "Pathogen reductionu, 120 . 24 enti tled "Process controlsu ; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	Pasteurized eggs or egg products shall be substituted for raw eggs in the preparation of: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Foods such as Caesar salad, hollandaise or Bearna i se sauce, mayonnaise, meringue, eggnog, ice cream, and egg-fortified beverages; and 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (6), recipes in which more than one egg is broken and the eggs are combined; 



	(3) .
	(3) .
	(3) .
	The following foods may not be served or offered for sale in a ready-to-eat form: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Raw animal foods such as raw fish, raw marinated fish, raw molluscan shellfish, and steak tartare; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	A partially cooked animal food such as lightly cooked fish, r are meat, soft-cooked eggs that are made from raw eggs, and meringue; and 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Raw seed sprouts; 



	(4) .
	(4) .
	Food employees may not contact ready-to-ea t food as specified in section 11-50-32 (a) (2) and (4) ; 

	(5) .
	(5) .
	Time only, as the public health control as specified in section ll-50-34(i) (4) , may not be used for raw eggs; 

	(6) .
	(6) .
	(6) .
	Paragraph (2) (B) does not apply if: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	The raw eggs are combined i mmediately before cooking for one consumer's serving at a single meal, cooked as specified in section ll-50-33(a) (1) (A), and served immediately, such as an omelet, souffle, or scrambled eggs; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	The raw eggs are combined as an ingredient immediately before baking and the eggs a r e thoroughly cooked to a ready-to-eat form, such as a cake, muffin, or bread; or 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	(C) .
	The preparation of the food is conducted under a HACCP plan that: 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Identifies the food to be prepared; 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	Prohibits contacting ready-to-eat food with bare hands; 






	(iii) .Includes specifications and practices that ensure Salmonella Enteri tidis growth is controlled before and after cooking, and is destroyed by cooking the eggs according to the temperature and time specified in section 11-50-33 (a) (1) (B); 
	(iv) .
	(iv) .
	(iv) .
	Contains t he information specified in section 11-50-4(j) (2) (D) including procedures that control cross contamination of r eady-to-eat food with raw eggs, and delineate cleaning and sanitization procedures for foodcontact surfaces; and 

	(v) .
	(v) .
	Describes the training program that ensures that the f ood employee responsible for t he preparation of the 


	food understands the procedures to be used; 
	(7) .
	(7) .
	(7) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (8), food may be re-served as specifi ed in section 11-50-32 (y) (2) (A) and (B); 

	(8) .
	(8) .
	(8) .
	Food may not be re-served under the following conditions : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Any food served to patients or cl ients who are under contact precautions in medical isol ation or quarantine, or protective environment isolation may not be re-served to others outside; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Packages of food from any patients, clients , or other consumers should not be r e -served to persons in protective environment isol ation. [Eff 2/24/2014 ; comp (Auth : HRS §321-11) 




	(Imp : .HRS §321-11) 
	§§11-50-38 to 11-50-44 (Reserved) . 
	SUBCHAPTER 4 
	EQUIPMENT , UTENSILS, AND LINENS 
	§11-50-45 Material s for construction and repa i r . (a) Materials that are used in the construction of utensils and food-contact surfaces of equi pment may not allow the migration of deleterious substances or impart colors, odors, or tastes to food and under normal use conditions shall be : 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Safe; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Durable, corrosion-resistant, and nonabsorbent; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Sufficient in weight and thickness to withstand repeated warewashing; 


	( 4) Finished to have a smooth , easily c l eanable s urface; and 
	(5) .
	(5) .
	(5) .
	Resistant to pitting, chipping, crazing, scratching, scoring, distortion, and decomposition. 

	(b) .
	(b) .
	Cast i ron, use limitati on . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as specified in paragraphs (2) and (3) , cast iron may not be used for utensils or foodcontact surfaces of equipment; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Cast. iron may be used 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Cast iron may be used food if the utensils uninterrupted process service. 

	(c) .
	(c) .
	(c) .
	Lead, use limitation. 

	as a surface for cooking; in utensils for serving are used only as part of an from cooking through 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Ceramic, china, and crystal utensils, a nd decorative utensils such as hand painted ceramic or china that are used in contact with food shall be lead-free or contain levels of lead not exceeding the limits of the utensil categories in Table 45-1 : 


	Table 45-1 
	Utensil Category 
	Utensil Category 
	Utensil Category 
	Ceramic Article Description 
	Maximum Lead mg/L 

	Beverage mugs, pitchers 
	Beverage mugs, pitchers 
	cups, 
	Coffee mugs 
	0.5 

	Large hollowware (excluding pitchers) 
	Large hollowware (excluding pitchers) 
	Bowls 
	> 1.16 quart 
	1 

	Small hollowware 
	Small hollowware 

	(excluding cups 
	(excluding cups 
	and 
	Bowls 
	< 1. 16 
	quart 
	2.0 

	mugs) 
	mugs) 

	Flat tableware 
	Flat tableware 
	Plates, 
	saucers 
	3 . 0 


	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	Pewter alloys containing lead in excess of 0.05 

	per cent may not be used as a food-contact surface; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Solder and flux containing lead i n excess of 0 . 2 per cent may not be used as a food-contact surface . 

	(d) .
	(d) .
	Copper, use limitation . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (2), copper and copper alloys such as brass may not be used in contact with a food that has a pH below six such as vinegar, fruit juice, or wine or for a fitting 


	or tubing installed between a backflow prevention device and a carbonator; 
	(2) .Copper and copper alloys may be used in contact with beer brewing ingredients that have a pH below six in the prefermentation and fermentation steps of a beer brewing operation such as a brewpub or microbrewery. 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	Galvanized metal may not be used for utensils or food-cont act surfaces of equipment that are used in contact with acidic food. 

	(f) 
	(f) 
	(f) 
	Sponges may not be used in contact with cleaned and sanitized or in-use food-contact surfaces . 

	(g) .
	(g) .
	(g) .
	Wood, use limitation. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as specified in paragraphs (2), (3) , and 

	(4), wood and wood wicker may not be used as a food-contact surface; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	Hard maple or an equivalently hard, close-grained wood may be used for : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Cutting boards, cutting blocks, bakers ' tables , and utensils such as rolling pins, doughnut dowels , salad bowls, and chopsticks; and 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Wooden paddles used i n confectionery operations for pressure scraping kettles when manual ly preparing confections at a temperature of two hundred thirty degrees Fahrenheit or above; 



	(3) .
	(3) .
	Whole, uncut, raw fruits and vegetables, and nuts in the shell may be kept in the wood shipping containers in which they we re received, until the fruits, vegetabl es, or nuts are used; 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	(4) .
	If the nature o f the food requires r emoval of rinds, peels, husks, or shells before consumption, the whole, uncut, raw food may be kept in: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Untreated wood containers ; or 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Treated wood containers if the containers a re treated with a preservative that meets the requirements specified in 21 CFR 




	178.3800, entitled "Preservatives for woodu . 

	(h) 
	(h) 
	Multiuse kitchenware s uch as frying pans , griddles, sauce pans, cookie sheets, and waffle bakers that have a perfluorocarbon resin coating s hall be used with nonscoring or nonscratching utensils and c l eaning aids. 

	(i) 
	(i) 
	Nonfood~contact surfaces of equipment that are exposed to splash, spillage, or other food soiling or that require frequent cleaning shall be constructed of a corrosion-resistant, nonabsorbent, and smooth material. 

	(j) 
	(j) 
	(j) 
	Materials that are used to make single-service and single-use articles: 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	May not: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Allow the migration of deleterious substances; or 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Impart colors, odors, or tastes to food; and 



	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	Shall be: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Safe; and 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Clean . [Eff 2/24/2014; comp (Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 






	§11-50-46 Design and construction. (a) Equipment and utensils shall be designed and constructed to be durable and to retain their characteristic qualities under normal use conditions . 
	(b) Food temperature measuring devices may not have sensors or stems constructed of gl ass, except that thermometers with glass sensors or stems that are encased in a shatterproof coating such as candy thermometers may be used. 
	(c) .
	(c) .
	(c) .
	Food-contact surfaces . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Multiuse food-contact surfaces shall be : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Smooth; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Free of breaks, open seams , cracks, chips , inclusions, pits, and similar imperfections; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Free of sharp internal angles, corners, and crevices; 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	Finished to have smooth welds and joints; and 

	(E) .
	(E) .
	(E) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (2), accessible for cleaning and inspection by one of the foll owing methods : 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Without being disassembled; 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	By disassembling without the use of tools ; or 






	(iii) .By easy disassembling with the use of handheld tools commonly available to maintenance and cleaning personnel 


	SBRRB Apr. 19, 2017 Agenda Exhibit 3D OCR
	Structure Bookmarks
	such as screwdrivers, pliers, open-end wrenches, and Allen wrenches; 
	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	Paragraph (1) (E) does not apply to cooking oil storage tanks , distribution lines for cooking oils, or beverage syrup lines or tubes. 

	(d) .
	(d) .
	CIP equipment. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	CIP equipment shall meet the characteristics specified in subsection (c) and shall be designed and constructed so that: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Cleaning and sanitizing solutions circulate throughout a fixed system and contact all interior food-contact surfaces; and 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	The system is self-draining or capable of being completely drained of cleaning and sanitizing solutions; and 



	(2) .
	(2) .
	CIP equipment that is not designed to be disassembled for cleaning shall be designed with inspection access points to ensure that all interior food-contact surfaces throughout the fixed system are being effectively cleaned. 


	(e) 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	Except for hot oil cooking or filtering equipment, "V" type threads may not be used on food-contact surfaces. 

	(f) 
	(f) 
	Hot oil filtering equipment shall meet the characteristics specified in subsection (c) or (d) and shall be readily accessible for filter replacement and cleaning of the filter. 

	(g) 
	(g) 
	Cutting or piercing parts of can openers shall be readily removable for cleaning and for replacement . 

	(h) 
	(h) 
	Nonfood-contact surfaces shall be free of unnecessary ledges, projections , and crevices, and designed and constructed to allow easy cleaning and to facilitate maintenance . 

	(i) 
	(i) 
	(i) 
	Kick plates shall be designed so that the areas behind them are accessible for inspection and cleaning by being: 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Removable by one of the methods specified in s ubsection (c) (1) (E) or capable of being rotated open; and 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Removable or capable of being rotated open without unlocking equipment doors. 



	(j) 
	(j) 
	(j) 
	Filters or other grease extracting equipment shall be designed to be readily removable for cleaning and replacement if not designed to be cleaned in place. 

	(k) .
	(k) .
	(k) .
	Accuracy of temperature measuring devices, food. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Food temperature measuring devices that are scaled only in Celsius or dually scaled in Celsius and Fahrenheit shall be accurate to plus or minus one degree Celsius in the intended range of use; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Food temperature measuring devices that are scaled only in Fahrenheit shall be accurate to plus or minus two degrees Fahrenheit in the intended range of use. 



	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Temp~rature measuring devices, ambient air and water. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Ambient air a nd water temperature measuring devices that are scaled in Celsius or dual ly scaled in Celsius and Fahrenheit shall be designed to be easily readable and accurate to plus or minus one and one-half degrees Celsius in the intended range of use. 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Ambient air and water temperature measuring devices that are scal ed only in Fahrenheit shall be accurate to plus or minus three degrees Fahrenheit in the intended range of use. 



	(m) 
	(m) 
	Pressure measuring devices that display the pressures in the water supply line for the fresh hot water sanitizing rinse shall have increments of one pound per square inch or smaller and shall be accurate to plus or minus two pounds per square inch) in the range indicated on the manufacturer' s data plate. 

	(n) 
	(n) 
	(n) 
	Exhaust ventilation hood systems in food preparation and warewashing areas including components such as hoods, fans , guards, and ducting shall be designed to prevent grease or condensation from draining or dripping onto food, equipment, utensils, linens, and single-service and single-use articles . 

	(o) .
	(o) .
	(o) .
	Equipment openings, closures and deflectors . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	A cover or lid for equipment shall overlap the opening and be sloped to drain; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	An opening located within the top of a unit of equipment that is designed for use with a cover or lid shall be flanged upward at least twotenths of an inch; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (4) , fixed piping, temperature measuring devices, rotary shafts, and other parts extending into equipment shall be provided with a watertight joint at the point where the item enters the equipment. 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	(4) .
	I f a watertight joint is not provided : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	The piping, temperature measuring devices, rotary shafts, and other parts extending through the openings shall be equipped with an apron designed to deflect condensation, drips, and dust from openings into the food; and 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	The opening shall be flanged as specified in paragraph (2). 





	(p) 
	(p) 
	(p) 
	In equipment that dispenses or vends liquid food or i ce in unpackaged form: 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	The delivery tube, chute, orifice, a nd splash surfaces directly above the container receiving the food shall be designed in a manner, such as with barriers, baffles, or drip aprons, so t hat drips from condensation and splash are diverted from the opening of the container receiving the food; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	The delivery tube, chute, and orifice shall be protected from manual contact such as by being recessed; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	(3) .
	The delivery tube or chute and orifice of equipment used to vend liquid food or ice in unpackaged form to self-service consumers shall be designed so that the delivery tube or chute and orifice are protected from dust, insects, rodents, and other contamination by a selfclosing door if the equipment is: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Located in an outside area that does not otherwise afford the protection of an enclosure against the rain, windblown debris, insects, rodents , and other contaminants that are present in the environment; or 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Available for self-service during hours when it is not under the full-time supervision of a food empl oyee; and 



	(4) .
	(4) .
	The dispensing equipment actuating lever or mechanism and filling device of beverage dispensing equipment shall be designed to prevent contact with the lip-contact surface of gl asses or cups that are refi lled; 

	(5) .
	(5) .
	Dispensing equipment in which potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food) in a homogenous liquid form is maintained outside of the temperature control 




	requirements as specified in section 11-50-34 (f) (1) s hall : 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	Be specifically designed and equipped to maintain the commercial sterility of asepticall y packaged food in a homogenous l iquid form for a specified duration from the time of opening the packaging within the equipment; and 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Conform to the requirements for this equipment as specified in NSF/ANSI 18-2006Manual Food and Beverage Dispensing Equipment . 


	(q) The di spensing compartment of a vending machine including a machine that is designed to vend prepackaged snack food t hat is not potentially hazardous 
	(time/temperature control for safety food) such as chips, party mixes , and pretzels shall be equipped with a selfclosing door or cover if t he machine i s: 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Located in an outside a r ea that does not otherwise afford the protection of an enclosure against the rain, windblown debris, insects, rodents , and other contaminants that are present in the environment; or 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Availabl e for self-service during hours when it is not under the full-time supervision of a food employee . 


	(r) 
	(r) 
	(r) 
	Equipment containing bearings and gears that require lubricants shall be designed and constructed so that the lubricant cannot leak, drip, or be forced int o food or onto food-contact surfaces . 

	(s) 
	(s) 
	Except for cold plates that are constructed integrally with an ice storage bin, beverage tubing and cold-plate beverage cooling devices may not be install ed i n contact with stored ice . 

	(t) 
	(t) 
	Liquid waste drain lines may not pass through an ice machine or ice storage bin. 

	(u) 
	(u) 
	If a condenser unit is an integral component of equipment, the condenser unit shall be separated from the food and food storage space by a dustproof barrier . 

	(v) 
	(v) 
	(v) 
	Cutting or piercing parts of can openers on vending machines shall be protected from manual contact, dust, insects, rodents, and other contamination. 

	(w) .
	(w) .
	(w) .
	Molluscan shellfish tanks. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (2), moll uscan shellfish life support system display tanks may not be used to store or display s hellfish that 




	are offered for human consumption and shall be conspicuously marked so that it is obvious to the consumer that the shellfish are for display only; 
	(2) .Molluscan shellfish life-support system display tanks that are used to store or display shellfish that are offered for human consumption shall be operated and maintained in accordance with a variance granted by the department as specified in section ll-50-13(a) and a HACCP plan that: 
	(A) .Is submitted by the [permit holder] owner or operator and approved as specified in section 11-50-13(b) ; and 
	(B} .Ensures that: 
	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Water used with fish other than molluscan shellfish does not flow into the molluscan tank; 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	The safety and quality of the shellfish as they were received are not compromised by the use of the tank; and 


	(iii) .The identity of the source of the shellstock is retained as specified in section 11-50-31(s). 
	(x) .Vending machines, automatic shutoff . 
	(1) A machine vending potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food) shall have an automatic control that prevents the machine from vending food: 
	(A} .If there is a power failure, mechanical failure , or other condition that results in an internal machine temperature that cannot maintain food temperatures as specified in subchapter 3 ; and 
	(B) .If a condition specified in paragraph 
	(1) (A) occurs, until the machine is serviced and restocked with food that has been maintained at temperatures specified in subchapter 3; 
	(2) .When the automatic shutoff within a machine vending potentially hazardous food 
	(time/temperature control for safety food) is activated: 
	(A) .In a refrigerated vending machine, the ambient air temperature may not exceed forty-one degrees Fahrenheit for more than thirty minutes immediately after the 
	machine is filled, serviced, or restocked; 
	machine is filled, serviced, or restocked; 
	machine is filled, serviced, or restocked; 

	or 
	or 

	(B) In a hot holding vending machine, the 
	(B) In a hot holding vending machine, the 

	ambient air temperature may not be less 
	ambient air temperature may not be less 

	than one hundred thirty-five degrees 
	than one hundred thirty-five degrees 

	Fahrenheit for more than one hundred twenty 
	Fahrenheit for more than one hundred twenty 

	minutes immediately after the machine is 
	minutes immediately after the machine is 

	filled, serviced, or restocked. 
	filled, serviced, or restocked. 

	(y) 
	(y) 
	Temperature measuring devices. 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	In a mechanically refrigerated or hot food 

	TR
	storage unit, the sensor of a temperature 

	TR
	measuring device shall be located to measure the 

	TR
	air temperature or a simulated product 

	TR
	temperature in the warmest part of a mechanically 

	TR
	refrigerated unit and in the coolest part of a 

	TR
	hot food storage unit; 

	(2 ) 
	(2 ) 
	Except as specified in paragraph (3), cold or hot 

	TR
	holding equipment used for potentially hazardous 

	TR
	food (time/temperature control for safety food) 

	TR
	shall be designed to include and shall be 

	TR
	equipped with at least one integral or 

	TR
	permanently affixed temperature measuring device 

	TR
	that is located to allow easy viewing of the 

	TR
	device ' s temperature display; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Paragraph (2) does not apply to equipment for 

	TR
	which the placement of a temperature measuring 

	TR
	device is not a practical means for measuring the 

	TR
	ambient air surrounding the food because of the 

	TR
	design, type, and use of the equipment, such as 

	TR
	calrod units, heat lamps, cold plates, 

	TR
	bainmaries, steam tables, insulated food 

	TR
	transport containers , and salad bars; 

	(4) 
	(4) 
	Temperature measuring devices shall be designed 

	TR
	to be easily readable; 

	(5) 
	(5) 
	Food temperature measuring devices and water 

	TR
	temperature measuring devices on warewashing 

	TR
	machines shall have a numerical scale, printed 

	TR
	record, or digital readout i n increments no 

	TR
	greater than two degrees Fahrenheit in the 

	TR
	intended range of use . 

	(z ) 
	(z ) 
	A warewashing machine shall be provided with an 


	easily accessible and readable data plate affixed to the machine by the manufacturer that indicates the machine' s design and operation specifications including the: 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Temperatures required for washing, rinsing, and sanitizing; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Pressure required for the fresh wa t er sanitizing rinse unless t he machine is designed to use only a pumped sanitizing rinse; and 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Conveyor s peed for conveyor machines or cycle time for stationary rack machines . 


	(aa) Warewashing machine wash and rinse tanks shall be equipped with baffles, curtains, or other means to minimize internal cross contamination of t he solutions in wash and rinse tanks . 
	(bb) A warewashing machine shall be equipped with a temperature measuring device that indicates the temperature of the water : 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	In each wash and rinse tank; and 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	As the wat er enters t he hot water sanitizing final rinse manifold or in the chemical sanitizing solution tank . 


	(cc) If hot water is used for sanitization in manual warewashing operations, the sanitizing compartment of the s i n k shall be: 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Designed with a n integral heating device that is capabl e of maintaining water at a temperature not less than one hundred seventy-one degrees Fahrenheit; and 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Provided with a rack or basket to a l low complete immersion of equipment and utensils into the hot water. 


	(dd) A warewashing machine that is installed shall be equipped to: 
	( 1) .Automatically dispense detergent s and sanit izers; and 
	(2) .Incorporate a visual means to verify that detergents and sanitizer s are delivered or a visual or a udible alarm to signal if the detergents and sanitizers are not delivered to the respective washing and sanitizing cycles . 
	(ee) Warewashing machines, flow pressure device . 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Warewashing machines that provide a fresh hot water sanitizing rinse shall be equipped with a pressure gauge or similar device such as a transducer that measures and displays the water pressure i n the s upply line i mmediately before enteri ng the warewashing machine; and 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	If the flow pressure measuring device is upstream of the fresh hot water saniti zing rinse control valve, the device shall be mounted in a onefourth inch Iron Pi pe Size (IPS) val ve; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Paragraphs (1) and (2) do not apply to a machine that uses only a pumped or recirculated sanitizing rinse. 


	(ff) Sinks and drainboards of warewashing sinks and machines shall be self-draining. 
	(gg) Equipment compartments that are subject to accumulation of moisture due to conditions such as condensation, food or beverage drip, or water from melting ice shall be sloped to an outlet that allows complete draining. 
	(hh) Vending machines, liquid waste products . 
	( 1) Vending machines designed to store beverages that are packaged in containers made from paper products shall be equipped with diversion devices and retention pans or drains for container leakage ; 
	(2) .Vending machines that dispense liquid food in bulk shall be: 
	(A) Provided with an internally mounted waste receptacle for the collection of drip, spillage, overflow, or other internal wastes ; and 
	{B) .Equipped with an automatic shutoff d evice that will place the machine out of operation before the waste receptacle overflows; 
	(3) .
	(3) .
	(3) .
	Shutoff devices specified in paragraph (2) (B) shall prevent water or liquid food from continuously running if there is a failure of a f l ow control device in the water or liquid food system or waste accumulation that could lead to overflow of the waste receptacle . 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	Vending machine, doors and openings . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Vending machine doors and access opening covers to food and container storage spaces shall be t ight-fitting so that the space along the entire interface between the doors or covers and the cabinet of the machine, if the doors or covers are in a closed position, is no greater than onesixteenth inch by: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Being covered with louvers , screens, or materials that provide an equivalent opening of not greater than one-sixteenth inch. Screening of sixteen mesh to one inch meets this requirement; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Being effectively gasketed; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Having interface surfaces that are at least one-half inch wide ; or 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	Jambs or surfaces used to form an L-shaped entry path to the interface; 



	(2) .
	(2) .
	Vending machine service connection openings through an exterior wall of a machine shall be closed by sealants, clamps, or grommets so that the openings are no larger than 1.5 millimeters or one-sixteenth inch. 


	(jj) Food equipment that is certified or classified for sanitation by an American National Standards Institute (ANSI) -accredited certification program is deemed to comply with sections 11-50-45 and 11-50-46. [Eff 2/24/2014; comp ] (Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321
	11) 
	§11-50-47 Numbers and capacities . (a) Equipment for cooling and heating food, and holding cold and hot food, shall be sufficient in number and capacity to provide food temperatures as specified in subchapter 3. 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	Manual warewashing, sink compartment requirements. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (3) , a sink with at l e ast three compartments shall be provided for manuall y washing, rinsing, and sanitizing equipment and utensils; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Sink compartments shall be large enough to accommodate immersion of the largest equipment and utensils. If equipment or utensils are too large for the warewashing sink, a warewashing machine or alternative equipment as specified in paragraph (3) shall be used; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	(3) .
	Alternative manual warewashing equipment may be used when there are special cleaning needs or constraints and its use is approved by the director. Alternative manual warewashing equipment may include : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	High-pressure detergent sprayers; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Low-or line-pressure spray detergent foamers; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Other task-specific cleaning equipment; 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	Brushes or other implements; 

	(E) .
	(E) .
	One or two-compartment sinks if only a limited number of utensils need to be washed; or 

	(F) .
	(F) .
	Receptacles that ·substitute for the compartments of a multi-compartment sink. 





	(c) 
	(c) 
	Drainboards, utensil racks, or tables large enough to accommodate all soiled and cleaned items that may accumulate during hours of operation shall be provided for necessary utensil holding before cleaning and after sanitizing. 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	If required by law, ventilation hood systems and devices shall be sufficient in number and capacity to prevent grease or condensation from collecting on walls and ceilings. 

	(e) .Clothes washers and dryers. 
	( 1) Except as specified in paragraph (2), if work clothes or linens are laundered on the premises, a mechanical clothes washer and dryer shall be provided and used; 
	(2) .If on-premises laundering is limited to wiping cloths intended to be used moist, or wiping cloths are air-dried as specified in section ll-50-53(b), a mechanical clothes washer and dryer need not be provided. 

	(f) 
	(f) 
	(f) 
	A food dispensing utensil shall be available for each container displayed at a consumer self-service unit s u ch as a buffet or salad bar. 

	(g) .
	(g) .
	(g) .
	Food temperature measuring devices . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Food temperature measuring devices shall be provided and readily accessible for use in ensuring attainment and maintenance of food temperatures as specified in subchapter 3; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	A temperature measuring device with a suitable small diameter probe that is designed to measure the temperature of thin masses shall be provided and readily accessible to accurately measure the temperature in thin foods such as meat patties and fish filets . 



	(h) 
	(h) 
	In manual warewashing operations, a temperature measuring device shall be provided and readily accessible for frequently measuring the washing and sanitizing temperatures. A test kit or other device that accurately measures the concentration in parts per million of sanitizing solutions shall be provided. 

	(i) 
	(i) 
	In hot water mechanical warewashing operations, an irreversible registering temperature indicator shall be provided a nd readily accessible for measuring the utensil surface temperature . [Eff 2/24/2014 ; am and comp 


	J (Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-48 Location and installation . (a) Equipment, clothes washers and dryers, and storage cabinets , contamination prevention. 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (2), equipment, a cabinet used for the storage of food , or a cabinet that is used to store cleaned and sanitized equipment, utensils, laundered linens, and single-service and single-use articles may not be located: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	In locker rooms; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	In toil et rooms; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	In garbage rooms; 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	In mechanical rooms; 

	(E) .
	(E) .
	Under sewer lines that are not shiel ded to intercept potential drips ; 

	(F) .
	(F) .
	Under leaking water lines including leaking automatic fire sprinkler heads or under lines on which water has condensed; 

	(G) .
	(G) .
	Under open stairwells; or 

	(H) .
	(H) .
	Under other sources of contamination; 



	(2) .
	(2) .
	A storage cabinet used for linens or singleservice or single-use articles may be stored in a locker room; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	If a mechanical clothes washer or dryer is provided, the washer or dryer shall be located so that it is protected from contamination and only where there is no exposed food; clean equipment, utensils, and linens; and unwrapped singleservice and single-use articles. 

	(b) .
	(b) .
	Fixed equipment, spacing or sealing . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Equipment that is fixed because it is not easily movable shall be installed so that it is : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Spaced to allow access for cleaning along the sides, behind, and above the equipment; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Spaced from adjoining equipment, wal ls, and ceilings a distance of not more than one millimeter or one thirty-second inch; or 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Sealed to adjoining equipment or walls, if the equipment is exposed to spillage or seepage; 



	(2) .
	(2) .
	Counter-mounted equipment that is not easily movable shall be i nstall ed to allow cleaning of the equipment and areas underneath and around the equipment by being : 


	(A} .Sealed; or 
	(B) .Elevated on legs as specified in subsection (c) (4). 
	(c) .
	(c) .
	(c) .
	Fixed equipment, elevation or sealing. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as specified in paragraphs (2) and (3), floor-mounted equipment that is not easily movable shall be sealed to the floor or elevated on legs that provide at least a six inch clearance between the floor and the equipment; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	If no part of the floor under the floor-mounted equipment is more than six inches from the point of c l eaning access , the c l earance space may be only four inches; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	This section does not apply to display shelving units, display refrigeration units, and display freezer units located in the consumer shopping areas of a retail food store, if the floor under the units is maintained clean; 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (5), countermounted equipment that is not easily movable shall be elevated on legs that provide at least a four inch clearance between the table and the equipment; 

	(5) .
	(5) .
	(5) .
	The c l earance space between the table and counter-mounted equipment may be: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Three inches if the horizontal distance of the table top under the equipment is no more than twenty inches from the point of access for cleaning; or 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Two inches if the horizontal distance of the table top under the equipment is no more than three inches from the point of access for cleaning . [Eff 2/24/2014 ; comp (Auth: HRS §321-11) 




	(Imp: .HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-49 Maintenance and operation. (a) Good repair and proper adjustment . 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Equipment shall be maintained in a state of repair and condition that meets the requirements specified in sections 11-50-45 and 11-50-46; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Equipment components such as doors, seals, hinges, fasteners, and kick p l ates shall be kept intact, tight, and adjusted in accordance with manufacturer's specifications; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Cutting or piercing parts of can openers shall be kept sharp to minimize the creation of metal fragments that can contaminate food when the container is opened . 


	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	Surfaces such as cutting blocks and boards that are subject to scratching and scoring shall be resurfaced if they can no longer be effectively cleaned and sanitized, or discarded if they are not capable of being resurfaced. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	A warewashing machine ; the compartments of sinks , basins, or other receptacles used for washing and rinsing equipment, utensils, or raw foods , or laundering wiping cloths; and drainboards or other equipment used to subst itute for drainboards as specified in section 11-50-47(c) shall be cleaned: 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Before use; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Throughout the day at a frequency necessary to prevent recontamination of equipment and utensils and to ensure that the equipment performs its intended function; and 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	If used, at least every twenty-four hours. 



	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	Warewashing machines, manufacturers ' operating instructions. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	A warewashing machine and its auxiliar y components shall be operated in accordance with the machine's data plate and other manufacturer ' s 

	instructions ; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	A warewashing machine ' s conveyor speed or automatic cycle times shall be maintained accurately timed in accordance with manufacturer ' s specifications . 

	(e) .
	(e) .
	Warewashing sinks, use limitation. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	A warewashing sink may not be used for handwashing as specified in section 11-50-22(d); 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	I f a warewashing sink is used to wash wiping cloths, wash produce, or thaw food, the sink shall be cleaned as specified in subsection (c) before and after each time it is used to wash wiping c l oths or wash produce or thaw food . Sinks used to wash or thaw food shall be sanitized as specified in section 11-50-51 before and after using the sink to wash produce or thaw food. 



	(f) 
	(f) 
	When used for warewashing, the wash compartment of a sink, mechanical warewasher, or wash receptacle of 


	alternative manual warewashing equipment as specified in section ll-50-47(b) (3) , shall contain a wash solution of 
	soap, detergent, acid cleaner, alkal ine cleaner, degreaser, abrasive cleaner, or other cleaning agent according to the cleaning agent manufacturer ' s label instructions . 
	(g) 
	(g) 
	(g) 
	The wash, rinse, and sanitize solutions s hall be maintained clean. 

	(h) 
	(h) 
	The t emperature of the wash solution in manual warewashing equipment s hall be maintained at not l ess than one hundred ten degrees Fahrenheit or the temperature specified on the cleaning agent manufacturer ' s label instructions . 

	(i) 
	(i) 
	(i) 
	Mechanical warewashing equipment, wash solution temperature . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	The temperature of the wash solution in spray type warewashers that use hot water to sanitize may not be l ess than: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	For a stationary rack, single temperature machine , one hundred sixty-five degrees Fahrenheit; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	For a stationary rack, dual temperature machine, one hundred fifty degrees Fahrenheit; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	For a single tank, conveyor, dual temperature machine, one hundred sixty degrees Fahrenheit; or 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	For a multitank, conveyor, multitemperature machine, one hundred fifty degrees Fahrenheit; 



	(2) .
	(2) .
	The temperature of the wash solution in spraytype warewashers that use chemicals to sanitize may not be less than one hundred twenty degrees Fahrenheit. 



	(j) 
	(j) 
	If immersion in hot water is used for sanitizing in a manual operation, the temperature of the water shall be maintained at one hundred seventy-one degrees Fahrenheit 


	or above. 
	(k) 
	(k) 
	(k) 
	(k) 
	Mechanical warewashing equipment, hot water sanitization temperatures. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (2), in a mechanical operation, the temperature of the fresh hot water sanitizing rinse as it enters the manifold may not be more than one hundred ninetyfour degr ees Fahrenheit, or less than: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	For a stationary rack, single temperature machine, one hundred sixty-five degrees Fahrenheit; or 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	For all other machines, one hundred eighty degrees Fahrenheit; 



	(2) 
	(2) 
	The maximum temperature specified in paragraph 


	(1) , does not apply to the high pressure and temperature systems with wand-type, hand-held, spraying devices used for the in-pl ace cleaning and sanitizing of equipment such as meat saws . 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	The flow pressure of the fresh hot water sanitizing rinse in a warewashing machine, as measured in the water line immediately downstream or upstream from the fresh hot water sanitizing rinse control value, shall be within the range specified on the machine manufacturer' s data plate and may not be less than five pounds per square inch or more than thirty pounds per square inch. 

	(m) 
	(m) 
	(m) 
	A chemical sanitizer used in a sanitizing solution for a manual or mechanical operation at contact times specified in section ll-50-51(c) (3) shall meet the criteria specified in section 11-50-Bl(e) , shal l be used i n accordance with the EPA registered label use instructions, and shall be used as follows : 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	A chlorine solution shall have a minimum temperature based on the concentration and pH of the solution as listed in Table 49-1; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	An iodine solution shall have a: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Minimum temperatur e of sixty-eight degrees Fahrenheit; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	pH of 5.0 or less or a pH no higher than the level for which the manufacturer specifies the solution is effective; and 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Concentration between 12.5 milligram per liter and twenty-five milligram per liter; 



	(3) .
	(3) .
	(3) .
	A quaternary ammonium compound solution shall: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Have a minimum temperature of seventy-five degrees Fahrenheit; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Have a concentration as specified in section 11-50-Bl(e) and as indicated by the 






	Table 49-1 
	Concen tration Range 
	Concen tration Range 
	Concen tration Range 
	Minimum Temperature 

	mg/1 
	mg/1 
	pH 10 
	or less OF 
	pH 8 or less OF 

	25 to 49 
	25 to 49 
	120 
	120 

	50 to 99 
	50 to 99 
	100 
	75 

	100 
	100 
	55 
	55 


	manufacturer's use directions included in the labeling; and 
	(C} .Be used only in water with five hundred milli gram per liter hardness or less or in water having a hardness no greater than specified by the EPA-registered label use instructions; 
	(4) .
	(4) .
	(4) .
	If another solution of a chemical specified in paragraphs (1) to (3) is used, the [permit holder] owner or operator shall demonstrate to the director that the solution achieves sanitization and the use of the solution shall· be approved; or 

	(5) .
	(5) .
	If a chemical sanitizer other than chlorine, iodine, or a quaternary ammonium compound is used, it shall be applied in accordance with the EPA-registered label use instructions . 


	(n) 
	(n) 
	(n) 
	If a detergent-sanitizer is used to sanitize in a cleaning and sanitizing procedure where there is no distinct water rinse between the washing and sanitizing steps, the agent applied in the sanitizing step shall be the same detergent-sanitizer that is used in the washing step . 

	(o) 
	(o) 
	(o) 
	Concentration of the sanitizing solution shall be accurately determined by using a test kit or other device . 

	(p) .
	(p) .
	(p) .
	Good repair and calibration. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Utensils shall be maintained in a state of repair or condition that complies with the requirements specified in sections 11-50-45 and 11-50-46 or shall be discarded; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Food temperature measuring devices shall be calibrated in accordance with manufacturer's specifications as necessary to ensure their accuracy; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Ambient air temperature, water pressure, and water temperature measuring devices shall be maintained in good repair and be accurate within the intended range of use . 



	(q) 
	(q) 
	A food establishment without facilities specified in sections 11-50-50 and 11-50-51 for cleaning and sanitizing kitchenware and tableware shall provide only singl e-use kitchenware, single-service articles, and single-use articles for use by food employees and singleservice articles for use by consumers . 

	(r) 
	(r) 
	(r) 
	Single-service and single-use articles, use limitation. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Single-service and single-use articles may not be reused, except that the director may approve the reuse of single-use articles that meet the materials, durability, strength, and cleanability specifications in sections ll-50-45(a) and 11-50-46(a) and (c) for multiuse utensils; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	The bulk milk container dispensing tube shall be cut on the diagonal leaving no more than one inch protruding from the chilled dispensing head. 



	(s) 
	(s) 
	Mollusk and crustacea shells may not be used more than once as serving containers. [Eff 2/24/2014; comp (Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §32111) 


	§11-50-50 Cleaning of equipment and utensils. (a) Equipment, food-contact surfaces , nonfood-contact surfaces, and utensils-objective . 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Equipment food-contact surfaces and utensils shall be clean to sight and touch; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	The food-contact surfaces of cooking equipment and pans shall be kept free of encrusted grease deposits and other soil accumulations; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Nonfood-contact surfaces of equipment shall be kept free of an accumulation of dust, dirt, food residue, and other debris. 


	(b) Equipment food-contact surfaces and utensilsfrequency . 
	( 1) Equipment food-contact surfaces and utensils shal l be cleaned: 
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (2), before each use with a different type of raw animal food such as beef, fish, lamb, pork, or poultry; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Each time there is a change from working with raw foods to working with ready-to-eat foods; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Between uses with raw fruits and vegetables and with potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food); 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	Before using or storing a food temperature measuring device; and 

	(E) .
	(E) .
	At any time during the operation when contamination may have occurred; 


	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	Paragraph (1 ) (A) does not apply if the foodcontact surface or utensil is in contact with a succession of different raw animal foods each requiring a higher cooking temperature as specified in secti on ll-50-33(a) than the previous food, s uch as preparing raw fish followed by cutting raw poultry on the same cutting board; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (4), if used with potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food), equipment food-contact surfaces and utensils shall be cleaned throughout the day at least every four hours; 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	(4) .
	Surfaces of utensils and equipment contacting potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safet y food) may be cleaned l ess frequently than every four hours if: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	In storage, contai ners of potentially hazardous f ood (time/temperature control for safety food) and their contents are maintained at temperatures specified in subchapter 3 and the containers are cleaned when they are empty; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	(B) .
	Utensils and equipment are used to prepare food in a refrigerated room or area that is maintained at one of the temperatures in Table 50-1 and : 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	The utensils and equipment are cleaned at the frequency in the fol l owing chart that corresponds to the temperature; and 

	(ii) 
	(ii) 
	The cleaning frequency based on the ambi e nt temperature of the refrigerated room or area is documented in the food establishment; 



	(C) .
	(C) .
	Containers in serving situations such as salad bars, delis, and cafeteria l ines hold 




	Tabl e 50-1 
	Temperature 
	Temperature 
	Temperature 
	Cleaning Frequency 

	41°F or less 
	41°F or less 
	24 hours 

	>41°F t o 45°F 
	>41°F t o 45°F 
	20 hours 

	>45°F t o 50°F 
	>45°F t o 50°F 
	16 hours 

	>50°F to 55°F 
	>50°F to 55°F 
	10 hours 


	ready-to-eat potentially hazardous food 
	(time/t emperature control for safety food) 
	that .is maintained at the temperatures 
	specified in subchapter 3 , are 
	intermittently combi ned with additional 
	supplies of t he same food t ha t is at the 
	required temperature, and the containers 
	are cleaned at least every twenty-four 
	hours; 
	(D) .
	(D) .
	(D) .
	Temperature measuring devi ces are maintained in contact with f ood, such as when left in a container of deli food or in a roast, held at t emperatures specified in subchapter 3; 

	(E) .
	(E) .
	Equipment is used for storage of packaged or unpackaged food s uch as a reach-in refrigerator and the equipment is cl eaned at a frequency necessary to preclude accumulation of soi l residues ; 

	(F) .
	(F) .
	(F) .
	The cleaning schedule is approved based on consideration of: 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Characteristics of t he equipment and its use; 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	The type of food involved; 


	(iii) .The amount of food residue accumulation; and 
	(iv) .The temperature at which the f ood is maintained during the operation and the potential for the rapid and progressive multiplication o f pathogenic or toxigenic microorganisms that are capable of causing foodborne disease; or 

	(G) .
	(G) .
	In-use utensils are intermittently stored in a container of water in whi ch the water is maintained at one hundred thirty-five degrees Fahrenheit or more and the ut ensi ls and container are cleaned at least every twenty-four hours or at a frequency necessary to preclude accumulation of soil residues; 


	(5) .
	(5) .
	(5) .
	(5) .
	Except when dry c l eaning methods are used as specified in subsection (e), surfaces of utensils and equipment contacting food that is not potentially hazardous (time/temperature control for safety food) shall be cleaned: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	At any time when contamination may have occurred; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	At least every twenty-four hours for iced tea dispensers and consumer self-service utensils such as tongs, scoops, or ladles; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Before restocking consumer self-service equipment and utensils such as condiment dispensers and display containers ; and 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	(D) .
	In equipment such as ice bins and beverage di.spensing nozzles and enclosed components of equipment such as ice makers, cooking oil storage tanks and distribution lines, beverage and syrup dispensing lines or tubes, coffee bean grinders, and water vending equipment : 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	At a frequency specified by the manufacturer; or 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	Absent ma nufacturer specifications, at a frequency necessary to preclude accumulation of soil or mold . 





	(c) .
	(c) .
	Cooking and baking equipment . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	The food-contact surfaces of cooking and baking equipment shall be cleaned at least every twentyfour hours . This section does not apply to hot oil cooking and filtering equipment if it is cleaned as specified in subsection (b) (4) (F); 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	The cavities and door seals of microwave ovens shall be cleaned at least every twenty-four hours by using the manufacturer ' s recorrunended cleaning procedure . 


	(d) Nonfood-contact surfaces of equipment shall be cleaned at a frequency necessary to preclude accumulation of soil residues. 
	(e) .
	(e) .
	(e) .
	Dry cleaning. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	If used, dry c l eaning methods such as brushing, scraping, and vacuuming shal l contact only surfaces that are soiled with dry food residues that are not potentially hazardous 


	(time/temperature control for safety food) ; 
	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	Cleaning equipment used in dry cleaning foodcontact surfaces may not be used for any other purpose . 

	(f) .
	(f) .
	Precleaning. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Food debris on equipment and utensils shall be scrapped over a waste disposal unit or garbage 


	receptacle or shall be removed in a warewashing machine with a prewash cycle; 
	(2) .If necessary for effective cleaning, utensils and equipment shall be preflushed, presoaked, or scrubbed with abrasives . 
	(g) 
	(g) 
	(g) 
	(g) 
	Soiled items to be cleaned in a warewashing machine shall be loaded into racks, trays, or baskets or onto conveyors in a position that: 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Exposes the items to the unobstructed spray from all cycles ; and 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Allows the items to drain . 

	(h) .
	(h) .
	Wet cleaning . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Equipment food-contact surfaces and utensils shall be effectively washed to remove or compl etely loosen soils by using the manual or mechanical means necessary such as the application of detergents containing wetting agents and emulsifiers; acid, alkaline, or abrasive cleaners; hot water; brushes; scouring pads; high-pressure sprays; or ultrasonic devices; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	The washing procedures selected shall be based on the type and purpose of the equipment or utensil, and on the type of soil to be removed. 



	(i) 
	(i) 
	(i) 
	If washing in sink compartments or a warewashing machine is impractical such as when the equipment is fixed or the utensil s are too large, washing shall be done by using alternative manual warewashing equipment as specified in section ll-50-47(b) (3) in accordance with the following procedures: 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Equipment shall be disassembled as necessary to allow access of the detergent solution to all parts; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Equipment components and utensils shall be scrapped or rough cleaned to remove food particle accumulation; and 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Equipment and utensils shall be washed as specified in subsection (h) (1) . 



	(j) 
	(j) 
	(j) 
	Washed utensils and equipment shall be rinsed so that abrasives are removed and cleaning chemicals are removed or diluted through the use of water or a detergentsanitizer solution by using one of the following procedures : 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Use of a distinct, separate water rinse after washing and before sanitizing if using: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	A three-compartment sink; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Alternative manual warewashing equipment equivalent to a three-compartment sink as specified in section 11-50-47(b) (3); or 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	A three-step washing, rinsing, and sanitizing procedure in a warewashing system for CIP equipment; 



	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	Use of a detergent-sanitizer as specified in section 11-50-49(n) if using: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Alternative warewashing equipment as specified in section 11-50-47(b) (3) that is approved for use with a detergent sanitizer; or 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	A warewashing system for CIP equipment; 



	(3) .
	(3) .
	Use of a nondistinct water rinse that is integrated in the hot water sanitization immersion step of a two-compartment sink operation; 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	(4) .
	If using a warewashing machine that does not recycle the sanitizing sol ution as specified in paragraph (5), or alternative manual warewashing equipment such as sprayers, use of a nondistinct water rinse that is: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Integrated in the application of the sanitizing solution; and 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Wasted immediately after each application; or 



	(5) .
	(5) .
	If using a warewashing machine that recycles the sanitizing solution for use in the next wash cycle, use of a nondistinct water rinse that is integrated in the application of the sanitizing solution. 




	[(k) .Returnables, cleaning for refilling . 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as specified in paragraphs (2) and (3), returned empty containers intended for cleaning and refilling with food shall be cleaned and refilled in a regulated food processing plant; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	A food-specific container for beverages may be refilled at a food establishment if: 


	(A) .Only a beverage that is not a potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food) is used as specified in section 11-50-32(p) (1); 
	(B)· .The design of the container and of the rinsing equipment and the nature of the beverage, when considered together, allow 
	effective cleaning at home or in the food establishment; 
	(C) .
	(C) .
	(C) .
	Facilities for rinsing before refilling returned containers with fresh, hot water that is under pressure and not recirculated are provided as part of the dispensing system; 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	The consumer-owned container returned to the food establishment for refilling is refilled for sale or service only to the same consumer; and 

	(E) .
	(E) .
	(E) .
	The container is refilled by: 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	An employee of the food establishment; or 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	The owner of the container if the beverage system includes a contamination-free transfer process that cannot be bypassed by the container owner; 




	(3) .Consumer-owned containers that are not foodspecific may be filled at a water vending machine or system. J [Eff 2/24/2014 ; am and comp 
	(Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-51 Sanitization of equipment and utensils. 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	Equipment food-contact surfaces and utensils shall be sanitized. 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	Utensils and food-contact surfaces of equipment shall be sanitized before use after cleaning. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	After being cleaned, equipment food-contact surfaces and utensils shall be sanitized in: 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Hot water manual operations by immersion for at least thirty seconds and as specified in section 11-50-49 (j); 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Hot water mechanical operations by being cycled through equipment that is set up as specified in section 11-50-49 (d), (k), and (1) and achieving a utensil surface temperature of one hundred sixty degrees Fahrenheit as measured by an irreversible registering temperature indicator; or 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Chemical manual or mechanical operations, including the application of sanitizing chemicals by immersion, manual swabbing, brushing, or pressure spraying methods , using a solution as specified in section 11-50-49(m). Contact times 




	shall be consistent with those on EPA-registered label use instructions by providing: 
	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Except as specified in subparagraph (B) , a contact time of at least ten seconds for a chlorine solution specified i n section 11-50-49(m) (1); 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	A contact time of at least seven seconds for a chl orine solution of fifty mg/L that has a pH of ten or less and a temperature of at least one hundred degrees Fahrenheit or a pH of 8.0 or less and a temperature of at least seventy-five degrees Fahrenheit; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	A contact time of at least thirty seconds for other chemical sanitizing solutions; or 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	A contact time used in relationship with a .combination of temperature, concentration, .and pH that, when evaluated for efficacy, .yields sanitization as defined in section .11-50-2. [Eff 2/24/2014 ; comp .


	] (Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-52 Laundering . (a) Clean linens shall be free from food residues and other soiling matter. 
	(b) .
	(b) .
	(b) .
	Specifications. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Linens that do not come in direct contact with food shall be laundered between operations if they become wet, sticky, or visibly soiled; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Cloth gloves used as specified in section 11-50-32(n) (4) shall be l aundered before being used with a different type of raw animal food such as beef, fish , lamb, pork or poultry; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Linens and napkins that are used as specified in section 11-50-32(1) and cloth napkins shall be laundered between each use; 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	Wet wiping cloths shall be laundered daily; 

	(5) .
	(5) .
	Dry wiping cloths shall be laundered as necessary to prevent contamination of food and clean serving utensils. 


	(c) Soiled linens shall be kept in clean, nonabsorbent receptacles or clean, washable laundry bags and stored and transported to prevent contamination of food, clean equipment, clean utensils, and single-service and single-use articles . 
	(d) .
	(d) .
	(d) .
	Mechanical washing . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (2), linens shall be mechanically washed; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	In food establishments in which only wiping cloths are laundered as specified in section 11-50-47(e) (2) , the wiping cloths may be laundered in a mechanical washer, sink designated only for laundering wiping cloths , or a warewashing or food preparation sink that is cleaned as specified in section 11-50-49(c). 

	(e) .
	(e) .
	Use of laundry facilities . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (2) , laundry facilities on the premises of a food establishment shall be used only for the washing and drying of items used in the operation of the establishment; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Separate laundry facilities located on the premises for the purpose of general laundering such as for institutions providing boarding and lodging may also be used for laundering food establishment items . [Eff 2/24/2014; comp 


	(Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-53 Protection of clean items . (a) After cleaning and sanitizing, equipment and utensils: 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Shall be air-dried or used after adequate draining as specified in the first paragraph of 40 CFR 180 . 940, entitl ed "Tolerance exemptions for acti ve and inert ingredients for use in antimicrobial formulations (food-contact surface sanitizing solutions)u , before contact with food; and 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	May not be cloth dried except that utensils that have been air-dried may be polished with cloths that are maintained clean and dry . 


	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	Wiping cloths laundered in a food establishment that does not have a mechanical clothes dryer as specified in section 11-50-47(e) (2) s hall be air-dried in a location and in a manner that prevents contamination of food, equipment, utensils, linens, and single-service and singleuse articles and the wiping cloths. This section does not apply if wiping cloths are stored after laundering in a sanitizing solution as specified in section 11-50-49(m) . 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	Lubricants as specified in section 11-50-Sl(i) shall be applied to food-contact surfaces that require 


	lubrication in a manner that does not contaminate foodcontact surfaces . 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	Equipment shall be reassembled so that foodcontact surfaces are not contaminated . 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	Equipment, utensils, linens , and single-service and single-use articles. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (4), cleaned equipment and utensils, laundered linens, and single-service and single-use articles shall be stored: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	In a clean, dry location; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Where they are not exposed to splash, dust, or other contamination; and 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	At least six inches above the floor; 



	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	Clean equipment and utensils shall be stored as specified in paragraph (1) and shall be stored: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	In a self-draining position that allows air drying; and 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Covered or inverted; 



	(3) .
	(3) .
	Single-service and single-use articles shall be stored as specified in paragraph (1) and shall be kept in the original protective package or stored by using other means that afford protection from contamination until used; 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	Items that are kept in closed packages may be stored less than six inches above the floor on dollies, pallets, racks, and skids that are designed as specified in section ll-50-46(ii). 

	(f) .
	(f) .
	Prohibitions. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (2) , cleaned and sanitized equipment, utensils, laundered linens, and single-service and single-use articles may not be stored: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	In locker rooms; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	In toilet rooms; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	In garbage rooms; 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	In mechanical rooms; 

	(E) .
	(E) .
	Under sewer lines that are not shielded to intercept potential drips; 

	(F) .
	(F) .
	Under leaking water lines including leaking automatic fire sprinkler heads or under lines on which water has condensed; 

	(G) .
	(G) .
	Under open stairwells; or 

	(H) .
	(H) .
	Under other sources of contamination; 



	(2) .
	(2) .
	Laundered linens and single-service and singleuse articles that are packaged or in a facility such as a cabinet may be stored in a locker room. 

	(g) .
	(g) .
	Kitchenware and tableware . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Single-service and single-use articles and c l eaned and sanitized .utensils shall be handled, displayed, and dispensed so that contamination of food-and lip-contact surfaces is prevented; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Knives, forks, and spoons that are not prewrapped shall be presented so that only the handles are touched by employees and by consumers if consumer self-service is provided; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (2) , singleservice articles that are intended for food-or lip-contact shall be furnished for consumer selfservice with the original individual wrapper intact or from an approved dispenser. 



	(h) 
	(h) 
	(h) 
	Soiled tableware s hall be removed from consumer eating and drinking areas and handled so that clean tableware is not contaminated. 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Preset tableware. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (2), tableware that is preset shall be protected from contamination by being wrapped, covered, or inverted; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	Preset tableware may be exposed if: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Unused settings are r emoved when a consumer is. seated; or 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Settings not removed when a consumer is seated are cleaned and sanitized before further use . 





	(j) 
	(j) 
	After being cleaned and sanitized, equipment and utensils shall not be rinsed before air drying or use unless : 


	(1 ) .The rinse is applied directly from a potable water supply by a warewashing machine that is maintained and operated as specified in sections ll-50-46(n) to (jj)and l l -50-49(a) to (o); and 
	(2) .The rinse is applied only after the equipment and utensils have been sanitized by the application of hot water or by the application of a chemical sanitizer solution whose EPA registered label use instructions call for rinsing off the sanitizer after it is applied in a commercial warewashing machine. [Eff 2/24/2014 ; comp 
	(Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 
	§§11-50-54 to 11-50-59 (Reserved). 
	SUBCHAPTER 5 
	WATER, PLUMBING, AND WASTE 
	§11-50-60 Water. (a) Drinking water shall be obtained from an approved source that is : 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	A public water system; or 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	A nonpublic water system that is constructed, maintained, and operated according to law. 


	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	A drinking water system shall be flushed and disinfected before being placed in service, after construction, repair, or modification and after an emergency situation, such as a flood, that may introduce contaminants to the system. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	Bottled drinking water used or sold in a food establishment shall be obtained from approved sources in accordance with 21 CFR 129, entitled "Processing and bottling of bottled drinking watern . 


	(d) .Standards. Except as specified in subsection 
	(e) : 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Water from a public water system shall meet 40 CFR 141, entitled "National primary drinking water regulationsn and state drinking water quality standards; and 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Water from a nonpublic water system shall meet state drinking water quality standards. 

	(e) .
	(e) .
	Nondrinking water. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	A nondrinking water supply shall be used only if its use is approved; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Nondrinking water shall be used only for nonculinary purposes such as air conditioning, nonfood equi pment cooling, and fire protection. 


	(f) 
	(f) 
	(f) 
	Except when used as specified in subsection (e), water from a nonpublic water system shall be sampled and tested as required by the department. 

	(g) 
	(g) 
	(g) 
	The most recent sample report for the nonpubl ic water system shall be retained on file in the food establishment or the report shall be maintained as specified by state water quality regulations . 

	(h) .
	(h) .
	(h) .
	Capacity. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	The water source and system shall be of sufficient capacity to meet the peak water demands of the food establishment; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Hot water generation and distribution systems shall be sufficient to meet the peak hot water demands throughout the food establishment. 



	(i) 
	(i) 
	Water under pressure shall be provided to all fixtures, equipment, and nonfood equipment that are required to use water except that water supplied as specified in subsection (k) (l)and (2) to a temporary food establishment or in response to a temporary interruption of a water supply need not be under pressure . 

	(j) 
	(j) 
	(j) 
	Water shall be received from the source through the use of: 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	An approved public water main; or 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	One or more of the following that shall be constructed, maintained, and operated according to law: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Nonpublic water main, water pumps, pipes, hoses , connections, and other appurtenances; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Water transport vehicles or other approved water transport delivery system; or 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Water containers. 





	(k) 
	(k) 
	(k) 
	Water meeting the requirements specified in subsections (a) to (i) shall be made available for a mobile facility , for a temporary food establishment without a permanent water supply, and for a food establishment with a temporary interruption of its water supply through : 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	A supply of containers of commercially bottled drinking water; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	One or more closed portable water containers; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	An enclosed vehicular water tank; or 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	An on-premises water storage tank. [Eff 2/24/2014; comp (Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS §321-11) 




	§11-50~61 Plumbing system. (a) /Approved . 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	A plumbing system and hoses conveying water shall be constructed and repaired. with approved materials according to law; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	A water filter shal l be made of safe materials. 

	(b) .
	(b) .
	Approved system and cleanable fixtures. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	A plumbing system shall be designed, constructed, and installed according to law; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	A plumbing fixture such as a handwashing sink, toilet, or urinal shall be easil y cleanable. 

	(c) .
	(c) .
	Handwashing sink, installation. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	A handwashing sink if provided with hot water shall be equipped with a mixing valve or combination faucet; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	A steam mixing valve may not be used at a handwashing sink; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	A self-closing, sl ow-closing, or metering faucet shall provide a flow of water for at least fifteen seconds without the need to reactivate the faucet; 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	An automatic handwashing facility shall be installed in accordance with manufacturer's instructions; 

	(5) .
	(5) .
	Faucets shall provide a sufficient flow of water to permit proper washing and rinsing of hands. 


	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	An air gap between the water supply inlet and the flood level rim of the plumbing fixture, equipment, or nonfood equipment shall be at least twice the diameter of the water supply inlet and may not be less than one inch . 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	A backfl ow or backsiphonage prevention device installed on a water supply system shall meet American Society of Sanitary Engineering (A.S . S . E.) standards for construction, installation, maintenance, inspection, and testing for that specific application and type of device. 

	(f) 
	(f) 
	(f) 
	A water filter , screen, and other water conditioning device installed on water lines shall be designed to facilitate disassembly for periodic servicing and cleaning . A water filter element shall be of the replaceable type . 

	(g) .
	(g) .
	(g) .
	Handwashing sinks . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (2), at least one handwashing sink, a number of handwashing sinks necessary for their convenient use by employees in areas specified in subsection (1), and not fewer than the number of handwashing sinks required by law shall be provided; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	If approved and capable of removing the types of soils e ncountered in the food operations involved, automatic handwashing facilities may be substituted for handwashing sinks in a food establishment that has a t least one handwashing sink . 



	(h) 
	(h) 
	At least one toilet and not fewer than the toilets required by law shall be provided. 

	(i) 
	(i) 
	Facilities for disposal of mop water and similar liquid waste shall be provided . At least one service sink or one curbed cleaning facility equipped with a floor drain shal l be provided and conveniently located for the cleaning of mops or similar wet floor cl eaning tools and for the disposal of mop water and similar liquid waste for newly constructed or extensively remodeled establishments; except that the director may waive this requirement if an alternative liquid waste disposal facility is readily avai

	(j) 
	(j) 
	(j) 
	A plumbing system shall be installed to preclude backflow of a solid, liquid, or gas contaminant into the water supply system at each point of use at the food establishment, including on a hose bibb if a hose is attached or on a hose bibb if a hose is not attached and backflow prevention is required by law, by: 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Providing an air gap as speci fied in subsection (d); or 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Installing an approved backflow prevention device as specified in subsection (e) . 

	(k) .
	(k) .
	Backflow prevention device, carbonator. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	If not provided with an air gap as specified in subsection (d), a dual check valve with an intermediate vent preceded by a screen of not less than one hundred mesh to one inch shall be installed upstream from a carbonating device and downstream from any copper in the water supply line; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	A dual check valve attached to the carbonator need not be of the vented type if an air gap or vented backflow prevention device has been otherwise provided as specified in paragraph (1) 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	A handwashing sink shall be located: 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	To allow convenient use by employees in food preparation, food dispensing, and warewashing areas; and 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	In, or immediately adjacent to, toilet rooms . 



	(m) 
	(m) 
	A backflow prevention device shall be located so that it may be serviced and maintained. 

	(n) 
	(n) 
	(n) 
	A water filter, screen, and other water conditioning device instal led on water lines shall be located to facilitate disassembly for periodic servicing and cleaning . 

	(o) .
	(o) .
	(o) .
	Using a handwashing sink. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	A handwashi ng sink shall be maintained so that it i s accessible at all times for employee use; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	A handwashing sink may not be used for purposes other than handwashing; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	An automatic handwashing facility shall be used in accordance with manufacturer' s instructions. 

	(p) .
	(p) .
	Prohibiting a cross connection. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	A person may not create a cross connection by connecting a pipe or conduit between the drinking water system and a nondrinking water system or a water system of unknown quality; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	The piping of a nondrinking water system shall be durabl y identified so that it is readily distinguishable from piping that carries drinking water. 

	(q) .
	(q) .
	Water reservoir of fogging devices, cleaning . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	A reservoir that is used to supply water to a device such as a produce fogger shall be : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Maintained in accordance with manufacturer ' s specifications; a nd 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Cleaned in accordance with manufacturer ' s specifications or according to the procedures specified in paragraph (2) , whichever is more stringent; 



	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	Cleaning procedures shall include at least the following steps and shall be conducted at least once a week: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Draining and complete disassembl y of the water and aerosol contact parts; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Brush-cleaning the reservoir, aerosol tubing, and discharge nozzles with a suitable detergent solution; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Flushing the complete system with water to remove the detergent solution and particulate accumulation; and 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	Rinsing by immersing, spraying, or swabbing the reservoir, aerosol tubing, and discharge nozzles with at least fifty mg/L hypochl orite solution . 



	(r) .
	(r) .
	A plumbing system shall be : 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Repaired according to law; and 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Maintained in good repair. N Water tanks ill Materials that are used in the const ruction of a 




	water tank, and appurtenances shall be : ill Safe; _@l Durable, corrosion-resistant, and nonabsorbent; and 
	ill 
	ill 
	ill ill 
	ill ill 
	ill 

	J..2l 
	J..2l 
	ill Finished to have a smooth, easily cleanable surface . A water tank shall be: 
	(A) .Enclosed from the filling inlet to the discharge outlet; and ill Sloped to an outlet that allows complete 
	drainage of the tank. If a water tank is designed with an access port for inspection and cleaning, the opening shall be in the top of the tank and : ill Flanged upward at least 0 . 5 inch; and ill Equipped with a port cover assembly that 
	is: 
	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Provided with a gasket and device for securing t he cover in place; and 

	(ii) 
	(ii) 
	Flanged to overlap the opening and 


	sloped to drain. A fitting with "V" type threads on a water tank inlet or outlet shall be allowed only when a hose is permanently attached . If provided, a water tank vent shall terminate in a downward direction and shall be covered with: ill Sixteen mesh to one inch screen or 
	equivalent when the vent is in a protected area; or 
	ill .A protective filter when the vent is in an area that is not protected from windblown dirt and debris. 
	Inlet and outlet, sloped to drain. 
	(A) .A water tank and its inlet and outlet shall be sloped to drain; and 
	ill .A water tank inlet shall be positioned so that it is protected from contaminants such as waste discharge, road dust, oil, or grease. 
	A hose used for conveying drinking water from a water tank shall be: 
	(A) .Safe; 
	ill .Durable, corrosion-resistant, and nonabsorbent; Resistant to pitting, chipping, crazing, scratching, scoring, distortion, and decomposition; Finished with a smooth interior surface; and Clearly and durably identified as to its use if not permanently attached. 
	ill .A filter that does not pass oil or oil vapors shall be installed in the air supply line between the compressor and drinking water system when compressed air is used to pressurize the water tank system.
	ill .A cap and keeper chain, closed cabinet, closed storage tube, or other approved protective cover or device shall be provided for a water inlet, outlet, and hose. 
	J.l.Ql .A water tank, pump, and hoses shall be flushed and sanitized before being placed in service after construction, repair, modification, and periods of nonuse . 
	J..111 .A person shall operate a water tank, pump, and hoses so that backflow and other contamination of the water supply are prevented. 
	Jl1l .If not in use, a water tank and hose inlet and outlet fitting shall be protected using a cover or device as specified in subsection (i).
	fill .Tank, pump, and hoses, dedication. 
	(A) .Except as specified in paragraph (2), a water tank, pump, and hoses used for conveying drinking water shall be used for no other purpose;
	ill .Water tanks, pumps, and hoses approved for liquid foods may be used for conveying drinking water if they are cleaned and sanitized before they are used to convey water. [Eff 2/24/2014 ; am and comp 
	) (Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 
	[§11-50-62 Mobile water tank and mobile food establishment water tank. (a) Materials that are used in the constructi on of a mobile water tank, mobile food establishment water tank, and appurtenances shall be : 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Safe; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Durable, corrosion-resistant, and nonabsorbent; and 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Finished to have a smooth , easily cleanable surface . 

	(b) .
	(b) .
	A mobile water tank shall be : 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Enclosed from the filli ng inlet to the discharge outlet; and 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Sloped to an outlet that allows complete drainage of the tank . 


	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	If a water tank is designed with an access port for inspection and cleaning, the opening shall be in the top of the tank and: 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Fl anged upward at least 0.5 inch; and 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	Equipped with a port cover assembly t hat is : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Provided with a gasket and a device for securing the cover in place; and 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Flanged to overlap the opening and s l oped to drain. 





	(d) 
	(d) 
	A fitting with "Vu type threads on a water tank inlet or outlet shall be allowed only when a hose is permanently attached . 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	If provided, a water tank vent shall terminate in a downward direction and shal l be covered with: 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Sixteen mesh to one inch screen or equivalent when the vent is in a protected area; or 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	A protective filter when the vent ia in a n area that is not protected from windbl own dirt and debris. 

	(f) .
	(f) .
	Inlet and outlet, s l oped to drain . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	A water tank and its inlet and outlet shall be sloped to drain; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	A water tank inlet shall be positioned so that it is protected from contaminants such as waste discharge, road dust, oil, or grease . 



	(g) 
	(g) 
	(g) 
	A hose used for conveying drinking water from a water tank shall be : 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Safe; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Durable , corrosion-resistant, and nonaborbent; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Resistant to pitting, chipping, crazing, scratching, scoring, distortion, a nd decomposition; 


	( 4) .Finished with a smooth interior surface; and 
	(5) .Clearly and durably identified as to its use if not permanently attached. 

	(h) 
	(h) 
	A filter that does not pass oil or oil vapors shall be installed in the air supply line between the compressor and drinking water system when compressed air is used to pressurize the water tank system. 

	(i) 
	(i) 
	A cap and keeper chain, closed cabinet, closed storage tube, or other approved protective cover or device shall be provided for a water inlet, outlet, and hose . 

	(j) 
	(j) 
	A water tank, pump, and hoses shall be flushed and sanitized before being placed in service after construction, repair, modification, and periods of nonuse. 

	(k) 
	(k) 
	A person shall operate a water tank, pump, and hoses so that backflow and other contamination of the water supply are prevented. 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	If not in use, a water tank and hose inlet and outlet fitting shall be protected using a cover or device as specified in subsection (i). 

	(m) .
	(m) .
	(m) .
	Tank, pump, and hoses, dedication. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (2) , a water t ank, pump, and hoses used for conveying drinking water shall be used for no other purpose; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Water tanks, pumps , and hoses approved for liquid foods may be used for conveying drinking water if they are cleaned and sanitized before they are used to convey water.] [Eff 2/24/2014; R (Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS 




	§321-11) 
	§11-50-63 Sewage, other 
	liquid waste, and rainwater . 

	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	A sewage holding tank in a mobile food establishment shall be: 

	(
	(
	(
	1) Sized f i fteen per cent larger in capacity than the water supply tank; and 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Provided with a tank bottom that is sloped down to an outlet with a shut-off valve to permit complete drainage of the tank, except for those tanks that are readily removable. 



	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	Food establishment drainage systems, i ncluding grease traps, that convey sewage shall be designed and installed as specified in section 11-50-61 (b) (1) . 

	(c) .
	(c) .
	(c) .
	Backflow prevention . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as specified in paragraphs (2), (3) and 

	(4) , a direct connection may not exist between the sewage system and a drain originating from equipment in which food, portable equipment, or utensils are placed; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Paragraph (1) does not apply to floor drains that originate in refrigerated spaces that are constructed as an integral part of the building; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	If allowed by law, a warewashing machine may have a direct connection between its waste outlet and a floor drain when the machine is located within five feet of a trapped floor drain and the 







	SBRRB Apr. 19, 2017 Agenda Exhibit 3E OCR
	Structure Bookmarks
	machine outlet is connected to the inlet side of a properly vented floor drain trap; 
	(4) .If allowed by law, a warewashing or culinary sink may have a direct connection. 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	If used, a grease trap shall be located to be easily accessible for cleaning . 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	Sewage shall be conveyed to the point of disposal through an approved sanitary sewage system or other system, including use of sewage transport vehicles, waste retention tanks, pumps, pipes, hoses, and connections that are constructed, maintained, and operated according to law . 

	(f) 
	(f) 
	Sewage and other liquid wastes shall be removed from a mobile food establishment at an approved waste servicing area or by a sewage transport vehicle in such a way that a publ ic health hazard or nuisance is not created. 

	(g) 
	(g) 
	A tank for liquid waste retention shall be thoroughly flushed and drained in a sanitary manner during the servicing operation . 

	(h) 
	(h) 
	(h) 
	Sewage shall be disposed through an approved facility that is: 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	A public sewage treatment plant; or 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	An individual sewage disposal system that is sized, constructed, maintained, and operated according to law. 



	(i) 
	(i) 
	Condensate drainage and other nonsewage liquids and rainwater shall be drained from point of discharge to disposal according to law. [Eff 2/24/2014; comp 


	] (Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-64 Refuse, recyclables, and returnables . (a} If located within the food establishment, a storage area for refuse, recyclables, and returnables shall meet the requirements specified in sections 11-50-70 and ll-50-7l(a) to (h), (m), and (n) . 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	An outdoor storage surface for refuse, recyclables, and returnables shall be constructed of nonabsorbent material such as concrete or asphalt and shall be smooth, durable, and sloped to drain. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	If used, an outdoor enclosure for refuse, recyclables, and returnables shall be constructed of durable and cleanable materials . 

	(d) .
	(d) .
	(d) .
	Receptacles . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (2), receptacles and waste handling units for refuse, recyclables, and returnables and for use with materials 




	containing food residue shall be durable, 
	cleanable, insect-and rodent-resistant, 
	leakproof, and nonabsorbent; 
	(2) .Plastic bags and wet strength paper bags may be used to line receptacles for storage inside the food establishment, or within closed outside receptacles . 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	Except for a receptacle for beverage bottle crown closures, a refuse receptacle may not be located within a vending machine . 

	(f) .
	(f) .
	(f) .
	Outside receptacles . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Receptacles and waste handling units for refuse, recyclables, and returnables used with materials containing food residue and used outside the food establishment shall be designed and constructed to have tight-fitting lids, doors, or covers; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Receptacles and waste handling units for refuse and recyclables such as an on-site compactor shall be installed so that accumulation of debris and insect and rodent attraction and harborage are minimized and effective cleaning is facilitated around and, if the unit is not installed flush with the base pad, under the unit. 



	(g) 
	(g) 
	(g) 
	Storage areas, rooms, and receptacles, capacity and availability . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	An inside storage room and area and outside storage area and enclosure, and receptacles shall be of sufficient capacity to hold refuse, recyclables, and returnables that accumulate; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	A receptacle shall be provided in each area of the food establishment or premises where refuse is generated or commonly discarded, or where recyclables or returnables are placed; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	If disposable towels are used at handwashing lavatories, a waste receptacle shall be locat ed at each lavatory or group of adjacent lavatories. 



	(h) 
	(h) 
	(h) 
	A toilet room used by females shall be provided with a covered receptacle for sanitary napkins . 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Cleaning implements and supplies . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (2), suitable cleaning implements and supplies such as high pressure pumps, hot water, steam, and detergent shall be provided a s necessary for effective cleaning of receptacles and waste handling units for refuse, recyclables, and returnables ; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	If approved, off-premises-based cleaning services may be used if on-premises cleaning implements and supplies are not provided. 



	(j) 
	(j) 
	(j) 
	Storage areas, redeeming machines, receptacles and waste handling units, location. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	An area designated for refuse, recyclables, returnables, and, except as specified in paragraph (2), a redeeming machine for recyclables or returnables shall be located so that it is separate from food, equipment, utensils, linens, and single-service and singleuse articles and a public health hazard or nuisance is not created; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	A redeeming machine may be located in the packaged food storage area or consumer area of a food establishment if food, equipment, utensils, linens, and singl e-service and single-use articles are not subject to contamination from the machines and a public health hazard or nuisance is not created; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	The location of receptacles and waste handling units for refuse, recyclables, and returnables may not create a public health hazard or nuisance or interfere with the cleaning of adjacent space . 



	(k) 
	(k) 
	Refuse, recyclables, and returnables shall be stor ed in receptacles or waste handling units so that they are inaccessible to insects and rodents . 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Storage areas, enclosures, and receptacles for refuse, recyclables, and returnables shall be maintained in good repair. 

	(m) .
	(m) .
	(m) .
	Outside storage prohibitions . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (2), refuse receptacles not meeting the requirements specified in subsection (d) (1) such as receptacles that are not rodent-resistant, unprotected plastic bags and paper bags, or baled units that contain materials with food residue may not be stored outside; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Cardboard or other packaging material that does not contain food residues and that is awaiting regularly scheduled delivery to a recycling or disposal site may be stored outside without being in a covered receptacle if it is stored so that it does not create a rodent harborage problem. 



	(n) 
	(n) 
	(n) 
	Receptacles and waste handling units for refuse, recyclables , and returnables shall be kept covered: 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Inside the food establishment if the receptacles and units : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Contain food residue and are not in continuous use; or 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	After they are filled; and 



	(2) .
	(2) .
	With tight-fitting lids or doors if kept outside the food establishment. 



	(o) 
	(o) 
	Drains in receptacles and waste handling units for refuse, recyclables, and returnables shall have drain plugs in place . 

	(p) 
	(p) 
	(p) 
	A storage area and enclosure for refuse, recyclables, or returnables shall be maintained free of unnecessary items, as specified in section 11-50-74(n), and clean . 

	(q) .
	(q) .
	(q) .
	Cleaning receptacles. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Receptacles and waste handling units for refuse, recyclables, and returnables shall be thoroughly cleaned in a way that does not contaminate food, equipment, utensils, linens, or single-service and single-use articles, and waste water shall be disposed of as specified in section 11-50-63(e); 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Soiled receptacles and waste handling units for refuse, recyclables , and returnables shall be cleaned at a frequency necessary to prevent them from developing a buildup of soil or becoming attractants for insects and rodents . 



	(r) 
	(r) 
	Refuse, recyclables, and returnables shall be removed from the premises at a frequency that will minimize th_e development of objectionable odors and other conditions that attract or harbor insects and rodents . 

	(s) 
	(s) 
	(s) 
	Refuse, recyclables, and returnables shall be removed from the premises by way of: 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Portable receptacles that are constructed and maintained according to law; or 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	A transport vehicle that is constructed, maintained, and operated according to law. 



	(t) 
	(t) 
	Solid waste not disposed of through the sewage system such a s through grinders and pulpers shall be recycled or disposed of in an approved public or private corrununity recycl ing or refuse facility; or solid waste shall be disposed of in an individual refuse facility such as a landfill or incinerator which is sized, constructed, maintained, and operated according to law . [Eff 2/24/2014; comp J (Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS §321-11) 


	§§11-50-65 to 11-50-69 (Reserved) . 
	SUBCHAPTER 6 
	PHYSICAL FACI LITIES 
	§11-50-70 Materials for construction and repair . Materials for indoor f l oor, wal l , and ceil ing surfaces under conditions of normal use shall be: 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Smooth, durable, and easily cleanable for a r eas where food e~tablishment operations are conducted; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Closely woven and easily cleanable carpet for carpeted areas; and 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Nonabsorbent for areas subject to moisture such as food preparation areas, wal k-in refrigerators, warewashi ng areas , toilet rooms , mobile food establishment servicing areas, and areas subject to flushing or spray cleaning methods. [Eff 2/24/2014; comp J (Auth : HRS §321


	11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-71 Design, construction, and installation. 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	(a) 
	Except as specified in s ubsection (d) and except for antislip floor coverings or applications that may be used for safety reasons, floors , floor coverings, walls , wal l coverings, and ceilings shall be designed, constructed, and install ed so t hey are smooth and easil y cleanable . 

	(b) .
	(b) .
	(b) .
	Floors, wa l ls, and ceilings, utility lines. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Utility service lines and pipes may not be unnecessarily exposed; 


	(2 ) Exposed utility service lines and pipes s hall be installed so they do not obstruct or prevent cleaning of the floors, walls, or ceilings; 
	(3) .Exposed horizontal utility service lines and pipes may not be i nstal led on the floor . 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	Floor and wall junct ures, coved, and enclosed or sealed . 


	(1) .In food establi shments in which cleaning methods other than water flushing are used for cleaning floors, t he floor and wall junctures shall be coved or closed to no larger than one thirty-second i nch; 
	(2) 
	(d) (1) 
	(2) 
	( e) 
	r emovable (f) 
	(1) 
	(2) 
	(g) (1) 
	(2) 
	The floors in food establishments i n which water flush cleaning methods are used shall be provided with drains and be graded to drain, and the fl oor and wall junctures shall be coved and sealed. Floor carpeting, restrictions and i ns tallati on . A fl oor covering such as carpeting or similar material may not be installed as a floor covering in food prepar ation areas, walk-in refrigerators, warewashing areas, toilet room areas whe r e handwashing lavatories, toilets, and urinals are located, ref use stor
	(1), .it shall be : 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	Securely attached to the floor with a durable mastic, by using a stretch and tack method, or by anot her me thod; and 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Install ed tightly ag~ins t the wall under the coving or installed away from t he wall with a space between the carpet a nd t he wall and with the edges of the carpet secured by metal stripping or some other means. 


	Mats .and duckboards shall be designed to be 
	and .easily cl eanable. Wall and cei ling coverings and coatings . Wall and ceil i ng coveri ng materials shall be attached so t hat they are easily cleanabl e ; Except in areas used only for dry storage, concrete, porous blocks, or bricks used for indoor wall construction shall be finished and sealed to provide a smooth, nonabsorbent, easily cleanable surface. Walls and ceilings, att achment s . Except as speci fied in paragraph (2), attachments to walls and ceilings such as light fixtures, mechanical room
	[(h) Except for temporary food establishments, st uds, joists, and rafters may not be exposed in areas subj ect to 
	moisture . 
	moisture . 
	moisture . 

	(i ) l 
	(i ) l 
	J..b.l_ 
	Li ght bulbs, 
	protective shielding. 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	Except 
	as 
	specified in paragraph 
	(2 ), 
	light bulbs 

	TR
	shal l 
	be 
	shielded, 
	coated, 
	or 
	otherwise shatter

	TR
	resi stant 
	in 
	areas 
	where 
	there 
	is exposed food; 

	TR
	clean equipment, 
	utensils, 
	and linens; 
	or 

	TR
	unwr apped single-service and 
	single-use arti cles; 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Shielded, 
	coated, 
	or 
	otherwise shatter-resistant 

	TR
	bulbs need 
	not be 
	used in 
	areas 
	used only for 

	TR
	storing food 
	in unopened packages, 
	if: 

	TR
	(A) 
	The 
	integrity of the packages 
	cannot 
	be 

	TR
	affected by broken glass falling onto 
	them; 

	TR
	and 

	TR
	(B) 
	The 
	packages 
	are 
	capable of being cleaned 

	TR
	of debris 
	from broken bul bs 
	before the 

	TR
	packages 
	are 
	opened; 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	An 
	infrared 
	or 
	other heat 
	lamp shall be protected 

	TR
	against 
	breakage by 
	a 
	shield surrounding and 

	TR
	extending beyond the bulb 
	so 
	t hat 
	only the 
	face 

	TR
	of the bulb is exposed . 


	[(j)]fil Heating, ventilating, and air conditioning systems shall be designed and installed so that make-up air intake and exhaust vents do not cause contamination of food, food-contact surfaces, equipment, or utensils . 
	[(k) lill Insect control devices, design and install ation . 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Insect control devices that are used to electrocute or stun flying insects shall be desi gned to retain the insect within the device; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	Insect control devices shall be installed so that: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	The devices are not located over a food preparation area; and 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Dead insects and insect fragments are prevented from being i mpell ed onto or fal ling on exposed food; clean equipment, utensils, and linens; and unwrapped singl eservice and single-use articles . 




	[ (l) ]fil Except where a toilet room is l ocated outside a food establishment and does not open directly into the food establishment such as a toil et room that is provided by the management of a shopping mall, a toilet room located on the premises shall be completely enclosed and provided with a tight-fitting and self-closing door . 
	[(m)]fil Outer openings, protected. 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as specified in paragraphs (2) to (5) , outer openings of a food establishment shall be protected against the entry of insects and rodents by: 

	(A) 
	(A) 
	(A) 
	Filling or closing holes and other gaps along floors, walls, and ceilings; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Closed, tight-fitting windows; and 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Sol id, self-closing, tight-fitting doors; 



	(2) .
	(2) .
	Paragraph (1) does not apply if a food est ablishment opens into a larger structure, such as a mall, airport, or office building, or into an attached structure, such as a porch, and the outer openings from the larger or attached structure are protected against the entry of insects and rodents ; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	(3) .
	Exterior doors used as exits need not be selfclosing if they are : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Solid and tight-fitting; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Designated for use only when an emergency exists, by the fire protection authority that has jurisdiction over the food establishment; and 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Limited-use so they are not used for entrance or exit from the building for purposes other than the designated emergency exit use; 



	(4) .
	(4) .
	(4) .
	Except as specified in paragraphs (2) and (5), if the windows or doors of a food establishment, or of a larger structure within which a food establishment is located, are kept open for ventilation or other purposes [or a temporary food establishment is not provided with windows and doors as specified in paragraph (1 )) , the openings shall be protected against the entry of insects, rodents and other pests by : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Sixteen mesh to one inch screens ; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Properly designed and installed air curtains to control flying insect s ; or 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Other effective means; 



	(5) .
	(5) .
	Paragraph (4) does not apply if flying insects and other pests are absent due to the location of the establishment, the weather, or other limi ting condition; 

	(6) .
	(6) .
	The requirements of this section may be waived or modified when alternative controls acceptable to 


	the director are util ized to ensure that all food 
	and food-contact surfaces of equipment and 
	utensils are effectively protected against 
	contamination, and no other public health hazards 
	will .resul t from the conduct of the operation . 
	[ (n)) (m) Perimeter walls and roofs of a food establishment shall effectively protect the establishment from the weather and the entry of insects, rodents, and other animals . 
	[ (o})J.El Except for machines that vend canned beverages, if located outside, a machine used to vend food shall be provided with overhead protection . 
	[ (p))J.£2_ Except for areas used only for the loading of water or the discharge of sewage and other l iquid waste, through the use of a closed system of hoses, servicing areas shall be provided with overhead protection . 
	[(q))lEl_ Exterior wa l king and dr iving surfaces shall be graded to drain . 
	[(r})J.31 Outdoor refuse areas shall be constructed in accordance with law and shall be curbed and g~aded to drain to collect and dispose of liquid waste that result from the refuse and from cleaning t h e area and waste receptacles . 
	[ (s) )J...£1 Establishment operations shall be separated from any living or sleeping quarters by complete partiti oning and shall have no direct opening into any living or sleeping quarters, except through a solid, tightfitting and self-closing door . Entrance into t he establishment shall not be through any living or sleeping quarters . [Eff 2/24/2014; am and comp ) 
	(Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-72 Numbers and capacities . (a) Handwashing sinks shall be provided as speci fied in section 11-50-61(g} . 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	Each handwashing sink or group of two adjacent handwashing sinks shall be provi ded with a supply of hand cleaning liquid, powder, or bar soap . 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	Each handwashing sink or group of adjacent handwashing sinks shall be provided with: 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Individual, disposable towels; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	A continuous towel system that supplies the user with a clean towel; or 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	A heated-air hand drying device; or 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	A hand drying device that employs an air-knife system that delivers high velocity, pressurized air at ambient temperatures. 



	(d) 
	(d) 
	A sink used for food preparation or utensil washing, or a service sink or curbed cleaning facility used for the disposal of mop water or similar wastes, may not be provided with the handwashing aids and devices required for a handwashing sink as specified in subsections (b) and (c) , and section 11-50-64 (g) (3). 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	A sign or poster that notifies food employees to wash their hands shall be provided at all handwashing sinks used by food employees and shall be clearly visible to food employees. 

	(f) 
	(f) 
	A handwashing sink or group of adjacent handwashing sinks that is provided with disposable towels shall be provided with a waste receptacle as specified in section 11-50-64 (g) (3) . 

	(g) 
	(g) 
	Toilets and urinals shall be provided as specified in section 11-50-61(h). 

	(h) 
	(h) 
	(h) 
	A supply of toilet tissue shall be available at each toilet. 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	The light intensity shall be: 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	At least one hundred eight lux (ten footcandles) at a distance of thirty inches above the floor, in walk-in refrigeration units and dry food storage areas and in other areas and rooms during periods of cleaning; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	At least two hundred fifteen lux (twenty footcandles): 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	At a surface where food is provided for consumer self-service such as buffets and salad bars or where fresh produce or packaged foods are sold or offered for consumption; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Inside equipment such as reach-in and under-counter refrigerators;. and 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	At a distance of thirty inches above the floor in areas used for handwashing, warewashing, and equipment and utensil storage, and in toilet rooms; and 



	(3) .
	(3) .
	At least five hundred forty lux (fifty footcandles) at a surface where a food employee is working with food or working with utensils or equipment such as knives, slicers, grinders, or saws where employee safety is a factor . 

	(j) .
	(j) .
	Designation. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Dressing rooms or dressing areas shall be designated if employees routinely change their clothes in the establishment; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Lockers or other suitable facilities shall be provided for the orderly storage of employees ' clothing and other possessions . 



	(k) 
	(k) 
	A service sink or curbed cleaning facil ity shall be provided as specified in section 11-50-61(i). [Eff 2/24/2014; comp J (Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS §321-11) 


	§11-50-73 Location and placement. (a) Handwashing sinks shall be conveniently located as specified in section 11-50-61 (1). 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	Toilet rooms shall be conveniently located and accessible to employees during all hours of operation 

	(c) .
	(c) .
	(c) .
	Designated areas. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Areas designated for empl oyees to eat, drink, and use tobacco shall be located so that food, equipment, linens , and single-service and singleuse articles are protected from contamination; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Lockers or other suitable facilities shall be located in a designated room or area where contamination of food, equipment, utensils, linens, and single-service and single-use articles cannot occur . 



	(d) 
	(d) 
	Products that are he l d by the [permit holder] owner or operator for credit, redemption, or return to the distributor, such as damaged, spoiled, or recalled products, shall be segregated and held in designated areas that are separated from food, equipment, utensils, linens, and single-service and single-use articles . 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	Units, receptacles, and areas designated for storage of refuse and recyclable and returnable containers shall be located as specified in section l l -50-64(j) . [Eff 2/24/2014; comp (Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 


	§11-50-74 Maintenance and operation. (a) Physical facilities shall be maintained in good repair . 
	(b) .
	(b) .
	(b) .
	Cleaning, frequency and restrictions. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Physical facilities shall be cleaned as often as necessary to keep them clean; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Except for cleaning that is necessary due to a spill or other accident, cleaning shall be done during periods when the least amount of food is exposed such as after closing . 

	(c) .
	(c) .
	Cleaning floors, dustless methods . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (2), only dustless methods of cleaning shall be used, such as wet cleaning, vacuum cleaning, mopping with treated dust mops, or sweeping using a broom and dust-arresting compounds; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	Spills or drippage on floors that occur between normal floor cleaning times may be cleaned: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Without the use of dust-arresting compounds; and 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	In t he case of liquid spills or drippage, with the use of a small amount of absorbent compound such as sawdust or diatomaceous earth applied immediately before spot cleaning. 




	(d) 
	(d) 
	(d) 
	Intake and exhaust air ducts shall be cleaned and filters changed s o they are not a sour ce of contamination by dust, dirt, and other materials . 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	Food preparation sinks, handwashing sinks, and warewashing equipment may not be used for the cleaning of maintenance tools, the preparation or holding of maintenance materials, or the disposal of mop water and similar liquid wastes . 

	(f) 
	(f) 
	After use, mops shall be placed in a position that allows them to a ir-dry without soiling walls, equipment, or supplies . 

	(g) 
	(g) 
	Except as specified in subsection (c) (2), sawdust, wood shavings, granular salt, baked clay, diatomaceous earth, or similar materials may not be used on floors . 

	(h) 
	(h) 
	Plumbing fixtures such as handwashing sinks, toilets, and urinals shall be cleaned as often as necessary to keep them clean . 

	(i) 
	(i) 
	(i) 
	Except during cleaning and maintenance operations, toilet room doors as specified in section 11-50-71(1) shall be kept closed . 

	(j) .
	(j) .
	(j) .
	Using dressing rooms and lockers . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Dressing rooms shall be used by employees if t he employees r egularly change their clothes in the establishment; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Lockers or other suitable facilities shall be used for the orderly storage of employee clothing and other possessions . 



	(k) 
	(k) 
	(k) 
	The premises shall be maintained free of insects, rodents, and other pests . The presence of insects, rodents, and other pests s hall be controlled by: 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Routinely inspecting incoming shipments of food and supplies; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Routinely inspecting the premises for evidence of pests; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	(3) .
	Using methods, if pests are found, such as trapping devices or other means of pest control as specified in section 11-50-81 (c), (k) and 

	(1); .and 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	Eliminating harborage conditions. 



	(1) 
	(1) 
	Dead or trapped birds, insects, rodents, and other pests shall be removed from control devices and the premises at a frequency that prevents t heir accumulation, decomposition, or the attraction of pests . 

	(m) 
	(m) 
	(m) 
	Maintenance tools such as brooms, mops , vacuum cleaner s, and similar items shall be : 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Stored so they do not contaminate food, equipment, utensils, linens, and single-service and singl e-use articles; and 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Stored in an orderly manner that facilitates cleaning t h e area used for storing the maintenance tools . 

	(n) .
	(n) .
	The premises shall be free of : 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Items that are unnecessary to the operation or maintenance of the establishment such as equipment that is nonfunctional or no longer used; and 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Litter . 

	(o) .
	(o) .
	Prohibiting animals. 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as specified in paragraphs (2) and (3), live animals may not be all owed on the premises of a food establishment; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	Live animals may be allowed in the following si tuations if t he contamination of food; clean equipment, utensils, and linens; and unwrapped single-service and single-use art icles cannot result : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Edible fish or decorative fish in aquariums, shellfi sh or crustacea on ice or under refrigeration, and shellfish and crustacea in display tank systems; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Patrol dogs accompanying police or security officers in offices and dining, sales, and storage areas, and sentry dogs running loose in outside fenced areas; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	In areas that are not used for food preparation and that are usually open for customers, such as dining and sales areas, service animals that are controlled by the disabled employee or person, if a health or safety hazard will not result from the presence or activities of the service animal; 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	(D) .
	Pets in the common dining areas of institutional care facilities such as nursing homes , assisted living facilities, group homes , or residential care facilities at times other than during meals if: 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Effective partitioning and self-closing doors separate the common dining areas from food storage or food preparation areas; 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	Condiments, equipment, and utensil s are stored in enclosed cabinets or removed from the common dining areas when pets are present; and 


	(iii) .Dining areas includi ng tables, countertops , and simi lar surfaces are effectively cleaned before the next meal service; and 

	(E) .
	(E) .
	In areas that are not used for food preparation, storage, sales, display, or dining, in which there are caged animals or animals that are similarly confined, such as in a variety store that sells pets or a tourist park that displ ays animals; 



	(3) .
	(3) .
	Live or dead fish bait may be stored if contamination of food; clean equipment, utensils, and linens; and unwrapped single-service and single-use articles cannot result. [Eff 2/24/2014; comp (Auth: HRS §321




	11) (Imp: HRS §321-11) 
	§§11-50-75 to 11-50-79 (Reserved) . 
	SUBCHAPTER 7 
	POISONOUS OR TOXIC MATERIALS 
	§11-50-80 Labeling and identification . (a) Containers of poisonous or toxic materials and personal care items shall bear a legible manufacturer ' s label . 
	(b) Working containers used for storing poisonous or toxic materials such as cleaners and sanitizers taken from bulk supplies shall be clearly and individually identified with the common name of the material. [Eff 2/24/2014; comp 
	(Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-81 Operational supplies and applications . (a) Poisonous or toxic materials shall be stored so they cannot contaminate food, equipment, utensils, linens, and singleservice and single-use articles by : 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Separating the poisonous or toxic materials by spacing or partitioning; and 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Locating the poisonous or toxic materials in an area that is not above food, equipment, utensils, linens , and single-service or single-use articles . This paragraph does not apply to equipment and utensil cleaners and sanitizers that are stored in warewashing areas for availability and convenience if the materials are stored to prevent contamination of food, equipment, utensils, linens, a nd single-service and single-use articles . 

	(b) .
	(b) .
	Presence and use restriction . 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	Only those poisonous or toxic materials that are required for the operation and maintenance of a food establishment, such as for the cleaning and sanitizing of equipment and utensils and the control of insects and rodents, shall be allowed in a food establishment; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Paragraph (1) does not apply to packaged poisonous or toxic materials that are for retail sale . 

	(c) .
	(c) .
	Poisonous or toxic materials shall be : 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Used according to : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	This chapter and law; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Manufacturer ' s use directions included in labeling, and , for a pesticide, manufacturer ' s label instructions that 




	state that use is allowed in a food establishment; 
	(C) .
	(C) .
	(C) .
	The conditions of certification, if certification is required, for use of the pest control materials; and 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	Additional conditions that may be established by the [department;] director; and 


	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	Applied so that : 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	A hazard to employees or other persons i s not constituted; and 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	(B) .
	Contamination including toxic residues due to drip, drain, fog, splash, or spray on food, equipment, utensils , linens, and single-service and single-use articles is prevented, a nd for a restricted use pesticide, this is achieved by: 

	(i) .
	(i) .
	(i) .
	Removing the items; 

	(ii) .
	(ii) .
	Covering the items with impermeable covers; or 




	(iii) .Taking other appropriate preventive actions; and 
	(iv) .Cleaning and sanitizing equipment and utensils after the application; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	A restricted use pesticide shall be applied only by a licensed pest control operator, or a person under the direct supervision of a licensed pest control operator. 


	(d) A container previously used to store poisonous or toxic materials may not be used to store, transport, or dispense food. 
	[(e) Chemical sanitizers and other chemical antimicrobials applied to food-contact surfaces shall meet the requirements specified in 40 CFR 180.940, entitl ed "Tolerance exemptions for active and inert ingredients for use in antimicrobial formulations (food-contact surface sanitizing solutions)" . 
	(f) Chemicals for washing, treatment, storage and processing fruits and vegetables, criteria. 
	( 1) Chemicals used to wash or peel r aw, whole fruits and vegetables shall meet the requirements specified in 21 CFR 173 .315 enti tled "Chemicals used in washing or to assist in t he peeling of fruits and vegetables"; 
	(2) .Ozone as an antimicrobi al agent used in the treatment, storage, and processing of fruits and 
	(2) .Ozone as an antimicrobi al agent used in the treatment, storage, and processing of fruits and 
	vegetables in a food establ ishment shall meet the 

	requirements specified in 21 CFR 173.368, 
	entitled "Ozonen. 
	(g) 
	(g) 
	(g) 
	Chemicals used as boiler water additives shall meet the requirements specified in 21 CFR 173.310, entitled "Boiler water additivesu . 

	(h) 
	(h) 
	(h) 
	Drying agents used in conjunction with sanitization shall: 

	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Contain only components that are listed as one of the following: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	Generally recognized as safe for use in food as specified in 21 CFR 182, entitled "Substances generally recognized as safen, or 21 CFR 184, entitled "Direct food substances affirmed as generally recognized as safen; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	Generally recognized as safe for the intended use as specified i n 21 CFR 186, entitled "Indirect food substances affirmed as generally recognized as safen; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Approved for use as a drying agent under a prior sanction specified in 21 CFR 181, entitled "Prior-sanctioned food ingredientsn; 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	Specifically regulated as an indirect food additive for use as a drying agent as specified in 21 CFR Parts 175-178; or 

	(E) .
	(E) .
	Approved for use as a drying agent under the threshold of regulation process established by 21 CFR 170 . 39 , entitled "Threshold of regulation for substances used in food-contact articlesn; and 



	(2) .
	(2) .
	When sanitization is with chemicals, the approval required in paragraph (1) (C) or (E) or the regulation as an indirect food additive required in paragraph (1) (D), shall be specifically for use with chemical sanitizing solutions . 



	(i) 
	(i) 
	(i) 
	Lubricants shall meet the r equirements specified in 21 CFR 178 . 3570, entitled "Lubricants with incidental food contactn, if they are used on food-contact surfaces, on bearings and gears located on or within food-contact surfaces, or on bearings and gears that are located so that lubricants may leak, drip, or be forced into food or onto food-contact surfaces . 

	(j) .Restricted use pesticides specified in subsection 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	(3) shall meet the requirements specified in 40 CFR 152 Subpart I, entitled "Classification of Pesticides" . ] (k)] M Rodent bait shall be contained in a covered, tamper-resistant bait station. 


	((1)) ill Tracking powders, pest control and monitoring. 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except as specified in paragraph (2), a tracking powder pesticide may not be used in a food establishment; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	If used, a nontoxic tracking powder such as talcum or flour may not contaminate food, equipment, utensils, linens, and single-service and single-use articles . 


	[(m)] .J...9l Medicines restriction and storage . 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Except for medicines that are stored or displayed for retail sale, only those medicines that are necessary for the health of employees shall be allowed in a food establishment; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Medicines t hat are in a food establishment for the employees' use shall be labeled as specified in section 11-50-BO(a) and located to prevent the contamination of food, equipment, utensils, linens, and single-service and single-use articles . 


	[(n)J l.!:U_ Medicines belonging to employees that require refrigeration and are stored in a food refrigerator shall be stored in a package or container and kept inside a covered, leakproof container that is identified as a container for the stor age of medicines . 
	[(o)] ill First aid supplies that are in a food establishment for the employees ' use shall be : 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Labeled as specified in secti on 11-50-BO(a); and 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Stored in a kit or a container that is located to prevent the contamination of food, equipment, utensils, and linens, and single-service and single-use articles . 


	[ (p)] ill Except as specified in subsections (n) and (o), employees shall store their personal care items i n facilities as specified in section 11-50-72 (j) (2)) . [Eff 2/24/2014; am and comp J (Auth : HRS §321
	11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-82 Stock and retail sale. Poisonous or toxic materials shall be stored and displayed for retail sale so 
	they cannot contaminate food, equipment, utensils, linens, and single-service and single-use articles by: 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Separating the poisonous or toxic materials by spacing or partitioning; and 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Locating the poisonous or toxic materials in an area that is not above food, equipment, utensils, linens , and s ingle-service or single-use articles. [Eff 2/24/2014; comp 


	(Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 
	§§11-50-83 to 11-50-84 (Reserved). 
	[SUBCHAPTER 8 
	MOBILE FOOD ESTABLISHMENTS 
	§11-50-85 General requirements . (a) Mobile food establishments shall comply with the requirements of this chapter, except as otherwise provided in this subchapter. 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	The department may impose additional requirements to protect against health hazards or nuisances related to the conduct of food establishments as mobile operations. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	The department may prohibit the sale of some or all potentially hazardous foods. 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	When no health hazard will result, the department may waive or modify the requirements of this chapter for mobile food establishments . 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	(e) 
	A mobile food establishment shall be of a design that allows relocation of the mobile food establishment to an approved establishment as needed. (Eff 2/24/2014 ; R (Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS §321-11) 

	§11-50-86 Approved food establishment requirements. 

	(a) 
	(a) 
	Mobile food establishments shall operate out of an approved food establishment and shall return to the approved food establishment for cleaning and servicing . 

	(b) 
	(b) 
	The approved food establishment shall provide a servicing area that is convenient ly accessible for the mobile food establishment cleaning, discharging liquid or solid wastes , refilling water tanks and i ce bins, and boarding food. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	(c) 
	The approved food establishment shall be used for the following purposes: 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	Storage. Food, equipment, utensils, and supplies shal l be stored in the approved f ood establishment unless stored on board mobile food establis hments; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Food preparation. All food preparation not permitted on board mobile food establishments shall take place at the approved food establishment; 

	(3) .
	(3) .
	Cleaning. Multi-use equipment and utensils that are not permitted to be cleaned on board mobil e food establishments shall be cleaned and sanitized at the approved food establishment at least once each day at the conclusion of the dail y operations; 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	Water suppiy . The water tank(s ) of all mobile food establishments s hall be drained and filled da ily with potable water at an approved servicing a r ea at the approved food establishment; 

	(5) .
	(5) .
	Wastewater disposal. Wastewater holding tank(s) of all mobile food establishments s hall be drained daily and cleaned at a n approved servicing area; 

	(6) .
	(6) .
	Cooking and reheating . All cooking not permitted on mobile f ood est ablishments shall take place a t t he approved food establ ishment ; 

	(7) .
	(7) .
	Cool ing . Leftover food to be reheated for later service shall be rapidly cooled as specified in section ll-50-34(d). 



	(d) 
	(d) 
	A mobile food establishment may use more than one approved food establishment. The names and addresses of all sites used as an approved food establishment for a mobile food establishment shall be provided to the department in writing for approval . The director may l imit the number of mobile establishments operating out of the same food establishment . 

	(e) 
	(e) 
	If the owner of the mobil e f ood establishment i s not also t he owner of the approved food establishment, the f ollowing s hall apply: 


	(1) .Written documentation de tailing t he operational agreement between t he two parties shall be provided. The documentation required shall include, but not be limited to, the days, times, a nd specific types of operations to be conducted in the approved food establishment. The written 
	documentation must be submitted annually along with the renewal application and fees; 
	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	(2) .
	The approved food establi shment shall be provided with a means by which used of the facility can be documented and verified by the director. Acceptable methods are: 

	(A) .
	(A) .
	(A) .
	The use of time cards stamped by a punch clock sealed by the director; 

	(B) .
	(B) .
	A tampered-proof electronic log-in; 

	(C) .
	(C) .
	Log-in sheets listing dates and times of an approved food establishment use shall be maintained on a form provided by the department. Each daily entry shall be ini t ial ed or signed by representatives of both the approved food establishment and the mobil e food establishment; or 

	(D) .
	(D) .
	An alternative record keeping method approved by the director if such method adequately documents the usage of the approved food establishment by the mobile food establishment . These records shall be retained at the approved food establishment for at least twelve months and shall be made available to the director upon r equest; 



	(3) .
	(3) .
	These records shall be retained at the approved food establishment for at least twelve mont hs and shal l be made available to the director upon request . 

	(4) .
	(4) .
	Separate clearly designated storage areas for food, supplies, and equipment shall be provided in the approved food establishment for use by the mobile food establishment. 

	(f) .
	(f) .
	A private home kitchen shall not be used as an approved food establishment . [Eff 2/24/2014; 


	R ] (Auth: HRS §321-11) .(Imp: HRS §321-11) .
	§11-50-87 Food supplies, storage, display and service. (a) Food supplies. A list of all foods offered s hall be submitted to the department for approval . Approval shall be based on a determination by the director that the mobi le food establishment is provided with the minimum facilities necessary for a safe and sanitary operation. 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	Food storage . Excess food not carried on the mobile food establishment shall be stored at the approved food establishment . 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	Food display and service . Self-service of unpackaged potentially hazardous food by customers is prohibited except through self-dispensi ng unit s that do not require a separate dispensing utensil such as a scoop or tongs, if approved by the director. [Eff 2/24/2014; 

	R .
	R .
	] (Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 


	§11-50-88 Single-service restrictions . (a) Food shal l be served to customers in, or on, single-service or single-use containers only. 
	(b) Only single-service utensils shall be provided to customers. [Eff 2/24/2014; R ] (Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-89 Water system. (a) Mobile food establishments where exposed or unpackaged foods are handled shall be equipped with an approved self-contained water system t hat provides sufficient water at the required temperatures to meet the needs of the operation and shall be constructed and operated as specified in section 11-50-62 . 
	(b) The water supply and sink requirements shall be as follows : 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	Mobile food establ ishments r equired t o have a water system shall be equipped with a handwashing sink as specified in sections ll-50-60(k) and ll-50-61(c) and (g) . The wat er system shall be of sufficient capacity to furnish the amount of water needed for the hours of operation, but not l ess than five gallons; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	Mobile food establishments that conduct food preparation or warewashing on the mobile unit shall be equipped as specified in sections 11-50-47(b) and ll-50-49(h) . In such case the water system shall be of sufficient capacity to f urnish the amount of water needed for the hours of operation . The minimum volume of water shall be approved by the director based on operational factors that may include, but not be limited to, the hours of operation, the number of workers involved, the type and amount of food pr


	and extent of food-handling/warewashing conducted on board the mobile food establishment . Water use projections or estimations shall be provided by the applicant . [Eff 2/24/2014; 
	R ] (Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-90 Wastewater system. All mobile food establishments equipped with a water system shall be provided with a wastewater holding tank sized at least fifteen per cent larger than the water suppl y and shall be constructed and operated as specified in section 11-50-63. 
	[Eff 2/24/2014 ; R ] (Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-91 Other requirements . (a) For identification purposes, the permit number of the permit issued by the department shall be permanently and prominently displayed on two sides of the exterior of the mobile food establishment in characters not less than four inches high, of strokes not less than one-fourth inch wide and of a color that contrasts with the background. 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	All mobile food establishments shall be capable of being moved from their vending site at any time. They shall be moved from the vending site to the approved food establ ishment for cleaning and servicing. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	No utility service lines shall be connected to a mobile food establishment . 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	All equipment essential to t he basic operation of the mobile food establishment shall be physically attached to or located aboard the mobile unit . This includes , but is not limited to, grills, ice chests, storage containers, and generators.] [Eff 2/24/2014; R ] (Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 


	§§11-50-92 to 11-50-94 (Reserved) . 
	[SUBCHAPTER 9 
	TEMPORARY FOOD ESTABLISHMENTS 
	§11-50-95 General requirements . (a) A temporary food establishment shall comply with the requirements of this chapter, except as otherwise provided in t his subchapter. 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	The department may i mpose additional requirements to protec t against health hazards or nuisances related to the conduct of temporary food establishments . 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	The departme nt may prohibit the sale of some or all potentially hazardous foods . 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	When no health hazards will result, the department may waive or modify requirements of this chapter for temporary food establishments. [Eff 2/24/2014; 

	R .
	R .
	] (Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 


	§11-50-96 Speci al requirements . (a) All temporary food establishment operational sites shall be approved by the department. Temporary food establishment operational sit es shall include the approved food establishment sites, event sites, vending or distribution sites and any other sites where food is prepared, packaged, stored, served, vended, or distributed. 
	(b) All temporary food establishment menus and schematic plans shall be approved by the department . 
	(1) .
	(1) .
	(1) .
	The permit appl icant may be required to submit to the department in writing, a complete menu and schematic plan of the proposed operation; 

	(2) .
	(2) .
	This schematic shall clearly detail, step by step, the flow and handl ing of all foods on the menu from the initial receipt of ingredients, through the processing or preparation of the foods, to the final distribution of the food to the consumer . [Eff 2/24/2014; R 


	(Auth : HRS §321-11) (Imp : HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-97 Approved food establishment requirements . An approved food establishment shall be available and used for any food preparation that is not al lowed at the event site and to cl ean and sanitize multi-use utensils and equipment before the event and at the end of each business day. [Eff 2/24/2014 ; R ] (Auth : HRS §321-11) 
	(I mp: HRS §321-11 ) 
	§11-50-98 Single-service restrictions. (a) Food shall be served to customers in, or on, single-service or single-use containers only. 
	(b) Only single-service utensils shall be provided to customers . [Eff 2/24/2014; R ] (Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-99 Handwashing facilities. Temporary food establishments where exposed or unpackaged foods are handled shall be provided with at least one handwashing sink as specified in sections ll-50-60(k) and 11-50-61(c) and (g). If an alternative water supply is provided instead of water under pressure, it shall be of sufficient capacity to furnish the amount of water needed for the hours of operation, but not less than five gallons. [Eff 2/24/2014; R ] (Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-100 Wastewater disposal . ~astewater shall be disposed of in a manner that does not create a nuisance. [Eff 2/24/2014; R (Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS §321-11) 
	§11-50-101 Other facilities and operations. (a) Temporary food establishments shall be located in a clean, controlled area in which the potential for contamination of food and food contact equipment is minimized. 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	(b) 
	Garbage and refuse from temporary food establishments shall be stored in tightly covered leakproof containers until removed. 

	(c) 
	(c) 
	Refuse containers shall be available on the grounds at convenient locations . 

	(d) 
	(d) 
	All garbage and refuse shall be disposed of at a frequency and in a manner that does not create a nuisance. [Eff 2/24/2014; R (Auth: HRS §321-11) (Imp: HRS §321-11) 


	§§11-50-102 to 11-50-104 (Reserved) . J" 
	2. 
	2. 
	2. 
	Material, except source notes, to be repealed is bracketed. New material is underscored. 

	3. 
	3. 
	Additions to update source notes to reflect these amendments and compilation are not underscored. 


	4 . These amendments to and compilation of chapter 1150, Hawaii Administrative Rules shall take effect ten days after filing with the Office of the Lieutenant Governor. 
	I certify that the foregoing are copies of the rules , drafted in the Ramseyer format pursuant to the requirements of section 91-4.1, Hawaii Revised Statues, which were adopted on August 2, 1982 and filed with the office of the Lieutenant Governor. 
	VIRGINIA PRESSLER Director Department of Health 
	APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
	Deputy Attorney General 


	SBRRBAgendaApr2017Final.pdf
	SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD
	        David Y. Ige
	           Governor
	      Luis P. Salaveria

	       DBEDT Director
	        Members
	      Anthony Borge

	             Oahu
	            Maui




